
 

 

C I T Y  O F  K I R K L A N D 
CITY COUNCIL 

James Lauinger, Mayor • Joan McBride, Deputy Mayor • Dave Asher • Mary-Alyce Burleigh  
Jessica Greenway • Tom Hodgson • Bob Sternoff  • David Ramsay, City Manager 

123 Fifth Avenue  •  Kirkland, Washington 98033-6189  •  425.587.3000  •  TTY 425.587.3111  •  www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

AGENDA 
KIRKLAND CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

City Council Chamber 
Tuesday, March 7,  2006 

  6:00 p.m. – Study Session  
7:30 p.m. – Regular Meeting  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA material is available for public review at the Public Resource Area at City Hall or at the Kirkland Library on the Friday afternoon 
prior to the City Council meeting. Information regarding specific agenda topics may also be obtained from the City Clerk’s Office on the Friday 
preceding the Council meeting. You are encouraged to call the City Clerk’s Office (587-3190) or the City Manager’s Office (587-3001) if you have 
any questions concerning City Council meetings, City services, or other municipal matters. The City of Kirkland strives to accommodate people with 
disabilities. Please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 587-3190, or for TTY service call 587-3111 (by noon on Monday) if we can be of assistance.  
If you should experience difficulty hearing the proceedings, please bring this to the attention of the Council by raising your hand. 

 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 EXECUTIVE SESSIONS may be 

held by the City Council to discuss 
matters where confidentiality is 
required for the public interest, 
including buying and selling property, 
certain personnel issues, and lawsuits.  
An executive session is the only type of 
Council meeting permitted by law to 
be closed to the public and news 
media 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. STUDY SESSION 
 
 a. Council Technology 
 
4. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
5. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

a. Suburban Cities Association Update 
 
b. Absolutely Incredible Kid Day Proclamation 

 
 c. Washington State Department of Transportation Update on 405 Corridor  
  Construction Projects 

ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
provides an opportunity for members 
of the public to address the Council on 
any subject which is not of a quasi-
judicial nature or scheduled for a 
public hearing.  (Items which may not 
be addressed under Items from the 
Audience are indicated by an 
asterisk*.)  The Council will receive 
comments on other issues, whether 
the matter is otherwise on the agenda 
for the same meeting or not. Speaker’s 
remarks will be limited to three 
minutes apiece. No more than three 
speakers may address the Council on 
any one subject.  However, if both 
proponents and opponents wish to 
speak, then up to three proponents 
and up to three opponents of the 
matter may address the Council. 

 
6. REPORTS 
 

a. City Council 
 
(1) Regional Issues 

 
b. City Manager  

 
(1) 2006 Legislative Status Report 

 
(2) Market Neighborhood Meeting Format 

 
(3) Calendar Update (Environmental Stewardship Study Session) 

 

P - denotes a presentation  
from staff or consultant 



Kirkland City Council Agenda March 7, 2006 

 
7. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

a. Items from the Audience 
 
b. Petitions 

 CONSENT CALENDAR consists of 
those items which are considered 
routine, for which a staff 
recommendation has been prepared, 
and for items which Council has 
previously discussed and no further 
discussion is required.  The entire 
Consent Calendar is normally 
approved with one vote.  Any Council 
Member may ask questions about 
items on the Consent Calendar 
before a vote is taken, or request that 
an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and placed on the 
regular agenda for more detailed 
discussion. 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

a. Approval of Minutes: February 21, 2006 
 
b. Audit of Accounts: 

Payroll $ 

Bills  $ 
 

c. General Correspondence 
 

d. Claims 
 

(1) Betty L. Stevens GENERAL CORRESPONDENCE 
Letters of a general nature 
(complaints, requests for service, etc.) 
are submitted to the Council with a 
staff recommendation.  Letters relating 
to quasi-judicial matters (including 
land use public hearings) are also 
listed on the agenda.  Copies of the 
letters are placed in the hearing file 
and then presented to the Council at 
the time the matter is officially brought 
to the Council for a decision. 

 
e. Authorization to Call for Bids 
 
f. Award of Bids 

 
g. Acceptance of Public Improvements and Establishing Lien Period 

 
(1) NE 116th Street at 124th Avenue NE Intersection Improvements Project 

 
h. Approval of Agreements 
 

(1) Resolution R-4553, Approving a Sewer Facility Agreement with Continental 
 Divide LLC and Authorizing City Manager to Sign Said Agreement 
 
(2) Resolution R-4554, Approving a Sewer Facility Agreement with Norris 

Homes, Inc. and Authorizing City Manager to Sign Said Agreement 
ORDINANCES are legislative acts or 
local laws.  They are the most 
permanent and binding form of 
Council action, and may be changed 
or repealed only by a subsequent 
ordinance.  Ordinances normally 
become effective five days after the 
ordinance is published in the City’s 
official newspaper. 
 
RESOLUTIONS are adopted to 
express the policy of the Council, or to 
direct certain types of administrative 
action.  A resolution may be changed 
by adoption of a subsequent 
resolution. 
 

 
(3) Resolution R-4555, Approving a Water Facility Agreement with Dan and 

Peggi Sturgill and Authorizing City Manager to Sign Said Agreement 
 

(4) Resolution R-4556, Approving a Sewer Facility Agreement with Dan and 
Peggi Sturgill and Authorizing City Manager to Sign Said Agreement 

 
i. Other Items of Business 
 

(1) Resolution R-4557, Relinquishing the City’s Interest, Except for a Utilities 
 Easement, in an Unopened Alley  

 
(2) Resolution R-4558, Approving Participation in Cooperative Purchasing 
 Through U.S Communities and Authorizing the City’s Purchasing Agent 
 and Buyer to Make These Purchases on Behalf of the City of Kirkland 
 
 

 - 2 - P - denotes a presentation
from staff or consultant 

 



Kirkland City Council Agenda March 7, 2006 

 
(3) Ordinance No. 4041, Relating to Salaries of Elected Officials and Other 
 Officers and Employees; and Amending Sections 3.08.010 and 3.08.020 
 of the Kirkland Municipal Code 
 
(4) Surplus Equipment Rental Vehicles/Equipment for Sale 
 

9.  PUBLIC HEARINGS PUBLIC HEARINGS are held to 
receive public comment on important 
matters before the Council.  You are 
welcome to offer your comments 
after being recognized by the Mayor.  
After all persons have spoken, the 
hearing is closed to public comment 
and the Council proceeds with its 
deliberation and decision making. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS consists of items 
which have not previously been 
reviewed by the Council, and which 
may require discussion and policy 
direction from the Council. 

 
          a.      118th Avenue NE Right-of-Way Vacation 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution R-4559, Adopting the 2006-2008 Planning Work Program 
 
  (1) Authorizing Correspondence to Sharon Daniels, Regarding Private  
  Amendment Request   
 
b. Supporting Transportation Commission Recommendations Relating to Traffic 
 Concurrency  
 
c. Reviewing Transit Service Alternatives  
 
d. Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway Corridor 

 
11.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Ordinance No. 4042 and its Summary, Relating to False Alarms, Amending 
 Chapter 21.35A of the Kirkland Municipal Code, Establishing Standards for Alarm 
 Users, Including Registration, Fees, Probationary Periods, and Suspension of 
 Police Response 
 
b. Summarizing Zoning Code Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 
 

     *     c. Shumway 10 Planned Unit Development 
 
  (1) Ordinance No. 4043, Relating to Land Use Approval of a Preliminary  
   and Final Planned Unit Development as Applied for by Robert Ketterlin and 
   Setting Forth Conditions of Said Approval 

  (2) Ordinance No. 4044 and its Summary, Relating to Land Use and That  
   Property Commonly Known as Shumway Mansion, and Altering the  
   Significant Features of the Shumway Mansion Property as Applied for by 
   Robert Ketterlin 

  (3) Resolution R-4560, Approving a Development Proposal Submitted Under 
   the Quasi-Judicial Project Rezone by Robert Ketterlin to Reduce the Size of 
   the Historic Overlay that Encompasses the Entire Shumway Mansion  
   Property to a Smaller Area Around the Mansion Consistent with the  
   Boundary of Lot 1 of the Shumway 10 Short Plat and Setting Forth  
   Conditions to Which Such Development Proposal Shall Be Subject 

 

 - 3 - P - denotes a presentation
from staff or consultant 

 



Kirkland City Council Agenda March 7, 2006 

 

 (d) Personal Wireless Services Facilities and Fees Charged by Planning Department  

  (1) Ordinance No. 4045 and its Summary, Amending Title 23 (the Kirkland  
   Zoning Code) of the Kirkland Municipal Code: Adopting Amendments to  
   Chapter 117 of the Kirkland Zoning Code Regulating the Siting of Personal 
   Wireless Service Facilities 

  (2) Ordinance No. 4046 and its Summary, Relating to Fees and   
   Reimbursement: Amending Fees Charged by Planning Department,  
   Establishing Fees for the Review of Personal Wireless Service Facilities and 
   Establishing Fees for the Review of Minor Modifications of Personal  
   Wireless Service Facilities 
 
12. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 - 4 - P - denotes a presentation
from staff or consultant 

 



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Information Technology Department
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3050 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us

MEMORANDUM 

To: David Ramsay, City Manager 

From: Brenda Cooper, CIO 
Donna Gaw, Network & Operations Division Manager 
Xiaoning Jiang, GIS Administrator 
Janice Perry, Multimedia and Communications Manager 

Date: February 23, 2006 

Subject: Council Technology Study Session 

RECOMMENDATION

Council becomes familiar with the contents of this memo, which outlines the responsibilities and tasks of the 
Information Technology Department.  In general, we will not directly discuss this information in the study session, 
but it will be background for our discussion.  We plan to spend the study session highlighting a few areas of this 
memo, demonstrating some of our current and recent projects, and most importantly discussing our upcoming 
strategic plan with you in an interactive format.  We would very much like to hear your opinions and ideas.  

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct policy implications being brought to you at this time, but our work supports nearly every major 
effort of the city, is increasingly visible to the public directly, and now represents a significant portion of your budget. 

BACKGROUND DISCUSSION

Information Technology has four divisions.  Each manager or supervisor has provided you with further information 
later in the document, but here is the basic description of each division. 

Network and Operations (Donna Gaw):  Manages infrastructure including local and wide-area networks, 
servers, desktop and mobile computing, the help desk, phones, print and copy devices and central applications such 
as email.

Applications (Brenda Cooper):  Supports applications such as finance, payroll, public safety records, police 
dispatch and mobile, public works infrastructure management, fleet, our internet and intranet sites, and others. 

Geographical Information Systems (Xiaoning Jiang):  Creates, maintains, and supports data and applications 
that utilize spatial or map-based analysis.

Multimedia Services (Janice Perry):  Produces and manages major portions of the graphic look and feel of the 
city communications.  Responsible for most print graphics, for both television stations, and some internet work.  Also 
responsible for telecommunications franchising. 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Study Session

Item #:  3.a.



The temporary staff are in addition to the ones shown directly on the organization chart, plus we 
have a broadcast intern that isn’t shown here. 

We are funded to spend about twenty-five million dollars in the next five years, including 
operating and capital costs.  The breakdown is as follows: 

Anticipated IT Budget for 2006-2010 
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Totals

Capital $1,279,900 $1,618,400 $1,329,100 $1,336,500 $1,164,900 $6,728,800
Operating $3,145,686 $3,302,970 $3,468,119 $3,641,525 $3,823,601 $17,381,901
Totals $4,425,586 $4,921,370 $4,797,219 $4,978,025 $4,988,501 $24,110,701

The capital numbers above are approved in our 2007-2011 CIP, the operating number for 2006 
is already-approved budget, and the other years represent an anticipated 5% increase each year.   
The actual increase will vary some.

1_Staff Memo 2



1_Staff Memo 3

Network and Operations Division (Donna Gaw)

What We Do: 
Support network connectivity to thirteen city sites, as well as to other local cities such as Medina, Mercer 
Island, and Bellevue, and to the state 

Keep 390 PC’s running on staff desktops and in common areas 
Support configuration, moves, adds, and changes for 445 phones, faxes, and modems 
Maintain fifty-one separate application servers 
Answer Help Desk calls, which range from broken computers to “how to” questions.  In 2005, we 
answered 3,835 calls 

Direct Council Support: 
The Network and Operations Division supports the Council’s Tablet PCs (PC) and Personal Digital 
Assistants (PDAs) such as Blackberry and Treo devices.  We also support your connection to the City’s 
network from your home, as well as at City Hall, which includes downloading the Council Packet and 
access to the City’s e-mail system.  We are currently developing a quarterly PC maintenance program for 
Council members.  This program is designed to make sure your PCs software is up-to-date and to assist 
with any questions or problems you might be having. 

We would like to take this opportunity to get feedback from Council on how we are doing with all of this: 

What is working?
What is not working?
What can we do for you?

Most Interesting Current Projects: 
The Network and Operations Division recently completed a City/School Fiber Project build out in Kirkland.  
Because of our regional partnerships, and with significant help from the Lake Washington School District, 
City staff at all locations but two are now able to connect to the City via high speed fiber optics.  In the near 
future, the Cities of Kirkland and Bellevue will be able to use this newly constructed pathway between our 
respective City Halls to share infrastructure, share joint applications that already exist for fire dispatch and 
traffic modeling, and to partner more effectively on GIS.  Project participants include the Lake Washington 
School District, Evergreen Hospital, the University of Washington, and the City of Bellevue. Bellevue School 
District and Overlake hospital are participating through Bellevue. 

Our next big project is the Wireless in the Parks pilot.  The project will kick off at the end of May this year 
and is currently scheduled to last through the summer of 2007, covering Marina Park, Peter Kirk Park, and 
part of downtown.  At the end of this pilot project, we will decide whether or not to pursue on-going funding. 



1_Staff Memo 4

Applications (Brenda Cooper)

What We Do: 
The Applications Division supports the following primary city applications: 

Finance, including budget and payroll 
Human Resources, including employee online, an internal tool for staff access to HR functions 
Public Works Maintenance, which includes inventory and work orders relating to city infrastructure 
and is closely tied to GIS 
Permitting and licensing, which is shared by Fire and Building and Public Works and has other 
users
Police computer aided dispatch, mobile, records management, jail, and associated programs 
Fire records management 
Fleet Maintenance 
Water meter reading 
Utility Billing 
Parks and Recreation registration, including the online Kirklandparks.net 
Regional eCityGov applications through the eCityGov Alliance, which include 
mybuildingpermit.com, myparksandrecreation.com, nwproperty.net, and nwmaps.net plus 
numerous projects in design 
City of Kirkland main website plus various level of support for affiliated websites like 
explorekirkland.com. 
The city intranet, which is internal web-based tool 
Database creation, maintenance and support 
Multiple other smaller applications 

Direct Council Support: 
We maintain the City Council intranet portal, which is where you go to retrieve your Council packets.  We 
are also responsible for the technical support of the on-demand website and video streaming of Council 
meetings.

Most Interesting Current Projects: 
We are beginning a multi-year project to implement document and content management, and hope to 
utilize workflow tools to help streamline processes throughout the city and give staff easier access to 
documents that they need.  This project will also help us with legal compliance around document retention 
and public disclosure.

We are supporting the regional dispatch planning effort, working on police regional data sharing and 
exploring making selected applications such as permitting and email available in the field.  We also hope to 
roll out a new version of the City Website soon.



1_Staff Memo 5

Geographic Information Services (Xiaoning Jiang)

What We Do: 
The Geographic Information System (GIS) Division of IT manages and maintains the city’s spatial (map-
based) data assets, and promotes wide usage of this technology.  Our three staff members work diligently 
to create primary and derived data layers, map products, and desktop tools to meet many business 
requirements across the organization.  We strive to work closely with our many GIS customers to improve 
data quality, accessibility, and integration with numerous business applications.  Notably, Phase I of the 
GIS implementation, underway for over five years, is now essentially complete and within budget, a 
significant accomplishment.  Attached is a summary of Phase I accomplishments. 

We commissioned a consultant study in 2005 to assess where we are relative to our identified business 
needs, and to lay out specific actions to guide the next five years of GIS development at Kirkland.  Our 
consultant complimented the city on its GIS accomplishments and made many good recommendations 
about where the city could capitalize on its investment in this technology.  These recommendations form 
the basis for projects comprising the 2006-2007 GIS Work Plan.  In general, the GIS Program is 
transitioning from a data development mode to one of applying the data to as many decision points as 
possible in the city infrastructure.  This is nearly all-encompassing in terms of meeting the needs and 
expectations surrounding all city services, policies, and goals, and is an exciting prospect.

It is now well understood in the GIS field that most organizations benefit from wide distribution of data and 
tools to a diverse customer base.  This means that GIS specialists must focus on pushing technical 
solutions – hardware, software, and data – to users capable of materially participating in routine GIS 
activities: making maps, doing routine spatial queries and analyses, updating data layers at the site level, 
and so on.  Of all the imperatives surrounding a successful municipal GIS, keeping the database current is 
perhaps the most critical.  Our staff take this seriously, and are working on streamlined procedures and 
tools for data maintenance that will significantly improve our productivity.  

Direct Council Support: 
Council sees GIS products regularly as part of various Council packets.  Also, our regional online 
applications as NWproperty.net and NWmaps.net are available to Council via the internet. 

Most Interesting Current Projects: 
This year, we will start to implement our GIS Strategic plan, which was developed and approved last year.  
A copy of the executive summary has been included as an attachment to this memo, and a full copy of the 
plan will be made available in the Council office upstairs in City Hall for your use.  Some of the major 
projects we will work on this year include getting more GIS tools out in the field with public works and 
building staff, and developing and mapping city-owned property.   



1_Staff Memo 6

MultiMedia Services (Janice Perry)

What We Do: 
This Division has two primary components.  One is to support the communication efforts of the 
organization.  We are a vehicle for designing, writing and broadcasting information generated by the City of 
Kirkland and City supported activities.  Our goal is to provide our community and organization with news, 
information and access to materials that provides information. Recognizing people have dominate learning 
styles such as auditory, visual or reading; we try to use all three styles to provide information e.g. print, 
television and web.      

Attached is an outline of the type of support provided through our graphic design and print services.  While 
some products have a higher visibility which you may readily recognize, we do provide services to each 
department and to some Board and Commissions (i.e. Cultural Council, Design Review).   

Another tool we use is cable television. The City of Kirkland has two government access channels.  Channel 
21 KGOV, is our government channel that airs City Council meetings, Legislative updates from Olympia, 
Sound Transit Board meetings, Project Impact (emergency preparedness features), Perils for Pedestrians, 
speaker bureau presentations and information documentaries on a variety of topics such as wetlands and 
public art.  Channel 75, K-Life is our government channel that focuses on local news and activities and 
events. Regular programs are Currently Kirkland, our monthly news desk, We’ve Got Issues (programs 
generated by our Youth Council), Senior Issues (programs initiated by our Senior Council), Wild About 
Washington, Words that Cook, and Education News Parents Can Use.

Kirkland has 22,871 households of which 16,292 are cable television subscribers. We have the potential of 
reaching 71% of the Kirkland community via cable television.  Based on our 2003 Needs Ascertainment 
Study (analyzed by Constrance Ledoux Book, Ph.D.), we learned that 65% of the scribers occasionally 
watch our government channels, 11% watch monthly, 21% weekly and 2% daily.  It is a resource that gets 
used and our goal is to increase the percentage of those who watch on a monthly, weekly and daily basis.
Attached are charts that share other information obtained from the Needs Ascertainment Study.

In addition to programs that air directly on our channels, we have an on-demand selection of programs that 
is available from the City’s website.  Our on-demand library has City Council meetings beginning with 
December 14, 2004 to the present, Currently Kirkland episodes, and We’ve Got Issues episodes.  We also 
have special features available such as Garage Appliance Safety, MyBuildigPermit.com, and Moments in 
History, to name a few.

It is exciting to see the on-demand being used.  We have programs that range anywhere from 1 request to 
as many as 482 requests.  The top five programs consistently requested are Garage Appliance Safety, 
We’ve Got Issues – Teen Parties, Currently Kirkland Episodes, City Council Meetings, 
MyBuildingPermit.com 

In addition to providing information to the community, we are also a resource for internal organization 
video taping, such as taping training sessions.  Staff has made this training available on a checkout basis 
and in some instances it has been made available through on-demand via KirkNet.



1_Staff Memo 7

Looking toward the future, we would like to air live programs from Marina and Peter Kirk Parks.  Ideally we 
would be able to identify some sponsors who would support the airing of baseball games and other events.
There is also an interest in programming that would feature our community neighborhoods, businesses 
and restaurants.    

The second component is telecommunications.  This division is the point of contact for telecommunications 
companies interested in leasing public property and has lead responsibility and coordination for franchise 
negotiations and agreements.  Currently we have seven lease agreements in place and two more under 
discussion and 11 franchise agreements.  Discussions on two franchise agreements for renewal will occur 
this year (Puget Sound Energy – Gas and Northshore Utility).

Direct Council Support: 
Multimedia Services is responsible for recording Council meetings and other special events that Council 
has an interest in.  Multimedia Services graphic designs are used to support many Council initiatives. 

Most Interesting Current Project: 
This year, we are focused on improving our television station programming and variety, and working to 
increase public awareness of the ability to watch our shows online.   

Cross-divisional responsibilities and projects (Brenda Cooper)

A number of tasks cross multiple divisional boundaries.  These include providing 24/7 on-call support, IT 
disaster recovery, training city staff in computer and application use, and working to improve the 
communication tools available for the public and making them easier for staff to use. 

Information Technology Strategic Plan

We approved a strategic plan in 2001, and have completed most of the tasks on that plan.  We are now 
ready to begin our next five-year strategic plan.  We have an apparently-successful vendor identified 
(CH2MHILL) and probably will have a signed contract by the time of the study session.  The following is the 
requested services and deliverables section of the RFP. 

We are looking for a consultant to help us create a strategic plan to guide us through the next five years, 
and also to create a more detailed IT infrastructure plan and design.   

We hope to involve all of the primary internal stakeholders in both an analysis of the current program, in 
idea generation for the future, and in prioritization of projects.  We will also expect the consultant to meet 
with us and external stakeholders which includes other cities, citizens, and businesses.  

We do have anticipated income streams for capital and operating funding, and the primary question that 
we are asking with this strategic plan is “What is the most effective way to spend the resources that we 
now have available?”

We are looking for an evaluation that will highlight current strengths and weaknesses as well as identify, 
prioritize, and cost the projects that we should focus on over the next five years.  Some of the specific 
areas that we would like to be sure to include are: 



1_Staff Memo 8

Portfolio Management:  We would like one outcome of the strategic plan to be a completed technology 
portfolio and a process for keeping it up to date.

Applications: We have a number of new applications slated for purchase in the next five years, including 
CRM.  For each of these applications, we’d like to look at whether they should be regional or Kirkland-
centric, and whether or not we are actually working on the right applications.

Infrastructure:  We’re sure our infrastructure is less than optimal.  For example, we tend to follow 
vendor’s recommendations for how many separate and individual servers their applications need, which 
has resulted in an English garden of baby servers.  We suspect that some server consolidation would be 
very helpful, and have been saving capital to help us accomplish this.  We have new and significant storage 
needs and want to look at shared storage options and improved backup/recovery. In addition, we’d like to 
consider the benefits of moving our key customer-centric applications into a more web-services based 
infrastructure and examine if and how service oriented architecture ideas might be helpful to us.  We did 
just complete a full external security audit in 2005, and security should continue to be considered critical. 

Disaster Recovery:  We have a reasonably disaster-resistant location, but would have trouble doing any 
actual recovery should a large-scale natural disaster render our building unusable.  The strategic plan 
should include recommendations to address this void. 

Financial Models:  One of the few recommendations from the 2001 Strategic Plan which we have only 
made minor progress on was to set aside money to replace large systems.  We’d like ideas for how to 
make another go at that. As a related task, we’d like recommendations to simplify our billing structure. 

Regionalization:  We are doing more and more regional applications, and now that we have a growing 
intra-city and intra-agency fiber network on the eastside, we would like to explore opportunities to create 
and manage shared infrastructure and/or applications between the cities.  We need help understanding 
how to effectively balance the power of central internal management of our applications and the cost-saving 
opportunities of regional applications and hardware infrastructure.   

Help Desk/ITIL:  We’d like to take a closer look at our help desk functions, and see if there are any 
aspects of ITIL that we should implement.  

GIS:  The five-year strategic GIS plan that we just adopted this year should be integrated.  Additionally, we 
are exploring forming a regional eCityGov Alliance-based GIS program, and that effort needs to be 
integrated.

Staff Structure:  The multimedia services function just came into IT in 2005.  We have an uneven 
organization chart, and a number of people that report directly to the CIO.  We’d like to take a look at our 
staff, structure, and organization, and identify areas for structural improvement.  While we will entertain 
suggestions for new staff positions, the city budget is not in a position to add multiple IT positions and we 
desire a plan that can be implemented.  On a related topic, we are interested in developing a 
current/desired skills inventory so that we can plan for training. 



1_Staff Memo 9

Project and Task Management and IT Governance Reporting:  We do not have very detailed 
project management tools or skills except in some specific narrow areas.  We do not have good visibility to 
tasks except in the Help Desk area.  We have an IT Steering team that provides high-level governance, and 
we do a modified form of Balanced Scorecard reporting to that team, but would like input on what we 
should consider changing. 

Industry Standards:  We would like to know how we compare to industry standards for help desk 
customer service, staffing, uptime, costs, etc. to the extent that the base information is available. 

Content Management:  We are implementing a content management system for the web, and in the 
process of selecting a document management vendor.  We are interested in a pathway to help us better 
manage all digital content, including public records. 

Municipal and Public Networking:  We have completed a municipal networking study and are involved 
in two more detailed tasks related to the outcome of that project.  These include a pilot for public wireless 
in selected parks, and an examination of other options for municipal fiber that can be leased to 
telecommunications providers and used to help create secure city-owned support networks for city staff 
purposes such as public safety, field inspections, etc.  These efforts should be factored into the plan.  An 
important component of this effort is maintaining a competitive environment for commercial 
telecommunications providers that fosters their success at offering multiple broadband choices in the 
community.

Policies and Service Level Agreement:  We’d like to have our policies and Service Level Agreements 
looked at, and any necessary policy direction identified. 

DELIVERABLES

The following deliverables are to be provided by the vendor.  Additional deliverables may be identified 
during the initial meetings between the vendor and the City.   

A five-year strategic plan addressing the topics listed above and any others identified in the process of 
stakeholder discussions.  This plan should be designed to succeed within our anticipated available budget. 

A two-year tactical plan including some of the management tools identified above such as a technology 
portfolio and balanced scorecard reporting. 

An infrastructure design and a specific detailed migration plan to allow us to implement that infrastructure 
by the end of 2007.  This plan should address creating a more flexible and cost-effective hardware 
infrastructure.  

Final Comments:

Please feel free to let me know if there is any area of our work that you would like more information about 
during or after the study session.  We look forward to showing you a few of our accomplishments and 
discussing our strategic plan directions with you.



A SOUND DATA FRAMEWORK … 

Phase I, 1998 GIS Plan, is complete 
GIS database contains 14 themes, 85 feature types, >35 GB total 
Projects, procedures, templates are organized for potential re-use
Staff are streamlining ongoing routine database maintenance 
Robust initiative is underway to synchronize GIS data with business 
systems

City of Kirkland, Washington 
A BLUE-RIBBON GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEM

GIS Directory Structure 

Hansen Asset Management System 

Street Tree Inventory 

Kirkland in 3-D From SW 



A PROACTIVE SERVICE MODEL … 

Program is designed for maximum usage by staff and community 
Customer base includes all departments and most work groups 
Kirknet allows GIS access to ___ users via the GIS Browser 
IT-GIS also provides advanced desktop GIS tools, map products, 
training, technology transfer 
City has also provided valuable GIS data and tools to community 
groups, businesses, and other government agencies 

City of Kirkland, Washington 
A BLUE-RIBBON GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEM

Police Dispatch System 

With GIS Browser 

Staff Utilize GIS Browser  

and/or Advanced GIS Tools 

Parks, Facilities, and Trails 

Guide Now in Second Edition 



EFFECTIVE OVERSIGHT AND MANAGEMENT … 

GIS Program follows annual work plan developed jointly with users 
GIS Steering Team oversight ensures sound business case review 
Peer-level interaction between GIS, other IT staff, benefits all city 
users of technology 
GIS Program is flexible; responds to changing/unforeseen projects 
and city priorities 
City GIS embraces Big Picture ; participates in “GIS Day,” regional 
initiatives, and partnerships 

    

City of Kirkland, Washington 
A BLUE-RIBBON GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEM

GIS Day 

Regional GIS Browser 

2003 Tree Canopy Study 

GIS User Group GIS Work Request Process 



OUR 2005 GIS REALITY CHECK … 

The conclusion of Phase I was a logical milestone for updating the 
1998 Plan
The city GIS needed a report card for current status as well as 
growth potential 
The rapidly changing technology landscape, including GIS, must be 
planned for and managed 
The consultant team praised the city’s successful GIS 
implementation and solid business model; suggested several new 
directions to maximize benefits
Focus beginning in 2006 is improved staff decision support, mobile 
GIS, and enhanced integration of GIS and business systems 

CMMS

Permits

Billing

Police

City Staff

View Map

Layers

GIS Server

Server automatically pulls 

records from system and 

adds them to map layers in 

the enterprise GIS  on a 

regular basis.

Public

View Map

Layers

Network

Access Data

& Tools

Maintain Data

& Tools

Wireless Field

GIS Editing
`

Public User

`

City Data

Browser

`

GIS Analyst

`

GIS User

(Department Rep

or Other)

Enterprise GIS

Data (ArcSDE)

Project Control &

Tracking (MS EPM)

Document

Management

(TDB)

CMMS

(Hansen)

Permitting

(Advantage)

Fire

(FireRMS)

Police RMS

(NewWorld)

Utility Billing

(SpringBrook)

GIS Application Server

Wireless or Wired

Field GIS Viewer

eCityGov Applications

(XML)

Collects data from business systems, hosts 

Intranet and Public Web Mapping, and XML 

Web Services for integration. ArcIMS and 

custom ArcObjects applications.

Hosts geoprocessing (analysis) 

tools, all City GIS data, and is under 

version control.

City of Kirkland, Washington 
A BLUE-RIBBON GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEM

GIS, Hansen, and Sewer Video Integrated! 
“Decision Support” includes staff, Council, and public 

Recommended System Architecture

Recommended Application 

Enabling Staff and Public Real-

time View of City Activity 



Woolpert GIS Strategic Plan 
August 2005 City of Kirkland, Washington A 

Final

GIS Strategic 

Plan

City of Kirkland, Washington
August 2005 

Prepared by Woolpert, Inc. 

116 Inverness Drive East, Suite 105 

Englewood, Colorado 80112 

www.woolpert.com



Woolpert GIS Strategic Plan 
August 2005 City of Kirkland, Washington i 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

In April 2005, the City of Kirkland engaged Woolpert, Inc., to prepare a GIS Strategic Plan. The 

Woolpert project manager worked closely with the City GIS Administrator to organize a project kickoff 

meeting and three sets of on-site interviews. A wide variety of staff were involved in this process, 

predominantly from departments seen as key stakeholders in the City’s GIS program. The information 

gathering during these interviews was used in conjunction with existing documentation (including 2005-
2006 Budget-In-Brief, 1998 LBIS Plan, and the Annual GIS Work Plan) to formulate this GIS Strategic 

Plan.

The City of Kirkland wanted a plan that would: 

Provide a roadmap of how to best move forward with the GIS program. 

Help define the applications to protect and leverage their existing investment in GIS data. 

Enable a collaborative approach where different departments can work together on a citywide level, 

and with the neighboring jurisdictions on a regional level. 

Promote knowledge sharing between consultants and City staff, and cross-training between City 

departments. 

Identify the projects, budgets, schedules, and resources to successfully implement and maintain the 

GIS program into the future. 

This plan addresses these goals and is broken out into the following sections: 

Existing conditions – The current status of GIS at the City. 

Needs assessment – The six-year vision, and the challenges impacting the achievement of this vision. 

Recommendations – Specific recommendations to help achieve the six-year vision. 

Implementation planning – The recommendations summarized and prioritized by individual tasks, 

budgets, schedules and resources required to implement the vision. 

The details of each step can be found in the remainder of this document, while the highlights are 

summarized in this executive level summary. 



Woolpert GIS Strategic Plan 
August 2005 City of Kirkland, Washington 2 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

It is apparent from the discovery phase of the planning process that the City has fully embraced GIS as a 

program and technology. Good funding support has enabled the small yet capable GIS Division staff to 

create useful and time saving tools and data for City staff. GIS data now supports several key business 

systems in the City, including maintenance management, permitting, police dispatch, and utility billing. 

In addition, the GIS Browser is used to share data and tools across the city. The success of the City GIS 

up to this point can be appreciated by looking at the list of accomplishments in Error! Reference source 
not found. (p.Error! Bookmark not defined.).

A Shift in Focus 

The City of Kirkland certainly is to be commended for its vision and perseverance in planning and 

implementing GIS technologies beginning with the 1998 LBIS Plan. The plan itself provided a suggested 

enterprise program framework, a fair amount of 

technical and project data, and a planning-level budget.  

More importantly, from this planning process the City’s 

own management team emerged as the dominant driver 

in implementing the plan’s specific recommendations, 

beginning with the recruitment of a GIS Administrator. 

Plan implementation as of June, 2005 is nearly 

complete, and well within the allocated budget. 

The 1998 LBIS Plan that established the City GIS was, 

by design, focused primarily on spatial data 

development. Good data is a necessary requirement for 

a successful GIS program, and the City has spent a 

considerable sum on creating and maintaining key 

layers like real property, streets, addresses, and utilities.   

The focus of Phase II of the City GIS (i.e., this GIS 

Strategic Plan) is on realizing an immediate return on 

investment for these data sets. While the plan does 

include additional data development projects, these are 

specialized supplements to the existing, core data 

layers. The future of GIS at the City is in decision 

support through widespread viewing and analysis of 

the data using map-centric tools and browsers. 

This vision of GIS at the City of Kirkland is detailed in 

Section 3 beginning on page p.Error! Bookmark not defined.. Error! Reference source not found. on 

p.Error! Bookmark not defined. shows the systems to support GIS integration across the city, of which 

the centerpiece is a GIS application server. The role of this server is primarily to support public and city-

only GIS data viewers that enable viewing of key data like active permits, street maps, public works 

projects, etc. This is the type of information that citizens and staff alike need to see on a daily basis. 



Woolpert GIS Strategic Plan 
August 2005 City of Kirkland, Washington 3 

Key Recommendations 

Based on the findings from the discovery phase and the identified GIS vision for the City, Woolpert 

recommends a conservative, proactive, and technically sound path forward. Details of each specific 

recommendation can be found in Section 4 beginning on p.Error! Bookmark not defined.. The 

recommendations are grouped into four types: organizational and operational, applications, technical GIS, 

and data. The general statements below summarize these detailed recommendations. 

We recommend that the GIS program be centralized. This means having all full-time GIS staff in one 

division, adopting the centralized application model, and consolidating data maintenance. This also 

includes a GIS service supporting system to make better use of GIS analysts’ time, and adding a full-time 

equivalent (FTE) in the next two years to support public safety GIS. The City will realize cost savings 

through more effective resource management, and will have an equitable budgeting model to ensure that 

departments support the GIS program to the extent that they use it.  

We recommend that more effective use of existing data be made via widely distributed and easy-to-use 
tools. The Public GIS Browser and Internal GIS Browser are the main tools to accomplish this goal; 

citizens and staff can quickly look at city activities and run simple tools to get quick answers to common 

questions. Lower-level, more technically oriented tools augment these core systems, including a 

centralized addressing system, as well as creating new data layers for work orders, permits, and CIP 

projects. This will allow the City to offer much better customer service, and make faster, more informed 

decisions.

We recommend that the GIS Division adopt key technologies and approaches for data management, 
maintenance, and analysis. These recommendations are specific to the daily technical activities of the 

GIS Division staff. Data maintenance and QC tools will be enhanced or created to reduce the time that 

analysts spend on this work. Modeling and data management will be scalable and effectively support the 

enterprise GIS vision through a complete ArcSDE implementation. With the projects related to this 

recommendation, the City will be well-positioned to benefit from the analytical aspect of GIS, i.e., 

decision support for CIP planning, advanced reporting, regulatory reporting requirements, public safety, 

business development, etc.. 

We recommend that the City extend the use of GIS data in the field. The next logical step for map data 

that was collected in the field is to get the information back into the hands of City staff who work in the 

field: inspectors, maintenance crews, police officers, fire fighters, etc. A two-phased approach begins by 

giving view-only maps to field workers, and then giving a select group the ability to also update the GIS 

data in the field. The City will empower field staff to make better decisions based upon current 

information, and improve the GIS data at the same time. 

We recommend augmenting the core GIS layers with a small collection of new layers, and extending some 
existing core layers into new areas. Support for the Fire and Building Department is a key 

recommendation, and can only be realized if some existing layers are extended to cover the Fire District 

41 area to which Kirkland crews are dispatched. Other general purpose layers within the city boundaries
needed by multiple departments are City-owned property, easements, survey control, and environmentally 

sensitive areas. These layers will give the City better planning and development capabilities, will save 

money in utility construction, and ensure regulatory compliance.  (NOTE:  the geographic extent of the 

Fire District 41 mapping is approximately the same as the potential annexation area (unincorporated King 

County) adjoining the city on the north.  This recommendation does not include extending all enterprise 

GIS layers, such as utilities, other street infrastructure, etc. through the annexation area; that work is the 

subject of a separate citywide study on the total cost of annexation.) 



Woolpert GIS Strategic Plan 
August 2005 City of Kirkland, Washington 4 

Cost Summary 

Table 1 shows a summary cost by project type (first column) if all of the recommendations, and 

associated work, are completed. These costs are spread across six plus years, and details of the 

scheduling and City resources needed to complete each project are in Section 5 of this Plan, including 

detailed breakdowns by project by year by fund. For each year, there is a breakdown of the total cost of 

each project type by the funding source, i.e., utility fund or general fund. 

You will also note a summary of City staff resources, in hours, necessary in each budget year to 

complete the tasks in this Plan.  

Table 1 - Budget Summary by Fund by Year 

Project Type Staff Hours 2006 2007

Capital One-
Time Ongoing Utilities General Total Utilities General Total 

Organizational
&Operational 1,340 564 $   50,750 $   21,750 $   72,500 $   36,500 $   33,500 $   70,000 

Data 1,020 700 $   79,250 $   98,750 $ 178,000 $   58,000 $   82,000 $ 140,000 

Application 1,140 260 $   45,400 $   92,600 $ 138,000 $   26,100 $   56,900 $   83,000 

Replacement - - $    13,200 $   46,800 $  60,000 $   15,400 $   54,600 $   70,000 

Total 3,500 1,524 $ 188,600 $ 259,900 $ 448,500 $ 136,000 $ 227,000 $ 363,000 

Project Type 2008 2009

Capital Utilities General Total Utilities General Total 

Organizational
&Operational $   27,000 $   23,000 $   50,000 $ 51,000 $   31,000 $   82,000 

Data $   70,500 $ 116,500 $ 187,000 $ 31,750 $   78,250 $ 110,000 

Application $     2,500 $   30,500 $   33,000 $ 12,500 $   40,500 $   53,000 

Replacement $           - $           - $           - $   17,600 $   62,400 $   80,000 

Total $ 100,000 $ 170,000 $ 270,000 $ 112,850 $ 212,150 $ 325,000 



Woolpert GIS Strategic Plan 
August 2005 City of Kirkland, Washington 5 

Project Type 2010 2011

Capital Utilities General Total Utilities General Total 

Organizational
&Operational $   3,000 $     7,000 $   10,000 $ 51,000 $   44,000 $   95,000 

Data $ 79,900 $ 122,100 $ 202,000 $ 28,000 $   42,000 $   70,000 

Application $ 12,500 $   37,500 $   50,000 $   7,500 $   22,500 $   30,000 

Replacement $   15,400 $   54,600 $   70,000 $         - $           - $           - 

Total $ 110,800 $ 221,200 $ 332,000 $ 86,500 $ 108,500 $ 195,000 

Table 2 - Total Plan Budget by Funding Source 

Project Type Total Plan Budget by Fund 

Capital Utilities General Total 

Organizational
&Operational $219,250 $160,250 $379,500

Data $347,400 $539,600 $887,000

Application $106,500 $280,500 $387,000

Replacement $61,600 $218,400 $280,000

Total $734,750 $1,198,750 $1,933,500



Woolpert GIS Strategic Plan 
August 2005 City of Kirkland, Washington 6 

Table 3 - FTE Cost 

A New  FTE Cost 

One-Time On-Going Salaries & Benefits 

GIS Analyst $12,704 $4,208 $70,580 

CONCLUSION

The City of Kirkland will realize the following benefits from implementing the recommended initiatives 

in this plan. 

Improved asset management for Public Works, Parks, and Finance by providing simple tools to 

access critical datasets. 

Improved decision making for all departments with the enhancement of new critical GIS layers. 

Improved customer service by enabling all departments to complete assigned tasks easier and quicker. 

Streamlined data maintenance to protect the city’s investment in developed GIS data layers. 

Growth and development of skill sets for the city GIS staff through a partnering approach. 

Real-time decision making in the field through innovative GIS technologies. 

This plan establishes a framework for the next phase of a highly successful GIS program at the City of 

Kirkland.  Further planning is needed on resource allocation, prioritization, and specific assignments 

within the GIS Work Plan.  The city’s GIS vision will be realized with a new focus on value-added 

service to the community, and a commitment to building upon its impressive GIS accomplishments to 

date.



LOGO / IDENTITY DESIGN

EVENT PACKAGES

 EVENT PACKAGE DESIGN AND PRODUCTION OF ALL PIECES 

(ALL CITY DINNER, CENTENNIAL EVENTS, FIRE & BUILDING EMPLOYEE 

BANQUET, ETC)

 Invitation

 Program

 Signage/Posters

 Certificates

PRESENTATION DESIGN

 POWERPOINT

 MOUNTED SIGNAGE

 LARGE FORMAT POSTERS

 BANNER DESIGN AND COORDINATION WITH SIGN VENDORS

FOLDER DESIGN

 CUSTOM DIE-CUT DESIGN AND COORDINATION

BROCHURE LAYOUT

 PARKS BROCHURE

 NEWSLETTERS (FIRE & BUILDING HOSE N HAMMER)

 INFORMATIONAL BROCHURES

 RECRUITMENT BROCHURES

 MASS MAILINGS

POSTER LAYOUT

 EVENTS (SUMMER CONCERT SERIES, WELLNESS EVENTS, ETC)

 COUNCIL PRESENTATIONS

PHOTOGRAPHY

 PHOTO LIBRARY MANAGEMENT

 EMPLOYEE ID 

 CUSTOM PHOTOGRAPHY FOR PROJECTS

 DISTRIBUTION OF PHOTOGRAPHS WHEN REQUESTED

WEB GRAPHICS / DESIGN

 FORMAT GRAPHICS FOR WEBMASTER OR 

 INDIVIDUAL DEPARTMENTS FOR POSTING ON WEB

 KIRKNET PAGE DESIGN AND COORDINATION

ENVIRONMENTAL GRAPHICS

 PARK KIOSKS

 GENERAL SIGNAGE

 VEHICLE GRAPHICS

BOOKLET  / LARGE DOCUMENT FORMATTING

 CONVERT LARGE DOCUMENTS FROM WORD TO LAYOUT PROGRAMS FOR 

FINAL PRODUCTION AND DISTRIBUTION (COMMUNITY PROFILE, EOC 

MANUAL, DESIGN REVIEW GUIDELINES, ETC)

MULTIMEDIA SERVICES

September 22, 2004

McAuliffe Park

10824 NE 116th Street, Kirkland

The 20th Annual

City of Kirkland

All City Boards

& Commissions

2004 Recognition

& Appreciation Dinner

6:00pm

Social

6:30pm

Dinner

7:00pm

Greetings and Welcome
Mayor Mary-Alyce Burleigh

Introductions

Community Service Awards
Mayor Mary-Alyce Burleigh
Deputy Mayor Joan McBride

Kirkland Travel Log
City Manager David Ramsay

Closing Remarks

The 20th Annual

City of Kirkland

All City Boards

& Commissions

Recognition &

Appreciation

Dinner

PRESENTED BY

summer performing arts series
2004



MAP DESIGN

 COORDINATION WITH GIS TO PROVIDE CITY INFORMATION MAPS 

(TOURISM RACK CARD, PARKS & TRAILS MAP, MARINA PARK KIOSK)

CUSTOM SERVICES

 PRINT BIDDING

 SCANNING

 PRINTING

 OUTPUT FILES TO PDF UPON REQUEST

 PDF FORM CREATION

 PAPER CUTTING SERVICES (HYDRAULIC CUTTER)

MAILING

 POSTCARD DESIGN

 COORDINATION WITH POSTAL SERVICE FOR APPROVAL OF MAILING 

ARTWORK

 ENSURE DESIGN WILL ALLOW FOR LOWEST POSTAGE RATE

 KEEP UP ON POSTAL REGULATION CHANGES PERTAINING TO ARTWORK

DOCUMENT SUPPORT

 PROVIDE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE TO CUSTOMERS 

 IN MICROSOFT OFFICE PROGRAMS

 PROVIDE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE IN ACROBAT

 WORD DOCUMENTS

 OFFICIAL CITY DOCUMENTS

 EXCEL

 FORMS CREATION

 RECORDKEEPING OF CITY DOCUMENTS

TELEVISION

 TELEVISION GRAPHIC AND SLIDE PRODUCTION

 IDENTITY AND LOGO DESIGN OF BOTH CHANNELS

 SPONSORSHIP BROCHURES

 CUSTOM ANIMATIONS (FLASH / DREAMWEAVER) FOR PROGRAMMING

 COORDINATION OF CONTENTSERVER SYSTEM AND CITY NETWORK

you 
are 
here

recreational 
boat moorage

commercial
tour boats only

life
CHANNEL  75
C I T Y  O F  K I R K L A N D



Information from Cable Franchise Needs Ascertainment 

Respondent by Age

0 20 40 60

18-25

25-35

36-45

46-65

66 plus

A
g

e
 R

a
n

g
e

Percentage

Series1

Respondents by Gender

Female

Male

Viewership of Government Access

0 20 40 60 80D
aily

W
eek

ly
M

on
th

y

O
cc

as
io
na

lly
N
eve

r

Percentage

Series1



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 FIFTH AVENUE  KIRKLAND, WASHINGTON 98033-6189  (425) 587-3001 

CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To: David Ramsay, City Manager  
 
 
From: Tracy Burrows, Senior Management Analyst 
 
 
Date: February 28, 2006 
 
 
Subject: Absolutely Incredible Kid Day Proclamation 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
It is recommended that Mayor James L. Lauinger, as in previous years, proclaim Absolutely Incredible Kid 
Day.  
 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:   
 
This is the 10th year of the Absolutely Incredible Kid Day project, in which Camp Fire USA, a nationwide 
youth development organization, requests adults throughout the community to write letters of appreciation 
to children.  Lynda Llavore, the NE Regional Director of the East King County Branch of the Central Puget 
Sound Council of Camp Fire USA, requested that Mayor Lauinger proclaim March 16, 2006 Absolutely 
Incredible Kid Day. The Mayor has proclaimed this day annually for the last six years.  Robin Hayes, Camp 
Fire USA representatine, will be on hand to receive the proclamation at the March 7h City Council Meeting.   

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Special Presentations

Item #5.b.



 
 A PROCLAMATION OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND 

 
Designating March 16, 2006 as 

“Absolutely Incredible Kid Day” of the City of Kirkland 
 
WHEREAS, Camp Fire USA, a national youth development organization, commemorates its ninth 
annual Absolutely Incredible Kid Day on March 16, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, adults are encouraged to send letters of love and appreciation to young people in 
their lives as a part of the celebration of children on this day: and    
 
WHEREAS, the Camp Fire USA mission pledges a firm commitment to building caring confident 
youth and future leaders; and 
 
WHEREAS, an extension of that commitment is handed to caring adults through this event to 
express their feelings in a letter or note which has the profound ability to make a lasting and 
positive impact on the children in our country;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, James L. Lauinger, Mayor of Kirkland, do hereby proclaim March 16, 
2006 as Absolutely Incredible Kid Day in the City of Kirkland and urge all adults – moms and 
dads, grandparents, aunts and uncles, teachers, mentors, and other adults alike to make a 
difference in the life of a child by composing and delivering a letter of love and appreciation to him 
or her. 
 

Signed this 7th day of March, 2006 
 
 
 
 
                   ______________________ 
        James L. Lauinger, Mayor 



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Public Works
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3800 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us

MEMORANDUM 

To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager 

From: Daryl Grigsby, Public Works Director 
Don Anderson, P.E., Project Engineer 

Date: February 23, 2006 

Subject: WSDOT UPDATE ON 405 CORRIDOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS – SPECIAL PRESENTATION 

RECOMMENDATION:

Council receive this Special Presentation from the Washington State Department of Transportation to update Council 
Members on the statuses of various highway construction projects in and around Kirkland.   

BACKGROUND:

WSDOT is in the process of implementing a number of projects along Interstate 405 and as a part of their program 
are presenting information to the various committees along the corridor. 

Scheduled Presenters (last minute changes may provide for presenters in lieu of those listed): 

Denise Cieri, P.E., WSDOT 405 Team 
Dave Becher, P.E.,  WSDOT Totem Lake Freeway Station Project 

The presentation consists of one Microsoft PowerPoint presentation to be followed by questions and answers.  
Additional, explanatory information (including pictures, see Attachments) is attached to provide more background 
and details on the construction projects.  The additional attachments are not part of the general presentation. 

The general scope of the presentation covers highway construction projects that can be lumped into three main 
efforts:

Totem Lake Freeway Station Project 
Kirkland Nickel;  and, the 
SR 520 to I-5 Projects 

The presentation will also touch on a couple of key Master Plan elements which are in planning stages but yet 
remain unfunded for actual construction. 

Attachments:
Attachment A: Vicinity Map 
Attachments B: Collection of WSDOT Project Fact Sheets 
Attachment C: Sample Photos – TLFS Art 

H:\Pw\DAnderson\I-405 Coordination\Council\ePacket 03072006\02 - Agenda Memo 405 Special Presentation 03072006.doc:dma 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Special Presentations

Item #:  5. c.



ATTACHMENTS
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

TO WSDOT PRESENTATION 



Direct access 

ramps to 

HOV lanes, 

bridge across 

I-405

SR 522

NE 132nd

2008-2010

Build new interchange.  

Special “SPUI” design 

uses one traffic signal, 

reduces delays.  

Widen 116th Street 

across RR bridge for 

better access to I-405. 

Pedestrian and bicycle 

facilities improved.

’08-10 Interchange rebuilt, NE 116th 

widened. 

During ‘06-’08 when lanes are added 

on I-405, full closure of NE 116th 

some evenings and up to six 

weekends to rebuilt bridges carrying 

I-405 over NE 116th.

2006-2008
New lane in each 

direction. First work to 

be done includes 

environmental 

mitigation, noise walls.

For more information

Visit the WSDOT website and search on “I-405 
congestion relief and bus rapid transit project”.  Or 
contact Don Anderson at the City of Kirkland (425) 
587-3836 or danderson@ci.kirkland.wa.us

FEB. 2006

NE 128th

NE 116th

NE 124th

NE 85th

NE 70th

New lane in each direction.  

Includes blue project below.

SR 520

Project Descriptions Project Timing

I-405 Projects in Kirkland

New 

interchange 

to/from north 

at NE 132nd 

Direct access ramps open to buses 

fall ’06.

Project complete spring ’07.   

Full closures: Totem Lake Blvd. 

begin 2/28/06, 116th Way spring ‘07.

2021 new interchange ramps

2008-2010 bridges under construction 

with blue widening.

North

Objective
Together these projects are aimed 
at improving travel through 
Kirkland on I-405 and making 
access to the freeway. 

Funding
These projects are funded by gas 
tax  with the exception of the green 
project which is funded by Sound 
Transit.

I-405

Legend

Cross streets

Interchange 

Project
No scale

ATTACHMENT A



NE 160th St.

NE 85th St.

NE 70th St.

NE 124th St.

NE 116th St.

NE 132nd St.

NE 128th St.

NE 195th St.

228th St. SW

10
0t

h 
A

ve
 N

E
M

ar
ke

t S
t

SR 520 to I-5 Projects

January 25, 2006

I-405 Corridor Projects: SR 520 to I-5
• Kirkland Nickel Stage 1 Project
• SR 520 to I-5

• Kirkland Nickel Stage 2 Project
• NE 124th St. to SR 522
• NB NE 195th St. to SR 527
• NE 132nd St. Bridge

The SR 520 to I-5 Project (including Stage 1

of the Kirkland Nickel Project) adds a

northbound lane from NE 70th Street in Kirkland

to SR 522 and from NE 195th to SR 527 in

Bothell. The project also builds one southbound

lane from SR 522 to SR 520, two new bridges,

northbound and southbound at 132nd, and a

grade separation for traffic entering I-405 from

NE 160th and exiting to SR 522. The Kirkland

Nickel Project will also reconfigure the 116th

interchange to an innovative design allowing

traffic to move more efficently through the

interchange.

Project Benefits
• Congestion relief: The northbound and

southbound lanes between SR 522 and

NE 70th Street reduce congestion by

increasing capacity by one-third. The

northbound lane between NE 195th Street

and SR 527 reduces congestion by

increasing capacity 50%. This project also

eliminates the traffic weave between

NE 160th and SR 522.

• Safety: The addition of grade separation

from NE 160th and SR 522 traffic reduces

sideswipe and congestion-related

accidents as merging traffic will no longer

have to weave. The increase in capacity

northbound and southbound between

SR 520 and SR 527 also reduces

congestion-related accidents.

• Environment: The I-405 Corridor Program

is designing the project to avoid and

minimize impacts to the environment.

Totem Lake Freeway Station
at NE 128th Street
WSDOT and Sound Transit continue a

successful partnership to help buses,

carpools and vanpools move efficiently

on the Eastside. The Totem Lake

Freeway Station project builds a new

I-405 overpass at NE 128th Street

providing direct access to and from HOV

lanes on I-405. It serves the Totem Lake

area, including Kingsgate Park-and-Ride

and the proposed Totem Lake Transit

Center at Evergreen Hospital.

Project Benefits
• Congestion: New ramp carries

buses, carpools and vanpools over

traffic and directly in and out of HOV

lanes. Provides faster, safer and

more reliable service for transit buses

and other HOVs by eliminating

weaving through freeway traffic.

• Safety: Improves safety by

eliminating traffic weaving to get in

and out of HOV lanes, reducing the

possibility of accidents.

• Environment: Crews are using fill

materials that won't erode in heavy

rain, which helps fish in area

streams. This also means work can

continue in wet weather, keeping the

project on schedule.

How will my travel be affected
during construction?
Although the park-and-ride lot is open,

the Kingsgate Freeway Station is closed

for two years while the new Totem Lake

direct access ramps and in-line station

are built. During the project, a King County

Metro shuttle (Route 630) runs every half

hour during weekday peak hours (see

www.soundtransit.org for more details

on alternate bus routes). WSDOT, Sound

Transit, and the City of Kirkland are

working together to develop a smooth

construction schedule and alternate

routes so drivers and residents are

inconvenienced as little as possible.

I-405 Kirkland Area Improvement Projects
and Construction Dates

Totem Lake Freeway Station (Summer 2005–late 2006)

Stage 1 Kirkland Nickel Improvement Project (late 2005–late 2007)

SR 520 to I-5 Project (2008–2010)



I-405 travelers and Kirkland-area residents have seen construction begin on I-405 near Totem Lake in July of this

year. The Totem Lake Freeway Station construction activities focus on mainline I-405 lanes, with the direct access

ramps beginning construction in 2006. Construction on local streets leading to the Totem Lake Freeway Station

will be complete by mid 2007. The Kirkland Nickel Improvement project begins construction activities in Spring

2006 and will complete all project stages by the end of 2009.

Current Kirkland Area Construction Schedule

Regular Construction Updates
For construction updates about these and other I-405
projects, join WSDOT's email update list by sending a
quick email to lyris@lists.wsdot.wa.gov with “subscribe
i-405” in the body of the message. Also check
www.wsdot.wa.gov/projects/i405 for more information
about I-405 projects.

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Preliminary Design–Corridor
Preliminary Design–Nickel Project

Environmental Documentation
Permit Acquisition
Right of Way Acquisition, Stage 1

Contractor Selection, Stage 1
Construction, Stage 1

Kirkland Area Improvements Timeline

I-405 Totem Lake

Freeway Station

Mainline Construction Work
Direct Access Construction

Arterial Construction

Kirkland Nickel

Improvement

Project – Stage 1

Tools for Residents & Commuters
• Website  Travel Options webpage

www.wsdot.wa.gov/projects/i405/traveloptions

• 5-1-1  Dial for up-to-the-minute traffic, construction

and ferry updates

• King County Trip Planner  tripplanner.metrokc.gov

• WSDOT's Highway Advisory Radio

Tune your radio to 530 AM or 1520 AM when

driving through the construction zone for updates

Getting Around During Construction
WSDOT is taking a number of steps to help you stay

informed and get around more easily during upcoming

construction by:

• Providing current information on construction and

travel options

• Timing construction closures to minimize

inconvenience

• Directing you to alternative routes and detours

• Increasing access to travel options and incentives

to use them

January 25, 2006

Contact Information:

Sound Transit Totem Laura Johnson

Lake Freeway Station 206-254-7625

johnsol@wsdot.wa.gov

I-405 Corridor Program Colleen Gants

SR 520 to I-5 Projects 425-456-8500

colleen.gants@i405.wsdot.wa.gov

Kirkland Nickel Project Chris Hoffman

Stage 1 Construction 206-387-2050

chris.hoffman@kirkland405.com



February 17, 2006

What are the highlights?
What is commonly referred to as the “Kirkland Crawl” will 

begin to run when the Kirkland Nickel Improvement Proj-

ect is fully constructed.  Motorists will see shorter periods 

of congestion due to an increase in capacity by one-third.

Constructed in two stages - the Kirkland Nickel Improve-

ment Project (SR 520 to SR 522) will add a new north-

bound general-purpose lane on I-405 from the NE 70th 

Street interchange to the NE 124th Street interchange, a 

new southbound general-purpose lane from just south of 

These graphics show a typical weekday morning drive 
on I-405 between SR 522 and SR 520. Areas that are green are
free-flowing at freeway speeds. Black areas show stop-and-go 
traffic.

w/ Improvements

112th Ave. SE

N 30th St.

Main St.

Coa l Creek
Parkway

NE 4th St.

SE 8th St.

NE 8th St.
NE 6th St.

NE 44th

NE 12th St.

NE 10th St.

SE 180th St.

SNOHOMISH COUNTY

KING COUNTY

NE Park Dr.

NE 3rd St.

LAKE
WASHINGTON

E
N.ev

A
ht48

y
W

euvelle
B

228th St. SW

N 8th St.

NE 132nd St.

NE 116th St.

NE 85th St.

NE 70th St.

NE 160th St.

NE 128th St.

NE 124th St.

E
N.ev

A
ht001

E
N.ev

A
ht421

.t
Stekra

M

E
N.ev

A
dn231

NE 160th St.

NE 85th St.

NE 70th St.

NE 124th St.

(1) Lane
Added

SBound

(1) Lane
Added

NBound

NE 116th St.

116th I/C
Improved

6 11
am am

6 11
am am

Today w/ Improvements

Southbound AM

Today

Legend

Less than
30 mph

Between 30
and 40 mph

Between 40
and 55 mph

Greater than
55 mph

the SR 522 interchange to just north of the SR 520 inter-

-

Street, water quality treatment, detention, and conveyance 

system updates; architectural treatments that will enhance 

project appearance; and numerous measures to avoid or 

minimize effects to the environment.

These pictures show I-405 looking north from the NE 100th St. pedestrian over-
pass.  On the left is how I-405 looks today.  The picture on the right is a drawing 
of how I-405 will look when the Kirkland Nickel Project is complete.



February 17, 2006

What are the highlights?

will see in their city. 

Noise wall Locations

Forbes 

Forbes LakeForbes Lake Wetland Mitigation
In partnership with the City of Kirkland, 
WSDOT will be building the enhancement 
wetland mitigation sites at Forbes Lake as 
part of mitigation of wetland impacts along 
I-405 for the Kirkland Nickel project.  The 
enhancements will be built in the spring of 
2006.  These improvements will take place on 
parcels surrounding Forbes Lake, including 
city owned property as well as 2 parcels WS-
DOT purchased.  Once the mitigation sites 
are built and established the WSDOT parcel 
will be given to the City of Kirkland Parks 
Department for use in their future plans in the 
Forbes Lake area.

Noise walls
Beginning in May 2006, 
crews will begin building 
Kirkland Nickel Stage 1 
noise walls in Kirkland 
neighborhoods.  This 
includes two new noise 
walls and an upgrade to an 
existing noise wall in Stage 
1.  Additionaly Kirkland 
Nickel Stage 2 will build 
3 new and 3 upgraded or 
relocated noise walls.

Forbes Creek Fish Passage            
Forbes Creek currently runs under 
I-405 in a 42” culvert.  This culvert 

the Kirkland Nickel Stage 1 a 6 1/2 ft. 
diameter pipe will be placed south of 

-
sage for Forbes Creek and open up 
over 1600 linear feet of stream.  The 
new stream crossing was a collabora-
tive effort between WSDOT, WDFW, 
DOE and the City of Kirkland.

Typical Underpass Concept
The typical underpass concept shows how the NE 116th 
underpass will accommodate pedestrians, bicycles, and 
vehicles.  This concepts also shows the detailed landscaping 
and lighting implemented with the completion of the Kirkland 
Nickel project.

Forbes Creek



I-405 Totem Lake Freeway Station Fact Sheet February 2006 

I-405 Totem Lake Freeway Station Fact Sheet 

Project Description 

WSDOT and Sound Transit are building high occupancy vehicle (HOV) on- and off-ramps in the 
I-405 median at NE 128th Street in the Totem Lake area of Kirkland.  We’re also building a 
bridge over I-405 at NE 128th Street, in partnership with the City of Kirkland. 

Benefits 

 Provides new east-west route over I-405 for all drivers 

 Eases congestion by eliminating the need for HOVs to merge through three lanes to 
enter and exit the center lanes 

 Reduces the potential for collisions caused by weaving between center lanes and 
exits

Schedule and Budget 

 Construction contract value: $42.4 million 

 Amount spent to date: $15.8 million 

 Construction began June 2005 

 Project is currently 35% complete 

 Expected project completion (including city street improvements): Summer 2007 

Milestones

Late Feb. 2006: close Totem Lake Blvd. at NE 128th St. intersection for up to eight 
weeks

Late March 2006: set girders over northbound I-405 for new NE 128th St. bridge

Mid-May 2006: set girders over southbound I-405 for new NE 128th St. bridge 

Summer 2006: lower section of northbound I-405 near NE 124th St. 

Late summer 2006: rebuild 116th Ave. NE / NE 128th intersection 

Late 2006-summer 2007: rebuild 116th Ave. NE 

Late 2006: HOV ramps and NE 128th St. bridge open to traffic 

For more project information, including construction photos, a completed project visualization, 
traffic closure information, and more, please visit

www.wsdot.wa.gov/Projects/i405/TotemLake

Laura Johnson, JohnsoL@wsdot.wa.gov, 206-254-7625 Page 1 



ATTACHMENT C 

TOTEM LAKE FREEWAY STATION 
ART PHOTOGRAPHS 

A sample cast of art forms is made on a cast-in-
place embankment wall on the east side of the 
freeway.  This sample pour allowed the contractor 
to perfect concrete mix design and pouring 
methods.  Input was provided from WSDOT, the 
artist hired by Sound Transit, and City of Kirkland 
Cultural Council members and staff.  This 
sampling was made on a section of retaining wall 
to be backfilled and is no longer visible. 

A sample cast of one of the art panels for the Mechanically-
Stabilized-Earth (MSE) walls.  These portions of the new median 
ramp walls showcase art panels to be hung on a grid layout of the 
ramp wall.  Here, the Maple Leaf motif is clearly seen among the 
other natural elements of rocks and pebbles.. 



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
City Manager's Office 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3001 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: David Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: Tracy Burrows, Senior Management Analyst 
 
Date: February 27, 2006 
 
Subject: 2006 Legislative Session Status Report 
 
 
The 2006 Legislative Session is in its third week and the Legislature is moving to complete the 60-day session on 
time.  The next legislative cut-off date is February14th when bills must have progressed out of their house of origin.  
 
Below is a brief summary of the status of the City’s major issues: 

 

Annexation: Kirkland supports legislation that provides local governments with a set of annexation tools that help 
achieve the goal of having cities be the urban service providers within urban growth areas.  

Kirkland has been working with a coalition of cities to develop options for annexation funding.  The most promising 
option is SB 6686, which provides State sales tax funding to help cities close their annexation deficit.  This bill is 
necessary to implement the budget and is not subject to cut-off.  It has been voted out of the Senate and is awaiting 
executive action in the House Finance Committee. 

 

Municipal Courts: Kirkland supports cities’ ability to form municipal courts and is working to preserve all options 
for providing municipal court services in the future.   

Two bills related to municipal court services are still alive.  SB 6342 requires the election of all judges.  This bill is in 
the House Rules committee.  Our strategy is to amend this bill to include a population threshold.  HB 3082 confirms 
the authority of municipalities to contract with nearby cities for court services and increases the caseload of 
municipal courts to include certain types of protection orders.  This Bill is awaiting action in Senate Rules.    

 
Streamlined Sales Tax : Kirkland supports the objectives of the Streamlined Sales Tax project, including the 
application of sales tax to internet and catalogue sales.  Kirkland supports the seven principles for SST 
implementation that have been agreed upon by the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) SST Committee, 
including the goal of full mitigation for the sales tax revenue losses of negatively impacted cities.  
 
SB 6594, implementing streamlined sales tax, was amended in committee to provide full mitigation for cities that will 
lose revenue under the new sourcing rules.  This bill was passed out of the Senate unanimously.  It is awaiting action 
in House Rules. 

 

H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\City Manager\Reports\Legislative Update\legislative update_1.doc 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Reports

Item #:  6.b. (1).



H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\City Manager\Reports\Legislative Update\legislative update_1.doc 

 

Incentives for Affordable Housing : Kirkland supports incentives for affordable housing, including property 
tax exemptions to new or rehabilitated multi-family housing. 

Kirkland has worked with A Coalition for Regional Housing (ARCH) to draft bill amendments that would expand cities’ 
ability to grant property tax exemptions for new or rehabilitated multifamily housing, and in particular would allow for 
partial exemptions for rental and mixed use housing.  Our lobbyist is working to introduce these amendments before 
the Senate committee.  

 
Non-Discrimination:  Kirkland supports legislation that promotes statewide protection to all class groups 
recognized by the City, to provide equal access to services and to eliminate all discrimination in housing, 
employment, public accommodations, and lending practices.    
 
HB 2661 prohibits discrimination based on a person’s sexual orientation.  This prohibition applies to employment, 
housing, public accommodations, real estate transactions, insurance and commerce. The Bill passed the House and 
Senate and has been signed into law by the Governor. 
 
Transportation: Kirkland supports amendments to the RTID legislation that would provide greater flexibility for 
the sources and uses of RTID funds, and would allow for changes to the boundaries and structure of the RTID.   

A striking amendment to the House RTID is now on the table.  This bill differs from the House Bill in that it does not 
preclude a 2006 ballot measure, it is silent on the issue of the 520 Record of Decision, it makes no provision for the 
continuation of the monorail tax for transit purposes, and it allows a single county RTID to be created if a multi-
county vote does not occur by Dec. 1, 2007.  
 
Tort Reform: Kirkland supports efforts by the state to reduce liability costs for local governments. 

SB 6852 limits local government liability for offender supervision.  This bill did not make it past cut-off.  This is very 
disappointing since the Washington Cities Insurance Authorities (W.I.C.A.) has recently issued a decision they may 
no longer cover liability issues involving Municipal Probation Departments. 



Bill Number Legislative Issue Current Status – from AWC and wa.gov Action Needed/Initiated 
MUNICIPAL COURTS 
HB 3082 Contracting for Court 

Services 
A narrowly crafted bill that would confirm cities’ authority to 
contract together to provide municipal court services and would add 
to municipal court workload.  Passed unanimously out of the House. 
Awaiting action in Senate Rules.   

Continue to support. 

SB 6612 Court Reorganization Allows for contracting.  Significantly expands jurisdiction and 
caseload of municipal courts without commensurate funding.  
Requires presiding judge to be signatory on ILA establishing 
contracting court.  Requires election of judges in contracting courts.  
This Bill is dead for this session. 

Dead. 

SB 6342 Election of Judges Requires election of all judges. Passed out of Senate.  Awaiting 
action in House Rules.  Seeking venue for amending this bill to 
include population threshold. 

Continue to oppose, seek 
amendment to include 
population threshold. 

ANNEXATION 
SB 6686 Annexation Funding Would provide State sales tax funding to help finance the annexation 

deficit.  Passed out of Senate on 38-10 vote.  Hearing in House 
Finance on 2/23. 

Testify at hearing and continue 
to support. 

HB 2667 Annexation Funding Would allow local governments to continue to levy the County Road 
Tax after annexation.  Washington Association of Counties strongly 
opposes. This Bill is dead for this session. 

Dead. 

NON-DISCRIMINATION 
HB 2661 Non-Discrimination Outlaws housing and employment discrimination based on sexual 

orientation.  Passed the legislature and signed by the Governor.  
Signed into law. 

STREAMLINED SALES TAX 
SSB 6594 Streamlined Sales Implements changes to sales tax sourcing.  Provides for full Support. 

2006 Legislative Issues Update 
 as of  

2/27/2006 

Kirkland Legislative Contacts 
Senator Bill Finkbeiner: http://www.leg.wa.gov/senate/members/senmem45.htm 
Rep. Toby Nixon: http://www.leg.wa.gov/house/members/d45_1.htm 
Rep. Larry Springer: http://www1.leg.wa.gov/house/springer  
Senator Luke Esser: http://www.leg.wa.gov/house/members/d48_1.htm 
Rep. Ross Hunter: - http://www.leg.wa.gov/house/members/d48_1.htm 
Rep. Rodney Tom: http://www.leg.wa.gov/house/members/d48_2.htm 



Tax Mitigation mitigation of negatively impacted cities.  Passed out of Senate, 
Awaiting action in House Rules. 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
SB 6588 
HB 1742 

MF Property Tax 
Incentives 

Expands the number of cities that can offer property tax exemptions 
for multi-family housing in target areas.  Kirkland and ARCH are 
pursuing amendments to allow for a partial exemption for rental and 
mixed use housing. SB 6588 is dead for this session.  HB 1742 in 
House Finance and Housing. 

Support amendments to bill. 

TORT REFORM 
SB 6215 Governmental 

Liability 
Significantly reforms liability for governmental activities, 
particularly in areas such as offender supervision and transportation.  
Codifies portions of the Public Duty Doctrine and its exceptions.   

Died at first cut-off. 

SB 6852 Governmental 
Liability 

Liability reform for offender supervision.  AWC working with 
Attorney General’s Office to develop acceptable language.  This is a 
critical issue since the Washington Cities Insurance Authorities 
(W.I.C.A.) has recently issued a decision they would no longer cover 
liability issues involving Municipal Probation Departments.  This Bill 
did not make it out of the Senate. 

Dead. 

ENVIRONMENT AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT 
HB 2662 
SB 6428 

E-Waste Recycling Creates state-wide e-waste recycling program funded by 
manufacturers.  Could help fund Kirkland’s e-waste recycling 
program. Senate bill passed 41-8.  Awaiting executive action by  
House Nat. Resources. 

Support. 

SB 6514 
HB 2738 

Biodiesel Replaces 2.5% of gasoline with ethanol and 2% of diesel with 
biodiesel. Senate Bill died in Senate Rules. House Bill awaiting 
action in Senate Rules. 

Support 

Budget Supplemental Supplemental funding request for continuing implementation of Support 



 

funding request buildable lands data collection in King County. 

TRANSPORTATION 
SHB 2871 
SSB 6599 

RTID Reform Striking amendment to House Bill is now in play.  Amendment 
allows 2006 vote and is silent on 520 mitigation and project planning.  
Also allows a single county RTIS if no vote by Dec. 1 2007. 

Monitor negotiations. 



 
CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Planning and Community Development Department 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3225 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: February 23, 2006 
 
To: David Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: Paul Stewart, Deputy Planning Director 
 Natural Resource Management Team 
 
Subject: Environmental Stewardship 
 
Recommendation 
City Council schedule a study session on Environmental Stewardship 
 
Background 
The interdepartmental Natural Resource Management Team has put together a work program for 
2006 to continue to implement the adopted Natural Resource Management Plan.  In addition, staff 
has compiled a status report on actions that have been taken to respond to the Climate Protection 
Agreement that was signed on to by the City last year. 
 
There are a number of departments that are involved with a variety of efforts regarding 
environmental stewardship both internally and in the community at large.  We would like to brief 
the Council on these activities and have a discussion on where to go from here.  In that respect, I 
would recommend that this discussion occur in a study session format to include key staff from 
several departments.  This would enable the Council and staff to have an interactive exchange on a 
variety of important environmental stewardship topics, strategies and issues. 
 
In looking at the Council calendar, the earliest available study session date is in August.  It would 
be preferable to meet earlier in the year rather than later and I would recommend that, if possible, 
the Council consider holding a special study session in April, May or June. 
 
    

H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\City Manager\Reports\Environmental Stewardship\1_Staff Memo.doc 2.28.2006 rev050101sjc 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: Reports
Item #:  6. b. (3).



1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 
Present:  Councilmember Dave Asher; Councilmember Mary-Alyce 
Burleigh; Councilmember Jessica Greenway; Councilmember Tom 
Hodgson; Councilmember Bob Sternoff; Mayor Jim Lauinger 
Absent/Excused:  Deputy Mayor Joan McBride 
Motion to excuse the absence of Deputy Mayor McBride. 
Moved by Councilmember Mary-Alyce Burleigh, seconded by 
Councilmember Dave Asher. 
Vote: Motion carried 6-0.  
Yes:  Councilmember Dave Asher; Councilmember Mary-Alyce 
Burleigh; Councilmember Jessica Greenway; Councilmember Tom 
Hodgson; Councilmember Bob Sternoff; Mayor Jim Lauinger 

3. STUDY SESSION 

a.  Joint Meeting with Cultural Council 
Council was joined for the discussion by members of the Cultural 
Council including Chair Bob Larson, Kathy Feek, G.G. Getz, Sinclair 
Jones, Donna Porter, Boris Srdar, and Brent Sandona, as well as City 
Manager Dave Ramsay, Asst. City Manager Lynn Stokesbary, and Sr. 
Mgmt. Analyst Tracy Burrows.     

4.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

5.  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

a.  Communities Count 
Carrie Hite, Deputy Director, Parks and Community Services, 
introduced Katherine Robichaux of the Human Services Advisory 
Committee, who presented information on the program. 

6.  REPORTS 

a. City Council 

(1) Regional Issues 
Councilmembers shared information regarding a recent Metropolitan 
Solid Waste Management Committee meeting; Juanita Neighborhood 
Council meeting; Lodging Tax Advisory Committee meeting; Eastside 
Transportation Partnership meeting; Puget Sound Regional Council 
meeting; and King County Ten Year Plan to End Homelessness 
meetings with United Way.

KIRKLAND CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
February 21, 2006  

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: Approval of Minutes

Item #:  8. a. 



b. City Manager 

(1) 2006 Legislative Status Report 

(2) City Council Retreat - Goal Setting Session 

(3) Calendar Update 

City Manager Dave Ramsay introduced Ellen Miller-Wolfe, new 
Economic Development Coordinator.  

7. COMMUNICATIONS 

a. Items from the Audience 
Rev. Jim Head-Corliss, Lake Washington United Methodist Church,  
     75 132nd Avenue NE, Kirkland, WA 
Vanessa Kichline, 13920 120th Avenue NE, Kirkland, WA 
Scott St. Clair, 11704 NE 148th Place, Kirkland, WA 
Doreen Marchione, 115 5th Avenue South, #2, Kirkland, WA 
Van Kichline, 13920 120th Avenue NE, Kirkland, WA 
Susan Heale, 10243 NE 64th Street, Kirkland, WA  

b. Petitions 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

a. Approval of Minutes: February 7, 2005 

b. Audit of Accounts:  
Payroll   $ 1,651,575.12 
Bills   $ 1,898,320.37 
Run# 583    Checks# 475755 - 476009 
Run# 584    Checks# 476010 - 476096  

c. General Correspondence 

(1) Kurt Clark, Regarding the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway 
Right-of-Way 

d. Claims 

(1) Eileen Abu-Rish 

(2) Jill P. Dean 

(3) Dennis Duffy 

(4) Mark Harrington 

2                     



(5) Kirkland Heritage Society 

e. Authorization to Call for Bids 

f. Award of Bids 

g. Acceptance of Public Improvements and Establishing Lien Period 

h. Approval of Agreements 

i. Other Items of Business 

(1) Approving Cabaret Dance License for Valhalla Bar and Grill 

(2) Approving Cabaret Dance License for Hanuman Thai Café 

(3) Ordinance No. 4035 and its Summary, entitled "AN ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND GRANTING COMCAST OF 
CALIFORNIA/COLORADO/WASHINGTON I, INC. A CABLE 
TELEVISION FRANCHISE."  
 

Motion to Approve the Consent Calendar. 
Moved by Councilmember Mary-Alyce Burleigh, seconded by 
Councilmember Jessica Greenway. 
Vote: Motion carried 6-0.  
Yes:  Councilmember Dave Asher; Councilmember Mary-Alyce 
Burleigh; Councilmember Jessica Greenway; Councilmember Tom 
Hodgson; Councilmember Bob Sternoff; Mayor Jim Lauinger 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

a. Ordinance No. 4039, Amending Ordinance 4021 Relating to Uses in a 
Study Area within a PR 3.6 Zone in the Market Neighborhood Under 
Chapter 25 of the Kirkland Zoning Code  

Mayor Lauinger opened the public hearing.  Testimony was provided by: 
Bill Anspach, 465 140th Avenue NE, Bellevue, WA 
No further testimony was offered and the Mayor closed the hearing.  
 
Motion to Approve Ordinance No. 4039, entitled "AN ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO THE FIRST 
RENEWAL OF THE INTERIM ORDINANCE AS AMENDED 
REGULATING USES IN A STUDY AREA WITHIN A PR 3.6 ZONE 
IN THE MARKET NEIGHBORHOOD UNDER CHAPTER 25 OF 
THE KIRKLAND ZONING CODE." 
Moved by Councilmember Dave Asher, seconded by Councilmember 
Mary-Alyce Burleigh. 
Vote: Motion carried 6-0.  
Yes:  Councilmember Dave Asher; Councilmember Mary-Alyce 

3                     



Burleigh; Councilmember Jessica Greenway; Councilmember Tom 
Hodgson; Councilmember Bob Sternoff; Mayor Jim Lauinger 

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a.  Briefing on Downtown Kirkland Transit Center 
Public Works Capital Projects Manager Ray Steiger provided a status 
update on the project and introduced project team members Dan Eder of  
Sound Transit and Scott Williams of INCA Engineers.  

b.  Briefing from Sidewalk Bond Exploratory Committee 
Norm Storme, Committee Chair, reviewed the results of the Fall 2005 
opinion survey.  

Council recessed for a short break. 

c.  Updating Pilot Commercial Organics Program 
Public Works Director Daryl Grigsby updated the Council on the results 
of the pilot program, which is nearing completion. 

d.  Totem Lake Neighborhood: 

(1) Ordinance No. 4037 and its Summary, Relating to Zoning, Planning 
and Land Use and Amending Certain Chapters of the Kirkland Zoning 
Code, Zoning Map and Municipal Code 

(2) Ordinance No. 4038, Relating to Design Review Guidelines for the 
Totem Lake Neighborhood and Amending the Kirkland Municipal Code  
 
Senior Planner Dorian Collins provided a review of the issues.  Matt 
Gregory, representing the Planning Commission, responded to Council 
questions.  
 
Motion to to continue the matter to the Council's regular meeting of 
March 21, 2006. 
Moved by Councilmember Dave Asher, no second required. 
Vote: Motion carried 6-0.  
Yes:  Councilmember Dave Asher; Councilmember Mary-Alyce 
Burleigh; Councilmember Jessica Greenway; Councilmember Tom 
Hodgson; Councilmember Bob Sternoff; Mayor Jim Lauinger 

e.  King County Water District #1 Water Right 
Bill Evans, Assistant City Attorney, provided an overview of the 
proposed amendment. 
Motion to authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the 
Right of First Refusal as presented. 
Moved by Councilmember Dave Asher, seconded by Councilmember 
Mary-Alyce Burleigh. 
Vote: Motion carried 6-0.

4                     



Yes:  Councilmember Dave Asher; Councilmember Mary-Alyce 
Burleigh; Councilmember Jessica Greenway; Councilmember Tom 
Hodgson; Councilmember Bob Sternoff; Mayor Jim Lauinger 

11.  NEW BUSINESS 

a.  Ordinance No. 4040 and its Summary, Amending Chapter 127 of the 
Kirkland Zoning Code Regarding Homeless Encampments 

Motion to Approve Ordinance No. 4040 and its Summary, entitled "AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO 
ZONING, PLANNING, AND LAND USE AND AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 3719 AS AMENDED, THE KIRKLAND ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND APPROVING A SUMMARY ORDINANCE FOR 
PUBLICATION, FILE NO. ZON05-00028." 
Moved by Councilmember Dave Asher, seconded by Councilmember 
Mary-Alyce Burleigh. 
Vote: Motion carried 6-0.  
Yes:  Councilmember Dave Asher; Councilmember Mary-Alyce 
Burleigh; Councilmember Jessica Greenway; Councilmember Tom 
Hodgson; Councilmember Bob Sternoff; Mayor Jim Lauinger 

b.  Resolution R-4552, Endorsing the Goals of "A Roof Over Every Bed in 
King County: Our Community’s Ten-Year Plan to End Homelessness" and 
Stating Intent of the City of Kirkland to Work with Other Organizations 
and Governmental Entities in the Implementation of this Plan 

Motion to Approve Resolution R-4552, entitled "A RESOLUTION OF 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND ENDORSING 
THE GOALS OF "A ROOF OVER EVERY BED IN KING COUNTY: 
OUR COMMUNITY'S TEN-YEAR PLAN TO END 
HOMELESSNESS" AND STATING THE INTENT OF THE CITY OF 
KIRKLAND TO WORK WITH OTHER ORGANIZATIONS AND 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES IN THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 
THIS PLAN." 
Moved by Councilmember Mary-Alyce Burleigh, seconded by 
Councilmember Jessica Greenway. 
Vote: Motion carried 6-0.  
Yes:  Councilmember Dave Asher; Councilmember Mary-Alyce 
Burleigh; Councilmember Jessica Greenway; Councilmember Tom 
Hodgson; Councilmember Bob Sternoff; Mayor Jim Lauinger 

c.  Temporary Funding of an Undergrounding of Overhead Utility Lines 
Project Along State Street 

Motion to Authorize the Finance Director to use $69,200 from the 
General Capital Contingency to temporarily fund the project costs of 
undergrounding overhead utility lines along State Street. 
Moved by Councilmember Dave Asher, seconded by Councilmember 
Bob Sternoff. 
Vote: Motion carried 6-0.

5                     



Yes:  Councilmember Dave Asher; Councilmember Mary-Alyce 
Burleigh; Councilmember Jessica Greenway; Councilmember Tom 
Hodgson; Councilmember Bob Sternoff; Mayor Jim Lauinger 

d.  Setting Date for Board and Commission Interviews and Appointments 
Council requested that staff propose additional dates later in March. 

12. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

13. ADJOURNMENT   
The Kirkland City Council regular meeting of February 21, 2006 adjourned 
at 10:17 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 

City Clerk 

 
 

Mayor 

6                     



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Finance and Administration  
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3100 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: David Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: Kathi Anderson, City Clerk 
 
Date: February 28, 2006 
 
Subject: CLAIM(S) FOR DAMAGES 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Council acknowledge receipt of the following Claim(s) for Damages and 
refer each claim to the proper department (risk management section) for disposition. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
This is consistent with City policy and procedure and is in accordance with the requirements of state law (RCW 
35.31.(040). 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION 
The City has received the following Claim(s) for Damages from: 
 

(1) Betty L. Stevens 
10426 NE 109th Street 
Kirkland, WA   98033 
 

Amount:   Unknown 
 

        Nature of Claim:    Claimant states damage resulted from vehicle being struck by a temporary metal  
        sign, allegedly knocked over by a City contractor. 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: Claims

Item #:  8. d. 



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Public Works 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3800 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: Daryl Grigsby, Public Works Director 
 Ray Steiger, P.E., Capital Projects Manager 
 
Date: February 23, 2006 
 
Subject: ACCEPT CONSTRUCTION  
 NE 116th STREET / 124th AVENUE NE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
It is recommended that City Council accept the construction work performed by Marshbank Construction Company, 
Inc., of Woodinville, Washington, on the NE 116th Street and 124th Avenue NE Intersection Improvements Project, and 
establish the statutory lien period.   
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:   
 
The subject project resulted in the construction of capacity and safety related improvements at an intersection with 
the second highest rate of accidents city-wide.  (See Vicinity Map -- Attachment A.)  The project installed C-curb on 
the north and south intersection legs in order to prevent drivers from making risky left-turn decisions.  It also 
constructed an additional southbound lane on 124th Avenue NE, from NE 116th Street to NE 115th Place, provided 
for necessary modifications to the existing traffic signal, installed new concrete curb, gutter and sidewalk (resulting in 
a continuous sidewalk from NE 110th Place to the Totem Lake Retail area), and completed a repaving of the 
intersection.   
 
The project was funded in-part through a Federal Hazard Elimination Safety (HES) program grant administered 
through the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) in the amount of $256,500.   
 
At their May 18, 2004 meeting Council awarded the construction contract to Marshbank Construction Company in 
the amount of $434,729.  The majority of the construction work was complete in late 2004 (November) with the 
final paving and associated striping being postponed until July 2005 when air temperatures allowed for nighttime 
work.  The contractor completed all punchlist work items in January of 2006 and has received $416,272.77 in total 
compensation for the project.  All remaining funds will be returned to the Streets Fund at project closeout. (See 
Attachment B.) 
 
Attachments (2):  Vicinity Map & Project Budget Report 
 
cc: Dave Snider, P.E., Capital Projects Supervisor 
 Don Anderson, P.E., Project Engineer 
 
H:\Pw\DAnderson\Active CIP Projects\TR 0071\Council\ePacket 03072006\02 - Memo TR0071 Accept Work 03072006.doc:dma 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: Establishing Lien Period

Item #:  8. g. (1).



NEW 8' WIDE S/W
w/ PLANTER STRIP

EXISTING 
SIDEWALK
EXISTING

SIDEWALK

NEW 5' WIDE S/W
w/o PLANTER STRIP

NE 116th/124th NE
INTERSECTION IMPS.

CTR-0071

NE 116th Street & 124th Ave NE Intersection Improvements
Legend

ñCity Hall

ñ City Hall Annex

²³ Maintenance Center

²µ Fire Station

nm Post Office

®v Evergreen Hospital

Æa Park & Ride

Railroad
City Limits
Buildings
Schools
Lakes
Parks
Right-of-Way
Parcels

Produced by the City of Kirkland.

(c) 2003, the City of Kirkland, all rights reserved.
No warranties of any sort, including but not limited
to accuracy, fitness or merchantability, accompany 

this product.

®
0 50 10025

Feet

ATTACHMENT A



PROJECT BUDGET REPORT

 $2
56

,98
0 

 $3
36

,33
3 

 $3
36

,33
3 

 $3
36

,33
3 

$4
16

,27
3

$4
34

,72
9

$4
64

,00
0

$6
11

,51
5

 $2
37

,93
8 

 $2
08

,66
7 

 $6
1,1

52
 

$- $200,000 $400,000 $600,000 $800,000 $1,000,000 $1,200,000

FINAL CLOSE OUT

ACCEPT WORK

AWARD CONTRACT

AUTHORIZE BID

APPROVED BUDGET

PH
AS

E

ESTIMATED COST

ENGINEERING

RIGHT OF WAY

CONSTRUCTION

CONTINGENCY

TR0071 NE 116th / 124th NE Intersection Improvements Project

Council Action Jan 2005

August 3, 2005

July 5, 2005

December 13, 2005

ATTACHMENT B

 TOTAL PROJECT 
COST = $673,253

APPROVED 
BUDGET 

=$1,009,000

$256,500 Grant Funds $416,753 City Funds

BALANCE = $237,938



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Public Works 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587-3800 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: John A. Burkhalter, P.E., Senior  Development Engineer 
 Rob Jammerman, Development Engineering Manager 
 Daryl Grigsby   Public Works Director 
 
Date: February 10, 2006 
 
Subject: CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION APPROVING A SEWER FACILITY AGREEMENT WITH 

CONTINENTAL DIVIDE LLC. 
                   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the attached resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a Sewer Facility Agreement with Continental Divide LLC. 
 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The City of Kirkland is authorized pursuant to Chapter 35.91 RCW to enter into a Sewer Facility Agreement 
(also known as a Sewer Latecomers’ Agreement) allowing developers to receive compensation for the 
installation of public sewer main line extensions, i.e. persons connecting to the extensions are required to 
pay a portion of the construction costs as a condition of connection.  These latecomers’ fees are calculated 
based on the area of the property being served: dividing the benefit area into the total cost of the sewer 
extensions yields the latecomers’ charge.  Fifteen percent (15%) of the sewer latecomers’ fee is retained by 
the City of Kirkland for administering the agreement and eighty-five percent (85%) of the fee is returned to 
the developer.  The agreement is valid for 15 years and is administered by the Department of Public 
Works. 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 
 
 
Continental Divide LLC.installed approximately 130  lineal feet of sewer main line extension along  126th 

Ave. NE . This public sewer main extension provides sewer service to various parcels.  A Sewer Facility 
Agreement has been filed with the Department of Public Works to receive reimbursement for the sewer.  
Any property owner applying for connection to the sewer main will be required to pay approximately $.573 
per square foot for the direct benefit area and approximately $.137 per square foot for the general benefit 
area plus normal City of Kirkland sewer connection fees.   
 
H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Public Works\Consent Calendar\Continental Divide Sewer Facilities Agreement\1_Continental Divide Sewer Fac Agreement Memo.doc 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Approval of Agreements

Item #:  8. h. (1).



H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Public Works\Consent Calendar\Continental Divide Sewer Facilities Agreement\1_Continental Divide Sewer Fac Agreement Memo.doc 

 

Upon Approval of the resolution and subsequent signing by the City Manager, the agreement will be sent to 
King County for recording.  Finally, notice of latecomers’ connection charges will be sent to each property 
owner included in the agreement. 
 
CC: City Attorney 



!

!

1

2

12
6th

 A
ve

 N
E

12
5th

 Pl
 N

E

3

NE 81st Pl

NE 80th St

12
6th

 A
ve

 N
E

I

Produced by the City of Kirkland.

(c) 2006, the City of Kirkland, all rights reserved.

No warranties of any sort, including but not limited
to accuracy, fitness or merchantability, accompany 

this product.

Printed  Feb 15, 2006 - Public Works GIS

1 inch equals 125 feet

Exhibit 1
126th Ave NE
Greg Griffis
Kirkland, WA
Dark Blue - General Benefit
Red - Direct Benefit



!

!

1

2

12
6th

 A
ve

 N
E

12
5th

 Pl
 N

E

3

NE 81st Pl

NE 80th St

12
6th

 A
ve

 N
E

I

Produced by the City of Kirkland.

(c) 2006, the City of Kirkland, all rights reserved.

No warranties of any sort, including but not limited
to accuracy, fitness or merchantability, accompany 

this product.

Printed  Feb 15, 2006 - Public Works GIS

1 inch equals 125 feet

Exhibit 2
126th Ave NE
Greg Griffis
Kirkland, WA
Dark Blue - General Benefit
Red - Direct Benefit



Queen Anneli Latecomer's Assessment Roll EXHIBIT 3

Ref No. Tax/Parcel No. Owner/Address
Abbreviated Legal 

Description
Total Area 

(SF)

Direct 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

General 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

Direct Benefit 
Cost

General 
Benefit 
Cost

Total Cost Reimburse 
Developer 

@ 85%
Reimburse 
City @ 15%

1 123310-0476
Kristie L Lodolce            
13804 Redmond Way     
Redmond, WA  98052

15 12 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div#6 E 150 ft Less 
S 60.90 ft.

9,000 9,000 9,000 $5,156.70 $1,235.68 $6,392.37 $5,433.52 $958.86

2 123310-0491
James Johnston            
8017 126th Ave NE     
Kirkland, WA  98033

16-17 12 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 E 185 ft Lots 
16-17 less N 60 ft of E 150 ft 
SD lot 17 aka por KC LLA 
#8603015 approved 5/786 & 
8/27/86

28,000 7,200 28,000 $4,125.36 $3,844.33 $7,969.68 $6,774.23 $1,195.45

 TOTALS 37,000 16,200 37,000 $9,282.05 $5,080.01 $14,362.06 $12,207.75 $2,154.31
 

Cost Per Square Foot of Sewer Construction Calculation of the Cost Per Square Foot of Sewer Construction
Survey Cost $464.00 75% of Total Cost Shall be borne by the Total Direct Benefit Area (TDBA)  
Engineering Cost $1,305.00 25% of Total Cost Shall be borne by the Total General Benefit Area (TGBA)  
Construction Cost $35,171.00 Therefore the following are cost per squeste foot for each bendfit area:  
Project Management (10%) $3,694.00 ((75%)x(Total Cost/TDBA)) = .75 x $40,634 / 53,189  = 0.572966
Total $40,634.00 ((25%)x(Total Cost/TGBA)) = .25 x $40,634 / 73,989 = 0.137297



Queen Anneli Developer's Assessment Roll EXHIBIT 4

Ref No. Tax/Parcel No. Owner/Address Abbreviated Legal Description
Total Area 

(SF)

Direct 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

General 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

Total Cost

3 123310-0620
Continental Divide, LLC  
7545 126th Ave NE        
Kirkland, WA  98033

 

Short Plat recording number 
20040407900019 creating 4 lots; 
parcel numbers 123310-0620, 
123310-0621, 123310-0622 and 
123310-0622. 

36,989 36,989 36,989 $26,271.94

 
 

TOTALS 36,989 36,989 36,989 $26,271.94



RESOLUTION R- 4553
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND 
APPROVING A SEWER FACILITY AGREEMENT WITH CONTINENTAL DIVIDE 
LLC AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN SAID AGREEMENT ON 
BEHALF OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND. 
 

WHEREAS, the improvement of public health is furthered by the 
development of adequate sanitary sewer systems; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature enacted the Municipal 
Water and Sewer Facilities Act, (Chapter 35.91 RCW,) in furtherance of this 
goal and authorized municipalities to enter into agreements with property 
owners for the construction of sanitary sewer facilities and the reimbursement 
of such owners by “latecomers”; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Kirkland concludes entering into this agreement 
will promote the goal of the improvement of public health; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of 
Kirkland as follows: 
 

Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute, on behalf of the City, the Sewer Facility Agreement between the City 
and Continental Divide LLC. A copy of this Agreement is attached as Exhibit A.  
 

Passed by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in open meeting 
this _____ day of __________, 2006. 
 
 Signed in authentication thereof this ____ day of __________, 2006.  
 
 
 
    ____________________________ 
    MAYOR 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: Approval of Agreements

Item #:  8. h. (1).



EXHIBIT A 

(& SEWER FACILITIES AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 

kd 35.91 REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this day, pursuant to RCW Chapter 35.91, bccween the 
of Kirkland, a noncharter optional code city, hereinafter referred to as "City" and 

c20h4incnk I i LLC hereinafter referred to as "Developer": 

WITNESSETH 

Section 1. Developer does hereby agree to construct, at its sole expense, the SEWER 
FACILITIES described in EXHIBIT 1 , attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, all 
in accordance with the specifications and standards of the City of Kirkland pertaining to sewer 
construction and installation. 

Section 2. Upon completion of said sewer facilities to the satisfaction of the Kirkland 
Director of Public Works, and acceptance thereof by the City of Kirkland, said facility shall become the 
property of the City of Kirkland and a part of its sewer system with full power of the City of Kirkland to 
charge for its use such sewer connection and service rates and charges as the City of Kirkland may be 
authorized by law to establish, and all further maintenance operation costs of said facility shall be borne 
by the City of Kirkland. 

Section 3. The benefit area to be served by said facility is described and designated on 
~ ~ ~ 1 ~ 1 ~ 7 a t t a c h e d  to this agreement and by this reference incorporated herein. Said Exhibit is a 
map showing the total benefit area and delineating thereon that portion of the benefit area owned by 
Developer. EXHIBIT 3 attached to this agreement and by this reference incorporated herein is a 
listing of each lot or parcel within the benefit area including the lot or parcel legal description and the lot 
of parcel's "pro rata share" of the cost of construction of the sewer facilities. EXHIBIT identifies 
those lots or parcels owned by Developer and not subject to the provisions of Section 4 of this agreement. 

Section 4. Any owner of any real property located within the benefit area (other than those 
properties designated in EXHIBIT d as Developer's properties) who shall hereafter tap into or use 
said sewer facility (including not only connecting directly into, but also to users connecting laterals or 
branches connected thereto) shall, prior to such tap in or use, pay to the City of Kirkland, in addition to 
any connection or other change required by the ordinances of the City of Kirkland to be paid upon 
connecting to a sewer facility, their fair pro rata share of the cost of construction of said facility. 

Section 5. For the purposes of determining such "fair pro rata share" the 'cost of 
construction of said facility shall be considered to be Hq,d 3 q.6 0 , provided, however, the City may 
adjust said cost to reflect the true and final cost of construction of said facility. The "FAIR PRO RATA 
SHARE" of the cost of construction as designated on EXHIBIT 3 , and is hereby approved by the 
City of Kirkland. 

H:\!Desi~Group\MMS\-mms\MASTER\OCDs\OCD-0 ver.sewer.doc\O€-2602~ Page - of - Official City Document 



Section 6. Within sixty (60) days after receipt by the City of any "fair pro rata share," the 
City shall disburse said sum, less fifteen (15) percent thereof to be retained by the City of Kirkland to 
cover costs of admin'tering the provisions of this agreement, to Developer at 
75- 11Lt5fivc NE $&land 3 k  until such time as Developer shall have received the total 
sum of $13,6q6 .,W , or the expiration of fifteen (15) years from the date of this agreement, 
whichever event shall first occur. Thereafter, any amount of charge made or received by the City to tap 
into or use said facility shall be retained by the City. It shall be the duty of the Developer to advise the City 
of any change in the Developer's mailing address. 

Section 7. The provisions of this agreement shall not be effective as to any owner of real 
property designated in EXHIBIT 3 , other than Developer, until such time as this agreement shall 
have been recorded in the Office of the King County Department of Elections and Records and then only 
as to such real property owners as tap into or connect into said facility subsequent to such recording. City 
shall not be required to disburse any "fair pro rata share" to Developer which may not be lawfully 
collected from such real property owner at the time said real property taps into or connects to said 
facility. 

Section 8. In the event the cost, or any part thereof, of a or sewer improvement, whether 
local or general, is or will be assessed against the owners of real property and such improvement will be 
connected into or will make use of the facility constructed pursuant to this agreement and the cost 
thereof was not contributed to by the owners of said real property, there shall be included in the 
Engineer's estimate for the hearing or any such improvement, separately itemized, and in such 
assessments, a sum equal to the amount provided for in this agreement as a fair pro rata share due from 
such owners in accordance with the provisions of this agreement. 

Section 9. No person, firm, or cor oration, other than Developer's, as to the real property 
identified as owned by Developer in EXHIBIT Q hereto, shall be granted a permit or authorized to 
tap into or use said facility or extensions thereof without first paying their fair pro rata share as herein 
provided. 

DATED at Kirkland, Washington, this day of I 

CITY OF KIRKLAND: DEVELOPER: 

ClTY MANAGER FOR THE City of Kirkland 
KIRKLAND WHO IS AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT ON By: 
BEHALF OF SAID ClTY BY VIRTUE 
OF RESOLUTION NO. By: 

H:\!DesimGroup\MMS\-mms\MASTER\OCDs\OCMO ver.sewer.doc\062M)2:th Page - of - Official City Document 



(Sign in blue ink) 

(/ndividua/s OnM 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERW (INCLUDING SPOUSE) 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

and 
to 

me known to be the individual(s) described herein and who executed the 
Sewer Facilities Agreement and acknowledged that 

signed the same 
as free and voluntary 
act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

Page of - Official City Document 



(Parfnersh*~ Only) 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERTY 

(Name of Partnership or Joint Venture) 

By General Partner 

By General Partner 

By General Partner 

( PartnershMs Only) 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

County of King 

1 
) SS. 
1 

On this day of , , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington' duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

and 
to me, known to 

be general partners of 
, the partnership that 

executed the Sewer Facilities Agreement and acknowledged the said 
instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of each personally and of 
said partnership, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and on oath 
stated that they were authorized to sign said instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

H:\!DesimGroup\MMS\-mms\MASTER\OCDs\OC ver.sewer.doc\062692:th Page - of - Official City Document 



(Corporations Only) 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERTY 

(Name of Corporation) 

By President 

By Secretary 

( Corporations Onlu) 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

and 

me, known to be the President and Secretary, respectively, of 
, the 

corporation that executed the Sewer Facilities Agreement and acknowledged 
the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said 
corporation, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and on oath stated 
that they were authorized to sign said instrument and that the seal affixed is 
the corporate seal of said corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

H:\!DesimGroup\MMS\-mms\MASTER\OCDs\C€D40 ver.sewer.doc\E-2602:th Page - of - Official City Document 



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Public Works 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587-3800 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: John A. Burkhalter, P.E., Senior Development Engineer 
 Rob Jammerman, Development Engineering Manager 
 Daryl Grigsby   Public Works Director 
 
Date: February 14, 2006 
 
Subject: CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION APPROVING A SEWER FACILITY AGREEMENT WITH NORRIS 

HOMES INC.  
                   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the attached resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a Sewer Facility Agreement with Norris Homes Inc.  
 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The City of Kirkland is authorized pursuant to Chapter 35.91 RCW to enter into a Sewer Facility Agreement 
(also known as a Sewer Latecomers’ Agreement) allowing developers to receive compensation for the 
installation of public sewer main line extensions, i.e. persons connecting to the extensions are required to 
pay a portion of the construction costs as a condition of connection.  These latecomers’ fees are calculated 
based on the area of the property being served: dividing the benefit area into the total cost of the sewer 
extensions  yields the latecomers’ charge.  Fifteen percent (15%) of the sewer latecomers’ fee is retained 
by the City of Kirkland for administering the agreement and eighty-five percent (85%) of the fee is returned 
to the developer.  The agreement is valid for 15 years and is administered by the Department of Public 
Works. 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 
 
 
Norris Homes Inc.  installed approximately 1,347  lineal feet of sewer main line extension along  124nd Ave. 
NE . This public sewer main extension provides sewer service to various parcels.  A Sewer Facility 
Agreement has been filed with the Department of Public Works to receive reimbursement for the sewer.  
Any property owner applying for connection to the sewer main will be required to pay approximately $.984 
per square foot for the direct benefit area and approximately $.134 per square foot for the general benefit 
area plus normal City of Kirkland sewer connection fees.   
 
H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Public Works\Consent Calendar\Norris Homes Sewer Faciliities Agreement\1_Norris Homes Sewer Faciliites_1_Staff Memo.doc 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Approval of Agreements

Item #:  8. h. (2).



H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Public Works\Consent Calendar\Norris Homes Sewer Faciliities Agreement\1_Norris Homes Sewer Faciliites_1_Staff Memo.doc 

 

Upon Approval of the resolution and subsequent signing by the City Manager, the agreement will be sent to 
King County for recording.  Finally, notice of latecomers’ connection charges will be sent to each property 
owner included in the agreement. 
 
CC: City Attorney 



1

2
3

4

5 6

7
8
9

10

11

12

13

14

15

17

19

20

21

22

23

26

24 25

NE 80th St

12
4th

 A
ve

 N
E

12
6th

 A
ve

 N
E

NE 84th St

12
5th

 Pl
 N

E

16

18

I

Produced by the City of Kirkland.

(c) 2005, the City of Kirkland, all rights reserved.

No warranties of any sort, including but not limited
to accuracy, fitness or merchantability, accompany 

this product.

Printed  Nov 17, 2005 - Public Works GIS

1 inch equals 180 feet

Exhibit 1
124th Ave NE Sewer Extension
Amber Ridge
Kirkland, WA
Dark Blue - Developers Property
Blue - General Benefit Area
Red - Direct Benefit Area



1

2
3

4

5 6

7
8
9

10

11

12

13

14

15

17

19

20

21

22

23

26

24 25

NE 80th St

12
4th

 A
ve

 N
E

12
6th

 A
ve

 N
E

NE 84th St

12
5th

 Pl
 N

E

16

18

I

Produced by the City of Kirkland.

(c) 2005, the City of Kirkland, all rights reserved.

No warranties of any sort, including but not limited
to accuracy, fitness or merchantability, accompany 

this product.

Printed  Nov 17, 2005 - Public Works GIS

1 inch equals 180 feet

Exhibit 2
124th Ave NE Sewer Extension
Amber Ridge
Kirkland, WA
Dark Blue - Developers Property
Blue - General Benefit Area
Red - Direct Benefit Area



Amber Ridge Subdivision  Latecomer's Assessment Roll EXHIBIT 3

Ref No. Tax/Parcel No. Owner/Address
Abbreviated Legal 

Description
Total Area 

(SF)

Direct 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

General 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

Direct 
Benefit Cost

General 
Benefit Cost

Total Cost Reimburse 
Developer @ 

85%
Reimburse 
City @ 15%

1 123310-0353
Edward Frysinger  8011 
124th Ave NE  Kirkland, 
WA  98033

12 11 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 N 72.71 FT 
of Lot 12 Blk 11 

9,101 9,101 9,101 $8,954.86 $1,218.77 $10,173.63 $8,647.59 $1,526.04

2 123310-0354
Robert Carlson             
8017 124th Ave NE         
Kirkland WA  98033

13 11 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 Less N 65 ft.

14,992 7,200 14,992 $7,084.38 $2,007.68 $9,092.06 $7,728.25 $1,363.81

3 123310-0355
Bruno Vogele               
10702 NE 42nd Pl  
Kirkland, WA  98033

13 11 Burke-Farrars Kirland 
Div. #6 S 60 Ft of N 65 ft.

14,992 7,200 14,992 $7,084.38 $2,007.68 $9,092.06 $7,728.25 $1,363.81

4 123310-0356
Kenneth Nelson            
8031 124th Avenue NE  
Kirkland, WA  98033

13-14-15-11 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div. #6 Lot 3 KCSP 
#183013 Rec # 
8308180985 

13,692 7,200 13,692 $7,084.38 $1,833.59 $8,917.97 $7,580.27 $1,337.70

5 123310-0357
Bruno Vogele         
10702 NE 42nd Pl  
Kirkland, WA  98033

13-14-15 11 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 Lot 2 KCSP 
#183013 Rec #8308180985

16,430 0 16,430 $0.00 $2,200.25 $2,200.25 $1,870.21 $330.04

6 123310-0366
Bruno Vogele               
10702 NE 42nd Pl  
Kirkland, WA  98033

13-14-15 11 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 Lot 1 KCSP 
#183013 REC 
#8308180985

18,010 7,200 18,010 $7,084.38 $2,411.84 $9,496.22 $8,071.79 $1,424.43

7 123310-0365
Wolfram Hansis            
8049 124th Ave NE 
Kirkland, WA  98033

15 11 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div # 6 N 1/2

15,617 7,200 15,617 $7,084.38 $2,091.37 $9,175.76 $7,799.39 $1,376.36

8 123310-0371
Linda Hansis                
8049 124th Ave NE       
Kirkland, WA   98033

16 11 Burke- Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 S 70 ft

17,491 7,200 17,491 $7,084.38 $2,342.33 $9,426.72 $8,012.71 $1,414.01

9 123310-0370
Robert Arzadon             
8209 124th Ave NE       
Kirkland WA  98033

16-17 11 Burke- Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 16 less S 70 
ft & S 10 ft of 17

16,242 7,200 16,242 $7,084.38 $2,175.07 $9,259.45 $7,870.54 $1,388.92

10 123310-0376
David Leviten          
8211  124th Ave NE      
Kirkland WA  98033

17 11 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 S 80 ft of N 
115 ft

19,990 7,200 19,990 $7,084.38 $2,676.99 $9,761.37 $8,297.17 $1,464.21

11 123310-0375

John Sinsheim              
1001 4th Ave Plaza 
#2120               Seattle, 
WA 98154

17-18 11 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkalnd Div #6 N 35 Ft of 
17 & 18 Less N 80 Ft Thof

19,990 7,200 19,990 $7,084.38 $2,676.99 $9,761.37 $8,297.17 $1,464.21

12 123310-0377
James Mock                 
825 179th Pl NE            
Bellevue, WA 98008

18 11 Burke-Farrars Kirkand 
Div #6 N 80 Ft.

19,990 7,200 19,990 $7,084.38 $2,676.99 $9,761.37 $8,297.17 $1,464.21

13 123310-0386
Lincoln Kaiser              
8239 124th Ave NE       
Kirkland, WA98033

19 11 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 S 83.33 FT

20,822 7,200 20,822 $7,084.38 $2,788.41 $9,872.79 $8,391.87 $1,480.92

14 123310-0384
Paul Talbott                  
6540 125th Ave NE       
Kirkland WA 98033

19-20 11 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 N 41.66 Ft. 
of 19 & S 50 Ft. of 20

22,906 7,200 22,906 $7,084.38 $3,067.49 $10,151.87 $8,629.09 $1,522.78

15 123310-0425
City of Kirkland          
123 5th Ave                  
Kirkland, WA 98033

5-6 12 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 5 & N 20 ft 
of 6 Subj to C of S Trans Ln

43,560 7,200 43,560 $7,084.38 $5,833.40 $12,917.79 $10,980.12 $1,937.67

16 123310-0430
Ivalene Root                  
8228 124th Ave NE       
Kirkland WA 98033

6 12 Burke-Farrars Kirkland 
Div #6 S 80 ft Subj to C of S 
Trans Ln

28,800 7,200 28,800 $7,084.38 $3,856.80 $10,941.18 $9,300.00 $1,641.18

17 123310-0437
City of Kirkland          
123 5th Ave                  
Kirkland, WA 98033

7 12 Burke-Farrars Kirkland 
Div #6 N 95 ft of W 130 ft

12,350 7,200 12,350 $7,084.38 $1,653.87 $8,738.25 $7,427.51 $1,310.74

18 123310-0435
City of Kirkland          
123 5th Ave                  
Kirkland, WA 98033

7-8 12 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 7 & 8 Less 
N 95 ft. thof subj to C of S 
Trans Ln

37,630 7,200 37,630 $7,084.38 $5,039.28 $12,123.66 $10,305.11 $1,818.55

19 123310-0445
City of Kirkland          
123 5th Ave                  
Kirkland, WA 98033

9 12 Burke-Farrars Kirkland 
Div #6 Subj to C of S Trans 
Ln

35,000 7,200 35,000 $7,084.38 $4,687.08 $11,771.46 $10,005.74 $1,765.72

20 123310-0450
Larry Miller                    
8046 124th Ave NE        
Kirkland, WA 98033

10 12 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 Subj to C of 
S Trans Ln

35,300 7,200 35,300 $7,084.38 $4,727.25 $11,811.64 $10,039.89 $1,771.75

24 123310-0490
William & Mary Cote       
8023 126th Ave NE        
Kirkland, WA 98033

16-17 12 PP Acct 39983457 
Mobile Home Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 Lots 16-17 
less E 185 ft thof AKA Por 
KC LLA #8603015 
Approved 5/7/86 & 8/27/86

37,000 0 37,000 $0.00 $4,954.91 $4,954.91 $4,211.67 $743.24

25 123310-0500
Shelly A Quinn                
8033 126th Ave NE        
Kirkland, WA 98033

18 12 Burke-Farrars 
Kirkland Div #6 less N 60 ft 
of E 100 ft.

27,750 0 27,750 $0.00 $3,716.18 $3,716.18 $3,158.76 $557.43

 
 TOTALS 497,655 138,701 497,655 $136,473.73 $66,644.23 $203,117.97 $172,650.27 $30,467.69

 

Cost Per Square Foot of Sewer Construction Calculation of the Cost Per Square Foot of Sewer Construction
Construction Monitoring/Mgm $11,366.00 75% of Total Cost Shall be borne by the Total Direct Benefit Area (TDBA)  
Engineering Cost $8,500.00 25% of Total Cost Shall be borne by the Total General Benefit Area (TGBA)  
Construction Cost $248,040.22 Therefore the following are cost per squeste foot for each bendfit area:  
Overlay Cost $44,304.00 ((75%)x(Total Cost/TDBA)) = .75 x $324,964.54/ 247701 = 0.983942
Permit Fees $12,754.32 ((25%)x(Total Cost/TGBA)) = .25 x $324,964.54 / 606655 = 0.133917
Total $324,964.54

 



Amber Ridge Subdivision Developers Assessment Roll EXHIBIT 4

Ref No. Tax/Parcel No. Owner/Address Abbreviated Legal Description
Total Area 

(SF)

Direct 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

General 
Benefit Area

(SF)
 

Total Cost

21 123310-0455
Norris Homes              
10516 172nd Ct SE  
Kirkland, WA   98033

11 12 Burke-Farrars Kirkland Div #6 
Subj to C of S Trans Ln

35,000 35,000 35,000 $39,125.05

22 123310-0460
Norris Homes              
10516 172nd Ct SE  
Kirkland, WA   98033

12 12 Burke-Farrars Kirkland Div #6 
Subj to C of S Trans Ln

37,000 37,000 37,000 $41,360.76

23 123310-0465
Norris Homes              
10516 172nd Ct SE  
Kirkland, WA   98033

13 12 Burke-Farrars Kirkland Div. #6 
Subj to C of S Trans Ln

37,000 37,000 37,000 $41,360.76

 
 

TOTALS 109,000 109,000 109,000 $121,846.57



RESOLUTION R- 4554 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND 
APPROVING A SEWER FACILITY AGREEMENT WITH NORRIS HOMES INC. AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN SAID AGREEMENT ON BEHALF 
OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND. 
 

WHEREAS, the improvement of public health is furthered by the 
development of adequate sanitary sewer systems; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature enacted the Municipal 
Water and Sewer Facilities Act, (Chapter 35.91 RCW,) in furtherance of this 
goal and authorized municipalities to enter into agreements with property 
owners for the construction of sanitary sewer facilities and the reimbursement 
of such owners by “latecomers”; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Kirkland concludes entering into this agreement 
will promote the goal of the improvement of public health; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of 
Kirkland as follows: 
 

Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute, on behalf of the City, the Sewer Facility Agreement between the City 
and Norris Homes Inc. A copy of this Agreement is attached as Exhibit A.  
 

Passed by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in open meeting 
this _____ day of __________, 2006. 
 
 Signed in authentication thereof this ____ day of __________, 2006.  
 
 
 
    ____________________________ 
    MAYOR 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Approval of Agreements

Item #:  8. h. (2).



k&] SEWER FACILITIES AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 
35.91 REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this day, pursuant to RCW Chapter 35.91, between the 
a noncharter optional code city, hereinafter referred to as "City" and 

0 m e ~  l n c .  hereinafter referred to as "Developer": 

WlTN ESSETH 

Section 1. Developer does hereby agree to construct, at its sole expense, the SEWER 
FACILITIES described in EXHIBIT I , attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, all 
in accordance with the specifications and standards of the City of Kirkland pertaining to sewer 
construction and installation. 

Section 2. Upon completion of said sewer facilities to the satisfaction of the Kirkland 
Director of Public Works, and acceptance thereof by the City of Kirkland, said facility shall become the 
property of the City of Kirkland and a part of its sewer system with full power of the City of Kirkland to 
charge for its use such sewer connection and service rates and charges as the City of Kirkland may be 
authorized by law to establish, and all further maintenance operation costs of said facility shall be borne 
by the City of Kirkland. 

Section 3. The benefit area to be served by said facility is described and designated on 
EXHIBIT a attached to this agreement and by this reference incorporated herein. Said Exhibit is a 
map showing the total benefit area and delineating thereon that portion of the benefit area owned by 
Developer. EXHIBIT 3 attached to this agreement and by this reference incorporated herein is a 
listing of each lot or parcel within the benefit area including the lot or parcel legal description and the lot 
of parcel's "pro rata share" of the cost of construction of the sewer facilities. EXHIBIT identifies 
those lots or parcels owned by Developer and not subject to the provisions of Section 4 of this agreement. 

Section 4. Any owner of any real property located within the benefit area (other than those 
properties designated in EXHIBIT d as Developer's properties) who shall hereafter tap into or use 
said sewer facility (including not only connecting directly into, but also to users connecting laterals or 
branches connected thereto) shall, prior to such tap in or use, pay to the City of Kirkland, in addition to 
any connection or other change required by the ordinances of the City of Kirkland to be paid upon 
connecting to a sewer facility, their fair pro rata share of the cost of construction of said facility. 

Section 5. For the purposes of determinin such "fair pro rata share" the cost of 
construction of said facility shall be considered to be $3a'&~q. sv , provided, however, the City may 
adjust said cost to reflect the true and final cost of construction of said facility. The "FAIR PRO RATA 
SHARE" of the cost of construction as designated on EXHIBIT 3 , and is hereby approved by the 
City of Kirkland. 

H:\!DesignGraup\MMS\-mms\MASTER\OCDs\O€D40 ver.sewer.doc\OM€42:th Page - of - Official City Document 



Section 6. Within sixty (60) days after receipt by the City of any "fair pro rata share," the 
City shall disburse said sum, less fifteen (15) percent thereof to be retained by the City of Kirkland to 
cover costs of administering the provisions of this agreement, to Developer at 
a053 FabtnDr,n\trce,Ts.t)k q'36qo until such time as Developer shall have received the total 
sum of $17A t 5 b  .a7 ,- or the expiration of fifteen (15) years from the date of this agreement, 
whichever eveit shall first occur. Thereafter,. any amount of charge made or received by the City to tap 
into or use said facility shall be retained by the City. It shall be the duty of the Developer to advise the City 
of any change in the Developer's mailing address. 

Section 7. The provisions of this agreement shall not be effective as to any owner of real 
property designated in EXHIBIT 3 , other than Developer, until such time as this agreement shall 
have been recorded in the Office of the King County Department of Elections and Records and then only 
as to such real property owners as tap into or connect into said facility subsequent to such recording. City 
shall not be required to disburse any "fair pro rata share" to Developer which may not be lawfully 
collected from such real property owner at the time said real property taps into or connects to said 
facility. 

Section 8. In the event the cost, or any part thereof, of a or sewer improvement, whether 
local or general, is or will be assessed against the owners of real property and such improvement will be 
connected into or will make use of the facility constructed pursuant to this agreement and the cost 
thereof was not contributed to by the owners of said real property, there shall be included in the 
Engineer's estimate for the hearing or any such improvement, separately itemized, and in such 
assessments, a sum equal to the amount provided for in this agreement as a fair pro rata share due from 
such owners in accordance with the provisions of this agreement. 

Section 9. No person, firm, or corporation, other than Developer's, as to the real properly 
identified as owned by Developer in EXHIBIT hereto, shall be granted a permit or authorized to 
tap into or use said facility or extensions thereof without first paying their fair pro rata share as herein 
provided. 

DATED at Kirkland, Washington, this day of 

CITY OF KIRKLAND: DEVELOPER: 

ClTY MANAGER FOR THE City of Kirkland 
KIRKLAND WHO IS AUTHORIZED TO ' 

EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT ON 
BEHALF OF SAID CITY BY VIRTUE 

By: 

OF RESOLUTION NO. By: 

H:\!DesimGroup\MMS\-rnms\MASTER\C€Ds\OCD40 ver.sewer.doc\062M)2:th Page of - Official City Document 



(Sign in blue ink) 

(1ndiv1'duaIs Onlu) 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERTY (INCLUDING SPOUSE) 

(Individuals OnlA 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

and 
to 

me known to be the individual(s) described herein and who executed the 
Sewer Facilities Agreement a n d  acknowledged that 

signed the same 
as free and voluntary 
act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

Page - of - Official City Document 



( Pattnerships OnIu) 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERTY 

(Name of Partnership or Joint Venture) 

By General Partner 

By General Partner 

By General Partner 

(Partnerships Onlu) 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

to me, known to 
be general partners of 

, the partnership that 
executed the Sewer Facilities Agreement and acknowledged the said 
instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of each personally and of 
said partnership, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and on oath 
stated that they were authorized to sign said instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

Page - of - Official City Document 



(Corporations Onlyj 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERTY 

(Name of Corporation) 

By President 

By Secretary 

( Corporations Onlyj 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , ' , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

me, known to be the President and Secretary, respectively, of 
, the 

corporation that executed the Sewer Facilities Agreement and acknowledged 
the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said 
corporation, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and on oath stated 
that they were authorized to sign said instrument and that the seal affixed is 
the corporate seal of said corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

Page - of - Official City Document 



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Public Works 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587-3800 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: John A. Burkhalter, P.E., Senior  Development Engineer 
 Rob Jammerman, Development Engineering Manager 
 Daryl Grigsby   Public Works Director 
 
Date: February 10, 2006 
 
Subject: CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION APPROVING A WATER FACILITY AGREEMENT WITH DAN AND 

PEGGI STURGILL. 
                   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the attached resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a Water Facility Agreement with Dan and Peggi Sturgill. 
 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The City of Kirkland is authorized pursuant to Chapter 35.91 RCW to enter into a Water Facility Agreement 
(also known as a Water Latecomers’ Agreement) allowing developers to receive compensation for the 
installation of public water main line extensions, i.e. persons connecting to the extensions are required to 
pay a portion of the construction costs as a condition of connection.  These latecomers’ fees are calculated 
based on the area of the property being served: dividing the benefit area into the total cost of the water 
extensions yields the latecomers’ charge.  Fifteen percent (15%) of the water latecomers’ fee is retained by 
the City of Kirkland for administering the agreement and eighty-five percent (85%) of the fee is returned to 
the developer.  The agreement is valid for 15 years and is administered by the Department of Public 
Works. 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 
 
 
Dan and Peggi Sturgill   installed approximately 280 lineal feet of water main line extension along 126th Ave. 
NE . This public water main extension provides water service to various parcels.  A Water Facility 
Agreement has been filed with the Department of Public Works to receive reimbursement for the water line 
extension.  Any property owner applying for connection to the water main will be required to pay 
approximately $.253 per square foot for the direct benefit area and approximately $.0842 per square foot 
for the general benefit area plus normal City of Kirkland water connection fees.   
 
H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Public Works\Consent Calendar\Sturgill Water Facilities Agreement\1_Sturgill Water Fac Agreement_ 1 Staff Memo.doc 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Approval of Agreements

Item #:  8. h. (3).



H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Public Works\Consent Calendar\Sturgill Water Facilities Agreement\1_Sturgill Water Fac Agreement_ 1 Staff Memo.doc 

 

Upon Approval of the resolution and subsequent signing by the City Manager, the agreement will be sent to 
King County for recording.  Finally, notice of latecomers’ connection charges will be sent to each property 
owner included in the agreement. 
 
CC: City Attorney 



!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!>

!>

!>!>!>!>!>!>!>!>

!>

!>!>

!> !>!>

!>
!>

!>

!>

!> !>!>!>

!> !> !>

!> !>!>!>!>

!>!>

!>!>

!>!>

!>!>!>!>

!> !>!>!>

1

2 3

12
6T

H 
AV

E N
E

NE 104th St
I

Produced by the City of Kirkland.

(c) 2006, the City of Kirkland, all rights reserved.

No warranties of any sort, including but not limited
to accuracy, fitness or merchantability, accompany 

this product.

Printed  Feb 6, 2006 - Public Works GIS

1 inch equals 100 feet

Exhibit 1
126th Ave NE
Water Latecomers
Dan and Peggi Sturgill
Kirkland, WA
Red - Direct and General Benefit



McDonald Short Plat Water Latecomer's Assessment Roll EXHIBIT 2

Ref No. Tax/Parcel No. Owner/Address
Abbreviated Legal 

Description
Total Area 

(SF)

Direct 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

General 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

Direct Benefit 
Cost

General 
Benefit 
Cost

Total Cost Reimburse 
Developer 

@ 85%
Reimburse 
City @ 15%

2 674370-0317
C O & Karen Page           
10448 126th Ave NE      
Kirkland, WA  98033

Lot 5 & 6 4 Pettits H C Alder 
Grove Kirkland W 120 ft of 
E 210 ft of 5 & W 120 ft of E 
210 feet of N 1/2 of 6 & S 15 
ft of N 1/2 of 6 Less E 210 ft

22,200 22,200 22,200 $5,607.29 $1,869.10 $7,476.38 $6,354.93 $1,121.46

3 674370-0315
Raymond D Cantu           
10450 126th Ave NE      
Kirkland, WA  98033

Lot 5 & 6 4 Pettits H C Alder 
Grove Kirkland E 90 ft of 
FOLG 5 & N 1/2 of 6

15,560 15,560 15,560 $3,930.15 $1,310.05 $5,240.20 $4,454.17 $786.03

 TOTALS 37,760 37,760 37,760 $9,537.44 $3,179.15 $12,716.59 $10,809.10 $1,907.49
 

Cost Per Square Foot of Water Construction Calculation of the Cost Per Square Foot of Water Construction
Survey Cost $698.85 75% of Total Cost Shall be borne by the Total Direct Benefit Area (TDBA)  
Engineering Cost $1,662.28 25% of Total Cost Shall be borne by the Total General Benefit Area (TGBA)  
Construction Cost $20,672.00 Therefore the following are cost per squeste foot for each bendfit area:  
Permit fees/misc $2,010.40 ((75%)x(Total Cost/TDBA)) = .75 x $25,043.53 / 74,363 = 0.252581
Total $25,043.53 ((25%)x(Total Cost/TGBA)) = .25 x $25,043.53 / 74,363 = 0.084194

 



McDonald Short Plat Developer's Water Assessment Roll EXHIBIT 3

Ref No. Tax/Parcel No. Owner/Address Abbreviated Legal Description
Total Area 

(SF)

Direct 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

General 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

Total Cost

1 674370-0320

Dan & Peggi Sturgill      
1500 E. College Way 
Ste A
PMB 422
Mount Vernon, WA 
98273

6 - 7 4 Pettits H C Alder Grove 
Kirkland S 1/2 of 6 & all of 7 less Beg 
at SW Cor of 7 the N on W ln of 6 & 
7 Dist 170.90 ft the S 89 Deg 20 Min 
37 Sec E 115.01 ft the S 01 Deg 21 
Min 29 Sec W 171.11 ft to S ln of 7 
the W Alg Sd S Ln 115.01 ft to POB.

36,603 36,603 36,603 $12,326.94

 
 

TOTALS 36,603 36,603 36,603 $12,326.94



RESOLUTION R-4555
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND 
APPROVING A WATER FACILITY AGREEMENT WITH DAN AND PEGGI 
STURGILL AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN SAID 
AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND. 
 

WHEREAS, the improvement of public health is furthered by the 
development of adequate water systems; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature enacted the Municipal 
Water and Sewer Facilities Act, (Chapter 35.91 RCW,) in furtherance of this 
goal and authorized municipalities to enter into agreements with property 
owners for the construction of water facilities and the reimbursement of such 
owners by “latecomers”; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Kirkland concludes entering into this agreement 
will promote the goal of the improvement of public health; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of 
Kirkland as follows: 
 

Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute, on behalf of the City, the Water Facility Agreement between the City 
and Dan and Peggi Sturgill. A copy of this Agreement is attached as Exhibit A.  
 

Passed by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in open meeting 
this _____ day of __________, 2006. 
 
 Signed in authentication thereof this ____ day of __________, 2006.  
 
 
 
    ____________________________ 
    MAYOR 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Approval of Agreements

Item #:  8. h. (3).



EXHIBIT A 

B K- 
$&) WATER FACILITIES AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 

35.91 REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this day, pursuant to RCW Chapter 35.91, between the 
of Kirkland, a noncharter optional code city, hereinafter referred to as "City" and 

u t o i \ \  hereinafter referred to as "Developer": 

WITNESSETH 

Section 1. Developer does hereby agree to construct, at its sole expense, the WATER 
FACILITIES described in EXHIBIT I , attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, all in 
accordance with the specifications and standards of the City of Kirkland pertaining to water construction 
and installation. 

Section 2. Upon completion of said water facilities to the satisfaction of the Kirkland 
Director of Public Works, and acceptance thereof by the City of Kirkland, said facility shall become the 
property of the City of Kirkland and a part of its water system with full power of the City of Kirkland to 
charge for its use such water connection and service rates and charges as the City of Kirkland may be 
authorized by law to establish, and all further maintenance operation costs of said facility shall be borne 
by the City of Kirkland. 

Section 3. The benefit area to be served by said facility is described and designated on 
EXHIBIT I attached to this agreement and by this reference incorporated herein. Said Exhibit is a 
map showing the total enefit area and delineating thereon that portion of the benefit area owned by 
Developer. EXHIBIT attached to this agreement and by this reference incorporated herein is a 
listing of each lot or parcel within the benefit area including the lot or parcel legal description and the lot 
of parcel's "pro rata share" of the cost of construction of the water facilities. EXHIBIT 3 identifies 
those lots or parcels owned by Developer and not subject to the provisions of Section 4 of this agreement. 

Section 4. Any owner of any real property located within the benefit area (other than those 
properties designated in EXHIBIT \ as Developer's properties) who shall hereafter tap into or use 
said water facility [including--net -only conneding directly into, but-also-to-users-mmec-tingiate~ds er- - - - 

branches connected thereto) shall, prior to such tap in or use, pay to the City of Kirkland, in addition to 
any connection or other change required by the ordinances of the City of Kirkland to be paid upon 
connecting to a water facility, their fair pro rata share of the cost of construction of said facility. 

Section 5. For the purposes of determining such "fair pro rata share" the cost of 
construction of said facility shall be considered to be $256q 3 5 3 , provided, however, the City may 
adjust said cost to reflect the true and final cost of construction of said facility. The "FAIR PRO RATA 
SHARE" of the cost of construction as designated on EXHIBIT , and is hereby approved by the City 
of Kirkland. 

Official City Document 



Section 6. Within sixty (60) days after receipt by the City of any "fair pro rata share," the 
City shall disburse said sum, less fifteen (15) percent thereof to be retained by the City of Kirkland to 
cover costs of administering the provisions of this agreement, to Developer at 
1500 F e o b a e L ) y  m+Vernon~\ until such time as Developer shall have received the total 
sum of $1o.T@9. 16 , or the expiration of fifteen (15) years from the date of this agreement, 
whichever evbnt shall first occur. Thereafter, any amount of charge made or received by the City to tap 
into or use said facility shall be retained by the City. It shall be the duty of the Developer to advise the City 
of any change in the Developer's mailing address. 

Section 7. The provisions of this agreement shall not be effective as to any owner of real 
property designated in EXHIBIT d , other than Developer, until such time as this agreement shall 
have been recorded in the Office of the King County Department of Elections and Records and then only 
as to such real property owners as tap into or connect into said facility subsequent to such recording. City 
shall not be required to disburse any "fair pro rata share" to Developer which may not be lawfully 
collected from such real property owner at the time said real property taps into or connects to said 
facility. 

Section 8. In the event the cost, or any part thereof, of a or water improvement, whether 
local or general, is or will be assessed against the owners of real property and such improvement will be 
connected into or will make use of the facility constructed pursuant to this agreement and the cost 
thereof was not contributed to by the owners of said real property, there shall be included in the 
Engineer's estimate for the hearing or any such improvement, separately itemized, and in such 
assessments, a sum equal to the amount provided for in this agreement as a fair pro rata share due from 
such owners in accordance with the provisions of this agreement. 

Section 9. No person, firm, or corporation, other than Developer's, as to the real property 
identified as owned by Developer in EXHIBIL3 hereto, shall be granted a permit or authorized to tap 
into or use said facility or extensions thereof without first paying their fair pro rata share as herein 
provided. 

DATED at Kirkland, Washington, this day of 

CITY OF KIRKLAND: DEVELOPER: 
- - . . . - - ~ -------- ~ ..-.-. .-- ~- --. ~-. - -- 

CITY MANAGER FOR THE City of Kirkland 
KIRKLAND WHO IS AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT ON 
BEHALF OF SAID ClTY BY VIRTUE 

By: 

OF RESOLUTION NO. By: 

Official City Document 



(Sign in blue ink) 

(/ndividuals Onlu) 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERTY (INCLUDING SPOUSE) 

(/ndividuals Onlu) 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

to 
me known to be the individual(s) described herein and who executed the 
Water Facilities Agreement and acknowledged that 

signed the same 
as free and voluntary 
act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereteaffixed-the dayandyeal-fitskabove--- 
- _ - w r i t t e n .  

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

Page -of - Official City Document 



(Partnerships OnM 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERTY 

(Name of Partnership or Joint Venture) 

By General Partner 

By General Partner 

By General Partner 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

and 
to me, known to 

be general partners of 
-- , t h m r * -  

executed the Water Facilities Agreement and achno-said 
instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of each personally and of 
said partnership, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and on oath 
stated that they were authorized to sign said instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

Page - of - Official City Document 



(Corporations On/' 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERTY 

(Name of Corporation) 

By President 

By Secretary 

(Corporations On/' 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

and 
to 

me, known to be the President and Secretary, respectively, of 
, the 

corporation that executed the Water Facilities Agreement and acknowledged 
the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said 

to . s a l d l R n d -  
. . 

IS 
. . 

the corporate seal of said corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

Page - of - Official City Document 



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Public Works 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587-3800 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: John A. Burkhalter, P.E., Senior  Development Engineer 
 Rob Jammerman, Development Engineering Manager 
 Daryl Grigsby   Public Works Director 
 
Date: February 10, 2006 
 
Subject: CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION APPROVING A SEWER FACILITY AGREEMENT WITH DAN AND 

PEGGI STURGILL. 
                   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the attached resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a Sewer Facility Agreement with Dan and Peggi Sturgill. 
 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The City of Kirkland is authorized pursuant to Chapter 35.91 RCW to enter into a Sewer Facility Agreement 
(also known as a Sewer Latecomers’ Agreement) allowing developers to receive compensation for the 
installation of public sewer main line extensions, i.e. persons connecting to the extensions are required to 
pay a portion of the construction costs as a condition of connection.  These latecomers’ fees are calculated 
based on the area of the property being served: dividing the benefit area into the total cost of the sewer 
extensions  yields the latecomers’ charge.  Fifteen percent (15%) of the sewer latecomers’ fee is retained 
by the City of Kirkland for administering the agreement and eighty-five percent (85%) of the fee is returned 
to the developer.  The agreement is valid for 15 years and is administered by the Department of Public 
Works. 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 
 
 
Dan and Peggi Sturgill   installed approximately 303  lineal feet of sewer main line extension along  126th 

Ave. NE . This public sewer main extension provides sewer service to various parcels.  A Sewer Facility 
Agreement has been filed with the Department of Public Works to receive reimbursement for the sewer.  
Any property owner applying for connection to the sewer main will be required to pay approximately $.177 
per square foot for the direct benefit area and approximately $.0589 per square foot for the general benefit 
area plus normal City of Kirkland sewer connection fees.   
 
H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Public Works\Consent Calendar\Sturgill Sewer Facilities Agreement\Sturgill Sewer - 1-Staff Memo.doc 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Approval of Agreements

Item #:  8. h. (4).



H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Public Works\Consent Calendar\Sturgill Sewer Facilities Agreement\Sturgill Sewer - 1-Staff Memo.doc 

 

Upon Approval of the resolution and subsequent signing by the City Manager, the agreement will be sent to 
King County for recording.  Finally, notice of latecomers’ connection charges will be sent to each property 
owner included in the agreement. 
 
CC: City Attorney 





Dan and Peggi Sturgill 

(c) 2Wg. Ihe City of Kirkland, all righb reserved. 

Nowarrantiesaf any sart, including but nat limned 
to accuracy, fin- or merchantability, ammpany 

mis product 



McDonald Short Plat Sewer Latecomer's Assessment Roll EXHIBIT 3

Ref No. Tax/Parcel No. Owner/Address
Abbreviated Legal 

Description
Total Area 

(SF)

Direct 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

General 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

Direct 
Benefit Cost

General 
Benefit 
Cost

Total Cost Reimburse 
Developer 

@ 85%
Reimburse 
City @ 15%

2 674370-0317
C O & Karen Page          
10448 126th Ave NE      
Kirkland, WA  98033

Lot 5 & 6 4 Pettits H C Alder 
Grove Kirkland W 120 ft of 
E 210 ft of 5 & W 120 ft of E 
210 feet of N 1/2 of 6 & S 
15 ft of N 1/2 of 6 Less E 
210 ft

22,200 22,200 22,200 $3,919.84 $1,306.61 $5,226.46 $4,442.49 $783.97

3 674370-0315
Raymond D Cantu           
10450 126th Ave NE      
Kirkland, WA  98033

Lot 5 & 6 4 Pettits H C Alder 
Grove Kirkland E 90 ft of 
FOLG 5 & N 1/2 of 6

15,560 15,560 15,560 $2,747.42 $915.81 $3,663.23 $3,113.74 $549.48

4 674370-0357
Travis Gross             
12708 NE 105th Ct 
Kirkland, WA  98033

Lot 13 & 14 4 Pettits H C 
Alder Grove Kirkland W 140 
ft of @ 19.66 ft of 14 & W 
140 ft of 13 less S 39.32 ft

14,700 14,700 14,700 $2,595.57 $865.19 $3,460.76 $2,941.65 $519.11

5 674370-0349
David F Belmonte          
12703 NE 105th Ct 
Kirkland, WA  98033

Lots 11-13 4 Pettits H C 
Alder Grove Kirkland N 
39.32 ft of Lot 11 less E 
231.40 ft thof & Lot 12 less 
E 231.40 ft thof & S 39.32 ft 
of Lot 13 less E 217.92 ft 
thof less por of SD PORS of 
Lots 12 & 13 ly nely ely & 
sely of ln daf beg on E ln of 
Lot 13 9.32 ft N fr SE cor 
thof th W pll S ln of Lot 13 
173.23 ft the alg lft curve 
rad 12 ft thru a C/A of 78-27-
47 a dist of 16.43 ft the alg 
rgt curve rad 33 ft thru a 
C/A of 258-27-47 a dist of 
148.86 ft tap 39.32 ft N fr S 
ln of Lot 13 & terminus of sd 
ln

14,820 14,820 14,820 $2,616.76 $872.25 $3,489.01 $2,965.66 $523.35

 TOTALS 67,280 67,280 67,280 $11,879.60 $3,959.87 $15,839.46 $13,463.54 $2,375.92
 

Cost Per Square Foot of Sewer Construction Calculation of the Cost Per Square Foot of Sewer Construction
Survey Cost $658.00 75% of Total Cost Shall be borne by the Total Direct Benefit Area (TDBA)  
Engineering Cost $1,565.00 25% of Total Cost Shall be borne by the Total General Benefit Area (TGBA)  
Construction Cost $19,584.00 Therefore the following are cost per squeste foot for each bendfit area:  
Permit fees/misc $2,649.76 ((75%)x(Total Cost/TDBA)) = .75 x $24,456.76 / 103,883  = 0.176570
Total $24,456.76 ((25%)x(Total Cost/TGBA)) = .25 x $24,456.76 / 103,883 = 0.058857

 



McDonald Short Plat Sewer Developer's Assessment Roll EXHIBIT 4

Ref No. Tax/Parcel No. Owner/Address Abbreviated Legal Description
Total Area 

(SF)

Direct 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

General 
Benefit 

Area (SF)

Total Cost

1 674370-0320

Dan & Peggi Sturgill      
1500 E. College Way 
Ste A
PMB 422
Mount Vernon, WA 
98273

6 - 7 4 Pettits H C Alder Grove 
Kirkland S 1/2 of 6 & all of 7 less Beg 
at SW Cor of 7 the N on W ln of 6 & 
7 Dist 170.90 ft the S 89 Deg 20 Min 
37 Sec E 115.01 ft the S 01 Deg 21 
Min 29 Sec W 171.11 ft to S ln of 7 
the W Alg Sd S Ln 115.01 ft to POB.

36,603 36,603 36,603 $8,617.30

 
 

TOTALS 36,603 36,603 36,603 $8,617.30



RESOLUTION R-4556
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND 
APPROVING A SEWER FACILITY AGREEMENT WITH DAN AND PEGGI 
STURGILL AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN SAID 
AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND. 
 

WHEREAS, the improvement of public health is furthered by the 
development of adequate sanitary sewer systems; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature enacted the Municipal 
Water and Sewer Facilities Act, (Chapter 35.91 RCW,) in furtherance of this 
goal and authorized municipalities to enter into agreements with property 
owners for the construction of sanitary sewer facilities and the reimbursement 
of such owners by “latecomers”; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Kirkland concludes entering into this agreement 
will promote the goal of the improvement of public health; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of 
Kirkland as follows: 
 

Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute, on behalf of the City, the Sewer Facility Agreement between the City 
and Dan and Peggi Sturgill. A copy of this Agreement is attached as Exhibit A.  
 

Passed by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in open meeting 
this _____ day of __________, 2006. 
 
 Signed in authentication thereof this ____ day of __________, 2006.  
 
 
 
    ____________________________ 
    MAYOR 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Approval of Agreements

Item #:  8. h. (4).



EXHIBIT A 

SEWER FACILITIES AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 
35.91 REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this day, pursuant to RCW Chapter 35.91, between the 
, a noncharter optional code city, hereinafter referred to as "City" and 
s a i  . 5 + u t o r 1 1  hereinafter referred to as "Developer": 
a3 3 

WlTNESSETH 

Section 1. Developer does hereby agree to construct, at its sole expense, the SEWER 
FACILITIES described in EXHIBIT 1 , attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, all 
in accordance with the specifications and standards of the City of Kirkland pertaining to sewer 
construction and installation. 

Section 2. Upon completion of said sewer facilities to the satisfaction of the Kititland 
Director of Public Works, and acceptance thereof by the City of Kirkland, said facility shall become the 
property of the City of Kirkland and a part of its sewer system with full power of the City of Kirkland to 
charge for its use such sewer connection and service rates and charges as the City of Kirkland may be 
authorized by law to establish, and all further maintenance operation costs of said facility shall be borne 
by the City of Kirkland. 

Section 3. The benefit area to be served by said facility is described and designated on 
EXHlBlT a attached to this agreement and by this reference incorporated herein. Said Exhibit is a 
map showing the total benefit area and delineating thereon that portion of the benefit area owned by 
Developer. EXHIBIT 3 attached to this agreement and by this reference incorporated herein is a 
listing of each lot or parcel within the benefit area including the lot or parcel legal description and the lot 
of parcel's "pro rata share" of the cost of construction of the sewer facilities. EXHIBIT identifies 
those lots or parcels owned by Developer and not subject to the provisions of Section 4 of this agreement. 

Section 4. Any owner of any real property located within the benefit area (other than those 
properties designated in EXHlBlT a as Developer's properties) who shall hereafter tap into or use 
said sewer facility (including not only connecting directly into, but also to users connecting laterals or 
branches connected thereto) shall, prior to such tap in or use, pay to the City of Kirkland, in addition to 
any connection or other change required by the ordinances of the City of Kirkland to be paid upon 
connecting to a sewer facility, their fair pro rata share of the cost of construction of said,facility. 

Section 5. For the purposes of determining such "fair pro rata share" the cost of 
construction of said facility shall be considered to be $d$Y SG .74 , provided, however, the City may 
adjust said cost to reflect the true and final cost of construction of said facility. The "FAIR PRO RATA 
SHARE" of the cost of construction as designated on EXHIBIT 3 , and is hereby approved by the 
City of Kirkland. 

~ : \ ! D e s i g n ~ r o u p \ ~ M ~ \ - ~ ~ \ ~ E R \ o c ~ \ o c ~ ~ o  ver.sewer.doc\WZW2:Ih Page o f  - Official City Document 



Section 6. Within sixty (60) days after receipt by the City of any "fair pro rata share," the 
City shall disburse said sum, less fifteen (15) percent thereof to be retained by the City of Kirkland to ;yd , c ~ t s  of administering the provisions of this agreement, to Developer at 

al\eqrl)y M o ~ d  \ltrntnd# until such time as Developer shall have received the total 
sum of $ 13 '963: 5 J , or the expiration of fifteen (15) years from the date of this agreement, 
whichever event shall first occur. Thereafter, any amount of charge made or received by the City to tap 
into or use said facility shall be retained by the City. It shall be the duty of the Developer to advise the City 
of any change in the Developer's mailing address. 

Section 7. The provisions of this agreement shall not be effective as to any owner of real 
property designated in EXHIBIT 3 , other than Developer, until such time as this agreement shall 
have been recorded in the Office of the King County Department of Elections and Records and then only 
as to such real property owners as tap into or connect into said facility subsequent to such recording. City 
shall not  be required to disburse any "fair pro rata share" to Developer which may not be lawfully 
collected from such real property owner at the time said real property taps into or connects to said 
facility. 

Section 8. In the event the cost, or any part thereof, of a or sewer improvement, whether 
local or general, is or will be assessed against the owners of real properly and such improvement will be 
connected into or will make use of the facility constructed pursuant to this agreement and the cost 
thereof was not contributed to by the owners of said real property, there shall be included in the 
Engineer's estimate for the hearing or any such improvement, separately itemized, and in such 
assessments, a sum equal to the amount provided for in this agreement as a fair pro rata share due from 
such owners in accordance with the provisions of this agreement. 

Section 9. No person, firm, or corporation, other than Developer's, as to the real property 
identified as owned by Developer in EXHIBIT L\ hereto, shall be granted a permit or authorized to 
tap into or use said facility or extensions thereof without first paying their'fair pro rata share as herein 
provided. 

DATED at Kirkland, Washington, this day of 

CITY OF KIRKLAND: DEVELOPER: 

ClTY MANAGER FOR THE City of Kirkland 
KIRKLAND WHO IS AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT ON By: 
BEHALF OF SAID CITY BY VIRTUE 
OF RESOLUTION NO. By: 

H:\!DesimGroup\MMS\-mms\MASTER\OCDs\OCMO ver.sewer.doc\06-2M)2W Page - of - Official City Document 



(Sign in blue ink) 

(Individuals OnM 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERTY (INCLUDING SPOUSE) 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

and 
to 

me known to be the individual(s) described herein and who executed the 
Sewer Facilities Agreement and acknowledged that 

signed the same 
as free and voluntary 
act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

Page - of - Official City Document 



( Partnersh@s OnlA 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERTY 

'(Name of Partnership or Joint Venture) 

By General Partner 

By General Partner 

By General Partner 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

to me, known to 
be general partners of 

, the partnership that 
executed the Sewer Facilities Agreement and acknowledged the said 
instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of each personally and of 
said partnership, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and on oath 
stated that they were authorized to sign said instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

Page o f  - Official City Document 



(Corporations On@ 

OWNER(S) OF REAL PROPERlY 

(Name of Corporation) 

By President 

By Secretary 

( Corporations On/y) 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 1 
) SS. 

County of King 1 
On this day of , before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared 

to 
me, known to be the President and Secretary, respectively, of 

, the 
corporation that executed the Sewer Facilities Agreement and acknowledged 
the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said 
corporation, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and on oath stated 
that they were authorized to sign said instrument and that the seal affixed is 
the corporate seal of said corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above 
written. 

Notary's Signature 

Print Notary's Name 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, Residing at: 

My commission expires: 

H:\!DesignGroup\MMS\-mrns\MASTER\CCDs\M:MO ver.sewer.doc\062~2:th Page - of - Official City Document 



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Public Works 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3800 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: David Ramsay, City Manager  
 
From: Elaine Borjeson, Solid Waste Coordinator 
 Daryl Grigsby, Public Works Director 
 
Date: February 23, 2006 
 
Subject: RESOLUTION TO RELINQUISH THE CITY’S INTEREST IN A PORTION OF UNOPENED 

RIGHT OF WAY 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt the enclosed Resolution, relinquishing interest, except for a 
utilities easement, in the southwesterly 8 feet of the unopened alley abutting the northeasterly boundary of 
Lots 27 and 28, Block 41, Blewett’s 1st Addition to Kirkland, according to the plat thereof recorded in 
Volume 6 of Plats, page 82, records of King County, Washington. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:   
 
The unopened alley abutting the property of 720 14th Avenue West was originally platted and dedicated in 
1890 as Blewett’s 1st Addition to Kirkland. The Five Year Non-User Statute provides that any street or right-
of-way platted, dedicated or deeded prior to March 12, 1904, which was outside City jurisdiction when 
dedicated and which remains unopened or unimproved for five continuous years is then vacated.  
 
Sinclair Thimgen Homes, Inc., the owner of the property abutting this right-of-way, submitted information to 
the City claiming the right-of-way was subject to the Five Year Non-User Statute (Vacation by Operation of 
Law), Laws of 1889, Chapter 19, Section 32.  After reviewing this information, the City Attorney believes 
the approval of the enclosed Resolution is permissible. 
 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 

Vicinity Map 
 
 
 
 

H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Public Works\Consent Calendar\Resolution to Relinquish Alley at 720 14th Ave W\1_Staff memo.doc 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Other Business

Item #:  8. i. (1).



14TH AVE W

16TH AVE W

7T
H S

T W

14TH PL W

8T
H S

T W

SINCLAIR THIMGAN PROPERTY NON-USER VACATION
720 14TH AVE W

Sinclair Thimgan Property

Proposed Vacation

Granted Non-User Vacation

Pedestrian Easement

Building Outline

School

Park

Produced by the City of Kirkland.

(c) 2005, the City of Kirkland, all rights reserved.

No warranties of any sort, including but not limited
to accuracy, fitness or merchantability, accompany 

this product.

Map Printed November 17, 2005 - Public Works GIS



  
RESOLUTION R-4557

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELINQUISHING ANY INTEREST THE 
CITY MAY HAVE, EXCEPT FOR A UTILITIES EASEMENT, IN AN UNOPENED ALLEY AS DESCRIBED HEREIN 
AND REQUESTED BY PROPERTY OWNER SINCLAIR THIMGEN HOMES, INC. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a request to recognize that any rights to the land originally 
dedicated in 1890 as right-of-way abutting a portion of the Blewett’s 1st Addition to Kirkland have been 
vacated by operation of law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Laws of 1889, Chapter 19, Section 32, provide that any county road which remains 
unopened for five years after authority is granted for opening the same is vacated by operation of law at that 
time; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the area which is the subject of this request was annexed to the City of Kirkland, with 
the relevant right-of-way having been unopened; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in this context it is in the public interest to resolve this matter by agreement, 
 
 Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Kirkland as follows: 
 
 Section 1. As requested by property owner Sinclair Thimgen Homes, Inc., the City Council of the 
City of Kirkland hereby recognizes that the following described right of way has been vacated by operation of 
law and relinquishes all interest it may have, if any, except for a utilities easement, in the portion of right-of-
way described as follows: 
 
A portion of unopened alley being identified as the southwesterly 8 feet of unopened alley abutting the 
northeasterly boundary of Lots 27 and 28, Block 41, BLEWETT’S 1ST ADDITION TO KIRKLAND, according to 
the plat thereof recorded in Volume 6 of Plats, page 82, records of King County, Washington. 
 
 Section 2.  This resolution does not affect any third party rights in the property, if any.   
 
 Passed by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in open meeting this ____ day of 
_________, 2006. 
 
 Signed in authentication thereof this ____ day of __________, 2006. 
 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 
    MAYOR 
 
Attest: 
_____________________________________ 
City Clerk 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Other Business

Item #:  8. i. (1).



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Finance and Administration 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3000 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager  
 
From: Barry Scott, Purchasing Agent 
 
Date: February 15, 2006 
 
Subject: REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE FROM U.S. COMMUNITIES’ CONTRACTS 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City’s Purchasing Agent and Buyer be authorized to make commodity purchases from 
U.S. Communities’ competitively bid contracts where the bidding process has complied with all of the City of 
Kirkland’s requirements and it is in the best interest of the City to do so. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
U.S. Communities is a nonprofit government alliance that was formed to competitively bid nationwide contracts 
accessible for use by all public agencies registered with U.S. Communities.  U.S. Communities is co-sponsored by 
the National Association of Counties, National League of Cities, U. S. Conference of Mayors, National Institute of 
Governmental Purchasing and the Association of School Business Officials International. 
 
Each U.S. Communities contract is competitively bid by a relatively large public agency (e.g. Los Angeles County, 
Fairfax County) and the contract pricing is then made available to all U.S. Communities member agencies.  This is 
very similar to the way that Washington’s Office of State Procurement bids contracts for supplies, equipment and 
materials and then makes the contracts available for use by all agencies that are members of the Washington State 
Purchasing Cooperative.  (As a member of the State Purchasing Cooperative, the City routinely makes purchases 
from State contracts.) 
 
The City did register as a member of U.S. Communities several years ago.  However, to the best of my knowledge, 
the purchases that we have made from U.S. Communities’ contracts have been below the City’s threshold where 
written quotes are required ($7,500) and well below the threshold for sealed competitive bids ($20,000). 
 
At this time, I am requesting formal authorization to utilize the U.S. Communities’ contracts for commodities and 
equipment purchases above the thresholds for written quotes or sealed bids when it is determined by Purchasing 
staff that it is in the City’s best interest to do so.  This would be in compliance with KMC 3.85.030, which provides 
for the City to engage in cooperative purchasing.  (This would not apply to public works projects.) 
 
Attached are copies of the U.S. Communities’ Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement and a 
recent article from the National League of Cities’ newspaper (Nation’s Cities Weekly) that describes the mission of 
U.S. Communities, the potential benefits of using their program and some of the products available from their 
contracts. 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Other Business

Item #:  8. i. (2).



   From the February 13, 2006 edition of Nation’s Cities Weekly:  

With NLC Program, Cities Save Money the Old Fashioned Way 
 

by Marc Shapiro 
 
It is not often that a city can take no risk in order to gain significant savings. A program 
sponsored by the National League of Cities — the U.S. Communities Government 
Purchasing Alliance — provides this opportunity for savings every day to its member 
cities and all cities and towns.  
 
Established in 1996, U.S. Communities now offers 12 competitively solicited contracts, 
ranging from basic office supplies to emergency homeland security equipment.  
 
These contracts have been solicited by large cities and counties on behalf of all local and 
state governments.  
 
As a result, any city, county, school or other public agency with statutory authority to use 
cooperative purchasing agreements may piggyback on these contracts. 
 
“NLC is pleased to be a national sponsor of U.S. Communities,” said Donald J. Borut, NLC 
executive director. “Working with and through our network of state municipal leagues, 
we are able to inform our members of the opportunities for both cost savings and 
administrative savings in typical and emergency government purchasing, and to bring the 
best government pricing to the smallest of local governments.”  
 
Borut was elected vice chair of the U.S. Communities Board of Directors at its annual 
meeting early this month. 
 
In 2005, more than 12,000 public agencies purchased goods and services valued at more 
than $600 million through U.S. Communities.  
 
According to program estimates, U.S. Communities contracts have saved cites, counties 
and other public agencies more than $1 billion in purchasing costs since 1999. 
 
The two most recent contracts further enhance and expand the products available 
through U.S. Communities.  
 
A new contract for homeland security solutions was awarded to Hagemeyer North 
America last December.  
 
The competitively solicited contract provides first responders and other public agencies 
across the country access to a broad range of security, safety, law enforcement and fire 
equipment without the need for additional solicitation. And last month, a contract was 
awarded to Home Depot to provide maintenance, repair and operations products.  
 
Also last month, after reviewing proposals from several national and regional companies, 



U.S. Communities renewed the contract for office and school supplies with Office Depot. 
The new contract features significant pricing and program improvements, including an 
“Everyday Office Essential” catalogue of 4,500 items now discounted at 70 percent off list 
price (formerly 63 percent off). The core list for office supplies has also been expanded 
from 300 items to 500 items.  
 
The office and school supply contract continues to offer best procurement practice 
solutions for participating cities and towns, including free next-day delivery, just-in-time 
purchasing, electronic and telephonic ordering, incentives for electronic ordering, 
incentives for volume purchasing and customer-friendly return policies. 
 
“The U.S. Communities contracts we’ve used, especially the Office Depot contract, have 
provided both efficiency and cost savings,” said Jim McIntyre, buyer supervisor for the 
City and County of Denver. “I would recommend U.S. Communities contracts to any 
purchasing department looking to save time and money,” he added.  
 
The U.S. Communities program is easy to use.  
 
There is no fee to participate, no minimum spending and only a simple electronic 
registration is required.  
 
Any city or town may register online for the program by visiting www.uscommunities.org 
and clicking on “Register to Participate.”  
 
Electronic registration provides a public agency with access to all contract documents and 
pricing, all suppliers, and substantial information on program savings and program 
participants. It also provides an electronic copy of the master intergovernmental 
cooperative purchasing agreement that serves as the legal document that authorizes a 
participating public agency’s use of each lead public agency’s contract available through 
U.S. Communities. 
 
Details: For more information on the program, visit www.uscommunities.org or contact 
Marc Shapiro at NLC, (202) 626-3019 or e-mail: Shapiro@nlc.org. 

60 

 National League of Cities 
1301 Pennsylvania Avenue NW Suite 550 · Washington, DC 20004 

Phone:(202) 626-3000 · Fax:(202) 626-3043 
info@nlc.org · www.nlc.org  

Privacy Policy

 
 
 

http://www.uscommunities.org/
http://www.uscommunities.org/
http://www.nlc.org/Newsroom/Nation_s_Cities_Weekly/Weekly_NCW/2006/02/13/mailtShapiro@nlc.org
mailto:info@nlc.org
http://www.nlc.org/index.cfm
http://www.nlc.org/inside_nlc/about_nlc/812.cfm


RESOLUTION R-4558
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND APPROVING 
PARTICIPATION IN COOPERATIVE PURCHASING THROUGH U.S. COMMUNITIES  
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S PURCHASING AGENT AND BUYER TO MAKE 
THESE PURCHASES ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND. 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to KMC 3.85.030 and RCW 39.34 City of 
Kirkland mey enter into intergovernmental purchasing agreements with other 
public agencies in order to allow the parties to said agreements to 
cooperatively purchase or acquire supplies, equipment and materials under 
future contracts and to utilize each other’s contracts as needs arise; and  
 

WHEREAS, U.S. Communities is a nonprofit instrumentality of 
governmental agencies that assists public agencies in reducing the cost of 
purchased goods by pooling the purchasing power of public agencies 
nationwide by having participating lead public agencies competitively solicit 
contracts for quality products and allowing other participating public agencies 
to purchase supplies, equipment and materials from these competitively 
solicited contracts on the terms and conditions set forth in said contracts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Purchasing Agent has recommended to the City 

Manager and City Council that the City of Kirkland become a fully participating 
public ageny in the U.S. Communities program under the terms and conditions 
set forth in the attached Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement, which is incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of 
Kirkland as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Participation by the City of Kirkland in the U.S. 
Communities program under the Master Intergovernmental Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement attached to the original of this resolution as Exhibit A 
and by this reference incorporated herein is approved.   
 
 Section   2.  The Purchasing Agent and Buyer are authorized to 
make purchases through competitively solicited U.S. Communities contracts 
when it is determined to be in the best interest of the City of Kirkland to do so. 
 
 Passed by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in open meeting 
this _____ day of __________, 2006. 
 
 Signed in authentication thereof this ____ day of __________, 2006.  
 
 
    ____________________________ 
    MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Other Business.

Item #:  8. i. (2). 



 
MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT  

This agreement is made between certain government agencies that execute a Lead Public Agency 
Certificate ("Lead Public Agencies") to be appended and made a part hereof and other government agencies 
("Participating Public Agencies") that agree to terms and conditions hereof through U.S. Communities registration 
to be appended and made a part hereof. 

RECITALS  
     WHEREAS, after a competitive bidding and selection process by Lead Public Agencies, a number of Vendors 
have entered into Master Agreements to provide a variety of goods, products and services based on national volumes 
(herein "Products"); 
     WHEREAS, Master Agreements are made available by Lead Public Agencies through U.S. Communities and 
provide that Participating Public Agencies may purchase Products on the same terms, conditions and pricing as the 
Lead Public Agency, subject to any applicable local purchasing ordinances and the laws of the State of purchase;  
     WHEREAS, the parties desire to comply with the requirements and formalities of the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act as may be applicable to the laws of the State of purchase;  
     WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to conserve resources and reduce procurement cost;  
     WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to improve the efficiency, effectiveness and economy of the procurement of 
necessary Products;  
     NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this agreement, and of the mutual 
benefits to result, the parties agree as follows:  
     1. That each party will facilitate the cooperative procurement of Products.  
     2. That the procurement of Products subject to this agreement shall be conducted in accordance with and subject to 
the relevant statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations that govern each party's procurement practices.  
     3. That the cooperative use of bids obtained by a party to this agreement shall be in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the bid, except as modification of those terms and conditions is otherwise allowed or required by 
applicable law.  
     4. That the Lead Public Agencies will make available, upon reasonable request and subject to convenience, 
information which may assist in improving the effectiveness, efficiency and economy of Participating Public 
Agencies procurement of Products.  
     5. That a procuring party will make timely payments to the Vendor for Products received in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the procurement. Payment for Products and inspections and acceptance of Products ordered 
by the procuring party shall be the exclusive obligation of such procuring party. Disputes between procuring party and 
Vendor are to be resolved in accord with the law and venue rules of the State of purchase.  
     6. The procuring party shall not use this agreement as a method for obtaining additional concessions or reduced 
prices for similar products or services.  
     7. The procuring party shall be responsible for the ordering of Products under this agreement. A non-procuring 
party shall not be liable in any fashion for any violation by a procuring party, and the procuring party shall hold non-
procuring party harmless from any liability that may arise from action or inaction of the procuring party.  
     8. The exercise of any rights or remedies by the procuring party shall be the exclusive obligation of such procuring 
party.  
     9. This agreement shall remain in effect until termination by a party giving 30 days written notice to U.S. 
Communities at 2175 N. California Blvd., Suite 550, Walnut Creek, CA 94596.  
     10. This agreement shall take effect after execution of the Lead Public Agency Certificate or Participating Public 
Agency Registration, as applicable.    



LEAD PUBLIC AGENCY CERTIFICATE 
 
I hereby acknowledge, on behalf of the County of Los Angeles, CA (the “Lead Public Agency”) that, I 
have read and agree to the general terms and conditions set forth in the enclosed Master Intergovernmental 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (MICPA) regulating the use of the Master Agreements and purchase of 
Products that from time to time are made available by Lead Public Agency to Participating Public Agencies 
nationwide through U.S. Communities. Copies of Master Agreements and any amendments thereto made 
available by Lead Public Agency will be provided to Vendors and U.S. Communities to facilitate use by 
Participating Public Agencies.   

 
 I understand that the purchase of one or more Products under the provisions of the MICPA is at the sole 
and complete discretion of the Participating Public Agency. 

                                                                                               

                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LEAD PUBLIC AGENCY CERTIFICATE 
 
I hereby acknowledge, on behalf of the County of Fairfax, Virginia (the “Lead Public Agency”) that, I have 
read and agree to the general terms and conditions set forth in the enclosed Master Intergovernmental 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (MICPA) regulating the use of the Master Agreements and purchase of 
Products that from time to time are made available by Lead Public Agency to Participating Public Agencies 
nationwide through U.S. Communities. Copies of Master Agreements and any amendments thereto made 
available by Lead Public Agency will be provided to Vendors and U.S. Communities to facilitate use by 
Participating Public Agencies.   

 
 I understand that the purchase of one or more Products under the provisions of the MICPA is at the sole 
and complete discretion of the Participating Public Agency. 

 

         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
LEAD PUBLIC AGENCY CERTIFICATE 

 
I hereby acknowledge, on behalf of the County of Allegheny, Pennsylvania (the “Lead Public Agency”) 
that, I have read and agree to the general terms and conditions set forth in the enclosed Master 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (MICPA) regulating the use of the Master 
Agreements and purchase of Products that from time to time are made available by Lead Public Agency to 
Participating Public Agencies nationwide through U.S. Communities. Copies of Master Agreements and 
any amendments thereto made available by Lead Public Agency will be provided to Vendors and U.S. 
Communities to facilitate use by Participating Public Agencies.   

 
 I understand that the purchase of one or more Products under the provisions of the MICPA is at the sole 
and complete discretion of the Participating Public Agency. 
 
 

 
        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LEAD PUBLIC AGENCY CERTIFICATE 

I hereby acknowledge, on behalf of USD 259, Wichita Public Schools, KS (the "Lead Public Agency") that 
I have read and agree to the general terms and conditions set forth in the enclosed Master 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchas'mg Agreement (MICPA) regulating the use of the hfaster 
Agreements and purchase of Products that from time to time are made available by Lead Public Agency to 
Participating Public Agencies nationwide through U.S. Communities. Copies of Master Agreements and 
any amendments thereto made available by Lead Public Agency will be provided to Vendors and U.S. 
Communities to facilitate use by Participating Public Agencies. 

I understand that the purchase of one or more Products under the provisions of the MICPA is at the sole 
and complete discretion of the Participating Public Agency. 

Darren C.  Muci 
RFP 02-04-011 BOE Approval 1 /13/03 

Name and Title of Signer 

Date 



 CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 FIFTH AVENUE KIRKLAND, WASHINGTON 98033-6189   425.587.3030 

 
CITY ATTORNEY'S OFFICE  

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: Robin S. Jenkinson, City Attorney 
 
Date: February 22, 2006 
 
Subject: Salary Commission/Housekeeping Ordinance 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That the Council pass the attached housekeeping ordinance which would amend Section 3.08.010 of the 
Kirkland Municipal Code to reflect that the salaries of the Mayor and City Council are now established by the 
Salary Commission. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:   
 
This is a housekeeping matter.  Section 3.08.010 of the Kirkland Municipal Code, “Salaries-Elected officials 
(councilmember and mayor),” reflects the Council Members’ and Mayor’s salaries as they were last adjusted in 
1996, when the salaries were set by the City Council itself.   
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:  
 
In 2001, the state Legislature enacted RCW 35.21.015 which expressly authorized cities to create independent 
salary commissions to set salaries for elected officials.  In 2005, the City Council passed Ordinance No. 4022 
which established a Salary Commission for Kirkland.    Under Kirkland Municipal Code Chapter 3.11, the Salary 
Commission is responsible for annually reviewing and periodically adjusting the salaries of the Mayor and City 
Council.  As provided in RCW 35.21.015(1)(3), any adjustment in salary is filed with the City Clerk and becomes 
effective without any action of the City Council.  In January 2006, following a review of comparative salaries and a 
public meeting, the Salary Commission adopted a resolution adjusting the salaries and filed the Resolution with 
the City Clerk.  The ordinance also updates Section 3.08.020 to show that the City now has a biennial, rather 
than an annual budget.  The attached ordinance is necessary to amend the Kirkland Municipal Code to show both 
these changes.  
 
 Attachment 
 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Other Business

Item #:  8. i. (3).



ORDINANCE 4041
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO SALARIES OF 
ELECTED OFFICIALS AND OTHER OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES; AND 
AMENDING SECTIONS 3.08.010 AND 3.08.020 OF THE KIRKLAND 
MUNICIPAL CODE. 
 
 The City Council of the City of Kirkland do ordain as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Section 3.08.010 of the Kirkland Municipal Code is hereby 
amdended to read as follows: 
 

3.08.010 Salaries—Elected officials (councilmember, mayor). 
The salaries for elected officials are established to be as follows: shall be as 

established by the Salary Commission as set forth in Chapter 3.11 of the 
Kirkland Municipal Code. 

Councilmember: $650.00 per month. 
The councilmember serving as mayor shall, while so serving, receive an 

additional $300.00 per month. 
The individuals holding the offices for which salaries are herein established 

shall be entitled to receive such salaries commencing with the month of 
January 1996. Until said date, elected officials shall continue to receive the 
salaries established by Ordinance No. 3025 adopted June 15, 1987. 

In addition to the stated salary, council members may to the same extent as 
other general city employees participate in any life insurance program, as may 
be established by the city for city employees (other than by collective 
bargaining contract).  

 
 Section 2.  Section 3.08.020 of the Kirkland Municipal Code is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 
 

3.08.020 Salaries—Other officers and employees. 
For all other city offices and positions as may, from time to time, be 

established (including but not by way of limitation the city manager, the 
director of administrative services, and the director of finance, the salaries shall 
be as set forth in the annual biennial budget as adopted for each year.  
 
 Section 3.  This ordinance shall be in force and effect five days from 
and after its passage by the Kirkland City Council and publication, as required 
by law. 
 
 Passed by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in open meeting 
this _____ day of ______________, 2006. 
 
  

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Other Business

Item #:  8. i. (3).



 
Signed in authentication thereof this _____ day of 

________________, 2006. 
 
 
 
    ____________________________ 
    MAYOR 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
Ord\Salaries – Elected Officials 

-2- 

                                                O-4041



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Public Works 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3800 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: David Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: Tim Llewellyn, Fleet Supervisor 
 Daryl Grigsby, Public Works Director 
 
Date: February 21, 2006 
 
Subject: SURPLUS EQUIPMENT RENTAL VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT FOR SALE 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the surplus of the Equipment Rental vehicles/equipment 
listed below: 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:   
 
The surplusing of vehicles or equipment which have been replaced with new vehicles or equipment, or no 
longer meet the needs of the City, is consistent with the City’s Equipment Rental Replacement Schedule 
Policy.    
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:   
 
The following equipment has been replaced by new equipment, and if approved for surplusing, will be sold 
in accordance with purchasing guidelines at public auction or to public agencies. 
 

Fleet # Year Make VIN/Serial Number License # Mileage
      
D-04 1991 GMC 5 Yard Dump Truck 1GDK7H1J4MJ511927 36367D 71,480 

D-05 1991 GMC 5 Yard Dump Truck 1GDK7H1J3MJ511868 10328D 67,635 

D-07 1991 GMC 5 Yard Dump Truck 1GDP7H1J8MJ505182 15601D 32,966 

n/a 1991 Swenson Spreader 59299 COK 12308 n/a 

n/a 1991 Swenson Spreader 59300 COK 12309 n/a 

F308 1996 Ford Road Rescue Aid Vehicle 1FDKE30F5VHA13136 23953D 40,376 

F309 1997 Ford Road Rescue Aid Vehicle 1FDKE40F7VHB00658 23988D 82,980 

M-2A 2000 John Deere F1145 Mower n/a n/a n/a 

P85-14 1985 Ford SRT Vehicle  1FDKE301XGHA20199 D36500 n/a 

PU-10 1998 Ford F150 Pickup 1FTRF17Z6WKC04797 26109D 53,951 

S01-01 2001 Dodge RAM 1500 Cargo 2B7HB11Y61K530495 32438D 113,234 

TL-12 1988 Wisconsin Trailer 1W91SE206J1008949 05147D n/a 

TR-03 1990 Case Backhoe 580K (4x2) JJG0028718 08597D 5,631 hrs 

TR-08 1994 Kubota 570B Tractor  81630-22007858 n/a n/a 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Other Business

Item #:  8. i. (4).



 
For clarification purposes, D-04, D-05, and D-07 are GMC 5 Yard Dump Trucks utilized by Public Works.  
They are plumbed with hydraulics for snow plows, and each has an associated snow plow which is to be 
sold with the vehicle.  The 2 Swenson spreaders are snow and ice control sand spreaders which fit on the 
dump trucks.  They will also be sold with the vehicles.  D-04, D-05, and D-07 (and associated snow 
equipment) were retained 3 years beyond their anticipated useful life of 12 years.  All were replaced with 5 
yard dump trucks and associated snow equipment through the use of a State contract. 
 
F308 and F309 are both Ford Road Rescue Aid Cars utilized by Fire Operations.  These vehicles were 
retained 2 and 1 years beyond their anticipated useful life of 8 years. 
 
M-2A was a 60" riding mower used by Parks Maintenance.  It was retained 2 years beyond it anticipated 
useful life of 3 years. 
  
P85-14 was a retired 1985 Fire aid vehicle which was modified for use by the Police Department's Special 
Response Team.  It was replaced with a service package for a Police Command Vehicle.   
 
PU-10 was a pickup truck utilized by Parks Maintenance.  It achieved its anticipated useful life of 8 years. 
  
S01-01 was a specially modified cargo van used for Prisoner Transport by the Police Department.  It 
achieved its anticipated useful life of 5 years. 
 
TL-12 was a large trailer typically used for transporting backhoes or similar heavy equipment.  It was 
retained 6 years beyond its anticipated useful life of 12 years. 
 
TR-03 is a backhoe used by Public Works Maintenance.  It was retained 6 years beyond it anticipated useful 
life of 10 years. 
 
TR-08 is a medium sized tractor used by Parks Maintenance.  It was retained 2 years beyond it anticipated 
useful life of 10 years. 
 
The City’s Equipment Rental Replacement Schedule is used as a guideline for vehicle replacement and 
amortization of equipment.  Fleet Management staff evaluates each vehicle and determines the actual 
replacement date according to vehicle condition. 
 
 
 
Cc:  John Hopfauf, Street Manager 

 



 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Planning and Community Development Department 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587-3225 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: February 23, 2006 
 
To: David Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: Paul Stewart, AICP, Deputy Planning Director 
 Stacy Clauson, Associate Planner 
 
Subject: 118TH AVENUE NE RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION, FILE NO. VAC05-00003 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Department of Planning and Community Development recommends that City Council continue 
the Public Hearing to a date to be determined at the March 7th City Council meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:  
 
LMJ Enterprises Limited Partnership has filed a petition to vacate an 18,128 square foot portion of 
118th Avenue NE.  The Public Hearing on the proposed street vacation commenced on January 3, 
2006.  At the public hearing, staff provided information to the City Council about concerns that had 
been expressed by the applicant about the valuation of the property, based on recent appraisals 
completed on contiguous LMJ Properties.  In an effort to resolve these differences, Garrett Waldner 
of Washington Appraisal Services, Inc., who completed the appraisal for the street vacation, and 
the applicant’s appraiser, Kirby Smith, MAI, of Kirby Smith and Associates, Inc., discussed the 
appraisals, but were unable to resolve their differences.  Staff noted that Garrett Waldner of 
Washington Appraisal Service, Inc. continued to support a fair market value of $30 per square foot 
and that the compensation information contained in the Resolution of Intent to Vacate presented to 
City Council was based on this recommended valuation. 
 
At the Public Hearing, Tod Johnson, the representative of the applicant, provided both written and 
oral testimony addressing the valuation, requesting that the City Council approve the vacation with 
a modified valuation or alternatively, allow additional review of the appraisal work.   
 
At the conclusion of the public testimony and Council discussion of the street vacation, staff 
recommended that the public hearing be continued to allow for additional review of the appraisals 
to be completed.  City Council continued the Public Hearing to the February 7, 2006 meeting and 
directed staff to complete additional review of the appraisal work.   
 
Staff and the applicant have come to agreement on a process to be used for review of the 
appraisal work.  A third-party review appraiser will be retained to evaluate the comparables used 
and the assumptions made in the existing appraisals and provide an opinion on the per square 
foot value of the property to be vacated.  In response to a request by staff, City Council continued 
the Public Hearing to the March 7, 2006 meeting to allow time for this work to be completed.   

H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Planning\Public Hearing\118th Avenue NE Right-of-Way Vacation\1_Staff Memo.doc 2.28.2006 rev050101sjc 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Public Hearings

Item #:  9.a.

http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/


 
In the interim, staff and the applicant have selected a review appraiser, Chuck Munson of CJM 
Investment Property Advisors.  Staff has met with Mr. Munson, who has advised that the current 
appraisal completed by Kirby Smith, MAI, of Kirby Smith and Associates, Inc. does not work for the 
purposes of doing a review assessment since it does not appraise the property proposed to be 
vacated.  Mr. Munson has noted that for a review appraisal to be completed, the existing 
appraisals need to be of the same property. 
 
Staff will be discussing this situation with the applicant and will have additional information 
available for City Council at the March 7th hearing date. 
 

H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Planning\Public Hearing\118th Avenue NE Right-of-Way Vacation\1_Staff Memo.doc 2.28.2006 rev050101sjc 



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Planning and Community Development Department
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3225 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us

MEMORANDUM 

Date: February 23, 2006 

To: David Ramsay, City Manager 

From: Paul Stewart, Deputy Planning Director 
Eric Shields, Planning Director 

Subject: Adoption of Planning Work Program (File No. CC-99-84) 
Response Letter to Sharon Daniels

Recommendation
1. Approve the attached resolution adopting the 2006-2008 Planning Work Program 
2. Authorize response letter to Sharon Daniels regarding her private amendment request 

Background

Planning Work Program
The Planning Work Program establishes the tasks, staffing and schedule for the major long range 
planning projects.  The majority of the work program tasks reflect those projects that will be 
addressed by the Planning Commission.  Other long range tasks are noted to indicate the general 
staffing allocation targeted for 2006.  Attached is the resolution adopting the work program. 

The work program was reviewed by the Planning Commission at their January 12th 2006 retreat 
and again on January 26.  The proposed work program was presented to the City Council at the 
joint meeting between the Council and the Planning Commission on February 15th. Following 
Council action to adopt the work program, we will distribute it to the Houghton Community 
Council, Planning Commission, Transportation Commission, Park Board, Chamber of Commerce 
and Neighborhood Associations. 

Letter from Sharon Daniels
Attachment 1 is a letter from Sharon Daniels regarding her private amendment request.  Her 
request was to amend the Comprehensive Plan and zoning to increase the density from RS 35 for 
property located at 10454 Forbes Creek Drive (See Attachment 2).  In February and March, 2005, 
her request was part of five private amendment requests that went through the Threshold 
Determination process whereby the requests were evaluated to determine if they should be 
considered further. 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: Unfinished Business

Item #:  10. a.



Memo to David Ramsay 
February 23, 2006 
Page 2 of 2 

The Planning Commission reviewed her request and recommended that this request should 
proceed to a full review in 2006.  The other private amendment request that was recommended 
for further consideration was for the Gordon Hart property in the northeast corner of the Totem 
Lake Neighborhood (TL-9).  The Council reviewed the Commission’s recommendation and 
determined that both of these requests should be considered in 2006. 

The Planning Work Program calls for these two private amendment requests to be reviewed along 
with the other Comprehensive Plan amendments scheduled to begin in June, 2006 with action to 
occur in November or December.  Since the plan can only be amended once per year, these two 
requests track with the other plan amendments.  Attachment 3 is a letter from the Mayor to Ms. 
Daniels explaining the timing and schedule for the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments 
and her individual private amendment request. 

Cc:  Sharon Daniels, 10454 Forbes Creek Drive, Kirkland, WA  98033 
       File: CC-99-84 

H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Planning\Unfinished Business\Planning Work Program\1_Staff Memo.doc 2.28.2006 rev050101sjc







March 8, 2006       DRAFT

Sharon Daniels 
10454 Forbes Creek Drive 
Kirkland, WA  98033 

Dear Ms. Daniels: 

Thank you for your letter dated February 2, 2006 regarding your private amendment request to change the 
zoning on your property on Forbes Creek Drive.  In your letter you expressed concern on the amount of 
time it has taken to process this amendment and request it be considered sooner this year rather than 
later.  You also questioned why the south side of Forbes Creek Drive was rezoned in 1999 and not the 
north side where your property is located. 

In response to the timing of your proposed amendment, the Planning Commission and City Council 
reviewed the request as part of the Threshold Determination process in February and March, 2005.  At 
that time the Planning Commission recommended that the request had merit and should be considered 
either in 2006 or as part of the Juanita Neighborhood Plan with the preference to consider it in 2006.  The 
Council approved the request to consider it in 2006 along with one other request (out of five submitted). 

Your request involves both a possible change in zoning and in the Comprehensive Plan.  State law says 
that the City can only amend the Comprehensive Plan once per year and this occurs in November or 
December.  Your request would be considered along with other potential amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan.  We acknowledge that the timing can be frustrating, however requests for changes to 
zoning and to the Comprehensive Plan are important and need to carefully evaluated, particularly when 
there are environmentally sensitive areas. 

You may want to check with the Planning Department regarding rezones on the south side of Forbes Creek 
Drive.  It is our understanding that there were no rezones in 1999 in this area.  For further information you 
can contact Teresa Swan, Senior Planner at 425-587-3258 or tswan@ci.kirkland.wa.us.

Sincerely,
Kirkland City Council 

James L. Lauinger 
Mayor

Cc: Paul Stewart, Deputy Planning Director 
 Teresa Swan, Senior Planner 



W\PL\RES95-30/8-3-99/JS:ct 

RESOLUTION R- 4559

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND PERTAINING TO THE PLANNING 
WORK PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, the Kirkland City Council and the Kirkland Planning Commission met on February 7, 
2006, to discuss the proposed planning work program tasks and to set priorities; and 

WHEREAS, at that meetings and subsequent thereto, the City Council established the rank order 
priority and schedule for the tasks shown on the Planning Work Program; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Kirkland as follows: 

Section 1.  The adopted Planning Work Program for the City of Kirkland shall be established as shown 
on Exhibit A to this resolution. 

Section 2.  This adopted Planning Work Program shall be used by the City staff and Planning 
Commission in scheduling work tasks and meeting and hearing calendars. 

Section 3.  A copy of this resolution shall be distributed to the Planning Commission, Parks Board, 
Transportation Commission, Neighborhood Associations, the Chamber of Commerce and Houghton 
Community Council. 

PASSED by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in open meeting this 7th day of March, 2006. 

 SIGNED IN AUTHENTICATION thereof this _______ day of March, 2006. 

 Mayor 

Attest:

City Clerk 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda:  Unfinished Business

Item #:  10.a. 







 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  (425) 587-3000 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager 
 
From: Daryl Grigsby, Public Works Director 
 Thang Nguyen, Transportation Engineer  
 David Godfrey P.E., Transportation Engineering Manager 
  
Date: February 23, 2006 
 
Subject: Traffic Concurrency Update 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
It is recommended that Council direct staff to implement a short term update to the concurrency 
methodology as recommended by the Transportation Commission and plan for a more major review and 
update to coincide with the next Comprehensive Plan update.  
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff provided Council with a reading file item dated February 1 (Attachment 1) that indicated we are 
approaching concurrency targets for the northwest and northeast subareas.  At their February 7 meeting, 
Council directed staff to discuss the situation further with both the Transportation and Planning 
Commissions and recommend changes to the Council.  This memo provides an update on work that has 
been done since the Council’s February 7 meeting. 
 
Review of the issue 
Table 1 shows where we are relative to the concurrency standards in the Comprehensive Plan.  A 
comparison of Column 3 with Column 1 illustrates how the subarea average is at the standard and 
Columns 5 and 6 can be compared to see where we are relative to our maximum V/C ratio standard.   
 
Table 1.  Concurrency Status Summary 

Subarea 

(1) 
Current  LOS 
Standard in the 
Comprehensive 
Plan 

(2) 
Current 
Condition  
(based on 
2004 Traffic 
Counts) 

(3) 
 2011 forecast 
with projects 
that have 
passed traffic 
concurrency 

(4) 
Status 

(5) 
Current Highest 
Intersection V/C in each 
Subarea (2011 with 
Development Projects 
Currently Under Review) 

(6) 
Number of 
Intersections 
Exceeding 
1.40 

Southwest 0.89 0.70 0.80 Ok 1.15 None 
Northwest 0.89 0.78 0.89 Ok 1.03 None 
Northeast 0.87 0.71 0.87 Ok 1.29 None 
East 1.05 0.92 1.00 Ok 1.16 None 

 
Level of Service ()LOS) values based on current traffic counts (Column 2) are well below our adopted LOS 
standards.  However, when considering developments that have passed concurrency (including the Totem 
Lake Mall redevelopment anticipated to be completed in 2011), the forecast LOS for the northwest and 
northeast subareas (Column 3) closely approaches the adopted limits (Column 1).  This means that 
proposed developments could exceed the current City’s LOS standards limit and fail their traffic 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: Unfinished Business

Item #:  10. b.



Memorandum to Dave Ramsay 
February 23, 2006 
Page 2 

 

concurrency test.  Attachment 1 includes more details about what options developers have when they fail 
the concurrency test. 
 
We are reaching our LOS standards because developments in the Totem Lake area (notably the Totem 
Lake Mall and Evergreen Hospital) are occurring more rapidly than was forecast in the Comprehensive 
Plan.  Also, some developments are larger than what was included in the plan.  For example, the forecast 
of land use at the Totem Lake Mall was smaller than what was actually proposed.   
 
Options 
As outlined in our February 1 memo, there are three options that could be taken: 
 

1. Make no changes.  This is a viable alternative based on the notion that concurrency is working 
the way it is designed to work; helping to spread the impacts of growth over time and to make sure 
that land use development and construction of capacity facilities keep pace with one another.  
Land use development is happening faster than forecasted and so concurrency is slowing the pace 
of development.  Therefore, developers that still want to move forward have to make special 
considerations. 

 
2. Make changes as part of a Comprehensive Plan update.  This would give the most 

flexibility in the type of changes to be considered and could include a change in concurrency 
targets and/or changes in methodology.  By law, changes to the Comprehensive Plan may take 
place only once per year.  The process for a Comprehensive Plan change is quite lengthy and our 
annual change usually covers a number of amendments beyond vehicular level of service.  The 
Planning Department usually coordinates a Comprehensive Plan update each year and one is 
scheduled for this fall. 

 
3. Make changes that do not require a Comprehensive Plan update.  An option that does 

not require a change to the Comprehensive Plan would change the way concurrency impacts are 
calculated.  Specifically, when a development is checked for concurrency, we estimate the traffic 
impacts of the development under consideration in the build out year, plus the traffic from all the 
other projects that are approved but not yet built, plus the background street traffic that would 
occur in the build out year, as illustrated in Figure 1.  The last two components; traffic from 
projects approved but not yet built and the background street traffic (boxes 2 and 3 in Figure 1) 
are inflated at 2% per year to account for normal growth from the current year to the build out year 
of the project being tested.  The 2% growth factor was established when we created our 
concurrency system in 1997 and at that time it accurately reflected trends in traffic growth.  The 
rate of background growth was determined by analyzing growth in traffic volumes in Kirkland.  If a 
lower rate was used, the impacts, represented by box 4 of Figure 1 would be less and there would 
be more room between the standards and the forecasted LOS in the build out year.   

 
Would Option 3 make a difference? 
As described in the February 1 reading file memo, on January 25, the Transportation Commission was 
briefed on the concurrency situation.  They suggested that staff evaluate a) if there was a technical basis 
for lowering the growth rate (option 3 above) and b) if it were lowered, what difference such an adjustment 
would make. 



Memorandum to Dave Ramsay 
February 23, 2006 
Page 3 

 
Following that recommendation, staff re-evaluated the rate at which traffic is growing and have found that a 
1% rate is more accurate than the 2% rate.  Figure 2 illustrates the concept of screenlines and volume 
trends.  The concurrency test for the analysis of the Totem Lake Mall  was re-run and we found that the 1% 
rate gives additional space between the target and the LOS forecast at the Mall build out.  The results are 

 1% 

 
 

Figure 1.  Concurrency test process and growth factors 

We use a growth factor to adjust 
these volumes upward to account 
for traffic growth between current 
year and the build out year of the 
project being tested. 

These volumes 
are forecast for 
the build out 
year of the 
project being 
tested.  They 
need no 
adjustment. 
 

LOS is computed 
using these volumes 
and is compared to the 
standard.  This is the 
concurrency test. 
 

 

shown in Table 2.  The difference between growth rates is shown in the sub columns of column 3.  The left 
column shows the subarea averages with a 2% growth rate, the right column shows the averages with a
rate.  The values on the right are smaller indicating that changing the growth rate would increase the 
difference between the target (column 1) and the forecast LOS. (column 3). 
 
Figure 2.  Screenlines and volume trends 

 
 

+ =
Build out year 
traffic from the 
development 
being tested. 

+

Background 
Traffic counts 
to account for 
all other traffic 
not accounted 
for in boxes 1 
and 2. 

Traffic from 
other 
developments 
that have been 
approved but 
have not been 
built. 

Sum of traffic at 
signalized intersections 
that accounts for all 
traffic in the project 
build out year. 

1 3 4 

of 
lines in the Totem Lake area.  Traffic 

volumes are measured on the streets that 
are “cut” by the screenline,  Averaging 
volume trends across screenlines gives a 
clearer picture of trends throughout an 
area than does measuring volumes on 
individual streets. 
 
For each of the four subareas of the city 
(Northwest, Northeast, southwest and east) 
average growth across east-west and north-
south screenlines is less than 1% between 
1996 and 2005. 

2

The heavy lines represent examples 
screen



Memorandum to Dave Ramsay 
February 23, 2006 
Page 4 

 

 

Subareas (1) 
Current  

LOS 
Standard 

Ex Current H
(6) 

mber of 
rsections 

Exceeding 
1.40 

Table 2 Concurrency status with 1% and 2% background growth rates 
(2) 
isting 

Condition 
(1/25/2006) 

(3) 
 2011 Forecast with 

Development Projects 
Currently Under 

Review 

(4) 
Status 

(5) 
ighest Intersection V/C in each 

Subarea  
 

Nu
Inte

  

 

With 2% 
growth 

rate 

With 1% 
growth 

rate 

 Existing Cond
(1/25/2006) 

 Development 
Projects Currently Under 

 ition 2011 with

Review 
Southwest 0.89 0.70 0.80 0.79 OK 1.01 ne 1.14 No

0.89 0.86 Ok 0.91 1.03 one Northwest 0.89 0.78 N
0.87 0.85 Ok 0.93 1.29 one Northeast 0.87 0.71 N

East 1.05 0.92 1.00 0.99 Ok 1.07 1.16 None 

 
 
The Transportation Commission recommendation 
On February 22, staff brought the findings described above to the Transportation Commission.  While the 
Commission recommended that option 3 be implemented because it more accurately reflects the growth 
rate, they felt that there was more work to be done.  Some members agreed to option 3 only because they 
were assured that a more major update would be forthcoming.  The Commission would like to re-examine 
the policy decisions behind both concurrency and the vehicular level of service section of the 
Comprehensive Plan’s Transportation Element.  Some members of the Transportation Commission have 
not had a chance to thoroughly go through either concurrency methodology or level of service decisions 
that underlie the plan and others would like to review it again. They want to reexamine the purposes of 
concurrency, and what methods might best be used to accomplish those purposes.  They feel that small 
adjustments to the system when things get tight is not a sustainable or prudent course of action.  The 
Commission plans to further evaluate options in connection with the update of the Comprehensive Plan 
this fall.  Also, the Transportation Commission chair and vice-chair plan to attend the Planning 
Commission’s March 9th meeting to discuss the Transportation Commission’s findings on concurrency. 
 
Zoning and Land use changes 
The Council is considering land use and zoning changes for the Par-Mac area as a part of work on the 
Totem Lake neighborhood plan.  Although the changes being considered do not directly effect concurrency, 
land use changes are indirectly tied to concurrency.  One issue under discussion is whether housing should 
be allowed in the Par-Mac area.  Those changes could result in more office development and less housing 
than what is currently planned for in Kirkland’s 2022 land use forecast.  Not allowing housing in the 
designated housing incentive areas would require an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan.  Also, since 
it results in a change in the 2022 land use, the traffic impacts of the change would have not been 
accounted for in the level of service forecasts in the Comprehensive Plan.  The BKR model could be used 
to evaluate the impacts, once a land use scenario is agreed on.  Including the Par-Mac modification, re-
running the 2022 forecast and reviewing concurrency further could all be done as part of the next 
Comprehensive Plan update. 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 
Page 1 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  (425) 587-3000 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
To: m
 
From: Daryl Grigsby, Public Works Director 
 Thang Ngu ans n Engineer  
 David Godfrey P.E., Transportation Engineering Manager 

sa Swa nior P r 

ate: uary 1,  
 

ubject: Traffic Concurrency Update 

 to the standards in the Comprehensive Plan.   

eas closely 

Current  LOS Condition  
(based on 

with projects 
that have 

Intersection V/C in each 
Subarea (2011 with 

Number of 
Intersections 

Dave Ra say, City Manager 

yen, Tr portatio

 Tere n, Se lanne
 
D  Febr  2006

S
 
This memo is an update on levels of service relative
 
Where we are 
LOS values based on current traffic counts are well below our adopted LOS standards.  However, when 
considering developments that have passed concurrency (including the Totem Lake Mall redevelopment 
anticipated to be completed in 2011), the forecast LOS for the northwest and northeast subar
approaches the adopted limits.  This means that proposed developments could exceed the current City’s 
LOS standards limit and fail their traffic concurrency test. 
  
Table 1 summarizes concurrency LOS relative to Comprehensive Plan standards.   
 

Table 1.  Concurrency Status Summary 

(1) 
(2) 
Current 

(3) 
 2011 forecast 

(5) 
Current Highest (6) 

Standard in the 

Subarea 
Comprehensive 
Plan 

2004 Traffic 
Counts) 

passed traffic 
concurrency 

(4) 
Status 

Development Projects 
Currently Under Review) 

Exceeding 
1.4 

Southwest 0.89 0.70 0.80 Ok 1.15 None 
Northwest 0.89 0.78 0.89 Ok 1.03 None 
Northeast 0.87 0.71 0.87 Ok 1.29 None 
East 1.05 0.92 1.00 Ok 1.16 None 

 
Column 3 of Table 1 includes proposed developments that have passed traffic concurrency and are
permitting process or are under construction such as: 
 

• Totem Lake Mall Redevelopment 
• Linbrook Office redeve

 in the 

lopment (near NE 38th/Lake Washington Blvd.) 
• Park Place Phase I redevelopment 
• Northwest University Academic Building 
• Lake Washington Technical College Master Plan Phase I and II Addition 
• 60,000 square foot Marina Suite Office Building  (near NE 53rd/Lake Washington Blvd.) 
• Lee Johnson Dealership Expansion 
• Kirkland Honda Dealership Expansion  



ATTACHMENT 1 
 
Memorandum
February 1, 2
Page 2 

 

• 75 State Street Mixed-use Development (Southwest quadrant of Kirkland Ave/3rd Street) 
• Meriwether Residential Development (near NE 68th/108th NE) 
 Kirkland-Ho land Ave/3rd Street) 
• Mixed use project at old Safeway/Salvation Army site 

 and 97th) 
• Evergreen H

hy are we approa
eaching our cause developments in the Totem Lake area (notably the Totem 
ll and Ever occurring more rapidly than was forecast in the Comprehensive 

some de what was included in the plan.  For example, the forecast 
han what was actually proposed.   

:   

e 

st three options which could be selected by the 
veloper to allow the project to move forward: 

1. The project can be scaled back or TDM strategies hat fewer auto trips are 
generated. 

2. The development can be delayed or phased until more trip c able, eith rough a 
change in standards or through provision of additional capac  o

3. The pr d ctio ional infrastruct e trip 
 
These three op represent the “no action” alternative for y.  This is a viable alternative based on 
the notion that concurrency is working the way it igned to rk; helping t pac
g  time an ake sure  land use pment  constructio capacity faciliti ep 
pace with one another.  Land use development is happening faster than forecasted and so concurrency is 

owing the pace of development.  Therefore, developers that still want to move forward have to make 

hanging the LOS standards, land use assumptions or network assumptions require a change to the 
Com e the Comprehensive Plan may take place only once per year.  The 
proc s ge usually covers a number 
of a n rvice.  Emergency amendments are possible but it is necessary 
to demonstrate a critical need for the change.  There are a wide variety of choices for how and what should 
be c n e would more fully study 
eac f 
 

 to Dave Ramsay 
006 

• tel(northwest quadrant of Kirk

• Juanita Village (remaining phase at Juanita Drive
ospital Updated Master Plan 

 
W ching the standards? 
We are r  LOS standards be
ake Ma green Hospital) are L

Plan.  Also, velopments are larger than 
of land use at the Totem Lake Mall was smaller t
 
Options for change 
Options for addressing the current situation fall into three categories

• project specific options to be taken by project developers  
• change the Comprehensive Plan.  This could include changes to LOS standards, land us

assumptions, and/or network assumptions. 
• change how we calculate project’s impacts. 

 
If a development fails to meet concurrency there are at lea
de
 

 can be used so t

apacity is avail
ity projects by the city
ure to provide mor

er th
r others. 
capacity. oject can inclu

tions 

e constru n of addit

the Cit
is des  wo o spread the im ts of 

rowth over d to m  that develo  and n of es ke

sl
special considerations. 
 
C

pr hensive Plan.  By law, changes to 
es  for a Comprehensive Plan change is quite lengthy and our annual chan
me dments beyond vehicular level of se

ha ged.  They involve different level of complexity.  If this option is chosen w
h o these sub-choices as part of the 2006 Comprehensive Plan Amendment process. 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 
Memorandum to Dave Ramsay 
February 1, 2006 
Page 3 

 

An o io rrency 
imp s  concurrency, we estimate the 
traff m ear, plus the traffic from all the 
othe r ground street traffic that would occur in the 
buil u m the current year to the 
buil u tablished when we created our concurrency system in 
997 and at that time it accurately reflected trends in traffic growth but we believe that this rate may be 

ting the growth rate lead to estimates of future 

 Transportation 
ommission and described possible options.  Our plan is to continue to evaluate the accuracy of the traffic 

lly, to implement it.  We will consider other changes 

 

pt n that does not require a change to the Comprehensive Plan would change the way concu
act  are calculated.  Specifically, when a development is checked for
ic i pacts of the development under consideration in the build out y
r p ojects that are approved but not yet built, plus the back

d o t year.  The last component, the background street traffic, is increased fro
d o t year at 2% per year.  The 2% rate was es

1
too high based on recent traffic trends.  Overestima
congestion that are unrealistically high. 
 
Next steps 
On January 25, we discussed the current concurrency situation with members of the
C
growth rate and if a lower rate can be justified technica
to the LOS system as a part of the 2006 Plan update.  



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  (425) 587-3000 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager 
  
From: Daryl Grigsby, Public Works Director 
 David Godfrey, P.E. Transportation Engineering Manager 
 
Date: February 24, 2006 
 
Subject: Transit Service Alternatives 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Council review the attached information and direct the Transportation 
Commission to return a recommendation for Council’s consideration on the proposed transit 
system changes. 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 
Metro Transit is currently exploring alternatives for service changes in the Bellevue-Kirkland-
Redmond area.  A Sounding Board has been assembled to help with that process and it includes 
six Kirkland residents.  The following material describes the process that Metro has undertaken 
and the alternatives currently under consideration.  The next step in the process is the publication 
of a tabloid which will explain the potential service changes and ask for comments from the public.  
The route proposals that will be in the tabloid are not the final route changes.  They are concepts 
on which people are being asked to comment.  The service change that is being contemplated is 
broad and covers many eastside routes.  This memo focuses on service that operates in Kirkland. 
 
Process 

• Sounding Board is a group of 20 or so citizens assembled by Metro to review potential 
service changes.  It is made up of volunteers from affected communities throughout 
the Eastside, selected to represent riders of different routes and representatives of 
different interest groups.  Six members live within Kirkland or the annexation area. 

• The Sounding Board has been meeting regularly to offer comments to Metro planners 
to help shape concepts for new service. 

• Metro and Sound Transit (ST) staff will prepare draft service concepts that will be sent 
to the public in a tabloid with maps and a mail back questionnaire.  The tabloid is just 
that; a newspaper like publication that outlines proposed changes and is mailed to the 
public.  Public comment may also be made electronically or at open houses. 

• Public will comment.  Sounding Board will help staff interpret the comments. 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: Unfinished Business

Item #:  10. c.



Memorandum to Dave Ramsay 
February 24, 2006 
Page 2 
 

• Metro and Sound Transit (ST) staff will revise plans based on comments.  Metro staff 
is responsible for making recommendation to County Executive for possible 
recommendation to the County Council.  Sound Transit changes will require Board 
approval.  The Sounding Board will comment on the recommendations.    

Timing 
• Sounding Board began meeting last Fall. 
• Sounding Board last met on February 8, and is taking a break until public comment 

has been received. 
• Public outreach will take place during March/April, including 7 open houses. 
• Recommendations complete in April or May. 
• Changes implemented no sooner than February 2007 and will be phased as 

resources become available and capital projects are implemented. 
 
Description of Alternatives to be included in the tabloid  

• Reasons behind change. Basic idea of this change is to improve ridership on the 
eastside by a reorganizing eastside routes.  Duplicative routes between major 
destinations will be reduced, frequency of service between those centers will be 
increased.  Seattle-oriented routes that operate only in the peak hour will be 
deemphasized, routes that operate all-day routes will be more highly emphasized.  
Transfers will be more common and frequency and span of service will increase.  
Metro service will be better coordinated with Sound Transit service. 

• Paying for the changes.  Proposed changes will cost about 30,000 to 40,000 service 
hours in addition to hours that are freed by cutting routes.  This may take several 
years to phase in through normal growth in service hours.  Metro planners are not 
sure about when or if extra resources will be made available. 

• Routes to be cut.  260 (Finn Hill to Seattle via Juanita I-405 and SR 520 see map 2) 
and 277 (Juanita to U-District via Totem Lake, Rose Hill, LWHS via I-405 and SR 520  
see map 1) are peak hour routes in Kirkland that are proposed for cutting to help fund 
the restructure.  In general, Metro reports ridership on these routes as light.  Cutting 
the routes will result in worse service (a transfer is needed and service may not be as 
direct) for riders of these routes.  256 will also be discontinued (see 255 discussion 
below). 

• Route 540  (See grey line, Map 4 page 8) Sound Transit  is proposing to delete service 
between the Kirkland Transit Center and the Bear Creek Park and Ride (Redmond).  
This is due to low ridership on this part of the route.  Ridership is strong from Kirkland 
in, particularly from South Kirkland P&R.  Sound Transit staff is proposing in the 
tabloid that the freed-up hours (and as importantly --- coaches) will go to increase mid-
day and peak frequency to Sound Transit Route 545 which runs between Seattle and 
Redmond via SR 520.  
 
Kirkland staff has been concerned that deletion of the Sound Transit service on the corridor 
may jeopardize Sound transit funding of the capital projects planned for NE 85th Street.  At 
this point it appears that there is no interest on the part of Sound Transit staff to remove 



Memorandum to Dave Ramsay 
February 24, 2006 
Page 3 
 

funding for the capital projects.  Further, design is underway and a term sheet was signed 
between Kirkland and Sound Transit indicating agreement on funding of the projects.  Also, 
Sound Transit has funded other projects in the region that do not have Sound Transit service.  
The proposed Metro service for NE 85th Street will take full advantage of the improvements 
that are to be constructed.  Nevertheless, it is within the privilege of the Sound Transit Board 
to make changes in funding priorities.   
 

• New Route 248 (See pink line, Map 3, page 7) would operate between Avondale and Kirkland 
via Redmond, operating on NE 85th if 540 is deleted from 85th or on 70th or 80th if it is not.  
Note that ST 540 currently provides express service, stopping at just two or three locations on 
Rose Hill.  This replacement route operated by Metro would stop more frequently, providing 
more coverage at the expense of travel time.  Routes 251 and 254 that connect Redmond and 
Kirkland with low frequency and span would be restructured and no longer serve Kirkland. 

• Route 245.  (See orange line Map 4 page 8) 245 would increase in span and frequency of 
service between Kirkland and Overlake, Crossroads, BCC, Eastgate and Factoria.  This has 
been a successful route since its introduction in 2001. 

• Route 255. (See yellow line Map 3 page 7) 255 would increase frequency to every 15 minutes 
both directions in the peak between the new Totem Lake Transit Center and Seattle.  It 
currently runs every 15 minutes only between Downtown Kirkland and Seattle and only in the 
peak direction.  The termination at Totem Lake would begin after the Totem Lake Transit 
Center is constructed.  Also, the route would terminate at Totem Lake rather than at Brickyard 
Park and Ride.  Route 256 would be deleted and its coaches and hours used to improve Route 
255.  Route 256 operates in the peak period between downtown Seattle and Overlake via 
Northup Way and the south Kirkland Park and Ride. It operates eastbound in the morning and 
westbound in the evening.   

• Route 230.  (See light blue line Map 3 page 7) 230 currently is a U shaped route between 
Kingsgate, Rose Hill, Kirkland, Bellevue Crossroads Overlake and Redmond.  It is proposed to 
cut this into two routes.  The western route would run from Bellevue to Brickyard Park and 
Ride, via Kirkland over the current routing except that it would serve the portion of the 
Kingsgate neighborhood no longer served by 255 (see above).  Peak frequency would be 
decreased from 15 minutes to 30 minutes between Bellevue Kirkland transit centers. 

• Route 234.  (See dark blue line Map 3 page 7) 234 routing would move from 108th Avenue to 
Lake Washington Blvd/Lakeview Dr. between Downtown Kirkland and South Kirkland Park and 
Ride. Scheduling would be staggered with 230 to provide a combined 15 minute frequency all 
day between Bellevue and Kirkland and staggered with 255 to provide combined 15 minute 
frequency between Kirkland and Juanita.  Span would be increase to include weekend service 
and to run later on weekdays.  Routes 230 and 234 would serve the same revised path 
between the KTC and South Kirkland park-and-ride lot via State Street, Lakeview Dr., and Lake 
Washington Boulevard NE.  This change is to increase the reliability of the travel time by 
avoiding congestion on Lake Washington Boulevard. 



Memorandum to Dave Ramsay 
February 24, 2006 
Page 4 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Map 1 Route 277 

Map 2 Route 260 



Memorandum to Dave Ramsay 
February 24, 2006 
Page 5 
 
 

• Route 236. (See orange line Map 3 page 7) Unchanged 
• Route 238.  (See brown line Map 3 page 7 Routing changes from Kirkland Transit 

Center to Rose Hill via NE 85th then north on 132nd Ave NE to Kirkland Transit 
Center to Rose Hill via Houghton, Houghton Park and Ride, Lake Washington High 
School then north on 132nd Ave NE.  This connects both High Schools and Lake 
Washington Technical College with one all day route.  Span and frequency are not 
changed.  

• Route 935.  (See green line Map 3 page 7) Changes routing from NE 124th to NE 
116th/NE 112th/120th NE to Totem Lake.  Otherwise unchanged.  Provides 
minimal service to South Par-Mac area (former Costco headquarters area) where 
none exists.  NE 112th has speed humps.  

• Route 244.  (See dashed brown line Map 3 page 7) New route.  Peak hour only 
service between Kenmore and Overlake via Totem Lake.  Routing options are Waynita 
Way or Simonds Road for example.  Replaces 291 peak hour only service between 
Totem Lake and Redmond. 

• NE 128th Street Direct Access ramps.  Routes 236, 238, 255, and 935 would be 
revised to cross I-405 on NE 128th Street to provide access to and from I-405 routes. 

 
The plan to be presented to the public in the tabloid is being finalized based on comments from the 
Sounding Board and based on further consideration by Metro’s Transit Planners. 
 
Kirkland  sounding board members comments 
During the sounding board process, Kirkland members have been active and voiced several opinions 
including: 
 

• Hours and coaches available from trimming of Route 540 should be put into higher 
frequency service on the remaining 540 route. 

• Route 260 has high ridership and it should not be terminated. 
• In general, when routes are deleted, good alternatives must be provided.  For example it 

was not thought that adequate service alternatives were provided to mitigate loss of the 
260 and that increased 540 service would be helpful in mitigating the deletion of Route 
277. 

• Consideration should be given to routing service between NE 116th Street and NE 124th 
Street on both sides of I-405.  On Map 3, note that the light blue, orange and brown 
lines are on the eastside of I-405 while only the green line is on the west side of I-405.  

 
Transportation Commission Review 
The Transportation Commission reviewed this information at their January 25 meeting.  Information was 
presented by Metro service planners and two of the Sounding Board members that live in Kirkland were 
present at the meeting.  The Transportation Commission would like to review the changes when the 
Tabloid is published and to recommend a set of comments to the City Council.  These comments would be 
made during the public review period scheduled for March/April.   



Memorandum to Dave Ramsay 
February 24, 2006 
Page 6 
 
 
Options for Council action 
 
Council may wish to choose from one of the following options for further action: 
 

1. Transmit comments to Metro and/or Sound Transit right away. 
2. Transmit comments to Metro and/or Sound Transit during the comment period after the 

tabloid is published.  
3. Direct the Transportation Commission to return a recommendation on comments after the 

tabloid is published but early enough so that comments can be transmitted from the 
Council to Metro and/or Sound Transit during the comment period. 

 
Staff recommends option 3.  The Transportation Commission schedule allows meeting again with 
the Sounding Board members and with service planners to gain a fuller understanding of the 
issues.  Also, waiting until the tabloid is published helps to clarify exactly what options are being 
proposed. 
 



MAP 3  PROPOSED ROUTES SHOWN IN COLOR. 
Page 7 



MAP 4 PROPOSED ROUTES SHOWN IN COLOR. 
Page 8 

 



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Finance & Administration 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3100 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: David Ramsay , City Manager 
  
From: Capt. Gene Markle, Police 
 Michael Olson, Treasury Manager 
 
Date: February 16, 2006 
 
Subject: False Alarm Program 
 
 
Recommendation:   
 
Council approve the attached ordinance implementing a new false alarm program. 
 
 
Background Discussion:   
 
The Police Department is responsible for responding to a wide variety of alarms such as burglary, robbery, panic, 
and duress alarms.  Of these alarms we have found that on an annual basis more than 99% of the alarms are false 
alarms.  A false alarm is classified as an alarm where no crime is committed or attempted upon a person, real or 
other property, or when no medical emergency exists.  An alarm is presumed to be false if the responding police 
officers do not locate any evidence of an intrusion or commission of an unlawful act or emergency on the premises 
which might have been a legitimate cause for the alarm activation. 
 
Neighboring municipalities such as Redmond, Bellevue, Mercer Island, Medina and others are turning to false alarm 
reduction programs in an effort to maximize the effective use of their personnel.  Redmond for example has seen a 
60% reduction in false alarms over the past five years since going to this type of program.  This program will not 
completely eliminate false alarms, but it will substantially reduce the number of alarms and bring a higher level of 
accountability to alarm companies and the alarm users. 
 
In 2004 officers responded to 2,837 alarms in the City of Kirkland, compared to Redmond’s 887.  Of these 2,837 
alarms 1/10 of 1% are valid alarms.  The average time spent on an alarm is 23 minutes per call – two officers 
equaling approximately 2,175 man hours per year wasted on false alarms.  The loss in staff hours that is the result 
of police responding to these false alarms is the equivalent of one FTE per year or an estimated $67,000 (not 
including benefits). Reducing false alarms will free up officers to respond to legitimate calls and increase their 
availability to protect the lives and property of our citizens. 
 
Currently the City of Kirkland’s program consists of a warning letter for the first false alarm, a $25 fee for the second 
and a $50 fee for the third and additional occurrences.  There are no alarm permit requirements or fees and no 
penalty if the business alarm owner fails to register.  Any business or residence can install an alarm without electrical 
or safety inspections.  Business owners are required to notify the City of Kirkland of an alarm system when obtaining 
a business license.  There are no processes in place for obtaining alarm information from residential alarm users.  
The lack of an alarm permit requirement for residential and business alarm users results in emergency contact 
information which is out-of-date or non-existent.  Warning letters and fees are hard to enforce because of the lack of 
quality information on the alarm owners.  Officers responding to an alarm are unable to make contact with alarm 
owners leaving the business/residence unchecked or unsecured.   

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. a.



 
February 16, 2006 
Page 2 
 
The proposed ordinance change would allow for a progressive fee structure (see chart below); with each additional 
false alarm the fees increase.  Upon reaching the sixth false alarm the alarm owner will be notified that police 
response has been suspended.  Alarm types are identified by the alarm company when they call in the alarm to the 
Police Communications Center.  Suspension of police response will not include robbery, panic, or duress alarms.  
The Police Department will continue to respond to these alarms due to the higher likelihood of life threatening 
circumstances involved.    
 
The false alarm program eliminates the need for officers to respond to chronic burglary alarms where the owner has 
clearly demonstrated the unwillingness to take corrective action.  The City Attorney’s Office, in consultation with the 
Municipal Research & Services Center, has concluded this false alarm program presents no increased risk of liability.  
There would be an appeal process and the ability to have service response reinstated if the alarm owner can show 
corrective action has been taken.  
 
The proposed ordinance includes an annual registration fee of $20.00.  Alarm users will be given the option of 
paying $10 for 2006 as the program will be starting mid-year or to pay $30 to cover the period of July 1, 2006 
through December 31, 2007.  These fees would offset the costs to administer this program.  Residential seniors will 
be exempt from the registration and alarm fees.  All alarm owners, both residential and business would be required 
to have current emergency contact information on file with the City of Kirkland as well as additional contact 
information which would aid the Fire and Police Departments in the event an incident does occur at the address.  
The program administrator will have current owner information to allow for accurate notification of warnings, fines 
and suspensions. 
 

  Registration 
 

Tracking    Schedule of Penalties for False Alarms  
Entity Fee  Period  1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th & Up 
Bellevue -  6 mo.  letter $75 $100 $125 $150 $150 
Bothell -  6 mo.  letter $27 $100 $100 $100 $100 
Federal Way $25  1 year  letter letter letter $50 $50 $100 
Mercer Island -  6 mo.  letter $50 $75 $100 $100 $100 

Redmond $10  1 year  letter $25 $50 $75 $100 
No 

response 

Seattle $40  1 year  125 $125 $125 $125 $125 

No 
response 
for 1 year 

         
 Kirkland (current) -  6 mo.  letter $25 $50 $50 $50 $50 
Kirkland 
(Proposed) $20  1 year  letter $50 $100 $150 $200 

No 
response 

 
 
Proposed Program   
 
The false alarm program sets the course to reduce the incidence of false alarms. 
 
Program elements would include: 
 

• Amending the current false alarm ordinance to address annual registration, false alarm fees and 
management of the program.  The alarm registration requirement would begin July 1, 2006. 

 
• Educating the public on this program with the use of public service announcements, mailings, letters to 

known alarm companies, notices in the Business License Applications, and the use of false alarm warning 
letters generated by the police computer software.  

 



 
February 16, 2006 
Page 3 

• Partnering the Finance and Administration Department with the Police Department in the enforcement and 
adherence to this program to include the use of the police CAD/RMS system to record and track 
registrations and false alarms. 

 
• Hiring a .50 FTE in the Finance and Administration Department Business Licensing Section to administer 

the program.  The position would begin April 1, 2006 in order to prepare the educational materials for the 
public, process the initial mailings and registration forms, and process the alarm permits.  

 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The combination of revenue from alarm registration and false alarm fees will cover the expenses related to 
administering the program.  Since alarm users will be given the option of paying $30 to cover registration fees for 
2006 and 2007 we anticipate that half of the 2007 registration fees will be paid in 2006.  Revenue from false alarm 
fees in the first several months is reduced because of a grace period to educate the public.  Revenues in the second 
year are usually higher as the leniency for false alarms is reduced.  Reduced leniency results in greater compliance 
which, in turn, reduces false alarm fee revenue for the following year.  In the third and following years revenues 
would level off to approximately $38,000.  The revenue and expenses are summarized below: 
 
 
 

 Annual Revenue and Expense Summary (Savings to Police staff & Equipment not included) 
 

 

1st Year (6 mo.) 2nd Year
 3rd Year and 

Ongoing 

Revenues
Registration 20,000                  10,000                20,000 

False Alarm Fees 15,400                  38,750                18,000 

Total Revenues 35,400                  48,750      38,000          

Expenses
Salaries & Benefits 21,083                  29,517      30,992          
Supplies & Postage 5,000                    1,500        1,500            
Software & Training 2,800                    
Total Expenses 28,883                  31,017      32,492          

Net Revenue/Savings to City 6,517                    17,733      5,508             
 



ORDINANCE 4042
 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO FALSE ALARMS, 
REPEALING AND RE-ENACTING CHAPTER 21.35A THE KIRKLAND MUNICIPAL 
CODE, ESTABLISHING STANDARDS FOR ALARM USERS, INCLUDING 
REGISTRATION, FEES, PROBATIONARY PERIODS, AND SUSPENSION OF POLICE 
RESPONSE, AND FIXING A TIME WHEN THE SAME SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE. 
 
 WHEREAS, many businesses and residents within the City have central 
station monitored alarm systems installed on real property under their control; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, such alarms are designed to notify police and emergency 
medical service providers of situations involving threats to personal safety such as 
burglary, robbery, and medical emergencies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, when such alarms are activated, the central station 
monitoring service contacts the Kirkland Police Communications Center, resulting 
in the dispatch of Kirkland Police officers or other emergency personnel; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Communications Center received approximately 2,600 
alarm-related calls for the 2005 calendar year with over 99% being confirmed 
false alarms; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Kirkland Police Department and Fire Department responses 
to such false alarms consume a significant amount of Department resources and 
diverts police officers and other emergency personnel from other important and 
essential duties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 21.35A of the Kirkland Municipal Code presently 
contains provisions related to false alarms, including registration and false alarm 
fees; and 
 
 WHEREAS, existing City standards are dated and have not proven 
effective at reducing the rate of false alarm calls within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, other cities in the Puget Sound region have developed false 
alarm policies which include suspension or termination of police response to 
premises which have repeated false alarm calls and found that such policies can 
result in significant reductions in false alarm reports; and 
  

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. a.



 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that adoption of similar policies within 
the City is likely to reduce false alarm calls within the City, conserve limited police 
resources, and otherwise be in the public interest; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Kirkland do ordain 
as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Chapter 21.35A of the Kirkland Municipal Code is hereby 
repealed and re-enacted to read as follows: 
 

Chapter 21.35A 
POLICE FALSE ALARMS 

 
21.35A.010 Purpose. 

It is the intent of this chapter to reduce the number of false alarms 
occurring within the city and recover city expenses associated with police 
responses to false alarms. 
 
21.35A.020 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this chapter, the following words and terms shall have 
the meaning ascribed to them below unless the context in which they are used 
clearly indicates otherwise: 
 

1. "Alarm Business" shall mean a business operated by any individual, 
partnership, corporation, or other entity selling, leasing, maintaining, 
monitoring, servicing, repairing, altering, replacing, moving, or installing any 
alarm system or causing to be sold, leased, maintained, serviced, repaired, 
altered, replaced, moved, or installed any alarm system on real property. 
 

2. "Alarm Monitoring Company" shall mean a business operated for the 
purpose of monitoring the electronic transmission of an alarm signal when 
activated.   
 

3. "Alarm System" shall mean any system, device, or mechanism which, 
when activated, transmits an electronic signal to a private monitoring company 
or some other telephone number, or emits an audible or visible signal that can 
be heard or seen by persons outside the protected premises, or transmits a 
signal beyond the premises in some other fashion, except any system, device, 
or mechanism primarily protecting a vehicle or a medical alarm. 
 

4. "Alarm User" shall mean the person, firm, partnership, association, 
corporation, company, entity, or organization of any kind that has an alarm 
system installed in or on their premises. 
 

 

- 2 - 

                                                O-4042



5. "Alarmed Premise" shall mean any enclosed or open area and/or any 
portion of an area protected by an alarm system. 
 

6. "Burglary Alarm System" shall mean an alarm system designed or 
used for detection and reporting of an unauthorized entry or attempted 
unauthorized entry upon real property protected by the system. 
 

7. “Communication Center” shall mean the Kirkland Police Department 
Communication Center. 

 
8. "Corrective Action Report" shall mean a report, supplied by the the 

City of Kirkland, requesting the alarm user to detail what steps were taken to 
correct an improperly functioning alarm. 
 

9. "Duress/Panic Alarm System" shall mean an alarm system designed 
or used for alerting police or medical personnel of the need for immediate 
assistance or aid in order to avoid injury, personal physical harm or other 
crimes against a person.  Duress/panic alarms are commonly secondary 
features of burglary alarm systems. 
 

10. “Entity” shall mean alarm user. 
 
11. "False Alarm" shall mean the activation of any burglary, robbery, 

duress/panic alarm system when no crime is being committed or attempted 
upon a person, real, or other property or when no medical emergency exists.  
An alarm shall be presumed to be false if the responding police officers do not 
locate any evidence of an intrusion or commission of an unlawful act or 
emergency on the premises which might have been a legitimate cause for the 
alarm to activate.  This does not include alarms caused by violent acts of 
nature or other extraordinary circumstances not reasonably subject to control 
by the alarm user or alarm business. 
 

12. “Managing Employee” shall mean the Finance and Administration 
licensing employee assigned to administer the false alarm program.  
 

13. "Probationary Period" or “probation” shall mean a six month period 
following any service suspension during which if a false alarm is received the 
alarm user is moved to the next service suspension level. 
 

14. "Robbery Alarm System" shall mean an alarm system designed or 
used for alerting others of a robbery or other crime in progress which involves 
potential serious bodily injury or death. 
 

 

- 3 - 

                                                O-4042



15. "Service Suspension" shall mean a period of time when the Kirkland 
Police Department will not respond to reports of property related alarms.   

 
Three separate service suspension levels exist: 

 
A. Level I - A 90-day service suspension for a site not currently on 

probation which has experienced six or more false alarms in a twelve month 
period.  This is followed by a six month probation period. 
 

B. Level II – A 365 day service suspension for a site which has 
experienced a false alarm while on a Level I six month probationary period.  
This is followed by a six month probation period. 
 

C. Level III - A permanent service suspension for a site which has 
experienced a false alarm during the six month Level II probationary period.   
 

16. "System Subscriber" shall mean a person, corporation, firm, 
partnership, association, company, organization, or other business entity who 
purchased, owns, or contracts for the use of any alarm system. 
 

17. "Verification" shall mean an independent method of authentication, 
used by the alarm monitoring company to determine that a signal from an 
automatic alarm system reflects the true need for an immediate police 
response. 
 
21.35A.030 Administration. 

1. The false alarm program shall be overseen by the managing employee.  
Personnel and volunteers may be assigned to this program as needed and will 
answer to the managing employee regarding the activities associated with this 
program. 
 

2. The managing employee shall coordinate the maintenance of records 
and correspondence necessary to support the false alarm program.   
 

3. The managing employee shall ensure the Communication Center has 
an accurate and current list of alarm system suspension sites at all times.  This 
list will designate the premise name, address, and clearly note the period of 
service suspension and any other pertinent information as determined by the 
managing employee. 
 

4. The managing employee or their supervisor and the Police Chief or 
designee are the only individuals authorized to exercise discretion in 
administration of any portion of this program. 
 

 

- 4 - 

                                                O-4042



21.35A.040 Registration required.  
1. After July 1, 2006, no person or entity shall operate or use an alarm 

system on any premises within the City of Kirkland, without first having 
obtained an alarm permit from the City of Kirkland licensing staff.  A separate 
alarm permit shall be required for each premise protected by an alarm system.  
 

2. The Police Department may not respond to an alarm system for which 
a permit has not been obtained. 
 

3. For the purposes of this section, a person or entity shall be deemed to 
be an operator or user of an alarm system if: 
 
 A. The person or entity controls both the alarm system and the 
premises upon which it is installed; 
 
 B. The person or entity controls the premises and is the 
subscriber, client or tenant of the alarm system provider; or 
 
 C. The person or entity is the system subscriber or alarm user. 
 

4. All persons required to obtain a permit must complete an application 
on a form approved by the licensing staff and pay the fee as determined by this 
Ordinance.  All alarm systems require an annual renewal of registration and 
payment of associated fees.  All applications shall include the following 
information and such other information as may be prescribed by the licensing 
staff: 
 

A. The system subscriber and/or alarm user’s name, addresses 
and telephone number(s); 
 
 B. Names and telephone number(s) of three additional persons 
designated to respond in the event of alarm activation in the absence of the 
system subscriber or alarm user.  Said persons must be capable of providing 
access to the premises and be able to deactivate the alarm; 
 
 C. The electrical inspection permit number for the alarm system; 
 
 D. The name of the alarm business responsible for regular alarm 
system maintenance and the company’s electrical contractor’s license number; 
 
 E. The information required in paragraph 3 and 4 of this 
subsection shall not apply to alarms which are installed by the 
homeowner/tenant; 
 

 

- 5 - 

                                                O-4042



 F. The information required in paragraph 3 of this subsection 
shall not apply to existing alarms or alarms that are installed in multiple-tenant 
buildings. 
 

5. Failure to provide all required information will result in automatic denial 
of the permit and may result in no police response to alarm activations at the 
alarmed premise. 
 
21.35A.050 Registration fees.   

1. In addition to other fees set forth in this chapter, the following fees 
shall be assessed against the alarm user and/or alarm monitoring company by 
the City: 
 
  Initial alarm registration  $20.00 
  Annual renewal of alarm  
     registration   $20.00 
 

2. All fees shall be collected by the Department of Finance and 
Administration licensing staff. 
 
21.35A.060 False Alarm Fees.   

Within a twelve month period the following false alarm fees will be 
assessed: 

Second False Alarm  $50 
Third False Alarm  $100 
Fourth False Alarm $150 
Fifth False Alarm $200 

 
21.35A.070 Fees - Exemptions.   

The following persons shall be exempt from fees imposed under KMC 
Sections 21.35A.050 and 21.35A.060: 

 
Persons over the age of 62 that reside within alarmed premises where no 

business activities are conducted are exempt from the fees imposed by this 
chapter. 
 
21.35A.080 Failure to Pay Fees.   

Failure by any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, company 
or organization to pay any fees imposed under this chapter shall result in a 
service suspension until the fee is paid.  Payment must be made to the City of 
Kirkland licensing staff within 15 business days of the postmark date of the 
notice to pay that was mailed by the City.  All such notices shall state that 
failure to pay the fee will result in service suspension. 
 

 

- 6 - 

                                                O-4042



21.35A.090 Corrective Action. 
1.  After the first false alarm during a twelve month period a letter shall be 

mailed to the alarm user detailing the false alarm program requirements and 
fees. 
 

2. After the second false alarm during a twelve month period a reminder 
letter detailing the false alarm program requirements and an invoice for $50 
shall be mailed to the alarm user. 
 

3. After the third false alarm during a twelve-month period, a Corrective 
Action Report will be provided to the alarm user by the licensing staff along 
with an invoice for $100.  Failure by the alarm user to respond to the 
Corrective Action Report within 15 business days from the date of the 
postmark on the notice sent by the City will result in a service suspension until 
such time as the fee and Corrective Action Report response is received.  The 
managing employee will notify the Police Communications Center of the service 
suspension and effective dates. 
 

4. After the fourth false alarm during a twelve month period a reminder 
letter detailing the false alarm program requirements and an invoice for $150 
shall be mailed to the alarm user. 
 

5. After the fifth false alarm during a twelve month period, a letter along 
with an invoice for $200 shall be delivered by certified mail to the alarm user 
informing them that service suspension will occur if there is one more false 
alarm during the twelve month period. 

 
6. Following the sixth false alarm in a twelve month period, the managing 

employee or their supervisor, with the approval of the Police Chief or designee, 
will set a service suspension date.   
 
21.35A.100 Service Suspension - Level I.   

The following provisions and procedures shall apply to Level I Service 
Suspensions:   
 

1. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the Police Department 
will not respond to an alarm activation during the ninety-day period beginning 
from the first date of service suspension. 
 

2. The alarm user shall be provided written notice by certified mail of the 
service suspension date prior to implementation of said suspension. 
 

3. The alarm user will be provided a blank Corrective Action Report prior 
to the expiration of the service suspension period.  Failure by the alarm user to 

 

- 7 - 

                                                O-4042



respond to the Corrective Action Report prior to the expiration of the 
suspension period will result in continued service suspension until such time as 
the Corrective Action Report is received by the licensing staff.  The alarm user 
shall be notified of the consequences of failing to submit the Corrective Action 
Report at the time the alarm user is provided the Corrective Action Report. 
 

4. If the Corrective Action Report has not been received by the licensing 
staff prior to the expiration of the ninety-day service suspension the managing 
employee will contact the alarm user to determine the status of the report and 
advise them that service will not be restored until the report is received. 
 

5. Upon the expiration of the ninety-day service suspension, the alarm 
user will be placed on a six month probationary period. 
 
21.35A.110 Service Suspension - Level II.   

The following provisions and procedures shall apply to Level II Service 
Suspensions:   
 

1. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the Police Department 
will not respond to an alarm activation during the 365-day period beginning 
from the first date of service suspension. 
 

2. After the first false alarm while on Level I probation, the managing 
employee or their supervisor with the approval of the Police Chief or designee 
will set a 365-day service suspension. 
  

3. The alarm user shall be provided written notice by certified mail of the 
service suspension date prior to implementation of said suspension. 
 

4. The alarm user will be provided a blank Corrective Action Report prior 
to the expiration of the service suspension period.  Failure by the alarm user to 
respond to the Corrective Action Report prior to expiration of the suspension 
period will result in continued service suspension until such time as the 
Corrective Action Report is received by the licensing staff.  The alarm user shall 
be notified of the consequences of failing to submit the Corrective Action 
Report at the time the alarm user is provided the Corrective Action Report. 
 

5. Prior to the expiration of the 365-day service suspension period, the 
managing employee will verify whether a completed Corrective Action Report 
has been submitted by the alarm user.  If not, the managing employee will 
contact the alarm user to determine the status of the report. 
 

6. Upon the expiration of the 365-day service suspension period, the 
alarm user will be placed on a six-month probationary period. 

 

- 8 - 

                                                O-4042



 
21.35A.120 Service Suspension - Level III.   

The following provisions and procedures shall apply to Level III Service 
Suspensions:  
 

1. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the Police Department 
will not respond to an alarm activation from the first date the permanent 
service suspension goes into effect.   
 

2. After the first false alarm while on Level II probation, the managing 
employee or their supervisor with the approval of the Police Chief or designee 
will set a permanent service suspension date. 
 

3. The alarm user shall be provided written notice by certified mail of the 
permanent service suspension date prior to implementation of said 
suspension. 
 
21.35A.130 Exemptions.   

The managing employee may, in his or her discretion, not include false 
alarm activations generated by a newly installed and registered alarm system 
during the first five business days immediately following the initial installation 
thereof. 
 
21.35A.140 Effect of Service Suspension.   

Suspension of response under this chapter shall apply only to burglary and 
property alarms and shall not apply to any robbery, panic, or duress alarms.  
However, all such alarms shall be counted in determining the total number of 
false alarms received. 
 
21.35A.150 Verification Required.   

No alarm monitoring company or business shall contact the licensing staff 
or the Police Communications Center to report an alarm activation unless a 
verification procedure has been utilized by said company to ascertain whether 
the activation is a false alarm.  Verification shall not be required on robbery, 
duress, or panic alarm activations. 
 

At a minimum, the verification procedure shall consist of: 
1. Attempt by the alarm business or alarm monitoring company to call 

the alarm site to determine if the alarm was accidentally activated by an 
authorized occupant of the building: 
 

2. Calling an emergency contact to determine if there should be an 
individual at the premise at the time the alarm was activated; or 
 

 

- 9 - 

                                                O-4042



3. Audibly or visually monitor the premise utilizing electronic means. 
 
21.35A.160 Administrative Appeals. 

1. An alarm user may appeal the validity of a false alarm determination to 
the City Hearing Examiner.  The request for an appeal must be in writing and 
filed with the City Clerk within 15 business days of the postmark on the notice 
that was sent by the City.  Failure to contest the false alarm determination in 
the required time period shall result in a presumption that the alarm was false.   
 

2. Failure to appear at the hearing set in response to an appeal will result 
in the appellant being responsible for all costs incurred. 
 

3. The appeal hearing shall be before the hearing examiner and a written 
transcript or tape recording of the proceedings shall be kept.  The alarm user 
and the City shall have the right to present written and oral evidence and call 
witnesses.  If the hearing examiner determines that the activation was a valid 
alarm, the hearing examiner shall order the false alarm designation removed 
from the alarm user’s record.  If the false alarm designation is determined to 
be valid, the designation shall be entered upon the alarm user's record and the 
licensing staff shall pursue collection of any penalties or fees.  In either case, 
the hearing examiner shall enter written findings setting forth the basis for his 
or her decision. 
 
21.35A.170 Change of Alarm Business.   

If an alarm user changes the alarm business or alarm monitoring company 
in an effort to remedy false alarms or a service suspension, all response 
services by the Police Department will be reinstated when all fees have been 
paid and the alarm user has re-registered with the City. 
 
21.35A.180 Prohibited Acts.   

No person or entity shall: 
1. Operate or use an alarm system, which emits an audible sound where 

such emission does not automatically cease within fifteen minutes.  Any alarm 
system which does not meet the requirements of this subsection or which, 
because of repeated audible activations, significantly disturbs the peace of the 
neighborhood, shall deemed to be a nuisance.  In those incidents when the 
alarm is declared a nuisance, and no other alternatives exist, the Police 
Department may disable the alarm without prior notice. 
 

2. Use an alarm system to protect more than one licensed business or 
private residence without receiving a separate alarm permit for such business 
or private residence. 
 

 

- 10 - 

                                                O-4042



3. Operate or use any alarm system for which the registration or service 
response has been suspended. 
 

4. Operate or use any alarm system that automatically dials the Police 
Department directly and delivers a pre-recorded message.  The Police 
Department may not respond to an alarm of this type. 
 
 Section 2.  If any provision of this ordinance or its application to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance, or the 
application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
 Section 3.  This ordinance shall be in force and effect five days from 
and after its passage by the Kirkland City Council and publication pursuant to 
Section 1.08.017, Kirkland Municipal Code in the summary form attached to 
the original of this ordinance and by this reference approved by the City 
Council. 
 
 Passed by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in open meeting 
this _____ day of ______________, 2006. 
 
 
 
    ____________________________ 
    MAYOR 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
Ord\False Alarm Ordinance 

 

- 11 - 

                                                O-4042



 
PUBLICATION SUMMARY 

                                         OF ORDINANCE 4042
 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO FALSE ALARMS, 
REPEALING AND RE-ENACTING CHAPTER 21.35A THE KIRKLAND MUNICIPAL 
CODE, ESTABLISHING STANDARDS FOR ALARM USERS, INCLUDING 
REGISTRATION, FEES, PROBATIONARY PERIODS, AND SUSPENSION OF POLICE 
RESPONSE, AND FIXING A TIME WHEN THE SAME SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE.  
 
 SECTION 1. Establishes standards for alarm users, including 
registration, fees, probationary periods, and suspension of police response.  
 
 SECTION 2. Provides a severability clause for the ordinance.   
 
 SECTION 3. Authorizes publication of the ordinance by summary, 
which summary is approved by the City Council pursuant to Section 1.08.017 
Kirkland Municipal Code and establishes the effective date as five days after 
publication of summary. 
 
 The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed without charge to any 
person upon request made to the City Clerk for the City of Kirkland.  The 
Ordinance was passed by the Kirkland City Council at its meeting on the 
_____ day of _____________________, 2006. 
 
 I certify that the foregoing is a summary of Ordinance __________ 
approved by the Kirkland City Council for summary publication. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
    City Clerk 
    Ord\False Alarm pubsum 

 
 
 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. a.



 
CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Planning and Community Development Department 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3225 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: January 23, 2006  
 
To: David Ramsay  
 
From: Eric Shields 
 
Subject: Zoning Code Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 
 
On two recent occasions, issues arose in which there were inconsistencies between zoning regulations and the 
Comprehensive Plan. These incidents prompted Council members to question the overall extent and implications of 
inconsistencies.  This memorandum discusses: 

• The legal authority of the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code; 
• Recent cases where inconsistencies were discovered; and 
• How to avoid further inconsistencies and correct existing inconsistencies. 

 
In preparing this memorandum I have consulted with Robin Jenkinson, City Attorney.  
 
Legal Authority of the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code 
 
The Comprehensive Plan is a document that sets forth the City’s long range (20 year) plan for managing growth.  It 
is a policy document that serves as a guide to other City actions, such as adopting development regulations and 
capital improvement decisions. Growth hearings board and court decisions have ruled that a Comprehensive Plan 
may not be used to directly regulate development unless a provision of a plan is specifically incorporated by 
reference into a zoning regulation. In such cases, where there is a conflict between the Zoning Code and 
Comprehensive Plan, the Zoning Code will prevail. 
 
The Zoning Code establishes regulations that apply to the use and development of private property.  Under the 
Growth Management Act, zoning regulations must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
When Is the Comprehensive Plan Used in Kirkland’s Development Review Process 
 
For developments that merely require administrative approval, such as building permits, the Planning Department 
evaluates applications only for compliance with the Zoning Code and other applicable development regulations, not 
the Comprehensive Plan.  However, for three types of development applications, Kirkland zoning regulations 
specifically require some level of review for consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.  The three types of 
applications are discussed below:  
 

 
 
 

 Page 1 of 5 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. b.



 
 
 

 Page 2 of 5 

Properties Governed by Zoning Map Suffixes   The Kirkland Zoning Map shows a notation (called a suffix) on 
approximately twelve properties.  Most of the properties containing a suffix have already been developed, so there 
are few remaining that will be affected by this method of regulation in the future.  
 
There are four different suffixes, each of which is explained in the legend of the map.  The explanation for each suffix 
includes the following statement: 
 

 Development proposal must be consistent with the appropriate neighborhood plan policies, specifically 
applicable to this property, contained in the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

The explanation for one of the suffixes goes on to state that the development must be processed through Process IIA.  
Another suffix requires approval through Process IIB. Yet another suffix, which applies to only one property, provides 
a restriction on the location of a certain type of land use. An example of a property governed by a suffix is the 
property rezoned to allow expansion of the Honda automobile dealership on NE 85th St. for which the NE 85th St. 
Subarea Plan establishes an extensive list of development standards.  
 
In light of the court and hearing board cases referenced above, enforcement of the applicable neighborhood policies 
through the Zoning Map suffixes could be challenged.  The policies are typically more restrictive than the zoning 
regulations that would otherwise apply. Such a conflict could be interpreted in favor of the zoning regulations.  On the 
other hand, the City might argue that using the policies as regulations is acceptable since the policies are applied to 
specifically identified properties on the Zoning Map. We would certainly be on firmer ground, however, if the policies 
were more explicitly incorporated into the Zoning Code. 
 
Quasi-judicial Land Use Decisions The Zoning Code requires some uses or development proposals to be 
approved using one of several types of quasi judicial processes (e.g. processes I, IIA and IIB).  For each of these 
processes, the Code includes a criterion that allows for some consideration of the Comprehensive Plan.  Specifically, 
the decision maker may approve such an application only upon finding that the application: 
 

 …is consistent with all applicable development regulations and, to the extent that there is no applicable 
development regulation, the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

Design Review Similarly, for applications that require approval by the Design Review Board, the Zoning Code 
directs the DRB to review applications for consistency with design guidelines, design regulations and: 

 
The downtown plan, Juanita Business District Plan, the Totem Lake Neighborhood Plan and goals and 
policies in the North Rose Hill Neighborhood Plan for the North Rose Hill Business District contained in the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 

In light of the Growth Hearings Board and court decisions mentioned above, using the Comprehensive Plan in the 
review of the above types of applications is somewhat problematic.  While decisions indicate that zoning regulations 
may incorporate the Comprehensive Plan by reference, there is still the potential for conflict between the Zoning 
Code and the Comprehensive Plan.  This is particularly problematic when the reference to the Comprehensive Plan 
is very general and implies that the project will be reviewed against City-wide policies rather than just area-specific or 
property-specific policies.  In addition, by referencing the Comprehensive Plan, the zoning regulations mislead the 
public into thinking of the Comprehensive Plan as a regulatory document,    
 
Recent Cases Where There Were Inconsistencies  
 



 
 
 

 Page 3 of 5 

1. Motorcycle Sales In response to an inquiry about locating a motorcycle sales business in the NRH 1 zone, a 
difference in wording between language in the Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan was discovered.  The 
North Rose Hill chapter of the Comprehensive Plan states: “Car and boat dealerships…are prohibited” in the 
NRH 1A subarea. In contrast, within the Zoning Code, a special regulation for the NRH 1A zone prohibits: 
“vehicle or boat sales or rental facilities.”  Clearly, there is a difference in wording that could have and, in 
retrospect, should have been resolved during the drafting of the plan and zoning. At the time, there was little or 
no thought to the consequences of the difference.  
 
(As an aside, I should add that there was also no thought given to the possibility of an indoor vehicle or car sales 
business, so neither the plan nor zoning addressed such a circumstance.  This points to the fact that plans and 
zoning regulations rarely anticipate all situations and so there is constantly the need for interpretation and 
subsequent amendments.)  
 

2. Almond Condos Inconsistencies were also an issue during the Design Review Board (DRB) review of the 
Almond Condominiums also located in North Rose Hill. Two inconsistencies were discussed.   
 
Buffers The first was a difference in the width of a buffer along the boundary of the proposed condominiums 
with adjacent single family uses.  The North Rose Hill Neighborhood Plan states that the buffer should be 10 ft. 
in width.  The Zoning Code establishes different buffer requirements for offices (10 ft. in width) and multi-family 
uses (5 ft. in width).  The zoning regulations are consistent with the way buffering is required in similar situations 
elsewhere in the City. Staff has concluded that the language in the Comprehensive Plan was carried over from 
the previous neighborhood plan.  In that plan, only offices were allowed on the Almond property.  When multi-
family was allowed as a permitted use with the new plan, a change to the Comprehensive Plan buffering 
language should have been made (or else the zoning regulations should have been changed).  As it turned out, 
the applicant designed the site to provide a 10 ft. wide buffer. 
 
Tree Grove Protection The other issue that was characterized as an inconsistency during the Almond project 
review had to do with protection of a grove of trees.  The North Rose Hill Neighborhood Plan includes a general 
policy that states: “Protect notable trees and groves of trees.”  However, the plan does not define or identify 
specific notable trees or groves of trees. The Almond property contained a number of trees in the SW portion of 
the site which the DRB concluded constituted a grove worthy of saving.  During the review of the project, the 
Board, asked the applicant to explore site plan alternatives that saved as many of the trees as possible, but the 
applicants indicated that other development constraints on the property (most notably the Seattle City Light 
transmission line easement on the east side of the property) prevented them from doing so. The applicants 
noted that the Zoning Code includes the following language: 

 
 The City may require minor alterations in the arrangement of buildings and other elements of the 

proposed development in order to achieve the maximum retention of significant trees. The City 
may not require an alteration which will result in a significant added expenditure to the applicant or 
in a decrease in the number of units or bulk of structures permitted.  

 
 As a result, the DRB reluctantly approved the application without saving the number of trees they desired. As an 

aside, the DRB was also generally unimpressed with the overall design of the development and concluded that 
existing design regulations and guidelines do not provide sufficient tools to address this kind of situation.  

 
 I believe that this is not primarily a case of an inconsistency between the Comprehensive Plan and zoning 

regulations. It does, however, raise other issues: 
 



 
 
 

 Page 4 of 5 

• How should a general policy within a neighborhood plan be interpreted and applied to site 
specific development applications?  Was it the intent of the North Rose Hill Neighborhood Plan that 
tree protection policies be implemented through neighborhood specific regulations?  I don’t believe so. 
During the North Rose Hill planning process, the staff and Planning Commission were aware that city-wide 
tree regulations would soon be updated and concluded that it would be appropriate for those regulations to 
govern tree preservation in North Rose Hill. Unfortunately, the Almond application preceded completion of 
the new regulations. 
 

• How extensively should the DRB review projects for consistency with the Comprehensive 
Plan? As noted above, the Zoning Code gives the DRB authority to review an application for consistency 
with “…goals and policies in the North Rose Hill Neighborhood Plan for the North Rose Hill Business 
District contained in the Comprehensive Plan.” (emphasis added)  In addressing tree preservation, the 
DRB referred to a general neighborhood-wide policy about protecting groves of trees. 
   

• To what degree should the DRB have authority to require major changes in site plans for the 
purpose of saving trees?  Are additional design guidelines needed? 
 

How to Avoid and Correct Inconsistencies 
 
Following are ideas for what we can do to avoid inconsistencies in the future as well as to identify and correct 
possible inconsistencies that may already exist: 
 

• The City would be on firmer legal ground in enforcing neighborhood plan policies through a Zoning Map 
suffix if we either incorporated the policies as regulations in the appropriate Zoning Code Use Zone Charts, 
or at least revised the Use Zone Charts to specifically reference the policies. 
 

• In preparing neighborhood plans and code amendments, we need to do a better job of proofreading.  Part 
of the process should be to carefully compare the text of the plan and zoning and make sure they agree.  In 
recent years, this aspect of the process may have suffered somewhat due to the overall large number of 
projects within the Planning Department.  This may have been compounded by the fact that many projects 
are targeted for adoption at the end of the year, creating a workload crunch.  In the future it may be better 
to do somewhat fewer projects at the same time and/or stagger completion dates.  
 
Also, to help sort out potential problems with regulatory language, it would be desirable for planners who 
are involved in the day to day review of development activities to review and suggest changes to draft code 
amendments.  Involving the City Attorney’s Office early in the code development process, such as was done 
in drafting the new tree regulations, is also helpful. 
 
In preparing zoning regulations and design guidelines for the Rose Hill and Totem Lake Business Districts, 
we have made a concerted effort to ensure that regulations are consistent with the adopted neighborhood 
plans. 
 

• Preparing zoning regulations simultaneously with a neighborhood plan is helpful. Wording nuances may 
arise during the drafting of zoning regulations that may not have been easily foreseen during the drafting of 
policies. To ensure consistency, it is helpful to have the option of changing the wording of a policy rather 
than the regulation. 
 

• In drafting neighborhood policies, it may be advisable to avoid using language that sounds regulatory. 
Because the plan is fundamentally a guide, policies should typically be broader and less specific than 



 
 
 

 Page 5 of 5 

regulations.   
 

• Despite our best efforts, some inconsistencies or ambiguities are likely to occur on occasion.  The Planning 
Department keeps a long list of potential code amendments. However, our ability to process code 
amendments is limited due to other higher work program priorities.  In the future, I would suggest giving 
higher priority to such code amendments to allow us to catch up. Similarly, it is important to consider 
corrections to the Comprehensive Plan, including neighborhood plans, as part of our annual amendment 
process. 
 
If there is a high level of concern about inconsistencies, the City Council could direct that the Planning 
Department and Planning Commission focus on identifying and correcting inconsistencies as a major work 
program project.  This would involve reviewing neighborhood plans and zoning regulations to ensure there is 
agreement.  Where there is not, changes to the plans or neighborhood specific zoning revisions would be 
proposed. With such a project, there would be no need to review the neighborhoods that are now under 
consideration as separate projects: Totem Lake, NE 85th St. Corridor, Highlands, Norkirk or Market. We 
may also be able to exclude the Houghton and Lakeview Neighborhoods, since those are next up for review.  
Another approach would be to focus only on the North Rose Hill neighborhood plan since that is a recently 
updated plan where inconsistencies may be of particular concern. 

 
Cc:  City Council 
 Planning Commission 
 Design Review Board 
 Planning Staff 
 Robin Jenkinson 
 Kari Page 
  
 
 
Es: Zoning Code Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Planning and Community Development Department
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3255 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us

MEMORANDUM             QUASI-JUDICIAL

Date: February 22, 2006 

To: David Ramsay, City Manager

From: Eric R. Shields, AICP, Planning Director 
Jon Regala, Associate Planner

Subject: SHUMWAY 10 PUD.  ZON04-00025 

RECOMMENDATION
The City Council should consider the recommendation of approval with conditions by the Hearing 
Examiner on the Shumway 10 PUD proposal.  The City Council may adopt the Hearing Examiner’s 
recommendation by approving the enclosed ordinances and resolution.  If the Council decides to 
depart from the Hearing Examiner’s recommendation, it may do so by selecting one of the 
following courses of action: 

1. Modify and grant approval of the application by providing staff with direction for 
desired changes to the enclosed ordinances and resolution for adoption at a 
subsequent regular meeting; or 

2. Deny the application; or 
3. If Council concludes that the record compiled by the Hearing Examiner is 

incomplete or inadequate, they may by motion direct the Hearing Examiner to 
reopen the hearing on the matter. The Council may limit the scope of the issues to 
be considered at the rehearing. 

The City Council decision should be based on the approval criteria for a Process IIB permit, PUD, 
alteration to significant features of a Historic Overlay, quasijudicial project rezone, and 
stream/wetland buffer modification.  A detailed analysis of the above mentioned criteria can be 
found in the Hearing Examiner and City Staff report. 

PROPOSAL
Robert Ketterlin, applicant of the Shumway 10 PUD proposal is proposing the following items: 

a. Convert the existing Shumway Mansion Bed and Breakfast and wedding reception facility 
back to a single-family residence. 

b. Reduce the size of the Historic Landmark Overlay (HL overlay) through a rezone.  The HL 
overlay currently covers the entire property.  The new HL overlay will encompass a smaller 
area (25,024 square feet) around the Mansion. 

H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Planning\New Business\Shumway 10 PUD\1_MemoToCouncil.doc 3.1.2006 rev050101sjc 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. c.



c. Short plat the subject property into two parcels so that the Mansion and HL overlay are 
contained on their own parcel (Lot 1).  Lot 1 is proposed to be 25,024 square feet and Lot 
2, the remainder of the subject property, is proposed to be 79,296 square feet. 

d. Preliminary and final Planned Unit Development (PUD) approval to cluster 7 detached 
dwelling units and 2 attached dwelling units on Lot 2.  The PUD also includes reducing the 
setback requirements for a detached garage for the Shumway Mansion, for Unit 9, and 
from the access easement south of the Mansion. 

e. Stream and wetland buffer reduction through enhancement. 

ENCLOSURES:
1. Hearing Examiner Recommendation 

Exhibit A. Department of Planning and Community Development Staff Advisory 
Report dated January 24, 2006 

Exhibit B.   Undated letter from Barbara  Smith 
Exhibit C.   Undated letter from Jeanette Carter 
Exhibit D.   February 1, 2006 letter from Margaret Jacobsen 
Exhibit E. February 2, 2006 letter from Carlos and Megan Alayo 
Exhibit F. February 2, 2006 letter from Astri H. Giske 

2. Ordinance adopting PUD 
3. Ordinance adopting alteration to significant features of Historic Overlay  
4. Resolution adopting intent to remove Historic Overlay over Lot 2 of Shumway 10 PUD 

H:\Agenda Items\030706 City Council Mtg\Planning\New Business\Shumway 10 PUD\1_MemoToCouncil.doc 3.1.2006 rev050101sjc 



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
HEARING EXAMINER FINDINGS, 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 

I APPLICANT: Robert Ketterlin, on behalf of Shumway 10 L.L.C. 

I FILE NO: ZONO4-00025 

I APPLICATION 

1. Site Location: 11410 99'h Place NE 

2. Request: The Applicant proposes to convert the existing Shumway Mansion 
Bed and Breakfast and wedding receution facility back to a single-familv - * - 
residence, and is requesting the following approvals: 

a To alter the significant features of a designated historic 
landmark. 

b. A rezone to reduce the size of the Historic Landm&k 
Overlay (HL overlay). The HL overlay currently covers 
the entire property. The new HL overlay will encompass a 
smaller area (25,024 square feet) around the Mansion. (See 
Exhibit A, Attachment 2.) 

c. A short plat to divide the subject property into two parcels 
so that the Mansion and HL overlay are contained on one 
parcel (Lot 1). Lot 1 is proposed to be 25,024 square feet 
and Lot 2, the remainder of the subject property, is 
proposed to be 79,296 square feet. (See Exhibit A, 
Attachment 3 .) 

d. A preliminary and final Planned Unit Development PUD) 
to cluster 7 detached dwelling units and 2 attached dwelling 
units on Lot 2. The PUD also includes reducing the 
setback requirements for a detached garage for the 
Shumway Mansion, for Unit 9, and from the access 
easement south of the Mansion. 

e. A stream and wetland buffer reduction through 
enhancement. 

3. Review Process: Process IIB, the Hearing Examiner conducts a public 
hearing and makes a recommendation to the City Council, which makes a final 
decision. 



Hearing _.xaminer Recommendation 
File No. ZON04-00025 

Page 2 of 9 

4. Maior Issues: 
Compliance with the criteria for altering significant historical features of 
the subject property as identified in Ordinance 0-3308; 
Compliance with the criteria for removing a Historic Overlay; 
Compliance with the criteria for a short plat, 
Compliance with the criteria for a PUD; and 
Compliance with the criteria for stream and wetland buffer reduction. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Department of Planning and Community Development Approve with conditions 
Hearing Examiner: Approve -with conditions 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

The Hearing Examiner held a public hearing on the applications at 7:00 p.m. on February 
2,2006, in the Council Chamber, City Hall, 123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, Washington. A 
verbatim recordmg of the hearing is available in the City Clerk's office. The minutes of 
the hearing and the exhibits are available for public ixkpection in the Department of 
Planning and Community Development. The record was left open until the Examiner's 
site visit, which occurred on February 5,2006. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

A list of those who testified at the public hearing, and a list of the exhibits offered at the 
hearing is included at the end of this Recommendation. The testimony is summarized in 
the hearing minutes. 

For purposes of this recommendation, all section numbers refer to the Kirkland Zoning 
Code (KZC or Code) unless otherwise indicated. 

- 
FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS and RECOMMENDATION: 

After considering the evidence in the record and inspecting the site, the Examiner enters 
the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions: 

1. Site Description and History 
The Facts and Conclusions on these matters set forth at pages 4 through 6 

of Exhibit A, the Planning Department's Advisory Report, dated January 24, 
2006, (hereafter Exhibit A), are accurate and supported by the record, and 
therefore are adopted by reference as the Hearing Examiner's Findings and 
Conclusions. 



Hearing dxaminer Recommendation 
File No. ZON04-00025 

Page 3 of 9 

2. Public Comment 
The description on pages 6-7 of Exhibit A of the public comments 

received by the Department of Planning is accurate and supported by ,the record, 
and therefore is adopted by reference. The Conclusions in Exhibit A on this issue 
are informational only and are not adopted. 

3. Development Review Committee 
The Fact and Conclusion on review comments and other requirements set 

forth at pages 8 and 32 of Exhibit A are accurate and are adopted by reference as 
the Hearing Examiner's Finding and Conclusion. 

4. State Environmental Policy Act and Concurrency 
The Facts and Conclusions on these matters set forth at page 8 of Exhibit 

A are accurate and are adopted by reference as the Hearing Examiner's Findings 
and Conclusions. 

5 Historic Landmark Overlay 
The Facts and Conclusions on this matter set forth at pages 8 through 13 

of Exhibit A are accurate and are adopted by reference as the Hearing Examiner's 
Findings and Conclusions. 

6. Short Plat 
The Facts and Conclusions on this matter set forth at pages 13 through 18 

of Exhibit A are accurate, with the following corrections for typographical errors: 

4. Vehicular Access -Right of Wav vs. Access Easement 
a. Facts 

i. Municipal Code Section 22.28.080 requires that all lots 
must have direct legal access as requiredby the zoning 
code, including Chapter 115.80, Legal Building Site, and 
Chapter W, 105.10. Vehicular Access Easement er of 
Tract Standards. The city will determine whether access 
will be by right-of-way or vehicular access easement or 
tract on a case-by-case basis. 

ii. KZC Section 105.10.1 .b requires lCZGk&m 
. . .  -that for five or more detached dwelling 

units, a dedicated and improved public right-of-way is 
- 

required. 

As corrected, these Facts and Conclusions are adopted by reference as the 
Hearing Examiner's Findings and Conclusions. 

7. Planned Unit Development 
The Facts and Conclusions on this matter set forth at pages 18 through 23 

of Exhibit A are accurate and are adopted by reference as the Hearing Examiner's 



Hearing -xaminer Recommendation 
File No. ZON04-00025 

Page 4 of 9 

Findings and Conclusions, but with Conclusion viii.b.iii, being rephrased as 
follows: 

The techniques used by the applicant to reduce impacts of bulk and mass 
to adjoining properties, such as landscaping, orientation of structures, 
fencing, and reducing building heights mitigates any adverse impacts or 
undesirable effects to adjoining properties that for which the City could 
not have kern required mitigation through the standard development 
process. 

8. Stream and Wetland 
The Facts and Conclusions on this matter set forth at pages 24 through 30 

of Exhibit A are accurate and are adopted by reference as the Hearing Examiner's 
Findings and Conclusions. 

9. Comprehensive Plan 
The Facts and Conclusions on compliance with the Comprehensive Plan 

set forth at pages 3 1 through 32 of Exhibit A are accurate and are adopted by 
reference as the Hearing Examiner's Findings and Conclusions. 

10. Jurisdiction 
The Hearing Examiner has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 

Kirkland Zoning Code 99 145.10 and 152.70. 

11. Decisional Criteria 
If approved with the conditions recommended below, the proposal will be 

consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan and applicable development 
regulations, and will be consistent with the public health, safety, and welfare. 

On the basis of the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions, the Hearing Examiner 
makes the following Recommendation: 

The application should be APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

This application is subject to the applicable requirements contained in the 
Kirkland Municipal Code, Zoning Code, and Building and Fire Code. It is the 
responsibility of the applicant to ensure compliance with the va3ious provisions 
contained in these ordinances. Attachment 4 to Exhibit A provides a 
"Development Standards List," to familiarize the applicant with some of the 
additional development regulations, but does not include all additional 
regulations. When a condition of approval conflicts with a development 
regulation listed in Attachment 4 to Exhibit A, the condition of approval shall be 
followed. 



Hearing examiner Recommendation 
File No. ZON04-00025 

Page 5 of 9 

2. Prior to Recording of the Short Plat: 

a. The applicant shall install the required improvements as described in 
Attachment 4 to Exhibit A. In lieu of completing these improvements, the 
applicant may submit to the Department of Public Works a security device 
to cover the cost of installing the improvements and guaranteeing 
installation within one year of the date of plat approval. 

b. The book containing the history of the Mansion shall be relocated to and 
be maintained by the Kirkland Heritage Society. 

c. The access easements shown on the short plat mylar shall be allowed only 
in the same locations as the existing driveways. 

i 

1 d. The applicant shall expand the greenbelt protection easement required 
1 over the stream and wetland and their buffers, (see Attachment 2 to 
I Exhibit A), to include the open space area in the northeastern portion of 

the property as part of the recording of the short plat. Land survey 
information shall be provided by the applicant that describes the entire 
greenbelt protection easement area shown on the short plat mylar. 

e. Trees shall not be removed following short plat approval, except as 
approved by the Planning Department through a Land Surface 
Modification Permit and/or Building Permit. Tree protection techniques 
of KCZ 95.15 shall be followed. 

(1) Retain all of the significant trees on the site, except those trees 
identified for removal on the tree retention plan (see Attachment 5 
to Exhibit A), or those trees needing to be removed for installation 
of the access easement roads, utilities and placement of buildings. 

(2) An arborist report may be required to review the tree 
preservation and removal plan in order to establish l i i t s  of 
disturbance within the drip line of each tree and/or any on-site 
measures needed to reduce impacts on trees to be retained. In 
addition, an arborist report may be required for all significant trees 
to be retained that are located near the areas of grading in order to 
establish limits of disturbance within the drip line of each tree and 
on-site measures needed to reduce grading impacts. 

3. As part of the Land Surface Modification (LSM) ~ermit. the a~vlicant shall: 

a. Provide details for stream and wetland buffer enhancement consistent with 
the recommendations of the Watershed Company and reflected in the 
Wetland Resources, Inc., report dated December 14,2005 (SEPA 
attachment 9 to Attachment 21 to Exhibit A). 



Hearing ,xaminer Recommendation 
File No. ZON04-00025 

Page 6 of 9 

b. Update Buffer Enhancement Area A to include the reduced stream buffer 
area south/southwest of detention pond. A planting density of 10' centers 
for trees and 5' centers for shrubs shall be expanded to this buffer area. 

c. Demonstrate compliance with KZC Section 115.75.2 to ensure that fill 
material will not contain organic or inorganic material that would be 
detrimental to the water quality, or existing habitat, or create any other 
significant adverse impacts\to the environment. 

4. l'rior to building permit submittal for the Shurnway Mansion detached garage, the 
avplicant shall submit ulans to the Planning Department for review that reflect: 

a. A 2-car garage in the same architectural style and materials of the 
Mansion. 

b. A site plan that places the garage east (to the rear) of the Mansion as 
shown in Attachment 2 to Exhibit A. 

5. As part of the building permit submittal for the residential units, the applicant 
shall: 

a. Submit a landscape plan consistent with Attachment 6 to Exhibit A. 
b. Submit a site plan consistent with Attachment 2 to Exhibit A. 
c. Submit building plans consistent with Attachment 7 to Exhibit A. 
d. Submit height calculations for Unit 6 and 7 that reflect a height limitation 

of 23' above the average building elevation. 
e. Submit plans for the rockery and 8' fence on the east property line that 

adjoins Unit 6,7, and 8. 
f. Apply for and obtain a sign permit to place, at the entrance to the site, a 

historical markerlsign that identifies the Mansion. The design, materials 
and location of the markerlsign shall be approved by the Department of 
Planning and Community Development. 

6. Prior to occupancy of any of the residential units, the applicant shall: 

a. Install between the upland boundary of all stream buffers and the 
developed portion of the site, a permanent three- to four-foot-tall split rail 
fence. Installation of the permanent fence must be done by hand where 
necessary to prevent machinery from entering the stream and wetland or 
its buffer. 

b. Have completed all improvements outlined in the stredwetland buffer 
enhancement plan. 



Hearing 6xminer Recommendation ~ File No. ZON04-00025 
I Page 7 of 9 
I 

i Entered this 10th day of February, 2006. 

L a-7- 
Sue A. Tanner 
Hearing Examiner 

I I TESTIMONY: 
The following persons testified at the public hearing: 

, . 
I 
I From the City: From the Applicant: 
1 Jon Regala, Project Planner Doug Yost, Applicant 

I From the Public: 
Harvey Sherman Andrea Wood 
Dean Scotton Margaret Jacobsen 
Megan Alayo 

EXHIBITS: 

I The following exhibits were offered and entered into the record at the public hearing: 

A. Department of Planning and Community Development Staff Advisory Report 
dated January 24,2006, with 38 attachments 

E B. Undated letter from Barbara Smith 
C. Undated letter from Jeanette Carter 

1 D. February 1,2006 letter eom Margaret Jacobsen 

I E. February 2,2006 letter from Carlos and Megan Alayo 

f F. February 2,2006 letter fiom Astri H. Giske 

PARTIES OF RECORD: 

Megan and Dean Alayo, 18032 NE 129" Street, Redmond, WA 98052 
Jeanette Carter, 1 1430 99" Place NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 
Astri H. Giske, 11430 99" Place, NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 
Richard Harris, 11410 99" Place NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 
Margaret Jacobsen, 11430 99" Place NE, Kirkland WA 98033 

31 Robert Ketterlin, ShumwaylO, LLC, 11608 100 Avenue NE, #1B, Kirkland, 
WA 98034 
Peter Lacy 1 1325 10ISt Place NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 
Vittorio Mangione, 11309 10ISt Place NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 
Janette Petragallo, 1 13 17 101" Place NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 
Dean Scotton, 10024 NE 115" Lane NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 
Harvey Sherman, 11750 731d Place NE, Kirkland, WA 98034 
Barbara Smith, 11430 99" Place NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 
Richard Webber, 11318 10lStPlace NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 
Dorothy Wolfe, 11326 10IStPlace NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 
Andrea Wood 11315 10IS' Place NE, Kirkland, WA 98033 



Hearing -xaminer Recommendation 
File No. ZONO4-00025 

Page 8 of 9 

Doug Yost, 1121 1 NE 102"~ Street, Kirkland, WA 98033 
I Bob Burke, President of Kirkland Heritage Society, 203 Market Street, Kirkland, 

WA 98033 
Department of Planning and Community Development 
Department of Public Works 
Department of Building and Fire Services 

CHALLENGES AND JUDICIAL REVIEW 

The following is a summary of the deadlines and procedures for challenges and 
appeals. Any person wishing to file or respond to a challenge or appeal should 
contact the Planning Department for further procedural information. 

A. CHALLENGE 

Section 152.85 of the Zoning Code allows the Hearing Examiner's 
recommendation to be challenged by the applicant or any person who 
submitted written or oral comments or testimony to the Hearing Examiner. 
A party who signed a petition may not challenge unless such party also 
submitted independent written comments or information. The challenge 
must be in writing and must be delivered, along with any fees set by 
ordinance, to the Planning Department by 5:00 p.m., 

d / & . / / k ? 0 0  6 , seven (7) calendar days following 
distributibn of fhe Hearing Examiner's written recommendation on the 
application. Within this same time period, the person making the 
challenge must also mail or personally deliver to the applicant and all 
other people who submitted comments or testimony to the Hearing 
Examiner, a copy of the challenge together with notice of the deadline and 
procedures for responding to the challenge. 

Any response to the challenge must be delivered to the Planning 
Department within seven (7) calendar days after the challenge letter was 
filed with the Planning Department. Within the same time period, the 
person making the response must deliver a copy of the response to the 
applicant and all other people who submitted comments or testimony to 
the Hearing Examiner. 

Proof of such mail or personal delivery must be made by affidavit, 
available from the Planning Department. The affidavit must be attached to 
the challenge anc! response letters, and delivered to the Planning 
Department. The challenge will be considered by the City Council at the 
time it acts upon the recommendation of the Hearing Examiner. 

B. JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Section 152.110 of the Zoning Code allows the action of the City in 
granting or denying this zoning permit to be reviewed in King County 



Hearing Examiner Recommendation 
File No. ZONO4-00025 

Page 9 of 9 

Superior Court. The petition for review must be filed within twenty-one 
(21) calendar days of the issuance of the final land use decision by the 
City. 

LAPSE OF APPROVAL 

Under Section 152.1 15 of the Zoning Code, the applicant must begin construction 
or submit to the City a complete building permit application for the development 
activity, use of land or other actions approved under this chapter within four years 
after the final approval of the City of Kirkland on the matter, or the decision 
becomes void; provided, however, that in the event judicial review is initiated per 
KZC 152.1 10 the running of the four years is tolled for any period of time during 
which a court order in said judicial review proceeding prohibits the required 
development activity. use of land. or other actions. The applicant must 
subs&tially comple~~ construction fir the development activity, ;ie of land, or 
other actions approved under this chapter and com~lete the applicable conditions 
listed on the ddtice of decision withi; six years ifter the f&l approval on the 
matter, or the decision becomes void 



o* "'R* CITY OF KIRKLAND 
% Planning and Community Development Department %!!d 'L, 2 123 Fifth Avenue. Kirkland. WA 98033 425.587.3225 

%. ,040 www.ei.kirkland.wa.us 

ADVISORY REPORT 
FINDINGS. CONCLUSIONS. AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

To: 

From: Jon Regala. Project Planner 

Eric R . Shields. AICP. Planning Director 

Date: January 24. 2006 

File: 20N04.00025. SHUMWAY MANSION 

Hearing Date and Place: 7:00 pm 
February 2. 2006 
City Hall Council Chamber 
123 Fifth Avenue. Kirkland 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section 
I . INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................... 2 

A . APPLICATION ............................................................................................................................................ 2 
B . RECOMMENDATIONS ................................................................................................................................ 2 

II . FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS .......................................................................................................... 4 
.................................................................................................................................... A . SITE DESCRIPTION 4 

B . HISTORY ................................................................................................................................................... 6 
C . PUBLIC COMMENT .................................................................................................................................. 6 
D . STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (SEPA) ............................................................................................ 8 
E . CONCURRENCY ......................................................................................................................................... 8 
F . HISTORIC LANDMARK OVERLAY ................................................................................................................ 8 
G . SHORT PLAT ............................................................................................................................................ 1 3  
H . PUD CRITERIA ........................................................................................................................................ 1 8  
I . STREAM AND WETLAND .......................................................................................................................... 2 4  
J . PROCESS IIB APPROVAL CRITERIA ................................................................ ......................................... 3 0  
K . COMPREHENSIVE PLAN .......................................................................................................................... 31 
L . DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE ...................................................................................................... 32  

Ill . MINOR MODIFICATIONS ................................................................................................................................ 32  
IV . CHALLENGES AND JUDICIAL REVIEW ............................................................................................................. 3 2  

..................................................................................................................................... V . LAPSE OF APPROVAL 3 3  
................................................................................................................................................. VI . APPENDICES 3 3  

..................................................................................................................................... VII . PARTIES OF RECORD 3 4  



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 2 

I. INTRODUCTION

A. APPLICATION

1. Applicant:  Robert Ketterlin, with Shumway 10 LLC 

2. Property Owner:  Mr. and Mrs. Richard Harris 

3. Site Location:  11410 99th Place NE (see Attachment 1) 

4. Request:  As part of this proposal, the applicant, Robert Ketterlin, is requesting the 
following items: 

a. Convert the existing Shumway Mansion Bed and Breakfast and wedding 
reception facility back to a single-family residence. 

b. Reduce the size of the Historic Landmark Overlay (HL overlay) through a rezone.  
The HL overlay currently covers the entire property.  The new HL overlay will 
encompass a smaller area (25,024 square feet) around the Mansion (see 
Attachment 2). 

c. Short plat the subject property into two parcels so that the Mansion and HL 
overlay are contained on their own parcel (Lot 1).  Lot 1 is proposed to be 
25,024 square feet and Lot 2, the remainder of the subject property, is 
proposed to be 79,296 square feet (see Attachment 3). 

d. Preliminary and final Planned Unit Development (PUD) approval to cluster 7 
detached dwelling units and 2 attached dwelling units on Lot 2.  The PUD also 
includes reducing the setback requirements for a detached garage for the 
Shumway Mansion, for Unit 9, and from the access easement south of the 
Mansion.

e. Stream and wetland buffer reduction through enhancement. 

5. Review Process:  Process IIB, Hearing Examiner conducts public hearing and makes 
recommendation; City Council makes final decision. 

6. Summary of Key Issues:  Key issues are the meeting the criteria for a PUD, short plat, 
stream and wetland buffer reduction, alteration of the significant historical features of the 
subject property as identified in Ordinance O-3308 and the criteria for removing a 
Historic Overlay.  See Section I.B below for staff recommendations. 

B. RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on Statements of Fact and Conclusions (Section II), and Attachments in this report, we 
recommend approval of this application subject to the following conditions: 

1. This application is subject to the applicable requirements contained in the Kirkland 
Municipal Code, Zoning Code, and Building and Fire Code.  It is the responsibility of the 
applicant to ensure compliance with the various provisions contained in these 
ordinances.  Attachment 4 Development Standards is provided in this report to 
familiarize the applicant with some of the additional development regulations.  This 
attachment does not include all of the additional regulations.  When a condition of 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 3 

approval conflicts with a development regulation in Attachment 4 the condition of 
approval shall be followed (see Conclusion II.L.2). 

2. Prior to Recording of the Short Plat:

a. The applicant shall install the required improvements as described in 
Attachment 4.  In lieu of completing these improvements, the applicant may 
submit to the Department of Public Works a security device to cover the cost of 
installing the improvements and guaranteeing installation within one year of the 
date of plat approval (see Conclusion II.L.2). 

b. The book containing the history of the Mansion shall be relocated to and be 
maintained by the Kirkland Heritage Society (see Conclusion II.F.2.b). 

c. The access easements on the short plat mylar shall only be allowed in the same 
locations of the existing driveways (see Conclusion II.F.2.b) 

   d. The applicant shall expand the greenbelt protection easement required over the 
stream and wetland and their buffers (see Attachment 2) to include the open 
space area in the northeastern portion of the property as part of the recording of 
the short plat.  Land survey information shall be provided by the applicant that 
describes the entire greenbelt protection easement area on the short plat mylar 
(see Conclusion II.H.4.b and Conclusion II.I.2.b). 

  3. Trees shall not be removed following short plat approval, except as approved by the 
Planning Department. 

a. Retain all of the significant trees on the site, except those trees identified for 
removal on the tree retention plan (see Attachment 5) or those trees needing to 
be removed for installation of the access easement roads, utilities and 
placement of buildings. Trees may not be removed following short plat approval, 
except as approved by the Planning Department through a Land Surface 
Modification Permit and/or Building Permit. Tree protection techniques of KCZ 
95.15 should be followed. 

   b. An arborist report may be required to review the tree preservation and removal 
plan to establish limits of disturbance within the dripline of each tree and/or any 
on-site measures needed to reduce impacts on trees to be retained.  In addition, 
an arborist report may be required for all significant trees to be retained that are 
located near the areas of grading to establish limits of disturbance within the 
dripline of each tree and on-site measures needed to reduce grading impacts 
(see Conclusion II.G.3.b). 

4. As part of the Land Surface Modification (LSM) permit, the applicant shall:

   a. Provide details for stream and wetland buffer enhancement consistent with the 
recommendations of the Watershed Company and reflected in the Wetland 
Resources, Inc., report dated December 14, 2005 (see Conclusion II.I.1.b) 

   b. Update Buffer Enhancement Area A to include the reduced stream buffer area 
south/southwest of detention pond.  A planting density of 10’ centers for trees 
and 5’ centers for shrubs shall be expanded to this buffer area (see Conclusion 
II.I.1.b)



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 4 

   c. Demonstrate compliance with KZC Section 115.75.2 to ensure that fill material 
will not contain organic or inorganic material that would be detrimental to the 
water quality, or existing habitat, or create any other significant adverse impacts 
to the environment (see Conclusion II.I.8.b). 

  5. Prior to building permit submittal for the Shumway Mansion detached 
garage, the applicant shall submit plans to the Planning Department for 
review that reflect:

a. A 2-car garage in the same architectural style and materials of the Mansion (see 
Conclusion II.F.1.b). 

b. A site plan that places the garage east (rear) of the Mansion as shown in 
Attachment 2 (see Conclusion II.F.1.b). 

  6. As part of the building permit submittal for the residential units, the 
applicant shall:

a. Submit a landscape plan consistent with Attachment 6 (see Conclusion II.H.3.b 
and II.H.4.b). 

b. Submit a site plan consistent with Attachment 2 (see Conclusion II.H.3.b and 
II.H.4.b).

c. Submit building plans consistent with Attachment 7 (see Conclusion II.H.3.b and 
II.H.4.b).

   d. Submit height calculations for Unit 6 and 7 that reflect a height limitation of 23’ 
above the average building elevation (see Conclusion II.H.3.b and II.H.4.b). 

e. Submit plans for the rockery and 8’ fence on the east property line that adjoins 
Unit 6, 7, and 8 (see Conclusion II.H.3.b). 

f. Apply for and obtain a sign permit to place, at the entrance to the site, a 
historical marker/sign that identifies the Mansion.  The design, materials and 
location of the marker/sign shall be approved by the Department of Planning 
and Community Development (see Conclusion II.F.2.b) 

  7. Prior to occupancy of any of the residential units, the applicant shall:

   a. Install between the upland boundary of all stream buffers and the developed 
portion of the site, a permanent three- to four-foot-tall split rail fence.  Installation 
of the permanent fence must be done by hand where necessary to prevent 
machinery from entering the stream and wetland or its buffer (see Conclusion 
II.I.2.b).

b. Have completed all improvements outlined in the stream/wetland buffer 
enhancement plan (see Conclusion II.I.1.b). 

II. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS

A. SITE DESCRIPTION 

1. Site Development and Zoning:

a. Facts:

i) Size:  104,320 square feet or 2.39 acres 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 5 

ii) Current Land Use:  Bed and Breakfast/Wedding Reception Facility 

iii) Zoning:  RS 8.5 (HL) 

iv) Terrain and Vegetation:  The subject property contains the Shumway 
Mansion and 76 surface parking stalls.  A deep ravine with a Class B 
stream and Type III wetland bisects a portion of the property east to 
west.  The stream flows into a detention pond that was created with the 
original development of the site.  From the detention pond, the water 
then flows into a culvert located under the parking lot and then 
eventually into Lake Washington. 

The slope of the subject property ranges from 10% to 25%.  The slopes 
associated with the ravine range from 75% to 100%.  The subject 
property also contains a mixture of evergreen and deciduous trees on 
the non-developed portions of the site.  Attachment 8 contains a 
property survey. 

b. Conclusions:  The size, current land use, terrain, and existing vegetation are not 
constraining factors in reviewing the Historic Overlay alteration proposal.  
However, since the (HL) overlay designation is being reduced in size to an area 
around the Shumway Mansion instead of the entire property, specific Zoning 
Code criteria need to be reviewed.  Section II.F. below contains an analysis of 
applicable Zoning Code criteria. 

The presence of a Class B stream and Type III wetland on the subject property 
require that development be located outside of the stream and wetland buffers.  
The applicant is requesting to reduce the required buffers from the sensitive 
areas to allow construction of residential units.  This may be allowed by KZC 
Chapter 90 through enhancement of the reduced buffers.  Section II.I below 
contains a detailed analysis of the applicable Zoning Code criteria in reducing 
sensitive area buffers. 

2. Neighboring Development and Zoning:

a. Facts:

North: RS 8.5.  Baycrest PUD.  Attached Multi-Family Development. 

East: RS 8.5.   Kirkland 12 PUD.  Attached Multi-Family Development. 

South: RS 8.5.  Single-Family Residences. 

West: RM 2.4.  Multi-Family Residences.   

See Attachment 9 for an aerial photographs of the subject property and adjoining 
parcels.

b. Conclusion:  Neighborhood development and zoning are not constraining factors 
in the review of this permit. 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 6 

B. HISTORY

1. Facts:  On July 16, 1984, the City Council approved Resolution No. R-3107 (see 
Attachment 10), thereby issuing an intent to rezone the subject property as applied for in 
zoning permit File III-84-39.  R-3107 approved the relocation of the Shumway Mansion 
from 528 Lake Street South to 11410 99th Place NE (the Mansion’s current location).  In 
addition, the resolution approved a zoning permit for a (HL) Historic Landmark overlay 
designation.  An adopting ordinance was required to finalize the rezone and historic 
overlay.

As part of the (HL) designation, the applicant received approval for the following 
modifications since they are not typically allowed in a residential zone:  nine bed and 
breakfast rooms, a wedding reception center, and an increase of height from 25’ to 40.  
A bed and breakfast and wedding reception facility is considered a commercial use. 

Years later, it was discovered that the ordinance to finalize R-3107, which gave an intent 
to approve the (HL) overlay, the bed and breakfast use, and the wedding reception 
facility, was never adopted by the City Council.  Therefore, on March 3, 1992, the City 
Council approved Ordinance No. O-3308 to finalize the rezone and historic overlay 
required by Resolution R-3107 (see Attachment 11). 

Ordinance O-3308 rezoned the subject property from RS 8.5 to RS 8.5 (HL), amended 
the Zoning Map, and identified the significant features of the site, which are:  the name 
Shumway Mansion, the external features of the Mansion, a book containing the history of 
the Mansion, including photographs, to be kept on site, and the entire site surrounding 
the Mansion, and related facilities, including landscaping in scale and character 
appropriate to the Mansion. 

Attachment 12 contains a memo dated December 14, 1992 to Eric Shields from Linda 
Phillips, Project Planner, which provides insight as to why the entire site was considered 
a significant feature of the Historic Overlay (HL).  It appears that the entire site was 
included as a significant feature because of the requirements associated with the 
proposed bed and breakfast and wedding reception facility.  These uses are not allowed 
outright in a single-family residential zone, but can be approved through an HL overlay. 

The City Council determined that the entire site should be protected, by ordinance, not 
necessarily in terms of historical significance, but instead, to meet the requirements of 
the decisional criteria in approving a HL overlay and quasi-judicial project rezone.  The 
decisional criteria included minimizing all adverse impacts on existing land uses in the 
immediate vicinity (Rezone – KZC Section 130.60 and Historic Landmark Overlay Zone – 
KZC Section 75.20.1.a). 

2. Conclusion:  The history behind the HL overlay approval is related to the applicant’s 
proposal to reduce the HL overlay and eliminate the bed and breakfast and wedding 
reception facility uses.  It will be discussed further in Section II.F below. 

C. PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Facts:  The following is a summary of the public comment received for this project: 

Email from Dean Scotton, October 31, 2005, 10024 NE 115th Lane NE, Kirkland (see 
Attachment 13).  Mr. Scotton supports the project as it will eliminate the commercial 
uses on the property while creating a small scale residential development. 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 7 

Form Letters from:  

• Andrea Wood 11315 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 28, 2005 (see 
Attachment 14) 

• Peter Lacy 11325 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 24, 2005 (see 
Attachment 15) 

• Richard Webber, 11318 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 23, 2005 
(see Atttachment 16) 

• Dorothy Wolfe, 11326 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 23, 2005 
(see Attachment 17) 

• Janette Petragallo, 11317 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 25, 2005 
(see Attachment 18) 

• Vittorio Mangione, 11309 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 24, 2005 
(see Attachment 19) 

• Harvey Sherman, 11323 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 26, 2005 
(see Attachment 20, form letter slightly modified). 

These neighbors, located east of the subject property at Westview Court, expressed their 
concerns summarized as follows: 

• Views from 5 of 12 units at Westview Court will be blocked as a result of the 
new development.  The neighbors suggest reducing pitch of roofs and/or 
lowering the building elevation to protect views to Lake Washington. 

• Addition of 10 more units very close to their property line will create noise 
pollution.  To mitigate, Westview Court has proposed that the applicant 
install a fence, build a berm at the border of the two properties, add drought 
resistant vegetation, and install a drainage and irrigation system.  
Improvements such as a stairway and terrace area were suggested by 
Westview Court to be constructed on their property as well. 

• Greenbelt area on Westview Court property should be cleared of non-native 
vegetation.

• Stream buffer on the subject property should be maintained and non-native 
plants and refuse should be removed. 

• Requests of Westview Court should be completed to satisfaction of Westview 
Court, guaranteed by bond, and completed by the developer. 

• Mr. Sherman requests that the PUD include the above mentioned 
enhancements agreed to by the developer and the Westview Court Home 
Owners Association and by the City Council.

2. Conclusions:  All parties that have provided comment on this proposal have been 
included as a party of record.  Staff analysis regarding view and noise impacts are further 
addressed in Section II.H below.  Staff analysis regarding the stream buffer rehabilitation 
is addressed in Section II.I below. 

Enhancements requested by the applicant to be implemented on the Westview Court 
property and agreed to by the developer are not subject to City review nor is it the 
responsibility of the City to require or follow up on the private agreements. 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 8 

D. STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (SEPA) 

1. Facts:  A Determination of Nonsignificance (DNS) was issued on December 22, 2005.  
The Environmental Checklist, Determination, and additional environmental information 
are included as Attachment 21. 

2. Conclusion:  The City and the applicant have satisfied the SEPA requirements. 

E. CONCURRENCY

1. Facts:  The applicant’s proposal is exempt from concurrency review (see Attachment 21, 
SEPA Attachment 5). 

2. Conclusion:  Concurrency is not a constraining factor in the review of the applicant’s 
proposal.

F. HISTORIC LANDMARK OVERLAY 

1. KZC 75.40 – Effect. Criteria for Alteration

 a. Fact:  The applicants request to reduce the size of the HL overlay affects the 
designated significant features of the HL overlay.  KZC 75.40 establishes three 
criteria that the City will use in reviewing a request to alter the significant 
features of a historic landmark.  The property owner’s response to these criteria 
can be found in Attachment 22.  Sections II.F.2 through II.F.4 contain the staff's 
findings of fact and conclusions based on these three criteria. 

 b. Conclusion:  Based on the following analysis, the application meets the 
established criteria for altering significant features of a historic landmark. 

2. KZC 75.40.1: The extent to which the proposed alteration would adversely affect the 
significant features or site as an historic landmark. 

a. Fact:

i. The applicant is proposing to reduce the Historic Overlay to a smaller 
area around the Mansion and remove the bed and breakfast and 
wedding reception use, thereby converting the Mansion into a single-
family residence.  The Historic Overlay will coincide with the boundaries 
of Lot 1 of the proposed two lot short plat (see Attachment 2). 

ii. The significant features of the site, as adopted by Ordinance No. O-
3308, are as follows: 

a) Name – Shumway Mansion.

There are no proposed changes to the name of the Mansion.  
The name of the Shumway Mansion is proposed to be retained 
through the use of a historical marker/sign to be placed near 
the entrance to the site along 99th Place NE.  The historical 
marker/sign will be reviewed by the City of Kirkland Planning 
Department with advice from the Kirkland Heritage Society. 

b) External Features of the Mansion.



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 9 

No changes are proposed to the exterior of the Mansion.

c) A book containing the history of the Mansion, including 
photographs, to be kept on site.

As a single family residence, access to the Mansion by the 
public will no longer be available.  The applicant has proposed 
that the book containing the history of the Mansion be relocated 
to and maintained by the Kirkland Heritage Society.  This has 
been approved by Bob Burke, the President of the Kirkland 
Heritage Society (see Attachment 23). 

d) The entire site surrounding the Mansion, and related facilities, 
including landscaping in scale and character appropriate to the 
Mansion.

The land on which the Mansion was placed did not have any 
historic significance.  The Mansion was moved onto the subject 
property from its original location (528 Lake Street South) in 
March of 1985. 

The Kirkland Heritage Society and King County Office of Cultural 
Resources, Landmarks and Heritage Program, agree that the 
entire parcel is not needed to support the Mansion (see 
Attachment 23 and 24).  The proposed boundary of the new 
Historic Overlay maintains the visibility of the Mansion from 99th

Place NE (see Attachment 25). 

Attachment 12 contains a memo dated December 14, 1992 to 
Eric Shields from Linda Phillips, Project Planner, which provides 
insight as to why the entire site was considered a significant 
feature of the HL overlay.

The entire site was included as a significant feature because of 
the requirements associated with the proposed bed and 
breakfast and wedding reception facility.  These uses are not 
allowed outright in a single-family residential zone but can be 
approved as a modification through an HL overlay. 

It appears that the City Council determined that the entire site 
should be protected, by ordinance, not necessarily in terms of 
historical significance, but instead, to meet the requirements of 
the decisional criteria in approving a HL overlay and quasi-
judicial project rezone.  Encompassing the entire site with the 
HL overlay helped to mitigate the impacts of the commercial 
uses in a residential neighborhood. 

iii. The new owners of the Mansion will most likely want a detached garage.  
Although garages are typical of single-family residences, placement of a 
garage on the Mansion property can affect the visibility of the Mansion 
and compatibility with the historic style of the Mansion.  The applicant 
has proposed a 2-car garage to the rear of the Mansion property (see 
Attachment 2).  With the potential for a new garage within the proposed 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 10 

Historic Overlay boundary, conditions should be placed to ensure the 
visibility, compatibility in architectural style, size, materials, and location 
with the Mansion. 

iv. The land outside of the Historic Overlay is proposed to be short platted 
into another parcel (see Attachment 3).  The new lot lines will dictate the 
location of future structures.  As proposed, the resulting orientation of 
the new Lot 2 does not allow for new structures to be place in front of 
the Mansion. 

v. The applicant is proposing access to the new Lot 2 within the Historic 
Overlay.  The subject property contains driveways leading to parking lots 
in the same locations as proposed access easements will be located.  
Use of the existing driveways to access the proposed additional 
development on the site will retain the visual access to the Mansion. 

b. Conclusion:

i. In order to preserve the Shumway Mansion name with the single-family 
residence, the applicant should place at the entrance to the site a 
historical marker/sign that identifies the Mansion.  The design, materials 
and location of the marker/sign should be approved by the Department 
of Planning and Community Development. 

ii. The reduction of the Historic Overlay and change of use of the Mansion 
to a single-family residence will not affect the exterior features of the 
Mansion.  Since the commercial uses will no longer exist in the 
Mansion, the larger historic overlay is not needed to mitigate impacts on 
the surrounding residential neighborhood. 

iii. The book containing the history of the Mansion should be relocated to 
and be maintained by the Kirkland Heritage Society. 

iv. The proposed boundary of the new Historic Overlay maintains the 
visibility of the Mansion from 99th Place NE.  The applicant should 
provide a surveyed drawing and legal description to describe the new 
Historic Overlay boundaries. 

v. Any new garage should be limited to a 2-car garage, the garage should 
be in the same architectural style and materials of the Mansion, and the 
garage should be placed to the east (rear) of the Mansion as shown in 
Attachment 2.  The design and materials of the garage should be 
approved by the Department of Planning and Community Development. 

vi. Access easements should only be allowed in the locations of the existing 
driveways.

3. KZC 75.40.2: The reasonableness of the proposed alteration in light of other alternatives 
available to achieve the objectives of the applicant. 

a. Facts:



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 11 

i. The applicant’s objective is to retain the historic Shumway Mansion as a 
single-family residence and further develop the subject property in a 
manner that is compatible with surrounding developments. 

ii. The applicant is proposing to remove the bed and breakfast use and the 
wedding reception use as part of the Historic Overlay reduction.  With 
the removal of the bed and breakfast and wedding reception use, the 
impacts associated with these commercial uses will no longer affect the 
neighborhood and therefore, the entire parcel is not necessary to be 
considered as a significant feature in protecting the Mansion. 

iii. Both the Kirkland Heritage Society and King County Office of Cultural 
Resources, Landmarks and Heritage Program acknowledge that a 
smaller Historic Overlay around the Mansion is justified (see Attachment 
23 and 24). 

iv. Maintaining visibility of the Mansion from 99th Place NE helps preserve 
the historical integrity of the Mansion and makes the exterior of the 
Mansion visually accessible to the public.

b. Conclusion:  It is reasonable to reduce the Historic Overlay to the boundary 
shown in Attachment 2 and 3 given that the bed and breakfast use and wedding 
reception uses are being removed.  With the Mansion functioning as a single 
family residence, the impacts associated with current commercial businesses 
will no longer exist. 

The reduction of the historic overlay is necessary to allow the proposed 
residential development to occur unencumbered by inapplicable historic overlay 
regulations.  The land associated with the proposed Historic Overlay is large 
enough to protect the Mansion from visual intrusion from the proposed 
development as seen from 99th Place NE. 

4. KZC 75.40.3: The extent to which the proposed alteration may be necessary to meet the 
requirements of any other law, statute, regulation, code or ordinance. 

a. Fact:

i. The Shumway Mansion has been designated by the City as a 
Community Landmark in the Community Character Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan, Table CC-1, List B (see Attachment 26).

ii. The historic overlay is not proposed to be entirely removed but revised to 
a smaller area around the Shumway Mansion to allow for development 
of the remainder of the subject property. 

iii. The alterations proposed by the applicant is not proposed to meet the 
requirements of any other law, statute, regulation, code or ordinance. 

b. Conclusion:  Reduction of the Historic Overlay will allow additional residential 
development to occur on Lot 2.  It is not required to meet any other law, statute, 
code or ordinance.

5. Rezone



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 12 

a. Facts:  The City of Kirkland Zoning map identifies the subject property as being 
in the RS 8.5 zone with an HL overlay (Historic Landmark overlay).  The 
applicant’s request to reduce the size of the HL overlay to a smaller area around 
the Mansion requires a quasijudicial project rezone of the subject property.  KZC 
130.60 establishes three decisional criteria with which the applicant’s proposal 
must comply with in order for the rezone to be granted.  Section II.F.6 below 
contains the staff's findings of fact and conclusions based on these three criteria. 

b. Conclusion:  Based on the analysis in Section II.F.6 below, the application meets 
the established criteria for removing an existing overlay from a portion of the 
subject property. 

  6. KZC 130.60 Quasijudicial Project Rezones – Criteria

a. Facts:  KZC 130.60.1:  The City may approve an application for a project related 
rezone only if it finds that the criteria set forth in KZC 130.45 are met.

i. Pursuant to KZC 130.45, the City may approve an application for a 
rezone only if it finds that: 

a) The proposed rezone is consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan; and

b) The proposed rezone bears a substantial relation to public 
health, safety, or welfare; and

c) The proposed rezone is in the best interest of the residents of 
Kirkland; and

d) The proposed rezone is appropriate because the rezone is to 
place or remove an overlay zoning designation on the Zoning 
Map and the proposal meets the applicable designation criteria 
of Chapters 70 through 80 KZC. 

ii. The Shumway Mansion is considered a community landmark because of 
its age, construction, and original owner.  Designed and built by J.G. 
Bartsch in 1910, the shingles and construction represent the design, 
materials, and workmanship of the early 20th Century.  Carrie Shumway, 
who lived in the Mansion with her sisters and brother at the Mansion’s 
original location along Lake Washington Boulevard, became the first 
woman in the State of Washington to serve as Councilwoman in 1911. 

iii. The applicant is eliminating the commercial bed and breakfast and 
wedding facility use at the Shumway Mansion.  The Mansion will revert 
back to a single family residence.  Bed and breakfast and wedding 
reception uses are not allowed outright in residential zones and require 
at least 35,000 square feet as well as a Historic Overlay zone to be 
allowed per KZC 75.47.1.e.

iv. To ensure that the commercial uses cannot occur in the future, the 
applicant is proposing to reduce the overlay area to 25,024 square feet 
to match the proposed lot size of Lot 1.



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 13 

b. Conclusion:

i. The proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  See Section 
II.K below for further discussion. 

ii. The proposed rezone has no bearing on public health or safety.  In 
terms of public welfare, removal of the commercial uses will reduce 
traffic and noise impacts to surrounding residences. 

iii. The proposed rezone is in the best interest of the residents of Kirkland 
because it allows for the preservation of a historic structure as a single 
family residence.  It also provides an opportunity for the area outside of 
the proposed Historic Overlay to be developed with residences 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan policies and guidelines, thereby 
adding to the housing stock in Kirkland. 

iv. The proposed rezone meets the applicable alteration criteria in KZC 
Chapter 75 (see Section II.F). 

c. Fact:  KZC 130.60.2.  The City may approve an application for a project related 
rezone only if it finds that the proposed project complies with this code in all 
respects.

i. Staff has reviewed the applicant’s proposal in terms of all applicable 
zoning regulations. 

ii. The applicant’s proposal complies with the KZC. 

d. Conclusion:  This criterion is not a constraining factor in the review of this 
permit.

e. Fact:  KZC130.60.3.  The City may approve an application for a project related 
rezone only if it finds that the site plan of the proposed project is designed to 
minimize all adverse impacts on existing land use in the immediate vicinity of the 
subject property.

An analysis of the impacts of the proposed development on surrounding land 
uses is included in the PUD discussion in Section II.H of this report.

f. Conclusion:  The applicant’s proposal has been designed to minimize all adverse 
impacts on existing land uses in the immediate vicinity of the subject property.  
See Section II.H below for further staff analysis on impacts on adjoining 
properties.

G. SHORT PLAT  

1. Facts:  The applicant is proposing to short plat the subject property into two parcels so 
that the Mansion and HL overlay is contained on its own parcel (Lot 1).  Lot 1 is 
proposed to be 25,024 square feet and Lot 2, the remainder of the subject property, is 
proposed to be 79,296 square feet (see Attachment 2). 

Municipal Code Section 22.20.140 states that the Planning Director may approve a short 
subdivision only if: 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 14 

a. There are adequate provisions for open spaces, drainage ways, rights-of-way, 
easements, water supplies, sanitary waste, power service, parks, playgrounds, 
and schools; and 

b. It will serve the public use and interest and is consistent with the public health, 
safety, and welfare. The Planning Director shall be guided by the policy and 
standards and may exercise the powers and authority set forth in RCW 58.17. 

Zoning Code Section 145.45 states that the Planning Director may approve a short 
subdivision only if it is consistent with all applicable development regulations, including 
but not limited to the Zoning Code and Subdivision Code, and to the extent there is no 
applicable development regulation, the Comprehensive Plan. 

2. Conclusion:  The proposal complies with Municipal Code Section 22.20.140 and Zoning 
Code Section 145.45. It is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (see Section II.K). 
With the recommended conditions of approval, it is consistent with the Zoning Code and 
Subdivision regulations (see Section II.G) and there are adequate provisions for open 
spaces, drainage ways, rights-of-way, easements, water supplies, sanitary waste, power 
service, parks, playgrounds, and schools. It will serve the public use and interest and is 
consistent with the public health, safety, and welfare because the proposal will preserve 
an existing structure with historical significance and allow for in-fill residential 
development in a manner that is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

3. Significant Trees

a. Facts:

i. Kirkland Municipal Code Section 22.28.180 states that it is the 
responsibility of the applicant to propose a plat that is sensitive with 
respect to natural features, including vegetation. The plat must be 
designed to preserve and enhance as many of these valuable features 
as possible. 

Section 22.28.210 requires retention of at least 25% of all healthy 
significant trees, together with any associated groundcover or under 
story vegetation necessary to assure long-term health and prevent 
erosion. The City may require the retention of more than 25% of the 
trees based on KMC Section 22.28.180 in order to preserve and 
enhance as many of the natural features as possible. 

Also under Section 22.28.210, the applicant is required to provide a plot 
plan identifying which trees are proposed to be retained in order to 
satisfy this requirement and to design the plat so as to maximize the 
chance of survival of the trees and minimize potential hazards to life or 
property.

ii. Zoning Code Section 95.15 requires that the applicant retain significant 
trees on the subject property to the maximum extent possible. The City 
may require minor alterations in the arrangement of buildings and other 
elements of the proposed development in order to achieve maximum 
retention of significant trees. 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 15 

Additionally, Ordinance No. 3865 states that all perimeter trees (those 
within 10 feet of property lines) must be retained unless they are hazard 
trees or nuisance trees. Areas where structures will be located, areas 
required for access and areas to be cleared for required roads, utilities, 
sidewalks, trails or storm drainage improvements are exempt from the 
perimeter tree requirement.  The applicant is vested under this 
ordinance based on the submittal date of their application. 

iii. Zoning Code Section 115.75.3.a states that a land surface modification 
is permitted only if it has been approved as part of a valid development 
permit, subdivision, or substantial development permit. 

iv. The applicant has shown 83 significant trees on their tree retention plan 
(see Attachment 5).  However, based on the KZC definition of significant 
trees, there are only 66 significant trees on the site.  Significant trees 
are defined by the KZC as evergreen trees 8” or greater in diameter or 
deciduous trees 12” or greater in diameter measured 1-foot above the 
root crown.  Therefore, the applicant is required to retain 25% of the 66 
significant trees or 17 trees.

v. The applicant is proposing to retain 47 significant trees (71% of total).  
Nineteen significant trees are proposed to be removed.  Five of the 19 
significant trees are located within 10’ of the property line.  These trees 
are in areas where structures will be located. 

 b. Conclusions:

i. The applicant has provided a site plan identifying retention of at least 
twenty-five percent of the healthy significant trees.  The City may require 
more than 25% of the trees to be saved based on KMC Section 
22.28.180 in order to preserve and enhance as many of the natural 
features of the property as possible. 

ii. The applicant should retain all of the significant trees on the site, except 
those trees identified for removal on the tree retention plan (see 
Attachment 5) or those trees needing to be removed for installation of 
the access easement roads, utilities and placement of buildings. Trees 
may not be removed following short plat approval, except as approved 
by the Planning Department through a Land Surface Modification Permit 
and/or Building Permit. Tree protection techniques of KCZ 95.15 should 
be followed. 

iii. An arborist report may be required to review the tree preservation and 
removal plan to establish limits of disturbance within the dripline of each 
tree and/or any on-site measures needed to reduce impacts on trees to 
be retained.  In addition, an arborist report may be required for all 
significant trees to be retained that are located near the areas of grading 
to establish limits of disturbance within the dripline of each tree and on-
site measures needed to reduce grading impacts. 

4. Vehicular Access – Right-of-Way vs. Access Easement

 a. Facts:



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 16 

i. Municipal Code Section 22.28.080 requires that all lots must have 
direct legal access as required by the zoning code, including Chapter 
115.80, Legal Building Site, and Chapter 115.10, Vehicular Access 
Easement of Tract Standards. The city will determine whether access 
will be by right-of-way or vehicular-access easement or tract on a case-
by-case basis. 

ii. KZC Section 105.10.1.b. requires KZC Section 105.10.1.b requires that 
for five or more detached dwelling units, a dedicated and improved 
public right-of-way is required. 

iii. The applicant has proposed access easements to serve two clusters of 
new residences.  One cluster of 4 units is located in the southeast 
corner of the proposed Lot 2.  The other cluster of 5 units is located in 
the northwest corner of the proposed Lot 2. 

iv. KZC Section 105.103.3.a allows modifications to the number of units 
that may be served by an access easement if: 

a) The modifications will not affect the ability to provide any 
property with police, fire, emergency medical, or other essential 
services; and 

b) One of the following requirements is met: 

1) The modification is necessary because of a preexisting 
physical condition; or 

2) The modification will produce a site design superior to 
that which would result from adherence to the adopted 
standard.

v. The Public Works, Fire and Planning Departments have reviewed the 
proposal and recommend approval of the proposed access easement 
and paved roadway width, provided that the roadway is marked “No 
Parking-Fire Lane”. 

vi. The easement road will be 20’ wide and designed to meet the City’s 
access road requirements for the Fire Department. 

vii. The location of the stream, wetland, existing Mansion and associated 
improvements necessitate the need for the modification.  A dedicated 
and improved right-of-way would result in greater impact to the area 
around the Shumway Mansion and the existing stream and wetland 
buffer.

viii. The Public Works Department supports the applicant’s proposal to 
create private access easements instead of dedicated and improved 
pubic right-of-way because the proposed project functions like a multi-
family project (see Attachment 4). 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 17 

b. Conclusion:  The applicant’s proposal to utilize access easements instead of a 
right-of-way to access the residences on the proposed Lot 2 meets the 
modification criteria of KZC Section 105.103.3.a. 

5. Vehicular Access Easement Standards

a. Facts:

i. Municipal Code Section 22.28.110 requires that if vehicular access 
within a plat is provided by means other than rights-of-way, the plat must 
establish easements or tracts that will provide the legal right of access to 
each of the lots served. The City may require that the legal right of 
access be granted to other adjoining properties in order to provide a safe 
and efficient circulation system within the City. 

For an access road required by the Fire Department, as in this case, 
Kirkland Zoning Code Section 105.10.1.a.3 requires a minimum of 20 
feet of unobstructed pavement in a 25-foot wide easement or tract 
serving three or four detached dwelling units. 

ii. The applicant is proposing two access and utility easements as shown in 
Attachment 3 and described below in lieu of a dedicated and improved 
public right-of-way: 

West access and utility easement.  The proposed access and utility 
easement is 35’ wide and is situated 2’ from the west property line.
Twenty feet of unobstructed pavement is proposed to access 5 detached 
dwelling units located in the northwest portion of the Lot 2. 

South access and utility easement.  The proposed access and utility 
easement is 28’ wide and is placed no closer that 8’ to the south 
property line.  Twenty feet of unobstructed pavement is proposed within 
this easement.  The access road will serve 2 attached dwelling units, 2 
detached dwelling units, and the Mansion located in the 
south/southeast corner of Lot 2. 

iii. KZC Section 105.10.2.f requires that the paved surface in the easement 
or tract shall be set back at least five feet from any adjacent property 
which does not receive access from that easement or tract. 

The applicant is requesting to modify this requirement along 37’ of the 
west property line where the easement is being placed over an existing 
driveway.  The current driveway is located on the west property line.
The new driveway will be approximately 2’ from the west property line.
Adjoining the west property line is City right-of-way. 

iv. The applicant’s request to reduce the pavement setback along the west 
property line using KZC Section 105.103.3.a.  This code section allows 
modifications to KZC 105.10 for vehicular access easements or tracts if: 

a) The modifications will not affect the ability to provide any 
property with police, fire, emergency medical, or other essential 
services; and 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 18 

b) One of the following requirements is met: 

1) The modification is necessary because of a preexisting 
physical condition; or 

2) The modification will produce a site design superior to 
that which would result from adherence to the adopted 
standard.

v. The modifications will not affect the ability to provide any property with 
police, fire, emergency medical, or other essential services.  The 
easement road will be 20’ wide and designed to meet the City’s access 
road requirements for the Fire Department. 

vi. The modification will produce a site design superior to that which would 
result from adherence to the adopted standard.  By decreasing the 
required 5’setback to 2’ along 37’ of the west property line, the paved 
surface will be kept as far as possible from the Mansion while providing 
the necessary 20’ of paved surface.  The existing parking area will be 
removed.  In addition, the resulting paved surface provides a straight 
approach to the residences to the north while minimizing impact to the 
adjacent stream and wetland buffer. 

b. Conclusions:

i. The applicant should follow the requirements set forth in Attachment 4, 
Development Standards, regarding fire lane markings. 

ii. The applicant’s proposal to reduce the required 5’ pavement setback to 
2’ meets the established criteria for modifying the standards for 
vehicular access easements. 

 H. PUD CRITERIA 

  1. PUD 

   a. Facts:

i. The applicant is requesting a preliminary and final PUD approval with 
this proposal.  Zoning Code section 125.35 establishes four decisional 
criteria with which a PUD request must comply in order to be granted.
The applicant’s response to these criteria can be found in Attachment 
27.  Sections II.H.2 through II.H.4 below contain the staff’s findings of 
fact and conclusions based on these four criteria. 

 ii. The following elements of the applicant’s proposal are not allowed 
without the approval of this PUD application: 

  a) Developing more than one dwelling unit on a single lot in a low 
density residential zone.  The applicant is proposing a total of 9 
units in the northwest and southeast corners of the subject 
property (see Attachment 3). 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 19 

 b) Providing a zero-foot setback from property lines for the future 
detached garage for the Mansion and Unit 9 on Lot 2 (see 
Attachment 2 and 3). 

 c) Maintain a 3-foot setback from the proposed 28’ access 
easement located south of the Mansion rather than the typically 
required 20’ setback (see Attachment 3). 

   b. Conclusions:  Based on the following analysis, the application meets the 
established criteria for a PUD. 

  2. PUD Criterion 1:  The proposed PUD meets the requirements of the Zoning Code 
Chapter 125. 

   a. Facts:  The applicant has applied for a PUD consistent with the requirements of 
KZC Chapter 125.  The applicant’s proposal does not contain elements that 
cannot be modified by KZC Chapter 125. 

   b. Conclusions:  The proposal is consistent with this criterion. 

  3. PUD Criterion 2:  Any adverse impacts or undesirable effects of the proposed PUD are 
clearly outweighed by specifically identified benefits to the residents of the City. 

   a. Facts:

 i. The residential units range in size from 2,356 square feet to 2,729 
square feet.  The detached dwelling units proposed are separated by at 
least 10’.  The size and separation between the detached dwelling units 
are similar in size and scale to a typical single family development. 

  Attached Units 6 and 7, in the southeast corner, are a combined 5,225 
square feet and approximately 68’ (length) x 27’ (width).  By 
comparison the Mansion is approximately 70’ (length) x 48’ (width). 

 ii. The applicant is not requesting an increase to the 25’ building height 
limit as part of their PUD proposal. 

 iii. City policy CC-4.5 on page IV-10 of the Comprehensive Plan states that 
public scenic views and view corridors should be protected (see 
Attachment 28).  The policy goes on to say that private views are not 
protected unless established in the neighborhood plan chapters in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  The South Juanita neighborhood plan in the 
Comprehensive Plan does not identify a private view corridor over the 
subject property. 

 iv. The two structures being proposed with a zero setback are the new 
detached garage for the Mansion and Unit 9 on Lot 2.  Both structures 
are oriented at a 45 degree angle on the property line to minimize bulk 
and mass impacts to adjoining properties. 

 v. The existing 18’ wide driveway south of the Shumway Mansion is 
situated 5’ from the Mansion.  The driveway is being expanded to 20’ to 
meet the Fire Department’s standard for a fire access road. 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 20 

 vi. Development to North - Baycrest PUD

  The Baycrest PUD units located near the proposed development are 
oriented to the west/southwest (see Attachment 9).  The Baycrest 
residences are attached dwelling units that sit approximately 6’ to 11’ 
higher than the proposed first floor of the new Shumway residences (see 
Attachment 29 and 30).  Attachment 31 is a photograph looking 
towards Baycrest PUD in the area of the proposed development in the 
northwest corner of the subject property. 

  To reduce bulk and mass impacts to the Baycrest PUD to the north, the 
four residential units along the north property line have been detached 
and separated by 10’.  The units themselves are 34’ wide and are 
approximately 15’ from the common property line, thereby making the 
closest residential structure to the north approximately 50’ away.  In 
addition, trees and shrubs will be planted along the north property line 
to further buffer and soften any visual impacts created by the new 
residences.

 vii. Development to East - Westview Court PUD

 Owners in the Westview Court PUD, located east of the subject property, 
have identified the following impacts based on the applicant’s PUD 
proposal (see Attachments 13-20): 

  a) Views from 5 of 12 units located on Westview Court will be 
blocked as a result of the new development.  The neighbors 
suggest reducing pitch of roofs and/or lowering the building 
elevation to protect views to Lake Washington. 

 b) The addition of 10 units very close to their property line will 
create noise pollution.  To mitigate, Westview Court has 
proposed that the applicant install a fence, build a berm at the 
border of the two properties, add drought resistant vegetation, 
and install a drainage and irrigation system.  Improvements 
such as a stairway and terrace area were suggested by 
Westview Court to be constructed on their property as well. 

  Only 3 residential units are proposed in close proximity to the Westview 
Court property line:  attached Units 6 and 7, and detached Unit 8.
These units are located no closer than 10’ to the Westview Court 
property line.  The RS zone allows structures to be 10’ from this 
common property line. 

  The Westview Court PUD consists of 6 detached buildings with two 
attached units each (see Attachment 9) and is situated at a higher 
elevation than the Mansion property (see Attachment 32). 

  The four most western units are oriented to the west/southwest.  A fifth 
unit, located in the center of the Westview Court property, is oriented to 
the north but has windows and a deck that is oriented to look over the 
Shumway property to the west (see Attachment 33).



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 21 

The surveyed first floor of the closest Westview Court residential unit to 
the east, approximately 60’ away, is at elevation 126 (see Attachment 
29).  At the common property line, the elevation is approximately 108, a 
drop of approximately 18’. 

  To reduce bulk and mass impacts to the Westview Court PUD, the 
applicant has proposed to lower the building height limit of 25’ down to 
23’ above the average building elevation for Units 6 and 7 and construct 
an 8’ tall solid fence along the east property line where adjoining the 
new residences.  The 8’ fence will sit 5’from a retaining wall that ranges 
from 0’ to 5.5’ in height.  Ferns and small shrubs will be planted 
between the fence and rockery.  The combined height of the rockery and 
fence within 5’ of each other will not create any substantial detrimental 
effect on abutting properties or the City as a whole 

 viii. Development to South - Single Family Residences

  Three single family residences are located to the south of the subject 
property.  The houses are approximately 94’, 54’, and 53’ from the 
Mansion property and are situated at a higher elevation than the 
Mansion (see Attachment 29).  The Mansion is at approximately 
elevation 80.  The residences to the south, beginning with the western 
home, sit at approximately elevations 90, 96, and 104 (see Attachment 
34 and 35). 

    Two residences are proposed along the south property.  Unit 7 is 
proposed 10’ from the south property line and is 27’ wide.  Unit 8 is 5’ 
from the south property line but is oriented at a 45 degree angle.  By 
orienting the structure in this manner, the apparent bulk and mass of 
the new residence to the properties to the south is being reduced.
Screening bushes are also proposed along the south property line to 
further buffer and soften the appearance of the new development. 

  b. Conclusions:

    i. The resulting 3’ setback from the proposed access easement south of 
the Mansion does not create any adverse impacts or undesirable effects. 

    ii. The applicant’s proposal is similar to a single family development given 
the building heights and building separation proposed. 

    iii. The techniques used by the applicant to reduce impacts of bulk and 
mass to adjoining properties, such as landscaping, orientation of 
structures, fencing, and reducing building heights mitigates any adverse 
impacts or undesirable effects to adjoining properties that the City could 
not have been required through the standard development process.

    iv. The final plans of the project should reflect all of the design and 
mitigation techniques identified and proposed by the applicant in this 
subsection.

 4. PUD Criterion 3:  The applicant is providing one or more of the following benefits to the 
City as part of the proposed PUD: 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 22 

• The applicant is providing public facilities that could not be required by the City 
for development of the subject property without a PUD. 

• The proposed PUD will preserve, enhance or rehabilitate natural features of the 
subject property such as significant woodlands, wildlife habitats or streams that 
the City could not require the applicant to preserve, enhance, or rehabilitate 
through development of the subject property without a PUD. 

• The design of the PUD incorporates active or passive solar energy systems. 

• The design of the proposed PUD is superior in one or more of the following ways 
to the design that would result from development of the subject property without 
a PUD: 

• Increased provision of open space or recreational facilities. 
• Superior circulation patterns or location or screening of parking facilities. 
• Superior landscaping, buffering, or screening in or around the proposed 

PUD.
• Superior architectural design, placement, relationship or orientation of 

structure.
• Minimum use of impervious surfacing materials. 

a. Facts:  The applicant has identified in Attachment 27 those elements of the 
proposal that he considers to be public benefits justifying the PUD request.
Those features of the proposal which staff considers legitimate public benefits in 
that they could not be required through typical code requirements include the 
following:

 i. The proposed PUD will preserve natural features of the subject property

  The subject property has the potential to be developed with 12 
residential units based on the allowable Comprehensive Plan density (up 
to 7 units/acre) and the maximum development potential formula when 
streams or wetlands are involved. 

  The applicant is proposing to develop the subject property with 10 
residential units, which includes the Shumway Mansion.  Instead of 
adding additional residential units, the applicant is proposing to dedicate 
as open space approximately 4,788 square feet of land adjacent to the 
required wetland and stream buffer in the northeast corner of the 
subject property (see Attachment 2). 

  In addition, the applicant is proposing to enhance approximately 9,000 
square feet of the stream and wetland buffer where no buffer reduction 
is proposed by removing non-native species and replanting trees and 
shrubs at a density recommended by the City’s wetland consultant. 

 ii. Superior architectural design, placement, relationship, and orientation of 
structure

  a) Architectural Design 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 23 

  Based on the analysis of the Shumway Mansion architecture 
submitted by the applicant (see Attachment 27), the Mansion 
was designed primarily in the Craftsman style with some 
elements, such as the octagonal element and columns near the 
front entry, representing Arts and Crafts detailing. 

  By designing the new buildings to be compatible with the 
Shumway Mansion, the applicant is proposing the following 
architectural design elements to help achieve superior 
architectural design (see Attachment 7): 

   • Craftsman style windows 
   • Wood shingles 
   • Board and batten siding 
   • White 2x8 belly bands 
   • Front entry columns 
   • Dormer windows 
   • Brick veneer to accent entry features and tie in with the 

Mansion’s brick chimneys 
   • Trellises on various building facades 
   • Colors that complement the Mansion 

  b) Building Placement 

  The new residential buildings are placed a distance from the 
Mansion so as not to visually interfere with the Mansion.  The 
closest residence to the north is approximately 113’ away and 
the closest residence to the east is approximately 55’ feet away. 

  Although the Comprehensive Plan supports attached units 
(allowed with Baycrest PUD and Westview Court PUD), Units 2 
through 5 along the north property line and Units 8 and 9 along 
the south property line are separated by at least 10’ to reduce 
bulk and mass impacts to adjoining properties.  Only Units 6 
and 7 are proposed to be attached to avoid encroaching into the 
wetland and stream buffer. 

   b. Conclusion:

    i. The proposed PUD will preserve natural features of the subject property 
by dedicating additional open space contiguous to the required stream 
and wetland buffer (approximately 4,788 square feet) and enhancing the 
adjoining buffer where buffer reduction is not proposed.  To ensure that 
the open space remains protected from development, the applicant 
should expand the greenbelt protection easement to include this area as 
part of the recording of the short plat. 

    ii. The architectural design proposed by the applicant is superior since it 
complements and is consistent with architecture of the Mansion. 

    iii. The final design of the project should reflect all of the items identified 
and proposed by the applicant in this subsection. 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 24 

 I. STREAM AND WETLAND  

1. Stream and Wetland Buffer Modification

   a. Facts:

    i. The subject property contains a Class B stream and a Type 3 wetland 
(see Attachment 2) and is located in a primary basin.  The KZC requires 
a 60’ buffer for a Class B stream and a 50’ buffer for Type 3 wetland in 
a primary basin.  Due to the location of the stream and wetland, their 
buffers overlap.

    The applicant is proposing to reduce the required wetland and stream 
buffers by 1/3 of the required buffer size in areas where development is 
proposed to encroach into the required buffer.  Areas not affected by 
proposed development will retain the required buffer dimension (see 
Attachment 2 and 3). 

    Reducing a Class B stream buffer by 1/3 results in a 40’ buffer while 
reducing a Type 3 wetland by 1/3 results in a 33.33’ buffer.  Even with 
the overlap of buffers, each respective buffer is not being reduced by 
more than 1/3. 

   ii. KZC 90.60 and KZC 90.100 allows a maximum reduction of 1/3 of the 
required sensitive area buffer size through enhancement of the 
remaining buffer.  KZC 90.60.2.b (Wetland Buffer Modification) and KZC 
90.100.2 (Stream Buffer Modification) require that an improvement or 
land surface modification shall be approved in a wetland buffer only if: 

  a) It is consistent with Kirkland’s Streams, Wetlands and Wildlife 
Study (The Watershed Company, 1998) and the Kirkland
Sensitive Areas Regulatory Recommendations Report (Adolfson 
Associates, Inc., 1998); 

  b) It will not adversely affect water quality; 
  c) It will not adversely affect fish, wildlife, or their habitat; 
  d) It will not have an adverse effect on drainage and/or storm 

water detention capabilities; 
  e) It will not lead to unstable earth conditions or create an erosion 

hazard;
  f) It will not be materially detrimental to any other property or the 

City as a whole; 
  g) Fill material does not contain organic or inorganic material that 

would be detrimental to water quality or to fish, wildlife, or their 
habitat;

  h) All exposed areas are stabilized with vegetation normally 
associated with native wetland/stream buffers, as appropriate; 
and

  i) There is no practicable or feasible alternative development 
proposal that results in less impact to the buffer. 

 iii. The applicant submitted a buffer enhancement plan prepared by 
Wetland Resources, Inc. that has been reviewed by the City’s consultant, 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 25 

The Watershed Company.  The applicant has since revised their buffer 
enhancement plan to reflect The Watershed Company’s 
recommendations.  The revised report, dated December 14, 2005 can 
be found in Attachment 21, SEPA Attachment 9.

 iv. The applicant’s buffer enhancement plan inadvertently did not extend 
over the required stream buffer to the south/southwest as measured 
from the culvert in the detention pond.  The applicant intended to 
include this area in the buffer plan. 

 v. The applicant’s buffer enhancement plan states that it will not adversely 
affect water quality, not adversely affect fish, wildlife, or their habitat, not 
have an adverse effect on drainage and/or storm water detention 
capabilities, not lead to unstable earth conditions or create an erosion 
hazard, not be materially detrimental to any other property or the City as 
a whole, will not contain fill material does not contain organic or 
inorganic material that would be detrimental to water quality or to fish, 
wildlife, or their habitat, and that all exposed areas are stabilized with 
vegetation normally associated with native wetland/stream buffers, as 
appropriate.

b. Conclusion:

 i. The applicant’s revised buffer enhancement report, which contains the 
recommendation of the Watershed Company, dated December 14, 
2005, should be followed.

 ii. The buffer enhancement plan should be updated to extend over the 
stream buffer south/southwest of detention pond. 

 iii. Based on the analysis of the above listed criteria in Section II.K.2 
through II.K.10 below, the application meets the established criteria for 
reducing a stream and wetland buffer through enhancement. 

  2. Criterion 1:  The buffer enhancement plan is consistent with Kirkland’s Streams, 
Wetlands and Wildlife Study (The Watershed Company, 1998) and the Kirkland Sensitive 
Areas Regulatory Recommendations Report (Adolfson Associates, Inc., 1998). 

a. Fact:

 i. The 1998 Adolfson Report indicates that in many cases, narrower well-
vegetated stream and wetland buffers may function at the same level as 
wider poorly-vegetated stream buffers.  As a result, Adolfson Associates, 
Inc. recommends that modifications to standards stream buffers should 
include either enhancement to improve the function and value of the 
remaining buffer or include additional buffer in another location on the 
property.

 ii. Kirkland’s Streams, Wetlands and Wildlife Study (The Watershed 
Company, 1998) states that streams and wetlands in the Forbes Creek 
Basin serve primarily ecological functions and features as 
flood/stormwater conveyance and water quality maintenance for 
receiving waters.  The report also states that opportunities to vegetate 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 26 

stream and wetland buffers should be taken advantage of as future 
opportunities arise.  In addition, stream buffers should be enhanced to 
provide cover for wildlife to travel between wetlands and associated 
habitats.  Smaller wetlands could be enhanced by removing non-native 
species and establishing a buffer with native vegetation. 

 iii. The applicant’s buffer enhancement plan breaks down the buffer area 
into two sections (see Attachment 21, SEPA Attachment 9).  Buffer 
enhancement area A consists of a severely degraded buffer.
Improvements such as a shed, parking lot (asphalt), driveways (asphalt), 
concrete pads/patio associated with the Mansion, and the Shumway 
Mansion itself, are located within the buffer in this area.  This area also 
includes non-native plant species such as Himalayan blackberry.  Buffer 
enhancement area B does not contain any improvements but is 
overgrown with Himalayan blackberry. 

 iv. To enhance affected stream and wetland buffer areas, the applicant is 
proposing to remove the existing invasive plant species, remove the 
impervious surfaces such as the existing asphalt driveway and parking 
lot area located within the stream and wetland buffer. 

 v. KZC Section 90.50 and 90.95 requires that upon project completion, 
the applicant shall install between the upland boundary of all stream 
buffers and the developed portion of the site a permanent three- to four-
foot-tall split rail fence.  Installation of the permanent fence must be 
done by hand where necessary to prevent machinery from entering the 
stream or its buffer. 

 vi. KZC Section 90.150 requires that the applicant dedicate development 
rights, air space, or grant a greenbelt protection or open space 
easement to the City to protect sensitive areas and their buffers. Land 
survey information shall be provided by the applicant for this purpose in 
a format approved by the Planning Official. 

b. Conclusion:

 i. The applicant’s proposal to reduce and enhance the stream buffer is 
consistent with the Kirkland’s Streams, Wetlands and Wildlife Study (The 
Watershed Company, 1998) and the Kirkland Sensitive Areas Regulatory 
Recommendations Report (Adolfson Associates, Inc. 1998). 

 ii. The applicant should install between the upland boundary of all stream 
buffers and the developed portion of the site, a permanent three- to four-
foot-tall split rail fence.  Installation of the permanent fence must be 
done by hand where necessary to prevent machinery from entering the 
stream or its buffer. 

 iii. Prior to recording of the short plat, the applicant should, on the mylar for 
the short plat, grant a greenbelt protection easement to protect the 
stream and wetland and their buffers on the subject property. Land 
survey information should be provided by the applicant for this purpose 
on the short plat mylar. 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 27 

  3. Criterion 2:  The buffer modification will not adversely affect water quality. 

a. Fact:

 i. When the Shumway Mansion project was approved in the early 1980’s, 
the City did not regulate stream buffers as it does today.  In addition, the 
wetland on the subject property was not discovered until the review of 
this permit application.  Therefore, some of the existing improvements 
associated with the Shumway Mansion are located within the stream 
and wetland buffer based on today’s standards. 

 ii. The affected area will be made pervious and replaced with native plant 
species at a density of 10’-15’ centers for trees and 5’-6’ centers for 
shrubs.

 iii. During construction, the applicant will be required to protect water 
quality by installing erosion and sedimentation control devices consistent 
with the most current edition of the King County Storm Water Manual. 

b. Conclusion:  The proposal will not adversely affect water quality. 

  4. Criterion 3.  The buffer modification will not adversely affect fish, wildlife, or their habitat. 

a. Fact:

 i. The stream on the subject property does not contain fish.   

 ii. Removal of Himalayan Blackberry and replacement with native 
vegetation will increase diversity of other native plants and allow for 
greater access within the buffer for wildlife. 

 iii. Habitat area will increase with the removal of existing improvements 
associated with the Shumway Mansion that are located within the 
stream and wetland buffer 

b. Conclusion:  Fish, wildlife, or their habitat will not be adversely affected. 

  5. Criterion 4.  The buffer modification will not have an adverse effect on drainage and/or 
storm water detention capabilities. 

a. Fact:

 i. Existing impervious areas within the required stream and wetland buffer 
such as parking areas, driveways will be removed and replaced with 
pervious area and vegetated with native plant species.

 ii. The narrower buffer, which will be enhanced with native plantings, will 
serve to moderate runoff volume and flow rates. 

b. Conclusion:  The proposal will not have an adverse effect on drainage and/or 
storm detention functions. 

  6. Criterion 5.  The buffer modification will not lead to unstable earth conditions or create 
an erosion hazard. 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 28 

a. Fact:

 i. Removal of invasive vegetation will result in temporary slope instability.  
Planting of erosion-controlling grass after the invasive vegetation has 
been cleared will serve to stabilize the bank prior to installation and 
upon growth of the native vegetation.  In the long term, greater stability 
will be achieved with the native plants and increase of trees being 
planted.

 ii. The proposed residential development will occur outside the steep slope 
areas.

b. Conclusion:  The proposal is consistent with this criterion. 

  7. Criterion 6.  The buffer modification will not be materially detrimental to any other 
property or the City as a whole. 

a. Fact:

 i. The area in which the stream and wetland buffer is being modified does 
not abut any adjoining properties. 

 ii. The applicant is proposing to enhance the functionality of the stream 
and buffer through this stream buffer modification process. 

b. Conclusion:  The proposal will not be materially detrimental to any other property 
or to the City as a whole. 

  8. Criterion 7.  Fill material does not contain organic or inorganic material that would be 
detrimental to water quality or to fish, wildlife, or their habitat. 

a. Fact:  Kirkland Zoning Code section 115.75.2 states that all materials used as 
fill must be non-dissolving and non-decomposing.  Fill material must not contain 
organic or inorganic material that would be detrimental to the water quality, or 
existing habitat, or create any other significant adverse impacts to the 
environment.

b. Conclusion:  As part of the grading permit, the applicant should demonstrate 
compliance with KZC Section 115.75.2 to ensure that fill material will not 
contain organic or inorganic material that would be detrimental to the water 
quality, or existing habitat, or create any other significant adverse impacts to the 
environment.

  9. Criterion 8.  All exposed areas are stabilized with vegetation normally associated with 
native wetland/stream buffers, as appropriate. 

a. Fact:  The following is a list of native vegetation to be planted:  Western Red 
Cedar, Douglas Fir, Osoberry, Vine Maple, Red-Osier Dogwood, Snowberry, and 
Big Leaf Maple. 

b. Conclusion:  The proposal is consistent with this criterion. 

  10. Criterion 9.  There is no practicable or feasible alternative development proposal that 
results in less impact to the buffer 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 29 

a. Fact:

    i. The applicant has considered all practicable or feasible alternatives of a 
development proposal that result in less impact to the buffer that does 
not eliminate a residential unit or create smaller residential unit sizes.
The clustered housing site plan alternative chosen by the applicant helps 
minimize areas where the stream and wetland buffer areas are reduced.

 ii. In areas where the stream and wetland buffers are reduced, 
enhancement of the buffer is required.  The function of the buffer is 
thereby increased and native plant species are planted.

b. Conclusion:

 i. Given the location of existing improvements, the applicant’s site design, 
and the increased functionality of the enhanced reduced buffer, there is 
no practicable or feasible alternative development proposal that results 
in less impact to the buffer. 

 ii. There is no adverse impact to the stream and its buffer with this 
proposal.

 iii. The impact to the stream buffer is considered positive since the buffer is 
being increased from its existing size and being made more functional 
through enhancement. 

  11. Maximum Development Potential

a. Facts:

i. KZC 90.135.1 Maximum Development Potential requires that the 
maximum potential number of dwelling units for a site which contains a 
wetland, stream, minor lake, or their buffers shall be the buildable area 
in square feet divided by the minimum lot area per unit as specified by 
Chapters 15 through 60 KZC, plus the area of the required sensitive 
area buffer in square feet divided by the minimum lot area per unit as 
specified by Chapters 15 through 60 KZC, multiplied by the 
development factor derived from subsection (2) of this section: 

MAXIMUM DWELLING UNIT POTENTIAL = (BUILDABLE AREA/THE 
PRESCRIBED MINIMUM LOT AREA PER UNIT) + [(BUFFER AREA/THE 
PRESCRIBED MINIMUM LOT AREA PER UNIT) X (DEVELOPMENT 
FACTOR)]

For purposes of this subsection only, “buildable area” means the total 
area of the subject property minus sensitive areas and their buffers. 

Therefore, the maximum dwelling unit potential for the Shumway 
Mansion project is as follows: 

=62,308/8,500 + [(31,387/8,500) * (0.8)] 
=7.33 + [3.69 * .8] 
=7.33 + [2.95] 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 30 

=10.28
=10 units 

ii. The applicant is proposing a total of 10 dwelling units, including the 
Shumway Mansion. 

   b. Conclusion:  The amount of dwelling units or density of the proposed 
development is not a constraining factor in the review of this permit. 

J. PROCESS IIB APPROVAL CRITERIA 

1. Standard Review Process

a. Facts:

i. The following is a summary of the review processes as required by the 
KZC for each of the applicant’s requests. 

ii. KZC 145.10 states that if an applicant’s proposal requires approval 
through a Process I and is also part of a proposal that requires 
additional approval through a Process IIB, the entire proposal will be 
decided upon using Process IIB. 

 b. Conclusion:  The applicant’s entire proposal is being reviewed through a Process 
IIB.

2. Process IIB Approval Criteria

a. Fact:  Zoning Code section 152.70.3 states that a Process IIB application may 
be approved if: 

i. It is consistent with all applicable development regulations and, to the 
extent there is no applicable development regulation, the 
Comprehensive Plan; and

ii. is consistent with the public health, safety, and welfare.

b. Conclusion:  The HL overlay alteration and PUD proposals comply with the 
criteria in section 152.70.3.  They are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

Applicant Request Required Review Process 

Historic Overlay Alteration Process IIB 

Rezone Process IIB 

Class B Stream Buffer Modification Process I 

Type III Wetland Buffer Modification Planning Official Decision 

PUD Process IIB 

Short Plat Process I 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 31 

(see Section II.K below).  In addition, the proposals are consistent with the public 
health, safety, and welfare because reduction of the HL overlay and PUD have 
no bearing to public health and safety. 

In terms of public welfare, the HL overlay reduction and PUD proposals will allow 
for future development of the site consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (low-
density residential) while preserving the historic nature of the Mansion as a 
single-family residence. 

 K. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

1. Fact:

a. The subject property is located within the South Juanita neighborhood.  Figure J-
2b on page XV.I-6 designates the subject property for low density single-family 
uses (see Attachment 36).  Clustered housing at up to 7 units/acre is allowed.  
The base density of the subject property is 5 units/acre.  An increase at up to 7 
units/acre is allowed if certain conditions are met.  These conditions can be 
found on page XV.I-4 (see Attachment 37). 

b. The applicant is proposing clustered housing at the base density of 5 units per 
acre.  The conditions in the Comprehensive Plan for an incremental increase in 
density (above the density of 5 units per acre not to exceed 7 units per acre) do 
not apply to the applicant’s proposal. 

c. The Shumway Mansion is designated as a minor landmark in the South Juanita 
Neighborhood Plan, figure J-6, page XV.I-17 (see Attachment 38). 

d. Community Character Element:  Historic Resources and Community Landmarks, 
table CC-1, list B of the Comprehensive Plan, list the Shumway Mansion as a 
community landmark (see Attachment 26). 

e. The following is a list of goals and policies found in Chapter IV of the 
Comprehensive Plan relating to community character: 

• Goal CC-2: Preserve and enhance Kirkland’s historic identity. 
• Policy CC-2.1: Preserve historic resources and community landmarks of 

recognized significance. 
• Policy CC-2.3: Provide encouragement, assistance and incentives to 

private owners for preservation, restoration, redevelopment, reuse, and 
recognition of significant historic buildings and sites. 

• Policy CC-2.5: Encourage the use of visual and oral records to identify 
and interpret the history of the City of Kirkland. 

• Goal CC-4: Maintain and enhance Kirkland’s built and natural 
environment by strengthening the visual identity of Kirkland and its 
neighborhoods.

• Policy CC-4.1: Enhance City identity by use of urban design principles 
that recognize the unique characteristics of different types of 
development, including single-family, multifamily, and various types and 
sizes of commercial development. 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 32 

• Policy CC-4.7: Enhance City and neighborhood identity through features 
that provide a quality image that reflects the City’s unique 
characteristics and vision. 

2. Conclusion:

a. The applicant’s proposed density of 5 units/acre and clustered housing 
approach is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

b. Retaining the Shumway Mansion as a single family residence and preserving the 
reduced HL overlay ensures the Mansion as a historic landmark within the 
community.

L. DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

1. Fact:  Additional comments and requirements placed on the project are found on the 
Development Standards Sheet, Attachment 4. 

2. Conclusion:  The applicant should follow the requirements set forth in Attachment 4.  In 
lieu of completing these improvements, the applicant may submit to the Department of 
Public Works a security device to cover the cost of installing the improvements and 
guaranteeing installation within one year of the date of plat approval 

III. MINOR MODIFICATIONS

Under KZC Section 152.125, the Department of Planning and Community Development shall be 
administratively authorized to approve modifications to the approved site plan, unless: 

A. There is a change in use and the Zoning Code establishes different or more rigorous standards 
for the new use than for the existing use; or 

B. The Planning Director determines that there will be substantial changes in the impacts on the 
neighborhood or the City as a result of the change. 

IV.  CHALLENGES AND JUDICIAL REVIEW

The following is a summary of the deadlines and procedures for challenges and appeals.  Any person 
wishing to file or respond to a challenge or appeal should contact the Planning Department for further 
procedural information. 

A. CHALLENGE

Section 152.85 of the Zoning Code allows the Hearing Examiner's recommendation to be 
challenged by the applicant or any person who submitted written or oral comments or testimony 
to the Hearing Examiner.  A party who signed a petition may not challenge unless such party also 
submitted independent written comments or information.  The challenge must be in writing and 
must be delivered, along with any fees set by ordinance, to the Planning Department by 5:00 
p.m., _____________________________, seven (7) calendar days following distribution of 
the Hearing Examiner's written recommendation on the application.  Within this same time 
period, the person making the challenge must also mail or personally deliver to the applicant and 
all other people who submitted comments or testimony to the Hearing Examiner, a copy of the 
challenge together with notice of the deadline and procedures for responding to the challenge. 



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 33 

Any response to the challenge must be delivered to the Planning Department within seven (7) 
calendar days after the challenge letter was filed with the Planning Department.  Within the same 
time period, the person making the response must deliver a copy of the response to the applicant 
and all other people who submitted comments or testimony to the Hearing Examiner. 

Proof of such mail or personal delivery must be made by affidavit, available from the Planning 
Department.  The affidavit must be attached to the challenge and response letters, and delivered 
to the Planning Department.  The challenge will be considered by the City Council at the time it 
acts upon the recommendation of the Hearing Examiner. 

B. JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Section 152.110 of the Zoning Code allows the action of the City in granting or denying this 
zoning permit to be reviewed in King County Superior Court.  The petition for review must be filed 
within twenty-one (21) calendar days of the issuance of the final land use decision by the City. 

V. LAPSE OF APPROVAL

Under Section 152.115 of the Zoning Code, the applicant must begin construction or submit to the City a 
complete building permit application for the development activity, use of land or other actions approved 
under this chapter within four years after the final approval of the City of Kirkland on the matter, or the 
decision becomes void; provided, however, that in the event judicial review is initiated per KZC 152.110,
the running of the four years is tolled for any period of time during which a court order in said judicial 
review proceeding prohibits the required development activity, use of land, or other actions. The applicant 
must substantially complete construction for the development activity, use of land, or other actions 
approved under this chapter and complete the applicable conditions listed on the notice of decision within 
six years after the final approval on the matter, or the decision becomes void 

VI. APPENDICES

Attachments 1 through 38 are attached. 

1. Vicinity Map 
2. Site Plan 
3. Short Plat Map 
4. Development Standards 
5. Tree Retention Plan
6. Landscape Plan 
7. Building Elevations 
8. Property Survey 
9. Aerial photographs 
10. Resolution R-3107 
11. Ordinance O-3308 
12. Memo dated December 14, 1992 from Linda Phillips to Eric Shields 
13. Email from Dean Scotton, October 31, 2005, 10024 NE 115th Lane NE, Kirkland
14. Letter from Andrea Wood 11315 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 28, 2005
15. Letter from Peter Lacy 11325 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 24, 2005
16. Letter from Richard Webber, 11318 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 23, 2005
17. Letter from Dorothy Wolfe, 11326 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 23, 2005
18. Letter from Janette Petragallo, 11317 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 25, 2005
19. Letter from Vittorio Mangione, 11309 101st Place NE, Kirkland, dated October 24, 2005



 Shumway PUD & HL Alteration 
 ZON04-00025 
 Page 34 

20. Letter from Harvey Sherman, 11750 73rd Place NE, Kirkland, WA  98034, dated October 26, 
2005

21. SEPA Information 
22. Response to Historic Overlay Alteration Criteria from Richard Harris dated October 11, 2004 
23. Letter from Kirkland Heritage Society dated, October 4, 2005 
24. Letter from King County Office of Cultural Resources, dated September 16, 2004 
25. Photographs of Mansion from NE 99th Place 
26. Comprehensive Plan, Table CC-1, List B 
27. Applicant response to PUD criteria dated January 9, 2006 
28. Policy CC-4.5 on page IV-10 of the Comprehensive Plan 
29. PUD Site Plan 
30. Contour Map - Shumway and Baycrest PUD 
31. Photograph looking north towards Baycrest PUD 
32. Contour Map - Shumway and Westview Court PUD 
33. Photographs looking east towards Westview Court PUD 
34. Contour Map – Shumway and Single Family residences to South 
35. Photographs looking south towards single family residences 
36. Comprehensive Plan Map Figure J-2b 
37. Comprehensive Plan page XV.I-4 
38. Comprehensive Plan, South Juanita Neighborhood Plan, figure J-6 

VII. PARTIES OF RECORD

Robert Ketterlin, Shumway10, LLC, 11608 100th Avenue NE, #1B, Kirkland, WA  98034 
Doug Yost, 11211 NE 102nd Street, Kirkland, WA  98033 
Richard Harris, 11410 99th Place NE, Kirkland, WA  98033 
Dean Scotton, 10024 NE 115th Lane NE, Kirkland, WA  98033 
Andrea Wood 11315 101st Place NE, Kirkland, WA  98033 
Peter Lacy 11325 101st Place NE, Kirkland, WA  98033 
Richard Webber, 11318 101st Place NE, Kirkland, WA  98033 
Dorothy Wolfe, 11326 101st Place NE, Kirkland, WA  98033 
Janette Petragallo, 11317 101st Place NE, Kirkland, WA  98033 
Vittorio Mangione, 11309 101st Place NE, Kirkland, WA  98033 
Harvey Sherman, 11750 73rd Place NE, Kirkland, WA  98034 
Bob Burke, President of Kirkland Heritage Society, 203 Market Street, Kirkland, WA  98033 
Department of Planning and Community Development 
Department of Public Works 
Department of Building and Fire Services 

A written recommendation will be issued by the Hearing Examiner within eight calendar 
days of the date of the open record hearing. 





- - -- -- . -- - 
HEICHT CALCULATION ~vsipiy I 

. HEIGHT CALCULATION ~ ~ ~ u l l n q  ST 
d l  i ,-__ 

I+~-L-.~-~.- "- 
-7 ex< ' 'e .-"--. -i.*-. -:-p:*;: - , . .~ i?+  ..... . . -- .,a" , 

8 "'a" 
- I... , 

"a. 

- P~MT CALCULATION- r 1 
,w 

>.ll I 

SITE PLAN - . . - . - . 
BUILDING HEIGHT -- CALCULATION5 



SHUMYVAY 1 0  

VICINITY MAP 

PROAECT INFORMATION: 
-,%. 

ioe APUPESS 
,,., *..*be ",,--.-* 
owe% -, w".e 
, / s l l " L l d l i ~  
we,-  .-s 
MI,&,, - P T . l t - u w  - ,:o.,*,*..'.. 
.A, ,<>.>b>W*.C 

TAX ACCOUNT NUMBERS 
rvmmuuurrro. I no>&,..ew 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
, , . - , - # U . a N m i W b U - , - - ~ - L  
yYYa.r~.iLa.*Lill~r'*'*'*.'*'*'*'*"'*+ 

~ ~ , . ' . . - . . . " - " P " l P " l P " l ~  

CONSULTANTS: -.-- 
ARC*ITECl: 
rrc-PD 
3 0  , ~ ~ b . , . ~ L m . Z O ?  
--.a- 

m*.. w r w  

INDEX OF DRANINGS - 
ARCHITECTURAL "*" 
W C W N O  COVeUWCET 
A * ,  mULI-mMIMaIw--  

CIVIL "6" 

LANDSGAPE "L' 
LZ w - 
!AREA , . - I  SUMMARIES .~-- 

1 8 u I f i ~  ) 1 4 6  
'"rill* 

,W.LL 

AREA 5UMMARIEB 
Bullding * 



A 5HORT PLAT AND 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 FIFTH AVENUE. KIRKLAND, WASHINGTON 98033-6189 (425) 587-3600 

PERMIT NO.: ZON04-00025 DATE: 01/24/M06 

PERMIT CONDITIONS AS FOLLOWS: 

1) ***FIRE DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS**' 

2) Only one additional hydrant is required (the 2 hydrants shown nearest the 2 clusters of homes are not required). The new 
hydrant as well as the existing hydrant at the entrance to the property are required to be equipped with 5 Stortz fittings. 

3) The minumum unobstructed width of fire department access roads shall be not less than 20'. Please note this width 
requirement is also applicable to the access road serving the houses on the south end of the property (it does not appear 
that the width shown on the civil drawing page 3 of 4 is a full 20 feet in width). 

The maximum allowable grade for fire department access roads is 15% 

If the required width or grade cannot be met, the houses which are affected may be sprinklered 

4) Available fire flow in the area is approximately 2,200 gpm on 99th PI NEi100th NE which is adequate for development. 

5) Fire lane marking and signs required on the access roads 

6) Per Kirkland Municipal Code, all new buildings which are 5,000 gross square feet or larger require fire sprinklers. This 
requirement also applies to new single family homes, duplexes, and townhomes; the garage is included in the gross 
square footage. (This comment is included in the zoning conditions for informational purposes only.) 

7) ***BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS*** 

8) Buildings must comply with 1997 editions of the Uniform Building, Mechanical, Plumbing and Fire Codes as adopted and 
amended by the State of Washington and the City of Kirkland. 

9) Structure must comply with Washington State Energy Code (WAC 51-1 1); and the Washington State Ventilation and 
Indoor Air Quality Code (WAC 51-13). 

10) Plumbing meter and service line shall be sized in accordance with the UPC 

11) Property is in a landslide hazard area. A geotechnical report is required to address development activity. Report must be 
prepared by a Washington State licensed Professional Engineer. Recommendations contained within the report shall be 
incorporated into the design of the Short Plat and subsequent structures. 

12) Prior to issuance of Building, Demolition or Landsurface Modification permit applicant must submit a proposed rat baiting 
program for review and approval. Kirkland Municipal Ordinance 9.04.050 

13) You can review your permit status and conditions at www.kirklandpermits.net 

PUBLIC WORKS CONDITIONS 

Permit Information 
Permit #: ZON04-00025 
Project Name: Shumway Mansion Redevelopment 
Project Address: 11401 99th PI. NE 
Date: October 24. 2005 

Public Works Staff Contacts 
Land Use and Pre-Submittal Process: 
Rob Jammerman, Development Engineering Manager 
Phone: 425-587-3845 Fax: 425-587-3807 
E-mail: rjammer@ci.kirkland.wa.us 

Building and Land Surface Modification (Grading) Permit Process: 
John Burkhalter. Senior Development Engineer 
Phone: 425-587-3846 Fax: 425-587-3807 
E-mail: jburkhal@ci.kirkland.wa.us 

General Cond~tions: 



PERMIT NO.: 20N04-00025 DATE: 0112412006 

PERMIT CONDITIONS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. All public improvements associated with this project including street and utility improvements, must meet the City of 
Kirkland Public Works Pre-Approved Plans and Policies Manual. A Public Works Pre-Approved Plans and Policies 
manual can be purchased from the Public Works Department, or it may be retrieved from the Public Works Department's 
page at the City of Kirkland's web site at www.ci.kirkland.wa.us. 

2. This project will be subject to Public Works Permit and Connection Fees. It is the applicant's responsibility to contact 
the Public Works Department by phone or in person to determine the fees. The fees can also be review the City of 
Kirkland web site at www.ci.kirkland.wa.us. The applicant should anticipate the following fees: 
o Water and Sewer connection Fees (paid with the issuance of a Building Permit) 
o Side Sewer Inspection Fee (paid with the issuance of a Building Permit) 
o Water Meter Fee (paid with the issuance of a Building Permit) 
o Right-of-way Fee 
o Review and lnspection Fee (for utilities and street improvements). 
o Traffic Impact Fee (paid with the issuance of Building Permit). For additional information, see notes below. 

3. Prior to submittal of a Building or Zoning Permit, the applicant must apply for a Concurrency Test Notice. Contact 
Thang Nguyen. Transportation Engineer, at 425-576-2901 for more information. 
4. Building Permits associated with this proposed project will be subject to the traffic impact fees per Chapter 27.04 of the 
Kirkland Municipal Code. The impact fees shall be paid prior to issuance of the Building Permit(s). 

5.  All civil engineering plans which are submitted in conjunction with a building, grading, or right-of-way permit must 
conform to the Public Works Policy titled ENGINEERING PLAN REQUIREMENTS. This policy is contained in the Public 
Works Pre-Approved Plans and Policies manual. 

6. All street improvements and underground utility improvements (storm, sewer, and water) must be designed by a 
Washington State Licensed Engineer; all drawings shall bear the engineers stamp. 

7. All plans submitted in conjunction with a building, grading or right-of-way permit must have elevations which are based 
on the King County datum only (NAVD 88). 

8. A completeness check meeting is required prior to submittal of any Building Permit applications. 

9. Prior to issuance of any commercial or multifamily Building Permit, the applicant shall provide a plan for garbage 
storage and pickup. The plan shall be approved by Waste Management and the City. 

10. All subdivision recording mylar's shall include the following note: 

Utility Maintenance: Each property owner shall be responsible for maintenance of the sanitary sewer or storm water stub 
from the point of use on their own property to the point of connection in the City sanitary sewer main or storm water main. 
Any portion of a sanitary sewer or surface water stub, which jointly serves more than one property, shall be jointly 
maintained and repaired by the property owners sharing such stub. The joint use and maintenance shall "run with the 
land" and will be binding on all property owners within this subdivision, including their heirs, successors and assigns. 

Public Right-of-way Sidewalk and Vegetation Maintenance: Each property owner shall be responsible for keeping the 
sidewalk abutting the subject property clean and litter free. The property owner shall also be responsible for the 
maintenance of the vegetation within the abutting landscape strip. The maintenance shall "run with the land" and will be 
binding on all property owners within this subdivision, including their heirs, successors and assigns. 

Sanitary Sewer Conditions: 

1 .  The existing sanitary sewer main within the 99th PI. NE public right-of-way along the front of the property and the sewer 
main that runs along the south property line is adequate to serve the project. 

2. For the north units, extend and 8-inch sewer main to within 150 feet of the farthest unit and terminate the extension 
with a manhole. From this main extension, extend a 6-inch side sewer to jointly serve all 6 units. 

3. Provide a plan and profile design for the sewer line extension. 

4. The sewer main extensloti shall be encompassed in a 20 foot wide public sanitary sewer easement 



PERMIT NO.: 20N04-00025 DATE: 01/24/2006 

PERMIT CONDITIONS AS FOLLOWS: 

5. For the east units, extend a 6-inch side sewer to jointly serve all 3 units 

Water System Conditions: 

1. The existing water main in the 99th PI, public right-of-way along the front of the subject property is adequate to serve 
this proposed development. 

2. One on-site hydrant is being required by the Fire Department. This hydrant shall be located along access road that 
parallels the west property line approximately 140 ft north of the site entrance (there is an existing hydrant shown there 
now on the plans). To supply this hydrant, extend an 8-inch water main from the water main in 99th PI. NE. 

3. Provide a separate 1" minimum water service from the water main to the meter for each new building. The actual 
meter size shall be sized per the Uniform Plumbing Code. The meters shall be tapped from the main in 99th PI. NE and 
located in the landscape strip along 99th PI. NE. The applicant can choose to serve the project with individual meters or 
one master meter for the entire site. Also, an irrigation meter is suggested, but not required. 

4. A 15 foot wide public water line easement shall encompass the said on-site water main extension 

Surface Water Conditions: 

1. Provide temporary and permanent storm water control per the 1998 King County Surface Water Design Manual. An 
impervious area credit will be given for the existing parking lots that will be removed. 

2. Provide a level one off-site analysis (based on the King County Surface Water Design Manual, core requirement #2). 

3. For new or reconstructed impervious areas, subject to vehicular use, provide storm water quality treatment per the 
most current City-adopted Surface Water Design Manual. The applicant is encouraged to look into using porous 
pavements or other Low Impact Development alternatives. 

4. Because this project proposes work in the strcam (which is part of thc detention pond), a HPA from the Washington 
State Dept. of Fish and Wildlife will be required. 

5. As part of the roof and driveway drainage conveyance system for each new house, each lot shall contain a 10 ft. long 
(min.) infiltration trench with an overflow to the public storm drain system. These infiltration trenches shall be installed 
with the individual new houses. 

6. The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Phase I1 Final Rule requires operators of small 
construction sites (disturbing between 1 and 5 acres of land) to obtain a Construction Storm water General Permit 
through the Washington State Department of Ecology, Information about the permit can be obtained at: 
Washington State Department of Ecology http:l/w.ecy.wa.gov/programs/wqlstormwater/construction/ 
U.S. EPA Office of Wastewater Management http://cfpub.epa.gov/npdeslstormwater/const.cfm 
Specific question can be directed to: 
Jeff Killelea 
PO Box 47600 
Olympia, WA 98504-7600 
(360) 407-61 27 
jki1461 @ecy.wa.gov 

7. Provide an erosion control plan with Building or Land Surface Modification Permit application. The plan shall be in 
accordance with the 1998 King County Surface Water Design Manual. 

8. Construction drainage control shall he maintained by the developer and will he subject to periodic inspections. During 
the period from April 1 to October 31, all denuded soils must be covered within 15 days; between November 1 and March 
31, all denuded soils must be covered within 12 hours. If an erosion problem already exists on the site, other cover 
protection and erosion control will be required. 

9. Provide a separate storm drainage connection for each building. All roof and driveway drainage must be tight-lined to 
the storm drainage system. 



PERMIT NO.: ZON04-00025 DATE: 01/24/2006 

PERMIT CONDITIONS AS FOLLOWS: 

Street and Pedestrian Improvement Conditions: 

1. The subject property abuts 99th Place NE (a Collector type street). Zoning Code sections 110.10 and 110.25 require 
the applicant to make half-street improvements in rights-of-way abutting the subject property. Section 110.30-1 10.50 
establishes that this street must be improved with the following: 

A. Widen the street to 18 ft. from centerline of the right-of-way to the face of curb (not to the center of the existing 
asphalt). A taper in the curb alignment may be needed to transition to the existing curb to the north; this will be decided 
during construction permit review. 
B. Install storm drainage, curb and gutter, a 4.5 ft, planter strip with street trees 30 ft. on-center, and a 5 it. wide sidewalk. 

2. The project is proposing a private access easement for vehicular access to the detached dwelling units. Because this 
project with function like a multi-family project (several units will be on one lot), Public Works supports the proposed 
access layout and does not recommend dedication and improvement of a public right-of-way for access to the detached 
dwelling units. 

3. A 2-inch asphalt street overlay will be required where more than three utility trench crossings occur with 150 lineal ft, of 
street length or where utility trenches parallel the street centerline. Grinding of the existing asphalt to blend in the overlay 
will be required along all match lines. 

4. If on-site guest parking is not provided, then the driveway for each lot shall be long enough so that parked cars do not 
extend into the access easement or right-of-way (20 ft. min.). 

5. All street and driveway intersections shall not have any visual obstructions within the sight distance triangle. See Public 
Works Pre-approved Policy R.13 for the sight distance criteria and specifications. 

6. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to relocate any above-ground or below-ground utilities which conflict with 
the project associated street or utility improvements. 

7 .  Underground all new and existing on-site utility lines and overhead transmission lines. 

8. Zoning Code Section 110.60.9 establishes the requirement that existing utility and transmission (power, telephone, 
etc.) lines on-site and in rights-of-way adjacent to the site must be underground. The Public Works Director may 
determine if undergrounding transmission lines in the adjacent right-of-way is not feasible and defer the undergrounding 
by signing an agreement to participate in an undergrounding project, if one is ever proposed. In this case, the Public 
Works Director has determined that undergrounding of existing overhead utility on 99th PI. NE is not feasible at this time 
and the undergrounding of off-sitelfrontage transmission lines should be deferred with a LID No Protest Agreement. 

9. New street lights are required per Puget Power design and Public Works approval. Design must be submitted prior to 
issuance of a grading or building permit. 



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Planning and Community Development Department 

,Z 123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA 98033 425.587-3225 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS LIST 
File: SHUMWAY 10.20N0400025 

Subdivision Standards 
22.28.030 LotSize. Unless otherwise approved in the preliminary subdivision or short subdivision 
approval, all lots within a subdivision must meet the minimum size requirements established for 
the property in the Kirkland zoning code or other land use regulatory document. 
22.28.050 Lot Dimensions. For lots smaller than 5,000 square feet, the lot width at the back of 
the required front yard shall not be less than 50 feet unless the garage is located at the rear of the 
lot or the lot is a flag lot. 
22.28.130 Vehicular Access Easements. The applicant shall comply with the requirements found 
in the Zoning Code for vehicular access easements or tracts. 
22.28.190 Subdivisions on the Shoreline. Subdivisions adjacent to Lake Washington must comply 
with the provisions of Kirkland' s Shoreline Master Program regarding open space and public 
access along the waterfront. 
22.28.210 Significant Trees. The applicant shall retain at least twenty-five percent of the healthy 
significant trees, together with any associated groundcover or understory vegetation necessary to 
assure long-term health and prevent erosion. The tree retention plan is shown on Attachment 5. 
All trees designated to be saved under the tree retention plan must be retained, unless a 
modification to the tree retention plan is approved by the Department of Planning and Community 
Development. 
22.32.010 Utility System Improvements. All utility system improvements must be designed and 
installed in accordance with all standards of the applicable serving utility. 
22.32.030 Stormwater Control System. The applicant shall comply with the construction phase 
and permanent stormwater control requirements of the Municipal Code. 
22.32.050 Transmission Line Undergrounding. The applicant shall comply with the utility lines 
and appurtenances requirements of the Zoning Code. 
22.32.060 Utility Easements. Except in unusual circumstances, easements for utilities should be 
at least ten feet in width. 
27.06.030 Park Impact Fees. New residential units are required to pay park impact fees prior to 
issuance of a building permit. The impact fee for new single-family dwelling units is $612. The 
impact fee for new multifamily dwelling units is $430. Exemptions and/or credits may apply 
pursuant to KMC 27.06.050 and KMC 27.06.060. If a property contains an existing unit to be 
removed, a "credit" for that unit shall apply to the first building permit of the subdivision in the 
amount of $612 for a single family unit and $430 for a multi-family unit. 

Prior to Recording: 



22.20.362 Short Plat - Title Report. The applicant shall submit a title company certification which 
is not more than 30 calendar days old verifying ownership of the subject property on the date that 
the property owner($ (as indicated in the report) sign(s) the short plat documents; containing a 
legal description of the entire parcel to be subdivided; describing any easements or restrictions 
affecting the property with a description, purpose and reference by auditor' s file number and/or 
recording number; any encumbrances on the property; and any delinquent taxes or assessments 
on the property. 
22.20.366 Short Plat - Lot Corners. The exterior short plat boundary and all interior lot corners 
shall be set by a registered land surveyor. If the applicant submits a bond for construction of short 
plat improvements and installation of permanent interior lot corners, the City may allow installation 
of temporary interior lot corners until the short plat improvements are completed. 
22.20.390 Short Plat - Improvements. The owner shall complete or bond all required right-of-way, 
easement, utility and other similar improvements. 
22.32.020 Water Svstem. The applicant shall install a system to provide potable water, adequate 
fire flow and all required fire-fighting infrastructure and appurtenances to each lot created. 
22.32.040 Sanitary Sewer System. The developer shall install a sanitary sewer system to serve 
each lot created. 
22.32.080 Performance Bonds. In lieu of installing all required improvements and components 
as part of a plat or short plat, the applicant may propose to post a bond, or submit evidence that 
an adequate security device has been submitted and accepted by the service provider (City of 
Kirkland and/or Northshore Utility District), for a period of one year to ensure completion of these 
requirements within one year of plat/short plat approval. 

Prior to occupancy: 
22.32.020 Water Svstem. The applicant shall install a system to provide potable water, adequate 
fire flow and all required fire-fighting infrastructure and appurtenances to each lot created. 
22.32.040 Sanitarv Sewer System. The developer shall install a sanitary sewer systenl to serve 
each lot created. 
22.32.090 Maintenance Bonds. A two-year maintenance bond may be required for any of the 
improvements or landscaping installed or maintained under this title. 
Zoning Code Standards 
90.45 Wetlands and Wetland Buffers. No land surface modification may take place and no 
improvement may be located in a wetland or within the environmentally sensitive area buffers for a 
wetland, except as specifically provided in File ZON04-00025. 
90.50 Wetland Buffer Fence. Prior to development, the applicant shall install a six-foot high 
construction phase fence along the upland boundary of the wetland buffer with silt screen fabric 
installed per City standard. The fence shall remain upright in the approved location for the 
duration of development activities. Upon project completion, the applicant shall install between the 
upland boundary of all wetland buffers and the developed portion of the sitea permanent 3 to 4 
foot tall split rail fence. 
90.80 Streams. No land surface modification may take place and no improvements may be 
located in a stream except as specifically provided in File ZON04-00025. 
90.90 Stream Buffers. No land surface modification may take place and no improvement may be 
located within the environmentally sensitive buffer for a stream, except as provided in File ZON04- 
00025. 



90.95 Stream Buffer Fence. Prior to development, the applicant shall install a six-foot high 
construction phase fence along the upland boundary of the entire stream buffer with silt screen 
fabric installed per City standard. The fence shall remain upright in the approved location for the 
duration of development activities. Upon project completion, the applicant shall install between the 
upland boundary of all stream buffers and the developed portion of the site a permanent 3 to 4 
foot tall split rail fence. 
90.125 Frequenllv Flooded Areas. No land surface modification may take place and no 
improvements may be located in a frequently flooded area, except as specifically provided in 
Chapter 21.56 of the Kirkland Municipal Code. 
95.35 Plant Re~lacement. The applicant shall replace any plants required by this Code that are 
unhealthy or dead for a period of two years after initial planting. 
100.25 Sign Permits. Separate sign permit(s) are required. 
-105.77 Parking Area Curbing. All parking areas and driveways must be surrounded by a 6" high 
vertical concrete curb. 
115.25 Work Hours. It is a violation of this Code to engage in any development activity or to 
operate any heavy equipment before 7:00 am, or after 8:00 pm Monday through Friday, or before 
9:00 am or after 6:00 pm Saturday. No development activity or use of heavy equipment may 
occur on Sundays or on the following holidays: New Year' s Day, Memorial Day, Independence 
Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day. The applicant will be required to comply with 
these regulations and any violation of this section will result in enforcement action, unless written 
permission is obtained from the Planning official. 
115.75.2 Fill Material. All materials used as fill must be non-dissolving and non-decomposing. Fill 
material must not contain organic or inorganic material that would be detrimental to the water 
quality, or existing habitat, or create any other significant adverse impacts to the environment. 
115.90 Calculating Lot Coverage. The total area of all structures and pavement and any other 
impervious surface on the subject property is limited to a maximum percentage of total lot area. 
See the Use Zone charts for maximum lot coverage percentages allowed. Section 115.90 lists 
exceptions to total lot coverage calculations including: wood decks; access easements or tracts 
serving more than one lot that does not abut a right-of-way; detached dwelling unit driveways that 
are outside the required front yard; grass grid pavers; outdoor swimming pools; and pedestrian 
walkways. See Section 115.90 for a more detailed explanation of these exceptions. 
115.95 Noise Standards. The City of Kirkland adopts by reference the Maximum Environmental 
Noise Levels established pursuant to the Noise Control Act of 1974, RCW 70.107. See Chapter 
173-60 WAC. Any noise, which injures, endangers the comfort, repose, health or safety of 
persons, or in any way renders persons insecure in life, or in the use of property is a violation of 
this Code. 
152.22.2 Public Notice Signs. Within seven (7) calendar days after the end of the 21-day period 
following the City' s final decision on the permit, the applicant shall remove all public notice signs. 

Prior to issuance of a grading or buildingpermit: 
85.40 Natural Greenbelt Protective Easement. The applicant shall submit for recording a natural 
greenbelt protective easement, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, for recording with King 
County (see Attachment ).  
90.155 m. The applicant shall enter into an agreement with the City which runs with the 
property, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, indemnifying the City for any damage resulting 



from development activity on the subject property which is related to the physical condition of the 
stream, minor lake, or wetland (see Attachment ). 
95.15.4 Tree Protection Techniques. In order to provide the best possible conditions for the 
retention of significant trees, the applicant shall construct a temporary but immovable 4 foot high 
chain-link fence generally corresponding to the drip line of each tree or group of trees shown on 
the tree retention plan to be retained. Additional tree protection measures may be required of the 
applicant. The protective fencing must remain in place throughout the demolition, clearing, 
grading, excavation, and construction processes, including the construction of homes. No grading, 
operation of heavy equipment, stockpiling, or excavation may occur inside the protective fences. 
27.06.030 Park Impact Fees. If a property contains an existing unit to be removed, a "credit" for 
that unit shall apply to the first building permit of the subdivision in the amount of $612 for a 
single family unit and $430 for a multi-family unit. 



Prior to occupancy: 
90.145 Bonds. The City may require a bond and/or a perpetual landscape maintenance 
agreement to ensure compliance with any aspect of the Drainage Basins chapter or any decision 
or determination made under this chapter. 
107.90 Maintenance Bonds. The applicant shall establish a two-year maintenance bond to 
ensure maintenance of the storm water system. 
110.60.6 Mailboxes. Mailboxes shall be installed in the development in a location approved by 
the Postal Service and the Planning Official. The applicant shall, to the maximum extent possible, - . . 

group mailboxes for units or uses in the development. 
110.75 Bonds. The City may require or permit a bond to ensure compliance with any of the 
requirements of the Required Public Improvements chapter. 



I 7 e A W b M - i l W G + Z > W Y . - - 7 ~ T t ( W ! S ~  >?A- 
C U U S L l 9 ~ 1 L . - m z m  WL! * LLI*\IIUM Yi 10 <- z . w 1  
--D-'D31 C C * P W 3 W , I I % % T W m P * ' ~ h l  
v W w A P - o - T 3 ( 1 m  U 0 m e 3 R " 5 X I A 5 5 M ( * 5 P D K b P  

3 m * I ? . * ~ ~ b % r L ~ W & L  B W E W E W E W E U ~  W5TZW.IM CI 
IrnlL, MI-? w* m 5 - m . s  P rCYm1.7 09 090909Lxe7KU 

O( ->nn*w rwv'erfi~~) 

TREE PROTECTION FENCING @ ---c 



PLANT SCHEDULE 
S v e O .  BOiAVCC W-& I IUT 
rri. :Q, 1 m.0-.,.,.om "a: .-.,. 

*m N %I0 

rxorK.r'lous 10- 

era  

1 rrrrrs W t S I O U *  KCdVlm -70 
L * i K W R L P W M - \ r r W m  mxw-5iQl.E 

L',M 
5 - $ m r r r ~ m ~ F y X j i a p a x m E U s  - . % + m I O - m I : l i L t S f E L O W  

m 6 w  Y i Y h S r r i B  M 4 L  RMMEm 
= W E D  10 E4 



(?FRONT ELEVATION - UNIT3 2.4, k 8 (sIM:) -ELEVATION - UNIT5 2 ,4 . *  8 ( ~ 1 ~ ~ - . -  
-6 ,,... ,w . .&.&- ,,..., < 

. .. . -. . . . .- . 
. . . ~ 



0 F R O N T  ELEVATION - UNITS 3 E 5 - - ,,+.., e 

- . .- 
a 

SIDE ELEVATION - UNIT5 3 4 5 
*. ,# -- 



n FRONT ELEVATION - UNIT5 1 b 9 s,51Y,FF,E,LEVATION - UNITS 1 b 4 e- , ,.- . , - 



SIP& ELEVATION - UNIT5 6 6 7 -,--. "--- - @.'- , ,. . , < 

" 

/)FRONT ELEVATtON - UNITS 6 1 7 _ _ _ l l _ - . l _  
-6 ,. . ,- 





























RESOLUTION NO. R-3107 

f A RESOLVI'ION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND 
APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL SUBMITTED UNDER THE 
QUASI-JUDICIAL PROJECT REZONE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 1 3 0  OF THE 
KIRKLAND ZONING CODE, ORDINANCE 2 7 4 0 ,  AS AMENDED, AS APPLIED 
FOR I'N DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPNENT FILE 
NO. 111-84-39 BY RICHARD AND SALLY HARRIS TO MOVE THE SHUMWAY 
MANSION TO AN RS 8.5 ZONE AND REQUEST A HISTORIC LANDMARK 
OVERLAY ZONE WITH MODIFICATIONS AND SETTING FORTH CONDITIONS TO 
WHICH SUCH DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL SHALL BE SUBJECT AND SETTING 
FORTH THE INTENTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL TO, UPON APPROVED 
COMPLETION OF SAID DEVELOPMENT, REZONE THE PROPERTY FROM RS 8.5 
TO FS 8 . 5  (HISTORIC LANDMARK OVERLAY). 

WHEREAS, t h e  D e p a r t m e n t  o f  P l a n n i n g  a n d  Community D e v e l o p -  
ment  h a s  r e c e i v e d  a n  a p p l i c a t i o n  f i l e d  b y  R i c h a r d  a n d  S a l l y  
Harris as o w n e r s  o f  t h e  p r o p e r t y  d e s c r i b e d  i n  s a i d  a p p l i c a t i o n  
r e q u e s t i n g  a p e r m i t  to  d e v e l o p  s a i d  p r o p e r t y  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  
t h e  Q u a s i - J u d i c i a l  P r o j e c t  R e z o n e  p r o c e d u r e  e s t a b l i s h e d  i n  
C h a p t e r  130  o f  O r d i n a n c e  2740 ,  as amended; and  

WHEREAS, s a i d  p r o p e r t y  is l o c a t e d  w i t h i n  a n  RS 8.5  z o n e  a n d  
t h e  p r o p o s e d  d e v e l o p m e n t  is p e r m i t t e d  w i t h i n  t h e  m o d i f i c a t i o n  
p r o v i s i o n s  o f  t h e  His tor ic  Landmark O v e r l a y  zone;  and  

WHEREAS, t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  h a s  b e e n  s u b m i t t e d  t o  t h e  K i r k l a n d  
P l a n n i n g  Commiss ion who h e l d  a p u b l i c  h e a r i n g  t h e r e o n  a t  t h e i r  
r e g u l a r  m e e t i n g  o f  J u l y  5, 1 9 8 4 ;  a n d  

ViHEREAS, p u r s u a n t  t o  t h e  S t a t e  E n v i r o n m e n t a l  P o l i c y  A c t ,  
RCW 43.21C and t h e  A d m i n i s t r a t i v e  G u i d e l i n e  and  l o c a l  o r d i n a n c e  
a d o p t e d  to  i m p l e m e n t  i t ,  a n  e n v i r o n m e n t a l  c h e c k l i s t  h a s  b e e n  
s u b m i t t e d  t o  t h e  C i t y  o f  K i r k l a n d ,  r e v i e w e d  by t h e  r e s p o n s i b l e  
o f f i c i a l  o f  t h e  C i t y  o f  K i r k l a n d ,  a n d  a n e g a t i v e  d e c l a r a t i o n  
r e a c h e d ;  and  

WHEREAS, s a i d  e n v i r o n m e n t a l  c h e c k l i s t  and  d e c l a r a t i o n  h a v e  
b e e n  a v a i l a b l e  a n d  a c c o m p a n i e d  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  t h r o u g h  t h e  
e n t i r e  r e v i e w  p r o c e s s ;  and  

WHEREAS, t h e  K i r k l a n d  P l a n n i n g  Commiss ion ,  a f t e r  t h e i r  
p u b l i c  h e a r i n g  and  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  o f  t h e  recommenda t ions  o f  t h e  
D e p a r t m e n t  o f  p l a n n i n g  and  Community D e v e l o p m e n t ,  a n d  h a v i n g  
a v a i l a b l e  t o  t h e m  t h e  e n v i r o n m e n t a l  c h e c k l i s t  a n d  n e g a t i v e  
d e c l a r a t i o n ,  d i d  a d o p t  c e r t a i n  F i n d i n g s ,  C o n c l u s i o n s  a n d  Recom- 
m e n d a t i o n s ,  a n d  d i d  recommend to  t h e  C i t y  C o u n c i l  a p p r o v a l  o f  
t h e  p r o p o s e d  d e v e l o p m e n t  and  t h e  Q u a s i - J u d i c i a l  P r o j e c t  R e z o n e  
p u r s u a n t  t o  C h a p t e r  1 3 0  o f  O r d i n a n c e  2 7 4 0 ,  as  amended,  a l l  
s u b j e c t  to  t h e  s p e c i f i c  c o n d i t i o n s  set  f o r t h  i n  s a i d  recommen- 
d a t i o n ;  a n d  

WHEREAS, t h e  C i t y  C o u n c i l ,  i n  r e g u l a r  m e e t i n g ,  d i d  c o n s i d e r  
t h e  e n v i r o n m e n t a l  d o c u m e n t s  r e c e i v e d  f r o m  t h e  r e s p o n s i b l e  o f f  i- 
c i a l ,  t o g e t h e r  w i t h  t h e  r e c o m m e n d a t i o n  o f  t h e  P l a n n i n q  Com- - 
m i s s i o n .  I ATTACHMENT (0 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE I T  RESOLVED by t h e  C i t y  C o u n c i l  o f  t h e  
C i t y  of K i r k l a n d  a s  f o l l o w s :  r -  

S e c t i o n  1. The F i n d i n g s  , C o n c l u s i o n s  and Recommendations 
o f  t h e  Ki rk land  P l a n n i n g  Commission a s  s i g n e d  by t h e  C h a i r -  
p e r s o n  t h e r e o f  and f i l e d  i n  t h e  Depar tment  of P l a n n i n g  and 

I 
Community Deve lopnen t  F i l e  No. 111-84-39 a r e  he reby  a d o p t e d  by 
t h e  Ki rk land  C i t y  C o u n c i l  as though f u l l y  s e t  f o r t h  h e r e i n .  

S e c t i o n  2. A D e v e l o p n e n t  P e r m i t ,  p u r s u a n t  t o  t h e  Q u a s i -  
J u d i c i a l  P r o j e c t  Rezone p r o c e d u r e  of  Chap te r  130 o f  Ord inance  
2740,  as  amended, s h a l l  be i s s u e d  t o  t h e  a p p l i c a n t  s u b j e c t  t o  
t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  s e t  f o r t h  i n  t h e  Recommendations h e r e i n a b o v e  
adop ted  by t h e  C i t y  C o u n c i l .  

S e c t i o n  3. The C i t y  C o u n c i l  a p p r o v e s  i n  p r i n c i p l e  t h e  
r e q u e s t  f o r  r e c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  f rom RS 8.5  t o  RS 8.5 ( H i s t o r i c  
Landmark O v e r l a y ) ,  p u r s u a n t  to  t h e  p r o v i s i o n s  of C h a p t e r  23.130 
of  Ord inance  2740,  a s  amended, and t h e  C o u n c i l  s h a l l ,  by o r d i -  
n a n c e ,  e f f e c t  s u c h  r e c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  upon b e i n g  a d v i s e d  t h a t  a l l  
o f  t h e  c o n d i t i o n s ,  s t i p u l a t i o n s ,  l i m i t a t i o n s ,  and r e q u i r e m e n t s  
c o n t a i n e d  i n  t h i s  R e s o l u t i o n ,  i n c l u d i n g  t h o s e  adopted  by r e f e r -  
e n c e ,  have been met ;  p r o v i d e d ,  however,  t h a t  t h e  a p p l i c a n t  must  
b e g i n  t h e  cievelopment a c t i v i t y ,  u s e  of  l a n d  o r  o t h e r  a c t i o n s  
approved  by t h i s  R e s o l u t i o n  w i t h i n  o n e  y e a r  from t h e  d a t e  of 
enac tmen t  of  t h i s  R e s o l u t i o n ,  o r  t h e  d e c i s i o n  becomes v o i d .  

S e c t i o n  4. No th ing  i n  t h i s  r e s o l u t i o n  s h a l l  be c o n s t r u e d  
a s  e x c u s i n g  t h e  a p p l i c a n t  f rom compl iance  w i t h  a n y  f e d e r a l ,  
s t a t e  o r  l o c a l  s t a t u t e s ,  o r d i n a n c e s  o r  r e g u l a t i o n s  a p p l i c a b l e  
t o  t h e  proposed  development  p r o j e c t ,  o t h e r  t h a n  a s  e x p r e s s l y  
s e t  f o r t h  h e r e i n .  

1 
S e c t i o n  5. F a i l u r e  on t h e  p a r t  of  t h e  h o l d e r  of t h e  d e v e l -  

o p n e n t  p e r m i t  to  i n i t i a l l y  meet or m a i n t a i n  s t r i c t  c o m p l i a n c e  
w i t h  t h e  s t a n d a r d s  and c o n d i t i o n s  t o  which t h e  deve lopment  
p e r m i t  and t h e  i n t e n t  t o  r e z o n e  is s u b j e c t  s h a l l  be g r o u n d s  f o r  
r e v o c a t i o n  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  O r d i n a n c e  2740, as  amended, t h e  
K i  r  k land  zoning  Ord inance .  

S e c t i o n  6. A c e r t i f i e d  copy of t h i s  R e s o l u t i o n  t o g e t h e r  ' 

w i t h  t h e  F i n d i n g s ,  C o n c l u s i o n s ,  and  Recommendations h e r e i n  
adop ted  s h a l l  be a t t a c h e d  t o  and become a  p a r t  of t h e  deve lop -  
ment p e r m i t  o r  e v i d e n c e  t h e r e o f ,  d e l i v e r e d  t o  t h e  p e r m i t t e e .  

'? i 

S e c t i o n  7. C e r t i f i e d  o r  conformed c o p i e s  of t h i s  Resolu-  
t i o n  s h a l l  be d e l i v e r e d  t o  t h e  f o l l o w i n g :  - 

( a )  Department  of  P l a n n i n g  and Community Development of 
t h e  C i t y  of  K i r k l a n d  

( b )  F i r e  and B u i l d i n g  Depar tment  f o r  t h e  C i t y  of  K i r k l a n a  



( c )  P u b l i c  Works D e p a r t m e n t  o f  t h e  C i t y  o f  K i r k l a n d  
( d )  T h e  O f f i c e  o f  t h e  Director o f  A d m i n i s t r a t i o n  a n d  

F i n a n c e  ( e x  o f f i c i o  C i t y  C l e r k )  f o r  t h e  C i t y  o f  
K i r k l a n d  

PASSED by m a j o r i t y  v o t e  o f  t h e  K i r k l a n d  C i t y  C o u n c i l  i n  
r e g u l a r ,  o p e n  m e e t i n g  o n  t h e  -- 1 6 t h  d a y  o f  July, -- 1984 .  

SIGNED I N  AUTHENPICATION THEREOF o n  t h e  1 6 t h  d a y  o f  *, 
1 9 8 4 .  - 

&?- LW-T'A-' i $-- 

Mayor 

ATTEST : 

( e x  o f f i q l i o  C i t y  C l e r k )  



ORDINANCE NO. 3308 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE ClTY OF KIRKLAND 
RELATING TO LAND USE, AND THAT PROJECT COMMONLY 
KNOWN AS SHUMWAY MANSION, THAT THE CONDITIONS 
REQUIRED BY RESOLUTION NO. R-3107 (FILE NO. 111-84-39) 

PROPERTY SUBJECT T O  SAID  RESOLUTION HAVE BEEN 
MET, RECLASSIFYING SAID REAL PROPERTY FROM 
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 8.5 (RS 8.5) TO RS 8.5 AND 
HISTORIC LANDMARK OVERLAY ZONE fHL) AND ~, 
AMENDING THE ZONING MAP. 

WHEREAS, the Kirkland City Council on July 16, 1984, 
adopted a Resolution No. R-3107 entitled: "A RESOLUTION OF 
THE ClTY COUNCIL OF THE ClTY OF KIRKLAND 
APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF AN INTENT TO REZONE 
PERMIT AS APPLIED FOR IN DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

RS 8.5 ZONE, AND S E ~ N G  F ~ R T H  CONDITIONS TO 
WHICH SUCH INTENT TO REZONE PERMIT SHALL BE 
SUBJECT,' AND 

WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Community 
Development has, pursuant to said resolution and Chapter 23.62 
of Ordinance No. 2740, as amended (the Kirkland Zoning 
Ordinance), advised the City Council that all conditions imposed 
by said resolution have been met, and 

WHEREAS, the significant features have been determined 
by the Kirkland City Council to be as follows: 

The name Shumway Mansion. 

The external features of the Mansion. 

A book containing the history of the Mansion, 
including photographs, to be kept on site. 

The entire site surrounding the Mansion, and 
related facilities, including landscaping in scale and 
character appropriate to the Mansion, to include an 
area described as follows: 

The southwest quarter of the northwest quarter 
of the northwest quarter of the northwest quarter of 
Section 32. Township 26 North, Ran e 5 East, W.M.; a EXCEPT that portion thereof or 100th Avenue 
Northeast; as conveyed to King County under 
Recording No. 1 181 149; 

/ ATTACHMENT \Is 



Situate in the County of King, State of 
Washington. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Kirkland as follows: 

Section 1. The real property within the Cit of Kirkland 
described as follows is hereby reclassified (rezoned from US 8.5 
to i iS 8.5 and HL: 

Y 
The Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter 

of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter of 
Section 32, Township 26 North, Range 5 East, W.M.; 
EXCEPT that portion thereof for 700th Avenue 
Northeast; as conveyed to King County under 
Recording No. 1 181 149; 
Situate in the County of King, State of Washington. 

Section 2. The Director of the Department of Planning and 
Communit Development is directed to amend the official 
Kirkland 3 .  onlng Map, Ordinance No. 2699 as amended, to 
conform with this ordinance, indicating thereon the date of 
ordinance adoption. Copies of this ordinance shall be filed with 
the Department of Planning and Community Development and 
the office of the City Clerk. 

Section 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
five days from and after its passage by the Kirkland City Council 
and publication, as required by law. 

PASSED by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in 
regular, open meeting this 3rd day of March 
19%. 

SIGNED IN AUTH N thereof this 3rd 
of March , 

day 

Attest: 

Approved as-to Form: ' 
0 

y r t c d t y / h  
City Atlorney 



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 FIFTH AVENUE KIRKLAND, UASHINGTON 98033-6189 (206) 828-1257 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Eric Shields, Planning Director 

From: Linda Phillips, Project Planner 

Date: December 14. 1992 

Subject: SHUMWAY MANSION, HISTORIC LANDMARK OVERLAY ZONE 
BOUNDARY 

This memo is in response to your question regarding the December 8, 1992 letter to Mayor 
Russel from Leonard Garfield, Preservation Programs Coordinator. 

The letter from Leonard Garfield, written at the request of Richard Harris appears to be a 
response to the most recent development history of the Shumway Mansion property on 100th 
Ave. NE. Richard and Sally Harris and Marshall and Julie Blakemore applied in 1990 to 
subdivide the present Mansion property and to obtain approval for a Planned Unit 
Development to allow construction of a duplex. The Planning Commission recommended denial 
of the application. The application was withdrawn. 

Later, it was discovered that because of an administrative oversight, the Council had never 
adopted the ordinance giving final approval to place the Historic Landmark Overlay zone on the 
map. The ordinance would typically have been adopted following completion of the proposed 
develo ment. A resolution by the Council had approved the overlay zone and the Bed and 
Brea kP ast and Reception facility (not otherwise allowed in the underlying RS 8.5 zone) to be 
established at the new mansion site and the facility had been in operation for several years. 

Because the Historic Landmark Overlay section of the code allows modifications, subject to 
certain criteria, between preliminary approval and adoption of the final ordinance, the applicants 
then submitted a Process I application to modify the boundaries of the Historic Landmark 
Overlay zone. The application to modify the boundary was approved by the Planning Director. 

The Council adopted the ordinance to lace the Historic Landmark Overlay zone on the map, 
but did not a prove the modification o the boundary. The entire Harris/Blakemore property is R #' 
included in t e originally proposed boundary as adopted. One effect of placing the overlay zone 
o n  the entire property is that the City will review and decide upon any proposal to alter a 
significant feature usmg Process 111. One of the significant features of the zone is: "the entire 
site surrounding the Mansion and related facilities, including landscaping in scale and character 
appropriate to the Mansion". 

Because they would like to subdivide the property and build one or more additional residences, 
the Harris's and Blakemores do not agree that the entire property should be regulated by the HL 

ATTACHMENT 1% 
00025 



Memorandum to Eric ields 
Secember 14, 1992 
Page 2 

zone, which requires that the Council make the final decision regarding any subdivision or or 
other zoning permit. 

The letter from Mr. ~ a r f i e l d  states that for a property to be designated as historic, according to 
state and federal guildelines, it must retain enough integrity of fabric, features, and setting to 
convey its authentic historic character. 

I reviewed the original file, IIi-84-39, and it a pears that the boundaries the Shumway Mansion 
site were determined according to the City o f' Kirkland's zoning code regulations related to the 
Historic Landmark Overlay Zone and Quasi-Judicial Project Rezone process. They are unique 
to this articular development, and to the City's criteria. The requirements, in this case, go 
beyon B those used by the state or federal government when deciding whether a property 
deserves historic designation. The commercial Bed and Breakfast and Reception use was 
approved as a modification to Cha ter 75, Historic Landmark Overlay Zone. The underlying R zoning of this property is RS 8.5 w ich would not have otherwise allowed a commercial use. 

Because parkin lots, lighting, and landscape buffer areas are required for this special use, the B requirements o this development are different from those which identify a property as historic 
for state and federal purposes. In 1984, Mr. Harris stated in his response to the Criteria for H L  
zone: "Designation of this DroDertv as an Historic Landmark Overlav Zone will ~ rov ide  a 
protected, r&ulated parceion'wh&h the Shumway Mansion could be relocated and preserved". 
His response was submitted with an application to designate the entire parcel HL zone. 



Jon Regala 

From: Dean Scotton [scottond@msn.com] 

Sent: Monday, October 31. 2005 3:43 PM 

To: Jon Regaia 

Cc: Dean 

Subject: ZON04-00025 

Jon Regala 
Project Planner 
City of Kirkland 

Re: Z.ON04-00025 

I believe the application by  Shumway 10  LLC for  rezoning of the property 
a t  11410 99th Place N.E. (The Shumway Mansion) t o  be a reasonable solution 
for  i ts development as it w i l l  forever forbid any commercial activity and give 
us a small scale project next  door w i th  no possibility o f  further expansion. 

Dean Scotton 
10024 NE 115th Lane 
Kirkland 

ATTACHMENT 1% 
~ 0 N o q . f . .  0 0 0 ~ ~  



October 28,2005 

Mr. Jon Regala, Project Planner 
City Of Kirkland Planning Department 
123 5Ih ~ v e ,  
Kirkland, WA 98033 

RE: File # ZON04-00025 

Dear Mr. Regala, 

As citizens of the city of Kirkland, we are formally submitting our concems related to the Shum~ay 10 
Application File # ZON04-00025. We are an association of 12 townhome homeowners on 101 place, 
just east of the Planned Urban Development project proposed by Mr. Yost and his associates. The 
purpose of this letter is to formally register our concerns with the City and Planning department related 
to this project and propose possible remedies which may mitigate some of our concerns. 

As responsible homeowner neighbors of the proposed Planned Urban Development, we have 
identified several potential issues and possible solutions which we have been discussing with Mr. Yost. 

On of our primary concerns is that of preservation of the views which we currently enjoy. 5 of the 12 
townhomes in our association currently have direct lake views, some on upper and lower levels that 
have the potential to be negatively impacted by the project as currently planned. Multiple other units in 
our association will also have partial views from their front walkways negatively impacted by the current 
plans. We have requested that Mr. Yost reconsider the slope, height and pitch of the proposed units' 
roofs to lessen the impact on our views. Another option to help reduce the negative impact on our 
views would be to situate the proposed buildings first floors (garages) deeper into the ground, reducing 
the overall above ground rear-elevations of the buildings which will be potentially blocking our views. 
Preservation the current views is essential to the value of our homes and were and are major factors in 
choosing to purchase homes in and continue to live in Kirkland. 

Currently we enjoy a very quiet and tranquil residential neighborhood. Visitors oflen comment on our 
park-like setting, seclusion and quiet. The addition of 10 more units so very close to our property 
carries a significant risk of significant noise pollution which would greatly reduce the quality of the 
neighborhood that we treasure. Acceptable barriers to the inevitable increase in noise are: erecting a 
fence, possibly using some of the excavated site earth to build up a small berm at the border of the 2 
properties, and the addition of native drought resistant vegetation, drainage and irrigation systems to 
maintain the health of the vegetation to screen and muffle noise. Improvements to access to the 
Westview Court greenbelt area bordering this are have also been suggested; one set of stairs and one 
terraced area. 

The same greenbelt area which will selve as buffer between our properties currently have some very 
large trees which are currently protected by city and or county covenants. We strongly urge that this 
buffer zone be cleaned of non-native vegetation, protected healthy trees be evaluated and attended to 
by an arborist. 

Another simibr area of concern is the small un-named stream which runs through the ravine to the 
north of Westview Court, which extends westward though this proposed Planned Development. The 
wetland buffer for this stream must be maintained in a green, natural native state. Any changes to the 
ravine or wetland buffer area must be those of removal of current refuse, non-native plants and any 
harmful dead or diseased species. We love the natural state of this area and request that every I AiiACHMENT 



Page2 October 28,2005 

consideration be made to maintain the wild appearance of this small green space in the burgeoning city 
of Kirkland. 

All of the above requests and any others agreed to by the Westview Court Homeowners would need to 
be carried out to our satisfaction and guaranteed by a bond posted by the developers; and executed at 
the developer's expense. Any structures, changes or improvements suggested here or in future 
agreements would to be subject to current code. 

We have no desire or motivation to prevent this proposed project from moving forward but are stalwart 
in our resolve to protect and preserve the current quality of life that is unique to our neighbohood as it 
currently exists. We are citizens, taxpayers and voters who live in Kirkland by choice because we love 
the characteristics of our neighborhood and trust the city planning department to recognize the value of 
maintaining our unique character while managing growth. Thank you very much for your consideration 
in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

i 
i :  .;,,,, 'i,: (i, .'.. .. i.% " i. :, 5.. ,: ;i: 
Andrea Wood 
11315 101' Place, NE 

Kirkland, WA 98033 

Home Owners of the Westview Court Home Owner's Association 



October 24.2005 

Mr. Jon Regala, Project Planner 
City Of Kirkland Planning Department 
123 5'h ~ v e ,  
Kirkland, WA 98033 

RE: File # ZON04-00025 

Dear Mr. Regala, 

As citizens of the city of Kirkland, we are formally submitting our concems related to the Shumway 10 
Application File # ZON04-00025. We are an association of 12 townhome homeowners on l0 lS t  place, 
just east of the Planned Urban Development project proposed by Mr. Yost and his associates. The 
purpose of this letter is to formally register our concems with the Ciy and Planning department related 
to this project and propose possible remedies which may mitigate some of our concerns. 

As responsible homeowner neighbors of the proposed Planned Urban Development, we have 
identified several potential issues and possible solutions which we have been discussing with Mr. Yost. 

On of our primary concerns is that of preservation of the views which we currently enjoy. 5 of the 12 
townhomes in our association currently have direct lake views, some on upper and lower levels that 
have the potential to be negatively impacted by the project as currently planned. Multiple other units in 
our association will also have partial views from their front walkways negatively impacted by the current 
plans. We have requested that Mr. Yost reconsider the slope, height and pitch of the proposed units' 
roofs to lessen the impact on our views. Another option to help reduce the negative impact on our 
views would be to situate the proposed buildings first floors (garages) deeper into the ground, reducing 
the overall above ground rear-elevations of the buildings which will be potentially blocking our views. 
Preservation the current views is essential to the value of our homes and were and are major factors in 
choosing to purchase homes in and continue to live in Kirkland. 

Currently we enjoy a vely quiet and tranquil residential neighborhood. Visitors oflen comment on our 
park-like setting, seclusion and quiet. The addition of 10 more units so very close to our property 
carries a significant risk of significant noise pollution which would greatly reduce the quality of the 
neighborhood that we treasure. Acceptable barriers to the inevitable increase in noise are: erecting a 
fence, possibly using some of the excavated site earth to build up a small berm at the border of the 2 
properties, and the addition of native drought resistant vegetation, drainage and irrigation systems to 
maintain the health of the vegetation to screen and muffle noise. Improvements to access to the 
Westview Court greenbelt area bordering this are have also been suggested; one set of stairs and one 
terraced area. 

The same greenbelt area which will sewe as buffer between our properties currently have some very 
large trees which are currently protected by city and or county covenants. We strongly urge that this 
buffer zone be cleaned of non-native vegetation, protected healthy trees be evaluated and attended to 
by an arborist. 

Another similar area of concern is the small un-named stream which runs through the ravine to the 
north of Westview Court, which extends westward though this proposed Planned Development. The 
wetland buffer for this stream must be maintained in a green, natural native state. Any changes to the 
ravine or wetland buffer area must be those of removal of current refuse, non-native plants and any 
harmful dead or diseased species. We love the natural state of this area and request that every 

~ ~ / ATTACHMENT I5 



e Page 2 October24,2005 

consideration be made to maintain the wild appearance of this small green space in the burgeoning city 
of Kirkland. 

All of the above requests and any others agreed to by the Westview Court Homeowners would need to 
be carried out to our satisfaction and guaranteed by a bond posted by the developers; and executed at 
the developer's expense. Any structures, changes or improvements suggested here or in future 
agreements would to be subject to current code. 

We have no desire or motivation to prevent this proposed project from moving foiward but are stalwart 
in our resolve to protect and preserve the current quality of life that is unique to our neighborhood as it 
currently exists. We are citizens, taxpayers and voters who live in Kirkland by choice because we love 
the characteristics of our neighborhood and trust the city planning department to recognize the value of 
maintaining our unique character while managing growth. Thank you very much for your consideration 
in this matter. 

Peter G. Lacy 0 
11 325 I0 ls t  Place NE 

Kirkland, WA 98033 

Homeowners of the Westview Court Homeownets Associat~on 



October 23,2005 

Mr. Jon Regala, Project Planner 
City Of Kirkland Planning Department 
1 23 5' Ave, 
Kirkland, WA 98033 

[f [[Y $=; 2 .-p7 ED 
3 J -.LJ 

ocr 2 o 2~ 

RE: File # ZON04-00025 

Dear Mr. Regala, 

As citizens of the city of Kirkland, we are formally submitting our concerns related to the Shumyay 10 
Application File # ZON04-00025. We are an association of 12 townhome homeowners on 101 place, 
just east of the Planned Urban Development project proposed by Mr. Yost and his associates. The 
purpose of this letter is to formally register our concerns with the City and Planning department related 
to this project and propose possible remedies which may mitigate some of our concerns. 

As responsible homeowner neighbors of the proposed Planned Urban Development, we have 
identified several potential issues and possible solutions which we have been discussing with Mr. Yost. 

On of our primary concerns is that of preservation of the views which we currently enjoy. 5 of the 12 
townhomes in our association currently have direct lake views, some on upper and lower levels that 
have thepotential to be negatively impacted by the project as currently planned. Multiple other units in 
our association will also have partial views from their front walkways negatively impacted by the current 
plans. We have requested that Mr. Yost reconsider the slope, height and pitch of the proposed units' 
roofs to lessen the impact on our views. Another option to help reduce the negative impact on our 
views would be to situate the proposed buildings first floors (garages) deeper into the ground, reducing 
the overall above ground rearelevations of the buildings which will be potentially blocking our views. 
Preservation the current views is essential to the value of our homes and were and are major factors in 
choosing to purchase homes in and continue to live in Kirkland. 

Currently we enjoy a very quiet and tranquil residential neighbomood. Visitors oflen comment on our 
park-like setting, seclusion and quiet. The addition of 10 more units so very close to our property 
carries a significant risk of significant noise pollution which would greatly reduce the quality of the 
neighborhood that we treasure. Acceptable barriers to the inevitable increase in noise are: erecting a 
fence, possibly using some of the excavated site earth to build up a small berm at the border of the 2 
properties, and the addition of native drought resistant vegetation, drainage and irrigation systems to 
maintain the health of the vegetation to screen and muffle noise. Improvements to access to the 
Westview Court greenbelt area bordering this are have also been suggested; one set of stairs and one 
terraced area. 

The same greenbelt area which will serve as buffer between our properties currently have some very 
large trees which are currently protected by city and or county covenants. We strongly urge that this 
buffer zone be cleaned of non-native vegetation, protected healthy trees be evaluated and attended to 
by an arborist. 

Another similar area of concern is the small un-named stream which runs through the ravine to the 
north of Westview Court, which extends westward though this proposed Planned Development. The 
wetland buffer for this stream must be maintained in a green, natural native state. Any changes to the 
ravine or wetland buffer area must be those of removal of current refuse, non-native plants and any 
harmful dead or diseased species. We love the natural state of this area and request that every 

/ AT~ACHMENT: lb 



e Page2 October 23,2005 

consideration be made to maintain the wild appearance of this small green space in the burgeoning city 
of Kirkland. 

All of the above requests and any others agreed to by the Westview Court Homeowners would need to 
be carried out to our satisfaction and guaranteed by a bond posted by the developers; and executed at 
the developer's expense. Any structures, changes or improvements suggested here or in future 
agreements would to be subject to current code. 

We have no desire or motivation to prevent this proposed project from moving fo~ward but are stalwart 
in our resolve to protect and preserve the current quality of life that is unique to our neighbohood as it 
currently exists. We are citizens, taxpayers and voters who live in Kirkland by choice because we love 
the characteristics of our neighborhood and trust the city planning department to recognize the value of 
maintaining our unique character while managing growth. Thank you very much for your consideration 
in this matter. 

'/ 
(Your names your addresses) 

L,h A. d e b L o r  . - 

( ( S t &  I C J " $ ' C - I V ~  
{ C C ,  A 9 P 0 J  7 

Home Owners of me Westview Court Home Owner's Association 



October 23.2005 

Mr. Jon Regala. Project Planner 
City Of Kirkland Planning Department 
123 5Ih ~ v e ,  
Kirkland, WA 98033 

RE: File # ZON04-00025 

Dear Mr. Regala, 

As citizens of the city of Kirkland, we are fonnally submitting our concems related to the Shumway 10 
Application File # ZON04-00025. We are an association of 12 townhome homeowners on 101" place, 
just east of the Planned Urban Development project proposed by Mr. Yost and his associates. The 
purpose of this letter is to formally register our concerns with the City and Planning department related 
to this project and propose possible remedies which may mitigate some of our concerns. 

As responsible homeowner neighbors of the proposed Planned Urban Development, we have 
identified several potential issues and possible solutions which we have been discussing with Mr. Yost. 

On of our primary concems is that of prese~ation of the views which we currently enjoy. 5 of the 12 
townhomes in our association currently have direct lake views, some on upper and lower levels that 
have the potential to be negatively impacted by the project as currently planned. Multiple other units in 
our association will also have partial views from their front walkways negatively impacted by the current 
plans. We have requested that Mr. Yost reconsider the slope, height and pitch of the proposed units' 
roofs to lessen the impact on our views. Another option to help reduce the negative impact on our 
views would be to situate the proposed buildings first floors (garages) deeper into the ground, reducing 
the overall above ground rear-elevations of the buildings which will be potentially blocking our views. 
Preservation the current views is essential to the value of our homes and were and are major factors in 
choosing to purchase homes in and continue to live in Kirkland. 

Currently we enjoy a very quiet and tranquil residential neighborhood. Visitors often comment on our 
park-like setting, seclusion and quiet. The addition of 10 more units so very close to our property 
carries a significant risk of significant noise pollution which would greatly reduce the quality of the 
neighborhood that we treasure. Acceptable barriers to the inevitable increase in noise are: erecting a 
fence, possibly using some of the excavated site earth to build up a small berm at the border of the 2 
properties, and the addition of native drought resistant vegetation, drainage and irrigation systems to 
maintain the health of the vegetation to screen and muffle noise. Improvements to access to the 
Westview Court greenbelt area bordering this are have also been suggested; one set of stairs and one 
terraced area. 

The same greenbelt area which will serve as buffer between our properties currently have some very 
large trees which are currently protected by city and or county covenants. We strongly urge that this 
buffer zone be cleaned of non-native vegetation, protected healthy trees be evaluated and attended to 
by an arborist. 

Another similar area of concern is the small un-named stream which runs through the ravine to the 
north of Westview Court, which extends westward though this proposed Planned Development. The 
wetland buffer for this stream must be maintained in a green, natural native state. Any changes to the 
ravine or wetland buffer area must be those of removal of current refuse, non-native plants and any 
harmful dead or diseased species. We love the natural state of this area and request that every 

I ATTACHMENT 17 



Page 2 October 23,2005 

consideration be made to maintain the wild appearance of this small green space in the burgeoning city 
of Kirkland. 

All of the above requests and any others agreed to by the Westview Court Homeowners would need to 
be carried out to our satisfaction and guaranteed by a bond posted by the developers; and executed at 
the developeis expense. Any structures, changes or improvements suggested here or in future 
agreements would to be subject to current code. 

We have no desire or motivation to prevent this proposed project from moving forward but are stalwart 
in our resolve to protect and preserve the current quality of life that is unique to our neighborhood as it 
currently exists. We are citizens, taxpayers and voters who live in Kirkland by choice because we love 
the characteristics of our neighborhood and trust the city planning department to recognize the value of 
maintaining our unique character while managing growth. Thank you very much for your consideration 
in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Dorothy Wolfe 
11326 101"~lace N.E. 

Home Owners of the Westview Court Home Owner's Association 



October 25.2005 

Mr. Jon Regala, Project Planner 
City Of Kirkland Planning Department 
123 5Ih ~ v e ,  
Kirkland, WA 98033 

acr 2 a 2005 

RE: File # ZON04-00025 

Dear Mr. Regala, 

As citizens of the city of Kirkland, we are formally submitting our concerns related to the Shumway 10 
Application File# ZON04-00025. We are an association of 12 townhome homeowners on 101" place, 
just east of the Planned Urban Development project proposed by Mr. Yost and his associates. The 
purpose of this letter is to formally register our concerns with the City and Planning department related 
to this project and propose possible remedies which may mitigate some of our concerns. 

As responsible homeowner neighbors of the proposed Planned Urban Development, we have 
identified several potential issues and possible solutions which we have been discussing with Mr. Yost. 

On of our primary concerns is that of preservation of the views which we currently enjoy. 5 of the 12 
townhomes in our association currently have direct lake views, some on upper and lower levels that 
have the potential to be negatively impacted by the project as currently planned. Multiple other units in 
our association will also have partial views from their front walkways negatively impacted by the current 
plans. We have requested that Mr. Yost reconsider the slope, height and pitch of the proposed units' 
roofs to lessen the impact on our views. Another option to help reduce the negative impact on our 
views would be to situate the proposed buildings first floors (garages) deeper into the ground, reducing 
the overall above ground rear-elevations of the buildings which will be potentially blocking our views. 
Preservation the current views is essential to the value of our homes and were and are major factors in 
choosing to purchase homes in and continue to live in Kirkland. 

Currently we enjoy a very quiet and tranquil residential neighborhood. Visitors often comment on our 
park-like setting, seclusion and quiet. The addition of 10 more units so very close to our property 
carries a significant risk of significant noise pollution which would greatly reduce the quality of the 
neighborhood that we treasure. Acceptable barriers to the inevitable increase in noise are: erecting a 
fence, possibly using some of the excavated site earth to build up a small berm at the border of the 2 
properties, and the addition of native drought resistant vegetation, drainage and irrigation systems to 
maintain the health of the vegetation to screen and muffle noise. Improvements to access to the 
Westview Court greenbelt area bordering this are have also been suggested; one set of stairs and one 
terraced area. 

The same greenbelt area which will serve as buffer between our properties currently have some very 
large trees which are currently protected by city and or county covenants. We strongly urge that this 
buffer zone be cleaned of non-native vegetation, protected healthy trees be evaluated and attended to 
by an arborist. 

Another similar area of concern is the small un-named stream which runs through the ravine to the 
north of Westview Court, which extends westward though this proposed Planned Development. The 
wetland buffer for this stream must be maintained in a green, natural native state. Any changes to the 
ravine or wetland buffer area must be those of removal of current refuse, non-native plants and any 
harmful dead or diseased species. We love the natural state of this area and request that every 1 A T T A C H M E N T L I  



Page 2 October 25,2005 

consideration be made to maintain the wild appearance of this small green space in the burgeoning city 
of Kirkland. 

All of the above requests and any others agreed to by the Westview Court Homeowners would need to 
be carried out to our satisfaction and guaranteed by a bond posted by the developers; and executed at 
the developer's expense. Any structures, changes or improvements suggested here or in future 
agreements would to be subject to current code. 

We have no desire or motivation to prevent this proposed project from moving forward but are stalwart 
in our resolve to protect and preserve the current quality of life that is unique to our neighborhood as it 
currently exists. We are citizens, taxpayers and voters who live in Kirkland by choice because we love 
the characteristics of our neighborhood and trust the city planning department to recognize the value of 
maintaining our unique character while managing growth. Thank you very much for your consideration 
in this matter. 

Janette Petragallo 
11317 101" Place, NE 

Kirkland. WA 98033 

Home Owners of the Westview Court Home Owner's Association 



October 24.2005 

Mr. Jon Regala, Project Planner 
City of Kirkland Planning Department 
123 5'h ~ v e ,  
Kirkland, WA 98033 

RE: File # ZON04-00025 

Dear Mr. Regala, 

As citizens of the city of Kirkland, we are formally submitting our concems related to the Shumway 10 
Application File # ZON04-00025. We are an association of 12 townhome homeowners on 101" place, 
just east of the Planned Urban Development project proposed by Mr. Yost and his associates. The 
purpose of this letter is to formally register our concems with the City and Planning department related 
to this project and propose possible remedies which may mitigate some of our concerns. 

As responsible homeowner neighbors of the proposed Planned Urban Development, we have 
identified several potential issues and possible solutions which we have been discussing with Mr. Yost. 

One of our primary concems is that of preservation of the views which we currently enjoy. 5 of the 12 
townhomes in our association currently have direct lake views, some on upper and lower levels that 
have the potential to be negatively impacted by the project as currently planned. Multiple other units in 
our association will also have partial views from their front walkways negatively impacted by the current 
plans. We have requested that Mr. Yost reconsider the slope, height and pitch of the proposed units' 
roofs to lessen the impact on our views. Another option to help reduce the negative impact on our 
views would be to situate the proposed buildings first flow (garages) deeper into the ground, thereby, 
reducing the overall above ground rear-elevations of the buildings which will be potentially blocking our 
views. Preservation of our current views is essential to the value of our homes and is a major factor in 
choosing to purchase a home in Kirkland. 

Currently we enjoy a very quiet and tranquil residential neighborhood. Visitors often comment on our 
park-like setting, seclusion and quiet. The addition of 10 more units so very close to our properly 
carries a significant risk of significant noise pollution which would greatly reduce the quality of the 
neighborhood that we treasure. Acceptable baniers to the inevitable increase in noise are: erecting a 
fence, possibly using some of the excavated site earth to build up a small berm at the border of the two 
properties, and the addition of native drought resistant vegetation, drainage and irrigation systems to 
maintain the health of the vegetation to screen and muftle noise. Improvements to access to the 
Westview Court greenbelt area bordering this have also been suggested; one set of stairs and one 
terraced area. 

The same greenbelt area which will serve as buffer between our properties currently have some very 
large trees which are currently protected by city and or county covenants. We strongly urge that this 
buffer zone be cleaned of non-native vegetation, protected healthy trees be evaluated and attended to 
by an arborist. 





Harvey Sherman 11323 101" PI Ne KiMand, Wa. 98034 I (425) 8255619 - 
haweysherman@hotmail.com 

October 26,2005 

Mr. Jon Regala, Project 
City Of Kirkland Planning De 
123 5M Ave, i.. ." , 

(', r, '( ;j 6 ictb$ 
Kirkland, WA 98033 , , . .  a . 2005 

(:,<:"t =T-7u-...-- PM 
RE: File # ZON04-00025 Ph.1 ::;'% D E ~ A ~ ~ M E N F  

PU\NNING~~~P,L\RTWIENI gy 

Dear Mr. Regala, 
BY 

As citizens of the city of Kirkland, we are formally submitting our concems related to the Shum~ay 10 
Application File # ZON04-00025. We are an association of 12 townhome homeowners on 101 place, 
just east of the Planned Urban Development project proposed by Mr. Yost and his associates. The 
purpose of this letter is to formally register our concems with the City and Planning department related 
to this project and propose possible remedies which may mitigate some of our concems. 

As responsible homeowner neighbors of the proposed Planned Uban Development, we have 
identied several potential issues and possible solutions which we have been discussing with Mr. Yost. 

One of our primaly concems is that of presewation of the views which we currently enjoy. One of the 
reasons we bought our properties is for these views. 5 of the 12 towhomes in our association 
currently have direct lake views, some on upper and lower levels that have the potential to be 
negatively impacted by the project as currently planned. Currently the view from these homes is 
vegetation and lake. The proposed PUD will replace some of the vegetation with the roofs and 
walls of buildings. This is undesirable to us. Multiple other units in our association will also have 
partial views from their front walkways negatively impacted by the current plans. We have requested 
that Mr. Yost reconsider the slope, height, pitch and positioning of the proposed units' roofs to lessen 
the impact on our views. Another option to help reduce the negative impact on our views would be to 
situate the proposed buildings first floors (garages) deeper into the ground, reducing the overall above 
ground rear-elevations of the buildings which will be potentially blocking our views. Presewation the 
current views is essential to the value of our homes and our lives. They were and are major factors in 
choosing to purchase homes in and continue to live in Kirkland. 

Currently we enjoy a very quiet and tranquil residential neighborhood. Visitors oflen comment on our 
park-like setting, seclusion and quiet. The addition of 10 more units so vely dose to our property 
introduces significant noise pollution which would greatly reduce the quality of the neighborhood that 
we treasure. Acceptable barriers to the inevitable increase in noise are: erecting a fence, possibly 
using some of the excavated site earth to build up a small berm at the border of the 2 properties, and 
the addition of native drought resistant vegetation, drainage and inigation systems to maintain the 
health of the vegetation to screen and muffle noise. lmpmvements to access to the Westview Court 
greenbelt area bordering this are have also been suggested; one set of stairs and one terraced area. 

The improvements we are requesting on our property serve to satisfy the zoning requirement for 
providing enhancements to adjacent propelties the city can not require of developers in the following 
Kirkland Zoning Code 125.35: 

"#2 Any adverse impacts or undesirable effects of the proposed PUD are clearly outweighed by 
specifically identified benefits to the residents of the City." 





CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 F l i rH  AVENUE. KIRKLAND, WASHINGTON 98033-6189 1425) 828-1257 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Eric R. Shields, AICP, SEPA Responsible Official 

From: Jon Regala, Associate Planner 

Date: December 19, 2005 

File: SEP04-00054 

Subject: ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
SHUMWAY MANSION HISTORIC OVERLAY ALTERATION, SHORT PLAT, AND 
STREAMIBUFFER MODIFICATION 
11410 99'" PLACE NE 

The Shumway Mansion, located at 11410 9 9  Place, currently functions as a bed and breakfast business and 
wedding reception facility. The subject property also has a historic landmark overlay to help preserve the 
Mansion by designating significant features of the site. The four significant features are: (1) The name Shumway 
Mansion; (2) the external features of the Mansion; (3) a book containing the history of the Mansion; and (4) the 
entire site surrounding the Mansion and related facilities, including landscaping in scale and character appropriate 
to the Mansion. 

The applicant is proposing to convert the Mansion to a single family residence and reduce the overlay and the site 
significant feature to a smaller area around the Mansion. This reduction would allow the remainder of the 
property to be developed in the future with a residence or residences and accessory structures without having to 
obtain approval of a historic overlay alteration. This is required to be reviewed through a Process IIB. 

The subject property also contains moderate landslide hazard areas (entire property) and high landslide hazard 
areas (associated with the ravine) as identified on the City of Kirkland Sensitive Areas maps, a Class B stream, 
and a Type Ill wetland. The applicant is proposing to short plat the subject property so that the Mansion will 
remain on a 25,024 square foot parcel along with the revised historic landmark overlay. The larger parcel, 
containing 79,296 square feet, will contain 10 residential units to be reviewed through the City's PUD process. 
The applicant is proposing a stream and buffer reduction, in order to construct the residences which are also to 
be reviewed through the City's Process IIB process. 

I have had an opportunity to visit the site (see Attachment 1) and review the following documents: 

1. Environmental checklist dated April 16, 2005 (see Attachment 2) 
2. The applicant's proposal (see Attachment 3) 
3. Geotechnical report by GeoEngineers dated July 13, 2005 (see Attachment 4) 
4. Traffic Concurrency and Analysis Memo by Thang Nguyen dated October 13, 2005 (see Attachment 5) 
5. Traffic Study by The Transpo Group dated July 6, 2005 (see Attachment 6) 
6. Wetland and Buffer Modification Review by The Watershed Company dated October 26, 2005 (see 

Attachment 7) 
7. Wetland Resources, Inc., letter dated November 10, 2005 (see Attachment 8) 
8. Wetland Resources, Inc., Wetland and Buffer Modification report (modified) dated December 14, 2005 

(see Attachment 9) 

The applicant revised their buffer modification plan (see Attachment 8 and 9) to incorporate the buffer 
recommendations provided by The Watershed Company. / ATTACHMENT 1 





CITY OF KIRKLAND 
NOTICE OF SEPA DETERMINATION 

The City of Kirkland has conducted an environmental review of the following project: 

File No.: SEP04-00054 for ZON04-00025 
Proponent: Robert Ketterlin 
Address or Location of proposal: 11410 99"' Place N.E. 
Description of project: Removal of bed and breakfast and wedding reception use at the Shumway Mansion, 
reduction of historic overlay to a smaller area around the Mansion, 2-lot short plat, wctland/strcam buffer 
reduction, and PUD to construct 10 residential units (clustered housing). 

Notice is hereby given that on December 22, 2005 the City of Kirkland issued a Determination of 
Nonsignificance (DNS) in accordance with the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) and Chapter 
197-1 1 of the Washington Administrative Code. 

SEPA Comments: Comments must be submitted by 5 PM on January 5,2006 to City of Kirkland, Dcpartnlcnt 
of Planning and Community Development, 123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA 98033. Contact Jon Regala for 
further information at (425) 587-3255. 

Procedures to Appeal SEPA: You may contact Jon Regala at (425) 587-3255 to ask about the procedurcs for 
SEPA appeals): 
1. A written appeal must be filed with the EnvironlnentaI Coordinator, Nancy Cox, by 5 PM on January 5, 
2006, at the above address. 
2. The appeal must contain a brief and concise statement of the matter being appealed, the specific components 
or aspects that are being appealed, the appellant's basic rationale or contentions on appeal, and a statement 
demonstrating standing to appeal. The following have standing to appeal: 1) the applicant; 2) any agency with 
jurisdiction; 3) any individual or other entity who is specifically and directly affected by the proposed action. 
The appeal may also contain whatever supplemental infonnation the appellant wishes to include. 
3. Pay the $150.00 fee to file an appeal. 
This project requires a public hearing by the Hearing Examiner. Many issues are most appropriately considered 
during the hearing process rather than through the SEPA process. However some issues, such as traffic, are 
usually considered only through SEPA and may only be contested or appealed by filing an appeal of the [INS. 
There may be no other opportunity to appeal these issues. Call Jon Regala at (425) 587-3255 if you havc 
questions about what issues are addressed in this DNS. 

Publishing Date: December 27,2005 

N:\Pcd\Administrative Clerk Files\WORD\SEPA Notices\Shumway Mansion SEP04-00054.doc 3/26/02/8K 









Applicant I Agent 

cc: Case # ZON04-00025 

Distributed to agencies along with a copy of the checklist. (see atached). 

I+& 
Date: 







Date checklist prepared: 8/11/2805 

Agency requesting checklist: Planning Department 

Proposed timing or schedule (including phasing, if applicable): To be started in 2006 and completed in 2007 

Do you have any plans for future additions, expansion, or Wher  activity related to or connected with this proposal? 

List any environmental information you know about that has been prepared, or will be prepared, directly related to this proposal. 

Wetland Study by Wetland Resources and Traffic Study by The Transpo Group 

Do you know whether applications are pending for governmental approvals of other proposals directly affecting the property covered by 
your proposal? If yes, explain. 

List any government approvals or permits that will be needed for your proposal, if known. 

Hktoric Overlrry Redcacfion, Sire Plan Approval, Building Plans Approval 

Give brief, complete description of your proposal, including the proposed uses, the size and scope of the project and site including 
dimensions and use of all proposed improvements. There are several questions later in this checklist that ask you to describe certain 
aspects of your proposal. You do not need to repeat those answers on this page. 

Proposed resubdivion of property $0 include the existing mansion on one 25,000 sq. ft. lot, one treles 6,200 sq. ft9 two duplexes 5,000 
sq. ft each and 3 single family homes 2,500 sq. ft. each. 

Location of the proposal. Give sufficient infomation for a person to understand the precise location of your proposed project, including 
a street address, if any, and section, township, and range, if known. If a proposal would occur over a range of area, provide the range or 
boundaries o f  the site(s). Provide a legal. description, site plan, vicinity map, and topographic map, if reasonably available. While you 
should submit my plans required by the agency, you are not required to duplicate maps or detailed plans submitted with any permit 
applications related to this checklist. 

The p r o w  $ located at 11410 99"' place NE, Kirkland, WA 98034. The legal description is located in the title report submitfed with 
this application 

C.tDocuinc~irsand Sc~tings\OwncriMy D~oulmcnts~shumway\env_chcklst dod 7/19/0101 

Page 3 of 14 



J"JP__BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT 
EVALUATION FOR 
AGENCY USE ONLY 
REVIEWED BY: 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS 

1. EARTH 

a. General description of the site (circle one): Flat, rolling, hilly, steep, slopes, 
mountainous, other 
Hill wit11 some steep slopes 

b. What is the steepest sIope on the site (approximate percent slope)? 
The steepest slope onsite is approximately 70%. this located within the ravine 
outside of any proposed work area. The majority of the site within the proposed 
project area is 045% slope 

c. What general types of soils are found on the site (for example, clay, sand, gravel, 
peat, muck)? If you know the classification of agricultural soils, specify them and 
note any prime farmland. 
dense to medium dense sand, stgf 10 hard clay and sill 

d. Are there surface indications or history of unstable soils in the immediate vicinity? 
I f  so, describe. 
No, geologists report states fhat steep slopes appear to be stabel with no 
groundwater seepage or indications of instability 

e. Describe the purpose, type, and approximate quantities of any filling ox grading 
proposed. Indicate source of fill. 
The estimated amount of excavation is approximately 6,000 cubic yards. The 
estimated fill is approximately 600 cubic yds which we be from muterid onsite, 
The excess maieri~l will be Ac~r~led offsite fo an approved dump. 

E Could erosion occur as a result of clearing, construction, or use? If so, generally 
describe. 
surfact erosion could be en countered during construction but will be controlled 
with an erosion control plan 

g. About what percent of the site wi11 be covered with impervious surfaces after project 
construction (for example, asphalt, buildings)? 
The site as it exists now is 0.9 arcres impervious and 4.5 acres pervious. 
Following construction of the improvements the site will contain 0.8 acres 
impervious and I ,  6 acres pervious. A slight reduction in existing conditions. 

h. Proposed measures to reduce or control erosion, or other impacts to the earth, if any: 
A complete erosion control plan will be prepared by the civil engineer and 
followed by the contractor 

C.\Docurncnts and Scuings\Owner\My Documents\shumway\env~chcklst doc! 7129102 

Page 4 of 14 



2. AIR 

a. What types of emissions to the air would result from the proposal (i.e., dust, 
automobile, odors, industrial wood smoke) during construction and when the project 
is completed? If any, generally describe and give approximate quantities, if known. 
Heavy equ@meni emissions during construction (qunn ti& unkno wpl) Car 
emmissions from the residents (quanfify unknosvn) 

b. Are there any off-site sources of emissions or odor that may affect your proposal? If 
so, generally describe. 
Nb 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control emissions or other impacts to air, if any: 
N O H ~  

3. WATER 

a. Surface 

1) Is there any surface water body on or in the immediate vicinity of the site 
(including year-round and seasonal streams, saltwater, lakes, ponds, 
wetlands)? If yes, describe type and provide names. If appropriate, state what 
stream or river it flows into. 
There is a year round class 2 stream, a man made detention pond and class 
3 wetlands. The st'reamflu ws into the Kirkland Storm Water System 

2)  Will the project require any work over, in, or adjacent to (within 200 feet) the 
described waters? If yes, please describe and attach available plans. 
Yes, roads acld building will be within 200'. Phns and wetlands reports are 
i~cl~cded in tltis appIIcufioiz 

3) Estimate the amount of fill and dredge material that would be placed in os 
removed from surface water or wetlands and indicate the area of the site that 
would be affected. Indicate the source of fill material. 
None 

4) Will the proposal require sudace water withdrawals or diversions? Give 
general description, purpose, and approximate quantities if known. 
No 

5)  Does the proposal lie within a 100-year floodplain? If so, note location on the 
site plan. 
No 

6) Does the proposal involve any discharges of waste materials to surface 
waters? If so, describe the type of waste and anticipated volume of discharge. 
No 

b. Ground 

C:\Documobts and $nrings\OwnefiMy Do~umeni$khumway\env~chcI;tst.dod 7i29102 

Page 5 of 14 



1) Will ground water be withdrawn, or will water be discharged to ground water? -- 
Give general description, purpose, and approximate quantities if known. 
No - .- 

2) Describe waste material that will be discharged into the ground fiom septic 
tanks or other sources, if any (for example: Domestic sewage; industrial, 
containing the following chemicals ...; agricultural; etc.) Describe the general 
size of the system, the number of such systems, the number of houses to be 
served (if applicable), or the number of animals or humans the system(s) are 
expected to serve. 
None 

c. Water Runoff (including storm water): 

I) Describe the source of runoff (include s t o m  water) and method of collection 
and disposal, if any (include quantities, if h o w ) .  Where will this water 
flow? Will this water flow into other waters? If so, describe. 
Surface water is proposed to be routed through the existing detention pond 

located onsite. This not only includesthe surface water generated 
onsite butalso approximately 5 acres of offsite area that drains into 
the revine. T?le existing pond will be retrofitied for water qualify 
treatment. The project is exempt from detention requirements since 
the project site meefs the direct discharge requirements as well as the 
post developed condifiufis gereruti~g less r m o g  tlzurz misting 
conditions. Following the discharge from the pond the water flows 
genereully ~ J V  a westward direction for less than 1/4 mile prior to 
discharging intoLuke Washington. 

2) Could waste materials enter ground or surface waters? If so, generally 
describe. 
No 

Proposed measures to reduce or control surface, ground, and runoff water impacts, if any: 
During ctmstruction BMP1s will be used to control any runoff impacts. Eblbwing 
construction the water will be collected in a storm drainage system designed to meet 
the city$ stmdards. The sulrfce water runoff will be routed through a water control 
fucili fy. 

4, PLANTS 

a, Check or circle types of vegetation found on the site: 

deciduous tree: alder, maple, aspen, other 
evergreen tree: fir, cedar, pine, other 
shrubs 
grass 
pasture 

C.Documenrs and Sctrings\OwnerLMy Documents\shumway\cn~~~chcliIst.dod 7/?3102 

Page 6 of 14 



crop or grain 
wet soil. plants: cattail, buttercup, bulIrush, skunk cabbage, other 
water plants: water lily, eelgrass, milfoil, other 
other types of vegetation: Invasive species such as blackberry in wetland 

buffer 

b. What kind and amount of vegetation will be removed or altered? 
Trees and some shrubs withing the City of Kirkland guidelines 

c. List threatened or endangered species known to be on or near the site. 
None 

d. Proposed landscaping, use of native plants, or other measures to preserve or enhance 
vegetation on the site, if any: 
Landscnpe plan fur buffer inhurtcement in included in the wetland study and 
landscape plnn far the balafice of the site is iutcladed in this upplication 

5. ANIMALS 

a. Circle any birds and animals which have been observed on or near the site or are 
known to be on or near the site: 

birds: hawk, heron, eagle, songbirds, other song birdss 
mammals: deer, bear, elk, beaver, other none 
fish: bass, salmon, trout, herring, shellfish, other none 

b. List any threatened or endangered species h o w  to be on or near the site. 
none 

c. 1s the site part of a migration route? If so, explain. 
no 

d. Proposed measures to preserve or enhance wildlife, if any: 
none 

6.  ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

a. What kinds of energy (electric, natural gas, oil, wood stove, solar) will be used to 
meet the completed project's energy needs? Describe whether it will be used far 
heating, manufacturing, etc. 
Electricity and Natural gas will be used for lighting and heating 

b Would your project affect the potential use of solar energy by adjacent properties? 
If so, generaIly describe. 
No 

C,\Dacunlciits and Sct~iogs\OwnerLMy Docurnent$ishumway\env-chcklst docf71ZBfOZ 

Page 7 of 14 



c. What kinds of energy conservation features are included in the plans of this 
proposal? List other proposed measures to reduce or controt energy impacts, if any: 
Buildings will be built according $0 nntionaZ and local energy codes 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

a. Are there any environmenta~ health hazards, including exposure to toxic chemicals, ' 

risk of fire and explosion, spill, or hazardous waste, that could occur as a result of 
this proposal? If so, describe. 
No 

1) Describe special emergency services that might be required. 
None 

2) Proposed measures to reduce or control environmental health hazards, if any: 
None 

b. Noise 

I )  What fypes of noise exist in the area which may affect your project (for 
example: traffic, equipment, operation, other)? 
traffic 

2) What types and levels of noise would be created by or associated with the 
project on a short-term or a long-term basis (for example: traffic, 
construction, operation, other)? Indicate what hours noise would come from 
the site. 
Constraction short term, there will be a long term reduction in t r a m  noise 
because of the proposed project 

3 )  Proposed measures to reduce or control noise impacts, if any: 
The existing mansion will be changed from a commercial ItoteVbanquet 
facility operation to a singe family residence reducing traffic noise and the 
noise created by the several banquets held there. 

8. LAND AND SHORELINE USE 

a. What is the current use of the site and adjacent properties? 
T'lzze site is currently a commerciul PEotVbanquet facility and the adjoining 
properties are rnulf-family anti single family residential. 

b. Has the site been used for agriculture? If so, describe. 
Not to my knowledge 

c. Describe my structures on the site. 
The existing Sh unzway ilhstsion 

C:U)ocurncnts and Sc1tingsV3wnerLCly Documents~humway\env~chcklst.dad 7129102 

Page 8 o f  14 





a. What is the tallest height of any proposed structure(s), not including antennas; what 
is the principal exterior building material(s) proposed? 
25 Hardi! plan k and stone 

b. What views in the immediate vicinity would be altered or obstructed? 
None, in fact view behing the project w ~ d d  be improved 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control aesthetic impacts, if any: 
Great care was take@ to assare the new design compliments the existing structccpe 
arzd landscaping 

2 1. LIGHT AND GLARE 

a. What type of light or glare will the proposal produce? What time of day would it 
mainly occur? 
Car lights at night 

b. Could light or glare from the finished project be a safety hazard or intexfere with 
views? 
No 

c. What existing off-site sources of light or glare may affect your proposal? 
None 

d. Proposed measures to reduce or control light and glare impacts, if any: 
Any site-lightin,o will have s h a h  to preve~t  off-site glare 

a. What designated and informal recreational opportunities are in the immediate 
vicinity? 
Lake Washington, Juanita Park, Tennis, Dining, Downtown Kirkland 

b. Would the proposed project displace any existing recreational uses? If so, describe. 
No 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts on recreation, including recreation 
opportunities to be provided by the project or applicant, if any: 
None 

13. HISTORICAL AND CULTURAL PRESERVATION 

C.Documerrt5 and S$2t1ingslOwer\My Documcnls\shurnwayicnv~chckls;.dod 5/29/02 

Page 10 of 13 



a. Are there any places or objects listed in, or proposed for, national, state, or local 
preservation registers known to be on or next to the site? If so, generally describe. 
Shumway mansion is listed locally 

b. Generally describe any landmarks or evidence of historic, arcbaeologicaf, scientific, 
or cultural importance known to be on or next to the site. 
Sfturnway mansion 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts, if my: 
Buildhgs are designed to compliment the mansion and the mansion grounds will 

be 25,000 sq. flWe are also working c l s l y  with the Kirkland Heritage 
Society who have agreed do he+ us design the Histo~ical Marker and 
Achive all of the original documenfs and photo's periaining fo the mansion. 

14. TRANSPORTATION 

a. Identify public streets and highways serving the site, and describe proposed access 
to the existing street system. Show on-site plans, if any. 

b. 1s site currently served by public transit? If not, what is the approximate distance to 
the nearest transit stop? 
Nu, 500' fo nearest bus stop 

c. How many parking spaces would the completed project have? How many would 
the project eliminate? 
The site when cumplefed will have two stall per unit hcluding the mansion plus 

additional parking space for 2 cars in each unit driveway f i r  guesis. Tit& i s  
a total of 22 designated stalls with room for an additional 22 guests areas. 
Currently the site is used for commercial purposes and has a total of 49 
staIls. There will be an over all reduction of 22 designated stizfls. 

d, Will the proposal require any new roads or streets, or improvements to existing 
roads or streets, not including driveways? If so, generally describe (indicate 
whether public or private). 
The proposed reside~ces will be sewed by a privaig drivewa!y. F m t a g e  

improvemenfs on 99 PI. NE will however be required and will include a new 
curb, gutter, sidewalk and landscape strip. 

e. Will the project use (or occur in the immediate vicinity of) water, rail, or air 
transportation? If so, generally describe. 
Nu 

f. How many vehicular trips per day would be generated by the completed project? If 
know, indicate when peak volumes would occur. 
An increase of 7 daily trips over the existing use wild be generated during 

weekdays. Du~.ing the PM weekday peak period -2 new trips will be 
C:\Dwumzntsand %trings\OwnerLMy Documents~hurnway\~nvYchcklst.dod 7/29/02 

Page 1 1 of 14 



generated and during weekend peak times -26 new trips will be generated. 
Copies of fhe Traffic study is i~cluded with this report 

g. Proposed measures to reduce or control transportation impacts, if any: 
The proposed development will actaally create less PM peak hour and less 

weekend trips than the exsisting development creating less impact duripzg 
these times. Fur that reason no new measures are proposed. 

15. PUBLIC SERVICES 

a. Would the project result in an increased need for public services (for example: fire 
protection, police protection, health care, schools, other)? If so, generally describe. 
Possible schools,fire, police and health core increases. 

b. Proposed measures to reduce or control direct impacts on public services, if any. 
None 

16. UTILITIES 

a. Circle utilities currently available at the site: electricity, natural gas, water, refuse 
service, telephone, sanitary sewer, septic system, other all 

b. Describe the utilities that are proposed for the project, the utility providing the 
service, and the general construction activities on the site or in the immediate 
vicinity which might: be needed. 
Electricity-Puget Power, Natural gas-Puget Power, Water-City of Kirkland, 

Refuse- Waste Management, TeZeph one- Verizon, Sanitary Sewer-City of 
Kirkland. C~nstruction of utility lines with in the community and 
connections in the stred to utilities 

C. SIGNATURE 

The above answers are true and complete to the best o f  my knowledge. I understand that the 
lead agency is relying on them to make its decision. 

Date Submitted: 4. . 16. $5 
D. SUPPLEMENTAL SHEET FOR NONPROJECT ACTIONS 

(Do not use this sheet for project actions) 

C \Docu~nents and Scttidg5'.OiunerWy Documc~~s~humway\env~chcklst.doc/ 7129i02 

Page 12 of 14 





PLANT SCHEDULE 
~ ' m ~ b  ~ ~ H I L N  NW I cm-m w SIZE WIK 
d. 

' J \ Ern,, -5 
W E  0 W W L L - I O W I w . i R  DPrPule , M w l u n a D  

~ S ~ T W W ~ S E O I I L W X  

LANDSCAPE NOTES 
I ~ c a m v L T b l T o W Y O ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ U u 5  

I W I . . 2 o ' - C  W T r ~ A T b ' M ) ( h R M Y a c / A M (  I m w r ( R  
Y86LLLtStOez*IM 





I PORTrON OF: h'W 1/4 SECTION 32, T. 26 N.. R. 5 P, W.M. 





Geotechnical Engineering Services 
Proposed Duplexes Development 

1141 0 - 9gth Place Northeast 
Kirkland, Washington 

File No. 11802-002-00 

July 13, 2005 

prepared for: 

Shumway 10, LLC 
11608 - looth  Avenue Northeast, B-I 
Kirkland, Washington 98034 

Attention: Bob Ketterlin 

Prepared by: 

GeoEngineers, Inc. 
8410 154'~ Avenue Northeast 
Redmond, 
(425) 861 -6,W& 

Daniel J. Campbell, PE 
--;p 2?cF>y $:$' 

Principal 

KtlC:ta :ja 
llcdm:\00Winals\i iS0200200R.doc 

Disclaimer: ~ n y  electronic form, facsimile or hanl copy of the  original document (email, tent, table, andlor figure), if provided, and a n y  attachnlents arc 
only a 'opy orthe original document. The original document is rtorcd by GeoEngineen, inc, and will serve as the official document ofrecord. 

Cop)7ighiO2005 by G~nEngineers, Inc. All rights reserved. 



Paqe No. 

INTRODUCTION I 

SCOPE OF SERVICES I 

SITE DESCRlPTlO 

SUBSURFACE CONDIT 

CONCLUS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 3 
GEN 3 
EARTHQUAKE ENGINEERING 4 
FOUNDATION SUPPORT 4 
LATERAL RESISTANCE 5 
FLOOR SLAB SUPPORT 5 
BELOW-GRADE WALLS 5 

Wall And Footing Drainag 5 
EARTHWORK 6 

6 
6 

Subgrade Preparatio 6 
7 
7 

Permanent Slopes 8 
8 
8 

PAVEMENT REC 8 

LIMITATIONS ................................................................................................................................................ 9 

List of Tables 

Table 1. IBC Seismic Parameters 

List of Figures 

Figure 1. Vicinity Map 
Figure 2. Site Plan 



APPENDICES 

Appendix A - Field Explorations 

Appendix A Figures 

Figure A- I .  Key to Exploration Logs 
Figures A-2 through A-6. Log of Borings 

Appendix B - Report Limitations and Guidelines for Use 

File No. 11802-002-00 
July 13. 2005 



GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
PROPOSED DUPLEXES DEVELOPMENT 

11410 - 9STH PLACE NORTHEAST 
KIRKLAND, WASHINGTON 

FOR 
SHUMWAY 10, LLC 

INTRODUCTION 

This report presents the results of our geotechnical engineering services for the proposed duplexes 
development located at 11410 - 99Ih Place Northeast in Kirkland, Washington. The location of the site is 
shown on the Vicinity Map, Figure 1 and the location of the proposed duplexes relative to existing site 
features are shown on the Site Plan, Figure 2. 

Our understanding of the project is based 0x1 discussions with Bob Ketterlin of Shumway 10, LLC and 
review of a conceptoal layout drawing of the proposed ~ I I ~ I P X P S  development that was provided hy 
Mr. Icetterlin. We understand the development will be located on the property currently occupied by the 
Shiimway Mansion, a bed-and-breakfast and reception facility. The portions of the site to be developed 
are located north and east of the mansion. We anticipate the proposed duplexes will be two-story, wood 
frame structures. We also understand that basements may be planned for the proposed duplexes. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The purpose of our geotechnical engineering services is to explore the subsurface soil and groundwater 
conditions at the site as a basis for providing geotechnical recommendations for the proposed 
development. Our specific scope of services includes the following tasks: 

1. Review geologic maps for the vicinity that are available in our files 

2. Review City of Kirkland regulations concerning construction in sensitive areas such as steep 
slopes and wetlands. 

3. Complete a geologic reconnaissance to observe pertinent surface and geologic features in the 
steep slopes flanking the ravine. This included identifying areas of groundwater seepage and 
potential slope instability. 

4. Explore subsurface soil and groundwater conditions at the site by drilling five borings to depths 
of approximately 5 to 15 feet. 

5 .  Complete geotechnical laboratory testing on selected soil samples from the borings to e v a l k e  
pertinent physical and engineering characteristics. The laboratory tests consisted of moisture 
content determinations. 

6. Provide recommendations for site preparation and earthwork including demolition, clearing, 
suitability of on-site soils for use as structural fill, considerations for wet weather construction, 
specifications for import structural fill soils, and fill placement and compaction requirements. 

7. Evaluate excavation considerations and provide recommendations for temporary and permanent 
cut or fill slopes. 

8. Develop recommendations for shallow foundations including subgrade preparation, allowable soil 
bearing pressures, settlement estimates (total and differential), and coefficient of friction for 
evaluating sliding resictance. 

9. Provide recommendations for design of below-grade walls, including lateral soil puessures, 
backfill type, drainage and lateral resisrance. 



10. Provide recommendations for design of new pavements. 

11. Comment on steep slope issues for this site including allowable setbacks. 

12. Comment on anticipated construction difficulties identified from the results of our field program 
and analyses. 

13. Summarize our findings, conclusions and recommendations in a final report. 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

GENERAL 

We understand that the proposed duplexes development will be located on the property currently 
occ~~pied  by the Shumway Mansion, a bed-and-breakfast and reception facility located at the above 
address. The portions of the site to be developed are located north and east of the mansion; we 
understand the mansion will remain. 

The area to be developed north of the mansion is bounded on the southeast by a ravine that carries a small 
creek flowing southwest. There is an identified steep slope on the north side of this ravine. Access to this 
part of the site is by a paved driveway that extends to two existing paved parking lots in the northwest 
portion of the site. The remainder of the northern portion of the site is heavily wooded. The area to be 
developed east of the mansion also includes existing parking lots accessed by a driveway extending east 
from 99th Place Northeast. This area lies south of the ravine, and is also flanked by a steep slope on the 
south side of the ravine. The proposed duplex locations with respect to the existing site features are 
shown on Figure 2. 

Geologic information for the project area ("Geologic Map of the ICirltland Quadrangle, TVashington", by 
J.P. Minard, 1983) indicates that native surficial soils at the site are composed of glacially consolidated 
advance outwash deposits, which are underlain by transitional bed deposits. Advance outwash deposits 
commonly consist of a medium dense to very dense sand with variable gravel and silt content. 
Transitional bed deposits generally consist of massive to bedded stiff to hard clay, silt and fine to very 
fine sand. Both the advance outwash and transitional bed deposits were glacially overridden and are 
densehard in their undisturbed, unweathered condition. 

A geologic reconnaissance was completed on June 29, 2005 to observe pertinent surface and geoiogic 
features in the steep slopes flanking the ravine. It appeals that the existing slopes are stable. No 
groundwater seepage or indications of instability such as sloughing or head scarps were observed on the 
slopes, nor did we observe trees with bowed tn~nks (a surface indicator of slope creep or landsliding). 

SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 
Explorations 

Subsurface soil and groundwater conditions were evaluated by drilling five borings at the site. All 
borings were completed using hand-portable, hollow-stem auger drilling equipment. Locations of the 
explorations were determined in the field by measuring distances with a tape from the existing buildings, 
pavement or landscape. The locations of all the borings completed for this study are shown on the Site 
Plan, Figure 2. The details and results of the explorations completed are presented in Appendix A. 

File No. 11802-002-00 
July 13. 2005 

Page 2 



Soil Conditions 

Soil conditions encountered in the explorations completed at the site are consistent with the geologic 
mapping. Based on the conditions observed in this five borings completed at the site, subsurface soils 
generally consist of fill over native advance outwash deposits and transitional bed deposits. Fill was 
observed in borings B-l and B-3 through B-5. Fill generally consisted 2 to 3 feet of loose to medium 
dense sand with variable amounts of gavel  and silt. Advance oittwash deposits were observed in all 
borings at depths of 0 to 3 feet below the ground surface. Advance outwash deposits generally consisted 
of medium dense to very dense silty sand with gravel. Cobbles were encountered in advance outwash 
deposits in borings B-4 and B-5 where practical refusal was encountered at 4% and 6% feet, respectively. 
Occasional boulders may also be present within the advance ouhvash deposits. Transitional bed deposits 
consisting of very stiff to hard, bedded clay, silt and fine to very fine sand were encountered below the 
advance outwash deposits in borings B-1 and B-2 at depths of 7% and 3 feet, respectively. 

Groundwater Conditions 

We encountered perched groundwater in borings B-1 and B-3 through 8-5 during drilling at a depth of 
4 to 6 feet. We expect that groundwater seepage will be present on the site during extended periods of 
wet weather and that the volume of seepage may be significantly less during the drier summer months 
(July through Septernbcr). 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Based on our explorations, it is our opinion that the proposed duplexes can be supported on shallow 
spread footings. The mediiim dense to very dense advance outwash deposits encountered at depths of 0 to 
3 feet in our explorations will provide good support for the footings as well the underlying transitional 
bed deposits. We recommend that the footings be supported on the glacially consolidated soils or on 
properly compacted structural fill extending down to these native soil units. 

We expect that excavation for basement construction, if planned, can be achieved using temporary open 
cut slopes or temporary shoring depending on the site constraints. We also expect that groundwater 
seepage, if encountered during construction, can be handled by pumping from shallow sumps located 
within the excavation. 

The site is mapped as moderate landslide hazard area per City of Kirkland Sensitive Area Map. Based on 
our geologic reconnaissance completed on the steep slopes and the subsurface soil and groundwater 
conditions encountered in our borings, it is opinion that the proposed development will not adversely 
impact the stability of the steep slopes provided that the proposed duplexes have a setback distance of at 
least 10 feet from the top of the steep slopes. 

The soils at the site contain a relatively high percentages of fines (soil particles smaller than the No. 200 
sieve). These soils are very sensitive to excess moisture and will be difficult to work with and compact 
during wet weather. We therefore recommend that earthwork and foundation construction take place 
during the drier summer months (July through September) if possible to reduce eaflhwork costs. Cobbles 
and boulders typically exist within the advance outwash deposits, and the contractor should be prepared to 
deal with them. 



The following sections of this report present more delailed conclusions and recommendations for the 
project. It may be prudent for GeoEngineers, Inc. to review the plans during design development to see 
that our recommendations are appropriately incorporated in the design. 

GeoEngineers evaluated the site for seismic hazards including liquefaction, lateral spreading, fault rupture 
and earthquake induced landsliding. Our evaluation indicates that the site does not have liquefiable soils 
present and therefore also has no risk of liquefaction-induced settlement or lateral spreading. In addition 
the site has a low risk of fault rupture and low to moderate risk of earthquake-induced landsliding, in our 
opinion. 

For the project site, we recommend the International Building Code (IBC) 2003 seismic design 
parameters for the average field standard penetration resistance, site class, short period spectral response 
acceleration (Ss), I-second period spectral response acceleration (S,), and Seismic Coefficients FA and Fv 
presented in Table 1 

Table 1. IBC Seismic Parameters 

2003 IBC Parameter 

Averaue Field Standard Penetration Resistance 

Recommended Value ------tk--Gr4 

We recommend that the foundation elements for the proposed duplexes be supported on spread footings 
founded directly on the medium dense to very dense advance outwash deposits encountered below depths 
of about 0 to 3 feet in our explorations or on the very stiff to hard silt (transitional bed deposits) 
anticipated to underlie the advance outwash deposits at depth. Foundations should not be supported on 
the existing fill without removing and replacing a portion of it to provide firm support. If medium dense 
to very dense glacial deposits are not encountered at the design subgrade elevation, we recommendthat 
structural fill extending down to the glacial deposits be placed to support the foundations. The existing 
fill or otherwise loose soils should be removed and replaced with structural fill. The zone of fi l l  should 
extend beyond the faces of the footing a distance at least equal to the thickness of the structural fill and be 
compacted as recommended below in the "Structural Fill" section. 

Seismic Coefficient. Fv 

We recommend minimum widths of 16 inches and 24 inches for continuous and isolated spread footings, 
respectively. The depth of embedment for all exterior footings should be at least 18 inches below lowest 
adjacent finished grade, Interior footings should be founded at least 12 inches below adjacent grade or the 
bottom of the floor slab. For foundations designed and constructed as recommended above, an allowable 
bearing pressure of 3,000 (psf) may be used. 

1.37 

We estimate that maximum post-construction settlements will be less than l inch and differential 
settlements will be less than % inch over a 50-foot length of continuous wall footing or between comparably 
loaded column footings. 

File No. 11802-002-00 
July 13. 2005 



We recommend that a representative of GeoEngineers be on site during construction to observe and evalirate 
foundation sitbgtade conditions. 

Lateral loads can be resisted by passive resistance on the sides of the footings and by friction on the base 
of the footings. Passive resistance should be evaluated using an equivalent fluid density of 350 pounds 
per cubic foot (pcf) where footings are poured neat against native soil or are surrounded by structural fill 
compacted to at least 95 percent of MDD, as recommended. Resistance to passive pressure should be 
calculated from the bottom of adjacent walkways and paving or below a depth of 1 foot where the 
adjacent area is landscaped yard area, as appropriate. Frictional resistance can be evaluated using 0.4 for 
the coefficient of base friction against footings. The above values incorporate a factor of safety of 
about 1.5. 

The medium dense to vely dense or very stiff to hard glacially consolidated deposits encountered in our 
explorations, or properly compacted structural fill, will provide satisfactory support for on-grade slabs. If 
existing fill is encountered at floor slab suby-ade elevation, we recommend that at least a 1-foot thickness 
of the fill be removed, the subgrade be compacted to a firm condition, and the soil be replaced with 
structural fill to provide unifonn support. We reco~nrnend that a GeoEngineers representative evaluate all 
slab subgrade before placing structural fill or base course. As discussed in the "Subgrade Preparation" 
section of this report, the subgrade soils, if disturbed by construction activities, should he recompacted, if 
possible, or excavated and replaced with structural fill to provide firm support of the floor slab. A base 
course layer of imported clea~n washed gravel with negligible sand and silt at least 6 inches thick should 
be placed to provide uniform support and fonn a capillary break beneath the slab. 

The following recommendations should be used for the design of below-grade walls that are intended to 
act as retaining structures if basement constn~ction is planned for the proposed duplexes. Lateral earth 
pressures for design of below-grade walls and retaining structures should be evaluated using an equivalent 
fluid density of 35 pcf. This value assumes the adjacent ground surface is level, the wall backfill is 
compacted as recommended below, and that the wail is fi-ee to rotate outward at the top. If surface loads 
are located close to the walls, additional surcharge loads on the walls should be considered. Walls that 
are restrained from rotating outward at the top should be designed based on an equivalent fluid density of 
55 pcf. 

Zones of wall backfill not supporting stri~ctural elements should be compacted to between 90 and 
92 percent of MDD. Compaction to between 93 and 95 percent of MDD will be needed where the 
bacKll supports structural elements such as sidewalks. I-leavy compaction equipment should not be 
operated within 5 feet of below-grade walls or retaining structures to avoid overstressing the walls. 
Hand-operated equipment should be used in this area to compact the wall backfill. 

Wall And Footing Drainage 

We recommend drainage be provided for all below-grade walls (including basement and crawl space 
walls) by placing a zone of clean (less than 3 percent passing the No. 200 sieve) medium to coarse sand 
with fine gravel against the walls. This drainage zone should be at least 18 inches thick, as measured 
horizontally from the wall. We also recommend that a subsurface perimeter drainage system be installed 



at the base of all wall footings. The subsurface perimeter drainage system should consist of at least a 
4-inch-diameter, rigid, perforated, smooth-walled polyvinyl chloride (PVC) drainpipe installed around the 
entire foundation. The drainpipe should be surrounded by at least a 6-inch thickness of free-draining 
washed sand and gravel wrapped in a non-woven geotextile intended for drainage purposes to prevent the 
migration of soil into the drainpipe. The drainpipe should be connected by a tigbtline system sloped to 
drain to an appropriate disposal point. The drainpipe should include clean-outs extending up to the 
ground surface to access the pipe if maintenance is required. 

The finished ground surface adjacent to the d~iplexes should be sloped so that surface runoff flows away 
from the structures. Roof drains should be tightlined to an appropriate discharge point and should not be 
connected to the wall drains. 

General 

We recommend that site preparation and earthwork be completed during the normally dry season of the 
year (generally J L I I ~  through September), as the on-site soils are moisture-sensitive and will be difficult to 
work with when wet or during extended periods of wet weather. In addition, the presence of groundwater 
seepage during the wetter months is expected, which will make earthwork more difficult and expensive. 
However, we expect that excavation work could begin during the spring or early summer months and 
have therefore included recommendations for wet weather constmction. 

Cobbles and boulders typically exist within the advance outwash depos~ts, and thc contractor should be 
prepared to deal with them. 

Clearing And Site Preparation 

Construction of the proposed duplexes will require removal of the existing paving and landscaping. It 
may also be necessary to relocate utilities within the limits of temporary excavations. Areas to be 
developed or graded should be cleared of surface and subs~irface deleterious matter including any debris, 
shrubs, trees and associated stumps and roots. Based on our borings completed at the site, construction of 
the proposed duplexes will require stripping 2 to 6 inches of the topsoil. The organic soils if encountered 
can be stockpiled and used later for landscaping purposes or may be spread over disturbed arcas following 
completion of grading. Materials that cannot be used for landscaping or protection of disturbed areas 
should be removed from the project site. 

Subgrade Preparation 

Prior to placing new fill for foundation support, pavement base course materials or capillary break 
materials, subgrade areas should be evaluated to locate any soft or unsuitable subgrade soils. All 
unsuitable soils should be removed from below the building areas and planned pavement areas. The 
exposed subgrade areas should be evaluated by probing to detennine the extent of soft or unsuitable 
subgrade soils. Soft or unsuitable subgrade soils should be removed and replaced with structural fill. 

If construction occurs during wet weather, we reconmend that at least a 2-inch-thick layer of crushed 
rock (1 !4 inch minus) or lean concrete or controlled density fill (CDF) be placed on the footing subgrade 
as soon as it is exposed to protect it from softening. 

r i l e  NO. I I ~ O Z - 0 0 2 - 0 0  P n ~ e  6 GEOENGINEERSD 
July 13. 2005 



Structural Fill 

All fill placed in footing, floor slab, pavement and sidewalk areas should be placed as structural fill. We 
expect the on-site native advance outwash deposits consisting of silty sand with gravel can be stockpiled 
on site for use as structural fill during dry weather conditions only. The underlying transitional bed 
deposits (silt) will not be suitable for re-use as structural fill even during dry weather conditions. The 
sandy existing fill and advance outwash soils will likely only be suitable for placement during periods of 
prolonged dry weather, provided that the soil can be conditioned to the proper moisture content for 
achieving adequate compaction. If the excavation work is not completed during the drier summer 
months, the stockpiled soils should be covered to keep out excess moisture. Imported st~uctural fill 
should be used as structural fill during wet weather conditions. 

Imported structilral f i l l ,  if necessary to achieve design grades, sho~ild consist of sand and gravel 
containing less than 5 percent fines (material passing the No. 200 sieve) by weight relative to the fraction 
passing the %-inch sieve. Soil containing rocks larger than 6 inches in size or debris such as organic 
soils, roots, wood, asphalt and concrete fragments shoilld be excluded from structural fill. 

Structural fill should generally be placed in loose lifts not exceeding about 8 to 10 inches in thickness. 
Each lift should be conditioned to the proper moisttire content and compacted to the specified density 
before placing subsequent lifts. Stri~ctural fill placed in the building area to support Footings and the floor 
slab should be compacted to at least 95 percent of maximi~m dry density (MDD) as determined by the 
American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM) 11-1557 test method. Slruct~iral fill to support 
roadways and sidewalks should be placed after the subgrade is evaluated and be compacted to at least 
90 percent of MDD, with the exception that the upper 2 feet should be compacted to at least 95 percent of 
the MDD. 

We recommend that a relxesentative from GeoEngineers be present during structural fill placement to 
observe the work and perform in-place density tests to evaluate whether or not the specified compaction is 
being achieved. 

Temporary Excavations 

Excavations up to about 12 feet deep may be needed if basement construction is planned for the proposed 
duplexes. Excavations may be completed using temporary cut slopes provided the open excavations will 
not encroach upon existing facilities or over property lines. All temporary cut slopes must comply with 
the provisions of Washington Administrative Code (WAC) Chapter 296-155, Part N, "Excavation, 
Trenching and Shoring." We recommend that temporary excavations be made the responsibility of the 
contractor because the contractor performing the work has the primary responsibility for protection of 
workmen and adjacent improvements. The contractor is present at the site continuously and is best able 
to observe changes in site and soil conditions and monitor the performance of excavations. 

For planning purposes, we recommend that temporary ~lnsupported cut slopes made within the medium 
dense to very dense advance outwash and very stiff to hard transitional bed deposits be inclined no 
steeper than 1H:lV. Flatter slopes may be necessary if seepage is present on the cut face. Temporary cut 
slopes should encroach no closer than 5 feet laterally from existing structures or utilities. 

Some sloughing and raveling of the cut slopes should be expected. If temporary cut slopes experience 
excessive sloughing or raveling during construction, it may become necessary to modify the cut slopes to 
maintain safe working conditions and protect adjacent facilities or structures. Temporary shoring may be 
required depending on the site constraints. 

Page 7 GEOENGINEERSD 



Permanent Slopes 

Permanent cut and fill slopes should be inclined no steeper than 21-1:IV. Permanent slopes should be 
planted or hydroseeded as soon as practicable after grading to reduce the risk of erosion. 

Dewa tering 

Groundwater seepage may be encountered during site earthwork and excavation depending on the time of 
year construction occurs. In our opinion, this water can lilcely be handled during construction by ditching 
and pumping from sumps located within the excavations, as necessaly All groundwater pumped from 
the excavations should be routed to a suitable discharge. 

Sedimenfafion and Erosion Control 

Ln our opinion, the erosion potential of the exposed on-site soils is moderate to high. Constl-uction 
activities including clearing, grubbing and grading will expose soils to erosional effects of wind and 
water. Erosion may impact excavation slopes and result in sedimentation of the storm water systems if 
not properly controlled. 

The amount and potential impacts of erosion are in part a f~cnction of the time of year construction occurs. 
Wet weather construction will increase the amount and extent of erosion. Effective erosion controls 
during and after construction will be necessary. These should inclrtde proper control of surface water 
runoff to prevent uncontrolled, concentrated surface water ninoff over slope areas and reducing the time 
of exposure in the areas stripped during construction through prompt revegetation. 

Effective erosion and sedimentation controls during construction may consist of straw mulch and silt 
fences around the work area and interceptor swales or straw bale barriers to control off-site erosion. 
Completion of grading activities during the drier months and limiting the disturbance of existing ground 
surface and vegetation where possible will also reduce the risks of erosion. 

Material stockpiles should be covered to prevent erosion and soil loss and to keep the soil moisture 
content low for future use of the soil as bacfill .  All areas disturbed during construction should be seeded 
and planted as soon as practicable to reduce the potential for erosion. Erosion and sedimentation control 
measures sl~ould be installed and maintained in accordance with the requirements of the City of Kirkland. 

We recommend that the subgrade soils in new pavement areas be prepared and evaluated as described in 
the "Earthwork" section of this report. There are generally two areas at the project site that will be paved 
with asphalt concrete, i.e. the drive and car parking arcas. We did not know the location of thc drive and 
car parking areas at the time this report was prepared. We recommend that the HMA (Hot Mix Asphalt) 
pavement sections presented in the following table be used for the different areas of the project. 

File No. 11802-002-00 
July 13. 2005 

Recommended New HMA Pavement Sections 

Material Drive Areas Parking Areas 

%-inch HMA; PG 58-22 3 inches 2 inches 



The HMA should meet the requirements of Sections 5-04 and 9-03.8 of the 2004 WSDOT Standard 
Specifications. The crushed surfacing base course should meet the requirements of Section 9-03.9(3) of 
the 2004 WSDOT Standard Specifications. The crushed surfacing base course should be compacted to at 
least 95 percent of the maximum dry density prior to the placement of the HMA. 

The pavement sections recommended above are based on our experience. Thicker asphalt sections may 
be needed based on the actual traffic data and intended use. 

LIMITATIONS 

We have prepared this report for the exclusive use of Shumway 10, LLC and their authorized agents for 
the proposed duplexes development project located at 11410 - 99"' Place Northeast, Kirkland, 
Washington. 

Within the limitations of scope, schedule and budget, our services have been executed in accordance with 
generally accepted practices in the field of geotechnical engineering in this area at the time this report was 
prepared. No warranty or other conditions, express or implied, should be understood. 

Any electronic form, facsimile or hard copy of the original document (email, text, table, and/or figure), if 
provided, and any attachments are only a copy of the original document. The original document is stored 
by GeoEngineers, Inc. and will serve as the official document of record. 

Please refer to Appendix R titled Report Limitations and Guidelines for Use for additional inforination 
pertaining to use of t h ~ s  report. 

Page 9 



u reel 
/ I 1. The locations of all features shown are approximate. I I I 

2. This drawing is for information purposes. It is intended to 
assist in showing features discussed in an attached 
document. GeoEngineers, Inc, can not guarantee the 
accuracy and content of electronic files. The master file is 
stored by GeoEngineers. Inc. and will serve as the official 
record of this communication. 

Reproduced with permission granted by THOMAS BROS. MA1 
This map is copyrighted by THOMAS BROS. MAPS. It Is 
unlawful to copy or reproduce all or any part thereof, whether 
for oersonal use or resale, without oermission. 

Vicinity Map I1 
11410 99th Place NE 
Kirkland, Washington 



NOtBL: 
1. The localons of all features shawnare spproxlmale. 
2. misdmwlng 1s for nhrmalion purposes. I is intended to assjsi in showing fealdres discbsrca in an auched 

document. GeoEngineers. lnc. can nor Guarantee !he accuracy and ccnlenl alelecUcnic files. The rras:er lile 
as rlored by GeaEnginecrs. inc. and w:ll serve as the oRcial ~ecnrd of thlr sornmunicalion. 

Relerence: CAD ble~200518-Al-10pllon C Duplerea.provided by TSAC5111105. 

8 -  GeoEngineers 8oring LCarn~1e:ed June 28-29,2005) 

Site Plan 





APPENDIX A 

FIELD EXPLORATIONS AND LABORATORY TESTING 

Subsurface soil and groundwater conditions at the site were explored by completing five borings on 
June 28 and 29, 2005. One boring was completed at each proposed duplex location. The borings were 
completed by CN Drilling of Sealtle, Washington. The borings were completed using hand-portable 
hollow-stem auger drilling equipment. 

The borings were completed to depths ranging from about 5 to 15 feet. Locations of the explorations 
were determined in the field by measuring distances with a tape from the existing buildings, pavement or 
landscape. The locations of the borings completed at the site are shown on the Site Plan, Figure 2. 
Elevations noted on the boring logs were interpreted based on topographic information presented on the 
site plan. 

The explorations were continuously monitored by an engineering geologist from our firm who visually 
examined and classified the soils encountered, obtained representative soil samples, observed 
groundwater conditions, and prepared a detailed log of each exploration, The samples recovered during 
drilling were obtained in general accordance with Standard Penetration Test (ASTM D-1586) procedures. 
A 2-inch outside-diameter, split-barrel sampler was used to obtain disturbed samples from the borings. A 
140-pound hammer operated with a rope and cathead winch was used to drive the sampler for the borings. 
The number of blows required to drive the sampler the last 12 inches, or other indicated distance, is 
recorded on the boring logs. 

All soil samples obtained froin the explorations were visually classified in the field andlor in our 
laboratory using a system based on the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS) classification system 
described in Figure A-1. A key to the boring log symbols is also presented in Figure A-1. The logs for 
all the borings completed are presented in Figures A-2 through A-6. The logs are based on our 
interpretation of the field data and indicate the various types of soils encountered. They also indicate the 
depths at which the soils or their characteristics change; although the change might actilally be gradual. 
The densities noted on boring logs are based on correlation to the number of blow counts. 

The soil samples obtained from the borings were further examined in our laboratory. Laboratory testing 
was limited to moisture content determinations. The results of the moisture content determinations are 
included on the boring logs in Figures A-2 through A-6. 

Page A-I 



. 

# 

r > 
SOIL CLASSIFICATION CHART ADDITIONAL MATERIAL SYMBOLS 

Measured groundwater level 

Groundwater observed at time of 

- exploration 

Stratiaraohic Contact 

CH b " ~ " , : ; ~ ~ c u ~ ~ o i ~ ~ a n  / Gradual change between soil strata or 
geologic units 

CLAYS 
---- Approximate location of soil stata 

OH O'EAN1CCu"S"NDs'L'Sor 
LlEOlYU T O n i r l t ~ ~ s i l c r n  change within a geologic soil unit 

HIGHLY ORGANICSOILS 
PEli."UM"E.IWAUP I O i L d M i i H  . . PT .,....~,,ccoM,ENTs - 

NOTE: Muitipie symbols are used lo indicate borderline or duel soil classificalionr 
Laboratow I Field Tests 

Sampler Symbo l  Descriptions %F Percent fines 
AL Atterberg limits 

2.4-inch I.D. split barrel C A Chemical analysis 
CP taboratory compaction test 

Standard Penetration Test (SPT) 
CS Consolidation test 
DS Direct shear 

C] Shelby tube 
HA Hydrometer analysis 
MC Moisture content 
MD Moisture content and dry density 

Piston OC Organic content 

PM Permeability or hydraulic conductivity 
Direct-Push PP Pocket penetrometer 

S A Sieve analysis 
Bulkor grab TX Triaxial compression 

UC Unconfined compression 
VS Vane shear 

Biawcount is recorded for driven samplen as the number 
of blows required to advance sampler 12 inches (or Sheen Classi f icat ion 
distance noted). See exploration log for hammer weight 
and drop. NS No VisibleSheen 

SS Slight Sheen 

A"P" indicates sampier pushed using the weight of the MS Moderate Sheen 

drill rig. HS Heavy Sheen 
NT Not Tested 

NOTE: me reader must refer la the discussion in the repoit text and the logs of explorations for a proper understanding of subsurface conditions. 
Oesciiptions on the logs apply only a1 the specific exploration iocations and at the time the expiorations were made: they are not wananted to be 
representative of subsulface conditions at other locations or times. . 

KEY TO EXPLORATION LOGS 

Figure A-I 
i 



MATERIAL DESCRIPTION AND NOTES 



Hollow-stem Auger 

MATERIAL DESCRIPTION AND NOTES 



w I $ LOG OF BORING 8-3 
0 
Z 
OL Project: Proposed Residential Development 

G E-J E I RS~c Project Location: Kirkland. Washington s. Figure: A-L 
10' > Project Number: 11 802-002-00 Sheet 1 of 1 



- 
L 
0 
D z 
0 
w - 
m - 
3 
4 
Z 
% 
8 
ij 
8 * 

fl 
7 - 
Gi ,- 0 

: 
LL 

% 
Z 
0 

Z b  
W ,  

$ 
0 
L 
CL 

9, 

. 

15- 

. 

. 

. 

20 - 
Notes: See Figure A-1 for explanation of synibols. 

LOG OF BORING 8-4 

c EO E I RSd Project: Proposed Residential Development 
Project Location: Kirkland. Washington Figure: A-5 
Project Number: 11 802-002-00 Sheet I of 1 



0 

0 

5 
UI 
0 

2 
0 - - * 
8 * - m 
7 - 
5 
d 
Z 
u. 
6 
9 
w 0 

:: 
0 

m - , - 
7 

2 :: a a 

Z 
0 

3. 
UI, 
5 
3 
0 
Z 
a 

g 

. 

15- 

. 

. 

20- 
Nates: Sec Figure A-l for explanation of symbols. 

, . 
LOG OF BORING B-5 

Eo E RSa Project: Proposed Residential Development 

Project Location: Kirkland. Washington Figure: A-6 
9'< Project Number: 11802-002-00 Sheet 1 o i  1 , 





APPENDIX B 

REPORT LIMITATIONS AND GUIDELINES FOR USE' 

This appendix provides information to help you manage your risks with respect to the use of this report. 

This report has been prepared for use by Shumway 10, LLC and other members of the design team for use 
in the design of this project. This report may be made available to prospective contractors for bidding or 
estimating purposes; but our report, conclusions and interpretations should not be conslrued as a warranty 
of the subsurface conditions. This report is not intended for use by others, and the information contained 
herein is not applicable to other sites. 

GeoEngineers structures our services to meet the specific nceds of our clients. For example, a 
geoteclmical or geologic study conducted for a civil engineer or architect may not fulfill the needs of a 
construction contractor or even another civil engineer or architect that are involved in the same project. 
Because each geotechnical or geologic study is unique, each geotechnical engineering or geologic report 
is unique, prepared solely for the specific client and project site. No one except Shumway 10, LLC and 
members of the design team should rely on this r e p o ~  without first conferring with GeoEngineers. This 
report should not be applied for any purpose or project except the one originally contemplated. 

This report has been prepared for the proposed duplexes development project located at 11410 99"' Place 
Northeast, Kirkland, Washington. GeoEngineers considered a number of unique, project-specific factors 
when establishing the scope of services for this project and report. Unless GeoEngineers specifically 
indicates otherwise, do not rely on this report if it was: 

not prepared for you, 
* not prepared for your project, 

not prepared for the specific site explored, or 
completed before important project changes were made. 

For example, changes that can affect the applicability of this report include those that affect: 
* the function of the proposed structure; 

elevation, configi~ration, location, orientation or weight of the proposed sh~~cture ;  
* composition of the design team; or 
* project ownership. 

If important changes are made after the date of this report, GeoEngineers should be given the opportunity 
to review our interpretations and recommendations and provide written modifications or confirmation, as 
appropriate. 

' Developed based on material provided by ASFE, Professional Firms Practicing in the Geoscicnces; www.asfc.org 

File No. 11802-002-00 
J ~ d y  13. 2005 



SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS CAN CHANGE 

This geotechnical or geologic report is based on conditions that existed at the time the study was 
performed. The findings and conclusions of this report may be affected by the passage of time, by 
manmade events such as construction on or adjacent to the site, or by natural events such as floods, 
earthquakes, slope instability or groundwater fluctuations. Always contact GeoEngineers before applying 
a repoit to determine if it remains applicable. 

Our interpretations of subsurface conditions are based on field observations from widely spaced sampling 
locations at the site. Site exploration identifies subsurface conditions only at those points where 
subsurface tests are conducted or samples are taken. GeoEngineers reviewed field and laboratory data 
and then applied our professional judgment to render an opinion about subsurface conditions throughout 
the site. Actual subsurface conditions [nay differ, sometimes si&mificantly, from those indicated in this 
report. Our report, conclusions and interpretations should nor be construed as a warranty of the 
subsurface conditions. 

Do not over-rely on the preliminary construction recommendations included in this report. These 
recommendations are not final, because they were developed principally from GeoEngineers' professional 
judgment and opinion. GeoEngineers' recommendations can be finalized only by observing actual 
subsurface conditions revealed during construction. GeoEngineers cannot assume responsibility or 
liability for this report's recommendations if we do not perform construction observation. 

Sufficient monitoring, testing and consultation by GeoEngineers should be provided during construction 
to confirm that the conditions encountered are consistent with those indicated by the explorations, to 
provide recommendations for design changes should the conditions revealed during the work differ from 
those anticipated, and to evaluate whether or not earthwork activities are completed in accordance with 
our recommendations. Retaining GeoEngineers for construction observation for this project is the most 
effective method of managing the risks associated with unanticipated conditions. 

Misinterpretation of this report by other design team members can result in costly problems. You c ~ u I d  
lower that risk by having GeoEngineers confer with appropriate members of the design team after 
submitting the report. Also retain GeoEngineers to review pertinent elements of the design team's plans 
and specifications. Contractors can also misinterpret a geotechnical engineering or geologic report 
Reduce that risk by having GeoEngineers participate in pre-bid and preconstruction conferences, and by 
providing construction observation. 

Geotechnical engineers and geologists prepare final boring and testing logs based upon their 
interpretation of field logs and laboratory data. To prevent errors or omissions, the logs included in a 
geotechnical engineering or geologic repoll. should never be redrawn for inclusion in architectural or other 
design drawings. Only photographic or electronic reproduction is acceptable, but recognize that 
separating logs from the report can elevate risk. 

File No. 11802-002~00 
July 13. 2005 



Some owners and design professionals believe they can make contractors liable for unanticipated 
subsurface conditions by limiting what they provide for bid preparation. To help prevent costly problems, 
give contractors the complete geotechnical engineering or geologic report, but preface it with a clearly 
written letter of transmittal. In that letter, advise contractors that the report was not prepared for purposes 
of bid development and that the repori's accuracy is limited; encourage them to confer with GeoEngineers 
andlor to conduct additional study to obtain the specific types of information they need or prefer. A 
pre-bid conference can also be valuable. Be sure contractors have stifficient time to perform additional 
study. Only then might an owner be in a position to give contractors the best information available, while 
requiring them to at least share the financial responsibilities stemming from unanticipated conditions. 
Further, a contingency for unanticipated conditions should be included in your project budget and 
schedule. 

Our geotechnical recommendations are not intended to direct the contractor's procedures, methods, 
schedule or management of the work site. The contractor is solely responsible for job site safety and for 
managing construction operations to minimize risks to on-site personnel and to adjaccnt properties. 

Some clients, desibm professionals and contractors may not recognize that the geoscience practices 
(geotechnical engineering or geology) are far less exact than other engineering and natural science 
disciplines. This lack of understanding can create unrealistic expectations that could lead to 
disappointments, claims and disputes. GeoEngineers includes these explanatory "limitations" provisions 
in our reports to help reduce such risks. Please confer with GeoEngineers if you are unclear how these 
"Report Limitations and Guidelines for Use" apply to your project or site. 

The equipment, techniques and personnel used to perform an environmental study differ significantly 
from those used to perform a geotechnical or geologic study and vice versa. For that reason, a 
geotechnical engineering or geologic report does not usually relate any environmental findings, 
conclusions or recommendations; e.g., about the likelihood of encountering undergsound storage tanks or 
regulated contaminants. Similarly, environmental reports are not used to address geotechnical or geologic 
concerns regarding a specific project. 

GeoEngineers' Scope of Work specifically excludes the investigation, detection, prevention, or 
assessment of the presence of Biological Pollutants in or around any shucture. Accordingly, this report 
includes no interpretations, recommendations, findings, or conclusions for the purpose of detecting, 
preventing, assessing, or abating Biological Pollutants. The term "Biological Pollutants" includes, but is 
not limited to, molds, fungi, spores, bacteria, and viruses, and/or any of their byproducts. 

If Client desires these specialized services, they should be obtained from a consultant who offers services 
in this specialized tieid. 

File !No. IISOZ-002-00 
J~ily 13, ZOOS 











The speed limit on 99th Place NE adjacent to the site is 20 mph, 
as a sign near the driveway warns of a "Blind Driveway." The design speed is typically 
ten miles per hour higher than the posted'speed limit. Using this approach, a design 
speed of 30 mph was used to provide a conservative evaluation of AASHTO sight 
distance standards. The results of the sight distance measurements are provided in 
Table 3. 

Table 3. Sight Distance Summary: Site Access 
Sight Distance Measured AASHTO Standard Standard Met? 

Stopping Sight Distance 
Northbound 285' 200 ' Yes 

Southbound 250' 200' Yes 

Entering Sight Distance 
Looking North 450' 335' Yes 

Lookina South 295' 332' No - - - --- - -  

1 .  Field sight distance measurement (Rounded to nearest five feet). 
2. Based on AASHTO's A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets (2004) for a 30 mph roadway design 

The field measurements found that the stopping and entering sight distances for the 
99th Place NE site access meets AASHTO standards with the exception for a vehicle 
that would turn left and exit to the south. The current driveway is signed as a right- 
turn only driveway, and it is unlikely that vehicles would turn left and exit to the 
south, as 9gth Place NE serves only local residential developments. All traffic to/from 
the site is anticipated to turn right when exiting the site in order to access NE 1 1 ~ ~ ~  . 

Street. We would recommend that this driveway remain as a right out only exit in 
xder to restrict the left turning movement that has limited sight distance. 

We trust that this memorandum adequately addresses the transportation information 
requested for this project. Please let us know if you have questions or comments. 

The Transpo Croup 



Attachment A 

The Transpo Group, Inc. 





J. Regala 
October 26,2005 
Page 2 of 5 

constructed, it is evident that the area presently containing the pond was 
historically part of the wetland. As such, it is not exempt from regulation under 
the KZC. 

4. The sensitive area study rates the on-site wetland as Type 111. Our rating of the 
wetland (see enclosed City of Kirkland Wetland Field Data Form) scores the 
wetland at 24 points. The difference between our score and the score assigned to 
the wetland in the sensitive area study is the result of several differences in the 
rating form: the WRI report recorded only an emergent class (although it 
acknowledges the presence of scrub-shrub in the Functions and Values section) 
while our site visit revealed three classes (open water, emergent, and scrub- 
shrub); the wetland receives a higher plant diversity score than was applied in 
WRI study because of the shrub component; and the form included with the 
sensitive area report appears to have estimated the land use type surrounding the 
buffer, rather than that surrounding the wetland. The City of Kirkland rating 
system applies a Type I1 determination to wetlands rating 22 or higher and 
requires a 75-foot buffer for these wetlands in primary basins. If the City decides 
that the pond area is not regulated wetland, the remaining wetland would score 
22 and the rating would remain Type 11. 

Buffer Mitigation Plan 

The proposed wetland mitigation plan is based on a 50-foot buffer, whereas we found the 
required buffer to be 75 feet. Therefore, many of the comments below will likely need to 
be addressed within the context of this revised buffer requirement. 

1. KZC 90.60.2(b)9 requires that the applicant for a buffer modification show that 
"there is no practicable or feasible alternative development proposal that results in 
less impact to the buffer." The proposed mitigation plan does not describe any 
alternative proposals or attempts to avoid wetland buffer impacts. There appears 
to be space on the property to adjust the proposed development to avoid buffer 
impacts. For example, the new garage and Building 5 could be moved south and 
Buildings 3 and 4 could be moved west. A plan revised to accommodate a larger 
buffer could move all buildings toward the northwest and south portions of the 
property to avoid impacts. 

2. The proposed plan employs both buffer reduction and buffer averaging, as some 
of the area proposed for enhancement is not within the standard buffer. KZC does 
not allow the combination of reduction and averaging (KZC 90.60.2(a)). 
Enhancement should be confined to within the standard buffer. 

3. Even with the maximum buffer reduction, the proposed development plan 
contains structures within the City's 10-foot building setback requirement (KZC 
90.45.2). The proposed garage, Building 4 and Building 5 are all within the 
setback. 

4. The buffer modification plan characterizes the buffer areas proposed for reduction 
as "asphalt, existing buildings, dense Himalayan blackberry, and maintained 

1410 Market Street, Kirkland, WA 98033 - (425) 822 5242 -fax (425) 827 8136 
watershed@watershedco.com - www.watershedco.com 



J. Regala 
October 26,2005 
Page 3 of 5 

lawn." While this is accurate regarding the western portions of the proposed 
reduction area, the northern and southeastern portions are primarily forested 
upland slopes. 

5. The proposed mitigation plan includes a 3-year maintenance and monitoring plan. 
KZC 90.55.4(c) requires a 5-year plan for all projects that proposed to alter 
"wetlands or their buffers." 

6. Irrigation is mentioned briefly and only as a contingency plan component. A 
temporary irrigation system should be proposed to be installed at the beginning of 
the project. The system should provide a minimum of 1 inch of water per week 
over all planted areas for the first growing season (March 15 to October 1). The 
system should remain in place for the duration of the monitoring period in case 
replacement plants require irrigation. 

7. The plan proposes mitigation planting densities of 15 feet and 6 feet on center 
(oc) for trees and shrubs, respectively. A density of 10 feet oc for trees is 
appropriate for areas that presently do not support native woody species. 

8. Mitigation plant numbers do not appear to have been calculated for 23,080 square 
feet (the size of the buffer enhancement area). Using a multiplier of 0.032 for 6 
feet oc yields 739, but the plan proposes planting only 256 shrubs. The 15-foot oc 
multiplier of 0.738 calls for 119 trees to be planted on 23,080 square feet, and the 
plans calls for only 64 trees (see also Item 7 regarding the appropriate planting 
density for trees). 

9. Shore pine is proposed as a mitigation species. This species is appropriate for 
shoreline sites; a more appropriate mitigation species for this property would be 
western red cedar. 

10. The estimated assurance bonding uses a price of $8.25 per plant. The King 
County Bond Quantity Worksheet lists the installed price of 1-gallon plants at 
$13.54. Also, monitoring and maintenance costs are calculated for three years, 
rather than the required five years, and an irrigation system is not included. 

11. Typically, any modification request requires a map produced and stamped by a 
licensed professional land surveyor. It is unclear from the map accompanying the 
buffer modification plan whether the wetland boundary was surveyed. 

Recommendations 

To assure compliance of the buffer modification plan with the KZC, we make the 
following recommendations. These recommendations will need to be applied within the 
context of the revised wetland rating and required buffer. 

1. The wetland boundary near flags 11, 12, 13, and 15 should be remarked and 
surveyed. 

1410 Market Street, Kirkland, WA 98033 - (425) 822 5242 -fax (425) 827 8136 
watershed@watershedco.com - www.watershedco.com 



J. Regala 
October 26,2005 
Page 4 of 5 

2. If there is any possibility that the stream buffer extends beyond the required 
wetland buffer after the wetland rating is revised, the stream ordinary high water 
mark should be delineation and surveyed. 

3. The pond was created in an area that was historically wetland and therefore 
should be considered in the rating of the wetland and planning of any buffer 
modification and mitigation. We recommend its inclusion in the wetland area per 
KZC 90.30.21. 

4. The proposed development and buffer modification request should be revised to 
reflect the Type I1 rating of the wetland and required 75-foot wetland buffer. This 
rating applies whether or not the City decides to include the pond in the wetland 
area (see enclosed City of Kirkland Wetland Field Data Form). 

5. The buffer modification plan should address the requirement of exhausting all 
feasible alternatives. The specific comments in the Buffer Mitigation Plan (1.) 
section of this letter regarding building placement are possible alternatives to 
consider. 

6. The plan should approach the proposed project using either buffer averaging or 
buffer reduction with enhancement, but not both, per KZC 90.60.l(a). Area 
outside of the required buffer cannot be used for buffer enhancement, as it 
represents additional buffer square footage. 

7. All proposed buildings and other structures should be outside of the required 10- 
foot building setback. 

8. Forested uplands proposed for enhancement should be described fully, and 
appropriate mitigation proposed, as it will likely differ from the enhancement 
methods proposed for more disturbed buffer areas. 

9. The monitoring and maintenance plans should be extended to five years post- 
installation. 

10. Plans for installing a temporary irrigation system should be added to the 
mitigation plan. The system should provide a minimum of 1 inch of water per 
week over all planted areas for the first growing season (March 15 to October 1). 
The system should remain in place for the duration of the monitoring period in 
case replacement plants require imgation. 

1 I. Appropriate planting densities for trees should be applied. These may differ 
among buffer enhancement areas that vary in their present vegetative composition 
(e.g., they may be less dense for forested areas). 

12. Mitigation plant numbers should be recalculated for the proposed densities. We 
recommend the use of the multipliers shown in the Buffer Mitigation Plan (9.) 
section of this letter, as they apply to staggered planting of trees and shrubs. 

13. A more appropriate tree species should be considered to substitute for shore pine 
in the planting plan. 

1410 Market Street, Kirkland, WA 98033 - (425) 822 5242 -fax (425) 827 8136 
watershed@watershedco.com - w.watershedco.com 



J. Regala 
October 26, 2005 
Page 5 of 5 

14. The assurance bond amount should be recalculated to reflect appropriate plant 
costs and a five-year mitigation and monitoring period. 

15. The wetland boundary should be surveyed by a licensed professional land 
surveyor and the survey map should be stamped. 

16. KZC 90.60.2(b) lists nine criteria that must be addressed in a report 
accompanying any buffer modification request. We recommend that the buffer 
modification plan address these individually to assure compliance. 

This concludes our comments at this time. Please call if you have any questions. 

Wet1andA;Vildlife Biologist 

1410 Market Street, Kirkland, WA 98033 - (425) 822 5242 -fax (425) 827 8136 
watershed@watershedco.com - www.watershedco.com 



WETLAND FIELD DATA FORM - 

BEGIN BY CHECKING ANY OF THE FOLLOWING (a. - e.) THAT APPLY: 

a. The wetland is contiguous to Lake Washington: 

b. The wetland contains at least 114 acre of organic soils, such as peat bogs or mucky 
soils; 

c. The wetland is equal to or greater than 70 acres in size and having three or more 
wetland classes, as defined by the U.S. Fish &Wildlife Service (Cowardin eta[., 
1979), one of which is open water; 

d. The wetland has significant habitat value to state or federally listed threatened or 
endangered wildlife species; or 

e. The wetland contains state or federally listed threatened or endangered plant species. 

IF ANY OF THE CRlTERiA LISTED ABOVE ARE MET, THEN THE WETLAND IS 
CONSIDERED TO BE TYPE 1. IF M A T  IS THE CASE, PLEASE CONTINUE TO 
COMPLETE THE ENTIRE FORM, BUT DO NOT ASSIGN POINTS. 

IF THE WETLAND DOES NOT MEET THE CRITERIA LISTED ABOVE FOR TYPE 1, 
COMPLETE THE ENTIRE FORM. USING THE ASSIGNED POINTS TO DETERMINE IF 
IT IS A TYPE 2 OR TYPE 3 WETLAND. 

Type 2 wetlands typically have at least two wetland vegetation classes, are at least 
partially surrounded by buffers of native vegetation, connected by surface water flow 
(perennial or intermittent) to other wetlands or streams, and contain or are associated with 
forested habitat. 

1. Total wetland area 

Estimate wetland area and score from choices Acres Point Value Points 

>20.00 = 6 

10-19.99 = 5 

5-9.99 = 4 

1-4.99 = 3 

0.1-0.99 = 2 

CO.1 = 1 



2. Wetland classes: Determine the number of wetland classes that qualify, and 
score according to the table. 

3. Plant species diversity. 
For all wetland classes vhich qualified in 2 above, count the number of different plant 

species and score according to the table below. You do not have to name them. 

e.g., if a wetland has an aquatic bed class with 3 species, and emergent class with 4 
species and a scrub-shrub class with 2 species. you would circle 2, 2, and I in the 
second column (below). 

Class #o f  Species Point Value Class # of Species Point Value 

Aquatic Bed 1-2 = 1 Scrub-Shrub 1-2 = 1 

3 = 2 3 4  = 2 

>3 = 3 >4 = 3 

Emergent 1-2 = 1 Forested 1-2 = 1 
3 4  = 2 3 4  = 2 

>4 = 3 >4 = 3 

4. Structural diversity. 
If the wetland has a forested class, add 1 point for each of the following attributes 

present: 

Trees 250' tail = 1 

Trees 20' to 49' tall = 1 

shrubs = 1 

Herbaceous ground cover = 1 



5. Interspection between wetland classes. 
Decide from the diagrams below whether interspection between wetland classes is 

high, moderate, low or none 

3 = High 

2 = Moderate 

I = Low 

0 = None 

6. Habitat features 
Add points associated with each habitat feature listed: 

Is there evidence of current use by beavers? = 3 

Is a heron rookery located within 3001? = 2 

Are raptor nest(s) located within 300f? = 1 

Are there at least 2 standing dead trees (snags) per acre? = t 
Are there any other perches (wires, poles, or posts)? = 1 

Are there at least 3 downed logs per acre? = 1 

(2 points) 

7. Connection to streams 
Is the wetland connected at any time of the year via surface wateR (score one 

answer only) 

Is the wetland connected at any time of the year via surface 
water? 

To a perennial stream or a seasonal stream with fish = 5 

To a seasonal stream without fish = 3 

Is not connected to any stream = 0 



8. Buffers 
Ster, Estimate (to the nearest 5%) the percentage of each buffer or land-use type 

(below) that adjoins the wetland boundary. Then multiply these percentages by the 
factor@) below and enter result in the column to the right. 

% of Buffer Step 1 Width Step 2 
Factor 

Roads, buiidings or parking lots 5 (O)% XO=-  - 0 - 
1 = 5 (0) Lawn, grazed pasture, vineyards or 5 (0) % X 1 = 5 

annual crops 

Ungrazed grassland or orchards 0 % X2=-  - - 0 

Open water or native grasslands 0 (10) % X 3 = 0 (30) 1 = 0 (30) 

Forest or shrub 90 % X 4 =  360 1 = 360 
- 

Add buffer 365 wlpond 
(390 without pond) 

Multiply result(s) of step 1: 
By 1 if bufferwidth is 25-50' 
By 2 if buffer width is 50-100' 
By 3 if buffer width is >loo' 

Enter results and add subscores 

Ster,3: Score points according to the foliowing table: 
Buffer Total 
900-1200 = 4 
600-899 = 3 
p00-599=4 
100-299 = 1 

9. Connection to other habitat areas: 

Is there a riparian corridor to other wetlands within 0.25 of a mile, or a corridor >loo' wide = 5 
with 
good forest or shrub cover to any other habitat area? 

Is there a narrow corridor <loo' wide with good cover or a wide corridor >loo' wide with = 3 
low cover 
to any other habitat area? 

Is there a narrow corridor <loo' wide with low cover or a significant habitat area within = 1 
0.25 mile 
but no corridor? 

Is the wetland and buffer completely isolated by development andlor cultivated = 0 
agricultural land? 

10. Scoring 
Add the scores to get a total: 2'2 if pond is not a wetland, 24 If it Is 

Question: Is the total greater than or equal to 22 points? 

Answer: 
f?es=Typep 
No =Type 3, 





Under KZC 90.30.21, the definition of a wetland is as follows: 

Those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or ground water 
a t  a frequency and duration sufficient to  support a prevalence of 
vegetation typically adopted for life in saturated soil conditions ... 

Wetlands do not  include artificial wetlands intentionally created from 
non-wetland sites, including but not l imited to irrigation and drainage 
ditches, grass l ined swales, canals, farm ponds and landscape amenities, 
or those wetlands created after July 1, \I990 that were intentionally 
created as a result of the construction of a road, street, o r  highway ... 

It is our opinion that the pond does not meet the definition of a wetland because it 
was intentionally created as part of the site's stormwater detention facility. 
Documentation supporting this is the attached permit. We concur that natural 
sheetflow and wetland hydrology have always flowed to the area of the pond. We did 
not find evidence of seepage along the pond edge (refer to  field data sheet-S3 and 
54. Based on these conditions, the pond is not part of the wetland and it should not 
be regulated under KZC 90. 

4) The proposed development and buffer modification request should b e  
revised t o  reflect the Type I1 rat ing of the wetland and required 75-foot 
wetland buffer .... 

After revisiting the site and reevaluating the subject wetland, WRI maintains the 
position that the subject wetland is a Type Ill wetland. The following paragraphs 
explain how the wetland rating points were scored for this wetland. Please also refer 
to the attached wetland rating form. 

The subject wetland contains two wetland classes, according to  the City's definitions 
of wetland classes. The two classes are emergent and scrub-shrub. The pond does 
not count as an open water class because it is a legal existing man-made detention 
facility, as explained under comment #3 above. The pond also does not meet the 
def-inition of open water, as it is not greater than 6 feet i n  depth. The area of the 
pond that i s  free of plants i s  approximately 800 square feet. This i s  only 7 percent of 
the total area of the subject wetland (approximately 10,890 square feet). Therefore, 
on question #2 of the rating sheet, the wetland receives a score of 3 points for having 
two wetland classes. 

On question #3 of the rating sheet, the wetland receives a score of 6 points. This 
includes 3 points for the emergent class having more than four different plant 
species, and 3 points for the scrub-shrub class having three or more different plant 
species. 

Shurnway Townhomes 
Res~onse Letter to City of Kirkland 

WRI#05224 
November 10, 2005 

consultant Review comments 



I WRI recalculated the areas of the bufferlland use types, as listed on question #8. We 
estimated that the total area of wetland buffer is approximately 38,985 square feet. 
The total  estimated area within this buffer that is comprised o f  buildings, roads, 
parking lots, or existing concrete is approximately 8,775 square feet. This i s  23 
percent (or 25, rounded to the nearest 5 percent) of the wetland buffer area. The 
total estimated area of ungrazed grass area is approximately 670 square feet (along 
the northwestern side of the pond only). This is 2 percent of the total buffer area, 
which an insignificant amount. The total area of forestedlshrub buffer, excluding the 
man-made detention pond (total area = 2,130 SF), grass areas, and any other man- 
made features, is approximately 26,930 square feet. This is approximately 70 percent 
of the wetland buffer. The resulting score in Step 1 of question #8 is 280 points. 
That score is multiplied by 1 in Step 2. The final score for this section is 1, based on 
the procedure in Step 3. 

Upon client request, WRI reevaluated question #9, as additional information was 
made available about the stormwater outflow for this site. We originally dedicated 3 
points for this question, for a wide corridor greater than 100' wide with Low cover to 
any other habitat area. This was based on aerial photography of the surrounding 
area. However, the new information presented to us indicates that there are no 
connections between the subject property and Lake Washington. Onsite stream and 
wetland hydrology flows into the overflow pipe within the onsite stormwater pond, 
which ultimately drains into a city Kirkland stormwater system. We assume that 
onsite hydrology eventually flows into Lake Washington. However, there is no natural 
connection or corridor t o  any other habitat area. Lake Washington is considered a 
significant habitat area that is within .25 mile. Therefore, the wetland receives one 
point for this section. 

Overall, the wetland receives a score of 19 points. This meets the criteria of a Class 
Ill wetland. 

5) The buffer modification plan should address the requirement of exhausting 
all feasible alternatives. 

All feasible alternatives have been exhausted for the proposed design plan. Complete 
avoidance of the wetland buffer would result in loss of at least one proposed unit, no 
yards, and smaller unit sizes within both the northwest and southeast corners. 
Moreover, the proposed buffer disturbances wil l  occur within areas already heavily 
degraded. It i s  our opinion that the best design alternative is to propose a reduction 
of already degraded buffer area so that enhancement plans to  increase buffer 
functions and values can be provided. 

6)  The plan should approach the proposed project using either buffer 
averaging or buffer reduction with enhancement, but not both .... 

The plan focuses on buffer reduction with enhancement, not buffer addition. 

Shurnway Townhomes 3 WRI#05224 
Response Letter to City of Kirkland November 10, 2005 
Consultant Review Comments 



7) All proposed buildings and other structures should be outside the required 
10-foot building setback line. 

ALL proposed buildings are outside the standard 10-foot building setback Line. 

8) Forested uplands proposed for enhancement should be described fully and 
appropriate mitigation proposed, as i t  w i l l  l ikely differ from the 
enhancement methods proposed for more disturbed buffers. 

\ 

The enhancement plan has been revised accordingly. The two enhancement areas, 
Buffer Enhancement Areas A and B, wi l l  contain different species and plant spacing. 

9) The monitoring and maintenance plants should be extended to  five years 
post installation. 

This has been revised in the mitigation plan. 

1 0) Plans far installing a temporary irrigation system should be added 
to  the mitigation plan. 

This has been added to the report, per Watershed recommendations. 

11) Appropriate planning densities for the trees should be applied. 

This has been revised in the mitigation plan, per Watershed recommendations. 

12) Mitigation planting numbers should be recalculated for the proposed 
densities. 

Plant numbers have been revised. 

13) A more appropriate tree species should be considered to  substitute 
for the shore pine. 

Western red cedar and big leaf maple have been added as substitution for shore pine. 

74) The assurance bond should be recalculated to  reflect appropriate 
plant costs and a five-year mitigation and monitoring period. 

This has been revised accordingly. 

Shumway Townhomes 4 WRI#05224 
Response Letter to City of Kirkland November 10, 2005 
Consultant Review Comments 



1 5) The wetland boundary should be surveyed by a licensed professional 
land surveyor and the survey map should be stamped. 

The appticant wil l  provide a stamped survey map. 

16) KZC 90.60.2(b) lists nine criteria that must be  addressed in a report 
accompanying any buffer modification request. W e  recommend that the 
buffer modification plan address these individually to assure compliance. 

The nine criteria under KZC 90.60.2(b) are addnessed as part of the revised buffer 
modification plan. 

It is our intention to  provide all the necessary information that adequately addresses 
the issues described above so that requirements under KZC 90 are met. Should you 
have any questions, please do not hesitate to call. 

Wetland Resources, Inc. 

Andrea Bachman 
Senior Wetland Ecologist 

Shumway Townhomes 5 WRI#05224 
Response Letter to City of Kirktand November 10, 2005 
Consultant Review Comments 





TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Site Description 

Wetland and Stream Classifications - Cowardin System 

Wetland and Stream Classifications - City of Kirkland 

Wetland Determination Report 

Boundary Determination Findings 

Wetland Functions and Values Assessment 

Project Description 

Proposed 'Buffer Modification Plan 

Planting Notes 

Project Monitoring Program 

Estimated Project Cost 

Use of this Report 

References 

Field Data Sheet 

Wetland Field Data Form 

Sensitive Area Study and Buffer Modification Plan Map 

2 

2 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

6 

7 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Appendix A 

Sheet 111 

Sensitive Area Study 8 Buffer Modification PLan 1 WRI #05224 
Shumway Townhomes Revision: December 14, 2005 



Wetland Resources, Inc. conducted a wetland delineation on the subject property 
on July 12, 2005. The site encompasses approximately 2.4 acres and is located at 
11410 99fh Pl NE in the city of Kirkland, Washington. The site is further located as a 
portion of Section 32, Township 26N, Range 5E, W.M. 

Access to this site is from the west via looth Ave NE. An asphalt driveway leads up 
the west side of the site and across the south side, in  an "L" shape. The existing 
residence and associated outbuildings are situated in the southwest corner. Aside 
from the asphalt, the northernmost third of the property consists of a vegetated 
area with a canopy of big-leaf maple. The site is bordered by single-family 
residences in  al l  directions. 

A Class B stream runs onsite from the east and empties into a man-made pond 
associated with a Type 3 wetland. The man-made pond i s  not regulated as 
wetlands, based on the City of Kirkland Department of Community Development 
Formal Hearing File Information Sheet (application date: 6-12-84). 

Steep slopes lead down from the north and south to  the wetland, which is situated 
in a depression that occupies approximately the middle third of the site. A gentler 
slope leads down from the west. The hydrology sources for this system include an 
off-site spring to  the east that feeds the stream and hillside seeps along the  
existing on-site slopes. Type 3 wetlands typically receive 50-foot protective buffers 
and Class B streams receive 60-foot protective buffers within a primary drainage 
basin in the city of Kirkland. 

Among the vegetation on this property, common horsetail is fairly dominant in both 
the wet and non-wet portions. Himalayan blackberry is also dominant in the wet  
areas, while big-leaf maple is a major species in the non-wet areas of the site. 

WETLAND AND STREAM CLASSIFICATIONS - COWARDIN SYSTEM 

According to the Cowardin System, developed by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
and described in Classification of Wetlands and Deepwater Habitats of the United 
States, the classification for the on-site wetland and stream i s  as follows: 

Wetland: Palustrine, Scrub-shrub, Persistent, Semi-permanently flooded 

Stream: Riverine, Streambed, Cobble-Gravel 

WETLAND AND STREAM CLASS~FICATIONS - CITY OF KIRKLAND 

The on-site wetland is classified as a T v ~ e  3 wetland. Tvpe 3 wetlands are wetlands 
that receive fewer than 22 points on the City of  irkl land Wetland Field Data Form. 
Sensitive Area Study €t Buffer Modification Plan 2 WRI #05224 
Shumway Townhomes Revision: December 14,2005 



The subject wetland merits 20 points on this form (attached). Type 3 wetlands 
receive 50-foot buffers. 

The on-site stream is a perennial stream during years of normal rainfall, and is not 
used by salmonids. Class B streams receive 60 foot protective buffers. 

Methodology: 
On-site, the routine methodology described in  the Washington State Wetlands 
ldentification and Delineation Manual (Washington State Department of Ecology 
Publication #96-94, March 1997) was used to  make a determination, as required by 
the City of Kirkland. Under this method, the process for making a wetland 
determination i s  based on three sequential steps: 

1.) Examination of the site for hydrophytic vegetation (species present and percent 
cover); 

2.) I f  hydrophytic vegetation is found, then the presence of hydric soils i s  
determined. 

3.) The final step i s  determining i f  wetland hydrology exists in  the area examined 
under the first two steps. 

The following criteria descriptions were used in  the boundary determination: 

Wetland Vegetation Criteria: 
The 1997 edition of the Washington State Wetlands ldentification and Delineation 
Manual defines hydrophytic vegetation as "the sum total of macrophytic plant life 
that occurs in  areas where the frequency and duration of inundation or soil 
saturation produce permanently or periodically saturated soils o f  sufficient 
duration to  exert a controlling influence on the plant species present." Field 
indicators were used to determine whether the vegetation meets the definition for 
hydrophytic vegetation. 

Wetland Soils Criteria and Mapped Description: 
The 1997 edition of the Washington State Wetlands ldentification and Delineation 
Manual defines hydric soils as "soils that formed under conditions of saturation, 
flooding, or ponding long enough during the growing season to develop anaerobic 
conditions in the upper part." Field indicators were used to determine whether a 
given soil meets the definition for hydric soils. 

The soils underlying the subject site are mapped in the Soil Survey of King County 
Area Washington, 1973 edition as Alderwood gravelly sandy loam, 6 to 15 percent 
slopes. 

Sensitive Area Study & Buffer Modification Plan 3 WRI ?YO5224 
Shumway Townhomes Revision: December 14, 2005 



The Alderwood series consists of moderately well drained, rolling soils that are on 
uplands. These soils formed under conifers, in glacial deposits. Soils included with 
this soil in mapping make up no more than 30 percent of the total acreage. Some 
areas are up to 3 percent the poorly drained Norma, Bellingham, Seattle, Tukwila, 
and Shalcar soils; some are up to 5 percent the very gravelly Everett and Neilton 
soils; and some are up to 15 percent Alderwood soils that have slopes more gentle 
or steeper than 6 to  15 percent. Also included are Alderwood soils that have a 
gravelly loam surface layer and subsoil. In a representative profile, the surface 
layer and subsoil are very dark brown, dark-brown, and grayish-brown gravelly sandy 
loam about 27 inches thick. 

Wetland Hvdro lo~v Criteria: 
The 1997 edition-if the Washington State Wetlandsldentific,atipn_and Delineation 
Marrual states that the "term wetland hydrology encompasses al l  hydrologic 
characteristics of areas that are periodically inundated or have soils saturated t o  
the surface for a sufficient duration during the growing season." I t  also explains 
that "areas with evident characteristics of wetland hydrology are those where the 
presence of water has an overriding influence on characteristics of vegetation and 
soils due to anaerobic and chemically reducing conditions, respectively." 

Additionally, the manual states that "areas which are seasonally inundated andlor 
saturated to the surface for a consecutive number of days 212.5 percent of the  
growing season are wetlands, provided the soil and vegetation parameters are met. 
Areas inundated or saturated between 5 and 12.5 percent of the growing season in 
most years may or may not be wetlands. Areas saturated to  the surface for less 
than 5 percent of the growing season are non-wetlands." Field indicators were 
used to  determine whether wetland hydrology parameters were met on this site. 

On-site Wetland Area: 
The on-site wetland located in  the middle portion of the site is a Type 3 wetland. 
The wetland extends off-site to  the east. The stream that feeds into the wetland 
comes from off-site to the east. It i s  topographically constrained by slopes to  the 
north, south, and west. Vegetation in  this wetland consists of common horsetail 
(Equisetum arvense, Fac) and Himalayan blackberry (Rubus discolor, FacU). Also 
present are climbing nightshade (Solanum dulcamara, Fac+), Epilobium species 
(FacW-), slough sedge (Carex obnupta, Obl), skunk cabbage (Lysichiton americanum, 
Obl), lady fern (Athyrium filix-femina, Fac), orchard morning glory (Convolvulus 
arvensis, NolIUpl), and water parsley (Oenanthe sormentosa, Obl). 

The soils within the on-site wetland generally display a Munsell color of black (10YR 
211) from 0 to  18" below the surface. The wetland soils have a texture of silty 
sand. During the investigation in  July of 2005, the soils were saturated. 

Sensitive Area Study & Buffer Modification Plan 4 WRI #05224 
Shumway Townhomes Revision: December 14, 2005 



Non-wetland Area: 
The vegetation in the non-wetland areas is represented by a canopy of big-leaf 
maple (Acer macrophyllum, FacU). Species in  the understory include osoberry, 
Himalayan blackberry, hazelnut (Corylus cornuta, FacU), Oregon grape (Berberis 
nervosa, FacU), sword fern (Polystichum munitum, FacU), common horsetail, and 
bracken fern (Pteridium aquilinum, FacU). 

From the surface to approximately 2" below the surface, the non-wetland soils on- 
site generally display a Munsell color of black (IOYR 211). From 2" below the 
surface to  18" below the surface, these soils generally display a Munsell color of 
dark yellowish brown (IOYR 414). At the time of the site investigation in July 2005, 
the non-wetland soils were dry with a texture of sandy loam. 

Methodology: 
The methodology for this functions and values assessment i s  based on professional 
opinion developed through past field analyses and interpretation. This assessment 
pertains specifically to the wetland system on-site, but is typical for assessments of 
similar systems throughout western Washington. 

Analysis: 
The most important function provided by the subject Type 3 wetland is hydrologic 
control. 

Hydrologic control (flood control and water supply) is an important function 
provided by wetlands and streams in  western Washington. Wetlands function as 
natural water storage areas during periods of high precipitation. Wetlands with 
limited outlets store greater amounts of water than wetlands with unrestricted 
flow outlets. The depressional characteristics of wetlands often accumulate 
stormwater runoff. The ponded nature of many wetlands acts to store any excess 
stormwater that reaches the wetlands. The subject wetland on-site creates a 
natural water-retention system as the wetland collects precipitation runoff from 
the steep slopes to  the north and south and accommodates overflow from the  
creek it is associated with. 

The subject wetland also has fairly high value in  the function of water quality 
improvement. There are depressional areas present in the wetland that have the  
potential to trap sediment during flooding events. A good portion of the wetland is 
covered by herbaceous and emergent vegetation that i s  effective at  filtering 
sediment out of the water column. The residential areas surrounding the wetland 
will be able to reap the benefits of this water quality improvement value. 

Some value in habitat functions is also provided by this wetland. It contains 
different kinds of vegetation (scrub-shrub and emerqent), caterinq t o  animal 
species that prefer different habitats. The wetland also-ser& as a decent buffer 
Sensitive Area Study & Buffer Modification Plan 5 WRI $95224 
Shumway Townhomes Revision: December 14, 2005 



to the surrounding residential areas and is within 1 mile of Lake Washington, an 
important nearby habitat. 

Conclusion: 
The overall functions and values of the subject Type 3 wetland are good. 

The anticipated development plan wi l l  include six new townhome buildings with 
associated access roads. The existing Shumway mansion wi l l  be retained, and a 
new two-car garage i s  proposed to be constructed adjacent to the mansion. The 
applicant is proposing to  reduce several areas of buffer on this site, as described in 
the proposed buffer modification plan below. 

Pursuant to KZC, Section 90.60.2, up to one third of the standard buffer may be 
reduced i f  the applicant provides an enhancement plan that will result in a higher 
level of buffer function along the reduced buffer area. For this site, the applicant 
proposes to reduce two areas of the 50-foot standard wetland buffer to  a minimum 
34-foot buffer. The plan wil l  result in a total of 6,425 (3,515 + 2,910) square feet of 
buffer reduction. 

The areas proposed for reduction have been degraded from historic land use on 
this site. These areas proposed for reduction are comprised of existing asphalt, 
existing buildings, dense Himalayan blackberry, and maintained lawn. Because of 
these existing conditions, the on-site wetland buffer has moderately low potential 
for providing important buffer functions. Such functions include wetland 
protection, water quality, stormwater infiltrationlretention, and wildlife habitat. 

The proposed buffer modification plan meets the criteria under KZC 90.60 b. 
Because the proposed plan wil l  result in  significant enhancement and improved 
buffer functions and values, the proposed buffer modification plan wi l l  not  
adversely affect water quality, fish wildlife or their habitat, drainage andlor 
stormwater capabilities. Construction wi l l  be outside the steep slope areas, and 
wi l l  therefore not lead to unstable earth conditions or create an erosion hazard. 
Development standards wi l l  be met so that the project wil l  not be detrimental t o  
other properties or the City. Fill materials will not cause harm to  fish and wildlife. 
All exposed areas, especially areas were existing concrete is removed in the buffer, 
wi l l  be revegetated with native species. Based on these conditions, we assume the 
proposed buffer modification plan is consistent with KZC 90.60 b.1. 

All feasible alternatives have been exhausted for the proposed design plan. 
Complete avoidance of the wetland buffer would result in  loss of at  least one 
proposed unit, no yards, and smaller unit sizes within both the northwest and 
Sensitive Area Study & Buffer Modification PLan 6 WRI #05224 
Shumway Townhomes Revision: December 14, 2005 



southeast corners. Moreover, the proposed buffer disturbances wi l l  occur within 
areas already heavily degraded. It is our opinion that the best design alternative is 
to propose a reduction of already degraded buffer area so that enhancement plans 
to increase buffer functions and values can be provided. 

The proposed buffer enhancement plan wi l l  first require removal of existing invasive 
species, such as Himalayan blackberry, and removal of existing asphalt within the 
remaining areas designated as buffer on this site. The total area to be enhanced 
wil l  equal 20,220 square feet. Buffer Enhancement area A i s  severely degraded by 
the existing parking lot, buildings, concrete, cleared areas, and Himalayan 
blackberry. For enhancement area A, trees will be on 10-foot centers, and shrubs 
on 5-foot centers. Buffer enhancement area B contains a higher concentration of 
native trees and shrubs. It is also over grown with Himalayan blackberry. For 
enhancement area 6, plantings wil l  be at  a lower density than those in  buffer 
enhancement area A. Trees wi l l  be on 15-foot centers and shrubs are on 6-foot 
centers. Enhancement plantings wi l l  be evenly distributed throughout the buffer. 
Plantings wi l l  be placed in  groupings of 2-3 l ike species t o  reflect natural 
asymmetric patterns. The following plantings are proposed. 

Buffer Enhancement Area A (10.530 sauare feet) 
Common Name t at in ~ a m e  Size Quantity 
1. Western red cedar Jhuia olicata 1 gallon 61 .. . - 
2. Douglas f ir  Pseudostuga menziesii 1 gallon 61 
3. Osoberry Oemleria cerasiformis 1 gallon 121 
4. Vine maple Acer circinatum 1 gallon 121 
5. Red-osier dogwood Cornus sericea 1 gallon 121 
6. Snowberry Syphoricarpus albus 1 gallon 121 

Buffer Enhancement Area A 19.690 sauare feet) 
Common Name  ati in ~ a m ' e  Size Quantity 
1. Western red cedar Thuja plicata 1 gallon 17 
2. Douglas f ir  Pseudostuga menziesii 1 gallon 17 
3. Big leaf maple Acer macrophyllum 1 gallon 17 
4. Vine maple Acer circinatum 1 gallon 310 

Planting shall take place in  the early spring or late fall. Plants should be obtained 
from a reputable nursery. All plant materials recommended in this plan are typically 
available from local and regional sources, depending on seasonal demand. Some 
limited species substitution (including bareroot stock) may be allowed, only with 
the agreement of the consulting biologist or City of Kirkland biologist. Care and 
handling of plant materials is extremely important to  the overall success of this 
enhancement project. 

Sensitive Area Study Et Buffer Modification PLan 7 WRI #05224 
Shumway Townhomes Revision: December 14, 2005 



The plants shall be arranged with the appropriate numbers, sizes, species, and 
distribution to achieve the required vegetation coverage. The actual placement of 
individual plants shall mimic natural, asymmetric vegetation patterns found on 
similar undisturbed sites in  the vicinity. 

Requirements for monitoring project: 
1. Initial compliance report 
2. Semi-annual site inspections (spring and fall) for a period of five years 
3. Annual reports (one written report submitted in the fal l  of each monitored year) 

The purpose for monitoring this enhancement project shall be to  evaluate its 
success. Success wi l l  be determined i f  monitoring shows at the end of five years 
that the definition of success (stated below) i s  met. The property owner shall 
grant access to  the enhancement area for inspection and maintenance to  the 
contracted wetland professional and the City of Kirkland biologist during the 
monitoring period, or until the project is evaluated as successful. 

Criteria for  Success: Upon completion of the proposed buffer enhancement 
project, an inspection by a certif ied wetland professional shall be made t o  
determine plan compliance. Condition monitoring of the plantings shall be done by 
a certif ied wetland professional. Final inspection wi l l  occur three years after 
completion of the project, and the consulting wetland professional wi l l  prepare a 
report as to the success of the project. 

Definition o f  Success: The buffer enhancement area shall support at least 80% of 
the native plants set forth in  the approved restoration plan by the end of three 
years. The species mix should resemble that proposed in the plan, but strict 
adherence to obtaining al l  of the species shall not be a criterion for success. By 
the end of the third growing season, the percent areal coverage of native plants 
shall be 80% in  the enhancement area and total coverage by invasive species such 
as reed canarygrass and Himalayan blackberry shall not exceed 10 percent. 

Assurance Device: An assurance device shall be provided to the City of Kirkland in 
the amount of $25,741.00for a period of five years from the completion of the  
mitigation project. This bond shall be released at the end of three years upon "a 
successful determination" by the City of Kirkland Planning Department for all 
portions of this project. 

Irrigation: A temporary irrigation system will be installed at the beginning of the  
project. Water wi l l  be provided at a minimum of one inch per week over all 
planted areas for the first growing season (March 15-October 1). The system 
should remain in  place for the duration of the monitoring period i n  case 
repiacement plants require irrigation. 
Sensitive Area Study €t Buffer Modification Plan 8 WRI #05224 
Shumway Townhomes Revision: December 14, 2005 



Maintenance: The buffer enhancement area wi l l  l ikely require periodic 
maintenance during the monitoring period. Maintenance may include, but will not  
require or be limited to, removal of competing grasses and invasive vegetation (by 
hand i f  necessary), irrigation, replacement of plant mortality, fertilization, and/or 
the replacement of mulch. Aggressive control of invasive grasses and Himalayan 
blackberry wi l l  likely be required in the proposed enhancement area. Appropriate 
maintenance requirements wil l  be determined by site monitoring. 

Contingency Plan: If 20% of the installed plants are severely stressed during any of 
the inspections, or it appears that 20% may not survive, additional plantings of the 
same species may be added to  the planting areas. Elements of a contingency plan 
may include, but wi l l  not be limited to, more aggressive weed control, animal 
control, mulching, replanting with larger plant material, species substitution, 
fertilization, soil amendments, and/or irrigation. 

QUANTITY OF ONE-GALLON PLANTS (AT $ I ~ . ~ ~ / P L A N T )  967 
TOTAL ESTIMATED COST OF PLANT MATERIAL AND LABOR $13,093.18 
TOTAL ESTIMATED COST OF MONITORING ($1,000.00/YEAR FOR 5 YEARS) $5,000.00 
TOTAL ESTIMATED COST OF MAINTENANCE ( $ ~ ~ O . ~ ~ / Y E A R  FOR 5YEARS) $2,500.00 
TOTAL ESTIMATED COST $20,593.00 

ASSURANCE DEVICE/BONDING (PURSUANT TO KZC 90.145) 
(1 25% OF THE TOTAL ESTIMATED COST) $25,741 .oo 

Sensitive Area Study & Buffer Modification Plan 9 WRI #05224 
Shumway Townhomes Revision: December 14, 2005 



USE OF THIS REPORT 

This Sensitive Area Study and Buffer Modification Plan is supplied to  Shumway 
Townhomes, LLC as a means of determining on-site wetland conditions, as required 
by the City of Kirkland during the permitting process. This report is based largely 
on readily observable conditions and, to a lesser extent, on readily ascertainable 
conditions. No attempt has been made to  determine hidden or concealed 
conditions. Reports may be adversely affected due to the physical condition .of 
the site and the difficulty of access, which may lead to  observation or probing 
difficulties. 

The laws applicable to  wetlands are subject to varying interpretations and may be 
changed at any time by the courts or legislative bodies. This report is intended t o  
provide information deemed relevant in the applicant's attempt to comply with the 
laws now in effect. 

The work for this report has conformed to  the standard of care employed by 
wetland ecologists. No other representation or warranty i s  made concerning the 
work or this report and any implied representation or warranty is disclaimed. 

Wetland Resources, Inc. 

. .  . .  

Andrea Bachman 
Senior Wetland Ecologist 

Sensitive Area Study & Buffer Modification PLan 10 WRI #05224 
Shumway Townhomes Revision: December 14, 2005 



City of Kirkland Zoning Code: Sensitive Areas Ordinance, Chapter 90. Revision Date: 
May, 2001. Kirkland, WA. 

Cowardin, et  al., 1979. Classification of Wetlands and Deepwater Habitats of the 
United States. U.S.D.I. Fish and Wildlife Service. FWSIOBS-79/31. December 
1979. 

National List of Plant Species that Occur in  Wetlands, Northwest Region. 1996. U.S. 
Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service. Washington, D.C. 

Soil Survey: Kinq County Area, Washington. U.S.D.A. Soil Conservation 
Service. November 1973. 

Washinqton State Wetlands Identification and Delineation Manual. Washington 
State Department of Ecology. Publication #96-94. March 1997. 

Sensitive Area Study 8 Buffer Modification Plan 11 WRI #05224 
Shurnway Townhomes Revision: December 14, 2005 



SENSITIVE AREA STUDY 
BUFFER MODIFICATION PLAN MAP 

SHUM WAY TOWNHOM ES 
A PTN OF SECTtON 32, TWP 26 NORTH, RGE 5 EAST, W.M. 

SCALE: ?'' = 50' 

0 50 100 

8UFFER ENHANCEMENT BUFFER ENHANCEMENT 
AREA B 

10,530 SF 

\I NAN.IMOE. 
NON.REGUUTE0 POND 
(PER CITY OF KIRKLAND} 

THlS AREA WELL.VEGETATED 
NOT TO BE ENHANCED 

EXISTING STRUCTURES 
, . TO BE REMOVED 

TO BE REMOVED 

WETLAND 

BUFFER REDUCTION 

BUFFER ENHANCEMENT A 1W1YW ".-%.I l"V iwC"rril,".b*l*i"W 

Phone: (425) 317.3174 

BUFFER ENHANCEMENT B Far: (425) 337-3045 
Email: mailboxawcilandresourc~.com 

/"\ PROPOSED BUFFER 
/ \ 

ESA SIGN 
BUFFER MODIFICATION PLAN MAP 

SHUMWAY TOWNHOMES 

Ihymwhy AtW. R&L 79unMmn KeltCtllb <LC 
Om- h, RL 

IlWrColhrvaUf d l 8  DXe: d,aL%[ 0. tW5 

A . .  



~. . 
e , , ,  . ..I 
!JU <.trj> 

Shumway Mansion ,.i;.i. 1 . . . . 
11410 99"' PI. NE *Juanita Bay, Kirkland, WA 98033 

Bed & Breakfast Inn * Reception Center lL;r~;a:$,!~ ......~,.:+.zc.rrz..~. . , 

Weddings 8 Business Meetings Seniinars 
eY ess-,b. 

(425) 823 -- 2303 
October 1 I ,  2004 

75.40 Nl, 2, & 3 
N l  The extent to which the proposed alteration would adversely affect the :sigr~ificant 
features or site as an historic landmark. 
Co~nments/IHistoryiBackground 

My wife and I, after 20 years, intend to retire and due to this we will be sellirjg 
The Shuniway Mansion property. Our plan is to convert hack to its original single frtntily 
RS 8500 zoning with no conimercial activity except for our Bed and Breakfast 
Capability. 

We want to revise the historic overlay, or apply for Landmark status with i!.s 
emphasis on protecting the house structure as the significant feature. This is in kec:ping 
with precedence guided by the city approvals for the Marsh Mansion. Please note the 
following is an excerpt from a letter from Joseph Tovar Planning Director, City of 
Kirkland to Joe Donoghue, owner representative for Marsh Mansion dated May 21, 1985. 
Mr. Tovar stating Kirkland's policy of "preservation" for the Marsh Mansion. 

"Even though the Marsh Mansion has not been designated as a state or natiol-.a1 
historic building, the City has decided it is a historically significant building in its :;and 
use Policies Plan (LUPP) and proposed demolition of the Marsh Mansion would bi: 
subject to the State Environmental Policies Act (SEPA) review under the historical 
preservation element. It is very unlikely that a detnolition pennit could be issued for the 
Marsh Mansion because of the City's position that it is a significant historic buildiilg." 

Originally four features were designated as Significant for Sltunnway Mansion; 
1. The Name - - Shumway Mansion 
2. The external features of the mansion 
3. A book containing the history of the Mansion including photographs kept on sile. 
4. The entire site surrounding the Mansion and related facilities, including 1andsc;iping 

in scale and character appropriate to the mansion. 
Front the very beginning I (we) objected strongly about the designation of the whole site 
as significant. We relocated the house to the site, and knowledgeable historians agrezd 
that the house being relocated to a new site, the land would not and should not be 
significant to the historic overlay. In addition, size of the site was never discussed or 
deliberated upon to detennine appropriateness in scale to the neighborltood or houe. 

Over the years, I have been in contact with the planning staff and on more than 
one occasion have heard comments from different staff members that ... "The land should 
not be significant only the house." The land was designated as significant by the ci.y 
council as they were concerned about a potential parking problem during weddings. 
Having all the land as significant would insure the land would always be available for 
parking. Parking is not a historical reason. The parking problem then could have ber:n 
solved in several different ways other than the "Sib-ificant Feature" approach. This 
decision was made not from a historically technical reason, but to facilitate the loc~.l 
approval process. 

. ~ ~~ . .~ / ATTACHMENT 2% 



Now that there will be no more need for the large parking area, there will he no 
more need for the land to be encumbered by the Sibmificant Feature. 

As we will no longer be doing weddings and corporate meetings, we .will 
eliminate substantial traffic trips to and from the Mansion. We estimate the reduct oil 
based on our 2003 experience will be more than 20,000 to 25,000 trips annually. The 
majority of these come froin our wedding business. In addition we will have no more 
music into the neighborhood or traffic congestion for our local neighbors. (Please see 
Kirkland Zoning Code 75.47-3-6-2 Criteria for modification.) 

In January 2004,I had a meeting with Eric Shields, the Planning Director to 
initiate this process. As we are only one of two Historic overlay properties in Kirkland, 
Eric suggested that he wasn't as familiar with it as he should be and indicated be vroilld 
review the process and also suggested he would contact the 'ily Attorney regarding the 
suggested direction for me to pursue. Eric did contact me about a week later with Lhr: 
results of his conversation with the City Attorney. The City Attorney reviewed thc: 
process/ordinance and background to our Historic Overlay, and said they didn't sei: any 
problems. He suggested we designate the building as the significant feature, and n:niove 
the land as significant within the Historic Overlay. 

Please note on the original site on Lake Street there were additional structure:; 
immediately surrounding the Mansion building. These were located on the original 
Mansion site and were part of the designated Mansion lot. 

Historic buildings throughout the United States are, as historians, have 
commented, living, breathing, changing land and structures and need to be able to 'change 
as needed to stay and be viable throughout our history. They cannot and should net IIC 
static, or will be ibmored by the public and soon rot away. 

We have consulted with the King County Historic Preservation P r o ~ a m  (IIPI"). 
HPP staff agrees that the land is not historic and that the architecture of the house is the 
significant historic feature of the property. They have stated, as I have, that the land 
shouldn't have been designated significant as the house was relocated to this new sitc. 
There is no question that the house exterior is the main significant feature. The following 
is an exceiyt from the Kirkland Landmark Designation Criteria T24-KI, page 4 of t i ,  

Criteria #3 - "Provides that a building or structure removed from its original locatisn is 
not eligible for landmark designation unless it is significant primarily for its arcliitc:c~ural 
value, or if it is the surviving structure most importantly associated with a historic person 
or event." 

The consideration recognizes that the original locations of most historic prope:rties 
contribute to their significance so that their relocations may effectively sever them from 
their significant associations. A structure significant for its architecture without reference 
to its surroundings may be eligible for landmark designation even if it has been moved, 
however, and if there is no other building to represent a particular event or persou, a 
relocated building ]nay be designated. All the comments above strictly at-e pointed tc the 
house structure only and expressly do not include the land surrounding the structurt:. The 
land is not any part of a significant feature. 

We intend to provide a site for the Mansion of 18,000 + square feet that will be in 
proper proportion with the size of the 'Mansion structure and also will be in proportion 
with our surrounding single family neighborhood. Within this site we will provide a 



view corridor from 99"' ~11100"' Ave. to the mansior, that now has the landscaping in 
scale and character appropriate to the Mansion and neighborhood. 

l (we) have proposed the new site of 18,000 + square feet which is a poxtion of 
our present 104,000 + square feet. We are doing this to insure that the mansion has ;I 

properly proportioned amount of land to support the size of the Mansion and also it is in 
proportion to the surrounding neighborhood houses. We do not intend to divide ariy 
other part our intent is to sell the whole 2.4 acres including the Mansion to a new 
owner. As we will be selling, we felt we should provide this protection to the Marision 
before a new owner took possession. 

We have received an additional letter of comment from Charlie Sundberg, King 
County I-Iistoric Preservation in which we ask for his opinion as additional clarific.xtio~> 
about the size and location of the Mansion site. He basically states that because of'tl-ie 
topography of the whole site and the visibility from the street (100''' Ave NE) the site: 
lends itself to the 18,000 + square foot size. We also asked, and he confirmed, nbc~ut the 
placement of additional structures on the "new" mansion site - garage, pool house, etc. 
The main coucerll was that any other structure adjacent to or in close proximity wclold 
not cornpromise its setting. 

We did solicit comments from the Kirkland Heritage Society and Mr. Bob 3kirke 
to also review our above proposal. The members of the Heritage Society as well as 13011 
Burke agreed that our 18;000 4- square foot lot size was appropriate, and they also 
suggested that having the Mansion desipated a King County Landmark would gibe the 
Mansion proper "Historical" protection. 

Please see page 1 Re:4 significant feature. It is our suggestion that i l4  be 
eliminated as now it serves no purpose. 

Since the overlay was aj~plied, the city of Kirkland has adopted a landmark 
ordinance [KMC 28.121 that provides for flexible design review of historic properfie!: 
using the Secretary of Interior standards. Designation of the Mansion as a city landmark 
would provide a much better means of insuring the preservation of the buildings 
significant features, while allowing needed changes to occur. This last statement is 
quoted tiom a letter received from King County Preservation, Charlie Sundberg, 
September 20" 2004. 

We wish to cooperate with the City to designate the property as a City of Kirkland 
landmark following the procedures in the City's landmark code. We wish to presewa the 
significant historic features of the building and make any and all incentives for the 
preservation available to new purchasers of our property. 







- 
wng county 
Omce of Cuitarat Resources 

Ann Commitaion 
I-andmath and H&%c Beegram 
x'i~blic An Progmm 

506 Second Aucnue, k i w  MO 
Srrrrlc, ErA 981M 
P h o x  @b) 2Y-7580vITDD 
x (206) 296.8629 
w w w . m e n & c . ~  

September 16,2004 

Mr. Richard Hmis 
11410 ~ 9 ' ~ P l a e  
Kirktaud, WA 98033 

FS? i'reservahbn_an,d Land Partition of file Shumtw Mansion Prooerty 

Deiav Mr. Ranis: 

T h i s  Letter is in response to our &her discussion regarding your proposed potential lot division 
at the Shumway Mansion. As we have discussed, thefopogmphy of& site seenls to iend iisclf 
to preserving %.e Mansion on a ssmalker parcel, provided that new development isn't very vi silrle 
from the Mansion grounds or h m  the public road below, and if properly sited and screened, a 
garage for the Mansion may fir in the potential partition you're examikng. 

In earlier correspondence I suggested that the parcel for the Mansion be enlarged to 
accommodate a gasage, since new construction adjacnlt to or in close proximity to the Maxion 
would compromise its setting. A larger lot wo\ikl nor be needed i f  a shallow garage wonld fit 
along the south pmpmy line near the tm to the proposed cul-de-sac, or if a garage were briil:: 
below the house in an area screened by vegetation, A garage could also be buiit on aaz ea-raxcnt 
within a partstilioned area, perhaps shared with new development. 

Lkewise, preventing visual inmsion from new construction seems feasible if additional 
buildings are limited to the upper areas afthe propmy and mixed deciduous and evergreen trr-es 
and shnabs am planted to block views h m  the Mansion and the ptlblic roadway in all seasons. 
Evm if they are son~ewhat visible, carefilly designed new huildings cotislmc~ed with ccaniparible 
materials in a scale, form md color that are not intrusive would not deetrct from the Mmsioa. 
Explicit performance criteria for new consmcrion around the Mansion could be formulated prior 
to my land division or new development. 

ATTACHMENT 

ZOhl Qq. OM%' 



Mr. Richard Harris 
September 16,2004 
Page 2 

Please feel free to call me at (206) 296-8673 if you wish to discuss Phis matter fiflhcr. 

Sincerely, 

Charlie Sundberg 
Prese~vation P l m e r  

cc: Angela Ruggeri, Planner, City of Kirkland Planning and Development Dcparuncnf 







SHUMWAY 10, LLC 

January 9,2006 

Jon Regala 
City of I(irkland 
123 51h Avenue 
I(it.I<land. WA 98033-6189 

AM PM 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

BY * --- 
RE: Shumway 10; ZON04-00025 

Subject: PUD Criteria Application: 

Dear Jon: 

We are pleased to present the following report which summarizes the Shumway 10 
PUD application. As part of this appfication we request that the City of 
Kirkland review the prefiminaty Shumway 10 PUD and the Final Shumway 10 
PUD with this submission. During the development and unit design process we 
have paid close attention to the City of KirMand's PUD criteria and have addressed 
each element of this criteria in our submittal packagc and in the following report. 

Surrounding Neighborhood Benefits: 
El'iminatin of commercial me and bresefvation o f  - the historical site: 

Currently the site exists as a commercial island in the City of Kirkland's 
comprehensive growth management plan. The property is presently used 
commercially as a Bed and Breakfast lodge. In addition to the Bed and Breakfast 
business the lodge is complete with a large area that is designed to host large public 
events including weddings, reunions, and parties. In the past these events have 
typically impacted the surrounding neighborhood by increasing latc night traffic and 
noise, along with the occasional public disorderliness that sometimes occurs with 
these types of events. As part of this PUD application the existing commercial 
enterprise will be converted and sold as a single family residence, which will greatly 
reduce the overall negative impact of the current commercial use to the surrounding 
community. 

In addition, as part of the PUD application the historical overlay will be reduced and 
maintained to protect the historical significance of the Shumway Mansion site. Great 
care has been taken to insure that the new historical overlay will protect the current 
integrity of the site by establishing permanent view corridors and adequate setbacks 
that will allow the Shumway Mansion to continue to stand out as a historical site in 
the City of Kirkland. The ICirkland Heritage Society has reviewed our I'UD and Bob 
Burke, Director of the IGrMand Heritage Society, has a favorable opinion of o w  
proposed project. Mr. Burke has also agreed to help us in the design of the Flistorical 

ATTACHMENT 27 



SHUMWAY 10, LLC 

Marker and to Archive all relevant documents and photographs pertaining to the 
mansion at the Icirkland Heritage Society. 

Enhancement and Preservation o f  Existinlp Woodlands. Streams and Wetlands 

As stated in the opinion letter from The Watershed Company the current 
commercial use has parking and roads that encroach on the existing wetland buffers, 
wetland buffer setback, stream buffers, and stream buffer setbacks. Watershed goes 
on to say that this portion of the buffer is of low biological value and may actually be 
a detriment to the stream and wetlands. The Shumway 10 PUD when complete will 
provide a benefit to the city by not encroaching on the allowable buffers and 
setbacks. This benefit would not be available to the city under the present 
ownership and commercial use of the property. As part of the Shumway 10 PUD all 
buffers onsite will be improved with native plants and all existing invasive species 
will be removed. The buffer areas will be maintained as a requirement of the future 
HOA. 'I'his will have a positive effect on the wetlands and ensure the protection of 
drainage, habitat and aesthetic functions of the natural resources going forward. 

In order to accomplish these improvements the stream and wetland buffers will be 
reduced by approximately 6,400 sq. ft and in no instance will the buffer reduction be 
more than one third of the existing buffer at any one point as allowed under I<ZC, 
Section 90.60.2. The existing buffer has encroachments for roads and parldng on thc 
north side that are more than the one third allowed and the balance of the buffer has 
been neglected containing dense growth of Himalayan Blackberry, asphalt and 
maintained lawns. As explained in the previously submitted and approved wetland 
report the on-site wetland buffer as it exists now has low potential for providing 
important buffer functions. As part of this I'UD the buffer will be enhanced by 
removing the invasive species and existing asphalt that is now within the buffer 
zones. ' f i e  total buffer area (approximately 32,000 sq. ft.) will be enhanced with 
buffer plantings evenly distributed throughout the cntire buffer. The planting 
schedulc is included in the wetland reports. This enhanccmcnt will greatly improvc 
the existing buffer functions to better enable wetland protection, water quality, storm 
water infiltration/retention and wildlife habitat than exists currently. As The 
Watershed Company stated in their opinion, "if the development was allowed and 
buffer enhancement took place, the overall effect would be to increase the buffer 
function and thereby improvc conditions in existing wetland, stream and detention 
pond" 

S~berior park in^ and Circalation 

At the current commercial use the Shumway Mansion has approximately 54 surface 
parldng spaces that are largely unscreened except by thc wild growth of invasive 
species such as Himalayan Blackberry and Scotchbroom. 'I'he Shumway 10 PUD 
would benefit the city by rcmoving all surface parking except two guest parking 



SHUMWAY 10, LLC 

spaces by building 9. The balance of the parking would be in enclosed garages 
including a new enclosed garage for the mansion itself. The existing roads will also 
be replaced with new access roads with proper drainage. 

Aditlstments made addressinp Neiphborhood concerns 

As part of the Shumway 10 PUD submittal and as a further benefit to the City of 
Kirkland we informed, met, and received input about our project from various 
neighbors. The first meeting was a community meeting to inform the neighborhood 
of the proposed PUD and to answer any questions the neighbors may have about 
the project. After that meeting we then organized a series of meetings with 
neighboring homeowner associations to discuss and address specific issues of our 
PUD proposal. As a result of these meetings we werc able to address theix issues as 
part of our PUD application and gain neighborhood support from the Baycrest 
HOA, located directly north of the property, the Westview Court HOA, located 
directly east of the property, and various individual homeowners. As a result of this 
input the following changes were incorporated into the Shumway 10 PUD submittal. 

* Lowered the hcight of the duplex unit by 2 feet to address view concerns 
from Westview Court. This resulted in the building height being 2 feet 
below the allowed maximum City of IGrkland height standard. 
Installation of 8' cedar fence on the east property line to provtde privacy 
between our PUD and Westview Court. 

* Installation of screening bushes on north property line to provide additional 
privacy between our PUD and Bayerest. 
Installation of screening bushes on the south property line to provide 
additional privacy between our PUD and the existing single family 
residences. 
Specific placement of buildings in order to help preserve view corridors on 
the North and East property lines. 

Townhome Product combared to sinpile famiilv residences: 

As many people in the City of JSkkland have cxperienceci housing prices continue to 

rise preventing a barrier to living in the Kirkland area. The Shumway 10 PUD will 
provide a benefit to the city that would not be available under its current commercial 
use by matching the surrounding use of the neighborhood by providing 9 
townhomes at substantially lower price points than 5 single family custom homes, 
which is presently allowed under existing zoning. This PUD will not only allow 
lowcr price points but will also increase the density closer to that envisioned in the 
comprehensive plan at lower price points providlg more individuals with an 
opportunity to live in the City of ICixkland. 



SHUMWAY PO, LLC 

Architectural and Sitework design: 

The design of the proposed PUD will be superior to developing 5 individual house 
lots which are allowed outright per the current zoning and it will also be superior to 
leaving the project at its current commercial use. By submitting this project as a 
I'UD the City and adjoining neighbors havc an opportunity to provide input which 
must be taken into consideration during the design process. This opportunity for 
input would not be available if the site were to be platted for 5 individual houses. 

Grcat care has been taken to insure that the designs of thc 9 units proposed to be 
developed on this site are compatible to the design of the historic Shumway 
Mansion. 

Sbwnwav Mansion Atzalvszs 

'The Shumway Mansion was designed primarily in the Craftsman style. There are 
several elements such as the large round columns at the entry and the two story 
octagonal clement adjacent thc front entry which are not purely craftsman in nature 
but arc related in that they represent Arts and Crafts style detailing. Craftsman 
design actually grew out of the Arts and Crafts movement. 

Elements which are Craftsman in nature and udlizcd in the mansion design include 
the window design. The window trim is very heavy in appearance with heavier head 
and sill trim than used at the jamb. The more prominent windows are grouped into 
threes with the largest window at the center of the group. ' f i e  center window is 
then flanked by narrower windows. The griding of windows in the top half is also a 
Craftsman detail. 

'Shere arc a number of different siding materials that are used within Craftsman style 
buildings. The Shumway Mansion utilizes both wood shingles and board and batten 
siding. Other Craftsman design elements include knee braces and trellises both of 
which are used in the mansion. 

The current zoning designation of RS 8.5 would allow the development of 12 
housing units on the subject site prior to reductions due to the presence of wetlands. 
'I'he Comp Plan designation for the site, when applying for a 1'Ulj would actually 
allow even denser development of 7 units per acre. This would allow for 17 housing 
units prior to reductions. 'Ihe proposed project will only have 9 housing units in 
addition to the Mansion itself. 'I'he Shumway Mansion site is 2.42 acres. Thc 



SHUMWAY 10, LLC 

allowed density worlrs out to approximately 7 dwelling units per acrc. This proposal 
will only have a density of 3.72 dwelling uruts per acrc. 

'The development of 9 units will be clustered in two areas of the site away from the 
Shumway Mansion. Five single family units are proposed to be developed in the 
Northwest comer of the site and four units are proposed for the Southeast comer of 
the site. 

By positioning the new housing units as far away from the Mansion as possible both 
views from the street to the mansion and views outward from the mansion are 
preserved. In consideration of the historic mansion the site has been laid out so that 
none of the proposed structures turn their back on the mansion. Presently all of the 
residential structures adjacent to the site are orientated with their backs to the 
Shumway Mansion. 'She proposed development will correct this less than desirable 
condition. In most eases the more detailed front of the proposed structures will face 
the mansion thus providing a better architectural backdrop to the mansion. 

The closest proposed buildings are set at a 45 degree angle to the mansion. 'I'his 
includes a new garage proposed for the mansion and one of the single family 
structures that is a part of the proposed development. With this orientation the new 
development does not create a sense of enclosure and encroachment onto the 
mansion like a building set square and in close proximity would. The 45 degree 
angle also provides a greater sense of openness for the existing houses to the South 
of the sitc. In order to accommodate the angled orientation of these structures each 
of the two buildings are set with one comer on the parcel line that separates the 
mansion from the adjacent proposed development. Buildings arc typically set back 
from property lines per code in order to provide a measure of safety should there be 
a fire in an adjacent building. In the proposed project there will still be far more 
than the building code minimum amount of separation between these buildings and 
because the proposed project is a PUD additional structures will not be allowed to 
be built to fill in this separation. Therefore the building corners at the parcel lines 
will in no way compromise life safety or general good practices of site design. 

'The use of primarily single family homes within the PUD provides a greater 
opportunity for view corridors through the site between buildings. This would not 
be possible if more multi-unit buildings were to be used. In order to address 
concerns by neighboring p ropeq  owners the buildings at the Southeast comer of 
the site have been lowered 2 feet from our original proposal. 'Ilnis will insure that 
neighboring territorial views across the sitc will not be eliminated. In order to not 
reduce the privacy of the existing adjacent residences in this area an 8 feet high fence 
will be added at the East property line. This will effectively block off sight lines 
from windows of the new residences into the adjacent properties. 



SHUMWAY 10, LLC 

build in^ Mass 

The proposed buildings for this project are designed to compliment the Shurnway 
mansion through use of similar architectural forms. 'The market for a larger single 
family home of the size that could be built here if the land was to be divided into 5 
lots would necessitate design that makes a statement and consequently would tend to 
compete with the prominence of the mansion. 

'She smaller buildings in the clustered housing proposed for this site will be designed 
with modulation that will provide a human scale which will not over power the 
mansion. They in effect will be complimentary back-pound type buildings. IJnits 
will be built in single or duplex configurations. The two units that make up the one 
duplex building will not simply be mirror images from one side of the building to the 
other but instead will utilize different but related architectural elements so that each 
unit will appear more like a single residence. This will insure that the larger mass of 
the duplex will not over power the mansion. 

Architec&4rallv Combatible Forms and Materials 

Similar architectural elements and materials to those used on the mansion are 
proposed to be incorporated into the new buildings. Tkis will help the new 
architecture to blend with the historic mansion rather than compete with it. The 
Shumway Mansion is a Craftsman style shingle clad building with conservative use of 
board and batten siding at the gable ends of the building. These materials will be 
repeated in the same manner on the proposed new buildings. The new buildings will 
also make use of the same window opening patterns as used on the mansion. 

Unlike the mansion the new buildings will need to have automobile garages but in 
order to down play the utilitarian nature of the garage, all of the proposed buildings 
will use single garage doors which will be patterned to fit the historic details of the 
mansion. 

Throughout the expansive pounds of the mansion different arbor and trellis 
elements are used. The design of the proposed new buildings will pick up on this 
through the use of trellis elements used to soften the walls where the garage door 
openings will be. 

Color Selection 

The Shumway Mansion is painted a cool grey color and is accented with white trim 
giving the Mansion almost a Cape Cod appearance. The design of the proposed 
buildings will pick up on this through the use of similar compatible colors. It would 
not be desirable to copy the same color pattern of the Mansion to all of the 





tegrate their personal and professional lives. Home- 
based businesses also contribute to a reduction in 
commuter traffic. It is impoltant, however, to protect 
the residential character of the neighborhood frorn 
their outward impacts. Such impacts as exterior signs, 
heavy equipment use, excessive deliveries by com- 
mercial vehicles, and extreme noise can detract from 
the residential atmosphere of an area and should not 
be  allowed. 

m I'olicy CC-4.5: Protect public scertic vie~vs artd 
view corridors. 

Public views of the City, surtaunding hillsides, Lake 
Washington, Seattle, the Cascades and the Olympics 
are valuable not only for their beauty but also for the 
sense of orientation and identity that they plavide. Al- 
most every area in Kirkland has streets and other pub- 
lic spaces that allow our citizens and visitors to enjoy 
such views. View corridors along Lake Washington's 
shoreline are particularly important and should con- 
tinue to be enhanced as new development occurs. 
Public views can be easily lost or impaired and it is al- 
most impossible to create new ones. Preservation, 
therefore, is critical. 

Private views are not protected, except where specifi- 
cally mentioned in some of the neigliborhood plan 
chapters of the Comprehensive Plan and in the City's 
developtncnt regulations. 

Policy CC-4.6: Preserve natural landfonn.s, vege- 
tation, artd scenic areas that corttribtrte to the City's 
identity and visually defire f/ze co~~zrnzunity, its 
~zeigltborlzoods and districts. 

Natural landforms such as hills, ridges and valleys are 
valuable because they provide topographic variety, 
visually define districts and neighborhoods while pro- 
viding open space corridors that visually and physi- 
cally link them, and give form and identity to tlie City. 
Open space and areas of natural vegetation arc valu- 
able because they accentuate natural topography, de- 
fine the edges of districts and neighborhoods, and 
plavide a unifying framework and natural contrast to 
the City's streets, buildings and structures. 

Landscaping can improve the community character. 
Vegetated roofs add to the greenscape. Stt-eet trees 
provide a consistent, unifying appearance, particu- 
larly in areas with vat-ying building design and mate- 
rials, and signage. However, street trees planted along 
rights-of-way that offer local and territorial views 
should be  of a variety that will minimize view block- 
age as trees mature. 

Several neighborhoods contain unique natul-al fea- 
tures, including significant stands of trees and indi- 
vidual notable trees, unique landforms, wetlands, 
watersheds, woodlands, and scenic open space. In 
many cases, development activities, including struc- 
tures or  facilities designed to correct other environ- 
mental problems, may damage these natural amenity 
areas. Wherever possible, urtique natural features 
should be  preserved or rehabilitated. Should areas 
with unique natural features be incorporated into new 
development or rehabilitated, great care should be  
taken to ellsure these areas are not damaged or ad- 
versely altered. The  intent of this policy is not to pro- 
hibit development but to regulate development 
activities to ensure they maintain the inherent values 
of the natural landscape. 

Policy CC-4.7: E~zhance City artd tteighborkood 
identity throrlgh .featnres tlzat provide a qualiQ 
ir~zage that reflects tlte City's rciziq~ce characteri.~tics 
artd visiorz. 

Kirkland and its neighborhoods ere special places. 
Each neighborhood has a distinctive identity which 
contributes to the community's image. Appropriate 
transitions are also necessary to distinguish the City 
from surrounding jurisdictions. Coiilinunity signs and 
other gateway treatments such as landscaping are 
methods of identification that contribute to the visiial 
impressions and understanding of the community. 
Other identification methods and entranceway treat- 
ments can conitnunicate the City's origin and history, 
economic base, pliysical form, and relation to the nat- 
ural setting. 

i t  I K i l l  (1 . ATTACHMENT - 2% - 



SITE SECTION A 
9C1lc; 1'-iB-0' 

,'-', 

SITE CROS4 BEGTION5 O F  
APJOINING PROPERTIES - - 

S m V C e d  P L d b l  llb0l 

L W M  GDXDOHIh%-f D u d ,  

P 

PMTO3:D O U 5 . 4  

51TE SECT I O N  B 
s<aa: r --10'-o- 

SITE SECTIQN C 
Sonlc: 1'-20-0- 



Map Output 
Page 1 of 1 





Map Output 
Page I of 1 







Map Output 
Page 1 of 1 









Paihway Q Temtonol View * Major Landmark 
Hard Edge 

L O ~ I  v iew 
* Minor Landmark 

Soft Edge 0 Activity Node 1 1 1 1 - 1 1 1 1 1 1 - 1 .  

Goteway 1" = 1200' 

Figure J-6: Juanita Urban Design Elements 

C i t y  O F  Kirkland Comprehensive Plan 1 ATTACHMENT 5% 7 



Planning Department 
City of Kirkland 
123 5th Avenue 
Kirkland, WA 98033 

File ref. No. ZON04-00025 

Environmental: With trees being cut down and many new homes being built what 
is the plan for water drainage? The Shumway property sits on a hill with 
neighbors below them on one side of the property. The condominium property 
at 11430 99th Place has had a history of water drainage problems. The 
condominium complex had to install two sump pumps after the last 
condominiums were built in back of them. With heavy rains the condominium 
complex battles water drainage from their neighbors in the back which 
includes the Shumway property. We are very interested in seeing a copy of 
the water/environmental study to see that this concern has been properly 
addressed. 

Traffic: 99th Place N.E. has been battling traffic issues for the last 
couple of years. Last year the city recognized the traffic problem and 
proposed installing speed bumps to discourage trucks and other vehicles from 
cutting through 99th Place N.E. The speed bumps were never installed. 
Additionally with increased traffic on 116th Street it is difficult to turn 
in and out of 99th Place N.E. New homes would only increase the amount of 
traffic on an already troubled Street. We are interested in seeing the 
details of the traffic plan. . 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Hearing Examiner Exhibit - 

Appellant 
Department 
Publ~c 

- - FILE# Z ~ ~ V ' ~ L ~ - O \ ~ Q ' L S  
\ 



. s 

I 

i 
Planning Department 

~ City of Kirkland 
123 5th Avenue 

I Kirkland, WA 98033 

! 

i File ref. No. ZON04-00025 
! 

Environmental: With trees being cut down and many new homes being built what 
is the plan for water drainage? The Shumway property sits on a hill with 
neighbors below them on one side of the property. The condominium property 
at 11430 99th Place has had a history of water drainage problems. The 
condominium complex had to install two sump pumps after the last 
condominiums were built in back of them. With heaw rains the condominium . 
complex battles water drainage fiom their neighbors in the back which 
includes the Shumway property. We are very interested in seeing a copy of 
the waterlenvironmental study to see that this concern has been properly 
addressed. 

Traffic: 99th Place N.E. has been battling traffic issues for the last 
couple of years. Last year the city recognized the traffic problem and 
proposed installing speed bumps to discourage trucks and other vehicles &om 
cutting through 99th Place N.E. The speed bumps were never installed. 
Additionally with increased traffic on 116th Street it is difficult to turn 
in and out of 99th Place N.E. New homes would only increase the amount of 
traffic on an already troubled Street. We are interested in seeing the 
details of the traffic plan. 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Hearing Examiner Exhibit 

Appellant 



Examiner 
C/O Jon Regala 
Planning Department, City of Kirkland 
123 5th Avenue 
Kirkland, WA 98033 

February 1,2006 

RE: File # ZON04-00025 

Dear Examiner:. 

I am one of seven owners at Hallmark Juanita Condominiums, 11430 99 Place NE, Kirkland, WA. 
We have a number of concerns about the impact the Shumway Project will have on ow property and 
environs. 

One is environmental: What is the plan for water drainage with trees being cut down andnew homes 
being built? Shumway Mansion sits on a hill and we at Hallmark Juanita are situated below them on 
one side of the Shumway property. We have a history of water drainage problems. We have had to 
install two sump pumps and purchase a generator as back-up to protect and maintain our property. 
With heavy rains not even as bad as the ones we are having currently, we battle water draimage kom 
the properties behind us includmg the Shumway. We are interested in seeing a copy of the 
water/environmental study to be sure that this concem has been properly addressed. 

Another major concem is traffic: T&c issues have been an ongoing dilemma for the past couple of 
years, particularly as the traffic on 116th Street has increased significantly. It is difficult to turn in and 
out of 99* Place m, new homes will only increase the amount of traffic on this already troubled 
street. Last year the City of Kirkland recognized the traffic problem on 99* Place NE and proposed 
installing speed bumps to discourage trucks and other vehicles eom cutting through on this street and 
also to slow traffic down. There are dangerous blind spots, and even normal traffic travels at excessive 
speeds for the neighborhood. The speed bumps were never installed. We are interested in seeing the 
details of the traffic plan that, hopefully, takes all of these factors into consideration. 

While these are our main concerns, we are also wondering about plans to maintain existing foliage that 
gives a sound and privacy barrier. In addition, removal of foliage with root systems will jeopardize the 
stability of the banks behind 11430 99* Place NE, something to which we are all keenly attuned with 
the current weather situation. 

Thank you in advance for considering these issues that relate to the security, safety, and integrity of 
our property. 

Margaret Jacobsen 
11430 99*Place NE, #7 
Kirkland, WA 98033 

Hearing Examiner Exhibit 1 Appellant 
Depamnent 1 Publ~c 

- . -  - - 

FILE # 24 P V O Y . - o c d Z , T  
\ .. 



February 2,2006 

Carlos & Megan Alayo 
11430 99" Place N.E. Unit #1 & Unit #6 
Kirkland, WA 98033 

Planning Department 
City of Kirkland 
123 5" Avenue 
Kirkland, WA 98033 

File ref. No. is ZON04-00025 

Dear Planning Department: 

We are writing regarding the Shumway Property town home development. We are 
owners of two units at the condominium complex next door to the north of the Shumway 
property. Our concerns are both environmental and traffic. 

Environmental: With trees being cut down and many new homes being built what is the 
plan for water drainage? The Shumway property sits on a hill with neighbors below them 
on one side of the property. The condominium propeeat 11430 9gfh Place has had a 
history of water drainage problems. The condominiunicomplex had to install two sump 
pumps after the last condominiums were bullt in back of them. With heavy rains the 
condominium complex battles water drainage from their neighbors in the back which 
includes the Shumway property. We are very interested in seeing a copy of the 

- - 

water/environmental study to see that this concern has been properly addressed. 

Traffic: 99'h Place N.E. has been battling traffic issues for the last couple of years. Last 
year the city recognized the traffic problem and proposed installing speed bumps to 
discourage Wcks and other vehicles from cutting through 99" Place. The speed bumps 
were never installed. Additionally with increased traffic on 1 16& Street it is difficult to 
turn in ard ozt ef 9 9 ~  Place N.E. New homes would only increase the amount of traffic 
e;; already tre~blec! Street. \"- ac "-- .- Aerested in seekg the deG?s efthe h&c pis. 

Thank you far addressing our concerns. 

1 CITY OF KIRKLAND 
i 

Hearing Examiner Exhibit 
1 Appellant 
I Department - 

Public 

FILE # owo 4- 60eaT I 
, . .  ~~ XL . ~:. ~ ~~~ ~~ . 

' 



Astri H. Giske 
11430 99th P1. NE #3 
Kirkland, WA 98033 

February 2,2006 

Planning Department 
City of Kirkland 
123 5th Avenue 
Kirkland, WA 98033 

RE: File ref. No. ZON04-00025 

To Whom It May Concern: 

We are neighboring Shumway mansion and these are some of our concerns: 

Environmental: With trees being cut down and many new homes being built what is the 
plan for water drainage? The Shumway property sits on a hill with neighbors below them 
on one side of the property. The condominium property at 11430 99th Place has had a 
history of water drainage problems The condominium complex had to install two sump 
pumps after the last condominiums were built in back of them. With heavy rain the 
condominium complex battles water drainage from their neighbors in the back which 
includes the Shumway property. We are very interested in a copy of waterienvironmental 
study to see that that this concern has been properly addressed. 

Traffic: 99'" Place NE has been battling traffic issues for the last couple of years. Last 
year the City recognized the traffic problem and proposed installing speed bumps to 
discourage trucks and other vehicles from cutting through 99"' Place NE. The speed 
bumps were never installed. Additionally with increased traffic on 116t" Street NE it is 
difficult to turn in and out of 991h Place NE. New homes would only increase the amount 
of iraffic on aii already troubled street. We are interested in seeing the details of the 
traffic plan. 

Yours sincerely, 

fit,.%. Gk/- 

Astri H. Giske 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Hearing Examiner Exhibit 

-_ ~~~~~~~ 



1

ORDINANCE 4043

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO LAND USE 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PUD AS APPLIED FOR BY 
ROBERT KETTERLIN IN DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT FILE NO. ZON04-00025 AND SETTING FORTH 
CONDITIONS OF SAID APPROVAL. 

 WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Community 
Development has received an application, pursuant to Process IIB, for a 
Preliminary and Final Planned Unit Development (PUD) filed by Robert 
Ketterlin as Department of Planning and Community Development File 
No. ZON04-00025 to cluster 7 detached units and 2 attached dwelling 
units on Lot 2, reduce the setback requirements for a detached garage for 
the Shumway Mansion on Lot 1, Unit 9 on Lot 2, and from the access 
easement south of the Mansion, all within an RS 8.5 (HL) zone; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the City of Kirkland’s Concurrency 
Management System, KMC Title 25, a concurrency application has been 
submitted to the City of Kirkland, reviewed by the responsible Public 
Works official and was determined that concurrency was not a 
requirement of the project; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the State Environmental Policy Act, RCW 
43.21C, and the Administrative Guideline and local ordinance adopted to 
implement it, an environmental checklist was submitted to the City of 
Kirkland, reviewed by the responsible official of the City of Kirkland, who 
issued a determination of non-significance on this action; and 

 WHEREAS, said environmental checklist and determination have 
been available and accompanied the application through the entire review 
process; and 

 WHEREAS, the application was submitted to the Kirkland 
Hearing Examiner who conducted a public hearing at a regular meeting 
on February 2, 2006; and 

 WHEREAS, the Kirkland Hearing Examiner after the public 
hearing and consideration of the recommendations of the Department of 
Planning and Community Development did adopt certain Findings, 
Conclusions and Recommendations and did recommend approval of the 
Process IIB Permit subject to the specific conditions set forth in said 
recommendations; and

 WHEREAS, the City Council, in regular meeting, did consider the 
environmental documents received from the responsible official, together 
with the recommendation of the Hearing Examiner; and 

 WHEREAS, the Kirkland Zoning Ordinance requires approval of 
this application for PUD to be made by ordinance. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the 
City of Kirkland as follows: 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. c. (1).



2

 Section 1.  The Findings, Conclusions, and Recommendations of the 
Kirkland Hearing Examiner as signed by her and filed in the Department 
of Planning and Community Development File No. ZON04-00025 are 
adopted by the Kirkland City Council as though fully set forth herein. 

 Section 2.  After completion of final review of the PUD, as 
established in Sections 125.50 through 125.75 of the Kirkland Zoning 
Code, Ordinance 3719, as amended, the Process IIB Permit shall be 
issued to the applicant subject to the conditions set forth in the 
Recommendations hereinabove adopted by the City Council. 

 Section 3.  Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed as 
excusing the applicant from compliance with any federal, state or local 
statutes, ordinances or regulations applicable to this project, other than 
expressly set forth herein. 

 Section 4.  Failure on the part of the holder of the permit to 
initially meet or maintain strict compliance with the standards and 
conditions to which the Process IIB Permit is subject shall be grounds for 
revocation in accordance with the KZC. 

 Section 5.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) 
days from and after its passage by the Kirkland City Council and 
publication, pursuant to Section 1.08.010. 

 Section 6  A complete copy of this ordinance, including Findings, 
Conclusions and Recommendations adopted by reference, shall be 
certified by the City Clerk, who shall then forward the certified copy to the 
King County Department of Assessments. 

 Section 7.  A certified copy of this ordinance, together with the 
Findings, Conclusions, and Recommendations herein adopted shall be 
attached to and become a part of the Process IIB Permit. 

 PASSED by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council 
in open meeting this ________ day of _______________, 20____. 

 SIGNED IN AUTHENTICATION THEREOF on this 
_______ day of ________________, 20___. 

  ________________________ 
  Mayor 

Attest:

________________________
City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

________________________
City Attorney

                                                O-4043



ORDINANCE 4044

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO LAND USE 
AND THAT PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS SHUMWAY MANSION, 
AND ALTERING THE SIGNIFICANT FEATURES OF THE SHUMWAY 
MANSION PROPERTY AS APPLIED FOR BY ROBERT KETTERLIN IN 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FILE 
NO. ZON04-00025. 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, on March 3, 1992, adopted 
Ordinance No. 3308 to rezone the entire Shumway Mansion property 
from RS 8.5 to RS 8.5 (HL) as well as to specify the significant features of 
the Shumway Mansion; and 

 WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 3308 was to place a historic 
landmark designation over the entire Shumway Mansion property; 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 3308, the entire 
Shumway Mansion property was designated as a significant feature 
pursuant to Chapter 75 of the Kirkland Zoning Code (“KZC”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Applicant, Robert Ketterlin (“Applicant”), has filed 
an application to: (1) alter the significant features of the Shumway 
Mansion property by reducing the amount of property designated as a 
significant feature; (2) rezone the property to reduce the size of the 
historic landmark overlay; (3) short plat the entire Shumway Mansion 
property into two lots so that one lot contains the Shumway Mansion (“Lot 
1”) and the other lot contains the remainder of the Shumway Mansion 
property (“Lot 2”); (4) create a PUD on Lot 1 and Lot 2; and (5) reduce 
stream and wetland buffers through enhancement (see Planning 
Department File No. ZON 04-00025); and

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the State Environmental Policy Act, RCW 
43.21C, and the Administrative Guideline and local ordinance adopted to 
implement it, an environmental checklist was submitted to the City of 
Kirkland, reviewed by the responsible official of the City of Kirkland, who 
issued a determination of non-significance on this action; and 

 WHEREAS, said environmental checklist and determination have 
been available and accompanied the application through the entire review 
process; and 

 WHEREAS, the application was submitted to the Kirkland 
Hearing Examiner who conducted a public hearing at a regular meeting 
on February 2, 2006; and 

 WHEREAS, the Kirkland Hearing Examiner after the public 
hearing and consideration of the recommendations of the Department of 
Planning and Community Development did adopt certain Findings, 
Conclusions and Recommendations and did recommend approval of the 
Process IIB Permit subject to the specific conditions set forth in said 
recommendations; and

                                                       1

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. c. (2).



 WHEREAS, the City Council, in regular meeting, did consider the 
environmental documents received from the responsible official, together 
with the recommendation of the Hearing Examiner; 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the 
City of Kirkland as follows: 

Section 1.  The Findings, Conclusions, and Recommendations of the 
Kirkland Hearing Examiner as signed by her and filed in the Department 
of Planning and Community Development File No. ZON04-00025 are 
adopted by the Kirkland City Council as though fully set forth herein. 

 Section 2.  The significant features of the Shumway Mansion 
property are as follows: 

 1. The name Shumway Mansion 

 2. The external features of the Mansion 

3. A book containing the history of the Mansion, including 
photographs, to be kept and maintained by the Kirkland 
Heritage Society 

4. The entire site surrounding the Mansion described as 
follows (Lot 1 of Shumway 10 Short Plat): 

A PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 
32, TOWNSHIP 26 NORTH, RANGE 5 EAST, 
WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, IN KING COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 
SECTION 32; 
THENCE SOUTH 01°00'39" WEST ON THE WEST LINE 
OF SAID SECTION, 326.92 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE SOUTH 88°41'14" EAST ON THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID SUBDIVISION, 328.58 FEET TO THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE SOUTH 01°00'13" WEST ON THE EAST LINE 
OF SAID SUBDIVISION, 327.00 FEET TO THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE NORTH 88°40'21" WEST ON THE SOUTH 
LINE OF SAID SUBDIVISION, 117.07 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE NORTH 01°00'13" EAST, 133.03 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 88°40'21" WEST, 211.54 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE SOUTH 26°12'27" EAST ALONG THE 
EASTERLY MARGIN OF 100TH AVENUE NORTHEAST, 
65.58 FEET; 

2

                                                O-4044



THENCE SOUTH 01°00'21" WEST ALONG SAID 
EASTERLY MARGIN, 74.88 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
SOUTH LINE OF SAID SUBDIVISION; 
THENCE SOUTH 88°40'21" EAST ON THE SOUTH 
LINE OF SAID SUBDIVISION, 181.56 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 Section 3.  This Ordinance supersedes Ordinance No. 3308 with 
respect to the designation of significant features on the Shumway 
Mansion property pursuant to Chapter 75.25.2 of the KZC. 

Section 4.  Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed as 
excusing the applicant from compliance with any federal, state or local 
statutes, ordinances or regulations applicable to this project, other than 
expressly set forth herein. 

Section 5.  Failure on the part of the holder of the permit to 
initially meet or maintain strict compliance with the standards and 
conditions to which the Process IIB Permit is subject shall be grounds for 
revocation in accordance with the KZC. 

 Section 6.  If any provision of this ordinance or its application to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the 
ordinance, or the application of the provision to other persons or 
circumstances is not affected. 

Section 7.  This ordinance shall be in force and effect five days 
from and after its passage by the Kirkland City Council and publication 
pursuant to Section 1.08.017, Kirkland Municipal Code in the summary 
form attached to the original of this ordinance and by this reference 
approved by the City Council. 

Section 8.  A complete copy of this ordinance, including 
Findings, Conclusions and Recommendations adopted by reference, shall 
be certified by the City Clerk, who shall then forward the certified copy to 
the King County Department of Assessments. 

Section 9.  A certified copy of this ordinance, together with the 
Findings, Conclusions, and Recommendations herein adopted shall be 
attached to and become a part of the Process IIB Permit.

PASSED by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council 
in open meeting this ________ day of _______________, 20____. 

SIGNED IN AUTHENTICATION THEREOF on this 
_______ day of ________________, 20___. 

________________________
Mayor

Attest:

3

                                                O-4044



________________________
City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

________________________
City Attorney 

4

                                                O-4044



PUBLICATION SUMMARY 
OF ORDINANCE 4044

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO LAND USE AND 
THAT PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS SHUMWAY MANSION, AND 
ALTERING THE SIGNIFICANT FEATURES OF THE SHUMWAY MANSION 
PROPERTY AS APPLIED FOR BY ROBERT KETTERLIN IN DEPARTMENT OF 
PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FILE NO. ZON04-00025. 

SECTION 1. Adopts the Findings, Conclusions, and 
Recommendations of the Kirkland Hearing Examiner filed in the Department of 
Planning and Community Development File No. ZON04-00025.

SECTION 2. Identifies the significant features of the Shumway 
Mansion.

SECTION 3. Provides that this Ordinance supersedes Ordinance 
No. 3308. 

SECTION 4. Provides that the applicant must comply with all other 
applicable laws and regulations.

SECTION 5. Provides that failure to adhere to permit conditions is 
grounds for revocation of the Process IIB approval. 

SECTION 6.   Provides a severablilty clause for the Ordinance. 
SECTION 7. Authorizes publication of this Ordinance by summary, 

which summary is approved by the City Council pursuant to Section 1.08.017 
Kirkland Municipal Code and establishes the effective date as five days after 
publication of summary. 

SECTION 8. Provides that a certified copy of this Ordinance will be 
sent to the King County Department of Assessments. 

SECTION 9. Provides that a certified copy of this Ordinance will 
become part of the Process IIB approval.

 The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed without charge to any 
person upon request made to the City Clerk for the City of Kirkland.  The 
Ordinance was passed by the Kirkland City Council at its meeting on the 
_____ day of _____________________, 2006. 

 I certify that the foregoing is a summary of Ordinance __________ 
approved by the Kirkland City Council for summary publication. 

    ________________________________ 
    City Clerk 

- 1 - 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. c. (2).



Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION R-4560

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND APPROVING 
A DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL SUBMITTED UNDER THE QUASI-JUDICIAL 
PROJECT REZONE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 130 OF THE KIRKLAND ZONING 
CODE, ORDINANCE 3719, AS AMENDED, AS APPLIED FOR IN DEPARTMENT 
OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FILE NO. ZON04-00025 BY 
ROBERT KETTERLIN TO REDUCE THE SIZE OF THE HISTORIC OVERLAY THAT 
ENCOMPASSES THE ENTIRE SHUMWAY MANSION PROPERTY TO A SMALLER 
AREA AROUND THE MANSION CONSISTENT WITH THE BOUNDARY OF LOT 1 
OF THE SHUMWAY 10 SHORT PLAT, SETTING FORTH CONDITIONS TO WHICH 
SUCH DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL SHALL BE SUBJECT, AND SETTING FORTH 
THE INTENTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL TO, UPON APPROVED COMPLETION 
OF SAID DEVELOPMENT, REZONE LOT 2 FROM RS 8.5 (HL) TO RS 8.5. 

 WHEREAS, the Department of Planning and Community Development has 
received an application filed by Robert Ketterlin as applicant for the owner of the 
property described in said application requesting a permit to develop said 
property in accordance with the Quasi-Judicial Project Rezone procedure 
established in Chapter 130 of the Kirkland Zoning Code (“KZC”); and

 WHEREAS, said property is located within a RS 8.5 (HL) zone and the 
proposed development is a permitted use within the RS 8.5 (HL) and RS 8.5 
zone; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the City of Kirkland’s Concurrency Management 
System, KMC Title 25, a concurrency application has been submitted to the City 
of Kirkland, reviewed by the responsible Public Works official and was 
determined that concurrency was not a requirement of the project; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the State Environmental Policy Act, RCW 43.21C 
and the Administrative Guideline and local ordinance adopted to implement it, an 
environmental checklist has been submitted to the City of Kirkland, reviewed by 
the responsible official of the City of Kirkland, who issued a determination of non-
significance on this action; and 

 WHEREAS, said environmental checklist and determination have been 
available and accompanied the application through the entire review process; 
and

 WHEREAS, the application has been submitted to the Hearing Examiner 
who held a public hearing thereon at a regular meeting on February 2, 2006; 
and

 WHEREAS, the Hearing Examiner, after the public hearing and 
consideration of the recommendations of the Department of Planning and 
Community Development, did adopt certain Findings, Conclusions and 
Recommendations, and did recommend to the City Council approval of the 
proposed development and the Quasi-Judicial Project Rezone pursuant to 
Chapter 130 of the KZC, all subject to the specific conditions set forth in said 
recommendation; and 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. c. (3).



Page 2 of 3 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, in regular meeting, did consider the 
environmental documents received from the responsible official, together with 
the recommendation of the Hearing Examiner, as well as any timely filed 
challenge of said recommendation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Kirkland as follows: 

 Section 1.  The Findings, Conclusions, and Recommendations of the 
Hearing Examiner as signed by her and filed in the Department of Planning and 
Community Development File No. ZON04-00025 are hereby adopted by the 
Kirkland City Council as though fully set forth herein. 

 Section 2.  A Development Permit, pursuant to the Quasi-Judicial Project 
Rezone procedure of Chapter 130 of the KZC, shall be issued to the applicant 
subject to the conditions set forth in the Recommendations hereinabove adopted 
by the City Council. 

 Section 3.  The City Council approves in principle the request for 
reclassification from RS 8.5 (HL) to RS 8.5 for Lot 2 of the Shumway 10 short 
plat, pursuant to the provisions of Section  130.55 of the KZC, and the Council 
shall, by ordinance, effect such reclassification upon being advised that all of the 
conditions, stipulations, limitations, and requirements contained in this 
resolution, including those adopted by reference, have been met; provided, 
however, that the applicant must begin the development activity, use of land or 
other actions approved by this resolution within four years from the date of 
enactment of this resolution, or the decision becomes void. 

 Section 4.  Nothing in this resolution shall be construed as excusing the 
applicant from compliance with any federal, state or local statutes, ordinances or 
regulations applicable to the proposed development project, other than as 
expressly set forth herein. 

 Section 5.  Failure on the part of the holder of the development permit to 
initially meet or maintain strict compliance with the standards and conditions to 
which the development permit and the intent to rezone is subject shall be 
grounds for revocation in accordance with the KZC. 

 Section 6.  A complete copy of this resolution, including Findings, 
Conclusions and Recommendations adapted by reference, shall be certified by 
the City Clerk, who shall then forward the certified copy to the King County 
Department of Assessments. 

 Section 7.  A certified copy of this resolution together with the Findings, 
Conclusions, and Recommendations herein adopted shall be attached to and 
become a part of the development permit. 

 PASSED by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in open meeting on 
the _________ day of ______________, 20___. 

 SIGNED IN AUTHENTICATION THEREOF on the __________ day of 
______________, 20___. 

                                                R-4560



Page 3 of 3 

 ________________ 
 Mayor 

ATTEST:

_____________________________
City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

________________________
City Attorney 

                                                R-4560



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Planning and Community Development Department 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA 98033   425.587-3225 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us

MEMORANDUM 

To: Dave Ramsay, City Manager 

From: Eric R. Shields, AICP, Director 

Michael Bergstrom, AICP, Consultant 

Date: February 21, 2006 

Subject: RECOMMENDATION ON AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 117 KZC – 
PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITIES, FILE NO. IV-03-13 

RECOMMENDATION:

1. Approve the proposed amendments.  The Council may do so by adopting the enclosed 

ordinance.

2. Approve amendments to KMC 5.74.070 (Fees charged by planning department) for 

certain Personal Wireless Service Facility proposals.  The Council may do so by adopting 

the enclosed ordinance. 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

The proposed amendments to Chapter 117 KZC will update and clarify the City’s regulations 

pertaining to the siting of Personal Wireless Service Facilities (PWSF).  They will continue and 

strengthen City policies that favor co-location of wireless facilities, placing new antennas on 

existing structures rather than erect new support structures, and locating facilities, particularly 

new towers, outside of residential areas.  The proposed amendments to KMC 5.74.070 will 

establish review fees for procedures addressed in Chapter 117. 

BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:

Chapter 117 was adopted in 1998, and has not been amended since that time.  Over the years it 

has become apparent to both City Staff and the wireless industry that the ordinance could be 

improved in substance, organization, and clarity.  The enclosed ordinance makes those 

improvements, and is the result of numerous staff meetings, input from industry representatives, 

examination of regulations from other communities, and public hearings. 

Although the proposal was reviewed through Process IV pursuant to Chapter 160 KZC, in 2005 

the City Council determined that the Planning Director should conduct the required public 

hearing rather than the Planning Commission due to the heavy workload of the Commission.  On 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. d.



August 29, 2005 and January 10, 2006 I held joint public hearings with the Houghton 

Community Council.

On January 23, 2006 the Community Council deliberated and voted to recommend approval of 

the amendments.  However, they stated one concern for the record, having to do with KZC 

117.25.4.  That section exempts satellite dish antennas one meter (roughly 39”) or less in 

diameter and located in residential zones from the Chapter provisions.  Following the January 23 

meeting Staff verified that the FCC prohibits restrictions on dish antennas that are one meter or 

less in diameter.  Therefore, the exemption must remain.  Staff contacted one satellite dish 

purveyor, who explained that most residential dishes are much smaller than one meter, typically 

ranging from 18” to 24” in any given dimension (some are oval in shape). 

I agree with the Community Council that the enclosed ordinance should be approved, and 

formally recommend its adoption by the City Council.  Ordinance adoption will create the need 

for some changes to KMC 5.74.070 (Fees charged by planning department), so a companion 

ordinance is also enclosed to ensure those changes occur. 

PROPOSED CHANGES:

Changes are proposed throughout Chapter 117.  The more significant changes are summarized 

below.  A section-by-section list of the proposed changes is included in Appendix A. 

Many of the changes are intended to make the chapter more readable and understandable, to 

clarify confusing provisions, and to help the chapter function in a more comprehensive manner.  

Those changes include: 

Chapter reorganization, to present the information in a more logical manner. 

Definitions (117.15) are revised where necessary to provide clarity.  New definitions have been 

added for “building”, “other support structure”, “replacement structure”, and “utility pole”. 

New sections are added to make the chapter more “complete”, including 117.05 (User Guide), 

.25 (Exemptions), .30 (Prohibited Devices), .45 (Pre-Submittal Meeting), .55 (Determination of 

Application Completeness), .90 (Removal From City Property – When Required), .100 (Lapse of 

Approval), .105 (Complete Compliance Required), .110 (Time Limit), and .115 (Compliance 

With Other City Codes). 

The review process table in 117.40 is revised for clarification, and to more accurately reflect 

locational priorities for PWSF. 

Application submittal requirements are removed from 117.50.  The section now refers to 

forms provided by the Planning Department. 

Standards for towers and antennas (117.65) and standards for equipment structures (117.70) are 

placed in separate sections, to remove confusion over what standards apply to what PWSF 

elements. 



The following are among the more specific changes proposed: 

117.40 – Application Review Process.  Several important changes are made to the table in this 

section, including: 

Development standards are removed, so that the table could more clearly communicate 

the required review process for different facility types. 

Specificity added to facility types, for clarification. 

For replacement utility poles, review process it tied to the proposed size increase of pole 

(diameter). 

For new towers, the review process is tied to proposed tower height and underlying zone. 

Introduces Process IIA review for certain facility types (existing Chapter 117 does not 

use Process IIA). 

Through Process I, allows attachment of antennas to non-residential buildings (churches, 

schools) in residential zones (existing Chapter 117 does not address this). 

Through Process IIA, allows new towers exceeding 40’ in height in non-residential zones 

(existing Chapter 117 requires Process IIB). 

Through Process IIA, allows attachment of antennas to multi-family residential buildings 

(existing Chapter 117 does not address this). 

117.65 – PWSF Standards.  Specific substantive changes pertaining to towers and antennas 

include: 

.65.3.d prioritizes the routing of cable and conduit inside any new tower, utility pole, or 

other support structure, rather than attaching it to the outside of such structure. 

.65.4.a changes the required setback for towers from 100% of tower height to 20’ plus 

one-half foot for each foot of height above 40’. 

.65.6 establishes new clearance allowances for PWSF attached to utility poles.

Depending on zone and purpose of utility pole, it allows new antennas to be placed either 

15’ or 21’ above the top of a pole or electrical conductor.  The existing Chapter 117 

allows 10’. 

117.70 – Equipment Stucture Standards includes the following substantive changes: 

.70.1 and .2 exempt equipment structures that are fully contained in a legally established 

building from size limitations. 

.70.3 limits the height of ground-mounted equipment structures located in a right-of-way 

to 30 inches. 

.70.4 requires a 10’ setback for equipment structures located on private property and over 

30 inches in height. 

117.75 – Screening includes the following substantive changes: 

.75.4.a exempts PWSF located in a right-of-way from buffering requirements, if that 

PWSF requires only a Planning Official Decision. 

.75.4.b allows optional measures for buffering, to provide flexibility and response to site 

context.



117.80 – Departures From Chapter Provisions clarifies that the 40’ height limit for towers in 

residential zones and the allowable height for antennas above utility poles may not be modified. 

DECISIONAL CRITERIA:

KZC 135.25 establishes that the City may amend the text of the Zoning Code if: 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent with the applicable provisions of the 

Comprehensive Plan; and 

2. The proposed amendment bears a substantial relation to public health, safety, or welfare; 

and

3. The proposed amendment is in the best interest of the residents of Kirkland. 

The proposed amendment satisfies the above criteria.  It is consistent with Comprehensive Plan 

Utility Goal U-5: Ensure adequate and competitively priced telecommunication infrastructure, 
facilities and services, Policy U-5.3:  Review and update City policies, procedures and 
regulations to facilitate the installation and maintenance of telecommunication systems, and 

Policy U-5.5: Involve community stakeholders and service providers in telecommunication 
decisions.  The amendment relates to the public health, safety, and welfare and is in the best 

interest of Kirkland residents because it will bring our wireless regulations into greater alignment 

with established City policy, will strengthen and clarify those regulations for better results and 

predictability, and will provide opportunities for public involvement in decision-making that is 

commensurate with the type of facility proposed, while ensuring adequate telecommunication 

infrastructure throughout the city. 

CONCLUSION:

After review of the enclosed materials and consideration of the public testimony received at the 

public hearings, I conclude that the proposed amendments satisfy the applicable decision criteria, 

and therefore recommend that they be approved by the City Council.  In addition, I recommend 

that the City Council adopt the fee schedule changes reflected in the enclosed companion 

ordinance.

APPENDICES:

A. Summary of Changes 

ENCLOSURES:

1. Minutes of January 23, 2006 Houghton Community Council Meeting 

2. January 23, 2006 Errata Sheet 

3. E-mail thread, January 22, 2006, between Michael Bergstrom and Gary Abrahams 

(submitted at January 23, 2006 public hearing) 

4. January 17, 2006 Staff Memo to the Planning Director and Houghton Community 

Council

5. Minutes of January 10, 2006 Planning Director and Houghton Community Council 

Public Hearing 



6. December 27, 2005 Staff Memo to the Planning Director and Houghton Community 

Council

7. Minutes of August 29, 2005 Planning Director and Houghton Community Council Public 

Hearing

8. Exhibits 1-4, submitted at August 29, 2005 public hearing. 

9. August 19, 2005 Staff Memo to the Planning Director and Houghton Community Council 

10. Proposed Ordinance – Chapter 117 Amendments 

11. Proposed Ordinance – Fee Ordinance (KMC 5.74.070) 



APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CHANGES
Memo to Dave Ramsay from Eric Shields and Michael Bergstrom 

February 21, 2006 
File No. IV-03-13 

The following is a section-by-section summary of proposed changes to Chapter 117 KZC.  Minor 
wording changes are not included in this summary: 

Table of Contents
Revised to reflect new sections that have been added and Chapter reorganization. 

117.05 – User Guide
New section, similar to sections appearing in other KZC chapters. 

117.10 – Policy Statement
.1.h Adds goal to prioritize PWSF on existing structures, particularly on public property. 

117.15 – Definitions
Intro: Refers to Ch 5 KZC for terms not defined in Ch 117 KZC. 
.2 Revises “antenna height” to clarify method of measurement. 
.3 New definition of “building”. 
.7 Revises “existing structure” for clarity and accuracy. 
.10 Revises “nonresidential” or “nonresidential zone” to clarify that zones extend to the 

centerline of the right-of-way. 
.11 New definition of “other support structure”. 
.13 New definition of “replacement structure”. 
.14 Revises “residential” to clarify that zones extend to the centerline of the right-of-way. 
.15 Revises “tower” to clarify that it does not include replacement utility poles. 
.16 New definition of “utility pole”. 

117.20 – Applicability (was “New and Existing Facilities”)
.2 Clarifies how various changes to existing antennas and towers will be processed. 
.3 Clarifies how various changes to equipment structures will be processed. 
.4 Adds satellite radio and GPS to list of items covered by this Chapter. 

117.25 – Co-Location
Existing section deleted, unnecessary. 

117.25 – Exemptions
New section, identifying exemptions to the provisions of this Chapter. 

117.30 – Prohibited Devices
New section, prohibiting most transportable PWSF (“cell on wheels”) devices. 

117.35 – Permit Required
Clarifies that permit requirements extend to all private and public land and rights-of-way. 

117.40 – Application Review Process (was “Priority of Locations”)
Intro: States that pre-submittal meeting is required; refers reader to other sections for 

substantive requirements. 
Table: (1) Removes various development standards; focuses on review process. 
 (2) Improves relationship of review process with City policies guiding type and placement 

of facilities (i.e., easier review process for more desirable facilities, more stringent 
process for less desirable facilities). 
(3) Changes “Administrative” decisions to “Planning Official” decisions. 

A-1 



 (4) Establishes Process IIA for certain facilities. 
 (5) Allows antenna attachment to non-residential buildings in residential zones (e.g., 

schools, churches) through Process I. 
 (6) Allows antenna attachment to multi-family residential buildings through Process IIA. 
 (7) Provides brief description of each review process. 
 (8) Provides clarifying footnotes. 

117.45 – Pre-Submittal Meeting
New section requiring pre-submittal meeting before an application can be processed, similar to 
requirement in other Chapters.   

117.50 – Application Requirements
Removes itemized list of permit application requirements.  Defers to forms provided by the 
Planning Department. 

117.55 – Determination of Application Completeness
New section requiring that an application must be determined to be complete prior to processing, 
similar to requirements in other Chapters. 

117.60 – Third Party Review
Requires applicant for a Process IIB permit for a new tower to evaluate alternate solutions within 
¼ mile radius of proposal site (this requirement was moved from 117.40 – Application Review 
Process (formerly 117.20 – Priority of Locations). 

117.65 – Other Wireless Communications Facilities
Section deleted, unnecessary. 

117.65 – PWSF Standards (was “Design Standards”)
Gen’l: Section reorganized to separate standards applicable to equipment structures from 

standards applicable to other PWSF, for purposes of clarity (“Equipment Structure 
Standards” now contained in 117.70). 

.1, .2 Emphasizes that PWSF location and design should reflect the context of its setting, 
including the streetscape. 

.3 Presents typical means of “concealment technology”, allowing the City to require or 
approve alternative means to more appropriately reflect site context. 

.3.d Prioritizes the routing of cable or conduit through the inside of the support structure, while 
providing for the option to place it on the outside of the structure. 

.3.e Allows City to consider alternative concealment measures proposed by the applicant. 

.3.f Clarifies that the manner of concealment for PWSF reviewed through Process IIA or IIB 
will be determined as part of that process. 

.4 Clarifies setback requirements for towers and replacement structures on private 
properties.   

.5 Clarifies how antenna height is measured, and provides examples of information to 
demonstrate that towers and antennas are the “minimum height necessary”. 

.6 Establishes maximum antenna height on utility poles. 

.7 Clarifies height allowance for antennas on a building, mechanical equipment enclosure, 
or water reservoir. 

.13 Establishes that PWSF must comply with noise standards of KZC 115.95. 

117.70 – Equipment Structure Standards (formerly combined with PWSF standards in “Design 
Standards”)

Gen’l: Aggregates standards for equipment structures in one section. 
.1 Revises and clarifies size allowances in residential zones; exempts equipment structures 

located in buildings from size restrictions. 
.2 Exempts equipment structures located in buildings in non-residential zones from size 

restrictions. 

A-2 



.3 Establishes new 30-inch height limitation for ground-mounted equipment structures 
located in the right-of-way. 

.4 Establishes 10’ setback for equipment structures over 30 inches in height; exempts 
structures located in buildings from setback requirement. 

.6 Establishes standards for equipment structures located on utility poles. 

.8 Presents means for concealment of equipment structures, allowing the City to require or 
approve alternative means to more appropriately reflect site context. 

.9 Clarifies that installation and operation of equipment structures must comply with City-
adopted noise standards. 

117.75 – Screening (was “Landscaping/Buffering”)
.1 Allows concealment technology to be used instead of or in addition to required 

landscaping. 
.3 Provides buffering standards for PWSF; clarifies that buffering is not required for PWSF 

that is located in the public right-of-way and that is subject to review as a Planning Official 
decision.  Provides optional screening measures. 

.4 Places limitations on height of fences used to screen ground-mounted PWSF. 

.5 Clarifies that screening is to be maintained in good condition. 

.6 Clarifies that the manner of screening for any PWSF reviewed through Process IIA or IIB 
shall be determined through that process. 

117.80 – Departures From Chapter Provisions (was “Modifications”)
.2 Establishes that the 15-foot limit for antennas above utility poles or electrical lines in 

residential zones cannot be modified through Process IIB. 
.2 Removes reference to the 20-foot minimum distance between ground-mounted PWSF 

and any property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or zone. 

117.85 – Non-Use/Abandonment
.2 Removes requirement for annual report confirming that the PWSF is still in use. 

117.90 – Removal From City Property – When Required
New section, establishing that PWSF mounted to any City-owned property or structure shall be 
removed at no expense to the City, if the City determines removal is necessary. 

117.95 – Appeals and Judicial Review (was “Appeals”)
.1 Establishes appeal process for Planning Official decisions. 

117.100 – Lapse of Approval
New section, similar to sections appearing in other KZC chapters. 

117.105 – Complete Compliance Required
New section, similar to sections appearing in other KZC chapters. 
.2 Establishes provisions for subsequent modification to approved PWSF. 

117.110 – Time Limit
New section, similar to sections appearing in other KZC chapters. 

117.115 – Compliance With Other City Codes
New section, similar to sections appearing in other KZC chapters. 

117.120 – Conflict
Minor wording changes only. 

117.125 – Violations and City Remedies
No changes. 

A-3 



" '< 
&' A- vz 
u ' 
5 HOUGHTON COMMUNITY COUNCIL 

January 23, 2006 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair Rick Whitney. Members 
present: Chair Rick Whitney, Bill Goggins, David Hess, James Nickle, Betsy 
Pringle, Elsie Weber. Absentlexcused: Hugh Givens Eric Shields, Stacy 
Clauson and contract planner Michael Bergstrom represented the Department of 
Planning and Community Development. 

READING AND/OR APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
None 

ANNOUNCEMENT OF AGENDA 
Chair announced the agenda. 

COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
None 

WORK PROGRAM REVIEW 
None 

REQUESTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
None 

HEARINGS 
None 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. Chapter 117 Kirkland Zoning Code - Personal Wireless Service 

Facilities - File #IV-03-13 

Mr. Bergstrom reported on an e-mail he received from Gary Abrahams on 
Sunday evening, January 22, 2006, that spoke to utility pole conduits and glu-lam 
poles, and panel antennas on rooftops as well as some editing issues on the 
Code. Mr. Bergstrom provided his replies to Mr. Abrahams' issues and an errata 
sheet to correct those issues brought to his attention as well as other issues 
concerning definitions of terms used in the regulations. 

Mr. Bergstrom also referred to his January 17, 2006 memo to Mr. Shields and the 
Council and asked if Council had any questions. Ms. Pringle questioned the 
exemptions for satellite dish antennas described in Chapter 117.25 of KZC and 
inquired as to where the "1 meter" measurement came from. She feels that this 
is too large and antennas of this size would be unsightly in yards. It was stated 
that the satellite dish antennas may be covered under Chapter 115 as they may 
not be considered a personal wireless service. Mr. Shields will pursue this 
question and report back to the Council. 



Houghton Community Council 
January 23,2006 

Ms. Clauson read a section of the Code that spoke to the height of dish 
antennas. It states that rod or dish antennas may not be placed above the 
maximum height allowed unless approved by the Planning Director. It must be 
demonstrated that the antennas will not impair views across subject property and 
that the antennas must be placed above the roofline in order to function properly. 
Neighbors could appeal any variance of the Code through the same appeal 
procedures as are applicable in Process One. Mr. Shields states he has not 
made this type of exemption decision in his 13 years on the job. 

Chair raised the question as to who gets notice for a Process One permit. Ms 
Clauson said that Process One notification is to adjoining property owners, 
publication in the newspaper and public notice signs posted on site. 

MOTION: Recommend to  Citv Council to  adoat the Personal Wireless - 
Regulations as presented by Staff, incorporating the most recent changes 
presented by Mr. Bergstrom. It was moved, seconded and passed with one 

Council noted a concern of the "1 meter" exemption under Chapter 117.25 and 
advised Staff that this exemption would remain under their scrutiny. 

NEW BUSINESS 
None. 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS AND COMMUNITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
None 

ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:27 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 

Rick Whitney, Chair 

Eric Shields, Planning Director 
Department of Planning and Community Development 

Recording Secretary: Marlene Eisele 

Page 2 of 2 



January 23, 2006 

Proposed Revisions to Jan 13, 2006 Draft of Chapter 117 KZC – Personal Wireless 

Service Facilities 

117.05 15 Definitions

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them 
below.  Terms not defined in this Section shall be defined as set forth in Chapter 5 KZC:

117.70.3 PWSF Design Standards – Concealment Technology

d. Where feasible, cable and or conduit shall be routed through the inside of the
any new tower, utility pole, or other support structure.  Where this is not 
feasible, or where such routing would result in a support structure of a 
substantially different design or substantially greater diameter than that of other 
similar structures in the vicinity or would otherwise appear out of context with its 
surroundings, the City may allow or require that the cable or conduit be placed on 
the outside of the support structure.  The outside cable or conduit shall be the 
color of the tower, utility pole, or other support structure, and the City may
require that the cable be placed in conduit.

117.70.7 PWSF Design Standards - Antennas On a Building, Mechanical Equipment Enclosure, or 
Water Reservoir

b c. Only o Omni-directional antennas may be roof-mounted, but may not be mounted 
on top of rooftop appurtenances.  No panel or directional antennas may be 
mounted on roofs or project above the roofline, except as provided in subsection 
(f) (g) below.  The “roofline” of a water reservoir that incorporates a curved roof 
shall be the point at which the vertical wall of the water reservoir ends and the 
curvature of the roof begins.

f g. Antennas, including flush-mounted panel or directional antennas, may be 
attached to an existing conforming mechanical equipment enclosure or stair or 
elevator penthouse or similar rooftop appurtenance which projects above the 
roof of the building, but may not project any higher than the enclosure. 

i. Building parapets or other architectural features, including rooftop mechanical 
equipment enclosures, stair or elevator penthouses, or similar rooftop 
appurtenances, shall not be increased in size or height solely for the purpose of 
facilitating the attachment of PWSF components.



Page 1 o f  2 

Michael Bergstrom 

From: "Michael Bergstrom" cbergstrommike@msn.com> 
To: <gary.abrahams@comcast.net> 
Cc: <ncox@ci.kirkland.wa.us> 
Sent: Sunday., January 22,2006 11:lO PM 
Subject: Re: Kirkland Wireless regulations-revisions-Jan. 13th version 

Gary - Thanks for your comments. See my responses to your comments, inserted into your e- 
mail below (these should appear as red italicized text). 

Original Message ----- 
From: gary.abrahams@comcast,net 
To: berqstrommike~msn.com 
Cc: ncox@ci.kirkla.nd.wa.us 
Sent: Sunday, January 22,2006 5:34 PM 
Subject: Kirkland Wireless regulations-revisions-Jan. 13th version 

I finally had a chance to review the changes contained in your January 13th draft. I believe you 
have done an excellent job of incorporating the changes into the revised text. 

As I may not be able to attend the hearing on the 23rd, I wanted to make a few final points in 
writing prior to the hearing. Let me know what you think about the comments contained herein 
after your review. Also, I would appreciate i t  i f  you could let me know what happens on 
Monday night, if there are any further revisions that will be contained in the version that  goes to 
council. 

1. This involves concealment technology, section 117.70.3.d., regarding the conduit inside the 
pole. I read the draft and it makes sense, but I think the language is going to create a lot of 
questions for staff over the coming years that could have been eliminated. Here is what I am 
referring to: antennas on a utility pole, or replacement utility pole, require conduit that must be 
attached t o  the outside of the pole in Kirkland. The only alternative to that would be t o  use a 
glu-lam pole, which the City will not allow as it does not meet the concealment technology 
sections. It just seems that the current draft says you need to put the conduit inside the pole, 
unless it's not feasible. I still think it should be clearer regarding conduit on utility poles, 
considering the City's position on not allowing glu-lam poles. 

The City realizes that adding antenna to an  existing utility pole cannot run conduit on  the inside 
o f  the pole (unless the pole anticipated the additional antenna and conduit). However, 
a replacement utility pole does n o t  necessarily require conduit to be attached to the outside o f  
the pole. The City recognizes that a pole with internal conduit will have a greater diameter than 
a similar pole with external conduit. Depending on setting/context, one may b e  preferable to 
the other. This provision was intentionally worded to provide flexibility to response to 
contextual setting. 

I will draft  a clarification that this applies to new or  replacement towers, utility poles, o r  other 
support structures, not existing structures. 

The City does not  categorically prohibit, o r  propose to categorically prohibit, glu-lam poles. The 
City realizes that there may be occasional settings where glu-lam is appropriate and  could 
satisfy concealment requirements. 



2.  Antennas on rooftops-I think you have made it clearer where antennas can be located. 
However, section 117.70.7.(c) refers t o  subsection ( f ) ,  which does not seem to make sense. 
Did you mean t o  use ( g )  instead? The reason I am bringing this up is that c says no panels may 
be mounted on roofs or above the roofline, except under f .  f states that antennas shall be 
consolidated in the center of the roof, after you said no antennas on the roof. Whereas ( g )  says 
that you can attach t o  a mechanical penthouse above the roof. After re-reading, my assumption 
is that you meant ( g )  rather than ( f )  noted in ( c ) .  

Thanks forpoint ing that  o u t  The reference should have been to  "g", no t  "f". A change will be 
made. 

3.  I n  ( g )  of 117.70.7, 1 would add that it's not just mechanical equipment enclosures, but it 
could include stair/elevator penthouses that project above the roofline where you could attach 
flush mounted panel antennas. I wouldn't limit it just t o  mechanical equipment enclosures. 

Agree. A change will be prepared. 

4. My last comment goes t o  the intent the City is trying t o  cover under the rooftop antennas. 
There is one area not covered in rooftops, which is the possibility of increasing the 
mechanical/stair/elevator penthouses for antennas. Did you mean t o  include that in section ( i ) ,  
that these components can not be increased just for the antennas? I f  so, I don't th ink that  
"building parapets or other architectural features" include all the options above the roofline. I 
think increasing the height of an existing mechanical/elevator/stair penthouse for flush mounted 
antennas is a great idea, but I don't know if you intended t o  eliminate that possibility. You 
might want t o  tighten that up one way or the other depending on the intent of the City. 

The intent is that these components cannot be increased just for  the antennas. The reference 
to "building parapets o r  other architectural features" will be expanded to  include stair and 
elevator penthouses and similar rooftop appurtenances ("rooftop appurtenances" is a defined 
term in the Zoning Code). 

Feel free t o  call me if you have any questions. Thanks for allowing me the opportunity t o  
comment on the draft code. 

1'11 mention one additional change that will be proposed, though i t  may not be of interest to  
you. I n  the definition section (117.15) 1 propose t o  include a statement that any te rm not  
defined by 11 7,15 shall be defined as set forth in Chapter 5 KZC (the definitions chapter o f  the 
overall zoning code). 

Regards, 
Gary Abrahams 
206-349-4279 



MEMORANDUM

To: Eric Shields, Planning Director 

Houghton Community Council 

From: Michael Bergstrom, Consultant 

Date: January 17, 2006 

Subject: Chapter 117 KZC – Personal Wireless Service Facilities Regulations, File No. IV-

03-13

I. RECOMMENDATION

Deliberate and make a recommendation to the City Council. 

II. BACKGROUND

On August 29, 2005 the Planning Director and Houghton Community Council conducted a public 

hearing on a draft ordinance, dated August 5, 2005, that would replace the existing Chapter 117 KZC.

Due to questions raised at the hearing by industry representatives, it was determined that further 

revisions and a future hearing would be necessary. 

On September 19, Staff met with industry representatives to discuss their concerns.  The input 

received at that meeting led to a new draft dated December 23, 2005.  The Planning Director and 

Houghton Community Council held a public hearing on January 10, 2006 to review the December 23, 

2005 draft.  The hearing body asked Staff to return on January 23 with additional revisions and 

information responding to questions raised by the hearing body and industry representation (Gary 

Abrahams), although the public hearing was officially closed on January 10. 

Following the January 10 public hearing, Staff re-reviewed the draft ordinance and identified 

additional clarifications that should be made.  In addition, Mr. Abrahams submitted suggested 

changes to provide clarity for PWSF service providers, leading to further changes to the draft 

ordinance.  As a result, a revised draft ordinance, dated January 13, 2006, is presented to the 

Planning Director and Houghton Community Council Council for consideration (Attachment 1). 

III. ISSUES

At your January 10 hearing, three primary issues were raised by the hearing body and the one 

industry representative, including: 

A. Should rooftop panel antennas be accommodated?

 Staff agrees that both the existing code and proposed draft are ambiguous with respect to rooftop 

panel antennas.  The intent is that such antennas should be allowed as long as they are flush-

mounted to a mechanical equipment screen, penthouse, or similar feature.  They should not be 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

January 17, 2006 

Page 2 

allowed where they are mounted as free-standing features on a roof.  The January 13 draft 

clarifies this intent in 117.70.7.a, 7.c, and 7.f. 

B. How are view impacts of towers that are located in non-residential zones, but which affect nearby 

residential zones, addressed and controlled?

 The January 13 draft does not add or change any language to address this question.  As you 

know, the draft ordinance is intended, through policy and prescribed review process, to achieve 

the following: 

 Discourage any new towers in residential zones (such towers are limited to 40’ height and 

require review through Process IIB); 

 Allow new towers, regardless of zone, only when other solutions do not suffice, and require a 

more stringent public review process (117.45.2.b, 3.a, 4.b, footnote 4); 

 Require third party review for towers (117.65); 

 Require appropriate concealment and screening of towers (117.70 and 117.80). 

 In order to effectively discourage new towers in residential zones, the draft ordinance makes it 

somewhat easier to locate them in non-residential zones.  This is consistent with the policy to 

have the City’s process mirror the City’s priorities.  The safeguards built into the prescribed 

review processes should be adequate to protect nearby residential properties.  Those safeguards 

include:

 Public notice and opportunity to comment; 

 Requirements of 117.45.2.b, 3.a, 4.b., footnote 4, that a tower will not be approved unless the 

applicant demonstrates that other solutions are infeasible. 

 Third party review, required by 117.65; 

 Context, Design Compatibility, and Concealment, required by 117.70.1, .2, and .3. 

 General provisions throughout Chapter 117 intended to reduce impacts of, and alternatives 

to, towers. 

 With respect to towers proposed in non-residential zones that might impact residential areas, we 

explored various language options such as “reduce view impact”, “protect significant views”, and 

“minimize impact upon existing views”, but those options were considered to be highly subjective 

and difficult to enforce on an administrative level.  Staff believes that the safeguards built into 

Chapter 117 and the required review processes protect community interests to the extent 

feasible.

C. Chapter 117 should be clearer in various sections, to convey what is permitted and what is not.

 On January 10 both the hearing body and Mr. Abrahams identified areas of the draft ordinance 

that could be clarified.  The proposed draft has been revised to respond to these issues, resulting 

in a January 13, 2006 draft.  The changes are summarized in Section IV below. 

IV. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN JANUARY 13, 2006 AND DECEMBER 23, 2005 DRAFTS

A. General:

1. Overall clarity:  Changes have been made to various provisions of the draft ordinance to 

provide clarity.  Some of these changes are a result of industry input, others result from Staff 

review. 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

January 17, 2006 

Page 3 

2. Panel antennas on rooftops:  The January 13 draft clarifies that panel antennas are permitted 

above the roofline as long as they are flush-mounted to a building wall, parapet, or existing 

mechanical equipment screen as long as the antenna does not extend above the features to 

which they are mounted.

3. Tower impacts on residential areas:  See Section III.B above.  Staff believes that the 

protections built into the regulations and the processes through which towers are reviewed 

provide sufficient protection of the interests of residential areas. 

B. Specific – The following specific changes have been made in response to input from the January 

10 hearing and subsequent Staff input.  Changes are presented in order of the Chapter sections 

they affect: 

1. 117.15.15:  Clarifies that a “tower” does not include a replacement utility pole as authorized 

by KZC 117.70.7. 

2. 117.40:  This section has been deleted.  Much of this section is already covered elsewhere.

The remainder has been moved to a new Footnote 4 in 117.45.  Renumbering of sections 

resulting from this deletion will occur prior to final ordinance adoption. 

3. 117.45:  Several changes, including: 

a. Introductory paragraph has been expanded to alert readers to certain additional 

requirement affecting PWSF location and design. 

b. The “Review Process” column of the process table includes a very brief description of 

what the review process entails, including a reference to the applicable KZC chapter for 

more information about the process. 

c. The “Facility Type” column of the process table contains specific references to important 

code requirements, as requested by industry. 

d. Terminology of subsection 4.c of Section 117.45 has been changed from “Modification” to 

“Departure” to clarify intent. 

e. A new footnote “4” has been added.  The provisions of this footnote are currently in 

117.25 of the existing Chapter 117 (117.40 of the 12/12/05 draft ordinance), but were 

moved here for clarity. 

4. 117.70.3:  Minor wording changes. 

5. 117.70.3.a:  Sentence added to acknowledge antennas completely enclosed within a tower. 

6. 117.70.4.a:  Example added to illustrate effect of new setback requirements for towers. 

7. 117.40.4.b:  Minor wording change to clarify setback requirements. 

8. 117.70.5:  Examples added to illustrate types of information that might be acceptable to 

demonstrate that a tower and antennas are the minimum height necessary. 

9. 117.70.6:  Paragraph restructured to provide more clarity with respect to antenna clearance 

above existing or replacement utility poles and/or electrical conductors. 

10. 117.70.7.a:  Clarifies that antennas, including panel antennas, may be attached to the sides, 

parapets, or mechanical penthouses of buildings. 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

January 17, 2006 

Page 4 

11. 117.70.7.g (was 70.7.f):  Clarifies that flush-mounted panel or directional antennas are 

among the antennas that are allowed to be attached to a mechanical equipment enclosure 

that projects above the roof of a building. 

12. 117.70.10:  Minor wording change. 

13. 117.75.1:  Removes cubic foot limit for equipment structures in residential zones; controls 

size by height and area. 

14. 117.75.3:  Minor wording change. 

15. 117.75.8:  Minor wording change. 

16. 117.85:  Changes terminology from “Modifications” to “Departures” for clarity. 

V. CONCLUSION

 The attached January 13, 2006 draft ordinance responds to concerns raised at the January 10 public 

hearing.  It maintains past and present City policy with respect to PWSF while accommodating 

changing PWSF technology and market demands for PWSF service.  The new draft ordinance 

balances the industry’s desire to provide service with the community’s desire to receive service, while 

making sure both needs will be met in a manner acceptable with overall community values. 

 We look forward to discussing with you further on January 23. 

Attachments:  

1. January 13, 2006 Draft Ordinance – Chapter 117 KZC 

cc: Kristi Park, Pacific Telecom Services, kpark@ptswa.com 

 Andrew Nenninger, T-Mobile, andrew.nenninger@T-mobile.com 

 Gary Abrahams, T-Mobile, gary.abrahams@comcast.net 

 Norris Bacho, IGWT Inc, norris@igwt.net 

 Tim Gasser, Puget Sound Energy, tim.gasser@pse.com 

 Nancy Cox, PCD 

 Stacy Clauson, PCD 

 Jon Regala, PCD 



DRAFT 01/13/06 

Chapter 117 - PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITIES 

NOTE:  This view of the draft ordinance displays the proposed text changes between the existing Chapter 
117 KZC and the proposed ordinance.  Existing text that would be deleted is marked with a strike-through 

(this is an example) and new proposed wording is highlighted by an underline (this is an example),
subject to further revision resulting from the public review process. 

Sections: 
117.05 User Guide
117.10 Policy Statement
117.05 15 Definitions
117.15 20 New and Existing Facilities Applicability
117.65 Other Wireless Communications Facilities   
117.25 Exemptions       
117.30 Prohibited Devices
117.55 35 Permit Requiredment
117.25 40 Co-Location (section deleted) 
117.20 45 Priority of Locations Application Review Process
117.50 Pre-Submittal Meeting
117.45 55 Application Requirements
117.60 Determination of Application Completeness
117.50 65 Third Party Review
117.30 70 Design PWSF Standards 
117.75 Equipment Structure Standards
117.35 80 Landscaping/Buffering Screening
117.70 85 Modifications Departures From Chapter Provisions
117.40 90 Non-Use/Abandonment 
117.95 Removal From City Property - When Required
117.75 100 Appeals and Judicial Review
117.105 Lapse of Approval
117.110 Complete Compliance Required
117.115 Time Limit
117.120 Compliance With Other City Codes
117.80 125 Conflict
117.60 130 Violations and City Remedies

117.05 User Guide

This Chapter establishes the conditions under which Personal Wireless Service Facilities 
(PWSF) may locate and operate in different areas of the city.  The provisions of this Chapter 
add to and in some cases supersede the other regulations of this code.  If you wish to install, 
operate, or alter PWSF in Kirkland, you should read the provisions of this Chapter.

117.10 Policy Statement

The City has received requests to site towers and antennas.  The purpose of this Chapter is 
to provide specific regulations for the placement, construction, modification and removal of 
personal wireless service facilities PWSF.  Pursuant to the guidelines of Section 704 of the 
Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, 47 USC, Chapter 5, Subchapter III, Part I, Section 
332(c)(7), the provisions of this Chapter are not intended to and shall not be interpreted to 
prohibit or to have the effect of prohibiting the provision of personal wireless services, nor 
shall the provisions of this Chapter be applied in such a manner as to unreasonably 
discriminate among providers of functionally equivalent personal wireless services.   

1



1. The goals of this Chapter are to:   

(i) a. eEncourage the location of towers in nonresidential areas and to minimize the 
total number of tall towers throughout the City,  

(ii) b. eEncourage the joint use of existing tower sites,  

(iii) c. eEncourage users of towers and antennas to locate them, to the extent possible, 
in areas where the impact on the City is minimal,  

(iv) d. eEncourage users of towers and antennas to configure them in a way that 
minimizes the visual impact of the towers and antennas,  

(v) e. sStrongly encourage the providers of personal wireless services to use 
concealment technology,  

(vi) f. pProvide standards for the siting of personal wireless service facilities PWSF and 
other wireless communications facilities (such as television and AM/FM radio 
towers), and  

(vii)g. fFacilitate the ability of the providers of personal wireless services to provide 
such services throughout the City quickly, effectively and efficiently.   

h. Prioritize the location of PWSF on existing structures such as ball field lights, 
transmission towers, utility poles or similar structures, particularly when located 
on public property.

2. Accordingly, the City Council finds that the promulgation of this Chapter is warranted 
and necessary to:

1 a. To mManage the location of towers and antennas in the City; 

2 b. To pProtect residential areas and other land uses from potential adverse impacts 
of towers and antennas; 

3 c. To mMinimize visual impacts of towers and antennas through careful design, 
siting, landscaping, screening, innovative camouflaging techniques and 
concealment technology; 

4 d. To aAccommodate the growing need for towers and antennas; 

5 e. To pPromote and encourage shared use and co-location on existing towers as a 
desirable option rather than construction of additional single-use towers; and 

6 f. To aAvoid potential damage to adjacent properties through engineering and 
proper siting of personal wireless service facilities PWSF.

117.05 15 Definitions

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them 
below: 

1. "Antenna" shall mean any exterior apparatus designed for telephonic, radio, data, 
Internet or other communications through the sending and/or receiving of radio 
frequency signals including, but not limited to, equipment attached to a tower, pole, 

2



light standard, building or other structure for the purpose of providing personal wireless 
services and its attendant base station.  Types of antennas include: 

a. An "omni-directional antenna" receives and transmits radio frequency signals in a 
360-degree radial pattern.  For the purposes of this chapter, a

b. A "whip antenna" is an omni-directional antenna that is up to 15 feet in height 
and up to four inches in diameter.   

b. c. A "directional or panel antenna" receives and transmits radio frequency signals in 
a specific directional pattern of less than 360 degrees. 

2. "Antenna height" shall mean the vertical distance measured from average building 
elevation to the highest point of the antenna, or if on a rooftop or other structure, from 
the top of the roof or structure to the highest point of the antenna.  For replacement 
structures, antenna height is measured from the top of the existing structure to the 
highest point of the antenna or new structure, whichever is greater. Measurement of 
antenna height shall include the base pad, support structure, antenna, lightning rods, 
and other appurtenances.

3. “Building” shall mean a roofed structure used or intended for human occupancy.

3 4. "Cell site" shall mean a tract or parcel of land or building that contains the personal 
wireless service facilities PWSF including any antenna, antenna support structure, 
accessory buildings, and parking, and may include other uses associated with and 
ancillary to personal wireless services. 

4 5. "Co-location" shall mean the use or placement of PWSF a common personal wireless 
service facility or on a tower by two or more personal wireless service providers or by 
one personal wireless service provider for more than one type of communication 
technology. 

5 6. "Equipment structure" shall mean a facility, shelter, cabinet or vault used to house and 
protect the electronic or other associated equipment necessary for processing wireless 
communications signals.  “Associated equipment” may include, for example, air 
conditioning, backup power supplies, and emergency generators. 

6 7. "Existing structure" shall mean, but is not limited to, any existing building, electrical 
transmission tower, flagpole, light standard, utility pole, water tank reservoir, other 
support structure, and structures accessory structures thereto. 

7 8. "FAA" shall mean the Federal Aviation Administration. 

8 9. "FCC" shall mean the Federal Communications Commission. 

9 10. "Nonresidential" or "nonresidential zone" shall mean (1) all portions of the City 
(including rights-of-way adjacent thereto, measured to the centerline of the right-of-
way) in an area not zoned residential as defined in this Chapter, or (2) the I-405 or SR 
520 right-of-way. 

11. “Other support structure” shall mean a structure used to support PWSF or equipment 
structures, excluding buildings, utility poles, and water reservoirs.  Examples of “other 
support structure” include flagpoles and ballfield light standards,

10 12. "Personal wireless services" and "personal wireless service facilities" (PWSF), as 
used in this Chapter, shall be defined in the same manner as in Title 47, United States 

3



Code, Chapter 5, Subchapter III, Part I, Section 332(c)(7)(C), as they may be amended 
now or in the future. 

13. “Replacement structure” shall mean a structure that replaces or is intended to replace 
an existing structure of a similar design and similar primary purpose, to enable the 
installation of new or additional PWSF on that structure.  If a “replacement structure” 
meets the definition of “tower”, it shall be regulated as a new tower.

11 14. "Residential" shall mean portions of the City in the following zones:  RS 35; RSX 
35; RS 12.5; RSX 12.5; RS 8.5; RSX 8.5; RS 7.2; RSX 7.2; RS 5.0; RSX 5.0; RM 5.0; 
RM 3.6; RM 2.4; RM 1.8; WD I; WD II; WD III; PLA 1; PLA 2; PLA 5A, D, E; PLA 6A, C, 
D, E, F, H, I, J, K; PLA 7A, B, C; PLA 9; PLA 15B; PLA 16; PLA 17; and P; and rights-
of-way adjacent thereto, measured to the centerline of the right-of-way.

12 15. "Tower" shall mean any structure that is designed and constructed primarily for 
the purpose of supporting one or more antennas, including any antenna support 
structure, self-supporting lattice towers or monopole towers. , and does not include 
utility poles. A “tower” shall not include a replacement utility pole as authorized by KZC 
117.70.6.

16. “Utility pole” shall mean a structure designed and used primarily for the support of 
electrical wires, telephone wires, television cable, traffic signals, or lighting for streets, 
parking areas, or pedestrian paths.

117.15 20 New and Existing Facilities Applicability

1. New Facilities Antennas and Towers – All new personal wireless service facilities, 
including without limitation antennas and towers, shall comply with this Chapter unless 
the applicant had a vested application to site a personal wireless service facility said
PWSF under a prior version of this code chapter, or unless specifically exempted by 
KZC 117.25.

2. Existing Facilities Antennas and Towers –  
a. All personal wireless service facilities, including without limitation existing

antennas and towers, shall be allowed to continue their usage as they presently
exist as of the effective date of this Cchapter.  Routine maintenance and 
reconfiguration of antennas shall be permitted on such existing antennas and 
towers, subject to the limitations below.   

b. However, aAny reconfiguration pursuant to paragraph (a) above that increases 
the height or number of antennas height shall be treated like and processed as a 
new facility. 

c. Existing antennas that conform to the provisions of this chapter may be replaced 
by new antennas, if such new antennas are approved as a minor modification 
pursuant to KZC 117.110.

d. The replacement of existing antennas that do not conform to the provisions of 
this chapter shall be treated and processed as a new facility.

e. The replacement of an existing tower, whether that tower conforms or does not 
conform to the provisions of this chapter, shall be treated and processed as a 
new facility.

3. Equipment Structures –
a. Existing equipment structures shall be allowed to continue their usage as they 

exist as of the effective date of this Chapter.  Routine maintenance,
reconfiguration of, or additions to equipment structures shall be permitted, 
subject to the limitations below.

4



b. Existing equipment structures may be replaced, and new equipment structures 
may be added to an approved antenna and/or tower, provided that the new 
equipment structures conform with the provisions of this chapter, and are 
approved as a minor modification pursuant to KZC 117.110

c. Reconfiguration or addition of equipment structures that increases the size of the 
equipment structure enclosure shall be treated and processed as a new facility.

d. Reconfiguration of or additions to a non-approved antenna or tower are not 
permitted, unless the entire facility obtains approval as a new facility through the 
appropriate review process.

4. 117.65 Other Wireless Communication Facilities - All of the provisions of this Chapter, 
which address personal wireless services and personal wireless service facilities
PWSF, shall also be deemed to cover other wireless communications facilities (and, in 
particular, but without limitation, television, satellite radio, global positioning systems 
(GPS), and AM/FM radio towers) to the maximum extent allowed by law. 

117.25 Exemptions

The following are exempt from the provisions of this Chapter and shall be permitted in all 
zones, subject to any other applicable provisions of this Code:

1. Temporary PWSF during an emergency declared by the City.

2. Temporary PWSF located on the same site as, and during the construction of, a 
permanent PWSF for which appropriate permits have been granted.

3. Licensed amateur (ham) radio stations.

4. Satellite dish antennas less than two meters in diameter when located in non-
residential zones, and satellite dish antennas less than one meter in diameter when 
located in residential zones, including direct to home satellite services, when used as 
an accessory use of the property.

117.30 Prohibited Devices

Except as exempted pursuant to KZC 117.25, PWSF that are not permanently affixed to a 
support structure and which are capable of being moved from location to location (e.g., “Cell 
on Wheels”) are prohibited.

117.55 35 Permit Requirement Required

In all instances, a permit must be obtained from the City before any personal wireless service 
facilities PWSF may be constructed on any public or private land or right-of-way, including I-
405, SR 520, and the Burlington Northern Railroad right-of-way, within the City limits.

117.25 40 Co-Location

To minimize potential adverse visual impacts associated with towers, co-location of antennas 
by more than one provider on personal wireless service towers shall take precedence over 
the construction of new personal wireless service towers.  Providers are encouraged, by the 
opportunity for expedited review as provided in this Chapter, to co-locate antennas onto 
personal wireless service towers.  Unless the applicant has shown by substantial evidence 
that it has made a good faith effort to mount the antenna on an existing personal wireless 
service tower the City may deny the application to construct a new personal wireless service 
tower.

5



117.20 45 Priority of Locations Application Review Process

1. An application to site a personal wireless service facility PWSF shall be subject
processed according to the criteria contained in the table below, after the applicant has
satisfied the pre-submittal meeting requirements of KZC 117.50.  Only when the application 
does not meet a criteria shall the next group of criteria be considered.  The hierarchy of 
criteria is divided into three separate approval processes:  administrative decision, Process I 
permit and Process IIB permit.  The order of criteria for locating personal wireless service 
facilities shall be as follows:  This table does not include all requirements for PWSF.  
Additional requirements and standards affecting design and location of PWSF can be found 
in Sections 117.70 (PWSF Standards), 117.75 (Equipment Structure Standards), and 117.80 
(Screening).

Review Process Facility Type 
1

a)  Co-location of antennas on existing towers in nonresidential 
zones.

b)  Attachment of antennas to existing (but not replacement) 
buildings or mechanical equipment enclosures in a nonresidential 
zone.  See KZC 117.70.7.

c)  Attachment of antennas to existing water reservoirs, utility poles, 
or other support structures in any zone.

2
See KZC 117.70.6.

1. Planning Official 
Decision

(Construction permit 
review only, Planner 
issues decision).

d)  Attachment of antennas to replacement utility poles in any zone, 
where the diameter of the replacement pole will not exceed 18 
inches or increase the diameter of the existing pole by more than 
50%, whichever is less.

2
 See KZC 117.70.6.

a)  Co-location of antennas on existing towers in residential zones, 
not resulting in any increase to tower height.

b)  New towers in nonresidential zones, not exceeding 40 feet in 
height.

4

c)  Attachment of antennas to replacement utility poles in any zone, 
where the diameter of the replacement pole will not exceed 24 
inches or increase the diameter of the existing pole by more than 
100%, whichever is less.

2
See KZC 117.70.6.

2. Process I Permit

(Planning Director 
Decision following 
public notice and 
comment, per Ch. 
145 KZC)

d)  Attachment of antennas to non-residential buildings, such as
schools or churches, in residential zones.

3
See KZC 117.70.7.

a)  New towers in nonresidential zones, exceeding 40 feet in height.
4

b)  Attachment of antennas to replacement buildings or mechanical 
equipment enclosures in non-residential zones.

c)  Attachment of antennas to replacement utility poles in any zone, 
where the diameter of the replacement pole will exceed the 
diameter of the existing pole by more than 100% or 24 inches, 
whichever is less.

3. Process IIA 
Permit

(Hearing Examiner 
holds public hearing 
and issues decision, 
per Ch. 150 KZC)

d)  Attachment of antennas to multi-family residential buildings in
any zone.

3

a)  Co-location of antennas on existing towers in residential zones
resulting in an increase in tower height.

3

b)  New towers in residential zones, not exceeding 40 feet in 
height.

3, 4

c)  Departures from standards contained in this Chapter, subject to 
the limitations of KZC 117.85.

4. Process IIB 
Permit

(Hearing Examiner 
holds public hearing, 
City Council issues 
decision, per Ch. 
152 KZC) d)  Any facility that does not qualify for review as a Planning Official 

decision, Process I permit, or Process IIA permit as listed above.
3

Footnotes:

6



1 Although this table specifically addresses antennas and towers, it is presumed that for each 
facility there will be associated equipment structures, and there may be structural alterations to 
existing support structures.  Such equipment structures and structural alterations shall be 
reviewed through the same process as the facility with which they are associated, subject to 
the limitations of KZC 117.20.

2 Attachment of antennas to existing water reservoirs or other support structures, or to existing 
or replacement utility poles, where such attachment results in a height increase to the original
support structure, may be approved only once through the review process indicated.  Any 
subsequent proposal that would result in a height increase shall be reviewed through Process 
IIB.

3 If in a residential zone, the applicant shall demonstrate that a diligent effort has been made to 
locate the proposed facility in a nonresidential zone, and that due to valid considerations 
including physical constraints or technological feasibility, no other location is available.

4. An application for a new tower shall not be approved unless the applicant demonstrates, to the 
satisfaction of the City, that an attempt was made to co-locate the proposed antenna on an 
existing structure, and that such attempt was spatially, structurally, or technically infeasible.

a.  Administrative
     Decision

1)  Co-location of antennas on personal wireless service towers in nonresidential zones.
2)  Attachment of antennas to existing structures in nonresidential zones:

Whip antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum of 15 feet, and 
other omni-directional antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum 
of 10 feet;

Otherwise, facilities may be mounted on one or more building facades or on 
one or more sides of a mechanical equipment enclosure; and

All appurtenances and screening (including personal wireless service facilities) 
may not exceed 5% of the total roof area of a building and/or 5% of any façade 
of a building.

3)  Equipment structures may not exceed 500 cubic feet with a 5-foot height limit in           
residential zones.

4)  Antennas may be attached to ball field light standards, electrical transmission 
towers, water tanks or existing utility poles in residential zones.  Whip antennas may 
exceed the structure height by a maximum of 15 feet and other antennas may 
exceed the structure height by a maximum of 10 feet.

b.  Process I
     Permit

1)  New personal wireless service towers and associated equipment in nonresidential 
zones:

Located at least a distance equal to 100% of antenna height from any property 
line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or residential zone;

Antenna height is a maximum of 40 feet.
2)  Attachment of antennas to existing structures in nonresidential zones:

Whip antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum of 15 feet, and 
other omni-directional antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum 
of 10 feet;

Otherwise, facilities may be mounted on one or more building facades or on 
one or more sides of a mechanical equipment enclosure; and

All appurtenances and screening (including personal wireless service facilities) 
may not exceed 10% of the total roof area of a building and/or 10% of any 
façade of a building.

c.  Process IIB
     Permit

1)  Any personal wireless service facility that is unable to meet the preceding priority of 
locational criteria for an administrative decision or Process I permit; see also KZC 
117.70.

2. Further Process IIB Permit Requirements – An applicant for a new facility to be located 
in a residential zone shall demonstrate that a diligent effort has been made to located 
the proposed facility in a nonresidential zone, and that due to valid considerations 
including physical constraints, or technological feasibility, no other location is available.  
The personal wireless services provided is required to demonstrate that it contacted the 

7



landowners or owners of structures in excess of 30 feet within a one-quarter mile radius 
of the site proposed, asked for permission to build the personal wireless service tower 
or install the antenna on an existing structure, and was denied.  The information 
submitted by the applicant shall include a map of the area to be served by the facility, 
its relationship to other sites in the applicant’s network, and an evaluation of existing 
available land, and buildings and structures taller than 30 feet within one-quarter mile of 
the proposed site.

117.50 Pre-Submittal Meeting

Before an application requiring review through Planning Official Decision, Process I, Process 
IIA, or Process IIB will be accepted for processing, the applicant shall attend a pre-submittal 
meeting with the Planning Official, as required by KZC 145.12, 150.12, or 152.12.

117.45 55 Application Requirements

a. In the course of reviewing any request for any approval required under this Chapter 
made by an applicant to install personal wireless service facilities, tThe City shall act 
within a reasonable period of time on a complete application submitted pursuant to this 
Chapter, taking into account the nature and scope of the request, after an application 
has been determined to be complete.  Any decision to deny such a request shall be in 
writing and supported by substantial evidence contained in a written record. 

b. All applications required pursuant to this Chapter for administrative decision, Process I 
and Process IIB permits to locate a personal wireless service facility (including, but 
without limitation, an antenna or tower in the City) shall be made using forms provided 
by submitted to the Planning Department and shall be accompanied by the information 
and support materials identified on said forms.with the applicable requested information 
(depending upon the type of facility which is involved).  A detailed plan that complies 
with the submittal requirements of this Chapter, and other regulations and ordinances 
of the City, along with other pertinent information requested by the City shall also be 
submitted.  An applicant's submission may utilize any combination of site plans, 
surveys, maps, technical reports or written narratives necessary to convey the following 
information depending upon the type of facility which is involved:

1. All applicants must register their request with the City on a form provided by the City at 
the time of building permit or right-of-way use permit application.

2. A scaled site plan clearly indicating the location, type and height of the proposed tower, 
antennas, on-site land uses and zoning, adjacent land uses and zoning, adjacent 
roadways, proposed means of access, setbacks from property lines, elevation drawings 
of the proposed tower, the equipment structure, fencing, buffering and the type of 
concealment technology which will be utilized.  The full, detailed site plan shall not be 
required if the antenna is to be mounted on an existing structure.

3. Photosimulations of the proposed facility from affected residential properties and public 
rights-of-way.

4. A current map and/or aerial photograph showing the location of the proposed tower.

5. Legal description of the parcel, if applicable.

6. Approximate distance between the proposed tower and antennas, as applicable, and 
the nearest residential unit, or residentially zoned properties.

8



7. Information of sufficient detail to demonstrate that the equipment structure is the 
minimum size necessary.

8. A landscape plan showing specific landscape, screening and fencing materials.

9. A notarized letter signed by the applicant stating that the personal wireless service 
facilities PWSF will comply with all applicable federal and state laws, including 
specifically FCC and FAA regulations, and all City codes.

10. A notarized letter signed by the applicant stating that the antenna usage will not 
interfere with other adjacent or neighboring transmission or reception communications 
signals.

11. Manufacturers information indicating compliance with adopted noise standards.

12. The personal wireless services provider must demonstrate that it is licensed by the 
FCC, if required to be licensed under FCC regulations.

13. The applicant, if not the personal wireless services provider, shall submit proof of a 
lease agreement with an FCC-licensed personal wireless services provider if such
provider is required to be licensed by the FCC.

14. Propagation maps shall be provided showing that the tower and antennas are required 
for present and future network coverage in order to satisfy the requirements of the 
provider's grid system.  The maps shall also demonstrate that the height specified is 
the minimum height necessary for the tower and antennas, as applicable.  The maps 
shall additionally show coverage areas at the requested height and at lower heights.  
Finally, they shall show the neighboring or regional facilities with which the facilities in 
the City can communicate.

15. If the site is within or adjacent to a residential zone, then a study shall be provided 
showing why alternative locations are not acceptable.

16. All providers shall submit satisfactory evidence that the facility is designed for and will 
provide services primarily for residents of the City and/or visitors within City limits.

17. See also KZC 117.40(2), Further Process IIB Permit Requirements, and KZC 117.55, 
Third Party Review.

117.60 Determination of Application Completeness

1. Planning Official Decisions:  Within 28 calendar days after the date of submittal of the 
application, the Planning Official shall determine whether the application is complete.  If 
the application is not complete, the Planning Official shall identify and communicate the 
needed components to the applicant.  Once the application is complete, the Planning 
Official shall process the application.

2. Process I, Process IIA, and Process IIB Permits:  The determination of completeness 
for Process I, Process IIA, and Process IIB permit applications shall occur pursuant to 
the process set forth in Chapters 145, 150, and 152 KZC, respectively.

117.50 65 Third Party Review

In certain instances (including all particularly Process IIA and IIB permit applications) there 
may be a need for expert review by a third party of the technical data submitted by the 
personal wireless services provider applicant.  The City may require such a technical review, 

9



to be paid for by the applicant. for the personal wireless service facilities.  The selection of the 
third party expert shall be by mutual agreement between the applicant and the City, and such 
agreement not to be unreasonably withheld by either party.  The third party expert shall have 
recognized training and qualifications in the field of radio frequency engineering. 

The expert review is intended to be a site-specific review of technical aspects of the personal 
wireless services, facilities, and other matters as described herein, and not a subjective 
review of the site selection.  In particular, but without limitation, the expert shall be entitled to 
provide a recommendation on the height of the proposed facilities relative to the applicant's 
coverage objectives and system design parameters.  Such a review should address the 
accuracy and completeness of the technical data, whether the analysis techniques and 
methodologies are legitimate, the validity of the conclusions, and any specific technical 
issues outlined by the City or other interested parties.   

To facilitate the expert review, an applicant for a Process IIB permit for a new tower in a 
residential zone, or for the co-location of antennas on existing towers in residential zones 
resulting in an increase in tower height, the applicant shall submit a map of the area to be 
served by the facility, its relationship to other sites in the applicant’s network, and an 
evaluation of existing available land and buildings and structures taller than 30 feet within ¼ 
mile of the proposed site.  The applicant shall demonstrate that he/she contacted the 
landowners or owners of structures taller than 30 feet within a ¼ mile radius of the proposed
site, and was denied permission by those owners to locate the facility on their land or their 
structures.

Based on the results of the third party review, the City may require changes to the application 
for the personal wireless service facilities that to comply with the recommendations of the 
expert.

117.30 70 Design PWSF Standards

1. Context - The location and design of a cell sites in the City shall consider the its visual 
and physical impact of the site on the surrounding neighborhood and shall, to the 
extent feasible, reflect the context within which it is located.

2. Design Compatibility - Facilities PWSF shall be architecturally compatible with the 
surrounding buildings and land uses or otherwise integrated, through location, and
design, and/or concealment technology, to blend in with the existing characteristics of 
the site and streetscape to the maximum extent practical. 

3. Concealment Technology. - Concealment technology applies to all personal wireless 
service facilities, including, without limitation, antennas, towers and equipment 
structures. For any facility, “concealment technology” means the use of both existing 
and future technology through which a personal wireless service facility is designed to 
resemble an object which is already present in the local environment, such as a tree, 
streetlight, or traffic signal.  It also includes:  One or more of the following concealment 
measures must be employed unless the City determines through the applicable review 
process that alternative measures would be more appropriate given the contextual 
setting of the PWSF:

a. For personal wireless service towers: 

 If within an existing stand of trees, "concealment technology" means that the 
tower is to shall be painted a dark color, is and be made of wood or metal., and 
that a A greenbelt easement is required to ensure permanent retention of the 
surrounding trees. 

10



"Concealment technology" for  t Towers in a more open setting means that they 
must shall have a backdrop (for example, but not limited to, trees, a hillside, or a 
structure) on at least two sides, be a compatible color with the backdrop, be 
made of compatible materials with the backdrop, and that provide architectural or 
landscape screening be provided for the other two remaining sides.  If existing 
trees are the backdrop, then a greenbelt easement is required to ensure 
permanent retention of the surrounding trees.  In all cases wWhere a greenbelt 
easement is required, it  The greenbelt easement shall be the minimum 
necessary to provide screening and may be removed at the landowner's request 
in the event the facility is removed. 

 Antennas shall be integrated into the design of any personal wireless service
tower to which they are attached.  External projections from the tower shall be 
limited to the greatest extent technically feasible.  Where antennas are 
completely enclosed within the tower, the need for the backdrop described in the 
preceding paragraph may be reduced or eliminated, depending on the tower 
design and context.

b. For rooftop antennas or antennas mounted on other structures: 

For o Omni-directional antennas mounted on the roof 15 feet or less above the 
roof, "concealment technology" means use shall be of a color compatible with the 
roof, structure or background. 

For o Other antennas, "concealment technology" means shall use of compatible 
colors and architectural screening or other techniques approved by the City. 

 Antennas shall be integrated into the design of any existing structure or support
the structure to which they are attached.  External projections from the existing
structure or support structure shall be limited to the greatest extent technically 
feasible. 

c. For a Antennas mounted on one or more building facades:  "Concealment 
technology" means shall (a) use of color and materials such that the facility has
to provide architectural compatibility with the building; It shall (b) be mounted on 
a wall of an existing building in a configuration as flush to the wall as technically 
possible; and shall (c) not project above the wall on which it is mounted. 

d. For equipment structures: "Concealment technology" means locating within a 
building, or if on top of a building, with architecturally compatible screening. An 
underground location, or locating above ground with a solid fence and 
landscaping, is also considered concealment technology.

d. Where feasible, cable and or conduit shall be routed through the inside of the 
support structure.  Where this is not feasible, or where such routing would result 
in a support structure of a substantially different design or substantially greater 
diameter than that of other similar structures in the vicinity or would otherwise 
appear out of context with its surroundings, the City may allow or require that the 
cable or conduit be placed on the outside of the support structure.  The outside 
cable or conduit shall be the color of the support structure, and the City may 
require that the cable be placed in conduit.

e. Alternative measures for concealment may be proposed by the applicant and 
approved by the City, if the City determines through the applicable review 
process of that the optional measures will be at least as effective in concealing 
the PWSF as the measures required above.

11



f. Nonwithstanding the above, the manner of concealment for any PWSF that 
requires approval through Process IIA or Process IIB shall be reviewed and 
determined as part of that Process.

4. Setbacks - Ground-mounted personal wireless service facilities shall be located at least 
a distance equal to 100 percent of antenna height from any property line adjacent to or 
across the street from a residential use or residential zone; and a minimum of 10 feet 
from any property line adjacent to or across the street from all other uses or zones.
The following regulations apply, except for structures located in public right-of-way:

a. New towers in any zone shall be setback a minimum of 20 feet from any property 
line, plus an additional one-half foot for each foot of tower height above 40 feet
(e.g., if the tower is 40’ in height, the setback will be 20’ from any property line; if 
the tower is 50’ in height, the setback shall be 25’ from any property line).

b. Replacement structures intended to accommodate a PWSF shall be setback a 
distance equal to or greater than the setback of the original structure from any 
property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or residential 
zone; and the lesser of ten (10) feet or the distance of the original structure from 
any property line adjacent to or across the street from all other uses or zones.

9 5. Tower and Antenna Height - The applicant shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the 
City, that the tower and antenna are the minimum height required to function 
satisfactorily.  Personal wireless service towers shall not exceed 40 feet in residential 
zones, as measured from the Average Building Elevation at the tower base to the 
highest point of the tower, antenna, or other physical feature attached to or supported 
by the tower.  Examples of information that can be used to demonstrate that the tower 
and antennas are the minimum height necessary include, but are not limited to,
propagation maps showing the necessity of the height to provide the required 
coverage, and a letter from a Radio Frequency engineer stating and explaining the 
necessity of the proposed height.

6. Antennas On a Utility Pole - Antennas mounted to an existing or replacement utility 
pole shall be subject to the following height limits:
a. In any zone, 15’ above the top of a pole not used to convey electrical service;
b. In a residential zone, 15’ above the electrical distribution or transmission 

conductor (as opposed to top of pole) if the pole is used to convey electrical 
service; and

c. In a nonresidential zone, 15’ above an electrical distribution conductor or 21’ 
above an electrical transmission conductor (as opposed to top of pole) if the pole 
is used to convey electrical service.

10 7. Antennas On or Above a Structure Building, Mechanical Equipment Enclosure, or 
Water Reservoir - Antennas and equipment structures on or above a structure shall be 
subject to the following criteria:

a. Antennas, including panel or directional antennas, may be attached to the sides, 
parapets, mechanical penthouses, or similar elements, of buildings, subject to 
the limitations of this Chapter.

a b. Antenna and equipment structure height is measured above the top of the roof, 
not from the parapet or from the Average Building Elevation of the building, 
mechanical equipment enclosure, or water reservoir.

12



b c. Only o Omni-directional antennas may be roof-mounted, but may not be mounted 
on top of rooftop appurtenances.  No panel or directional antennas may be 
mounted on roofs or project above the roofline, except as provided in subsection 
(f) below.  The “roofline” of a water reservoir that incorporates a curved roof shall 
be the point at which the vertical wall of the water reservoir ends and the 
curvature of the roof begins.

d. Whip antennas may exceed the structure height by 15 feet, and other omni-
directional antennas may exceed the structure height by 10 feet.

c e. All rRoof-mounted antennas must be set back from the edge of the roof a 
distance equal to 100 percent of antenna height. 

d. Roof-mounted antennas and equipment structures shall be incorporated into the 
pitched or stepped roof form, and not appear as a separate penthouse or box.

e f. Roof-mounted antennas shall be consolidated and centered in the roof to the 
maximum extent feasible rather than scattered. 

f g. Antennas, including flush-mounted panel or directional antennas, may be 
attached to an existing conforming mechanical equipment enclosure which 
projects above the roof of the building, but may not project any higher than the 
enclosure. 

g h. In no instance shall equipment structures, antenna and related equipment Except 
for PWSF installed in an existing rooftop penthouse, PWSF shall occupy no more 
than 25 10 percent of the total roof area of a building.  Rooftop conduit shall be 
excluded from this calculation.

i. Building parapets or other architectural features shall not be increased in size or 
height solely for the purpose of facilitating the attachment of PWSF components.

h. 8. Historic or Landmark Locations - No antennas shall be permitted on property designed 
as a historic resource or community landmark as identified in the Comprehensive Plan, 
unless such antennas have been approved in accordance with design requirements 
pertaining to historic structures. 

i. 9. Signal Interference - No antennas shall cause localized interference with the 
transmission or reception of any other communications signals including, but not limited 
to, public safety signals, and television and radio broadcast signals. 

j. 10. Support Wires - No guy or other support wires shall be used in connection with 
antennas, antenna arrays or support structures except when required by construction 
codes adopted by the City. the UBC to anchor the antennas, antenna arrays or support 
structures.

5 11. Views - Personal wireless service facilities PWSF, including towers, must be located 
and oriented in such a way as to minimize view blockage. 

6 12. Lights, Signals and Signs - No signals, lights or signs shall be permitted on towers 
unless required by the FCC or the FAA. 

7. Equipment Structures - (moved to 117.75, below).

13. Noise – The installation and operation of PWSF shall comply with the noise standards 
set forth in KZC 115.95.

13



8 14. Federal Requirements - All towers and antennas PWSF must meet or exceed current 
standards and regulations of the FAA, the FCC and any other agency of the federal 
government with the authority to regulate towers and antennas.  If such standards and 
regulations are changed, then the owners of the towers and antennas governed by this 
Chapter PWSF shall bring such towers and antennas PWSF into compliance with such 
revised standards and regulations changes in accordance with the compliance 
deadlines and requirements of such standards and regulations changes.  Failure to 
bring towers and antennas into compliance with such revised standards and 
regulations shall constitute grounds for the removal of the tower or antenna at the 
owner's expense.  Additionally, IIf, upon inspection, the City concludes that a tower
PWSF fails to comply with such regulations and standards and constitutes a danger to 
persons or property, then, upon notice being provided to the owner of the tower PWSF,
the owner shall have 30 days to bring such tower PWSF into compliance with such 
standards and regulations.  If the owner fails to bring such tower PWSF into 
compliance within said 30 days, the City may remove such tower PWSF at the owner's 
expense. 

7  117.75 Equipment Structures Standards - The standards for equipment structures are as follows:

1. Maximum Size in Residential Zones - eEquipment structures may shall not exceed 500
cubic feet 5 feet in height. with a 5-foot height limit in residential zones.  Equipment 
structure enclosures shall not exceed 125 square feet each.  These limitations shall 
apply to each individual equipment structure and enclosure, provided that equipment 
structures that are fully contained within a legally established building that houses or is 
accessory to a principal permitted use shall not be subject to these limitations.

b2. Maximum Size in Nonresidential Zones - Gross floor area of equipment structures shall 
be the minimum necessary but not greater than 240 square feet per provider.  
Maximum height is 10 feet above average building elevation.  These limitations shall 
not apply to equipment structures that are fully contained within a building that houses 
or is accessory to a principal permitted use and that satisfies the dimensional 
regulations of the underlying zone.

3. Equipment Structures Located in Right-of-Way - If ground-mounted, equipment
structures shall not exceed a height of 30 inches.  If mounted on poles, said structures 
shall comply with 117.75.6.  Setback requirements do not apply to equipment 
structures located in the right-of-way.

4. Setbacks When Located on Private Property – Ground-mounted personal wireless 
service facilities shall be located at least a distance equal to 100 percent of antenna 
height from any property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or 
residential zone; and a minimum of 10 feet from any property line adjacent to or across 
the street from all other uses or zones.  equipment structures over 30 inches in height 
shall be setback at least 10 feet from all property lines; provided, that equipment 
structures that are fully contained within a legally established building that houses or is 
accessory to a principal permitted use shall not be subject to this requirement.

5. Equipment structures on or above a structure - Equipment structures on or above a 
structure shall be subject to the following criteria: 

a. Antenna and eEquipment structure height is measured above the top of the roof, 
not the parapet. 

14



d b. When mounted to the roof of a building with a pitched or stepped roof form,
Rroof-mounted antennas and equipment structures shall be incorporated into the 
pitched or stepped roof form, and not appear as a separate penthouse or box. 

6. Equipment structures mounted on poles or towers -

a. Equipment structures may be mounted on utility poles or towers.  The location 
and vertical clearance of such structures shall be reviewed by the Public Works 
Department and verified by the underlying utility owner to ensure that the 
structures will not pose a hazard to other users of the right-of-way.

b, Equipment structures mounted on utility poles or towers shall be located in a 
manner that minimizes clutter and visual impact.

a7. Compatibility - Equipment structures shall be designed to be compatible with the 
surrounding area in which they are located.  For example, in a residential area, a 
sloped roof or wood siding may be required.   

8. Concealment - For equipment structures: "Concealment technology" means  One or 
more of the following concealment measures must be employed unless the City 
determines through the applicable review process that alternative measures would be 
more appropriate given the contextual setting of the equipment structure:

(a) lLocating within a building or building appendage constructed in accordance with 
all applicable City codes, or if

(b)  Locating on top of a building, with architecturally compatible screening. , 

(c)  Locating An underground location, or

(d) lLocating above ground with a solid fence and landscaping subject to the 
limitations of KZC 117.80.3, is also considered concealment technology. or

(e) If mounted on a utility pole or tower, the equipment structure shall be of a similar 
color to that of the pole or tower to which it is attached, unless alternative 
measures are approved by the City as part of the applicable review process.

c9. Noise Standards - Equipment structures shall be oriented so that exhaust ports or 
outlets are pointed away from properties which that may be impacted by noise.  The 
installation and operation of Eequipment structures shall comply with noise regulations 
in KZC 115.95.  The City may require an assessment of noise after operation begins 
and remediation if the noise levels created are not within the prescribed limits.  
Cumulative noise impacts will be measured in cases where there is more than one 
equipment structure. 

117.35 80 Landscaping/Buffering Screening

1. General - Landscaping, as described herein, shall be required to screen as much of the 
new personal wireless service tower PWSF and any ground-mounted features, 
including fencing, as possible, the fence surrounding both the tower and any other 
ground level features (such as an equipment structure), and in general soften the 
appearance of the site.  The City may allow or require any other form of the use of 
concealment technology, as described in KZC 117.70.3, either instead of or in addition 
to required landscaping, if it to achieves the same degree of effective screening as the 
required landscaping.  The effectiveness of visual mitigation techniques must will be 
evaluated by the City, in the City's discretion, taking into consideration the site as built.  

15



If the antenna is mounted on an existing a building, and the equipment structure is 
housed inside the building, landscaping shall not be required. 

2. Existing Vegetation - Existing vegetation shall be preserved or improved, and 
disturbance of the existing topography of the site shall be minimized, unless such 
disturbance will result in less visual impact of the site on the surrounding area. 

3. Buffering - Except for PWSF located in a public right-of-way and subject to review as a 
Planning Official decision, Bbuffering of ground-mounted personal wireless service 
facilities PWSF shall be required around the perimeter of the facility.  Landscape 
buffering shall at a minimum comply with the requirements of KZC 95.25(3) 95.40.6.B,
except that all trees must be evergreen; provided, that the City may approve or require 
optional buffering measures, if the City determines that such optional measures will 
provide effective screening.  Such optional measures include, but are not limited to, the 
following:
a. Walls or solid fencing, of a height at least as high as the equipment it screens, 

subject to KZC 117.80.4 below;
b. Architectural features, such as parapets, mechanical penthouses, or building fin 

walls.
c. Climbing vegetation supported by a structure such as a fence or trellis, of a type 

and size that will provide a dense visual barrier at least as high as the equipment 
it screens within two years from the time of planting; or

d. The natural topography of the site or the adjoining property or right-of-way.

4. Fencing - Fencing may be allowed or required if it is needed for security purposes, or if 
it is part of concealment technology.  The use of chain link, plastic, vinyl or wire fencing 
is prohibited unless it is fully screened from public view.  Landscaping shall be installed 
on the outside of fences.  Fencing installed specifically for the purpose of screening 
ground-mounted PWSF shall not be taller than necessary to provide appropriate 
screening.

5. Maintenance – The applicant shall maintain the screening in good condition and shall 
replace any plants required by this chapter or approved or required as part of the 
permit approval that are unhealthy or dead.  In the event that landscaping screening is 
not maintained at the required level, the City, after giving 30 days' advance written 
notice to the provider, may maintain or establish the landscaping screening and bill 
both the landowner and provider for such costs until such costs are paid in full. 

6. Nonwithstanding the above, the manner of screening for any PWSF that requires 
approval through Process IIA or Process IIB shall be reviewed and determined as part 
of that Process.

117.70 85 Modifications Departures From Chapter Provisions

Provisions of this Chapter shall not be subject to variances described in Chapter 120 KZC.  
However, through Process IIB, Chapter 152 KZC, the City may consider modification of
standards in the departures from Chapter provisions except for the following:

1. The 40-foot height limit for personal wireless service facilities towers in residential 
zones; and/or 

2. The 15-foot limit for antennas projecting above an existing or replacement utility pole or 
electrical distribution or transmission conductor in residential zones.

16



2. A 20-foot minimum distance between a ground-mounted personal wireless service 
facility and any property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or
residential zone.

117.40 90 Non-Use/Abandonment

1. Bond - The City may require a bond or other suitable performance security as per
pursuant to Chapter 175 KZC to cover the costs of removal of the antenna or tower. 

2. Annual Report - The provider must confirm in writing to the City on an annual basis that 
the personal wireless service facility is still in use on a form to be provided by the City.

3 2. In the event the use of any tower or antenna PWSF will be discontinued for a period of 
60 consecutive days, the owner or operator shall so notify the City in writing, and the 
tower or antenna PWSF shall thereafter be deemed to be abandoned.  Determination 
of the date of abandonment shall be made by the City which shall have the right to 
request documentation and affidavits from the tower or antenna PWSF owner or 
operator regarding the issue of tower or antenna PWSF usage.  Upon such 
abandonment, the owner or operator of the tower or antenna PWSF or the owner of the 
property upon which such facility is located shall have an additional 60 days within 
which to: 

a. Reactivate the use of the tower or antenna PWSF or transfer the tower or 
antenna PWSF to another owner or operator who makes actual use of the PWSF
tower or antenna; or 

b. Dismantle and remove the tower or antenna PWSF.  If such tower or antenna
PWSF is not removed within said 60 days from the date of abandonment, the 
City may remove such tower or antenna PWSF at the facility owner's and 
property owner's expense.  If there are two or more users of a single tower, then 
this provision shall not become effective until all users cease using the tower. 

 At the earlier of 60 days from the date of abandonment without reactivation or 
upon completion of dismantling and removal, City approval of the tower or 
antenna PWSF shall automatically expire. 

117.95 Removal From City Property - When Required

A PWSF mounted to any City-owned property, utility pole, or other structure shall be removed 
if the City deems removal is necessary for the undergrounding of utilities, the sale, 
development, or redevelopment of City-owned property, or the demolition or alteration of a 
City-owned building or other structure.  The PWSF shall be removed at no expense to the 
City.

117.75 100 Appeals and Judicial Review

Appeals of administrative decisions shall be processed according to the appeal procedures
for Process I; except, that any affected party may appeal and participate in the appeal; the 
time to appeal is taken from the date of administrative decision; and distribution of the appeal 
hearing notice by the Planning Official shall be to the applicant, appellant, the official 
newspaper of the City, and posted on public notice sign(s).

1. An applicant may appeal a Planning Official decision to the Hearing Examiner.  A written 
notice of appeal shall be filed with the Planning Department within fourteen (14) days of 
the date the Planning Official’s decision was mailed or otherwise delivered to the 
applicant.  The office of the Hearing Examiner shall give notice of the hearing to the 

17



applicant at least seventeen (17) days prior to the hearing.  The applicant shall have the 
burden of proving that the Planning Official made an incorrect decision.  Based on the 
Hearing Examiner’s findings and conclusions, he or she may affirm, reverse, or modify 
the decision being appealed.

2. Appeals of Process I, IIA, or IIB permits are processed, and judicial review shall occur,
according to the appeal and judicial review procedures and provisions for either Process 
I, IIA, or IIB respectively. 

117.105 Lapse of Approval

The applicant must begin construction or submit to the City a complete building permit 
application for the development activity or other actions approved under this Chapter within 
one year after the final approval of the City of Kirkland on the matter, or the decision 
becomes void; provided, however, that in the event judicial review is initiated per KZC 
117.100, the running of the one year is tolled for any period of time during which a court order 
in said judicial review proceeding prohibits the development activity or other actions.  The 
applicant must substantially complete construction for the development or other actions 
approved under this Chapter and complete the applicable conditions listed on the notice of 
decision within two years after the final approval on the matter, or the decision becomes void.  
For development activity or other actions with phased construction, lapse of approval may be 
extended when approved under this Chapter and made a condition of the notice of decision.

117.110 Complete Compliance Required

1. General – Except as specified in subsection (2) of this section, the applicant must 
comply with all aspects, including conditions and restrictions, of an approval granted 
under this Chapter in order to do everything authorized by that approval.

2. Exception – Subsequent or Minor Modification – The Planning Official may approve a 
modification to the permit approved for the PWSF if:

a. The modification is minor and will not substantially change the proposed facility; 
and

b. The proposed modification will comply with the provisions of this Chapter in effect 
at the time of the modification request; and

c. There will not be any substantial changes in the impacts on the neighborhood or 
the City as a result of the change.

 Any modification, other than as specified in paragraph 2 of this Section, must be 
reviewed and decided upon as a new PWSF approval under this Chapter.

117.115 Time Limit

Any time limit, pursuant to Chapter 36.70B RCW, upon the City’s processing and decision 
upon applications under this Chapter may, except as specifically otherwise stated in this 
Chapter, be modified by a written agreement between the applicant and Planning Director.  In 
the event a permit constitutes or presents a special circumstance under the provisions of this 
Chapter, the time limits for the City to make a final decision and issue its notice of decision 
under Chapter 36.70B RCW are extended by the number of days that the final decision of the 
City was delayed as a result of that special circumstance.

117.120 Compliance With Other City Codes

18



Compliance with the provisions of this Chapter does not constitute compliance, or remove 
from the applicant the obligation to comply, with other applicable provisions of this Code, the 
Comprehensive Plan, or any other ordinance or regulation of the City including, but not 
limited to, regulations governing construction or implementing the State Environmental Policy 
Act or the Shoreline Management Act.

117.80 125 Conflict

Notwithstanding the requirements of Section 117.120 above, To to the extent that any 
provision or provisions of this Chapter are inconsistent or in conflict with any other provision 
of the Zoning Code, Comprehensive Plan or any ordinance or regulation of the City, the 
provisions of this Chapter shall be deemed to control.  Personal wireless service facilities
PWSF are permitted in the City pursuant to this Chapter notwithstanding the fact they are not 
mentioned in the use zone charts in Chapters 15 through 65 KZC. 

117.60 130 Violations and City Remedies

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be subject to the 
provisions of Chapter 170 KZC, Code Enforcement.  In addition to fines, the City shall have 
the right to seek damages and injunctive relief for any and all violations of this Chapter and all 
other remedies provided at law or in equity. 

19



oe Kg** 

& 
'' HOUGHTON COMMUNITY COUNCIL '&. (  ., 

:Ao+ Special Joint Meeting With Planning Director 
9**tN~4 January 10, 2006 

1. Call to  Order and Roll Call 7:03 p.m. 
Members Present: Chair Rick Whitney, Hugh Givens, Bill Goggins, Betsy Pringle, and 
Elsie Weber. Absent/Excused: David Hess. James Nickle 

City Staff present: Eric Shields, Nancy Cox, Jon Regala; Robin Jenkinson, City 
Attorney; Kathi Anderson, City Clerk; Lynn Stokesbary, Assistant City Manager; Lt 
Hamilton, PD. 

Consultant Michael Bergstrom 

2. Oath o f  Office 
City Clerk Anderson administered the oath of office for each Councilmember 

3. Election o f  Officers 
Chair announced election of officers. Ms. Pringle nominated Hugh Givens who declined; she 
nominated Rick Whitney as Chair. Nominations closed. Passed unanimously. Ms. Weber 
nominated Bill Goggins for Vice Chair. Nominations closed by acclamation. Passed 
unanimously 

4. Reading andlor Approval of Minutes: 
a. November 28,2005 - It was moved and seconded that Council dispense with 

reading of the minutes. Passed unanimously. Corrections were noted: 
Page 3, top, make the following edit: In the case of a veto, the HCC is 
required to write Council a letter listing what revisions they require. 
Page 3 at the end of the bulleted items, add: Houghton Community Council 
offered to provide a subcommittee to meet with members of the Kirkland City 
Council to resolve differences. 

It was moved and seconded by that minutes are approved as revised. Passed unanimously. 

5. Announcement o f  Agenda 
Chair announced the agenda. 

6. Council Member Reports and Comments 
Ms. Weber mentioned that a neighborhood meeting was planned for the Yarrow Bay Marina 
office redevelopment on January 11. 

7. Work Program Review 

8. Requests from the Audience 
Don Goodwin, resident of Tent City 4, Temple B'nai Torah Bellevue - favors Staff 
regulations for legislation; has had a good relationship with the City of Kirkland. 



Houghton Community Council 
Special Joint Meeting With Planning Director 
January 10, 2006 

Leo Rhodes, resident of Tent City 4, Temple B'nai Torah Bellevue -the City of Kirkland 
has been very supportive and he thinks that the proposed legislation is great. 
Tom Sherrard, 558 2oth Avenue, Kirkland -when Tent City 4 was at his Methodist 
Church, it was a very positive experience; wants Council to consider the ordinance as 
proposed. 
Naomi Lombard, 10917 NE 66th PI, Kirkland -her church Kirkland Congregational 
hosted Tent City 4 and it was a very positive experience; she supports the 90-day limit 
of the encampment. 

Ms. Cox interjected that copies of all e-mails received on this subject have been distributed 
to everyone present. 

James Kimbrough, 12224 NE 8'h St, Bellevue - was the Tent City point person for his 
Woodinville church. He said that residents of Tent City take the Code of Conduct 
seriously; some residents of Tent City were asked to leave when the rules were broken. 
Margaret Schwender, 6556 116'~ PI NE, Kirkland - supports helping the homeless and 
is active in this endeavor. She supports the 90-day stay limitation and the proposed 
ordinance. 
Scott St Clair, 11704 NE 148'~ PI, Kirkland - submitted information (Exhibit I) about 
court documents that recount Tent City law violations; supports solutions to 
homelessness other than tent cities; wants more regulation of tent city activities. 

There being no further testimony, Chair closed audience participation on the homeless issue. 

9. Special Joint Hearing with Planning Director 7:31 p.m. 
A. Chapter 117 Kirkland Zoning Code - Personal Wireless Service Facilities 

(PWSF) Regulations - File No. IV-03-13 

Mr. Bergstrom gave a presentation as set forth in his December 27, 2005 memo to Eric 
Shields. The industry has had the last three weeks to review this information and raise 
questions that have not been brought to Staff as of yet. The memo shows a summary of other 
entities' regulations and also had attached photos of various PWSF. Mr. Bergstrom reviewed 
the 16 issues discussed in the memo. He said that the overriding concern is that the 
community's priorities be reflected in the ordinance. 

Ms. Pringle wanted clarification that all of the required information would be obtained from 
future applicants. Mr. Bergstrom said it would. He also explained about the use of "cubic" and 
"square" feet. He said that this is a holdover from the existing Code that uses cubic feet in 
residential zones and square feet in non-residential zones and "it works". 

On a question from Mr. Goggins, Mr. Bergstrom stated he will write a clarification of pole 
diameter restrictions. There was brief discussion on this issue. On Mr. Shields' question, Mr. 
Bergstrom clarified height limitations in residential zones. Mr. Shields spoke to the issue 
written as "modification of standards", that should read "exceptions to standards." Mr. 
Bergstrom will clarify that issue in the draft. 



Houghton Community Council 
Special Joint Meeting With Planning Direct01 
January 10,2006 

Council raised the question of protection in an area immediately adjacent to residential zone. 
Mr. Bergstrom stated that the review process requires notice to properties that touch within a 
300' radius of the external property boundaries of the proposed construction site. 

Mr. Shields observed that Council was beginning to get into discussion of the matter. The 
Chair called for public testimony. 

Gary Abrahams, 655 Crocket St, Unit B-107, Seattle feels staff and consultant has 
done a great job trying to make the Code better. He suggested some rewording for 
clarity. He wants the door left open for rooftop antennas. 

As there were no further comments from the audience, Chair closed the hearing as to public 
comment. 

Deliberations are continued to Council's regular meeting of January 23 to allow Mr. Bergstrom 
to take into consideration the input from the public. 

Council discussion with Mr. Bergstrom ensued. View blockage and the increased pole 
diameter issue were discussed as to ADA accessibility and aesthetic value. 

10. Unfinished Business 
A. Homeless Encampment Zoning Code Amendments to Chapter 127, File 

ZONO5-00028 

Ms. Weber reported that she was contacted by three Kirkland residents who are in favor of the 
regulations for Tent City 4. The Chair observed that there was correspondence from these 
residents in the packet. Ms. Cox said she has received 29 e-mails that she distributed to 
Council members along with a matrix of information from other jurisdictions. 

Ms. Pringle moved to recommend draft code amendments presented by Staff, seconded by 
Mr. Givens. Further discussion ensued. 

There was discussion regarding the fact that only churches have hosted tent cities to date. Ms. 
Weber recommends putting a limit on how many tent cities are allowed in Kirkland at one time. 
Ms. Jenkinson said that there is no guidance in Washington State as to how a court would 
consider that kind of limitation. Council discussion continued. On request of the Planning 
Commission, Ms. Cox contacted Kirkland Interfaith Network and Hopelink regarding the 
ordinance; she has not had a response to date. 

Mr. Goggins favors eliminating other community organizations as sponsors [other than 
churches] and limit encampments to 60 or 62 days as with any other temporary-use permit. 
Ms. Pringle favors 90 or 92 days duration every 12 months. The comment was made that the 
"safe" record for Tent City is a relatively short history. Lt. Hamilton answered questions as did 
Ms. Cox and Ms. Jenkinson. 



Houghton Community Council 
Special Joint Meeting With Planning Director 
January 10, 2006 

There was a call for the question. The following amendment was proposed: 

Eliminate communitv orqanizations other than churches as sponsors for Tent 
City encampments 

Council voted to amend the draft, with Ms. Weber opposing. 

MOTION: Recommend adoption of Staff's Draft code amendment on Homeless 
Encampments as amended: passed unanimously. 

11. New Business 8:52 p.m. 
None. 

12. Administrative Reports and Community Council Discussion 
None 

13. Adjournment 8:52 p.m. 

Rick Whitney, ~ h g ;  

Eric Shields, Planning Director 
Department of Planning and Community Development 

Recording Secretary: Marlene Eisele 



MEMORANDUM

To: Eric Shields, Planning Director 

Houghton Community Council 

From: Michael Bergstrom, Consultant 

Date: December 27, 2005 

Subject: Chapter 117 KZC – Personal Wireless Service Facilities Regulations, File No. IV-

03-13

I. RECOMMENDATION

Conduct a public hearing and make a recommendation to the City Council. 

II. BACKGROUND

On August 29, 2005 the Planning Director and Houghton Community Council conducted a public 

hearing on a draft ordinance that would replace the existing Chapter 117 KZC.  Due to several 

questions raised by industry representatives about that draft, the public hearing was closed and Staff 

was asked to work through some of those issues and return for another hearing on a future date. 

On September 19, Staff met with industry representatives to discuss their concerns.  We have 

prepared a new draft, dated December 23, which will be the subject of a public hearing on January 

10 (Attachment 1).  On December 15, Staff sent a memo to the industry representatives summarizing 

the changes in the draft.  Since the December 23 draft was still being refined at that time, they are 

receiving the actual draft at the same time as you. 

III. ISSUES

Following is a summary of the primary issues raised by the industry, plus one issue raised by the 

Community Council, and a description of how the December 23 draft responds to them: 

1. General Procedures:  Permit review procedures should more closely reflect the City’s locational 
priorities.  Make it as easy as possible to locate PWSF in non-residential areas and within rights-
of-way.

 The draft has been revised to add clarity and specificity as to what facility type goes through what 

process.  The table in 117.45 has been simplified, and shows a hierarchical review process 

reflecting the City’s priorities.  The table intends to prioritize co-location and use of existing 

support structures, particularly public or franchise structures (utility poles etc), and discourage 

new towers, particularly in residential zones. 

2. Prescriptive vs. Flexible Standards:  Be specific and clear in our standards, while providing 
flexibility through some alternate process or performance standards.  Be clear about what City 
will not allow.



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

December 27, 2005 

Page 2 

 In addition to 117.45 (which addresses antennas and towers), 117.70, 117.75, and 117.80 

provide standards for PWSF, Equipment Structures, and Screening.  The concealment and 

screening of these sections all provide flexibility (117.70.3, 117.75.8, 117.80.3). 

 This draft reduces and simplifies the required setbacks for towers and equipment structures (see 

items #12 and 13 below), making further flexibility unnecessary in most cases.  Additional 

flexibility can be achieved through Process IIB. 

 The only thing that the ordinance will expressly not allow is “cell-on-wheels” (117.30), except 

under narrow circumstances (117.25).  The proposed concealment provisions make it clear that 

appropriate materials and other concealment techniques will be dependent on the context of the 

location, and therefore no particular form of concealment or design is prohibited. 

3. Co-Location:  Ease the process for co-location in all areas.  Co-location should only require 
Planning Official decision.

 Co-location in nonresidential zones would be allowed as a Planning Official decision.  Co-location 

in residential zones, where there is no height increase, would be allowed through Process I.  Co-

location in residential zones with height increase would be reviewed through Process IIB. 

 In addition, attachment to water reservoirs, utility poles, or other support structures would be 

allowed in any zone as a Planning Official decision. 

4. Heirarchical Approach:  Consider establishing permit requirements based on specific zones (or 
groups of zones), rather than just “residential” and “non-residential”.

 This approach doesn’t work too well in Kirkland, given that the City has over 100 different zones.

However, this new draft would allow attachment of antennas to non-residential buildings in 

residential zones (Process I), and to multi-family residential buildings in any zone (Process IIA).  

For many types of facilities, there has been an overall reduction in required process. 

5. Residential Zone Locations:  Give preference (through standards, review process) to sites in 
residential zones used for non-residential purposes (schools etc).

 See response to item #4. 

6. Antenna Types:  Omni-directional antennae are passé.  Almost every installation these days 
consists of panels.  Code needs to reflect that fact.

 As long as omni-direction antennas continue to exist, the code needs to address them. 

7. Panel Antenna Provisions:  Panels should be allowed to be placed on rooftops, and to extend 
above rooflines when flush-mounted.  A height of 10’-15’ above the roofline is requested.

 Staff is not proposing any change to the prohibition of panel antennas placed on, or extending 

above, a roof.  However, it is noted that this is an issue with the industry, and can be discussed 

further at the public hearing.  The industry representatives have been invited to provide photos of 

typical rooftop installations. 

8. Tower Heights:  Allowable tower heights should be increased, at least in non-residential zones.
60’-70’ is suggested.



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

December 27, 2005 

Page 3 

 Similar to the previous (August) draft, the current draft proposes that towers greater than 40’ in 

height be reviewed through Process IIA, and in non-residential zones only.  Existing City code 

requires review through Process IIB, so this reflects some reduction in process. 

 As with rooftop antennas, it is noted that this is an issue with the industry, and can be discussed 

further at the public hearing. 

9. Industrial Zones:  Installation procedures and requirements should be eased in industrial zones 
(and possibly others).  Landscaping should not be required in industrial zones.

 Kirkland’s industrial areas are trending away from the typical “manufacturing” industrial areas, 

and more towards mixed-use areas.  The City’s industrial zones do not cover large geographic 

areas, and are therefore visible to surrounding non-industrial areas.  The draft ordinance contains 

flexibility for landscaping (117.80.3).  This Section has been revised to clarify that the City is not 

requiring buffering crossing property lines onto someone else’s property (there seemed to be 

some confusion about this with the August draft). 

10. Replacement Pole Diameter:  When utility (i.e., PSE) poles are replaced, allow them to be 
increased by 50% in diameter with no limit on diameter inches.  Address PSE poles separately 
from other pole types.  Could retain diameter inch limit on other pole types.

 The increase in pole diameter has been raised from 16” to 18” through Planning Official decision 

in any zone (117.45), to correspond with the 50% limitation.  Up to 100% or 24” could be 

proposed through Process I.  A greater increase would require Process IIA review.  PSE felt that 

these figures are workable. 

 The definition of “utility pole” (117.15.16) has been revised to separate out structures that are not 

typically understood by the public to be utility poles.  It now combines PSE poles with telephone 

poles etc.  A new term “other support structure” (117.15.11) has been added to address what the 

industry might refer to as “free standing structure”. 

11. Surrounding Opportunities Analysis:  Reduce the ¼ mile requirement of 117.45 to a lesser radius, 
perhaps 300, 400, or 500 feet.

 The new draft proposes no change to this requirement, except that is has been moved to 117.65.

It is noted that this is an issue with the industry, and can be discussed further at the public 

hearing.

12. Tower Setbacks:  The 1:1 ratio between tower height and setback is unworkable and should be 
reduced.

 The new draft no longer proposes the 1:1 ratio.  Instead, it proposes a setback of 20’ from any 

property line for towers up to 40’, plus an additional one-half foot setback for each additional 1 

foot of height (117.70.4). 

13. Equipment Structure Setbacks:  Use standard setbacks of the underlying zone, rather than the 
1:1 ratio.  Waive setback requirements for equipment structures contained in a legally established 
building or portion of a building (e.g., garage).

 These proposed setbacks have been revised.  However, using the standard setbacks of the 

underlying zone was problematic since each zone allows a variety of uses and each use has its 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

December 27, 2005 

Page 4 

own setback requirements.  The new draft proposes a 0’ setback for any equipment structure 30” 

or less in height, and a 10’ setback if greater than 30” in height.  Equipment structures contained 

in a legally established building would be exempt from these requirements (117.75.4). 

14. Equipment Structure Sizes:  Increase maximum allowable size from 500 cf to 840 cf.  Reduce 
allowable enclosure size from 500 sf to 120 sf.  This more reflects the dimensions and typical 
siting of equipment cabinets.

 The new draft makes these changes, except that the draft allows enclosure size of 125 sf, rather 

than the 120 suggested, to allow the occasional overage. 

15. Flexibility of Standards:  Give City the authority to vary certain standards where such would 
produce lesser visual impact, e.g., in 117.70.4.a, add the phrase “unless otherwise determined by 
the City that such a setback creates a greater visual impact… “

 This puts City staff in the awkward position of negotiating ordinance provisions without input from 

potentially affected parties.  Staff believes that, between the flexibility built into this draft, 

provisions for modification, and proposed setback reductions, sufficient provisions exist to 

address most challenges that might arise, and appropriately uses more formal processes for the 

greater challenges. 

16. Appeals:  Determine whether an appeal of a Planning Official decision should be available to just 
the applicant, or to “any affected party” (117.100) (note:  this was an issue raised by a member of 
the public hearing body, not by an industry representative).

 Based on input received after the August 29 hearing from the City Attorney, we are continuing to 

propose to limit the opportunity for appeal of Planning Official decisions to the applicant, and not 

broaden it to the general public.  This approach is consistent with appeal provisions for other 

Planning Official decisions in the Zoning Code. 

As can be seen from the above, there are some changes the industry would like to see that are not 

addressed by the December 23 draft.  These issues raise policy questions, and include panel 

antennas mounted on rooftops, allowing increased tower height (at least in non-residential zones), 

and reduction of the required ¼ mile review radius for new towers or increases of tower height in 

residential zones.  The Planning Director and Community Council can take input on these issues at 

the January 10 hearing and decide whether to change them.  Staff does not propose any changes at 

this time. 

IV. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN DECEMBER 23 AND AUGUST 5 DRAFTS

The differences between the new draft and the August draft are listed below.  Some of these are 

more fully described in Section III above: 

117.15 – Definitions:  Adds “Building” and “Other support structure”.  Modifies “Antenna height”, 

“Equipment structure”, “Existing structure”, “Replacement structure”, “Tower”, and “Utility pole”. 

117.20 – Applicability:  Revises provisions for “Existing Facilities” and “Other Wireless 

Communication Facilities”, to include GPS, and to clarify what types of replacement, additional, or 

reconfigured facilities are allowed. 

117.30 – Exemptions:  Allows temporary PWSF during construction of a permitted PWSF. 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

December 27, 2005 

Page 5 

117.40 – Co-Location Encouraged:  Removes unnecessary language; revises language pertaining to 

“evidence”.

117.45 – Application Review Process:  Removes unnecessary language; revises structure and 

content of table.  Adds attachment of antennas to non-residential buildings in residential zones 

(Process I) and multi-family buildings in any zone (Process IIA). 

117.50 – Pre-Submittal Meeting:  Removes ability of Planning Official to waive meeting. 

117.60 – Determination of Application Completeness – Clarifies time frame for determining 

completeness. 

117.65 – Third Party Review:  Minor wording changes; includes reference to Process IIA.

Incorporates ¼ mile radius review requirement that previously appeared in 117.45. 

117.70 – PWSF Standards – Setbacks (Sub 4):  Revises required setbacks for new towers (20’ up to 

40’ in height, plus ½’ setback for each additional 1’ in height). 

117.70 – PWSF Standards – Antennas On a Utility Pole (Sub 6):  Addresses non-residential zones. 

117.75 – Equipment Structure Standards – Maximum Size in Residential Zones (Sub 1):  Changes 

allowable sizes. 

117.75 – Equipment Structure Standards – Setbacks When Located on Private Property (Sub 4):

Changes/simplifies required setbacks. 

117.75 – Equipment Structure Standards – Equipment structures mounted on poles or towers (Sub 

6):  Adds reference to underlying utility owner. 

117.80 – Screening/Buffering (Sub 3):  Language clarified to avoid confusion about buffer locations. 

117.95 – Removal From City Property – When Required:  Adds “sale” of City-owned property as 

trigger for removal. 

V. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. Photos.  Several photos are attached to this memo.  Some of these were provided by Puget 

Sound Energy and do not necessarily depict facilities in Kirkland.  Others are provided by the City 

of Kirkland, and all facilities shown are located in the city.  The photos depict a variety of antenna 

and equipment structure installations, including utility pole attachments, ground-mounted 

equipment structure enclosures, rooftop panels, antennas on water reservoir, and building-

mounted panels.  We have suggested to the industry representatives that they provide additional 

photos of typical rooftop installations of panel antennas, since that is an issue of particular 

concern to them. 

2. Other Cities’ Regulations.  In the early stages of drafting this ordinance, Staff reviewed the 

ordinances of several other cities, including Bellevue, Burien, Edmonds, Leavenworth, and 

Pullman.  Staff has again reviewed these ordinances for the preparation of the December 23 

draft.  As was the case before, it is difficult to draw very many direct comparisons between the 

different regulations, due to differences in code structure, terminology, and review processes.

Still, the following highlights from each set of regulations may be helpful.  These are general 

observations, by no means exhaustive nor expert, and will not cover every facility type: 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

December 27, 2005 

Page 6 

a. Bellevue:  “Wireless Communication Facilities” (WCF) are exempt from land use review if 

they meet certain criteria.  They still must comply with code requirements, but are reviewed 

administratively.  Those that don’t meet the criteria are reviewed through a Conditional Use 

Permit process. 

 In most residential zones (R-20 and R-30, both multifamily zones, being the exceptions) WCF 

are not allowed on any residential structure, or on an undeveloped site in a residential zone, 

or on any site developed with a residential use.  In all residential zones, WCF are allowed on 

non-residential structures (schools, churches, etc) and in the right-of-way. 

 To be exempt from land use review, WCF located in the right-of-way can add no height to a 

utility support structure in a residential zone, and no more than 21 feet in a non-residential 

zone.  Outside of the right-of-way, WCF must be attached to an existing or replacement 

support structure, but the height cannot exceed the greater of the maximum allowable 

building height of the zone or the height of the structure to which it is attached or replaces.  In 

no case can the WCF add more than 15 feet to the support structure. 

 The foregoing are not the only criteria for land use review exemption, but they are the primary 

ones.  If any of the criteria are not met, the WCF must be reviewed as a Conditional Use 

Permit.  Under a CUP, the provider must show that the height requested is the “minimum 

height necessary”. 

 Bellevue establishes a hierarchy of preferred design:  (1) Attached to public facility structures, 

building mounted, or integrated with utility support structures; (2) Co-located on utility poles, 

light standards, signal supports, existing WCF support structures or existing communication, 

broadcast and relay towers, and (3) freestanding WCF support structures. 

b. Burien:  No special review process is required for (1) co-location of antennas on an existing 

support structure in a non-residential zone, (2) attachment of antennas to existing structures 

in certain industrial and commercial zones, or (3) attachment of antennas to existing or 

replacement ball field light standards, electrical transmission towers, water tanks, or existing 

utility poles in any zones. 

 A “Type 1” review is required to attach antennas to existing structures (but not single-family 

homes) in the O, SPA-1, SPA-2, SPA-3 ,DC, CI, RM, and RS zones.  A “Type 2” review is 

required for any PWSF not meeting the above criteria.

 Burien prohibits the following:  Lattice towers in all zones, new monopoles in the DC zone, 

and new monopoles in residential zones.  Burien also requires that new support structures be 

designed to accommodate antennas for more than one use, to reduce the number of future 

support structures. 

 Antennas are allowed on rooftops, but must be set back from the roof edge one foot for each 

foot of antenna height.  Whip antennas may extend 15 feet above the highest point of the 

structure, panels may extend 10 feet. 

 Monopoles are allowed to 100 feet in the CR and I zones; and to 60 feet in all other zones 

where monopoles are allowed (which does not include residential zones). 

 A replacement utility pole may not be more than 15 feet taller than the pole it replaces.

Panels may not project out more than 12 inches from the pole, and may not exceed six feet 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

December 27, 2005 

Page 7 

in height.  The top of the panel may not extend above the top of the pole.  PWSF located on a 

utility pole must be separated by at least 1000 feet from any other PWSF located on a utility 

pole in a residential zone. 

 Equipment enclosures for PWSF located on utility poles in residential zones must be placed 

underground or in an existing building (but not in a residence). 

c. Edmonds:  This code uses the terminology of “micro facilities”, “mini facilities”, “macro 

facilities”, “monopole I”, “monopole II”, and “lattice tower”, and provides standards for each.

The chapter that contains the regulations does not define these terms. 

 Micro facilities are permitted in all zones, but are subject to size and height limitations:

Antennas equal to or less than 4 feet in height (except omni-directional antennas which can 

be 6 feet) and with an area not more than 580 square inches are exempt from the underlying 

height requirements of the zone.  In an RS zone, a micro facility for a specific provider must 

be located at least 1,320 feet from other micro facilities of the same provider. 

 Mini facilities are permitted in all zones except RS, and may be located on buildings (except 

residential or residential-portions of buildings).  Omni-directional antennas may exceed the 

height limit of the zone by 10 feet.  Panels may exceed the height limit only if affixed to the 

side of an existing nonconforming building. 

 Macro facilities are permitted in all zones except RS, and may be located on buildings 

(except residential or residential-portions of buildings).  Omni-directional antennas may 

exceed the height limit of the zone by 15 feet.  Panels may exceed the height limit if affixed to 

the side of an existing building. 

 Monopole I facilities are only permitted in certain general commercial zones, business zones 

(BN, BC), and certain open space sites, subject to a Conditional Use Permit.  For the most 

part, they are not permitted in residential zones (RS and RM), commercial waterfront, open 

space, or public zones. Maximum height is 60 feet, but antennas may extend up to 15 feet 

above the pole. 

 Monopole II facilities and lattice towers are permitted only in certain general commercial 

zones.  They must be designed to accommodate two or more wireless communications 

facilities.  A monopole II or lattice tower that exceeds 150 feet in height and is located within 

300 feet of a residential zone or in certain public and open space sites require a Conditional 

Use Permit.  Antenna can exceed the 150 foot height by an additional 15 feet. 

d. Leavenworth:  A Design Permit and a Conditional Use Permit is required for all Wireless 

Telecommunications Facilities (WTF) in the city; towers are prohibited throughout the city. 

 The attachment of antennas and accessory equipment structures are allowed in all zones; 

location within the light industrial district, and attachment onto existing structures used for 

utility functions, is preferred over other locations.  Antennas can be located on or within new 

or existing buildings. 

 Only whip antennas can be attached to utility poles, and cannot exceed the height of the 

pole.  No pole can be extended in height to accommodate an antenna. 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

December 27, 2005 

Page 8 

 Antenna height must be the minimum amount necessary to function satisfactorily, and shall 

not exceed one-third greater than the average height of the structure to which it is attached.

Antennas and related equipment must conform with the setbacks of the underlying zone. 

 When mounted on buildings, panels must be flush-mounted and shall not extend above the 

wall or parapet unless required to achieve better compatibility with the building design or to 

obtain antenna function. 

 Roof-mounted dishes are allowed, subject to screening and locational standards (as close to 

center of the roof as possible). 

e. Pullman:  A “Wireless Communication Attached Facility” (a facility attached to an existing 

structure such as a building, tower, water tank), if less than or equal to 30 feet tall, is 

permitted in any zone.  If more than 30 feet tall, it is a conditional use in residential zones 

(plus one commercial zone), and permitted in other commercial and all industrial zones. 

 A “Wireless Communication Freestanding Facility” (tower), if less than or equal to 80 feet tall, 

is a conditional use in all zones except the most intense commercial zone and all industrial 

zones, where it is permitted.  If more than 80 feet tall, it is a conditional use in the afore-

mentioned commercial and industrial zones, but prohibited in residential zones and less-

intense commercial zones. 

 Freestanding facilities must be setback 15 feet from all property lines for towers up to 30 feet 

in height.  Beyond that height, one additional foot of setback is required for each 5 feet 

additional to height (an 80 foot tower would have a 25 foot setback from each property line).

Equipment structures must comply with the building setbacks of the underlying zone. 

 Antennas may be attached to buildings, except residential buildings. 

Staff did not rely heavily on any of the above regulations in developing the proposed changes.

Since most of the larger policy issues were debated prior to the adoption of the current 

regulations (general locational priorities, desirability and height of towers, rooftop attachment), 

the primary purpose of the current re-draft effort was to re-visit the existing regulations to see 

which could be removed and which need greater attention, restructure and reword sections of the 

chapter for the purposes of clarity, and more clearly address several issues that have required 

interpretation over the years.  Because the fundamental framework of the existing Chapter 117 is 

workable, we were not seeking a different model to follow. 

Copies of the above-referenced regulations can be made available to you upon request.

VI. CONCLUSION

 We believe that the enclosed draft successfully addresses the shortcomings of the current Chapter 

117.  It provides greater clarity throughout, adds provisions needed to make the chapter function 

properly (essentially Sections 117.95 – 110.120), resolves vagueries, and addresses the needs of 

both the community and the industry. 

 The enclosed draft is a “mark-up” draft, i.e., it contains strike-throughs of existing language to be 

deleted, and underlines of language to be added.  If you would like to receive a “clean” copy of the 

draft ordinance, i.e., how it would appear without the strike-throughs and underlines, and/or if you 

would like to receive a “clean” copy of the existing Chapter 117, contact Mike Bergstrom by e-mail at 

bergstrommike@msn.com and it will be sent to you. 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

December 27, 2005 

Page 9 

 We look forward to discussing this draft further with you on January 10, 2006. 

Attachments:  

1. December 23, 2005 Draft Ordinance – Chapter 117 KZC 

2. Photos 

cc: Kristi Park, Pacific Telecom Services 

 Andrew Nenninger, T-Mobile 

 Gary Abrahams, T-Mobile 

 Norris Bacho, IGWT Inc. 

 Tim Gasser, Puget Sound Energy 

 Nancy Cox, PCD 

 Stacy Clauson, PCD 

 Jon Regala, PCD 



DRAFT 12/23/05 

Chapter 117 - PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITIES 

NOTE:  This view of the draft ordinance displays the proposed text changes between the existing Chapter 
117 KZC and the proposed ordinance.  Existing text that would be deleted is marked with a strike-through 

(this is an example) and new proposed wording is highlighted by an underline (this is an example),
subject to further revision resulting from the public review process. 

Sections: 
117.05 User Guide
117.10 Policy Statement
117.05 15 Definitions
117.15 20 New and Existing Facilities Applicability
117.65 Other Wireless Communications Facilities   
117.25 Exemptions       
117.30 Prohibited Devices
117.55 35 Permit Requiredment
117.25 40 Co-Location Encouraged
117.20 45 Priority of Locations Application Review Process
117.50 Pre-Submittal Meeting
117.45 55 Application Requirements
117.60 Determination of Application Completeness
117.50 65 Third Party Review
117.30 70 Design PWSF Standards 
117.75 Equipment Structure Standards
117.35 80 Landscaping/Buffering Screening
117.70 85 Modifications of Chapter Provisions
117.40 90 Non-Use/Abandonment 
117.95 Removal From City Property - When Required
117.75 100 Appeals and Judicial Review
117.105 Lapse of Approval
117.110 Complete Compliance Required
117.115 Time Limit
117.120 Compliance With Other City Codes
117.80 125 Conflict
117.60 130 Violations and City Remedies

117.05 User Guide

This Chapter establishes the conditions under which Personal Wireless Service Facilities 
(PWSF) may locate and operate in different areas of the city.  The provisions of this Chapter 
add to and in some cases supersede the other regulations of this code.  If you wish to install, 
operate, or alter PWSF in Kirkland, you should read the provisions of this Chapter.

117.10 Policy Statement

The City has received requests to site towers and antennas.  The purpose of this Chapter is 
to provide specific regulations for the placement, construction, modification and removal of 
personal wireless service facilities PWSF.  Pursuant to the guidelines of Section 704 of the 
Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, 47 USC, Chapter 5, Subchapter III, Part I, Section 
332(c)(7), the provisions of this Chapter are not intended to and shall not be interpreted to 
prohibit or to have the effect of prohibiting the provision of personal wireless services, nor 
shall the provisions of this Chapter be applied in such a manner as to unreasonably 
discriminate among providers of functionally equivalent personal wireless services.   

1



1. The goals of this Chapter are to:   

(i) a. eEncourage the location of towers in nonresidential areas and to minimize the 
total number of tall towers throughout the City,  

(ii) b. eEncourage the joint use of existing tower sites,  

(iii) c. eEncourage users of towers and antennas to locate them, to the extent possible, 
in areas where the impact on the City is minimal,  

(iv) d. eEncourage users of towers and antennas to configure them in a way that 
minimizes the visual impact of the towers and antennas,  

(v) e. sStrongly encourage the providers of personal wireless services to use 
concealment technology,  

(vi) f. pProvide standards for the siting of personal wireless service facilities PWSF and 
other wireless communications facilities (such as television and AM/FM radio 
towers), and  

(vii)g. fFacilitate the ability of the providers of personal wireless services to provide 
such services throughout the City quickly, effectively and efficiently.   

h. Prioritize the location of PWSF on existing structures such as ball field lights, 
transmission towers, utility poles or similar structures, particularly when located 
on public property.

2. Accordingly, the City Council finds that the promulgation of this Chapter is warranted 
and necessary to:

1 a. To mManage the location of towers and antennas in the City; 

2 b. To pProtect residential areas and other land uses from potential adverse impacts 
of towers and antennas; 

3 c. To mMinimize visual impacts of towers and antennas through careful design, 
siting, landscaping, screening, innovative camouflaging techniques and 
concealment technology; 

4 d. To aAccommodate the growing need for towers and antennas; 

5 e. To pPromote and encourage shared use and co-location on existing towers as a 
desirable option rather than construction of additional single-use towers; and 

6 f. To aAvoid potential damage to adjacent properties through engineering and 
proper siting of personal wireless service facilities PWSF.

117.05 15 Definitions

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them 
below: 

1. "Antenna" shall mean any exterior apparatus designed for telephonic, radio, data, 
Internet or other communications through the sending and/or receiving of radio 
frequency signals including, but not limited to, equipment attached to a tower, pole, 

2



light standard, building or other structure for the purpose of providing personal wireless 
services and its attendant base station.  Types of antennas include: 

a. An "omni-directional antenna" receives and transmits radio frequency signals in a 
360-degree radial pattern.  For the purposes of this chapter, a

b. A "whip antenna" is an omni-directional antenna that is up to 15 feet in height 
and up to four inches in diameter.   

b. c. A "directional or panel antenna" receives and transmits radio frequency signals in 
a specific directional pattern of less than 360 degrees. 

2. "Antenna height" shall mean the vertical distance measured from average building 
elevation to the highest point of the antenna, or if on a rooftop or other structure, from 
the top of the roof or structure to the highest point of the antenna.  For replacement 
structures, antenna height is measured from the top of the existing structure to the 
highest point of the antenna or new structure, whichever is greater. Measurement of 
antenna height shall include the base pad, support structure, antenna, lightning rods, 
and other appurtenances.

3. “Building” shall mean a roofed structure used or intended for human occupancy.

3 4. "Cell site" shall mean a tract or parcel of land or building that contains the personal 
wireless service facilities PWSF including any antenna, antenna support structure, 
accessory buildings, and parking, and may include other uses associated with and 
ancillary to personal wireless services. 

4 5. "Co-location" shall mean the use or placement of PWSF a common personal wireless 
service facility or on a tower by two or more personal wireless service providers or by 
one personal wireless service provider for more than one type of communication 
technology. 

5 6. "Equipment structure" shall mean a facility, shelter, cabinet or vault used to house and 
protect the electronic or other associated equipment necessary for processing wireless 
communications signals.  “Associated equipment” may include, for example, air 
conditioning, backup power supplies, and emergency generators. 

6 7. "Existing structure" shall mean, but is not limited to, any existing building, electrical 
transmission tower, flagpole, light standard, utility pole, water tank reservoir, other 
support structure, and structures accessory structures thereto. 

7 8. "FAA" shall mean the Federal Aviation Administration. 

8 9. "FCC" shall mean the Federal Communications Commission. 

9 10. "Nonresidential" or "nonresidential zone" shall mean (1) all portions of the City 
(including rights-of-way adjacent thereto, measured to the centerline of the right-of-
way) in an area not zoned residential as defined in this Chapter, or (2) the I-405 or SR 
520 right-of-way. 

11. “Other support structure” shall mean a structure used to support PWSF or equipment 
structures, excluding buildings, utility poles, and water reservoirs.  Examples of “other 
support structure” include flagpoles and ballfield light standards,

10 12. "Personal wireless services" and "personal wireless service facilities" (PWSF), as 
used in this Chapter, shall be defined in the same manner as in Title 47, United States 

3



Code, Chapter 5, Subchapter III, Part I, Section 332(c)(7)(C), as they may be amended 
now or in the future. 

13. “Replacement structure” shall mean a structure that replaces or is intended to replace 
an existing structure of a similar design and similar primary purpose, to enable the 
installation of new or additional PWSF on that structure.  If a “replacement structure” 
meets the definition of “tower”, it shall be regulated as a new tower.

11 14. "Residential" shall mean portions of the City in the following zones:  RS 35; RSX 
35; RS 12.5; RSX 12.5; RS 8.5; RSX 8.5; RS 7.2; RSX 7.2; RS 5.0; RSX 5.0; RM 5.0; 
RM 3.6; RM 2.4; RM 1.8; WD I; WD II; WD III; PLA 1; PLA 2; PLA 5A, D, E; PLA 6A, C, 
D, E, F, H, I, J, K; PLA 7A, B, C; PLA 9; PLA 15B; PLA 16; PLA 17; and P; and rights-
of-way adjacent thereto, measured to the centerline of the right-of-way.

12 15. "Tower" shall mean any structure that is designed and constructed primarily for 
the purpose of supporting one or more antennas, including any antenna support 
structure, self-supporting lattice towers or monopole towers. , and does not include 
utility poles

16. “Utility pole” shall mean a structure designed and used primarily for the support of 
electrical wires, telephone wires, television cable, traffic signals, or lighting for streets, 
parking areas, or pedestrian paths.

117.15 20 New and Existing Facilities Applicability

1. New Facilities Antennas and Towers – All new personal wireless service facilities, 
including without limitation antennas and towers, shall comply with this Chapter unless 
the applicant had a vested application to site a personal wireless service facility said
PWSF under a prior version of this code chapter, or unless specifically exempted by 
KZC 117.25.

2. Existing Facilities Antennas and Towers –  
a. All personal wireless service facilities, including without limitation existing

antennas and towers, shall be allowed to continue their usage as they presently
exist as of the effective date of this Cchapter.  Routine maintenance and 
reconfiguration of antennas shall be permitted on such existing antennas and 
towers, subject to the limitations below.   

b. However, aAny reconfiguration pursuant to paragraph (a) above that increases 
the height or number of antennas height shall be treated like and processed as a 
new facility. 

c. Existing antennas that conform to the provisions of this chapter may be replaced 
by new antennas, if such new antennas are approved as a minor modification 
pursuant to KZC 117.110.

d. The replacement of existing antennas that do not conform to the provisions of 
this chapter shall be treated and processed as a new facility.

e. The replacement of an existing tower, whether that tower conforms or does not 
conform to the provisions of this chapter, shall be treated and processed as a 
new facility.

3. Equipment Structures –
a. Existing equipment structures shall be allowed to continue their usage as they 

exist as of the effective date of this Chapter.  Routine maintenance,
reconfiguration of, or additions to equipment structures shall be permitted, 
subject to the limitations below.

b. Existing equipment structures may be replaced, and new equipment structures 
may be added to an approved antenna and/or tower, provided that the new 

4



equipment structures conform with the provisions of this chapter, and are 
approved as a minor modification pursuant to KZC 117.110

c. Reconfiguration or addition of equipment structures that increases the size of the 
equipment structure enclosure shall be treated and processed as a new facility.

d. Reconfiguration of or additions to a non-approved antenna or tower are not 
permitted, unless the entire facility obtains approval as a new facility through the 
appropriate review process.

4. 117.65 Other Wireless Communication Facilities - All of the provisions of this Chapter, 
which address personal wireless services and personal wireless service facilities
PWSF, shall also be deemed to cover other wireless communications facilities (and, in 
particular, but without limitation, television, satellite radio, global positioning systems 
(GPS), and AM/FM radio towers) to the maximum extent allowed by law. 

117.25 Exemptions

The following are exempt from the provisions of this Chapter and shall be permitted in all 
zones, subject to any other applicable provisions of this Code:

1. Temporary PWSF during an emergency declared by the City.

2. Temporary PWSF located on the same site as, and during the construction of, a 
permanent PWSF for which appropriate permits have been granted.

3. Licensed amateur (ham) radio stations.

4. Satellite dish antennas less than two meters in diameter when located in non-
residential zones, and satellite dish antennas less than one meter in diameter when 
located in residential zones, including direct to home satellite services, when used as 
an accessory use of the property.

117.30 Prohibited Devices

Except as exempted pursuant to KZC 117.25, PWSF that are not permanently affixed to a 
support structure and which are capable of being moved from location to location (e.g., “Cell 
on Wheels”) are prohibited.

117.55 35 Permit Requirement Required

In all instances, a permit must be obtained from the City before any personal wireless service 
facilities PWSF may be constructed on any public or private land or right-of-way, including I-
405, SR 520, and the Burlington Northern Railroad right-of-way, within the City limits.

117.25 40 Co-Location Encouraged

To minimize potential adverse visual impacts associated with towers, co-location of antennas 
by more than one provider on personal wireless service towers shall take precedence over 
the construction of new personal wireless service towers.  Providers are encouraged, by the 
opportunity for expedited review as provided in this Chapter, to co-locate antennas onto 
personal wireless service towers.  Unless the applicant has shown by substantial evidence 
that it has made a good faith effort to mount the antenna on an existing personal wireless 
service tower evidence that the attempt was spatially, structurally, or technically infeasible,
the City may deny the application to construct a new personal wireless service tower. 

117.20 45 Priority of Locations Application Review Process

5



1. An application to site a personal wireless service facility PWSF shall be subject
processed according to the criteria contained in the table below, after the applicant has
satisfied the pre-submittal meeting requirements of KZC 117.50.  Only when the application 
does not meet a criteria shall the next group of criteria be considered.  The hierarchy of 
criteria is divided into three separate approval processes:  administrative decision, Process I 
permit and Process IIB permit.  The order of criteria for locating personal wireless service 
facilities shall be as follows:

Review Process Facility Type 
1

a)  Co-location of antennas on existing towers in nonresidential 
zones.

b)  Attachment of antennas to existing (but not replacement) 
buildings or mechanical equipment enclosures in a nonresidential 
zone.

c)  Attachment of antennas to existing water reservoirs, utility poles, 
or other support structures in any zone.

2

1. Planning Official 
Decision

d)  Attachment of antennas to replacement utility poles in any zone, 
where the diameter of the replacement pole will not exceed the 
diameter of the existing pole by more than 50% or 18 inches, 
whichever is less.

2

a)  Co-location of antennas on existing towers in residential zones, 
not resulting in any increase to tower height.

b)  New towers in nonresidential zones, not exceeding 40 feet in 
height.

c)  Attachment of antennas to replacement utility poles in any zone, 
where the diameter of the replacement pole will not exceed the
diameter of the existing pole by more than 100% or 24 inches, 
whichever is less.

2

2. Process I Permit

d)  Attachment of antennas to non-residential buildings, such as
schools or churches, in residential zones.

3

a)  New towers in nonresidential zones, exceeding 40 feet in height.

b)  Attachment of antennas to replacement buildings or mechanical 
equipment enclosures in non-residential zones.

c)  Attachment of antennas to replacement utility poles in any zone, 
where the diameter of the replacement pole will exceed the 
diameter of the existing pole by more than 100% or 24 inches, 
whichever is less.

3. Process IIA 
Permit

d)  Attachment of antennas to multi-family residential buildings in 
any zone.

3

a)  Co-location of antennas on existing towers in residential zones
resulting in an increase in tower height.

3

b)  New towers in residential zones, not exceeding 40 feet in height.
3

c)  Modification of standards contained in this Chapter, subject to the 
limitations of KZC 117.85.

4. Process IIB 
Permit

d)  Any facility that does not qualify for review as a Planning Official 
decision, Process I permit, or Process IIA permit as listed above.

3

Footnotes:
1 Although this table specifically addresses antennas and towers, it is presumed that for each 

facility there will be associated equipment structures, and there may be structural alterations to 
existing support structures.  Such equipment structures and structural alterations shall be 
reviewed through the same process as the facility with which they are associated, subject to 
the limitations of KZC 117.20.

2 Attachment of antennas to existing water reservoirs or other support structures, or to existing 
or replacement utility poles, where such attachment results in a height increase to the original
support structure, may be approved only once through the review process indicated.  Any 

6



subsequent proposal that would result in a height increase shall be reviewed through Process 
IIB.

3 If in a residential zone, the applicant shall demonstrate that a diligent effort has been made to 
locate the proposed facility in a nonresidential zone, and that due to valid considerations 
including physical constraints or technological feasibility, no other location is available.

a.  Administrative
     Decision

1)  Co-location of antennas on personal wireless service towers in nonresidential zones.
2)  Attachment of antennas to existing structures in nonresidential zones:

Whip antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum of 15 feet, and 
other omni-directional antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum 
of 10 feet;

Otherwise, facilities may be mounted on one or more building facades or on 
one or more sides of a mechanical equipment enclosure; and

All appurtenances and screening (including personal wireless service facilities) 
may not exceed 5% of the total roof area of a building and/or 5% of any façade 
of a building.

3)  Equipment structures may not exceed 500 cubic feet with a 5-foot height limit in           
residential zones.

4)  Antennas may be attached to ball field light standards, electrical transmission 
towers, water tanks or existing utility poles in residential zones.  Whip antennas may 
exceed the structure height by a maximum of 15 feet and other antennas may 
exceed the structure height by a maximum of 10 feet.

b.  Process I
     Permit

1)  New personal wireless service towers and associated equipment in nonresidential 
zones:

Located at least a distance equal to 100% of antenna height from any property 
line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or residential zone;

Antenna height is a maximum of 40 feet.
2)  Attachment of antennas to existing structures in nonresidential zones:

Whip antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum of 15 feet, and 
other omni-directional antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum 
of 10 feet;

Otherwise, facilities may be mounted on one or more building facades or on 
one or more sides of a mechanical equipment enclosure; and

All appurtenances and screening (including personal wireless service facilities) 
may not exceed 10% of the total roof area of a building and/or 10% of any 
façade of a building.

c.  Process IIB
     Permit

1)  Any personal wireless service facility that is unable to meet the preceding priority of 
locational criteria for an administrative decision or Process I permit; see also KZC 
117.70.

2. Further Process IIB Permit Requirements – An applicant for a new facility to be located 
in a residential zone shall demonstrate that a diligent effort has been made to located 
the proposed facility in a nonresidential zone, and that due to valid considerations 
including physical constraints, or technological feasibility, no other location is available.  
The personal wireless services provided is required to demonstrate that it contacted the 
landowners or owners of structures in excess of 30 feet within a one-quarter mile radius 
of the site proposed, asked for permission to build the personal wireless service tower 
or install the antenna on an existing structure, and was denied.  The information 
submitted by the applicant shall include a map of the area to be served by the facility, 
its relationship to other sites in the applicant’s network, and an evaluation of existing 
available land, and buildings and structures taller than 30 feet within one-quarter mile of 
the proposed site.

117.50 Pre-Submittal Meeting

7



Before an application requiring review through Planning Official Decision, Process I, Process 
IIA, or Process IIB will be accepted for processing, the applicant shall attend a pre-submittal 
meeting with the Planning Official, as required by KZC 145.12, 150.12, or 152.12.

117.45 55 Application Requirements

a. In the course of reviewing any request for any approval required under this Chapter 
made by an applicant to install personal wireless service facilities, tThe City shall act 
within a reasonable period of time on a complete application submitted pursuant to this 
Chapter, taking into account the nature and scope of the request, after an application 
has been determined to be complete.  Any decision to deny such a request shall be in 
writing and supported by substantial evidence contained in a written record. 

b. All applications required pursuant to this Chapter for administrative decision, Process I 
and Process IIB permits to locate a personal wireless service facility (including, but 
without limitation, an antenna or tower in the City) shall be made using forms provided 
by submitted to the Planning Department and shall be accompanied by the information 
and support materials identified on said forms.with the applicable requested information 
(depending upon the type of facility which is involved).  A detailed plan that complies 
with the submittal requirements of this Chapter, and other regulations and ordinances 
of the City, along with other pertinent information requested by the City shall also be 
submitted.  An applicant's submission may utilize any combination of site plans, 
surveys, maps, technical reports or written narratives necessary to convey the following 
information depending upon the type of facility which is involved:

1. All applicants must register their request with the City on a form provided by the City at 
the time of building permit or right-of-way use permit application.

2. A scaled site plan clearly indicating the location, type and height of the proposed tower, 
antennas, on-site land uses and zoning, adjacent land uses and zoning, adjacent 
roadways, proposed means of access, setbacks from property lines, elevation drawings 
of the proposed tower, the equipment structure, fencing, buffering and the type of 
concealment technology which will be utilized.  The full, detailed site plan shall not be 
required if the antenna is to be mounted on an existing structure.

3. Photosimulations of the proposed facility from affected residential properties and public 
rights-of-way.

4. A current map and/or aerial photograph showing the location of the proposed tower.

5. Legal description of the parcel, if applicable.

6. Approximate distance between the proposed tower and antennas, as applicable, and 
the nearest residential unit, or residentially zoned properties.

7. Information of sufficient detail to demonstrate that the equipment structure is the 
minimum size necessary.

8. A landscape plan showing specific landscape, screening and fencing materials.

9. A notarized letter signed by the applicant stating that the personal wireless service 
facilities PWSF will comply with all applicable federal and state laws, including 
specifically FCC and FAA regulations, and all City codes.

8



10. A notarized letter signed by the applicant stating that the antenna usage will not 
interfere with other adjacent or neighboring transmission or reception communications 
signals.

11. Manufacturers information indicating compliance with adopted noise standards.

12. The personal wireless services provider must demonstrate that it is licensed by the 
FCC, if required to be licensed under FCC regulations.

13. The applicant, if not the personal wireless services provider, shall submit proof of a 
lease agreement with an FCC-licensed personal wireless services provider if such 
provider is required to be licensed by the FCC.

14. Propagation maps shall be provided showing that the tower and antennas are required 
for present and future network coverage in order to satisfy the requirements of the 
provider's grid system.  The maps shall also demonstrate that the height specified is 
the minimum height necessary for the tower and antennas, as applicable.  The maps 
shall additionally show coverage areas at the requested height and at lower heights.  
Finally, they shall show the neighboring or regional facilities with which the facilities in 
the City can communicate.

15. If the site is within or adjacent to a residential zone, then a study shall be provided 
showing why alternative locations are not acceptable.

16. All providers shall submit satisfactory evidence that the facility is designed for and will 
provide services primarily for residents of the City and/or visitors within City limits.

17. See also KZC 117.40(2), Further Process IIB Permit Requirements, and KZC 117.55, 
Third Party Review.

117.60 Determination of Application Completeness

1. Planning Official Decisions:  Within 28 calendar days after the date of submittal of the 
application, the Planning Official shall determine whether the application is complete.  If 
the application is not complete, the Planning Official shall identify and communicate the 
needed components to the applicant.  Once the application is complete, the Planning 
Official shall process the application.

2. Process I, Process IIA, and Process IIB Permits:  The determination of completeness 
for Process I, Process IIA, and Process IIB permit applications shall occur pursuant to 
the process set forth in Chapters 145, 150, and 152 KZC, respectively.

117.50 65 Third Party Review

In certain instances (including all particularly Process IIA and IIB permit applications) there 
may be a need for expert review by a third party of the technical data submitted by the 
personal wireless services provider applicant.  The City may require such a technical review, 
to be paid for by the applicant. for the personal wireless service facilities.  The selection of the 
third party expert shall be by mutual agreement between the applicant and the City, and such 
agreement not to be unreasonably withheld by either party.  The third party expert shall have 
recognized training and qualifications in the field of radio frequency engineering. 

The expert review is intended to be a site-specific review of technical aspects of the personal 
wireless services, facilities, and other matters as described herein, and not a subjective 
review of the site selection.  In particular, but without limitation, the expert shall be entitled to 
provide a recommendation on the height of the proposed facilities relative to the applicant's 

9



coverage objectives and system design parameters.  Such a review should address the 
accuracy and completeness of the technical data, whether the analysis techniques and 
methodologies are legitimate, the validity of the conclusions, and any specific technical 
issues outlined by the City or other interested parties.   

To facilitate the expert review, an applicant for a Process IIB permit for a new tower in a 
residential zone, or for the co-location of antennas on existing towers in residential zones 
resulting in an increase in tower height, the applicant shall submit a map of the area to be 
served by the facility, its relationship to other sites in the applicant’s network, and an 
evaluation of existing available land and buildings and structures taller than 30 feet within ¼ 
mile of the proposed site.  The applicant shall demonstrate that he/she contacted the 
landowners or owners of structures taller than 30 feet within a ¼ mile radius of the proposed
site, and was denied permission by those owners to locate the facility on their land or their 
structures.

Based on the results of the third party review, the City may require changes to the application 
for the personal wireless service facilities that to comply with the recommendations of the 
expert.

117.30 70 Design PWSF Standards

1. Context - The location and design of a cell sites in the City shall consider the its visual 
and physical impact of the site on the surrounding neighborhood and shall, to the 
extent feasible, reflect the context within which it is located.

2. Design Compatibility - Facilities PWSF shall be architecturally compatible with the 
surrounding buildings and land uses or otherwise integrated, through location, and
design, and/or concealment technology, to blend in with the existing characteristics of 
the site and streetscape to the maximum extent practical. 

3. Concealment Technology. - Concealment technology applies to all personal wireless 
service facilities, including, without limitation, antennas, towers and equipment 
structures. For any facility, “concealment technology” means the use of both existing 
and future technology through which a personal wireless service facility is designed to 
resemble an object which is already present in the local environment, such as a tree, 
streetlight, or traffic signal.  It also includes:  Typical PWSF concealment measures are 
identified herein, and shall be employed unless the City determines through the 
applicable review process that alternative measures would be more appropriate given 
the contextual setting of the PWSF:

a. For personal wireless service towers: 

 If within an existing stand of trees, "concealment technology" means that the 
tower is to shall be painted a dark color, is and be made of wood or metal., and 
that a A greenbelt easement is required to ensure permanent retention of the 
surrounding trees. 

"Concealment technology" for  t Towers in a more open setting means that they 
must shall have a backdrop (for example, but not limited to, trees, a hillside, or a 
structure) on at least two sides, be a compatible color with the backdrop, be 
made of compatible materials with the backdrop, and that provide architectural or 
landscape screening be provided for the other two remaining sides.  If existing 
trees are the backdrop, then a greenbelt easement is required to ensure 
permanent retention of the surrounding trees. 

10



In all cases wWhere a greenbelt easement is required, it shall be the minimum 
necessary to provide screening and may be removed at the landowner's request 
in the event the facility is removed. 

 Antennas shall be integrated into the design of any personal wireless service
tower to which they are attached.  External projections from the tower shall be 
limited to the greatest extent technically feasible. 

b. For rooftop antennas or antennas mounted on other structures: 

For o Omni-directional antennas mounted on the roof 15 feet or less above the 
roof, "concealment technology" means use shall be of a color compatible with the 
roof, structure or background. 

For o Other antennas, "concealment technology" means shall use of compatible 
colors and architectural screening or other techniques approved by the City. 

 Antennas shall be integrated into the design of any existing structure or support
the structure to which they are attached.  External projections from the existing
structure or support structure shall be limited to the greatest extent technically 
feasible. 

c. For a Antennas mounted on one or more building facades:  "Concealment 
technology" means shall (a) use of color and materials such that the facility has
to provide architectural compatibility with the building; It shall (b) be mounted on 
a wall of an existing building in a configuration as flush to the wall as technically 
possible; and shall (c) not project above the wall on which it is mounted. 

d. For equipment structures: "Concealment technology" means locating within a 
building, or if on top of a building, with architecturally compatible screening. An 
underground location, or locating above ground with a solid fence and 
landscaping, is also considered concealment technology.

d. Where feasible, cable and or conduit shall be routed through the inside of the 
support structure.  Where this is not feasible, or where such routing would result 
in a support structure of a substantially different design or substantially greater 
diameter than that of other similar structures in the vicinity or would otherwise 
appear out of context with its surroundings, the City may allow or require that the 
cable or conduit be placed on the outside of the support structure.  The outside 
cable or conduit shall be the color of the support structure, and the City may 
require that the cable be placed in conduit.

e. Alternative measures for concealment may be proposed by the applicant and 
approved by the City, if the City determines through the applicable review 
process of that the optional measures will be at least as effective in concealing 
the PWSF as the measures required above.

f. Nonwithstanding the above, the manner of concealment for any PWSF that 
requires approval through Process IIA or Process IIB shall be reviewed and 
determined as part of that Process.

4. Setbacks - Ground-mounted personal wireless service facilities shall be located at least 
a distance equal to 100 percent of antenna height from any property line adjacent to or 
across the street from a residential use or residential zone; and a minimum of 10 feet 
from any property line adjacent to or across the street from all other uses or zones.
The following regulations apply, except for structures located in public right-of-way:

11



a. New towers shall be setback a minimum of 20 feet from any property line, plus 
an additional one-half foot for each foot of tower height above 40 feet.

b. Replacement structures intended to accommodate a PWSF shall be setback at 
least the same distance as the original structure from any property line adjacent 
to or across the street from a residential use or residential zone; and the lesser of
ten (10) feet or the distance of the original structure from any property line 
adjacent to or across the street from all other uses or zones.

9 5. Tower and Antenna Height - The applicant shall demonstrate that the tower and 
antenna are the minimum height required to function satisfactorily.  Personal wireless 
service towers shall not exceed 40 feet in residential zones, as measured from the 
Average Building Elevation at the tower base to the highest point of the tower, antenna, 
or other physical feature attached to or supported by the tower.

6. Antennas On a Utility Pole - Antennas mounted to an existing or replacement utility 
pole may not project higher than 15’ above the top of a pole not used to convey 
electrical service, or more than 15’ above the electrical distribution or transmission 
conductor if the pole is used to convey electrical service; provided, that in 
nonresidential zones the antenna may project up to 21’ above an electrical
transmission conductor.

10 7. Antennas On or Above a Structure Building, Mechanical Equipment Enclosure, or
Water Reservoir - Antennas and equipment structures on or above a structure shall be 
subject to the following criteria:

a. Antenna and equipment structure height is measured above the top of the roof, 
not from the parapet or from the Average Building Elevation of the building, 
mechanical equipment enclosure, or water reservoir.

b. Only omni-directional antennas may be roof-mounted, but may not be mounted 
on top of rooftop appurtenances.  No panel or directional antennas may be 
mounted on roofs or project above the roofline.  The “roofline” of a water 
reservoir that incorporates a curved roof shall be the point at which the vertical 
wall of the water reservoir ends and the curvature of the roof begins.

c. Whip antennas may exceed the structure height by 15 feet, and other omni-
directional antennas may exceed the structure height by 10 feet.

c d. All rRoof-mounted antennas must be set back from the edge of the roof a 
distance equal to 100 percent of antenna height. 

d. Roof-mounted antennas and equipment structures shall be incorporated into the 
pitched or stepped roof form, and not appear as a separate penthouse or box.

e. Roof-mounted antennas shall be consolidated and centered in the roof to the 
maximum extent feasible rather than scattered. 

f. Antennas may be attached to an existing conforming mechanical equipment 
enclosure which projects above the roof of the building, but may not project any 
higher than the enclosure. 

g. In no instance shall equipment structures, antenna and related equipment Except
for PWSF installed in an existing rooftop penthouse, PWSF shall occupy no more 

12



than 25 10 percent of the total roof area of a building.  Rooftop conduit shall be 
excluded from this calculation.

h. Building parapets or other architectural features shall not be increased in size or 
height solely for the purpose of facilitating the attachment of PWSF components.

h. 8. Historic or Landmark Locations - No antennas shall be permitted on property designed 
as a historic resource or community landmark as identified in the Comprehensive Plan, 
unless such antennas have been approved in accordance with design requirements 
pertaining to historic structures. 

i. 9. Signal Interference - No antennas shall cause localized interference with the 
transmission or reception of any other communications signals including, but not limited 
to, public safety signals, and television and radio broadcast signals. 

j. 10. Support Wires - No guy or other support wires shall be used in connection with 
antennas, antenna arrays or support structures except when required by the IBC. UBC
to anchor the antennas, antenna arrays or support structures.

5 11. Views - Personal wireless service facilities PWSF, including towers, must be located 
and oriented in such a way as to minimize view blockage. 

6 12. Lights, Signals and Signs - No signals, lights or signs shall be permitted on towers 
unless required by the FCC or the FAA. 

7. Equipment Structures - (moved to 117.75, below).

13. Noise – The installation and operation of PWSF shall comply with the noise standards 
set forth in KZC 115.95.

8 14. Federal Requirements - All towers and antennas PWSF must meet or exceed current 
standards and regulations of the FAA, the FCC and any other agency of the federal 
government with the authority to regulate towers and antennas.  If such standards and 
regulations are changed, then the owners of the towers and antennas governed by this 
Chapter PWSF shall bring such towers and antennas PWSF into compliance with such 
revised standards and regulations changes in accordance with the compliance 
deadlines and requirements of such standards and regulations changes.  Failure to 
bring towers and antennas into compliance with such revised standards and 
regulations shall constitute grounds for the removal of the tower or antenna at the 
owner's expense.  Additionally, IIf, upon inspection, the City concludes that a tower
PWSF fails to comply with such regulations and standards and constitutes a danger to 
persons or property, then, upon notice being provided to the owner of the tower PWSF,
the owner shall have 30 days to bring such tower PWSF into compliance with such 
standards and regulations.  If the owner fails to bring such tower PWSF into 
compliance within said 30 days, the City may remove such tower PWSF at the owner's 
expense. 

7  117.75 Equipment Structures Standards - The standards for equipment structures are as follows:

1. Maximum Size in Residential Zones - eEquipment structures may shall not exceed 500
840 cubic feet each and shall be no greater than 5 feet in height. with a 5-foot height 
limit in residential zones.  Equipment structure enclosures shall not exceed 125 square 
feet each.  These limitations shall apply to each individual equipment structure and 
enclosure, provided that equipment structures that are fully contained within a legally 
established building that houses or is accessory to a principal permitted use shall not 
be subject to these limitations.

13



b2. Maximum Size in Nonresidential Zones - Gross floor area of equipment structures shall 
be the minimum necessary but not greater than 240 square feet per provider.  
Maximum height is 10 feet above average building elevation.  These limitations shall 
not apply to equipment structures that are fully contained within a building that houses 
or is accessory to a principal permitted use and that satisfies the dimensional 
regulations of the underlying zone.

3. Equipment Structures Located in Right-of-Way - If ground-mounted, said structures 
shall not exceed a height of 30 inches.  If mounted on poles, said structures shall 
comply with 117.75.6.  Setback requirements do not apply to equipment structures 
located in the right-of-way.

4. Setbacks When Located on Private Property – Ground-mounted personal wireless 
service facilities shall be located at least a distance equal to 100 percent of antenna 
height from any property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or 
residential zone; and a minimum of 10 feet from any property line adjacent to or across 
the street from all other uses or zones.  equipment structures over 30 inches in height 
shall be setback at least 10 feet from all property lines; provided, that equipment 
structures that are fully contained within a legally established building that houses or is 
accessory to a principal permitted use shall not be subject to this requirement.

5. Equipment structures on or above a structure - Equipment structures on or above a 
structure shall be subject to the following criteria: 

a. Antenna and eEquipment structure height is measured above the top of the roof, 
not the parapet. 

d b. When mounted to the roof of a building with a pitched or stepped roof form,
Rroof-mounted antennas and equipment structures shall be incorporated into the 
pitched or stepped roof form, and not appear as a separate penthouse or box. 

6. Equipment structures mounted on poles or towers -

a. Equipment structures may be mounted on utility poles or towers.  The location 
and vertical clearance of such structures shall be reviewed by the Public Works 
Department and verified by the underlying utility owner to ensure that the 
structures will not pose a hazard to other users of the right-of-way.

b, Equipment structures mounted on utility poles or towers shall be located in a 
manner that minimizes clutter and visual impact.

a7. Compatibility - Equipment structures shall be designed to be compatible with the 
surrounding area in which they are located.  For example, in a residential area, a 
sloped roof or wood siding may be required.   

8. Concealment - For equipment structures: "Concealment technology" means  Typical 
concealment measures for equipment structures are identified herein, and shall be 
employed unless the City determines through the applicable review process that 
alternative measures would be more appropriate given the contextual setting of the 
equipment structure:

(a) lLocating within a building or building appendage constructed in accordance with 
all applicable City codes, or if

(b)  Locating on top of a building, with architecturally compatible screening. , 

14



(c)  Locating An underground location, or

(d) lLocating above ground with a solid fence and landscaping subject to the 
limitations of KZC 117.80.3, is also considered concealment technology. or

(e) If mounted on a utility pole or tower, the equipment structure shall be of a similar 
color to that of the pole or tower to which it is attached, unless alternative 
measures are approved by the City as part of the applicable review process.

c9. Noise Standards - Equipment structures shall be oriented so that exhaust ports or 
outlets are pointed away from properties which that may be impacted by noise.  The 
installation and operation of Eequipment structures shall comply with noise regulations 
in KZC 115.95.  The City may require an assessment of noise after operation begins 
and remediation if the noise levels created are not within the prescribed limits.  
Cumulative noise impacts will be measured in cases where there is more than one 
equipment structure. 

117.35 80 Landscaping/Buffering Screening

1. General - Landscaping, as described herein, shall be required to screen as much of the 
new personal wireless service tower PWSF and any ground-mounted features, 
including fencing, as possible, the fence surrounding both the tower and any other 
ground level features (such as an equipment structure), and in general soften the 
appearance of the site.  The City may allow or require any other form of the use of 
concealment technology, as described in KZC 117.70.3, either instead of or in addition 
to required landscaping, if it to achieves the same degree of effective screening as the 
required landscaping.  The effectiveness of visual mitigation techniques must will be 
evaluated by the City, in the City's discretion, taking into consideration the site as built.  
If the antenna is mounted on an existing a building, and the equipment structure is 
housed inside the building, landscaping shall not be required. 

2. Existing Vegetation - Existing vegetation shall be preserved or improved, and 
disturbance of the existing topography of the site shall be minimized, unless such 
disturbance will result in less visual impact of the site on the surrounding area. 

3. Buffering - Except for PWSF located in a public right-of-way and subject to review as a 
Planning Official decision, Bbuffering of ground-mounted personal wireless service 
facilities PWSF shall be required around the perimeter of the facility.  Landscape 
buffering shall at a minimum comply with the requirements of KZC 95.25(3) 95.40.6.B,
except that all trees must be evergreen; provided, that the City may approve or require 
optional buffering measures, if the City determines that such optional measures will 
provide effective screening.  Such optional measures include, but are not limited to, the 
following:
a. Walls or solid fencing, of a height at least as high as the equipment it screens, 

subject to KZC 117.80.4 below;
b. Architectural features, such as parapets, mechanical penthouses, or building fin 

walls.
c. Climbing vegetation supported by a structure such as a fence or trellis, of a type 

and size that will provide a dense visual barrier at least as high as the equipment 
it screens within two years from the time of planting; or

d. The natural topography of the site or the adjoining property or right-of-way.

4. Fencing - Fencing may be allowed or required if it is needed for security purposes, or if 
it is part of concealment technology.  The use of chain link, plastic, vinyl or wire fencing 
is prohibited unless it is fully screened from public view.  Landscaping shall be installed 

15



on the outside of fences.  Fencing installed specifically for the purpose of screening 
ground-mounted PWSF shall not be taller than necessary to provide appropriate 
screening.

5. Maintenance – The applicant shall maintain the screening in good condition and shall 
replace any plants required by this chapter or approved or required as part of the 
permit approval that are unhealthy or dead.  In the event that landscaping screening is 
not maintained at the required level, the City, after giving 30 days' advance written 
notice to the provider, may maintain or establish the landscaping screening and bill 
both the landowner and provider for such costs until such costs are paid in full. 

6. Nonwithstanding the above, the manner of screening for any PWSF that requires 
approval through Process IIA or Process IIB shall be reviewed and determined as part 
of that Process.

117.70 85 Modifications of Chapter Provisions

Provisions of this Chapter shall not be subject to variances described in Chapter 120 KZC.  
However, through Process IIB, Chapter 152 KZC, the City may consider modification of 
standards in the Chapter provisions except for the following:

1. The 40-foot height limit for personal wireless service facilities towers in residential 
zones; and/or 

2. The 15-foot limit for antennas projecting above an existing or replacement utility pole or 
electrical distribution or transmission conductor in residential zones.

2. A 20-foot minimum distance between a ground-mounted personal wireless service 
facility and any property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or 
residential zone.

117.40 90 Non-Use/Abandonment

1. Bond - The City may require a bond or other suitable performance security as per
pursuant to Chapter 175 KZC to cover the costs of removal of the antenna or tower. 

2. Annual Report - The provider must confirm in writing to the City on an annual basis that 
the personal wireless service facility is still in use on a form to be provided by the City.

3 2. In the event the use of any tower or antenna PWSF will be discontinued for a period of 
60 consecutive days, the owner or operator shall so notify the City in writing, and the 
tower or antenna PWSF shall thereafter be deemed to be abandoned.  Determination 
of the date of abandonment shall be made by the City which shall have the right to 
request documentation and affidavits from the tower or antenna PWSF owner or 
operator regarding the issue of tower or antenna PWSF usage.  Upon such 
abandonment, the owner or operator of the tower or antenna PWSF or the owner of the 
property upon which such facility is located shall have an additional 60 days within 
which to: 

a. Reactivate the use of the tower or antenna PWSF or transfer the tower or 
antenna PWSF to another owner or operator who makes actual use of the PWSF
tower or antenna; or 

b. Dismantle and remove the tower or antenna PWSF.  If such tower or antenna
PWSF is not removed within said 60 days from the date of abandonment, the 
City may remove such tower or antenna PWSF at the facility owner's and 

16



property owner's expense.  If there are two or more users of a single tower, then 
this provision shall not become effective until all users cease using the tower. 

 At the earlier of 60 days from the date of abandonment without reactivation or 
upon completion of dismantling and removal, City approval of the tower or 
antenna PWSF shall automatically expire. 

117.95 Removal From City Property - When Required

A PWSF mounted to any City-owned property, utility pole, or other structure shall be removed 
if the City deems removal is necessary for the undergrounding of utilities, the sale, 
development, or redevelopment of City-owned property, or the demolition or alteration of a 
City-owned building or other structure.  The PWSF shall be removed at no expense to the 
City.

117.75 100 Appeals and Judicial Review

Appeals of administrative decisions shall be processed according to the appeal procedures
for Process I; except, that any affected party may appeal and participate in the appeal; the 
time to appeal is taken from the date of administrative decision; and distribution of the appeal 
hearing notice by the Planning Official shall be to the applicant, appellant, the official 
newspaper of the City, and posted on public notice sign(s).

1. An applicant may appeal a Planning Official decision to the Hearing Examiner.  A written 
notice of appeal shall be filed with the Planning Department within fourteen (14) days of 
the date the Planning Official’s decision was mailed or otherwise delivered to the 
applicant.  The office of the Hearing Examiner shall give notice of the hearing to the 
applicant at least seventeen (17) days prior to the hearing.  The applicant shall have the 
burden of proving that the Planning Official made an incorrect decision.  Based on the 
Hearing Examiner’s findings and conclusions, he or she may affirm, reverse, or modify 
the decision being appealed.

2. Appeals of Process I, IIA, or IIB permits are processed, and judicial review shall occur,
according to the appeal and judicial review procedures and provisions for either Process 
I, IIA, or IIB respectively. 

117.105 Lapse of Approval

The applicant must begin construction or submit to the City a complete building permit 
application for the development activity or other actions approved under this Chapter within 
one year after the final approval of the City of Kirkland on the matter, or the decision 
becomes void; provided, however, that in the event judicial review is initiated per KZC 
117.100, the running of the one year is tolled for any period of time during which a court order 
in said judicial review proceeding prohibits the development activity or other actions.  The 
applicant must substantially complete construction for the development or other actions 
approved under this Chapter and complete the applicable conditions listed on the notice of 
decision within two years after the final approval on the matter, or the decision becomes void.  
For development activity or other actions with phased construction, lapse of approval may be 
extended when approved under this Chapter and made a condition of the notice of decision.

117.110 Complete Compliance Required

1. General – Except as specified in subsection (2) of this section, the applicant must 
comply with all aspects, including conditions and restrictions, of an approval granted 
under this Chapter in order to do everything authorized by that approval.

17



2. Exception – Subsequent or Minor Modification – The Planning Official may approve a 
modification to the permit approved for the PWSF if:

a. The modification is minor and will not substantially change the proposed facility; 
and

b. The proposed modification will comply with the provisions of this Chapter in effect 
at the time of the modification request; and

c. There will not be any substantial changes in the impacts on the neighborhood or 
the City as a result of the change.

 Any modification, other than as specified in paragraph 2 of this Section, must be 
reviewed and decided upon as a new PWSF approval under this Chapter.

117.115 Time Limit

Any time limit, pursuant to Chapter 36.70B RCW, upon the City’s processing and decision 
upon applications under this Chapter may, except as specifically otherwise stated in this 
Chapter, be modified by a written agreement between the applicant and Planning Director.  In 
the event a permit constitutes or presents a special circumstance under the provisions of this 
Chapter, the time limits for the City to make a final decision and issue its notice of decision 
under Chapter 36.70B RCW are extended by the number of days that the final decision of the 
City was delayed as a result of that special circumstance.

117.120 Compliance With Other City Codes

Compliance with the provisions of this Chapter does not constitute compliance, or remove 
from the applicant the obligation to comply, with other applicable provisions of this Code, the 
Comprehensive Plan, or any other ordinance or regulation of the City including, but not 
limited to, regulations governing construction or implementing the State Environmental Policy 
Act or the Shoreline Management Act.

117.80 125 Conflict

Notwithstanding the requirements of Section 117.120 above, To to the extent that any 
provision or provisions of this Chapter are inconsistent or in conflict with any other provision 
of the Zoning Code, Comprehensive Plan or any ordinance or regulation of the City, the 
provisions of this Chapter shall be deemed to control.  Personal wireless service facilities
PWSF are permitted in the City pursuant to this Chapter notwithstanding the fact they are not 
mentioned in the use zone charts in Chapters 15 through 65 KZC. 

117.60 130 Violations and City Remedies

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be subject to the 
provisions of Chapter 170 KZC, Code Enforcement.  In addition to fines, the City shall have 
the right to seek damages and injunctive relief for any and all violations of this Chapter and all 
other remedies provided at law or in equity. 

18









ParkPlaceRooftopl 





MarkTwainTower 







ATT Juanita North 
Provided by PSE 



V
erizon 1-405 1 SR

 520 
Provided by PSE

 



C
ingular O

verlake 
Provided by PSE

 



VS Meydenbauer 
Provided by PSE 



ATT Lakemont 
Provided by PSE 



R
edm

ond G
range 

Provided by PSE
 



ATT Adelaide 
Provided by PSE 



ATT Nillaire 
Provided by PSE 



ATT Vashon 
Provided by PSE 



Cingular McMillan I1 
Provided by PSE 



MINUTES OF Hob-ATON COMMUNITY COUNCILISLLCIAL JOINT MEETING 
WITH PLANNING DIRECTOR - AUGUST 29,2005 

CALL TO ORDERIROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order at 7:06 p.m. by Chair Hugh Givens. Members present: 
Bill Goggins, David Hess, James Nickle, Betsy Pringle, and Rick Whitney. Member - absent: Elsie Weber. Eric Shields, Nancy Cox, Stacy Clauson and Michael Bergstrom 
represented the Department of Planning and Community Development. 

READING AND/OR APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None 

ANNOUNCEMENTOFAGENDA 

COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Mr. Hess invited everyone to come to the Houghdown on Monday, September 5, 11 
AM. 

REQUESTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

HEARINGS 

a. Wireless Code Amendments, File No. IV-03-13 

Mr. Bergstrom presented the staff report dated August 19, 2005. He passed out 
I 
i additions to the staff report, which were Exhibit 1 - a letter dated August 24, 2005 from 
i Pacific Telecom Services, LLC; Exhibit 2 - Draft Ordinance, Chapter 117, Personal 

Wireless Service Facilities; Exhibit 3 - reference information from Puget Sound Energy 
that gives the company's observations more so than recommendations; and Exhibit 4 - 
an email from staff to Mr. Bergstrom that embodies a series of emails asking questions 
about the ordinance and asking what might be clarified. 

The Planning Director Eric Shields acted as the hearing body from the City standpoint. 
Following a recommendation from the Planning Director after the public hearing, the 
amendments will go before the City Council, after which they will return to the Houghton 
Community Council for final approval. 

Mr. Givens noted that this is a legislative issue, and not quasi-judicial. 

Mr. Bergstrom gave a broad summary of the goals in the proposed changes to the 
chapter. Basically, the theme throughout the ordinance is to encourage certain types of 
personal wireless service facilities, and discourage individual monopoles scattered 
throughout the city. He explained that staff would like to see more co-location of 
antennas and more use of existing structures to support those features, such as utility 
poles. Staff is proposing a Process IIA for some installations, which would not involve 
Community Council review. . The ordinance provides that all antennas would be below 
the roofline except the whip antennas. 



MINUTES OF HOUGI.. ON COMMUNITY COUNCILISPEL.AL JOINT MEETING 
WITH PLANNING DIRECTOR -AUGUST 29,2005 

Ms. Pringle suggested that it would be helpful to have some photographs or examples 
at a future meeting. 

Mr. Shields added that the proposal would not increase the maxirnum'allowable height 
of the pole, but might increase the actual height of the pole, extending the pole so they 
can put an antenna on top of it, which might take it from 30 feet to 40 feet. 

-Some industry representatives have suggested increasing allowable tower height to 
perhaps 60 feet, but the 40-foot limit has been well established in the city, and staff is 
not proposing 60 feet. Staff is proposing that allowable clearances above the electrical 
lines be increased from 10 feet to 15 feet above the transmission lines. Staff is also 
proposing that in a residential zone PSE poles greater than 40 feet existing could be 
allowed to have antenna added to them. 

Ms. Cox suggested having color copies made of the exhibit. There was agreement this 
would be helpful. 

Mr. Goggins suggested that it would help to know what neighboring communities are 
doing on this issue. 

Mr. Bergstrom explained that staff had reviewed these, finding that several cities had 
recently redone their PWSF regulations, but the structure of the regulations of each 
community is so different than Kirkland's that it is hard to make comparisons. Also 
individual sensitivities and policies of each community have to be factored into the 
equation. 

Andrew Neninqer, 19807 North Creek Parkway, Bothell, WA 98033, with T-Mobile, and 
also a Kirkland resident at 218 5" Place S, commented that he appreciates that Kirkland 
has taken a look at the code. He tried to give an industry perspective of what they have 
seen over the last few years. Beginning in 1998, service goals consisted of mobility in 
commercial areas along major corridors and routes. But cell users and customers are 
now asking for coverage everywhere they go-not only at work, but also at home. T- 
Mobile gets many complaints, and is trying to cover residential areas and trying to 
satisfy its customers. He appreciated that Kirkland is considering residential and trying 
to balance effectiveness with aesthetics. He explained that Bellevue just did a code 
change, and he thinks that city found a balance. He would encourage the Community 
Council to compare what Kirkland is trying to do with what Bellevue has done. Bellevue 
now allows cell phone providers to go through an easier process in nonresidential 
areas, and allows more height in the non-residential areas. Rooftop heights and utility 
poles can be higher than 40 feet in non-residential areas because Bellevue prefers the 
antennas to be in non-residential areas rather than the residential areas. He added that 
omni antennas are not used any more. T-Mobile has to reuse the frequencies that it 
has. He explained that omnis are obsolete, as no carrier is using them today, so he 
encouraged Kirkland to consider what they are saying about omni antennas, and see if 
panel antennas could be incorporated in there. T-Mobile has found in other 
communities that the use of utility poles is an effective use of existing structures in 
areas where there are no commercial buildings or water tanks. He said it was not clear 



MINUTES OF HOb,rlTON COMMUNITY COUNCILISPcCIAL JOINT MEETING 
WITH PLANNING DIRECTOR - AUGUST 29,2005 

to him if they could exceed 40 feet in residential areas, but in order to put the~r antennas 
on they have to exceed the height. There are safety standards that companies require 
of them. He encouraged them to come up with an ordinance that says companies can 
only exceed the poles by X number of feet. Use of the right-of-ways for utility poles is 
crucial for them as well, so they do not haie to build monopoles. He suggested that 
the required half-mile diameter review for monopoles is somewhat cumbersome and 
onerous, because they would have to go to every nonresidential use, and confirm that a 
landlord did not want to do business with them, and then they would have to give the 
City an explanation of why that owner did not want to do business. He suggested 
instead a 500-foot radius. He also encouraged them to look at how they tier the 
process, going from a building permit only in a nonresidential area on a water tank, and 
tier down to a conditional use permit in a residential area. The tiers of the structure 
should be reviewed again, because developers of wireless look for the easiest way 
possible to provide service. He recommended that the City find a way to encourage 
wireless providers to the maximum possible to go into lower utility areas. He suggested 
that they provide an easier process on those areas about which the City does not care, 
and be more stringent on those areas of concern. 

Mr. Bergstrom inquired if he was saying that T-Mobile could go into certain 
nonresidential areas in Kirkland and provide adequate service to residential areas as 
well. 

1 Mr. Neninger replied that the answer is ultimately no because the areas are huge and T- 

J 
Mobile is not going to be able to provide residential service without going into residential 
areas . Rather than expanding a utility pole in someone's driveway, why not allow 
extending the height on a church. The City could elaborate on more use of the parks. 
Then they are in the community but not necessarily in someone's front yard. This would 
be valuable. Find ways to make these things easier. He said that he hopes there are 
other steps to this process. He would love to sit down with staff to give them input and 
insight into what T-Mobile is going to look like in the next few years. 

Mr. Givens noted that the ordinance talked about using the light standards at the Lake 
Washington High School football field. 

Mr. Neninger explained that they have used light standards in many areas, and does 
not know why they have not been in Kirkland. He made one other suggestion, 
concealing antennas. There are alternatives to panel antennas stretched out in a line. 
They could do things that allow a balance of need and protection. 

Ms. Pringle said she would like to see what is available and would be in 2 or 3 years. 

Mr. Neninger offered to provide a number of photo simulations of what T-Mobile has 
done. Regarding one-to-one setbacks no provider is going to want to do that-a 40 foot 
tall structure would encumber 80 feet of land. T-Mobile's equipment can be used in 
shelters, place in wood or steel, and can be architecturally enhanced so it looks like the 
building it is near. 



MINUTES OF HOUGt . . DN COMMUNITY COUNCILISPEL.AL JOINT MEETING 
WITH PLANNING DIRECTOR - AUGUST 29,2005 

Mr. Goggins inquired if Verizon or Sprint were here would they be recommending the 
same thing. 

Mr. Neninger responded that all providers are similar with some small differences, but 
the equipment structures are roughly the same--about 72 inches high, 30 inches wide, 
and 30 inches deep. This can be put underground rather than in the right-of-way above 
ground, but the cost to dig a hole and put the equipment in there is $80,000. T-Mobile's 
primary concern is its customers and servicing them. 

Mr. Bergstrom added that money has to be one concern but there can also be utility 
constraints when equipment structures are placed underground. Bellevue has a 30-inch 
limit for height of equipment structures located in right-of-ways. 

Mr. Nickle suggested that staff could invite the other vendors to come and speak. 

If Bellevue has gone through this process extensively, Mr. Whitney suggested starting 
with what that city has done and modifying that to what Kirkland needs. 

Mr. Bergstrom responded that the structures of the two cities' codes are so different, so 
the codes are very different and the cities' histories are very different. So their results 
are not directly transferable, but he will go back and look at Bellevue's code again. 

, i 
1 I Mr. Shields suggested doing some comparisons. 

! 1 Mr. Goggins recommended doing a spreadsheet comparing different cities and 
identifying some innovative things other cities are doing. 

The cell support structure on 11" and Market Street that has been there about a year is 
24 inches in diameter and has three panels that are basically pointing in three different 
directions. PTS has recommended going to that size. Mr. Shields explained that this 
was a case of a replacement of a light pole. If staff had understood the proposal better, 
the replacement pole probably would not have been allowed. City staff has had some 
discussions with T-Mobile about possibly replacing this at sometime. 

Mr. Neninger inquired about what the Houghton Community Council would like to see 
for the poles-steel, wood or wooden laminate, and what diameter is acceptable. 

Mr. Goggins wanted to know what the citywide impact would be from the number of 
poles the providers would need. 

Mr. Bergstrom noted that there is also the issue of internal versus external cables. 

I 
There was agreement that staff would schedule another hearing, and let the HCC 
members know when they are ready. 

1 Mr. Shields asked the Community Council if there was anything they had heard that 
should be off limits or anything that sounds particularly promising. 



MINUTES OF HC iHTON COMMUNITY COUNCILIS. LCIAL JOINT MEETING 
WITH PLANNING DIRECTOR - AUGUST 29,2005 

Mr. Goggins said he would prefer the nonresidential areas that extend what is already 
being done, so nothing is done in the residential areas except on nonresidential uses in ' 
residential areas. He requested to see examples and pictures, as well as some sites to 
go view. 

When Mr. Bergstrom asked if there were things that did not seem acceptable, Ms. 
Pringle mentioned that appeals for Planning Official decisions should be for any affected 
party, not just the applicant. 

Ms. Cox explained that there is no public notice, and there is not a lot of discretion in the 
Planning Official's decisions. This is why the appeal process is proposed to be limited 
to the applicant only. Staff will look at this further. 

The Chair closed the public hearing at 8:38 p.m. Another hearing will be scheduled 
when the requested information is ready. The Planning Director left the meeting. 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS AND COMMUNITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION 

The Houghton Community Council is looking for someone to write the voters' pamphlet. 
This is due on September 25. The next meeting is on September 26. Individual 
comments are due by August 30. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Mr. Hess and second by Mr. Goggins to adjourn the meeting at 8:41 p.m. 
Motion carried (6-0). 

~ d g h  Givens, Chair 

NiWy bkv 
Nancy Cox, Development Review Manager 
Department of Planning and Community Development 

Recording Secretary: Karen Nolz 
PROFESSIONAL OFFICE SERVICES 





loc;~lc !\~llcrc ;~,jrlrisdictiorr \\';trils lllcln lo, is lo inaltc llkc ~)roccsscs lo co11oc;~tc on 
cxislilrg struc1a1.c~ ;IS c;rsy as 1)ossil)lc. 'l'lic ~ I I I - I - ~ I ~ ~  tlr;~li code rc\risio~ls (lo nol 
acl~icvc ~liis, csl)cci;rlly ill rcsitlcrlli;tl zorlcs. 

Allow Sor- more l~cigllt in co111111creii1l zot~cs to rclic~c lllc I)LII-(IcI~ 011 rcsi~lcr~liitl 
zo~ics. 'I'owcr lrciglrls s~lcli as " 10 kel" (lo 1\01 1)rovitlc 1nucl1 c~\~cl-agc lor wir-clcss 
carr-icl-s cspcci;rlly in ;irc;\s \*ill1 \,;\I-ictl lopogt.;~pliy, ~ll;llurc vegetation ;111(1 \~i~riorls 
I)rliltlillg Iiciglils. 'l'he l)csl \v;ry lo rll;\xirrlizc tllc use oSco111n1crci;tl zollcs is lo ;~llo\.~f 
Sor g~c;\tcr licigl11 llcxil~ilily. 

h/l;rrir~>izc rooliol) 1)otcnli;tl  villi ;L 15' Iieigli~ ;tllo\varlcc li)r all anlcnrlas rcg;~rdlcss 
ol'lyl)c, l~ut  c~rl'orcc scrccllirig rccluire~rlerlts in ;\I1 zollcs. !\g;tirl, strc;ui~-lirlirlg lllc 
rc\'ic\\' 1)roccss ii1lo ;I l'I;t~lllillg Ol'licial 1)ecisioll or ;I l'c1-1llil I 1)r-ocess ~,vill 
errcorrr;lgc 7vi1-clcss c;tl.ricrs lo pul-stre exisling slrt~ctur-cs arltl rlol clrosc lo ptirsric ;I 
~rcw liczsl;~ntIii~g lower. 

litility poles sl~oultl l)c rttilizc(l ;IS irlucli ;IS 1)ossil)lc lo ~nasilnizc tllc rrsc ol'csistillg 
t;111 vcrlic;~l struclur-cs ;trltl lo ;r\~oitl l l~c  rlcctl l'or new Srccslantling lo~~~ci-s .  1'Sls: is in 
(Ilc ~)roccss oI'r-c\.ic\l:i~~g llic crlrrclil ortlin;t~rcc ; ~ ~ l t l  \\,ill pro~itlc cornrllcnt witl~ 
rcg~rds lo scl);u-;tlioli ;r11t1 cli;ul~clcr ol'whicli irlli)r-rll;~lion, 1vc !\,ill concttl- ;rnd 
sCip1)orl. 

'l'lrc l)ullclc(l co~il~llcr~ls ;\re lo scl-uc ;IS ;I st~l)plc~llc~rl lo llic rctllilrctl version 1r.c ii;~\~c 
inclutlctl \villt lliis S I I J ~ ~ I ~ I ~ I ~ ) :  oI'\vliicI~ \\re illso ~ ~ C I V  ;IS \ ' ~ r ) ,  i~llporlalil. 1'Ie;isc lo 1101 I~csili~tc 
lo c;rll rr~c ulitli cltlcslior~s or corillricrtls ;I( 20(j.2~10.017:1 slroultl you like lilrthcr i~ll'or~lli~liori 
01- illsiglit inlo lotl;\y's \\,ireless Llcility tlcl)loy~ncrlt. 

'1'lr;trlk you ;~g~i l l  Sor lllc op1)orlunity lo conlmcllt 







light standard, building or other structure for the purpose of providing personal wireless 
services and its attendant base station. Types of antennas include: 

a. An "omni-directional antenna" receives and transmits radio frequency signals in a 
360-degree radial pattern. 

b. A'lwhip antenna" is an omni-directional antenna that is up to 15 feet in height - 
and up to four inches in diameter. 

b c A "directional or panel antenna" receives and transmits radio frequency signals in 
a specific directional pattern of less than 360 degrees. 

"Antenna height" shall mean the vertical distance measured from average building 
elevation to the highest point of the antenna, or if on a rooftop or other structure, from 
the top of the roof or structure to the highest point of the antenna. 
a & m & v & & h ~ ~ s  
-f- 

"Cell site" shall mean a tract or parcel of land or building that contains the pew& . . .  
iAlifelefsseFwsefaslkkes including any antenna, antenna support structure, 
accessory buildings, and parking, and may include other uses associated with and 
ancillary to personal wireless services. 

"Co-location" shall mean the use or placement of M~R peFseftaCwK 
. . 

'eless 
on a tower by two or more personal wireless service providers or by - 

one personal wireless service provider for more than one type of communication 
technology. 

"Equipment structure" shall mean a facility, shelter, cabinet or vault used to house and 
protect the electronic equipment necessary for processing wireless communications 
signals. Associated equipment may include, for example, air conditioning, backup 
power supplies and emergency generators. 

"Existing structure" shall mean, but is not limited to, a building, 
. . 

utility pole, water tank, and structures accessory 
StKl- thereto. 

"FAA shall mean the Federal Aviation Administration 

"FCC" shall mean the Federal Communications Commission 

"Nonresidential" or "nonresidential zone" shall mean (1) all portions of the City 
incluolna r qhts-of-nay-ao-acent thereto meas~rred to the cenrerLne of tne riqnt-of- 
i& n a n  area nor zoned res oent a, as def neo in th s Cnapter, or (2, me -405 
520 right-of-way. - 

"Personal wireless services" and "personal wireless service facilities" (PWSF), as used 
in this Chapter, shall be defined in the same manner as in Title 47, United States Code, 
Chapter 5, Subchapter Ill, Part I, Section 332(c)(7)(C), as they may be amended now 
or in the future. 

"Replacement structure" shall mean a structure that replaces or is intended to replace 
an existinq structure of a similar desiqn and similar orimarv purpose, to enable the 
installation of new or additional PWSF on that structure. If a "replacement structure" 
meets the definition of "tower", it shall be considered for the purpose of requlation to be 
a "tower". 













3 4. Process llB 
Permit 

$3) Any w-a- 
sefw&ad&y that is 
unable to meet the pewdwg 
fx io&pWsahA criteria 
for review as .w 
a$n-liffisiFatwe a Planning 
Official decision, ef Process I 
permit, or Process IIA permit, 

b) Modification of standards 
contained in this Chapter, 
per KZC 11 7.85. 

other sites in the applicant's network, and 
an evaluation of existing available land. 
and buildinqs and structures taller than 30 
feet within one-guarter mile of the 
proposed site. 

i. An applicant for a new facility to be located - 
in a residential zone shall demonstrate that 
a diligent effort has been made to locate 
the proposed facility in a nonresidential 
zone, and that due to valid considerations 
including physical constraints, or 
technological feasibility, no other location is 
available. 

ii. The personal wireless services provider is - 
required to demonstrate that it contacted 
the landowners or owners of structures iff 
exsessef taller than 30 feet within a one- 
quarter mile radius of the site proposed, 
asked for permission to build the personal 
wireless service tower or install the 
antenna on an existing structure, and was 
denied. 

iii. The information submitted by the applicant - 
shall include a map of the area to be 
served by the facility, its relationship to 
other sites in the applicant's network, and 
an evaluation of existing available land, 
and buildings and structures taller than 30 
feet within one-quarter mile of the 
proposed site. 

iv. Tower height within a residential zone shall 
not exceed 40'. 

The following mav not be modified: 
i. The 40-foot height limit for PWSF in 

residential zones. 
ii. The 15-foot limit for antennas projecting 

above an existinq or replacement utility 
pole or electrical distribution or 
transmission conductor in residential 
zones. 

---e-(incorporated into 117.45.4 - above chart) 

Before an application reauiring review through Plannina Official Decision, Process I, Process - 
IIA, or Process llB will be accepted for processing, the applicant shall attend a pre-submittal 
meeting with the Planning Official, as required bv KZC 145.12. 150.12, or 152.12: provided, 
that the Planning Official mav waive the pre-submittal meeting reauirement for any proposal 
that the Planning Official deems to be substantiallv compliant with the provisions of this 
Chapter. 



.. . =toPwP* 
.̂..J--W~!~+W 

WJ'WwfttttesfftteamrpAetwterssttu . . . . -------"""-X""" .- 
~~aw~te-~~~ 

- $ - -  
~+tttw~Arn!*-nW 
qy~ 'SWJO~ p!es uo pa!j!luap! sleyalew lJodUns pue uo!lewioju! ay) nq pa1uedwo33e aq lleys - pue luawuedaa ~U!UUE~~ ayl nq papinold swloj bu!sn apew aq lleys (/(us ayl u! 

lam01 lo euualue ue 'uo!jel!w!G '6u!pn13u!) XKG ;iSyt4ela 4 
e ale301 01 sl!wlad w-  . . . ze . llv 

-pio3aJ uall!mn e u! pau!eluo3 a3uaplAa le!luelsqns Lq pauoddns pue 6u!)!l~ u! aq 
lleys isanbar e y3ns Luap 04 uo!s!3ap hut/ .alaldwo3 aq 01 pau!wialap uaaq seq uo!le3!ldde 
ue raue 'lsanbai ayl 40 ado3s pue arnleu ayl luno33e oju! 6u!yel 'awg jo po!lad alqeuoseal 

Ilelsu! ol lue3ildde ue 



1. Planninq Official Decisions: The Planninq Official shall determine as soon as possible -. 
after receipt of an application whether the application is complete. If the application is 
not complete, the Planninq Official shall identify and communicate the needed 
components to the applicant. Once the application is complete, the Planninq Official 
shall process the application. 

2. Process I, Process IIA. and Process IIB Permits: The determination of completeness 
for Process I. Process IIA, and Process IIB permit applications shall occur pursuant to 
the process set forth in Chapters 145, 150, and 152 KZC, respectively. 

11 7 s  65 Third Party Review 

In certain instances (ifxA&~@l particularly Process 118 permit applications) there may be a 
need for expert review by a third party of the technical data submitted by the personal 
wireless services provider. The City may require such a technical review, to be paid for by 

. . .  
the applicant for the p e + w P  w. The selection of the third 
party expert shall be by mutual agreement between the applicant and the City, such 
agreement not to be unreasonably withheld by either party. The third party expert shall have 
recognized training and qualifications in the field of radio frequency engineering. 

The expert review is intended to be a site-specific review of technical aspects of the personal 
wireless services, facilities and other matters as described herein, and not a subjective 
review of the site selection. In particular, but without limitation, the expert shall be entitled to 
provide a recommendation on the height of the proposed facilities relative to the applicant's 
coverage objectives and system design parameters. Such a review should address the 
accuracy and completeness of the technical data, whether the analysis techniques and 
methodologies are legitimate, the validity of the conclusions and any specific technical issues 
outlined by the City or other interested parties. Based on the results of the third party review, 
the City may require changes to the application for the ~ e s s - s e r ~ ~  

that comply with the recommendations of the expert. 

11 7.38 70 Wsiw PWSF Standards 

















a. Reactivate the use of the tower or antenna or transfer the tower or antenna to 
another owner or operator who makes actual use of the tower or antenna; or 

b. Dismantle and remove the tower or antenna. If such tower or antenna is not 
removed within said 60 days from the date of abandonment, the City may 
remove such tower or antenna at the facility owner's and property owner's 
expense. If there are two or more users of a single tower, then this provision 
shall not become effective until all users cease using the tower. 

At the earlier of 60 days from the date of abandonment without reactivation or 
upon completion of dismantling and removal, City approval of the tower or 
antenna shall automatically expire. 

A-P.WS.F moLntea to ank C 11-o~ned p r o p e r t ~ . ~ ~ . . t ~ p o  e or other str~ct-re snall oe removed 
.fine C t i  oeems remova IS necessar, for &e,noe?grouno nq of i lt~llt~es tne dete.opment or -- 
reaebe . opmenl of C,t\-onneo properr/or!n_e_de.m.o!(!on or_a_teration of a C tb-ounea 
u n g  orprher str,ct~re Tne PWSF sha_.peIemoveo at no_.e_xgense to tne Clt\ 

11 7.7% 100 Appeals a n d J u d i c i a l R p !  

An applicant may appeal a Planninq Official decision to the Hearina Examiner. A written 
notice of appeal shall be filed with the Planninq Department within fourteen (14) davs of 
the date the Planninq Official's decision was mailed or othennrise delivered to the 
applicant. The office of the Hearinq Examiner shall qive notice of the hearina to the 
applicant at least seventeen (17) days prior to the hearinq. The applicant shall have the 
burden of provinq that the Plannina Official made an incorrect decision. Based on the 
Hearina Examiner's findinqs and conclusions, he or she mav affirm, reverse, or modify 
the decision beina appealed. 

L A p p e a l s  of Process I, IIA, or IIB permits are processed, and iudicial review shall occur, 
according to the appeal and iudicial review procedures and provisions for eitkeF Process 
I, IIA, or IIB respectively. 

The applicant must beain construction or submit to the Citv a complete buildinq permit 
application for the development activity or other actions approved under this Chapter within 
one year after the final approval of the Citv of Kirkland on the matter, or the decision 
becomes void; provided, however, that in the event iudicial review is initiated per KZC 
117.100. the runninq of the one vear is tolled for anv period of time durinq which a court order 
in said iudicial review proceedina prohibits the development activity or other actions. The 
applicant must substantially complete construction for the development or other actions 
approved under this Chapter and complete the applicable conditions listed on the notice of 
decision within two vears after the final approval on the matter, or the decision becomes void. 
For development activity or other actions with phased construction, lapse of approval mav be 
extended when approved under this Chapter and made a condition of the notice of decision. 



L G e n e r a  - E x c e p r e c  f ea_n s~bsect  on (2 of tn~s s e c t ~ o ~ t b e  app (cant must 
comp v th all aspects, nc -0 na corlo~t ons ano rcstr ctlons of an approta.gLante_q 
under this Chapter in order to do evervthina authorized by that approval. 

2 E x c e p t  on - Suoseq,ent Moolf~cat on -The P ann na Offic~a mau approve a 
moo_!cat on to the perm(1 approied for tne PWSF f -- 

a. The modification is minor and will not substantially chanqe the proposed facility, 
and 

b. The proposed modification will complv with the provisions of this Chapter in effect 
at the time of the modification request; and 

c. There will not be any substantial chanqes in the impacts on the neiahborhood or 
the Citv as a result of the chanqe. 

Any modification, other than as specified in paraaraph 2 of this Section, must be 
reviewed and decided upon as a new PWSF approval under this Chapter. 

11 7.1 15 T.i.m,e.Li.mil 

Anv time limit. pursuant to Chapter 36.708 RCW, upon the City's processina and decision 
upon ap~lications under this Chapter may, except as specifically otherwise stated in this 
Chapter, be modified by a written aqreement between the applicant and Planninq Director. In 
the event a permit constitutes or presents a special circumstance under the provisions of this 
Chapter, the time limits for the Citv to make a final decision and issue its notice of decision 
under Chapter 36,708 RCW are extended by the number of days that the final decision of the 
City was delaved as a result of that special circumstance. 

Compliance with the provisions of this Chapter does not constitute compliance, or remove 
from the applicant the obliaation to comply, with other applicable provisions of this Code, the 
Comprehensive Plan, or any other ordinance or reaulation of the Citv includinq, but not 
limited to, requlations qoverninq construction or impiementinq the State Environmental Policy 
Act or the Shoreline Manaqement Act. 

117.80 125 Conflict 

Notwithstandina the requirements of Section 117.120 above, Se@ the extent that any 
provision or provisions of this Chapter are inconsistent or in conflict with any other provision 
of the Zoning Code, Comprehensive Plan or any ordinance or regulation of the City, the 

. . .  
provisions of this Chapter shall be deemed to control. P 
PWSF are permitted in the City pursuant to this Chapter notwithstanding the fact they are not 
mehtioned in the use zone charts in Chapters 15 through 65 KZC. 

11 7 . U  130 Violations and Citv Remedies 

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be subject to the 
provisions of Chapter 170 KZC, Code Enforcement. In addition to fines, the City shall have 
the right to seek damages and injunctive relief for any and all violations of this Chapter and all 
other remedies provided at law or in equity. 





* Co~tld result in carriers having to increase number of sites to meet capacity growth, rather than add 
antenna to existing sites. Replacement utility poles can be (and are) dcsigllcd to accommodate fi~turc 
growth (i.e. adding additional array extended above initial array) at initial installation. However this tends 
to result in a slightly larger pole at ground line. 
5 )  Minimum allowed height increases may not accommodate PSE generated increases in height. (Cl~anges 
in required pole height can be gelrerated when PSE brings a11 old pole configuration up to current standards, 
or when jurisdictional requirements reqoit-e location changes that result in a change in pole configuration.) 

Co~icealment 
I) PSE does not allow painting of steel poles (exceptions may be granted to street light only poles). 
2) Experience has shown that efforts directed towards concealn~ent and aesthetics are often based on the 

personal taste and sensibilities of individuals, with an inherently wide range in variability. A design 
configuration that works well in one instance may not work in another (or at least not be seen as 
effective). This will also occasionally resull in sites that have an effect opposite of what was originally 
intended. 





Page 2 o f  4 

From: Michael Bergstrom [mailto:bergstrommike@msn.com] 
Sent: Thursday, August 25, 2005 1:54 PM 
To: Nancy Cox; Susan Greene; Stacy Clauson 
Subject: Re: Amendments to Chapter 117 - Wireless 

Stacy - Whatever observations and comments might be, now is the time to make them. It 's 
possible that some things were missed. 

----- Or~g~nal Message ----- 
From: Stacy Ciauson 
To: Nancy Cox, Susan Greene , M~chael Bergstrom 
Sent: Thursday, August 25,2005 1 39 PM 
Subject: RE Amendments to Chapter 117 - Wlreless 

I think one issue that is not covered well is the addition of new 
equipment structures (for example, emergency generators for an existing 
facility, where the generator would be new). If the new equipment 
structures would comply with what we would normally allow for an 
administrative decision, it makes sense either to permit i t  (with no 
review required, except building permit), review it as a modification 
(if possible) or review it as an administrative decision, not a Process 
I IA. 

I have started to look through this draft and there are some suggested 
changes that were not incorporated. Please let me know if you would 
like to review those. Thanks, 

Stacy Clauson 
Planner 
C ~ t y  of K~rkland 
Plann~ng and Commun~ty Development 
123 Flfth Avenue 
K~rkland, WA 98033 
425-587-3248 
sclauson@c~.k~rkiand.wa.us 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Nancy Cox 
Sent: Thursday, August 25, 2005 1:15 PM 
To: Susan Greene; Stacy Clauson; 'Michael Bergstrom' 
Subject: RE: Amendments to Chapter 117 - Wireless 

I believe that if there is no increase in size, the replacement of an 
equipment structure in a non-residential zone would only require a 
building permit (117.20.2). Otherwise it looks like the process is I IA  
(117.45.3). Do we agree? 

I We do not mention GPS like Susan says Should we? 

Nancy Cox 
Development Review Manager 
City of Kirkland Planning Department 



Page 3 o f  4 

..--- Original Message----- 
From: Susan Greene 
Sent: Monday, August 22, 2005 8:50 AM 
To: Nancy Cox 
Cc: Stacy Clauson; Tony Leavitt 
Subject: RE: Amendments to Chapter 117 - Wireless 

Hi Nancy, 
I just got a chance co glance at the new regs for wireless. I have a few 
comments: 
It is still unclear to  me what process an applicant would go through for 
replacement of equipment structures in a commercial zone and what the 
threshold is for size in determining the process they will go through. 
Also, I do not see mention of GPS antennas which are ( I  guess) equipment 
that is associated with cell antennas. I just completed an 
administrative report with a GPS antenna that was part of the equipment 
for new omni antennas. 

Susan 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Nancy Cox 
Sent: Tue 8/9/2005 1:41 PM 
To: Planning 
Cc: 'Michael Bergstrom' 
Subject: Amendments to Chapter 117 - Wireless 

Mike has completed a draft of the Wireless amendments in preparation for 
a joint hearing on August 29. The hearing is in front of Eric and 
Houghton because the City Council determined that this project did not 
need to go on the Planning Commission's work program. The file number 
is ZON03-00002 or iV-03-13. Copies of the draft ordinance (attached) 
will be in the file - one clean version showing no underlines and 
strikeouts, and one with underlines and strikeouts for easy comparison 
with the existing chapter. 

Since we do not expect a lot of interest from the public I will not set 
up a special file at the counter with the other long range projects but 
if someone wants one just let me know. The draft is being sent out to 
some industry reps now. 

Jon, Stacy and I have worked with Mike extensively on this draft, so if 
there are any questions please let us know. We can schedule an 
in-service either before or after the joint hearing or the Council 
meeting. Please let me know when it would be most useful to you. 



Page 4 of 4 

Nancy Cox 

Development Review Manager 

City of  Kirkland Planning Department 

(425)587-3228 



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Planning and Community Development Department 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3225 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us

MEMORANDUM

To: Eric Shields, Planning Director 
 Houghton Community Council 

From: Michael Bergstrom, Consultant 

Date: August 19, 2005 

Subject: Chapter 117 KZC – Personal Wireless Service Facilities Regulations, File No. IV-
03-13 

I. RECOMMENDATION

Conduct a public hearing and make a recommendation to the City Council. 

II. BACKGROUND

Enclosed for your review is a draft ordinance that would replace Chapter 117 KZC – Personal 
Wireless Services Facilities (see Attachment 1).  Chapter 117 has guided the siting of PWSF 
since 1998, and has not been amended during that time.  Over the years, it has become apparent 
that Chapter 117 could be improved in many respects.  Better chapter organization, improved 
clarity, greater flexibility with respect to screening and concealment measures, and remedies for 
recurring issues and problems were identified as primary targets for improvement. 

This memo provides an overview of the proposed changes, and identifies the larger policy issues 
involved with some of the amendments.  In general, the proposed ordinance maintains the 
existing policies of encouraging co-location of facilities and discouraging new towers, particularly 
in residential zones.  It also maintains a hierarchical approach to the review of PWSF 
applications, whereby more complex or potentially more impactful applications are reviewed 
through a more stringent process. 

III.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CHANGES

The following is a section-by-section summary of proposed changes.  Throughout the draft 
ordinance, there are minor language and format changes which are not itemized below.  Some of 
the changes reflect codification of Interpretation No. 98-2 addressing setbacks for ground-
mounted equipment structures (see Attachment 2). 

Table of Contents

 Revised to reflect new sections that have been added, as well as Chapter reorganization. 

117.05 – User Guide (new section)



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

August 19, 2005 

Page 2 

 New section, similar to sections appearing in other KZC chapters. 

117.10 – Policy Statement

 Added goal to prioritize PWSF on existing structures, particularly on public property. 

117.15 – Definitions

 Clarification that zones include adjacent rights-of-way. 

 New definition of “replacement structure”. 

 “Tower” definition expanded to include replacement of utility poles beyond a certain size. 

 New definition of “utility pole”. 

117.20 – Applicability (was “New and Existing Facilities”)
 Clarifies that new equipment structures are considered “new facilities”. 

 Clarifies that replacement of equipment structures within certain limitations are considered 
“existing facilities”. 

 “Satellite radio” added to list of items covered by this Chapter. 

117.25 – Exemptions (new section)
 New section, identifying exemptions to the provisions of this Chapter. 

117.30 – Prohibited Devices (new section)
 New section, prohibiting transportable PWSF (“cell on wheels”) devices. 

117.35 – Permit Required

 Clarifies that permit requirements extend to all private and public land and rights-of-way. 

117.40 – Co-Location Encouraged

 Minor change to section title. 

117.45 – Application Review Process (was “Priority of Locations”)
 Changes “Administrative” decisions to “Planning Official” decisions. 

 Clarifies distinctions for determining what requests are reviewed through what process. 

 Clarifies that only omni-directional antennas may be placed on top of, or extend beyond, a 
roofline.

 Allows antennas to be attached to existing or replacement water tanks or utility poles in any 
zone, not just residential zones, through Planning Official Decision. 

 Removes 5% (for residential) and 10% (for nonresidential) roof and building façade coverage 
limitation on PWSF and related screening through Planning Official Decision.  In conjunction 
with changes to 117.70 that reduce potential roof coverage from 25% to 10%, there would be 
a 10% across-the-board limit on roof coverage. 

 In response to correspondence from Puget Sound Energy and Qwest (see Attachments 3 
and 4), establishes new antenna clearance allowances above electrical service lines (current 
allowance is 10 feet).  If in a residential zone, new allowance would be 15 feet.  If in a 
nonresidential zone, new allowance would be 15 feet above an electrical distribution 
conductor and 21 feet above an electrical transmission conductor.  Approvable through 
Planning Official Decision. 

 Allows a replacement utility pole to exceed the diameter of the original pole by no more than 
50%, or resulting diameter of 16 inches, whichever is less, through a Planning Official 
Decision, or no more than 100%/24 inches through a Process I Permit.  Larger replacements 
would require either Process IIA or IIB approval. 

 Clarifies setbacks for new PWSF. 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

August 19, 2005 

Page 3 

 Allows co-location of antennas on towers in residential zone through Process I Permit. 

 Allows review of any PWSF that will be located in a nonresidential zone, which does not 
qualify for review through Planning Official Decision or Process I Permit, to be reviewed 
through Process IIA.  This would apply to new towers in nonresidential zones. 

 Requires review of any PWSF that will be located in a residential zone, which does not 
qualify for review through Planning Official Decision or Process I Permit, to be reviewed 
through Process IIB.  This would apply to new towers in residential zones. 

 Clarifies that requests for modification of Chapter standards will be reviewed through Process 
IIB, and clarifies what may not be modified through that Process. 

117.50 – Pre-Submittal Meeting (new section)
 Adds requirement for pre-submittal meeting before an application can be processed, similar 

to requirement in other Chapters.  Requirement can be waived by Planning Official. 

117.55 – Application Requirements

 Removes itemized list of permit application requirements.  Defers to forms provided by the 
Planning Department. 

117.60 – Determination of Application Completeness (new section)
 Requires that an application must be determined to be complete prior to processing, similar 

to requirements in other Chapters. 

117.65 – Third Party Review

 Minor wording changes only. 

117.70 – PWSF Standards (was “Design Standards”)
 Section reorganized to separate standards applicable to equipment structures from standards 

applicable to other PWSF, for purposes of clarity (“Equipment Structure Standards” now 
contained in 117.75). 

 Emphasizes that location and design of PWSF should reflect the context of its setting, 
including the streetscape. 

 Presents typical means of “concealment technology”, allowing the City to require or approve 
alternative means to more appropriately reflect site context. 

 Prioritizes the routing of cable or conduit through the inside of the support structure, while 
providing for the option to place it on the outside of the structure. 

 Clarifies that the manner of concealment for PWSF reviewed through Process IIA or IIB will 
be determined as part of that process. 

 Clarifies setback requirements for towers and replacement structures on private properties.   

 Clarifies how antenna height is measured. 

 Establishes maximum antenna height on utility poles in residential zones. 

 Clarifies height allowances for antennas on a building, mechanical equipment enclosure, or 
water tank. 

117.75 – Equipment Structure Standards (formerly combined with PWSF standards in “Design 
Standards”)
 Aggregates standards for equipment structures in one section. 

 Clarifies what is included in the measurement of “maximum size in residential zones”. 

 Clarifies that equipment structures contained in a building that otherwise meets the 
dimensional regulations of the underlying zone are not subject to the size restrictions. 

 Establishes new 30-inch height limitation for ground-mounted equipment structures located in 
the right-of-way. 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

August 19, 2005 

Page 4 

 Establishes standards for equipment structures located on utility poles. 

 Clarifies setback requirements for equipment structures located on private property. 

 Presents means for concealment of equipment structures, allowing the City to require or 
approve alternative means to more appropriately reflect site context. 

 Clarifies that installation and operation of equipment structures must comply with City-
adopted noise standards. 

117.80 – Screening (was “Landscaping/Buffering”)
 Provides optional measures for screening of PWSF. 

 Clarifies that buffering is not required for PWSF that is located in the public right-of-way and 
that is subject to review as a Planning Official decision. 

 Places limitations on height of fences used to screen ground-mounted PWSF. 

 Clarifies that screening is to be maintained in good condition. 

 Clarifies that the manner of screening for any PWSF reviewed through Process IIA or IIB 
shall be determined through that process. 

117.85 – Modification of Chapter Provisions (was “Modifications”)
 Establishes that the 15-foot limit for antennas above utility poles or electrical lines in 

residential zones cannot be modified through Process IIB. 

 Removes the 20-foot minimum distance requirement for a ground-mounted PWSF and any 
property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or zone. 

117.90 – Non-Use/Abandonment

 Removes requirement for annual report confirming that the PWSF is still in use. 

117.95 – Removal From City Property – When Required (new section)
 Establishes that PWSF mounted to any City-owned property or structure shall be removed at 

no expense to the City, if the City determines removal is necessary for certain 
undergrounding or development activities. 

117.100 – Appeals and Judicial Review (was “Appeals”)
 Establishes appeal process for Planning Official decisions. 

 Expands section to address Judicial Review, in addition to Appeals. 

117.105 – Lapse of Approval (new section).
 New section, similar to sections appearing in other KZC chapters. 

117.110 – Complete Compliance Required (new section)
 New section, similar to sections appearing in other KZC chapters. 

 Establishes provisions for subsequent modification to approved PWSF. 

117.115 – Time Limit (new section)
 New section, similar to sections appearing in other KZC chapters. 

117.120 – Compliance With Other City Codes (new section)
 New section, similar to sections appearing in other KZC chapters. 

117.125 – Conflict

 Minor wording changes only. 

117.130 – Violations and City Remedies



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

August 19, 2005 

Page 5 

 No changes. 

IV.  POLICY ISSUES

Although many of the proposed revisions reflect restructuring and clarifications, there are certain 
policy issues involved that should be recognized and considered.  Included are the following: 

1. Tower definition, and limitations on utility pole replacement size increase.  The proposal 
would limit the allowable size increase for replacement utility poles to either 50% of the 
original diameter, or 16 inches, whichever is less, in residential zones, and to either 100% 
of the original diameter, or 24 inches, whichever is less in nonresidential zones.  Any 
proposal for a greater increase would be reviewed through Process IIA or IIB, depending 
on zone, and would be considered a “tower”.  Are these thresholds appropriate?  The 
purpose of this provision is to limit the change in scale that can result with pole 
replacement, or at least subject more substantial changes to more rigorous review.  (Ref:  
117.15.13, 117.45.1.c.iv, 117.45.2.b.i). 

2. Utility pole definition.  This new definition encompasses many types of poles, including 
some that an average person might not consider to be a “utility” pole (e.g., flagpole).  Is 
the definition broad enough?  Too broad?  The purpose of this provision is to encourage 
the location of antenna on existing poles versus installing new poles.  (Ref:  117.15.14, 
117.45.1.c, 117.45.2.b, 117.70.6, 117.75.8.e, 117.85.2). 

3. Prohibited devices.  The proposal would prohibit “cell-on-wheels” devices, or other 
devices that are not permanently affixed.  Is this appropriate?  (Ref:  117.30). 

4. Allowable roof/building façade coverage.  The proposal would raise allowable roof 
coverage to 10% in residential zones through a Planning Official decision, and would 
eliminate the building façade coverage restriction.  This change would be in conjunction 
with a reduction of the maximum possible roof coverage from 25% to 10%.  Is this an 
appropriate change?  The purpose of this amendment is simplification.  (Ref:  
117.45.1.b.iii, 117.45.2, 117.70.7.g). 

5. Antenna height above utility poles and power lines.  Current code restricts PWSF 
antennas to 10 feet above utility poles and power lines.  The proposal would increase this 
to (a) 15 feet above utility poles in all zones, (b) 15 feet above all power lines in 
residential zones, and (c) 15 feet above electrical distribution conductor and 21 feet 
above electrical transmission conductor in nonresidential zones.  Is this a reasonable 
increase?  The purpose of this amendment is to achieve general consistency with 
clearance standards observed by Puget Sound Energy.  (Ref:  117.45.1.c.ii and iii, 
117.45.e.b.ii, 117.85). 

6. Review of certain PWSF through Process IIA.  The current code does not provide for the 
review of any PWSF through Process IIA.  The proposal would allow certain PWSF 
(basically, “towers” in nonresidential zones) to be reviewed through Process IIA instead 
of Process IIB.  Does Process IIA provide sufficient review for these PWSF?  If adopted 
as proposed, a related amendment to the application fee schedule provisions of the 
Municipal Code would be required as there currently is no fee established for PWSF 
proposals reviewed through Process IIA.  The purpose of this amendment is to reduce 
process in instances where a lesser process provides sufficient review.  (Ref:  117.45.3). 

7. Concealment and buffering/screening standards.  Various proposed provisions give the 
City the flexibility through the appropriate review process to approve or require alternative 



Planning Director/Houghton Community Council 

Chapter 117 – Personal Wireless Service Facilities, File No. IV-03-13 

August 19, 2005 

Page 6 

concealment, screening, or buffering measures.  Should the City have this authority?  Or 
should these issues be addressed through more prescriptive measures?  The purpose of 
these provisions are to ensure that the final appearance of PWSF fits within the site 
context.  (Ref:  117.70.1, 117.70.2, 117.70.3, 117.75.7, 117.75.8, 117.80.3, 117.80.6). 

8. Routing of cables.  Proposed Section 117.70.3.d prioritizes the routing of cables through 
the interior of the support structure, rather than on the exterior, though it does provide for 
exceptions.  Interior routing tends to result in a greater pole diameter, but with less visual 
clutter.  Exterior routing tends to result in a slimmer pole profile, but with more visible 
infrastructure.  The proposal favors the former over the latter.  Is this appropriate?  The 
goal is to achieve the most aesthetically pleasing result feasible.  (Ref:  117.70.3.d). 

9 Height of ground-mounted equipment structures in right-of-way. The proposal would limit 
such structures to 30 inches in height.  Alternatives would be to mount the equipment on 
poles (subject to restrictions) or on adjacent private property (subject to setback 
limitations).  Should the City restrict the size of these structures when located on City 
right-of-way?  If so, is the 30 inch limit appropriate?  The purpose of this amendment is to 
minimize visual clutter within the right-of-way, particularly at ground level, as well as 
minimize impediments to pedestrian/vehicular traffic movement and visibility.  (Ref:  
117.75.3). 

10. Buffering of PWSF in right-of-way.  The proposal specifically excludes PWSF that is 
subject to review as a Planning Official Decision from buffering requirements.  Is this 
appropriate?  The rationale behind this amendment is that the buffering requirements 
often transform a relatively small feature into a very large one, consuming several times 
the physical space of the feature itself.  The amendment further reflects that Planning 
Official Decisions should be reserved for straight-forward requests.  (Ref:  117.80.3). 

11. Appeals.  The proposed language in 117.100 changes the emphasis from “any affected 
party” to “the applicant”.  Is this appropriate?  Should a neighbor or affected property 
owner have the same right to appeal as an applicant?  (Ref:  117.100.1). 

Other issues should be added to this list and discussed as you deem appropriate. 

V.  CONCLUSION

The information presented above gives you an overview of the changes and policy issues 
embodied in the proposed ordinance.  There are many more details contained in Attachment 1 
that warrant your attention.  You may believe that some of these details rise to the level of policy 
issues, in which case they should be addressed more fully at the public hearing.   

We look forward to discussing the proposed ordinance with you on August 29. 

VI.  ATTACHMENTS

1. Proposed Ordinance – August 5, 2005 Draft 
2. Interpretation No. 98-2 
3. May 23, 2002 Letter from PSE 
4. July 19, 2001 Letter from Qwest 
5. Environmental Documents 



DRAFT 08/05/05 

Chapter 117 - PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITIES 

NOTE:  This view of the draft ordinance displays the proposed text changes between the existing Chapter 
117 KZC and the proposed ordinance.  Existing text that would be deleted is marked with a strike-through 

(this is an example) and new proposed wording is highlighted by an underline (this is an example),
subject to further revision resulting from the public review process. 

Sections: 
117.05 User Guide
117.10 Policy Statement
117.05 15 Definitions
117.15 20 New and Existing Facilities Applicability
117.65 Other Wireless Communications Facilities   
117.25 Exemptions       
117.30 Prohibited Devices
117.55 35 Permit Requiredment
117.25 40 Co-Location Encouraged
117.20 45 Priority of Locations Application Review Process
117.50 Pre-Submittal Meeting
117.45 55 Application Requirements
117.60 Determination of Application Completeness
117.50 65 Third Party Review
117.30 70 Design PWSF Standards 
117.75 Equipment Structure Standards
117.35 80 Landscaping/Buffering Screening
117.70 85 Modifications of Chapter Provisions
117.40 90 Non-Use/Abandonment 
117.95 Removal From City Property - When Required
117.75 100 Appeals and Judicial Review
117.105 Lapse of Approval
117.110 Complete Compliance Required
117.115 Time Limit
117.120 Compliance With Other City Codes
117.80 125 Conflict
117.60 130 Violations and City Remedies

117.05 User Guide

This Chapter establishes the conditions under which Personal Wireless Service Facilities 
(PWSF) may locate and operate in different areas of the city.  The provisions of this Chapter 
add to and in some cases supersede the other regulations of this code.  If you wish to install, 
operate, or alter PWSF in Kirkland, you should read the provisions of this Chapter.

117.10 Policy Statement

The City has received requests to site towers and antennas.  The purpose of this Chapter is 
to provide specific regulations for the placement, construction, modification and removal of 
personal wireless service facilities PWSF.  Pursuant to the guidelines of Section 704 of the 
Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, 47 USC, Chapter 5, Subchapter III, Part I, Section 
332(c)(7), the provisions of this Chapter are not intended to and shall not be interpreted to 
prohibit or to have the effect of prohibiting the provision of personal wireless services, nor 
shall the provisions of this Chapter be applied in such a manner as to unreasonably 
discriminate among providers of functionally equivalent personal wireless services.   

1



1. The goals of this Chapter are to:   

(i) a. eEncourage the location of towers in nonresidential areas and to minimize the 
total number of tall towers throughout the City,  

(ii) b. eEncourage the joint use of existing tower sites,  

(iii) c. eEncourage users of towers and antennas to locate them, to the extent possible, 
in areas where the impact on the City is minimal,  

(iv) d. eEncourage users of towers and antennas to configure them in a way that 
minimizes the visual impact of the towers and antennas,  

(v) e. sStrongly encourage the providers of personal wireless services to use 
concealment technology,  

(vi) f. pProvide standards for the siting of personal wireless service facilities PWSF and 
other wireless communications facilities (such as television and AM/FM radio 
towers), and  

(vii)g. fFacilitate the ability of the providers of personal wireless services to provide 
such services throughout the City quickly, effectively and efficiently.   

h. Prioritize the location of PWSF on existing structures such as ball field lights, 
transmission towers, utility poles or similar structures, particularly when located 
on public property.

2. Accordingly, the City Council finds that the promulgation of this Chapter is warranted 
and necessary to:

1 a. To mManage the location of towers and antennas in the City; 

2 b. To pProtect residential areas and other land uses from potential adverse impacts 
of towers and antennas; 

3 c. To mMinimize visual impacts of towers and antennas through careful design, 
siting, landscaping, screening, innovative camouflaging techniques and 
concealment technology; 

4 d. To aAccommodate the growing need for towers and antennas; 

5 e. To pPromote and encourage shared use and co-location on existing towers as a 
desirable option rather than construction of additional single-use towers; and 

6 f. To aAvoid potential damage to adjacent properties through engineering and 
proper siting of personal wireless service facilities PWSF.

117.05 15 Definitions

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them 
below: 

1. "Antenna" shall mean any exterior apparatus designed for telephonic, radio, data, 
Internet or other communications through the sending and/or receiving of radio 
frequency signals including, but not limited to, equipment attached to a tower, pole, 

2



light standard, building or other structure for the purpose of providing personal wireless 
services and its attendant base station.  Types of antennas include: 

a. An "omni-directional antenna" receives and transmits radio frequency signals in a 
360-degree radial pattern.  For the purposes of this chapter, a

b. A "whip antenna" is an omni-directional antenna that is up to 15 feet in height 
and up to four inches in diameter.   

b. c. A "directional or panel antenna" receives and transmits radio frequency signals in 
a specific directional pattern of less than 360 degrees. 

2. "Antenna height" shall mean the vertical distance measured from average building 
elevation to the highest point of the antenna, or if on a rooftop or other structure, from 
the top of the roof or structure to the highest point of the antenna.  Measurement of 
antenna height shall include the base pad, support structure, antenna, lightning rods, 
and other appurtenances.

3. "Cell site" shall mean a tract or parcel of land or building that contains the personal 
wireless service facilities PWSF including any antenna, antenna support structure, 
accessory buildings, and parking, and may include other uses associated with and 
ancillary to personal wireless services. 

4. "Co-location" shall mean the use or placement of PWSF a common personal wireless 
service facility or on a tower by two or more personal wireless service providers or by 
one personal wireless service provider for more than one type of communication 
technology. 

5. "Equipment structure" shall mean a facility, shelter, cabinet or vault used to house and 
protect the electronic equipment necessary for processing wireless communications 
signals.  Associated equipment may include, for example, air conditioning, backup 
power supplies and emergency generators. 

6. "Existing structure" shall mean, but is not limited to, a building, electrical transmission 
tower, flagpole, light standard, utility pole, water tank, and structures accessory 
structures thereto. 

7. "FAA" shall mean the Federal Aviation Administration. 

8. "FCC" shall mean the Federal Communications Commission. 

9. "Nonresidential" or "nonresidential zone" shall mean (1) all portions of the City 
(including rights-of-way adjacent thereto, measured to the centerline of the right-of-
way) in an area not zoned residential as defined in this Chapter, or (2) the I-405 or SR 
520 right-of-way. 

10. "Personal wireless services" and "personal wireless service facilities" (PWSF), as used 
in this Chapter, shall be defined in the same manner as in Title 47, United States Code, 
Chapter 5, Subchapter III, Part I, Section 332(c)(7)(C), as they may be amended now 
or in the future. 

11. “Replacement structure” shall mean a structure that replaces or is intended to replace 
an existing structure of a similar design and similar primary purpose, to enable the 
installation of new or additional PWSF on that structure.  If a “replacement structure” 
meets the definition of “tower”, it shall be considered for the purpose of regulation to be 
a “tower”.

3



11 12. "Residential" shall mean portions of the City in the following zones:  RS 35; RSX 
35; RS 12.5; RSX 12.5; RS 8.5; RSX 8.5; RS 7.2; RSX 7.2; RS 5.0; RSX 5.0; RM 5.0; 
RM 3.6; RM 2.4; RM 1.8; WD I; WD II; WD III; PLA 1; PLA 2; PLA 5A, D, E; PLA 6A, C, 
D, E, F, H, I, J, K; PLA 7A, B, C; PLA 9; PLA 15B; PLA 16; PLA 17; and P; and rights-
of-way adjacent thereto, measured to the centerline of the right-of-way.

12 13. "Tower" shall mean any structure that is designed and constructed primarily for 
the purpose of supporting one or more antennas, including any antenna support 
structure, self-supporting lattice towers or monopole towers, and does not include utility 
poles, “Tower” shall include the replacement of a utility pole if the replacement pole (a) 
is in a residential zone and will have a diameter more than 50% greater than the pole it 
replaces or a diameter greater than 16 inches; (b) is in a nonresidential zone and will 
have a diameter more than 100% greater than the pole it replaces or a diameter 
greater than 24 inches; (c) will be more than 15’ taller than the pole it replaces in any 
zone; and/or (d) results in a structure that is designed and used primarily for the 
support of one or more antennas and secondarily for the support of the utility or utilities 
supported by the utility pole being replaced.

14. “Utility pole” shall mean a structure designed and used primarily for the support of 
electrical transmission or distribution wires, telephone wires, television cable, traffic 
signals, or lighting for streets, parking areas, pedestrian paths, or ballfields, and 
includes flagpoles.

117.15 20 New and Existing Facilities Applicability

1. New Facilities - All new personal wireless service facilities PWSF, including without 
limitation antennas and towers, new equipment structures (including new equipment 
structures associated with PWSF mounted on existing structures), and replacement or
reinforcement of personal wireless service antennas and towers, shall comply with this 
Chapter unless the applicant had a vested application to site a personal wireless 
service facility PWSF under a prior version of this code, or unless specifically exempted 
by KZC 117.25.

2. Existing Facilities - All personal wireless service facilities PWSF, including without 
limitation antennas and towers, shall be allowed to continue their usage as they 
presently exist as of the effective date of this Chapter.  Routine maintenance and 
reconfiguration of antennas PWSF components, including the replacement of 
equipment structures where there is no increase in size, shall be permitted on such 
existing antennas and towers.  However, any reconfiguration that increases the height 
or number of antennas height or results in the replacement of an existing tower, shall 
be treated like a new facility.   

3. 117.65 Other Wireless Communication Facilities - All of the provisions of this Chapter, 
which address personal wireless services and personal wireless service facilities
PWSF, shall also be deemed to cover other wireless communications facilities (and, in 
particular, but without limitation, television, satellite radio, and AM/FM radio towers) to 
the maximum extent allowed by law. 

117.25 Exemptions

The following are exempt from the provisions of this Chapter and shall be permitted in all 
zones, subject to any other applicable provisions of this Code:

1. Temporary PWSF during an emergency declared by the City.

4



2. Licensed amateur (ham) radio stations.

3. Satellite dish antennas less than two meters in diameter when located in non-
residential zones, and satellite dish antennas less than one meter in diameter when 
located in residential zones, including direct to home satellite services, when used as 
an accessory use of the property.

117.30 Prohibited Devices

Except as exempted pursuant to KZC 117.25, PWSF that are not permanently affixed to a 
support structure and which are capable of being moved from location to location (e.g., “Cell 
on Wheels”) are prohibited.

117.55 35 Permit Requirement Required

In all instances, a permit must be obtained from the City before any personal wireless service 
facilities PWSF may be constructed on any public or private land or right-of-way, including I-
405, SR 520, and the Burlington Northern Railroad right-of-way, within the City limits.

117.25 40 Co-Location Encouraged

To minimize potential adverse visual impacts associated with towers, co-location of antennas 
by more than one provider on personal wireless service towers shall take precedence over 
the construction of new personal wireless service towers.  Providers are encouraged, by the 
opportunity for expedited review as provided in this Chapter, to co-locate antennas onto 
personal wireless service towers.  Unless the applicant has shown by substantial evidence 
that it has made a good faith effort to mount the antenna on an existing personal wireless 
service tower, the City may deny the application to construct a new personal wireless service 
tower.

117.20 45 Priority of Locations Application Review Process

1. An application to site a personal wireless service facility PWSF shall be subject
processed according to the criteria contained in the table below.  An application shall not be 
accepted for review unless the applicant has first satisfied the pre-submittal meeting 
requirements established by KZC 117.50.  For additional requirements pertaining to PWSF, 
equipment structures, and screening, see KZC 117.70., 117.75, and 117.80.  Only when the 
application does not meet a criteria shall the next group of criteria be considered.  The 
hierarchy of criteria is divided into three separate approval processes:  administrative 
decision, Process I permit and Process IIB permit.  The order of criteria for locating personal 
wireless service facilities shall be as follows:

Review Process Request Additional Requirements

1. Administrative 
Planning
Official
Decision 

1a) Co-location of antennas on 
existing personal wireless 
service towers in 
nonresidential zones. 

-------------------------------------------- 
2b) Attachment of antennas to 

existing structures (but not 
replacement) buildings or 
mechanical equipment 
enclosures in nonresidential 
zones. 

------------------------------------------------------------- 
i.  Only omni-directional antennas may be 

placed on top of, or extend above the 
roofline of, a building or mechanical 
equipment enclosure;

ii.  Antenna Height: wWhip antennas may 
exceed the structure height by a maximum 
of 15 feet, and other omni-directional 

5



-------------------------------------------- 
3) Equipment structures may 

not exceed 500 cubic feet 
with a 5-foot height limit in 
residential zones.

-------------------------------------------- 
4c) Antennas may to be attached 

to existing or replacement
ball field light standards, 
electrical transmission 
towers, water tanks or 
existing utility poles in 
residential zones any zone.

antennas may exceed the structure height 
by a maximum of 10 feet; 

iii. otherwise, Other facilities, such as panels,
may be mounted on one or more building 
facades or on one or more sides of a 
mechanical equipment enclosure, but may 
not project above the roofline of the 
structure to which they are attached; and  
all appurtenances and screening (including 
personal wireless service facilities) may not 
exceed 5% of the total roof area of a 
building and/or 5% of any façade of a 
building.

------------------------------------------------------------- 

------------------------------------------------------------- 
i.   Antenna Height:  If located on a water tank,

or on a utility pole that is not used to 
convey electrical service, Wwhip antennas 
may exceed the original structure height 
prior to replacement by a maximum of 15 
feet and other antennas may exceed the 
structure height by a maximum of 10 feet. 

ii.  If in a residential zone, antennas attached 
to utility poles used to convey electrical 
service may extend no higher than 15 feet 
above the electrical distribution or 
transmission conductor. 

iii. If in a non-residential zone, antennas 
attached to utility poles used to convey 
electrical service may extend no higher 
than 15 feet above an electrical distribution 
conductor, or 21 feet above an electrical 
transmission conductor.

iv. A replacement structure that will replace an 
existing utility pole may not exceed the 
diameter of the existing pole by more than 
50%, and in no case shall exceed a 
diameter of 16 inches.

2.  Process I 
Permit

1a)   New personal wireless 
service towers and 
associated equipment in 
nonresidential zones. 

--------------------------------------------- 
2 Attachment of antennas to 

existing structures in
nonresidential zones:

i.  Must be located at least a distance equal to 
100% of antenna height from any property 
line adjacent to or across the street from a 
residential use or residential zone, and in 
no case less than 10 feet from any property 
line.  See KZC 117.70.4.

ii.  Maximum allowable antenna height is a
maximum of 40 feet. 

------------------------------------------------------------- 

6



Whip antennas may exceed 
the structure height by a 
maximum of 15 feet, and other 
omni-directional antennas may 
exceed the structure height by 
a maximum of 10 feet;

Otherwise, facilities may be 
mounted on one or more 
building facades or on one or 
more sides of a mechanical 
equipment enclosure; and

All appurtenances and 
screening (including personal 
wireless service facilities) may 
not exceed 10% of the total 
roof area of a building and/or 
10% of any façade of a 
building.

---------------------------------------------
b)    Antennas to be attached to 

existing or replacement 
water tanks or utility poles in 
any zone.

--------------------------------------------- 
c)    Co-location of antennas on 

personal wireless service 
towers in a residential zone.

------------------------------------------------------------- 
i. A replacement structure that will replace an 

existing utility pole may not exceed the 
diameter of the existing pole by more than 
100%, and in no case shall not exceed a 
diameter of 24 inches.

-------------------------------------------------------------
i.  May include ancillary equipment structures.
ii.  May include structural alterations to the 

personal wireless service tower.
iii. Applicant shall demonstrate that a diligent 

effort has been made to locate the 
proposed facility in a nonresidential zone, 
and that due to valid considerations 
including physical constraints, or 
technological feasibility, no other location is 
available.

iv. The information submitted by the applicant 
shall include a map of the area to be 
served by the facility, its relationship to 
other sites in the applicant’s network, and 
an evaluation of existing available land, 
and buildings and structures taller than 30 
feet within one-quarter mile of the 
proposed site.

v.  The co-location shall not result in any 
height increase to the tower.

3.  Process IIA 
Permit

a)    Any PWSF that is in a 
nonresidential zone and is 
unable to meet the criteria 
for review as a Planning 
Official decision or Process I 
permit.

i.  The personal wireless services provider is 
required to demonstrate that it contacted 
the landowners or owners of structures 
taller than 30 feet within a one-quarter mile 
radius of the site proposed, asked for 
permission to build the personal wireless 
service tower or install the antenna on an 
existing structure, and was denied.

ii.  The information submitted by the applicant 

7



shall include a map of the area to be 
served by the facility, its relationship to 
other sites in the applicant’s network, and 
an evaluation of existing available land, 
and buildings and structures taller than 30 
feet within one-quarter mile of the 
proposed site.

3 4.  Process IIB 
Permit

1a)   Any personal wireless 
service facility PWSF that is 
unable to meet the preceding 
priority of locational criteria 
for review as an
administrative a Planning 
Official decision, or Process I 
permit, or Process IIA permit;
see also KZC 117.70.

--------------------------------------------- 
b)    Modification of standards 

contained in this Chapter, 
per KZC 117.85.

i.   An applicant for a new facility to be located 
in a residential zone shall demonstrate that 
a diligent effort has been made to locate 
the proposed facility in a nonresidential 
zone, and that due to valid considerations 
including physical constraints, or 
technological feasibility, no other location is 
available.

ii.  The personal wireless services provider is 
required to demonstrate that it contacted 
the landowners or owners of structures in
excess of taller than 30 feet within a one-
quarter mile radius of the site proposed, 
asked for permission to build the personal 
wireless service tower or install the 
antenna on an existing structure, and was 
denied. 

iii. The information submitted by the applicant 
shall include a map of the area to be 
served by the facility, its relationship to 
other sites in the applicant’s network, and 
an evaluation of existing available land, 
and buildings and structures taller than 30 
feet within one-quarter mile of the 
proposed site. 

iv. Tower height within a residential zone shall 
not exceed 40’.

------------------------------------------------------------- 
The following may not be modified:
i.  The 40-foot height limit for PWSF in 

residential zones.
ii. The 15-foot limit for antennas projecting 

above an existing or replacement utility 
pole or electrical distribution or 
transmission conductor in residential 
zones.

2. Further Process IIB Permit Requirement – (incorporated into 117.45.4 – above chart) 

117.50 Pre-Submittal Meeting

Before an application requiring review through Planning Official Decision, Process I, Process 
IIA, or Process IIB will be accepted for processing, the applicant shall attend a pre-submittal 
meeting with the Planning Official, as required by KZC 145.12, 150.12, or 152.12; provided, 
that the Planning Official may waive the pre-submittal meeting requirement for any proposal 

8



that the Planning Official deems to be substantially compliant with the provisions of this 
Chapter.

117.45 55 Application Requirements

In the course of reviewing any request for any approval required under this Chapter made by 
an applicant to install personal wireless service facilities PWSF, the City shall act within a 
reasonable period of time, taking into account the nature and scope of the request, after an 
application has been determined to be complete.  Any decision to deny such a request shall 
be in writing and supported by substantial evidence contained in a written record. 

All applications for administrative decision, Process I and Process IIB permits to locate a 
personal wireless service facility PWSF (including, but without limitation, an antenna or tower 
in the City) shall be made using forms provided by submitted to the Planning Department and 
shall be accompanied by the information and support materials identified on said forms. with
the applicable requested information (depending upon the type of facility which is involved).  
A detailed plan that complies with the submittal requirements of this Chapter, and other 
regulations and ordinances of the City, along with other pertinent information requested by 
the City shall also be submitted.  An applicant's submission may utilize any combination of 
site plans, surveys, maps, technical reports or written narratives necessary to convey the 
following information depending upon the type of facility which is involved:

1. All applicants must register their request with the City on a form provided by the City at 
the time of building permit or right-of-way use permit application.

2. A scaled site plan clearly indicating the location, type and height of the proposed tower, 
antennas, on-site land uses and zoning, adjacent land uses and zoning, adjacent 
roadways, proposed means of access, setbacks from property lines, elevation drawings 
of the proposed tower, the equipment structure, fencing, buffering and the type of 
concealment technology which will be utilized.  The full, detailed site plan shall not be 
required if the antenna is to be mounted on an existing structure.

3. Photosimulations of the proposed facility from affected residential properties and public 
rights-of-way.

4. A current map and/or aerial photograph showing the location of the proposed tower.

5. Legal description of the parcel, if applicable.

6. Approximate distance between the proposed tower and antennas, as applicable, and 
the nearest residential unit, or residentially zoned properties.

7. Information of sufficient detail to demonstrate that the equipment structure is the 
minimum size necessary.

8. A landscape plan showing specific landscape, screening and fencing materials.

9. A notarized letter signed by the applicant stating that the personal wireless service 
facilities PWSF will comply with all applicable federal and state laws, including 
specifically FCC and FAA regulations, and all City codes.

10. A notarized letter signed by the applicant stating that the antenna usage will not 
interfere with other adjacent or neighboring transmission or reception communications 
signals.

11. Manufacturers information indicating compliance with adopted noise standards.

9



12. The personal wireless services provider must demonstrate that it is licensed by the 
FCC, if required to be licensed under FCC regulations.

13. The applicant, if not the personal wireless services provider, shall submit proof of a 
lease agreement with an FCC-licensed personal wireless services provider if such 
provider is required to be licensed by the FCC.

14. Propagation maps shall be provided showing that the tower and antennas are required 
for present and future network coverage in order to satisfy the requirements of the 
provider's grid system.  The maps shall also demonstrate that the height specified is 
the minimum height necessary for the tower and antennas, as applicable.  The maps 
shall additionally show coverage areas at the requested height and at lower heights.  
Finally, they shall show the neighboring or regional facilities with which the facilities in 
the City can communicate.

15. If the site is within or adjacent to a residential zone, then a study shall be provided 
showing why alternative locations are not acceptable.

16. All providers shall submit satisfactory evidence that the facility is designed for and will 
provide services primarily for residents of the City and/or visitors within City limits.

17. See also KZC 117.40(2), Further Process IIB Permit Requirements, and KZC 117.55, 
Third Party Review.

117.60 Determination of Application Completeness

1. Planning Official Decisions:  The Planning Official shall determine as soon as possible 
after receipt of an application whether the application is complete.  If the application is 
not complete, the Planning Official shall identify and communicate the needed 
components to the applicant.  Once the application is complete, the Planning Official 
shall process the application.

2. Process I, Process IIA, and Process IIB Permits:  The determination of completeness 
for Process I, Process IIA, and Process IIB permit applications shall occur pursuant to 
the process set forth in Chapters 145, 150, and 152 KZC, respectively.

117.50 65 Third Party Review

In certain instances (including all particularly Process IIB permit applications) there may be a 
need for expert review by a third party of the technical data submitted by the personal 
wireless services provider.  The City may require such a technical review, to be paid for by 
the applicant for the personal wireless service facilities PWSF.  The selection of the third 
party expert shall be by mutual agreement between the applicant and the City, such 
agreement not to be unreasonably withheld by either party.  The third party expert shall have 
recognized training and qualifications in the field of radio frequency engineering. 

The expert review is intended to be a site-specific review of technical aspects of the personal 
wireless services, facilities and other matters as described herein, and not a subjective 
review of the site selection.  In particular, but without limitation, the expert shall be entitled to 
provide a recommendation on the height of the proposed facilities relative to the applicant's 
coverage objectives and system design parameters.  Such a review should address the 
accuracy and completeness of the technical data, whether the analysis techniques and 
methodologies are legitimate, the validity of the conclusions and any specific technical issues 
outlined by the City or other interested parties.  Based on the results of the third party review, 

10



the City may require changes to the application for the personal wireless service facilities
PWSF that comply with the recommendations of the expert. 

117.30 70 Design PWSF Standards

1. Context - The location and design of cell sites in the City shall consider the visual and 
physical impact of the site on the surrounding neighborhood and shall be designed, to 
the extent feasible, to reflect the context within which they are located.

2. Design Compatibility - Facilities PWSF shall be architecturally compatible with the 
surrounding buildings and land uses or otherwise integrated, through location, and
design, and/or concealment technology, to blend in with the existing characteristics of 
the site and streetscape to the maximum extent practical. 

3. Concealment Technology. - Concealment technology applies to all personal wireless 
service facilities, including, without limitation, antennas, towers and equipment 
structures. For any facility, “concealment technology” means the use of both existing 
and future technology through which a personal wireless service facility is designed to 
resemble an object which is already present in the local environment, such as a tree, 
streetlight, or traffic signal.  It also includes:  Typical PWSF concealment measures are 
identified herein, and shall be employed unless the City determines through the 
applicable review process that alternative measures would be more appropriate given 
the contextual setting of the PWSF:

a. For personal wireless service towers: 

 If within an existing stand of trees, "concealment technology" means that the 
tower is to shall be painted a dark color, is and be made of wood or metal., and 
that a A greenbelt easement is required to ensure permanent retention of the 
surrounding trees. 

"Concealment technology" for  t Towers in a more open setting means that they 
must shall have a backdrop (for example, but not limited to, trees, a hillside, or a 
structure) on at least two sides, be a compatible color with the backdrop, be 
made of compatible materials with the backdrop, and that provide architectural or 
landscape screening be provided for the other two sides.  If existing trees are the 
backdrop, then a greenbelt easement is required to ensure permanent retention 
of the surrounding trees. 

 In all cases where a greenbelt easement is required, it shall be the minimum 
necessary to provide screening and may be removed at the landowner's request 
in the event the facility is removed. 

 Antennas shall be integrated into the design of any personal wireless service 
tower to which they are attached.  External projections from the tower shall be 
limited to the greatest extent technically feasible. 

b. For rooftop antennas or antennas mounted on other structures: 

For o Omni-directional antennas 15 feet or less above the roof, "concealment 
technology" means use shall be of a color compatible with the roof, structure or 
background. 

For o Other antennas, "concealment technology" means shall use of compatible 
colors and architectural screening or other techniques approved by the City. 

11



 Antennas shall be integrated into the design of any existing structure or support 
structure to which they are attached.  External projections from the existing 
structure or support structure shall be limited to the greatest extent technically 
feasible. 

c. For a Antennas mounted on one or more building facades:  "Concealment 
technology" means shall (a) use of color and materials such that the facility has
to provide architectural compatibility with the building. It shall (b) be mounted on 
a wall of an existing building in a configuration as flush to the wall as technically 
possible, and shall (c) not project above the wall on which it is mounted. 

d. For equipment structures: "Concealment technology" means locating within a 
building, or if on top of a building, with architecturally compatible screening. An 
underground location, or locating above ground with a solid fence and 
landscaping, is also considered concealment technology.

d. Where feasible, cable and or conduit shall be routed through the inside of the 
support structure.  Where this is not feasible, or where such routing would result 
in a support structure of a substantially different design or substantially greater 
diameter than that of other similar structures in the vicinity or would otherwise 
appear out of context with its surroundings, the City may allow or require that the 
cable or conduit be placed on the outside of the support structure.  The outside 
cable or conduit shall be the color of the support structure, and the City may 
require that the cable be placed in conduit.

e. Optional measures for concealment may be proposed by the applicant and 
approved by the City, if the City determines through the applicable review 
process of KZC 117.45 that the optional measures will be at least as effective in 
concealing the PWSF as the measures required above.

f. Nonwithstanding the above, the manner of concealment for any PWSF that 
requires approval through Process IIA or Process IIB shall be reviewed and 
determined as part of that Process.

4. Setbacks - Ground-mounted personal wireless service facilities shall be located at least 
a distance equal to 100 percent of antenna height from any property line adjacent to or 
across the street from a residential use or residential zone; and a minimum of 10 feet 
from any property line adjacent to or across the street from all other uses or zones.
The following regulations apply, except for structures located in public right-of-way:

a. New towers shall be setback at least one (1) foot for each one (1) foot of antenna 
height from any property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential 
use or residential zone.  The street right-of-way width may be included in the 
setback measurement.  In no case shall a new tower be located closer than ten 
(10) feet to any property line.

b. Replacement of existing structures to accommodate a PWSF shall be setback at 
least the same distance as the original structure from any property line adjacent 
to or across the street from a residential use or residential zone; and the lesser of
ten (10) feet or the distance of the original structure from any property line 
adjacent to or across the street from all other uses or zones.

9 5. Tower and Antenna Height - The applicant shall demonstrate that the tower and 
antenna are the minimum height required to function satisfactorily.  Personal wireless 
service towers shall not exceed 40 feet in residential zones, as measured from the 

12



Average Building Elevation at the tower base to the highest point of the tower, antenna, 
or other physical feature attached to or supported by the tower.

6. Antennas On a Utility Pole - Antennas mounted to an existing or replacement utility 
pole in a residential zone may not project higher than 15’ above the top of the pole if 
the pole is not used to convey electrical service or more than 15’ above the electrical 
distribution or transmission conductor if the pole is used to convey electrical service.

10 7. Antennas On or Above a Structure Building, Mechanical Equipment Enclosure, or 
Water Tower - Antennas and equipment structures on or above mounted to a structure
building, mechanical equipment enclosure, or a water tower shall be subject to the 
following criteria: (standards applicable to equipment structures moved to 117.75 
below)

a. Antenna and equipment structure height is measured above the top of the roof, 
not from the parapet or from the Average Building Elevation of the building, 
mechanical equipment enclosure, or water tower.

b. Only omni-directional antennas may be roof-mounted, but may not be mounted 
on penthouse roofs.  No panel or directional antennas may be mounted on roofs 
or project above the roofline.  The “roofline” of a water tower that incorporates a 
curved roof shall be the point at which the vertical wall of the water tower ends 
and the curvature of the roof begins.

c. Whip antennas may exceed the structure height by 15 feet, and other omni-
directional antennas may exceed the structure height by 10 feet.

c d. All roof-mounted antennas must be set back from the edge of the roof a distance 
equal to 100 percent of antenna height. 

d. Roof-mounted antennas and equipment structures shall be incorporated into the 
pitched or stepped roof form, and not appear as a separate penthouse or box.

e. Roof-mounted antennas shall be consolidated and centered in the roof to the 
maximum extent feasible rather than scattered. 

f. Antennas may be attached to an existing conforming mechanical equipment 
enclosure which projects above the roof of the building, but may not project any 
higher than the enclosure. 

g. In no instance shall equipment structures, antenna and related equipment PWSF
occupy more than 25 10 percent of the total roof area of a building. 

h. 8. Historic or Landmark Locations - No antennas shall be permitted on property designed 
as a historic resource or community landmark as identified in the Comprehensive Plan, 
unless such antennas have been approved in accordance with design requirements 
pertaining to historic structures. 

i. 9. Signal Interference - No antennas shall cause localized interference with the 
transmission or reception of any other communications signals including, but not limited 
to, public safety signals, and television and radio broadcast signals. 

j. 10. Support Wires - No guy or other support wires shall be used in connection with 
antennas, antenna arrays or support structures except when required by the UBC to 
anchor the antennas, antenna arrays or support structures. 

13



5 11. Views - Personal wireless service facilities PWSF, including towers, must be located 
and oriented in such a way as to minimize view blockage. 

6 12. Lights, Signals and Signs - No signals, lights or signs shall be permitted on towers 
unless required by the FCC or the FAA. 

7. Equipment Structures - (moved to 117.75, below).

13. Noise – The installation and operation of PWSF shall comply with the noise standards 
set forth in KZC 115.95.

8 14. Federal Requirements - All towers and antennas must meet or exceed current 
standards and regulations of the FAA, the FCC and any other agency of the federal 
government with the authority to regulate towers and antennas.  If such standards and 
regulations are changed, then the owners of the towers and antennas governed by this 
Chapter shall bring such towers and antennas into compliance with such revised 
standards and regulations in accordance with the compliance deadlines and 
requirements of such standards and regulations.  Failure to bring towers and antennas 
into compliance with such revised standards and regulations shall constitute grounds 
for the removal of the tower or antenna at the owner's expense.  Additionally, if, upon 
inspection, the City concludes that a tower fails to comply with such regulations and 
standards and constitutes a danger to persons or property, then, upon notice being 
provided to the owner of the tower, the owner shall have 30 days to bring such tower 
into compliance with such standards and regulations.  If the owner fails to bring such 
tower into compliance within said 30 days, the City may remove such tower at the 
owner's expense. 

7  117.75 Equipment Structures Standards - The standards for equipment structures are as follows:

1. Maximum Size in Residential Zones - eEquipment structures may shall not exceed 500 
cubic feet and shall be no greater than 5 feet in height. with a 5-foot height limit in 
residential zones.  Equipment structure enclosures shall not exceed 500 square feet.  
These limitations shall apply to the aggregate size of all equipment structures and 
enclosures located on a single site, provided that equipment structures that are fully 
contained within a building that houses or is accessory to a principal permitted use and 
that satisfies the dimensional regulations of the underlying zone shall not be subject to 
these limitations.

b2. Maximum Size in Nonresidential Zones - Gross floor area of equipment structures shall 
be the minimum necessary but not greater than 240 square feet per provider.  
Maximum height is 10 feet above average building elevation.  These limitations shall 
not apply to equipment structures that are fully contained within a building that houses 
or is accessory to a principal permitted use and that satisfies the dimensional 
regulations of the underlying zone.

3. Equipment Structures Located in Right-of-Way - If ground-mounted, said structures 
shall not exceed a height of 30 inches.  If mounted on poles, said structures shall 
comply with 117.75.6.  Setback requirements do not apply to equipment structures 
located in the right-of-way.

4. Setbacks When Located on Private Property –
a. New Gground-mounted personal wireless service facilities equipment structures 

associated with a personal wireless service tower, where the tower is located on 
private property, shall be located at least a distance equal to 100 percent of 
antenna height from any property line adjacent to or across the street from a 

14



residential use or residential zone and in no case less than 10 feet from any 
property line;.

b. New ground-mounted equipment structures associated with antennas attached to 
existing buildings or water tanks shall be located And a minimum of 10 feet from 
any property line adjacent to or across the street from all other uses or zones.

c. New ground-mounted equipment structures associated with existing or 
replacement structures located on public right-of-way shall be setback from any 
property line a distance at least equal to the height of the new equipment, 
provided that the equipment structure complies with the sight distance 
requirements of KZC 115.135.

5. Equipment structures on or above a structure - Equipment structures on or above a 
structure shall be subject to the following criteria: 

a. Antenna and eEquipment structure height is measured above the top of the roof, 
not the parapet. 

d b. When mounted to the roof of a building with a pitched or stepped roof form,
Rroof-mounted antennas and equipment structures shall be incorporated into the 
pitched or stepped roof form, and not appear as a separate penthouse or box. 

6. Equipment structures mounted on poles or towers -

a. Equipment structures may be mounted on utility poles or towers.  The location 
and vertical clearance of such structures shall be reviewed by the Public Works 
Department to ensure that the structures will not pose a hazard to other users of 
the right-of-way.

b, Equipment structures mounted on utility poles or towers shall be located in a 
manner that minimizes clutter and visual impact.

a7. Compatibility - Equipment structures shall be designed to be compatible with the 
surrounding area in which they are located.  For example, in a residential area, a 
sloped roof or wood siding may be required.   

8. Concealment - For equipment structures: "Concealment technology" means  Typical 
concealment measures for equipment structures are identified herein, and shall be 
employed unless the City determines through the applicable review process that 
alternative measures would be more appropriate given the contextual setting of the 
equipment structure:

(a) lLocating within a building or building appendage constructed in accordance with 
all applicable City codes, or if

(b)  Locating on top of a building, with architecturally compatible screening. , 

(c)  Locating An underground location, or

(d) lLocating above ground with a solid fence and landscaping subject to the 
limitations of KZC 117.80.3, is also considered concealment technology. or

(e) If mounted on a utility pole or tower, the equipment structure shall be of a similar 
color to that of the pole or tower to which it is attached, unless alternative 
measures are approved by the City as part of the applicable review process.

c9. Noise Standards -

15



a. Equipment structures shall be oriented so that exhaust ports or outlets are 
pointed away from properties which that may be impacted by noise.  Equipment 
shall comply with noise regulations in KZC 115.95.  The City may require an 
assessment of noise after operation begins and remediation if the noise levels 
created are not within the prescribed limits.  Cumulative noise impacts will be 
measured in cases where there is more than one equipment structure. 

b. The installation and operation of equipment structures shall comply with the 
noise standards set forth in KZC 115.95

117.35 80 Landscaping/Buffering Screening

1. General - Landscaping, as described herein, shall be required to screen as much of the 
new personal wireless service tower as possible, the fence surrounding both the tower 
and any other ground level features (such as an equipment structure), and in general 
soften the appearance of the site.  The City may allow or require any other form of the 
use of concealment technology, as described in KZC 117.70.3, either instead of or in 
addition to required landscaping, if it to achieves the same degree of effective
screening as the required landscaping.  The effectiveness of visual mitigation 
techniques must be evaluated by the City, in the City's discretion, taking into 
consideration the site as built.  If the antenna is mounted on an existing building, and 
the equipment structure is housed inside the building, landscaping shall not be 
required. 

2. Existing Vegetation - Existing vegetation shall be preserved or improved, and 
disturbance of the existing topography of the site shall be minimized, unless such 
disturbance will result in less visual impact of the site on the surrounding area. 

3. Buffering - Except as provided below, Bbuffering of ground-mounted personal wireless 
service facilities PWSF shall be required around the perimeter of the facility.  
Landscape buffering shall at a minimum comply with the requirements of KZC 
95.25(3).3, (((note:  KZC reference may change due to Ch 95 revisions))) except 
that all trees must be evergreen; provided, that the City may approve or require 
optional buffering measures, if the City determines that such optional measures will 
provide effective screening.  Such optional measures include, but are not limited to, the 
following:
a. Walls or solid fencing, of a height at least as high as the equipment it screens, 

subject to KZC 117.80.4 below;
b. Architectural features, such as parapets, mechanical penthouses, or building fin 

walls.
c. Climbing vegetation supported by a structure such as a fence or trellis, of a type 

and size that will provide a dense visual barrier at least as high as the equipment 
it screens within two years from the time of planting; or

d. The natural topography of the site or the adjoining property or right-of-way.
 Buffering shall not be required for PWSF located in a public right-of-way and which is 

subject to review as a Planning Official Decision.

4. Fencing - Fencing may be allowed or required if it is needed for security purposes, or if 
it is part of concealment technology.  The use of chain link, plastic, vinyl or wire fencing 
is prohibited unless it is fully screened from public view.  Landscaping shall be installed 
on the outside of fences.  Fencing installed specifically for the purpose of screening 
ground-mounted PWSF shall not be taller than necessary to provide appropriate 
screening.

16



5. Maintenance – The applicant shall maintain the screening in good condition and shall 
replace any plants required by this chapter or approved or required as part of the 
permit approval that are unhealthy or dead.  In the event that landscaping screening is 
not maintained at the required level, the City, after giving 30 days' advance written 
notice to the provider, may maintain or establish the landscaping screening and bill 
both the landowner and provider for such costs until such costs are paid in full. 

6. Nonwithstanding the above, the manner of screening for any PWSF that requires 
approval through Process IIA or Process IIB shall be reviewed and determined as part 
of that Process.

117.70 85 Modifications of Chapter Provisions

Provisions of this Chapter shall not be subject to variances described in Chapter 120 KZC.  
However, through Process IIB, Chapter 152 KZC, the City may consider modification of 
standards in the Chapter except for: 

1. The 40-foot height limit for personal wireless service facilities towers in residential 
zones; and/or 

2. The 15-foot limit for antennas projecting above an existing or replacement utility pole or 
electrical distribution or transmission conductor in residential zones.

2. A 20-foot minimum distance between a ground-mounted personal wireless service 
facility and any property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or 
residential zone.

117.40 90 Non-Use/Abandonment

1. Bond - The City may require a bond or other suitable performance security as per 
Chapter 175 KZC to cover the costs of removal of the antenna or tower. 

2. Annual Report - The provider must confirm in writing to the City on an annual basis that 
the personal wireless service facility is still in use on a form to be provided by the City.

3 2. In the event the use of any tower or antenna will be discontinued for a period of 60 
consecutive days, the owner or operator shall so notify the City in writing, and the tower 
or antenna shall thereafter be deemed to be abandoned.  Determination of the date of 
abandonment shall be made by the City which shall have the right to request 
documentation and affidavits from the tower or antenna owner or operator regarding 
the issue of tower or antenna usage.  Upon such abandonment, the owner or operator 
of the tower or antenna or the owner of the property upon which such facility is located 
shall have an additional 60 days within which to: 

a. Reactivate the use of the tower or antenna or transfer the tower or antenna to 
another owner or operator who makes actual use of the tower or antenna; or 

b. Dismantle and remove the tower or antenna.  If such tower or antenna is not 
removed within said 60 days from the date of abandonment, the City may 
remove such tower or antenna at the facility owner's and property owner's 
expense.  If there are two or more users of a single tower, then this provision 
shall not become effective until all users cease using the tower. 

 At the earlier of 60 days from the date of abandonment without reactivation or 
upon completion of dismantling and removal, City approval of the tower or 
antenna shall automatically expire. 

17



117.95 Removal From City Property - When Required

A PWSF mounted to any City-owned property, utility pole, or other structure shall be removed 
if the City deems removal is necessary for the undergrounding of utilities, the development or 
redevelopment of City-owned property, or the demolition or alteration of a City-owned 
building or other structure.  The PWSF shall be removed at no expense to the City.

117.75 100 Appeals and Judicial Review

Appeals of administrative decisions shall be processed according to the appeal procedures
for Process I; except, that any affected party may appeal and participate in the appeal; the 
time to appeal is taken from the date of administrative decision; and distribution of the appeal 
hearing notice by the Planning Official shall be to the applicant, appellant, the official 
newspaper of the City, and posted on public notice sign(s).

1. An applicant may appeal a Planning Official decision to the Hearing Examiner.  A written 
notice of appeal shall be filed with the Planning Department within fourteen (14) days of 
the date the Planning Official’s decision was mailed or otherwise delivered to the 
applicant.  The office of the Hearing Examiner shall give notice of the hearing to the 
applicant at least seventeen (17) days prior to the hearing.  The applicant shall have the 
burden of proving that the Planning Official made an incorrect decision.  Based on the 
Hearing Examiner’s findings and conclusions, he or she may affirm, reverse, or modify 
the decision being appealed.

2. Appeals of Process I, IIA, or IIB permits are processed, and judicial review shall occur,
according to the appeal and judicial review procedures and provisions for either Process 
I, IIA, or IIB respectively. 

117.105 Lapse of Approval

The applicant must begin construction or submit to the City a complete building permit 
application for the development activity or other actions approved under this Chapter within 
one year after the final approval of the City of Kirkland on the matter, or the decision 
becomes void; provided, however, that in the event judicial review is initiated per KZC 
117.100, the running of the one year is tolled for any period of time during which a court order 
in said judicial review proceeding prohibits the development activity or other actions.  The 
applicant must substantially complete construction for the development or other actions 
approved under this Chapter and complete the applicable conditions listed on the notice of 
decision within two years after the final approval on the matter, or the decision becomes void.  
For development activity or other actions with phased construction, lapse of approval may be 
extended when approved under this Chapter and made a condition of the notice of decision.

117.110 Complete Compliance Required

1. General – Except as specified in subsection (2) of this section, the applicant must 
comply with all aspects, including conditions and restrictions, of an approval granted 
under this Chapter in order to do everything authorized by that approval.

2. Exception – Subsequent Modification – The Planning Official may approve a 
modification to the permit approved for the PWSF if:

a. The modification is minor and will not substantially change the proposed facility; 
and

18



b. The proposed modification will comply with the provisions of this Chapter in effect 
at the time of the modification request; and

c. There will not be any substantial changes in the impacts on the neighborhood or 
the City as a result of the change.

 Any modification, other than as specified in paragraph 2 of this Section, must be 
reviewed and decided upon as a new PWSF approval under this Chapter.

117.115 Time Limit

Any time limit, pursuant to Chapter 36.70B RCW, upon the City’s processing and decision 
upon applications under this Chapter may, except as specifically otherwise stated in this 
Chapter, be modified by a written agreement between the applicant and Planning Director.  In 
the event a permit constitutes or presents a special circumstance under the provisions of this 
Chapter, the time limits for the City to make a final decision and issue its notice of decision 
under Chapter 36.70B RCW are extended by the number of days that the final decision of the 
City was delayed as a result of that special circumstance.

117.120 Compliance With Other City Codes

Compliance with the provisions of this Chapter does not constitute compliance, or remove 
from the applicant the obligation to comply, with other applicable provisions of this Code, the 
Comprehensive Plan, or any other ordinance or regulation of the City including, but not 
limited to, regulations governing construction or implementing the State Environmental Policy 
Act or the Shoreline Management Act.

117.80 125 Conflict

Notwithstanding the requirements of Section 117.120 above, To to the extent that any 
provision or provisions of this Chapter are inconsistent or in conflict with any other provision 
of the Zoning Code, Comprehensive Plan or any ordinance or regulation of the City, the 
provisions of this Chapter shall be deemed to control.  Personal wireless service facilities
PWSF are permitted in the City pursuant to this Chapter notwithstanding the fact they are not 
mentioned in the use zone charts in Chapters 15 through 65 KZC. 

117.60 130 Violations and City Remedies

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be subject to the 
provisions of Chapter 170 KZC, Code Enforcement.  In addition to fines, the City shall have 
the right to seek damages and injunctive relief for any and all violations of this Chapter and all 
other remedies provided at law or in equity. 

19



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 FIFTH AVENUE KIRKLAND. WASHINGTON 98033-6189 1425) 828-1257 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Interpretation File No. 98-2 

From: Eric R. Shields, AICP 
Planning Director 

Date: December 18,1998 

Subject: &C 117.30.4: SETBACKS FOR GROUND-MOUNTED PERSONAL 
WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITY EQUIPMENT STRUCTURES 

Issue: What are the required setbacks for new ground-mounted personal wireless service facility 
equipment structures? 

INTERPRETATION 

Section 117.15.1: The provisions of Chapter 117 apply to installation of new equipment structures 
that are associated with personal wireless service facilities mounted on existing structures. 

Section 117.30.4: Setbacks from property lines adjacent to or across the street from a residential use 
or zone for ground-mounted equipment structures associated with personal wireless service 
facilities mounted on existing structures shall be equal to the vertical distance from the top of the 
roof or structure where the antenna is located, to the highest point of the antenna, including lightning 
rods or other appurtenances. 

Section 117.30.4: Setbacks from property lines to or across the street from a nonresidential use or 
zone for ground-mounted equipment structures associated with personal wireless servicc facilities 
mounted on existing structures shall be 10 feet. 

APPLICABLE CODE SECTIONS 

Section 117.15.1: New Facilities: All new personal wireless service facilities, including 
without limitation antennas and towers, and replacement of personal wireless servicc antenllas 
and towers, shall comply with this Chapter unless the applicant has a vested application to site a 
personal wireless service facility under a prior version of this code. (emphasis added) 

Section 117.30.4: Setbacks: Ground-mounted personal wireless service facilities shall be 
located at least a distance equal to 100 percent of antenna height from any property line adjacent. to 
or across the street from a residential use or residential zone; and a minimum of 10 feet from any 
property line adjacent to or across the street from all other uses or zones. 



Interpretation 98-2 
December 18, 1998 
Page 2 

Section 1 17.05.010: "Personal Wireless Services" and "Personal Wireless Service Facilities," as 
used in thischapter, shall be defined in the same manner as in Title 47, United Stales Code, Section 
332(c)(7)(C), as they may be amended now or in the future. 

Section 117.05.2: "Antenna Height" shall mean the vertical distance measured from average 
building elevation lo the highest point of the antenna, or i f  on a rooftop or other structure, from 
the top of  the roof or structure to the highest point o f  the antenna. Measurement of antenna 
height shall include the base pad, support structure, antenna, lighting rods, and other appurtenances. 
(emphasis added) 

ANALYSIS 

KZC 170.60 states that the Planning Director may issue an interpretation of any of the provisions of 
the code and interpretations shall be based on: 

a) The defined or common meaning of the words of the provision; and 
b) The general purpose of the provision as expressed in the provision; and 
c) The logical or likely meaning of the provision viewed in relation to the Comprehensive Plan. 

Defined or Common Meaning of the Words 

KZC 117.15.1 applies to new "personal wireless service facilities." KZC 117.30.4 applies to all 
ground-mounted "personal wireless service facilities." The term "personal wireless service 
facilities" is defined in Section 117.05.10, which references a portion of Federal regulations. Title 
47, US Code, Section 332(c)(7)(C) defines the term "personal wireless service facilities" as 
"facilities for the provision of personal wireless services." Equipment structures are necessary 
facilities for the provision of personal wireless services. Therefore, KZC 117.15.1 and 117.30.4 
apply to equipment structures. 

KZC 117.30.4 requires certain setbacks, depending on the adjacent land use or zone. For sites 
adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or residential zone, a setback of "100 percent of 
antenna height" is required. The term "antenna height" is defined in KZC 117.05.2. Where antennas 
are located on existing structures (such as a building, water tank or utility pole), antenna height is 
imply the "vertical distance measured ... from the top of the roof or structure to the highest point of 
the antenna."Therefore, if a 10-foot high antenna were placed on a utility pole, a 10-foot setback for 
the associated structure would be required. 

General Purpose of the Provision 

The purpose of Chapter 117 KZC is to regulate the "placement, constluction, modification and 
removal of personal wireless service facilities" (KZC 117.10). KZC 117.15.1 indicates that new 
personal wireless service facilities are to be regulated based on the provisions of Chapter 117 KZC. 



Interpretation 98-2 
December 18, 1998 
Page 3 

The purpose of the setback provision is to protect residential areas and other land uses from potential 
adverse impacts of towers and antennas, including visual impacts. 

Meaning in Relation to the Comprehensive Plan 

Policy U-1.6 states "Minimize adverse impacts on adjacent land uses through careful placement of 
cellular communication facilities and other above-ground utility installations. Utilize existing 
structures for cellular communication facilities where feasible." 

hplications of This Interpretation 

This interpretation clarifies equipment structure setbacks for a number of different types of personal 
wireless service facility installations. The following tables provide some examples of how setbacks 
would be applied to these different installations. A six-foot high antenna is used simply to make the 
chart easier to read. In those cases, the required setback is one foot of setback for each foot of 
antenna height. It should be noted that other provisions of Chapter 117 KZC might require greater 
setback if needed to mitigate noise and visual impacts. 

TABLE 1 
SETBACK FROM PROPERTY LINE ADJACENT TO OK ACROSS STREET 
FROM A RES~DENTIAL ZONE OR USE FOR NEW GROUND-MOUNTED 

EQUIPMENT STRUCTURE 

Facility Type Setback for New 

-- 
Equipment Structure* 

Existing Utility Pole or Electrical Transmission Tower 
-- 

-Top of antenna below top of poleltower 
6' 
None 

-Top of antenna 6' above top of poleltower 
-- -.. 

Taller Replacement of Existing Utility Pole or Transmission Tower 
replacing a 40'pole in the same location) 

top of pole//tower 
A - I 

below too of tank /None 
-Top of antenna <above top of tank 

I 

16' 1 
Personal Wireless Service Tower 

-- 
antenna below top of PWS tower 

*Setback does not apply to equipment structures located on public right-of-way. 

For property lines adjacent to or across street from a nonresidential use or zone, a minimum 10-foot 
setback is required for ground-mounted equipment structures. 



May 23,2002 

: PSI3 clearsoce distances 

To whom it may concern, 2 

PSE's safe working clearances are based on NESC requiremenls and PSE Une Work 
Practices. The minimum clearance distance for Dlsrrlbution is 7 ft. As a general rule, PSE 
has established a clearance distance of 10 ft for non-power eqplprnent above Dlstribution 
conductor. Where condltlona dictate, we have reduced this clistance down to 7 ft. We prefer 
not hevlng to do this, as it allows for just the mlnlrnurn safe wolking clearance for our crews. 

The minimum safe working clearance for Trensmlsslon is lof t .  However, this dlstance 
increases as the voltage of the line Increases. Again. as a general rule. PSE has established 
a clearance dlstance of 15 ft for non-power equipment above l'ransmission conductor. In 
some instances, we have reduced this down to 10 ft. 

For clearance below Dlstribution, the NESC has established 40 inches as the Safety Space 
from energized conduotor. Thls distance is usually measured from the system neutral which 
is attached 7 ft. below the primary, normally at a height of 26 - 27 ft above grade. 

The code Is not as clear wlth regard to clearance below Transtnlssion. On a transmission 
only pole (no distribution under build) the minimum 10 ft rule would apply. In Instances where 
there Is dlsrrlbution under bolit, only quallfled electrical worker% would be permitted to access 
the equipment. Thus, In theory, the dlstence could be shortened. However, PSE has not 
given this Issue sufficient review and defeults to the 10 ft mlnlrpum clearance distance below 
Transmission. 

Anyone having questions regarding PSE clearances, standards and work practices may contact 
me at (425) 456 - 2776. 

Wirless Co-Location Project Mnrlager 



450 110th Avenue NE, Suite 209 
Bellevue, WA 98004 

Fax 425.451 ,6310 

July 19, 2001 

Eric R. Shields, AlCP 
Director, Planning & Community Development 
City of Kirkland 
123 Fifth Avenue 
Kirkland, WA 98033-61 89 

Qwest 

RE: Code Amendment - Chapter 11 7 
n- 

Dear && 54-  el s: 

On  behalf of Qwest Wireless, I request that the City of Kirkland consider a code 
amendment to Chapter 11 7 of the Kirkland Municipal Code (KMC). Specifically, 
Section 11 7.20 of the KMC limits the extension of utility poles to 10 feet for the 
purposes of attaching personal wireless service facility (PWSF) antennas. As was 
discussed at our meeting on July 1 I"', Puget Sound Energy requirements are for 15 
feet of clearance between the conductors on the utility pole and the toe of the PWSF 
antennas. This clearance can be reduced in some, but not all cases to a minimum 
of 10 feet. 

As the current code is  written all utility pole PSWF's would be subject to a Type IIB 
Process. Given the KMC designates the utility pole as a high priority for PWSF's, 
subjecting this class of PWSF to a Type IiB.:@ocess acts as a disincentive for this type 
of facility. A more realistic standard for this type of PWSF would be to allow the 
extension of utility poles the minimum distance needed to achieve necessary safety 
clearances from utility lines as determined by the appropriate utility. In the case of 
PSE, this would require extensions of approximately 20 to 22 feet rather than the 
existing 10-foot limitation. 

As per our discussion at the July 11 meeting, I have attached photographs of other 
installations that are similar in appearance to what i s  proposed under the requested 
code revision. The photos show wireless facilities in the cities of Federal Way and 
Mercer Island. The separation between the conductors and the toe of the antennas 
is in the 15 to 17 foot range approximately. As you will note, the antennas are flush 
mounted and in the case of the color photos (Qwest Wireless Federal Way facility) 
the antennas are painted to closely match the color of the utility pole to further 
camouflage the facility. 

- . ' - ~ ~ ~ s ~ , ~ . ~ - ~ < + ' w . - * * i ~ ' % . - m % . .  -iar;.r.r.? 

~ , ~ r r . ~ , ~ t . i ? d ~ ~ < r ~ ~ / i l  /il/il/il/il./il..... 1" 
kit-E hi0.~-0?-/3 . ____-_-..~_l__.._.._.p,O,, 

~ ~ ~ ' ~ ~ - ~ , ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ * 7 . ~ \ > ~ - 2 s . ~ ~ . . ~ ~ . ~ . . . , ~ . ~  



Again, thank you and Nancy Cox for taking time to meet on July I lIh to discuss 
these concerns. If you have any questions, require additional information, or would 
like Qwest to arrange a meeting with representatives from other wireless service 
providers regarding this issue or any other related to wireless facilities please feel 
free to contact me at (425) 652-5730. 

.   and U@ ~ i r e c t o r  
Odelia Pacific Corporation 
Agent for Qwest Wireless 

cc: Nancy Cox, City of Kirkland 
Rebecca Slick, Qwest Wireless 
Adam Mihlstin, Qwest Wireless 
Allison Yuen, Odelia Pacific Corporation 

attachments 

1I-i~ now 









CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 FIFTH AVENUE, KIRKLAND, WASHINGTON 98033-6189 

DETERMINATION OF NONSlGNlFlCANCE (DNS) . 
CASE #: SEP03-00007 DATE ISSUED: 6/24/2005 

DESCRlPTlON OF PROPOSAL -. -. .- -- .- - -- .- .- - - -  -- . 

Amendments to Kirkland Zoning Code Chapter 117 -Personal Wireless 
Communication Facilities. 

PROPONENT: 
LOCATION OF PROPOSAL - - - - - - - - - - - .- .- . . - - - - -. -- - - - 
CITY-WIDE 

LEAD AGENCY is The City of Kirkland 

The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable significant 
adverse imoact on the environment. An environmental imwact statement (EIS) is not reauired 
under RCW 43.21.030 (2) (c). This decision was made affer review of a cbmileted 
environmental checklist and other information on file with the lead agency. This information is 
available to the public upon request. 

There is no comment period for this DNS. 

Eric Shields, Director 
Department of Planning and Community Development 
425-587-3225 

Address: City of Kirkland 
123 Fifth Avenue 
Kirkland, WA 98033-61 89 

You may appeal this determination to NANCY COX at Kirkland City Hall, 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA 98033 no later than 5:00 p.m., Friday, July 08, 2005 by  
WRITTEN NOTICE OF APPEAL. 

You should be prepared to make specific factual objections. Contact Nancy Cox to read or ask 
about the procedures for SEPA appeals. 

Please reference case # SEP03-00007. 

cc: Case # IV-03-13 

Co- d-l-05 

Distributed B ~ : ~  Date: 
SEPA-A, rev: 612412005 



CITY OF KIRKLAND 
123 FIRTH AVENUE KIRKLAND, WASHINGTON 98033-6189 (206) 828-1257 

-- - 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Eric Shields, AICP, SEPA Responsible Official 

From: Michael Bergstmm, AICP, Consultant J$@' 

Date: June 22,2005 

File: SEP03-00007 

Subject: ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION FOR AMENDMENTS TO CHAWEK 
117 KZC -PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITIES; FILE NO. 1V-08-13 
96 CITY OF KIRKLAND, APPLICANT 

Background: 

The City of Kirkland is proposing a thorough re-write of Chapter 117 KZC -Personal Wireless 
Service Facilities. Once adopted, a new Chapter I17 will replace the current Chapter 117. Thc 
proposal restructures and reorganizes Chapter 117, clarifies provisions, and adds ncw Sections 
(User Guide, Exemptions, Prohibited Devices, Pre-Submittal Meeting, Determination or  
Application Completeness, Equipment Structure Standards, Rcmoval From City Property - 
When Required, Lapse of Approval, Complete Compliance Required, Time Limit, Compliance 
With Other City Codes). 

The proposal adds or revises several definitions, clarifies and modifies the required review 
process for different types of PWSF proposals, revises and adds flexibility to concealment 
technology and screening requiremcnts, separates standards for antennas from standards for 
equipment structures for clarity, and increase the allowable height of antenna above electrical 
lines on utility poles, among other changes. A cornplete copy of the proposal is attached to the 
Environmental Checklist, enclosed. The proposal is likely to change to some extent as a result of 
industry and public input during the public review process. 

The proposal is considered a "Non-Project Action" pursuant to WAC 197-1 1-704(2)(b)(ii) 
(SEPA Definitions). The proposal is not categorically exempt from the environmental review 
requirements pursuant to WAC 197-1 1-800, and therefore an Environmental Chccklist and 



Eric Shields 
June 22,2005 
Page 2 

Threshold Determination are required. An environmental checklist has been prepared for this 
action, and is enclosed. 

Environmental Issues 

Due to the non-project nature of the proposed amendments, no environmental issues were 
identified. Future development projects proposed in accordance with the amendments will be 
subject to, and reviewed pursuant to, the applicable provisions of SEPA. 

Conclusions and Recommendation: 

Based on my review of all available information and adopted policies of the City, I recommend 
that a Determination of Nan-Significance (DNS) be issued for this proposal. 

SEPA ENCLOSURES 

Environmental Checklist, with proposal attached. 

. . ~ - - - - - - - - - - ~ ~ ~ - - - ~ ~ ~ - - ~ ~ ~ ~ - - - - - - ~ ~ ~ . . . ~ ~ - - - ~ ~ - - - - - ~ - - - - - - - - ~ ~ ~ ~  

Review by Responsible Official: 

I concur /' 

I do not concur 

Comnlents: 

6 / 4 0 b  
Eric Shields, Director / Datc 



CITY OF KIRKLAND ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

Purpose of Checklist: 

The State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), Chapter 43.21C RCW, requires all governmental agencies to consider the environmental impacts of a 
proposal before making decisions. An environmental impact statement (EIS) must he prepared for all proposals with probable significant adverse 
impacts on the quality of the environment. The purpose of this checklist is to provide information to help you and the City identify impacts from 
your proposal, and to reduce or avoid impacts from the proposal, whenever possible 

Instructions for Applicants: 

This environmental checklist asks you to describe some basic information about your proposal. Answer the questions briefly with the most precise 
information known, or give the best description you can. 

You must answer each question accurately and carefully to the best of your knowledge. In most cases, you should be able to answer the questions 
from your own observations or project plans without the need to hire experts. If you really do not know the answer, or if a question does not apply 
to your proposal, write "do not know" or "does not apply." Complete answers to the questions now may avoid unnecesssuy delays later. 

Some questions ask about governmental regulations, such as zoning, shoreline, and landmark designations. Answer these questions if you can. If 
you have problems, the City staff can assist you. 

The checklist questions apply to all parts of your proposal, even if you plan to do them over a period of time or on different parcels of land. Attach 
any additional information that will help describe your proposal or its environmental effects. The City may ask you to explain your answers or 
provide additional information reasonably related to determining if there may be significant adverse impacts. 

Use of Checklist for Non-project Proposals: 

Complete this checklist for non-project proposals also, even though questions may be answered "does not apply." IN ADDITION, complete the 
SUPPLEMENTAL SHEET FOR NON-PROJECT ACTIONS (Part D). 

For non-project actions, the references in the checklist to the words "project," "applicant," and "property or site" should be read as "proposal," 
"proposer," and "affected geographic area," respectively. 

A. BACKGROUND 

1. Name of proposed project, if applicable: Zoning Code Amendments - Chapter 11 7 KZX- Personal Wireless Service Facilities. 
File No. ZV-03-9. 

C \Doiumeair red S~l:il;qr\\lichari BrrjitronWy Docmlcnrs\OZO4 COK Ch i 17,0201 SEPA\0204 Enu Chkii doc 6 22 2005 Page 1 of 14 x i O l o i O o i ~ c  



Name of applicant: City of Kirkland. 

Tax parcel number: City-wide. 

Address and phone number of applicant and contact person: 

Arancy Cox, Development Review  manager, Planning & Community Development, City of Kirkland, 123 F$h Avenue, Kirkland, WA 
98033-6189. (425) 587-3228. 

Date checklist prepared: 

Agency requesting checklist: 

Ciiy of Kirkland. 

Proposed timing or schedule (including phasing, if applicable): 

Amendments are anticipated to be adopted by City Council in Fall, 2005. 

Do you have any plans for future additions, expansion, or further activity related to or connected with this proposal? 

New personal wireless service facilities (PWSF) will be subject to the amendedprovisions of Chapter I1 7 KZC, upon adoption of 
the proposal by the City Council. 

List any environmental information you know about that has been prepared, or will be prepared, directly related to this proposal. 

None, 

Do you know whether applications are pending for governmental approvals of other proposals directly affecting the property covered 
by your proposal? If yes, explain. 

List any government approvals or permits that will be needed for your proposal, if known. 

City Council adoption of the proposed amendments by ordinance. Houghton Community Council approval or lack of disapproval 
for amendments within its jurisdiction. 

C ~Docul!~mis and S~otngiiiMichn.l Ber(lrrram\~\ly Dacumenti\O?Od COK CD 117\0204 SEPAIO204 Enr ChMl doc 6 Z i  2005 Page 2 of 14 



12. Give brief, complete description of your proposal, including the proposed uses, the size and scope of the project and site including 
dimensions and use of all proposed improvements. There are several questions later in this checklist that ask you to describe certain 
aspects of your proposal. You do not need to repeat those answers on this page. 

The proposal consists of a thorough re-write of Chapter 11 7 KZC governing Personal Wireless Service Facilities in the city of 
Kirkland. Upon adoption, a new Chapter 11 7 will replace the current Chapter 11 7. The proposal restructures/reorganizes Chapter 
117, clarzjes provisions, and adds new Sections (User Guide, Exemptions, Prohibited Devices, Pre-Submittal Meeting, 
Determination of Application Completeness, Equipment Structure Standards, Removal From City Property - When Required, Lapse 
of Approval, Complete Compliance Required, Time Limit, Compliance With Other City Codes). It adds or revises several 
dejnitions, clariJies and mod@es the required review process for different types of PWSFpropo~als, revises and addsjlexibility to 
concealnzent technology and screening requirements, separates standards for antennas fram standards for equipment structuresfor 
clarity, and increases the allowable height of antenna above electrical lines on utility poles, among other changes. A complete copy 
of the proposal is attached to this checklist. The proposal is likely to change to some extent as a result of industry and public input 
during the pzlblic review process. 

13. Location of the proposal. Give sufficient information for a person to understand the precise location of your proposed project, 
including a street address, if any, and section, township, and range, if known. If a proposal would occur over a range of area, provide 
the range or boundaries of the site(s). Provide a legal description, site plan, vicinity map, and topographic map, if reasonably 
available. While you should submit any plans required by the agency, you are not required to duplicate maps or detailed plans 
submitted with any permit applications related to this checklist. 

The proposed amendments will apply ciiy-wide 

C \Doiumcsr and Sert in~rb~l ichael Ber~r!rom\My Documenii\0204 COK Ch i )'A0204 SEPA\0204 Env Chkii doc 6 21 2005 Page 3 of 14 



TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT EVALUATION FOR 
AGENCY USE ONLY 
REVIEWED BY: 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS 

1. EARTH 

a. General description of the site (circle one): Flat, rolling, hilly, steep, slopes, 
mountainous, other 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

h. What is the steepest slope on the site (approximate percent slope)? 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

c. What general types of soils are found on the site (for example, clay, sand, gravel, 
peat, muck)? If you know the classification of agricultural soils, specify them and 
note any prime farmland. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

d. Are there surface indications or history of unstable soils in the immediate vicinity? 
If so, describe. 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

e. Describe the purpose, type, and approximate quantities of any filling or grading 
proposed. Indicate source of fill. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

f. Could erosion occur as a result of clearing, construction, or use? If so, generally 
describe. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

g. About what percent of the site will be covered with impervious surfaces after project 
construction (for example, asphalt, buildings)? 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

h. Proposed measures to reduce or control erosion, or other impacts to the earth, if any: 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

2. AIR 

a. What types of emissions to the air would result from the proposal (i.e., dust, 
automobile, odors, industrial wood smoke) during construction and when the project 

C >Docun!esr and SerrirgriUichacl B~rgrrramiUy DocumcnfriO204 COK Ch 117\0204 SEPA\O:O4 Env Chklr doc 6 21 ZOOS Page 4 of 14 



is completed? If any, generally describe and give approximate quantities, if known. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

b. Are there any off-site sources of emissions or odor that may affect your proposal? If 
so, generally describe. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control emissions or other impacts to air, if any: 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

3. WATER 

a. Surface 

1) Is there any surface water body on or in the immediate vicinity of the site 
(including year-round and seasonal streams, saltwater, lakes, ponds, 
wetlands)? If yes, describe type and provide names. If appropriate, state what 
stream or river it flows into. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

2) Will the project require any work over, in, or adjacent to (within 200 feet) the 
described waters? If yes, please describe and attach available plans. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

3) Estimate the amount of fill and dredge material that would be placed in or 
removed from surface water or wetlands and indicate the area of the site that 
would be affected. Indicate the source of fill material. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

4) Will the proposal require surface water withdrawals or diversions? Give 
general description, purpose, and approximate quantities if known. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

5 )  Does the proposal lie within a 100-year floodplain? If so, note location on the 
site plan. 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

6 )  Does the proposal involve any discharges of waste materials to surface 
waters? If so, describe the type of waste and anticipated volume of discharge. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

c ~ D ~ ~ ~ ~ . ~ : E  wc setrlagii\lichnri aergi:rom~~y Doiu.ncnri'0204 COK ch 111!020~SEP"0201 E,,V CLU; dcr G 2 1  z c o j  Page 5 of 14 



b. Ground 

1) Will ground water be withdrawn, or will water be discharged to ground water? 
Give general description, purpose, and approximate quantities if known. 
N/A - Proposal is a non-project action. 

2) Describe waste material that will be discharged into the ground from septic 
tanks or other sources, if any (for example: Domestic sewage; industrial, 
containing the following chemicals ...; agricultural; etc.) Describe the general 
size of the system, the number of such systems, the number of houses to be 
served (if applicable); or the number of animals or humans the system(s) are 
expected to serve. 
N/A - Pro~osal is a non-project action. 

c. Water Runoff (including storm water): 

1) Describe the source of runoff (include storm water) and method of collection 
and disposal, if any (include quantities, if known). Where will this water 
flow? Will this water flow into other waters? If so, describe. 
N/A - Provosal is a non-vroiect action. 

2) Could waste materials enter ground or surface waters? If so, generally 
describe. 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

d. Proposed measures to reduce or control surface, ground, and runoff water impacts, if 
any: 
N/A - Proposal is a non-project action. 

4. PLANTS 

a. Check or circle types of vegetation found on the site: 

deciduous tree: alder, maple, aspen, other - 
evergreen tree: fir, cedar, pine, other - 
shrubs 
grass - 
pasture 
crop or grain - 
wet soil plants: cattail, buttercup, bullrush, skunk cabbage, other - 
water plants: water lily, eelgrass, milfoil, other - 

C \Documents and Scitin~r!.W~hael BergsrronliMy Documenii'0204 COK Ch 117\0204 SEPA\0204 Env Chtlt doc 6 21 2005 Page 6 of 14 



other types of vegetation - 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

b. What kind and amount of vegetation will be removed or altered? 
NIA - Proposal is a non-oroiect action. 

c. List threatened or endangered species known to be on or near the site. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

d. Proposed landscaping, use of native plants, or other measures to preserve or enhance 
vegetation on the site, if any: 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

5. ANIMALS 

a. Circle any birds and animals which have been observed on or near the site or are 
known to be on or near the site: 

birds: hawk, heron, eagle, songbirds, other 
mammals: deer, bear, elk, beaver, other 
fish: bass, salmon, trout, herring, shellfish, other 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

b. List any threatened or endangered species known to be on or near the site. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

c. Is the site part of a migration route? If so, explain. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

d. Proposed measures to preserve or enhance wildlife, if any: 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

6. ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

a. What kinds of energy (electric, natural gas, oil, wood stove, solar) will be used to 
meet the completed project's energy needs? Describe whether it will be used for 
heating, manufacturing, etc. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

b. Would your project affect the potential use of solar energy by adjacent properties? 
If so, generally describe. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

c s~ocumesi  *ad ~ ~ ~ ~ i ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ i  B ~ : ~ ~ : ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ I ~  Daruren:si3204 COK ch I 1710204 S E P A I O ~ O ~  €mu chkir doc 6 21 2005 Page 7 of 14 



c. What kinds of energy conservation features are included in the plans of this 
proposal? List other proposed measures to reduce or control energy impacts, if any: 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

a. Are there any environmental health hazards, including exposure to toxic chemicals, 
risk of fire and explosion, spill, or hazardous waste, that could occur as a result of 
this proposal'? If so, describe. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

1) Describe special emergency services that might be required. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

2) Proposed measures to reduce or control environmental health hazards, if any: 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

b. Noise 

1) What types of noise exist in the area which may affect your project (for 
example: traffic, equipment, operation, other)? 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

2) What types and levels of noise would be created by or associated with the 
project on a short-term or a long-term basis (for example: traffic, 
construction; operation, other)? Indicate what hours noise would come from 
the site. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

3) Proposed measures to reduce or control noise impacts, if any: 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

8. LAND AND SHORELINE USE 

a. What is the current use of the site and adjacent properties? 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

b. Has the site been used for agriculture? If so, describe. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

c. Describe any structures on the site 

c i ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ t ~  and SeiiingiiMtcha~l ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ t ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ i ~ ~  ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ i ~ \ o z o ~  COK ch i iiioz04 SEPA\OZO~ E"V ch\it doc 6 21 200s Page 8 of 14 



"uorpe palo~d-uou e s! psodold - ~JN 
,8u!snoy auro~u!-mo~ lo 'a[pp!cu 'yr9!y 

JawayM ale3!pu1 Lpaleu!ur!ra aq ppoM 'Km J! 'spun Kuew MO~ Klalew!xo~ddv .q 

'luawuro:, ~[qnd al!Au! 01 pray aq 
[[!M au!*eay 3gqnd 7~ 'ssa30ld ~apa.7 qqnd E yanoxq) pa.aa!AaI aq II!M [asodo~d 

:Lug 31 'sueid puv sasn pue[ 
pal3afold pue 8u!~s!xa q)!~ alq!leduro3 s! 1esodo~d ay) aJnsua 01 samseaur pasodold .y 

.uo!l3e 13a!old-uou e s! resodold - V/N 
ja3e[ds!p pa fold pala~dwo:, ayl pInoM ardoad Luew .&toy X~aiew!xo~dd~ .! 

'UO!l3Q l3a!old-uou G ST IeSOdOld - VjN 
,pafold pala1dwo3 aq) u: ~JOM lo ap!sal ppoM ardoad Kuew ~oy K[aiew!xolddv .y 

'0s JI Leal&? ,,aqsuas Lr1-eluauruol!~ua,, ue se parJ!ssep uaaq al!s ayljo ir-ed KGG SQH .B 



10. AESTHETICS 

a. What is the tallest height of any proposed structure(s), not including antennas; what 
is the principal exterior building material(s) proposed? 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

b. What views in the immediate vicinity would be altered or obstructed? 
NIA - Proposal is a non-vroiect action. 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control aesthetic impacts, if any: 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

1 1. LIGHT AND GLARE 

a. What type of light or glare will the proposal produce? What time of day would it 
mainly occur? 
N/A - Proposal is a non-project action. 

b. Could light or glare from the finished project be a safety hazard or interfere with 
views? 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

c. What existing off-site sources of light or glare may affect your proposal? 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

d. Proposed measures to reduce or control light and glare impacts, if any: 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

12. RECREATION 

a. What designated and informal recreational opportunities are in the immediate 
vicinity? 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

b. Would the proposed project displace any existing recreational uses? If so, describe. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts on recreation, including recreation 
opportunities to be provided by the project or applicant, if any: 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

13. HISTOHCAL AND CULTURAL PRESERVATION 

C 'Documear and SeaingAVlMVhaol Bergiiion>iMy Documentilo204 COK Ch i 17\0204 SEPAjO204 Env C&Il doc 6 21 2005 Page 10 of 14 



a. Are there any places or objects listed in, or proposed for, national, state, or local 
preservation registers known to be on or next to the site? If so, generally describe. 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

b. Generally describe any landmarks or evidence of historic, archaeological, scientific, 
or cultural importance known to be on or next to the site. 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts, if any: 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

14. TRANSPORTATION 

a. Identify public streets and highways serving the site, and describe proposed access 
to the existing street system. Show on-site plans, if any. 
N/A - Proposal is a non-project action. 

b. Is site currently served by public transit? If not, what is the approximate distance to 
the nearest transit stop? 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

c. How many parking spaces would the completed project have? How many would 
the project eliminate? 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

d. Will the proposal require any new roads or streets, or improvements to existing 
roads or streets, not including driveways? If so, generally describe (indicate 
whether public or private). 
N/A - Proposal is a non-project action. 

e. Will the project use (or occur in the immediate vicinity of) water, rail, or air 
transportation? If so, generally describe. 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

f. How many vehicular trips per day would be generated by the completed project? If 
know, indicate when peak volumes would occur. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

g. Proposed measures to reduce or control transportation impacts, if any: 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

c ' D ~ ~ ~ ~ . ~ ~ ~  and S ~ ~ , , ~ S ~ ~ ~ I , C ~ . ~ I  B F ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ c ~ ~ ~  D O C W ~ ~ ~ ~ S ~ O Z O C  COK ch 117l0204 SEPAIOZO? E"V cuii doc s 2 1  2005 Page 11 of 14 



15. PUBLIC SERVICES 

a. Would the project result in an increased need for public services (for example: fire 
protection, police protection, health care, schools, other)? If so, generally describe. 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

b. Proposed measures to reduce or control direct impacts on public services, if any. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

16. UTILITIES 

a. Circle utilities currently available at the site: electricity, natural gas, water, refuse 
service, telephone, sanitary sewer, septic system, other 
N/A - Proposal is a non-proiect action. 

b. Describe the utilities that are proposed for the project, the utility providing the 
service, and the general construction activities on the site or in the immediate 
vicinity which might be needed. 
NIA - Proposal is a non-project action. 

C. SIGNATURE 

The above answers are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I understand that the 
lead agency is relying on them to make its decision. 

Signature: 

Date Submitted: 

C U)acumenfr and Sc;!ingrlMichael BeryrtromlLiy Docurnen#r\0204 COK Ch i 1710204 SEPA\OZ04 Enu Chklr doc 6 21 ZOO5 Page 12of 14 



D. SUPPLEMENTAL SHEET FOR NONPROJECT ACTIONS 

(Do not use this sheet for project actions) 

Because these questions are very general, it may be helpful to read them in conjunction with 
the list of the elements of the environment. 

When answering these questions, be aware of the extent the proposal, or the types of activities 
likely to result from the proposal, would affect the item at a greater intensity or at a faster rate 
than if the proposal were not implemented. Respond briefly and in general terms. 

1.  How would the proposal be likely to increase discharge to water; emissions to air; 
production, storage, or release of toxic or hazardous substances; or production of noise? 
The proposed amendments will have no effect on these elements of the environment. 

Proposed measures to avoid or reduce such increases are: 
None necessary. 

2. How would the proposal be likely to affect plants, animals, fish, or marine life? 
The proposed amendments will not affect plants, animals. fish. or marine life. 

Proposed measures to protect or conserve plants, animals, fish, or marine life are: 
None necessary. 

3. How would the proposal be likely to deplete energy or natural resources? 
The proposed amendments will not deplete energy or natural resources. 

Proposed measures to protect or conserve energy and natural resources are: 
None necessary. 

4. How would the proposal be likely to use or affect environmentally sensitive areas or areas 
designated (or eligible or under study) for governmental protection; such as parks, 
wilderness, wild and scenic rivers, threatened or endangered species habitat, historic or 
cultural sites, wetlands, floodplains, or prime farmlands? 
The proposed amendments will not use or affect environmentally sensitive areas. 

Proposed measures to protect such resources or to avoid or reduce impacts are: 
None necessary. 

5 .  How would the proposal be likely to affect land and shoreline use, including whether it 
would allow or encourage land or shoreline uses incompatible with existing plans? 
The proposal will amend the City's regulations governing the siting of personal Wireless 

c  ID^^^^^^^^^ and s ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ , ~ ~ ~ . I B ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ " L ~  ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 1 o 2 o ~  COK ca 117',0204 SEPMO204 E"V c ~ t  doc 6 2 1  2001 Page 13 of 14 



Service Facilities within the Kirkland city limits. It encourages the location of PWSF 
towers in nonresidential areas and prioritizes the location of PWSF on existing structures. 
particui>rl\ in thc public right-ot-\\a\.. I~<.it>blijhcs standxds for conc~alment and 
scrccninr to minimize thc isi~al :ind >sstl~ct&i.n~;+ctj o i  P\\.SF on surroundine uses. ?'he -- - - -. . . -- - 
pro~>oie;t inlzndmznrs \ \ i l l  nor alla\c or encouraze 1nn;i ar shoreline uses incomtnrihle 
with existing plans. 

Proposed measures to avoid or reduce shoreline and land use impacts are: 
None necessaw. 

6 .  How would the proposal be likely to increase demands on transportation or public services 
and utilities? 
The proposed amendments will have no effect on transportation. public services, or 

Proposed measures to reduce or respond to such demand(s) are: 
None necessary. 

7. Identify, if possible, whether the proposal may conflict with local, state, or federal laws or 
requirements for the protection of the environment. 
The proposal will not conflict with such requirements. 

C 'Oocumenii and Sealngi\iMichacl BeigitionWIy Docurnintl\0204 COK Ch 117\0204 SEPAi02Od Env ChWr doc 6 21 2001 Page 14 of 14 



ORDINANCE 4045

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO ZONING, 
PLANNING, AND LAND USE AND AMENDING TITLE 23 (THE 
KIRKLAND ZONING CODE) OF THE KIRKLAND MUNICIPAL CODE; 
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 117 OF THE KIRKLAND 
ZONING CODE REGULATING THE SITING OF PERSONAL WIRELESS 
SERVICE FACILITIES, MODIFYING THE CHAPTER ORGANIZATION, 
CLARIFYING PROVISIONS, ADDING NEW SECTIONS, AND REVISING 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO DEFINITIONS, SCREENING 
REQUIREMENTS, REVIEW PROCEDURES, ALLOWABLE HEIGHT, AND 
OTHER COMPONENTS OF CHAPTER 117 KZC  (FILE NO. IV-03-13). 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has received from the Kirkland Planning Director a 
recommendation to amend Chapter 117 of the Kirkland Zoning Code – Personal Wireless 
Service Facilities, Ordinance 3719 as amended (Title 23 of the Kirkland Municipal Code), 
and bearing Kirkland Department of Planning and Community Development File No. IV-
03-13; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the City of Kirkland’s Concurrency Management 
System, KMC Title 25, this action is exempt from the concurrency management process; 
and

 WHEREAS, prior to making said recommendation, the Planning Director and 
Houghton Community Council, following notice thereof as required by RCW 35A.63.070, 
on August 29, 2005, and January 10, 2006, jointly held public hearings on the 
amendment proposal and considered the comments received at the hearings; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the State Environmental Policy Act, there has 
accompanied the proposal and recommendation through the entire consideration process 
a Determination of Nonsignificance (DNS) issued by the Responsible Official, including 
supporting environmental documents, issued by the responsible official on June 27, 
2005, pursuant to WAC 197-11-340 and WAC 197-11-390; and

 WHEREAS, in regular public meeting the City Council considered the 
environmental documents received from the responsible official, together with the report 
and recommendation of the Planning Director; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Kirkland do ordain as follows: 

Section 1.  Chapter 117 of Ordinance 3719 as amended, the Kirkland Zoning 
Code (Title 23 of the Kirkland Municipal Code), is amended to read as set forth in 
Attachment A which by this reference is incorporated herein. 

Section 2. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, part or portion 
of this ordinance, including those parts adopted by reference, is for any reason held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

Section 3.  To the extent the subject matter of this ordinance, pursuant to 
Ordinance 2001, is subject to the disapproval jurisdiction of the Houghton Community 
Council, this ordinance shall become effective within the Houghton Community Municipal 
Corporation only upon approval of the Houghton Community Council or the failure of said 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. d. (1).



Community Council to disapprove this ordinance within 60 days of the date of the 
passage of this ordinance, but in no event sooner than thirty (30) days from and after its 
passage by the Kirkland City Council and publication, as provided in Section 4. 

Section 4.  Except as provided in Section 3, this ordinance shall be in full force 
and effect thirty days from and after its passage by the Kirkland City Council and 
publication, pursuant to Section 1.08.017 Kirkland Municipal Code, in the summary form 
attached to the original of this ordinance and by this reference approved by the City 
Council, as required by law. 

Section 5. A complete copy of this ordinance shall be certified by the City Clerk, 
who shall then forward the certified copy to the King County Department of Assessments. 

PASSED by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in regular, 
open meeting this _____ day of ___________, 2006. 

SIGNED IN AUTHENTICATION thereof this _____ day of 
________________, 2006. 

   ________________________
  Mayor 

Attest:

_________________________
City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

__________________________
City Attorney 

                                                O-4045



ATTACHMENT A 

Chapter 117 - PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITIES 

Sections: 
117.05 User Guide
117.10 Policy Statement
117.05 15 Definitions
117.15 20 New and Existing Facilities Applicability
117.65 Other Wireless Communications Facilities   
117.25 Exemptions       
117.30 Prohibited Devices
117.55 35 Permit Requiredment
117.25 Co-Location
117.20 40 Priority of Locations Application Review Process
117.45 Pre-Submittal Meeting
117.45 50 Application Requirements
117.55 Determination of Application Completeness
117.50 60 Third Party Review
117.30 65 Design PWSF Standards 
117.70 Equipment Structure Standards
117.35 75 Landscaping/Buffering Screening
117.70 80 Modifications Departures From Chapter Provisions
117.40 85 Non-Use/Abandonment 
117.90 Removal From City Property - When Required
117.75 95 Appeals and Judicial Review
117.100 Lapse of Approval
117.105 Complete Compliance Required
117.110 Time Limit
117.115 Compliance With Other City Codes
117.80 120 Conflict
117.60 125 Violations and City Remedies

117.05 User Guide

This Chapter establishes the conditions under which Personal Wireless Service Facilities 
(PWSF) may locate and operate in different areas of the city.  The provisions of this Chapter 
add to and in some cases supersede the other regulations of this code.  If you wish to install, 
operate, or alter PWSF in Kirkland, you should read the provisions of this Chapter.

117.10 Policy Statement

The City has received requests to site towers and antennas.  The purpose of this Chapter is 
to provide specific regulations for the placement, construction, modification and removal of 
personal wireless service facilities PWSF.  Pursuant to the guidelines of Section 704 of the 
Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, 47 USC, Chapter 5, Subchapter III, Part I, Section 
332(c)(7), the provisions of this Chapter are not intended to and shall not be interpreted to 
prohibit or to have the effect of prohibiting the provision of personal wireless services, nor 
shall the provisions of this Chapter be applied in such a manner as to unreasonably 
discriminate among providers of functionally equivalent personal wireless services.   

1. The goals of this Chapter are to:   

1

                                                O-4045



(i) a. eEncourage the location of towers in nonresidential areas and to minimize the 
total number of tall towers throughout the City; 

(ii) b. eEncourage the joint use of existing tower sites; 

(iii) c. eEncourage users of towers and antennas to locate them, to the extent possible; 
in areas where the impact on the City is minimal,  

(iv) d. eEncourage users of towers and antennas to configure them in a way that 
minimizes the visual impact of the towers and antennas;  

(v) e. sStrongly encourage the providers of personal wireless services to use 
concealment technology;  

(vi) f. pProvide standards for the siting of personal wireless service facilities PWSF and 
other wireless communications facilities (such as television and AM/FM radio 
towers); and

(vii)g. fFacilitate the ability of the providers of personal wireless services to provide 
such services throughout the City quickly, effectively and efficiently; and

h. Prioritize the location of PWSF on existing structures such as ball field lights, 
transmission towers, utility poles or similar structures, particularly when located 
on public property.

2. Accordingly, the City Council finds that the promulgation of this Chapter is warranted 
and necessary to:

1 a. To mManage the location of towers and antennas in the City; 

2 b. To pProtect residential areas and other land uses from potential adverse impacts 
of towers and antennas; 

3 c. To mMinimize visual impacts of towers and antennas through careful design, 
siting, landscaping, screening, innovative camouflaging techniques and 
concealment technology; 

4 d. To aAccommodate the growing need for towers and antennas; 

5 e. To pPromote and encourage shared use and co-location on existing towers as a 
desirable option rather than construction of additional single-use towers; and 

6 f. To aAvoid potential damage to adjacent properties through engineering and 
proper siting of personal wireless service facilities PWSF.

117.05 15 Definitions

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them 
below. Terms not defined in this Section shall be defined as set forth in Chapter 5 KZC:

1. "Antenna" shall mean any exterior apparatus designed for telephonic, radio, data, 
Internet or other communications through the sending and/or receiving of radio 
frequency signals including, but not limited to, equipment attached to a tower, pole, 
light standard, building or other structure for the purpose of providing personal wireless 
services and its attendant base station.  Types of antennas include: 

2

                                                O-4045



a. An "omni-directional antenna" receives and transmits radio frequency signals in a 
360-degree radial pattern;  For the purposes of this chapter, a

b. A "whip antenna" is an omni-directional antenna that is up to 15 feet in height 
and up to four inches in diameter; and   

b. c. A "directional or panel antenna" receives and transmits radio frequency signals in 
a specific directional pattern of less than 360 degrees. 

2. "Antenna height" shall mean the vertical distance measured from average building 
elevation to the highest point of the antenna, or if on a rooftop or other structure, from 
the top of the roof or structure to the highest point of the antenna.  For replacement 
structures, antenna height is measured from the top of the existing structure to the 
highest point of the antenna or new structure, whichever is greater. Measurement of 
antenna height shall include the base pad, support structure, antenna, lightning rods, 
and other appurtenances.

3. “Building” shall mean a roofed structure used or intended for human occupancy.

3 4. "Cell site" shall mean a tract or parcel of land or building that contains the personal 
wireless service facilities PWSF including any antenna, antenna support structure, 
accessory buildings, and associated parking, and may include other uses associated 
with and ancillary to personal wireless services. 

4 5. "Co-location" shall mean the use or placement of PWSF a common personal wireless 
service facility or on a tower by two or more personal wireless service providers or by 
one personal wireless service provider for more than one type of communication 
technology. 

5 6. "Equipment structure" shall mean a facility, shelter, cabinet or vault used to house and 
protect the electronic or other associated equipment necessary for processing wireless 
communications signals.  “Associated equipment” may include, for example, air 
conditioning, backup power supplies, and emergency generators. 

6 7. "Existing structure" shall mean, but is not limited to, any existing building, electrical 
transmission tower, flagpole, light standard, utility pole, water tank reservoir, other 
support structure, and structures accessory structures thereto. 

7 8. "FAA" shall mean the Federal Aviation Administration. 

8 9. "FCC" shall mean the Federal Communications Commission. 

9 10. "Nonresidential" or "nonresidential zone" shall mean (1) all portions of the City 
(including rights-of-way adjacent thereto, measured to the centerline of the right-of-
way) in an area not zoned residential as defined in this Chapter, or (2) the I-405 or SR 
520 right-of-way. 

11. “Other support structure” shall mean a structure used to support PWSF or equipment 
structures, excluding buildings, utility poles, and water reservoirs.  Examples of “other 
support structure” include flagpoles and ballfield light standards,

10 12. "Personal wireless services" and "personal wireless service facilities" (PWSF), as 
used in this Chapter, shall be defined in the same manner as in Title 47, United States 
Code, Chapter 5, Subchapter III, Part I, Section 332(c)(7)(C), as they may be amended 
now or in the future. 

3

                                                O-4045



13. “Replacement structure” shall mean a structure that replaces or is intended to replace 
an existing structure of a similar design and similar primary purpose, to enable the 
installation of new or additional PWSF on that structure.  If a “replacement structure” 
meets the definition of “tower”, it shall be regulated as a new tower.

11 14. "Residential" shall mean portions of the City in the following zones:  RS 35; RSX 
35; RS 12.5; RSX 12.5; RS 8.5; RSX 8.5; RS 7.2; RSX 7.2; RS 5.0; RSX 5.0; RM 5.0; 
RM 3.6; RM 2.4; RM 1.8; WD I; WD II; WD III; PLA 1; PLA 2; PLA 5A, D, E; PLA 6A, C, 
D, E, F, H, I, J, K; PLA 7A, B, C; PLA 9; PLA 15B; PLA 16; PLA 17; and P; and rights-
of-way adjacent thereto, measured to the centerline of the right-of-way.

12 15. "Tower" shall mean any structure that is designed and constructed primarily for 
the purpose of supporting one or more antennas, including any antenna support 
structure, self-supporting lattice towers or monopole towers. , and does not include 
utility poles. A “tower” shall not include a replacement utility pole as authorized by KZC 
117.65.6.

16. “Utility pole” shall mean a structure designed and used primarily for the support of 
electrical wires, telephone wires, television cable, traffic signals, or lighting for streets, 
parking areas, or pedestrian paths.

117.15 20 New and Existing Facilities Applicability

1. New Facilities Antennas and Towers – All new personal wireless service facilities, 
including without limitation antennas and towers, shall comply with this Chapter unless 
the applicant had a vested application to site a personal wireless service facility said
PWSF under a prior version of this code chapter, or unless specifically exempted by 
KZC 117.25.

2. Existing Facilities Antennas and Towers –  
a. The usage of A all personal wireless service facilities, including without limitation

existing antennas and towers, shall be allowed to continue their usage as they
presently it exists as of the effective date of this Cchapter.  Routine maintenance 
and reconfiguration of antennas shall be permitted on such existing antennas 
and towers, subject to the limitations below.

b. However, aAny reconfiguration pursuant to paragraph (a) above that increases 
the height or number of antennas height shall be treated like and processed as a 
new facility. 

c. Existing antennas that conform to the provisions of this chapter may be replaced 
by new antennas, if such new antennas are approved as a minor modification 
pursuant to KZC 117.105.

d. The replacement of existing antennas that do not conform to the provisions of 
this chapter shall be treated and processed as a new facility.

e. The replacement of an existing tower, whether that tower conforms or does not 
conform to the provisions of this chapter, shall be treated and processed as a 
new facility.

3. Equipment Structures –
a. The usage of existing equipment structures shall be allowed to continue their 

usage as it exists as of the effective date of this Chapter.  Routine maintenance,
reconfiguration of, or additions to equipment structures shall be permitted, 
subject to the limitations below.

b. Existing equipment structures may be replaced, and new equipment structures 
may be added to an approved antenna and/or tower, provided that the new 
equipment structures conform with the provisions of this chapter, and are 
approved as a minor modification pursuant to KZC 117.105

4

                                                O-4045



c. Reconfiguration or addition of equipment structures that increases the size of the 
equipment structure enclosure shall be treated and processed as a new facility.

d. Reconfiguration of or additions to a non-approved antenna or tower are not 
permitted, unless the entire facility obtains approval as a new facility through the 
appropriate review process.

4. 117.65 Other Wireless Communication Facilities - All of the provisions of this Chapter, 
which address personal wireless services and personal wireless service facilities
PWSF, shall also be deemed to cover other wireless communications facilities (and, in 
particular, but without limitation, television, satellite radio, global positioning systems 
(GPS), and AM/FM radio towers) to the maximum extent allowed by law. 

117.25 Co-Location

To minimize potential adverse visual impacts associated with towers, co-location of antennas 
by more than one provider on personal wireless service towers shall take precedence over 
the construction of new personal wireless service towers.  Providers are encouraged, by the 
opportunity for expedited review as provided in this Chapter, to co-locate antennas onto 
personal wireless service towers.  Unless the applicant has shown by substantial evidence 
that it has made a good faith effort to mount the antenna on an existing personal wireless 
service tower the City may deny the application to construct a new personal wireless service 
tower.

117.25 Exemptions

The following are exempt from the provisions of this Chapter and shall be permitted in all 
zones, subject to any other applicable provisions of this Code:

1. Temporary PWSF during an emergency declared by the City.

2. Temporary PWSF located on the same site as, and during the construction of, a 
permanent PWSF for which appropriate permits have been granted.

3. Licensed amateur (ham) radio stations.

4. Satellite dish antennas two meters or less in diameter when located in non-residential 
zones, and satellite dish antennas one meter or less in diameter when located in 
residential zones, including direct to home satellite services, when used as an 
accessory use of the property.

117.30 Prohibited Devices

Except as exempted pursuant to KZC 117.25, PWSF that are not permanently affixed to a 
support structure and which are capable of being moved from location to location (e.g., “Cell 
on Wheels”) are prohibited.

117.55 35 Permit Requirement Required

In all instances, a permit must be obtained from the City before any personal wireless service 
facilities PWSF may be constructed on any public or private land or right-of-way, including I-
405, SR 520, and the Burlington Northern Railroad right-of-way, within the City limits.

117.20 40 Priority of Locations Application Review Process

1. After the applicant has satisfied the pre-submittal meeting requirements of KZC 117.45, 
an An application to site a personal wireless service facility PWSF shall be subject processed 

5

                                                O-4045



according to the criteria contained in the table below. Only when the application does not 
meet a criteria shall the next group of criteria be considered.  The hierarchy of criteria is 
divided into three separate approval processes:  administrative decision, Process I permit 
and Process IIB permit.  The order of criteria for locating personal wireless service facilities 
shall be as follows:  This table does not include all requirements for PWSF.  Additional 
requirements and standards affecting design and location of PWSF can be found in Sections 
117.65 (PWSF Standards), 117.70 (Equipment Structure Standards), and 117.75
(Screening).

Review Process Facility Type 
1

a)  Co-location of antennas on existing towers in nonresidential 
zones.

b)  Attachment of antennas to existing buildings or mechanical 
equipment enclosures in a nonresidential zone.  See KZC 
117.65.7.

c)  Attachment of antennas to existing water reservoirs, utility poles, 
or other support structures in any zone.

2
See KZC 117.65.6.

1. Planning Official 
Decision

(Construction permit 
review only, Planner 
issues decision).

d)  Attachment of antennas to replacement utility poles in any zone, 
where the diameter of the replacement pole will not exceed 18 
inches or increase the diameter of the existing pole by more than 
50%, whichever is less.

2
 See KZC 117.65.6.

a)  Co-location of antennas on existing towers in residential zones, 
not resulting in any increase to tower height.

b)  New towers in nonresidential zones, not exceeding 40 feet in 
height.

4

c)  Attachment of antennas to replacement utility poles in any zone, 
where the diameter of the replacement pole will not exceed 24 
inches or increase the diameter of the existing pole by more than 
100%, whichever is less.

2
See KZC 117.65.6.

2. Process I Permit

(Planning Director 
Decision following 
public notice and 
comment, per Ch. 
145 KZC)

d)  Attachment of antennas to non-residential buildings, such as
schools or churches, in residential zones.

3
See KZC 117.65.7.

a)  New towers in nonresidential zones, exceeding 40 feet in height.
4

b)  Attachment of antennas to replacement utility poles in any zone, 
where the diameter of the replacement pole will exceed the 
diameter of the existing pole by more than 100% or 24 inches, 
whichever is less.

3. Process IIA 
Permit

(Hearing Examiner 
holds public hearing 
and issues decision, 
per Ch. 150 KZC)

c)  Attachment of antennas to multi-family residential buildings in any 
zone.

3

a)  Co-location of antennas on existing towers in residential zones
resulting in an increase in tower height.

3

b)  New towers in residential zones, not exceeding 40 feet in 
height.

3, 4

c)  Departures from standards contained in this Chapter, subject to 
the limitations of KZC 117.80.

4. Process IIB 
Permit

(Hearing Examiner 
holds public hearing, 
City Council issues 
decision, per Ch. 
152 KZC) d)  Any facility that does not qualify for review as a Planning Official 

decision, Process I permit, or Process IIA permit as listed above.
3

Footnotes:
1 Although this table specifically addresses antennas and towers, it is presumed that for each 

facility there will be associated equipment structures, and there may be structural alterations to 
existing support structures.  Such equipment structures and structural alterations shall be 
reviewed through the same process as the facility with which they are associated, subject to 
the limitations of KZC 117.20.

2 Attachment of antennas to existing water reservoirs or other support structures, or to existing 
or replacement utility poles, where such attachment results in a height increase to the original
support structure, may be approved only once through the review process indicated.  Any 

6

                                                O-4045



subsequent proposal that would result in a height increase shall be reviewed through Process 
IIB.

3 If in a residential zone, the applicant shall demonstrate that a diligent effort has been made to 
locate the proposed facility in a nonresidential zone, and that due to valid considerations 
including physical constraints or technological feasibility, no other location is available.

4. An application for a new tower shall not be approved unless the applicant demonstrates, to the 
satisfaction of the City, that an attempt was made to co-locate the proposed antenna on an 
existing structure, and that such attempt was spatially, structurally, or technically infeasible.

a.  Administrative
     Decision

1)  Co-location of antennas on personal wireless service towers in nonresidential zones.
2)  Attachment of antennas to existing structures in nonresidential zones:

Whip antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum of 15 feet, and
other omni-directional antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum 
of 10 feet;

Otherwise, facilities may be mounted on one or more building facades or on 
one or more sides of a mechanical equipment enclosure; and

All appurtenances and screening (including personal wireless service facilities) 
may not exceed 5% of the total roof area of a building and/or 5% of any façade 
of a building.

3)  Equipment structures may not exceed 500 cubic feet with a 5-foot height limit in           
residential zones.

4)  Antennas may be attached to ball field light standards, electrical transmission 
towers, water tanks or existing utility poles in residential zones.  Whip antennas may 
exceed the structure height by a maximum of 15 feet and other antennas may 
exceed the structure height by a maximum of 10 feet.

b.  Process I
     Permit

1)  New personal wireless service towers and associated equipment in nonresidential 
zones:

Located at least a distance equal to 100% of antenna height from any property 
line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or residential zone;

Antenna height is a maximum of 40 feet.
2)  Attachment of antennas to existing structures in nonresidential zones:

Whip antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum of 15 feet, and
other omni-directional antennas may exceed the structure height by a maximum 
of 10 feet;

Otherwise, facilities may be mounted on one or more building facades or on 
one or more sides of a mechanical equipment enclosure; and

All appurtenances and screening (including personal wireless service facilities) 
may not exceed 10% of the total roof area of a building and/or 10% of any 
façade of a building.

c.  Process IIB
     Permit

1)  Any personal wireless service facility that is unable to meet the preceding priority of 
locational criteria for an administrative decision or Process I permit; see also KZC 
117.70.

2. Further Process IIB Permit Requirements – An applicant for a new facility to be located 
in a residential zone shall demonstrate that a diligent effort has been made to located 
the proposed facility in a nonresidential zone, and that due to valid considerations 
including physical constraints, or technological feasibility, no other location is available.  
The personal wireless services provided is required to demonstrate that it contacted the 
landowners or owners of structures in excess of 30 feet within a one-quarter mile radius 
of the site proposed, asked for permission to build the personal wireless service tower 
or install the antenna on an existing structure, and was denied.  The information 
submitted by the applicant shall include a map of the area to be served by the facility, 
its relationship to other sites in the applicant’s network, and an evaluation of existing 
available land, and buildings and structures taller than 30 feet within one-quarter mile of 
the proposed site.

7

                                                O-4045



117.45 Pre-Submittal Meeting

Before an application requiring review through Planning Official Decision, Process I, Process 
IIA, or Process IIB will be accepted for processing, the applicant shall attend a pre-submittal 
meeting with the Planning Official, as required by KZC 145.12, 150.12, or 152.12.

117.45 50 Application Requirements

a. In the course of reviewing any request for any approval required under this Chapter 
made by an applicant to install personal wireless service facilities, tThe City shall act 
within a reasonable period of time on a complete application submitted pursuant to this 
Chapter, taking into account the nature and scope of the request, after an application
has been determined to be complete.  Any decision to deny such a request shall be in 
writing and supported by substantial evidence contained in a written record. 

b. All applications required pursuant to this Chapter for administrative decision, Process I 
and Process IIB permits to locate a personal wireless service facility (including, but 
without limitation, an antenna or tower in the City) shall be made using forms provided 
by submitted to the Planning Department and shall be accompanied by the information 
and support materials identified on said forms.with the applicable requested information 
(depending upon the type of facility which is involved).  A detailed plan that complies 
with the submittal requirements of this Chapter, and other regulations and ordinances 
of the City, along with other pertinent information requested by the City shall also be 
submitted.  An applicant's submission may utilize any combination of site plans, 
surveys, maps, technical reports or written narratives necessary to convey the following 
information depending upon the type of facility which is involved:

1. All applicants must register their request with the City on a form provided by the City at 
the time of building permit or right-of-way use permit application.

2. A scaled site plan clearly indicating the location, type and height of the proposed tower, 
antennas, on-site land uses and zoning, adjacent land uses and zoning, adjacent 
roadways, proposed means of access, setbacks from property lines, elevation drawings 
of the proposed tower, the equipment structure, fencing, buffering and the type of 
concealment technology which will be utilized.  The full, detailed site plan shall not be 
required if the antenna is to be mounted on an existing structure.

3. Photosimulations of the proposed facility from affected residential properties and public 
rights-of-way.

4. A current map and/or aerial photograph showing the location of the proposed tower.

5. Legal description of the parcel, if applicable.

6. Approximate distance between the proposed tower and antennas, as applicable, and 
the nearest residential unit, or residentially zoned properties.

7. Information of sufficient detail to demonstrate that the equipment structure is the 
minimum size necessary.

8. A landscape plan showing specific landscape, screening and fencing materials.

9. A notarized letter signed by the applicant stating that the personal wireless service 
facilities PWSF will comply with all applicable federal and state laws, including 
specifically FCC and FAA regulations, and all City codes.

8

                                                O-4045



10. A notarized letter signed by the applicant stating that the antenna usage will not 
interfere with other adjacent or neighboring transmission or reception communications 
signals.

11. Manufacturers information indicating compliance with adopted noise standards.

12. The personal wireless services provider must demonstrate that it is licensed by the 
FCC, if required to be licensed under FCC regulations.

13. The applicant, if not the personal wireless services provider, shall submit proof of a 
lease agreement with an FCC-licensed personal wireless services provider if such 
provider is required to be licensed by the FCC.

14. Propagation maps shall be provided showing that the tower and antennas are required 
for present and future network coverage in order to satisfy the requirements of the 
provider's grid system.  The maps shall also demonstrate that the height specified is 
the minimum height necessary for the tower and antennas, as applicable.  The maps 
shall additionally show coverage areas at the requested height and at lower heights.  
Finally, they shall show the neighboring or regional facilities with which the facilities in 
the City can communicate.

15. If the site is within or adjacent to a residential zone, then a study shall be provided 
showing why alternative locations are not acceptable.

16. All providers shall submit satisfactory evidence that the facility is designed for and will 
provide services primarily for residents of the City and/or visitors within City limits.

17. See also KZC 117.40(2), Further Process IIB Permit Requirements, and KZC 117.55, 
Third Party Review.

117.55 Determination of Application Completeness

1. Planning Official Decisions:  Within 28 calendar days after the date of submittal of the 
application, the Planning Official shall determine whether the application is complete.  If 
the application is not complete, the Planning Official shall identify and communicate the 
needed components to the applicant.  Once the application is complete, the Planning 
Official shall process the application.

2. Process I, Process IIA, and Process IIB Permits:  The determination of completeness 
for Process I, Process IIA, and Process IIB permit applications shall occur pursuant to 
the process set forth in Chapters 145, 150, and 152 KZC, respectively.

117.50 60 Third Party Review

In certain instances (including all particularly Process IIA and IIB permit applications) there 
may be a need for expert review by a third party of the technical data submitted by the 
personal wireless services provider applicant.  The City may require such a technical review, 
to be paid for by the applicant. for the personal wireless service facilities.  The selection of the 
third party expert shall be by mutual agreement between the applicant and the City, and such 
agreement not to be unreasonably withheld by either party.  The third party expert shall have 
recognized training and qualifications in the field of radio frequency engineering. 

The expert review is intended to be a site-specific review of technical aspects of the personal 
wireless services, facilities PWSF, and other matters as described herein, and not a 
subjective review of the site selection.  In particular, but without limitation, the expert shall be 

9

                                                O-4045



entitled to provide a recommendation on the height of the proposed facilities relative to the 
applicant's coverage objectives and system design parameters.  Such a review should 
address the accuracy and completeness of the technical data, whether the analysis 
techniques and methodologies are legitimate, the validity of the conclusions, and any specific 
technical issues outlined by the City or other interested parties.   

To facilitate the expert review, an applicant for a Process IIB permit for a new tower in a 
residential zone, or for the co-location of antennas on existing towers in residential zones 
resulting in an increase in tower height, the applicant shall submit a map of the area to be 
served by the facility, its relationship to other sites in the applicant’s network, and an 
evaluation of existing available land and buildings and structures taller than 30 feet within ¼ 
mile of the proposed site.  The applicant shall demonstrate that he/she contacted the 
landowners or owners of structures taller than 30 feet within a ¼ mile radius of the proposed
site, and was denied permission by those owners to locate the facility on their land or their 
structures.

Based on the results of the third party review, the City may require changes to the application 
for the personal wireless service facilities that to comply with the recommendations of the 
expert.

117.30 65 Design PWSF Standards

1. Context - The location and design of a cell sites in the City shall consider the its visual 
and physical impact of the site on the surrounding neighborhood and shall, to the 
extent feasible, reflect the context within which it is located.

2. Design Compatibility - Facilities PWSF shall be architecturally compatible with the 
surrounding buildings and land uses or otherwise integrated, through location, and
design, and/or concealment technology, to blend in with the existing characteristics of 
the site and streetscape to the maximum extent practical. 

3. Concealment Technology. - Concealment technology applies to all personal wireless 
service facilities, including, without limitation, antennas, towers and equipment 
structures. For any facility, “concealment technology” means the use of both existing 
and future technology through which a personal wireless service facility is designed to 
resemble an object which is already present in the local environment, such as a tree, 
streetlight, or traffic signal.  It also includes:  One or more of the following concealment 
measures must be employed unless the City determines through the applicable review 
process that alternative measures would be more appropriate given the contextual 
setting of the PWSF:

a. For personal wireless service towers: 

 If within an existing stand of trees, "concealment technology" means that the 
tower is to shall be painted a dark color, is and be made of wood or metal., and 
that a A greenbelt easement is required to ensure permanent retention of the 
surrounding trees. 

"Concealment technology" for  t Towers in a more open setting means that they 
must shall have a backdrop (for example, but not limited to, trees, a hillside, or a 
structure) on at least two sides, be a color compatible color with the backdrop, be 
made of materials compatible materials with the backdrop, and that provide
architectural or landscape screening be provided for the other two remaining
sides.  If existing trees are the backdrop, then a greenbelt easement is required 
to ensure permanent retention of the surrounding trees.  In all cases wWhere a 
greenbelt easement is required, it  The greenbelt easement shall be the minimum 

10

                                                O-4045



necessary to provide screening and may be removed at the landowner's request 
in the event the facility is removed. 

 Antennas shall be integrated into the design of any personal wireless service
tower to which they are attached.  External projections from the tower shall be 
limited to the greatest extent technically feasible.  Where antennas are 
completely enclosed within the tower, the need for the backdrop described in the 
preceding paragraph may be reduced or eliminated, depending on the tower
design and context.

b. For rooftop antennas or antennas mounted on other structures: 

For o Omni-directional antennas mounted on the roof 15 feet or less above the 
roof, "concealment technology" means use shall be of a color compatible with the 
roof, structure or background. 

For o Other antennas, "concealment technology" means shall use of compatible 
colors and architectural screening or other techniques approved by the City. 

 Antennas shall be integrated into the design of any existing structure or support
the structure to which they are attached.  External projections from the existing
structure or support structure shall be limited to the greatest extent technically 
feasible. 

c. For a Antennas mounted on one or more building facades:  "Concealment 
technology" means shall:  (a) use of color and materials such that the facility has
to provide architectural compatibility with the building; It shall (b) be mounted on 
a wall of an existing building in a configuration as flush to the wall as technically 
possible; and shall (c) not project above the wall on which it is mounted. 

d. For equipment structures: "Concealment technology" means locating within a 
building, or if on top of a building, with architecturally compatible screening. An 
underground location, or locating above ground with a solid fence and 
landscaping, is also considered concealment technology.

d. Where feasible, cable and or conduit shall be routed through the inside of any 
new tower, utility pole, or other support structure.  Where this is not feasible, or 
where such routing would result in a structure of a substantially different design 
or substantially greater diameter than that of other similar structures in the vicinity 
or would otherwise appear out of context with its surroundings, the City may 
allow or require that the cable or conduit be placed on the outside of the
structure.  The outside cable or conduit shall be the color of the tower, utility pole, 
or other support structure, and the City may require that the cable be placed in 
conduit.

e. Alternative measures for concealment may be proposed by the applicant and 
approved by the City, if the City determines through the applicable review 
process of that the optional measures will be at least as effective in concealing 
the PWSF as the measures required above.

f. Nonwithstanding the above, the manner of concealment for any PWSF that 
requires approval through Process IIA or Process IIB shall be reviewed and 
determined as part of that Process.

4. Setbacks - Ground-mounted personal wireless service facilities shall be located at least 
a distance equal to 100 percent of antenna height from any property line adjacent to or 

11

                                                O-4045



across the street from a residential use or residential zone; and a minimum of 10 feet 
from any property line adjacent to or across the street from all other uses or zones.
The following regulations apply, except for structures located in public right-of-way:

a. New towers in any zone shall be setback a minimum of 20 feet from any property 
line, plus an additional one-half foot for each foot of tower height above 40 feet
(e.g., if the tower is 40’ in height, the setback will be 20’ from any property line; if 
the tower is 50’ in height, the setback shall be 25’ from any property line).

b. Replacement structures intended to accommodate a PWSF shall be setback a 
distance equal to or greater than the setback of the original structure from any 
property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or residential 
zone; and the lesser of ten (10) feet or the distance of the original structure from 
any property line adjacent to or across the street from all other uses or zones.

9 5. Tower and Antenna Height - The applicant shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the 
City, that the tower and antenna are the minimum height required to function 
satisfactorily.  Personal wireless service towers shall not exceed 40 feet in residential 
zones, as measured from the Average Building Elevation at the tower base to the 
highest point of the tower, antenna, or other physical feature attached to or supported 
by the tower.  Examples of information that can be used to demonstrate that the tower 
and antennas are the minimum height necessary include, but are not limited to,
propagation maps showing the necessity of the height to provide the required 
coverage, and a letter from a Radio Frequency engineer stating and explaining the 
necessity of the proposed height.

6. Antennas On a Utility Pole - Antennas mounted to an existing or replacement utility 
pole shall be subject to the following height limits:
a. In any zone, 15’ above the top of a pole not used to convey electrical service;
b. In a residential zone, 15’ above the electrical distribution or transmission 

conductor (as opposed to top of pole) if the pole is used to convey electrical 
service; and

c. In a nonresidential zone, 15’ above an electrical distribution conductor or 21’ 
above an electrical transmission conductor (as opposed to top of pole) if the pole 
is used to convey electrical service.

10 7. Antennas On or Above a Structure Building, Mechanical Equipment Enclosure, or 
Water Reservoir - Antennas and equipment structures on or above a structure shall be 
subject to the following criteria:

a. Antennas, including panel or directional antennas, may be attached to the sides, 
parapets, mechanical penthouses, or similar elements, of buildings, subject to 
the limitations of this Chapter.

a b. Antenna and equipment structure height is measured above the top of the roof, 
not from the parapet or from the Average Building Elevation of the building, 
mechanical equipment enclosure, or water reservoir.

b c. Only o Omni-directional antennas may be roof-mounted, but may not be mounted 
on top of rooftop appurtenances.  No panel or directional antennas may be 
mounted on roofs or project above the roofline, except as provided in subsection 
(g) below.  The “roofline” of a water reservoir that incorporates a curved roof shall 
be the point at which the vertical wall of the water reservoir ends and the 
curvature of the roof begins.

12

                                                O-4045



d. Whip antennas may exceed the structure height by 15 feet, and other omni-
directional antennas may exceed the structure height by 10 feet.

c e. All rRoof-mounted antennas must be set back from the edge of the roof a 
distance equal to 100 percent of antenna height. 

d. Roof-mounted antennas and equipment structures shall be incorporated into the 
pitched or stepped roof form, and not appear as a separate penthouse or box.

e f. Roof-mounted antennas shall be consolidated and centered in the roof to the 
maximum extent feasible rather than scattered. 

f g. Antennas, including flush-mounted panel or directional antennas, may be 
attached to an existing conforming mechanical equipment enclosure or stair or 
elevator penthouse or similar rooftop appurtenance which projects above the roof 
of the building, but may not project any higher than the enclosure. 

g h. In no instance shall equipment structures, antenna and related equipment Except 
for PWSF installed in an existing rooftop penthouse, PWSF shall occupy no more 
than 25 10 percent of the total roof area of a building.  Rooftop conduit shall be 
excluded from this calculation.

i. Building parapets or other architectural features, including rooftop mechanical 
equipment enclosures, stair or elevator penthouses, or similar rooftop 
appurtenances, shall not be increased in size or height solely for the purpose of 
facilitating the attachment of PWSF components.

h. 8. Historic or Landmark Locations - No antennas shall be permitted on property designed 
as a historic resource or community landmark as identified in the Comprehensive Plan, 
unless such antennas have been approved in accordance with design requirements 
pertaining to historic structures. 

i. 9. Signal Interference - No antennas shall cause localized interference with the 
transmission or reception of any other communications signals including, but not limited 
to, public safety signals, and television and radio broadcast signals. 

j. 10. Support Wires - No guy or other support wires shall be used in connection with 
antennas, antenna arrays or support structures except when required by construction 
codes adopted by the City. the UBC to anchor the antennas, antenna arrays or support 
structures.

5 11. Views - Personal wireless service facilities PWSF, including towers, must be located 
and oriented in such a way as to minimize view blockage. 

6 12. Lights, Signals and Signs - No signals, lights or signs shall be permitted on towers 
unless required by the FCC or the FAA. 

7. Equipment Structures - (moved to 117.70, below).

13. Noise – The installation and operation of PWSF shall comply with the noise standards 
set forth in KZC 115.95.

8 14. Federal Requirements - All towers and antennas PWSF must meet or exceed current 
standards and regulations of the FAA, the FCC and any other agency of the federal 
government with the authority to regulate towers and antennas.  If such standards and 
regulations are changed, then the owners of the towers and antennas governed by this 

13

                                                O-4045



Chapter PWSF shall bring such towers and antennas PWSF into compliance with such 
revised standards and regulations changes in accordance with the compliance 
deadlines and requirements of such standards and regulations changes.  Failure to 
bring towers and antennas into compliance with such revised standards and 
regulations shall constitute grounds for the removal of the tower or antenna at the 
owner's expense.  Additionally, IIf, upon inspection, the City concludes that a tower
PWSF fails to comply with such regulations and standards and constitutes a danger to 
persons or property, then, upon notice being provided to the owner of the tower PWSF,
the owner shall have 30 days to bring such tower PWSF into compliance with such 
standards and regulations.  If the owner fails to bring such tower PWSF into 
compliance within said 30 days, the City may remove such tower PWSF at the owner's 
expense. 

7  117.70 Equipment Structures Standards - The standards for equipment structures are as follows:

1. Maximum Size in Residential Zones - eEquipment structures may shall not exceed 500
cubic feet 5 feet in height. with a 5-foot height limit in residential zones.  Equipment 
structure enclosures shall not exceed 125 square feet each.  These limitations shall 
apply to each individual equipment structure and enclosure, provided that equipment 
structures that are fully contained within a legally established building that houses or is 
accessory to a principal permitted use shall not be subject to these limitations.

b2. Maximum Size in Nonresidential Zones - Gross floor area of equipment structures shall 
be the minimum necessary but not greater than 240 square feet per provider.  
Maximum height is 10 feet above average building elevation.  These limitations shall 
not apply to equipment structures that are fully contained within a building that houses 
or is accessory to a principal permitted use and that satisfies the dimensional 
regulations of the underlying zone.

3. Equipment Structures Located in Right-of-Way - If ground-mounted, equipment
structures shall not exceed a height of 30 inches.  If mounted on poles, said structures 
shall comply with 117.70.6.  Setback requirements do not apply to equipment 
structures located in the right-of-way.

4. Setbacks When Located on Private Property – Ground-mounted personal wireless 
service facilities shall be located at least a distance equal to 100 percent of antenna 
height from any property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or 
residential zone; and a minimum of 10 feet from any property line adjacent to or across 
the street from all other uses or zones.  equipment structures over 30 inches in height 
shall be setback at least 10 feet from all property lines; provided, that equipment 
structures that are fully contained within a legally established building that houses or is 
accessory to a principal permitted use shall not be subject to this requirement.

5. Equipment structures on or above a structure - Equipment structures on or above a 
structure shall be subject to the following criteria: 

a. Antenna and eEquipment structure height is measured above the top of the roof, 
not the parapet. 

d b. When mounted to the roof of a building with a pitched or stepped roof form,
Rroof-mounted antennas and equipment structures shall be incorporated into the 
pitched or stepped roof form, and not appear as a separate penthouse or box. 

6. Equipment structures mounted on poles or towers -

14

                                                O-4045



a. Equipment structures may be mounted on utility poles or towers.  The location 
and vertical clearance of such structures shall be reviewed by the Public Works 
Department and verified by the underlying utility owner to ensure that the 
structures will not pose a hazard to other users of the right-of-way.

b, Equipment structures mounted on utility poles or towers shall be located in a 
manner that minimizes clutter and visual impact.

a7. Compatibility - Equipment structures shall be designed to be compatible with the 
surrounding area in which they are located.  For example, in a residential area, a 
sloped roof or wood siding may be required.   

8. Concealment - For equipment structures: "Concealment technology" means  One or 
more of the following concealment measures must be employed unless the City 
determines through the applicable review process that alternative measures would be 
more appropriate given the contextual setting of the equipment structure:

a lLocating within a building or building appendage constructed in accordance with 
all applicable City codes, or if

b  Locating on top of a building, with architecturally compatible screening. , 

c  Locating An underground location, or

d lLocating above ground with a solid fence and landscaping subject to the 
limitations of KZC 117.75.3, is also considered concealment technology. or

e If mounted on a utility pole or tower, the equipment structure shall be of a similar 
color to that of the pole or tower to which it is attached, unless alternative 
measures are approved by the City as part of the applicable review process.

c9. Noise Standards - Equipment structures shall be oriented so that exhaust ports or 
outlets are pointed away from properties which that may be impacted by noise.  The 
installation and operation of Eequipment structures shall comply with noise regulations 
in KZC 115.95.  The City may require an assessment of noise after operation begins 
and remediation if the noise levels created are not within the prescribed limits.  
Cumulative noise impacts will be measured in cases where there is more than one 
equipment structure. 

117.35 75 Landscaping/Buffering Screening

1. General - Landscaping, as described herein, shall be required to screen as much of the 
new personal wireless service tower PWSF and any ground-mounted features, 
including fencing, as possible, the fence surrounding both the tower and any other 
ground level features (such as an equipment structure), and in general soften the 
appearance of the site.  The City may allow or require any other form of the use of 
concealment technology, as described in KZC 117.65.3, either instead of or in addition 
to required landscaping, if it to achieves the same degree of effective screening as the 
required landscaping.  The effectiveness of visual mitigation techniques must will be 
evaluated by the City, in the City's discretion, taking into consideration the site as built.  
If the antenna is mounted on an existing a building, and the equipment structure is 
housed inside the building, landscaping shall not be required. 

2. Existing Vegetation - Existing vegetation shall be preserved or improved, and 
disturbance of the existing topography of the site shall be minimized, unless such 
disturbance will result in less visual impact of the site on the surrounding area. 

15

                                                O-4045



3. Buffering –

a. Except for PWSF located in a public right-of-way and subject to review as a 
Planning Official decision, Bbuffering of ground-mounted personal wireless 
service facilities PWSF shall be required around the perimeter of the facility as 
follows:. Landscape buffering shall at a minimum comply with the requirements 
of KZC 95.25(3) except that all trees must be evergreen
i. Provide a five-foot-wide landscaped strip with one row of trees planted no 

more than 10 feet apart on center along the entire length of the buffer, with 
deciduous trees of two inch caliper, minimum, and/or coniferous trees at 
least six feet in height, minimum.  At least 50 percent of the required trees 
shall be evergreen.

ii. Living ground covers planted from either four-inch pots with twelve-inch 
spacing or one-gallon pots with eighteen-inch spacing to cover within two 
years 60 percent of the land use buffer not needed for viability of the trees.

b. As an option to the buffering measures described in (a) above, the City may 
approve or require one or more of the measures provided for below, if the City 
determines that such measures will provide effective screening.  Such optional 
measures include, but are not limited to, the following:
i. Walls or solid fencing, of a height at least as high as the equipment it 

screens, subject to KZC 117.75.4 below.
ii. Architectural features, such as parapets, mechanical penthouses, or 

building fin walls.
iii. Climbing vegetation supported by a structure such as a fence or trellis, of a 

type and size that will provide a dense visual barrier at least as high as the 
equipment it screens within two years from the time of planting.

iv. Screening by the natural topography of the site or the adjoining property or 
right-of-way.

4. Fencing - Fencing may be allowed or required if it is needed for security purposes, or if 
it is part of concealment technology.  The use of chain link, plastic, vinyl or wire fencing 
is prohibited unless it is fully screened from public view.  Landscaping shall be installed 
on the outside of fences.  Fencing installed specifically for the purpose of screening 
ground-mounted PWSF shall not be taller than necessary to provide appropriate 
screening.

5. Maintenance – The applicant shall maintain the screening in good condition and shall 
replace any plants required by this chapter or approved or required as part of the 
permit approval that are unhealthy or dead.  In the event that landscaping screening is 
not maintained at the required level, the City, after giving 30 days' advance written 
notice to the provider, may maintain or establish the landscaping screening and bill 
both the landowner and provider for such costs until such costs are paid in full. 

6. Nonwithstanding the above, the manner of screening for any PWSF that requires 
approval through Process IIA or Process IIB shall be reviewed and determined as part 
of that Process.

117.70 80 Modifications Departures From Chapter Provisions

Provisions of this Chapter shall not be subject to variances described in Chapter 120 KZC.  
However, through Process IIB, Chapter 152 KZC, the City may consider modification of
standards in the departures from Chapter provisions except for the following:

16

                                                O-4045



1. The 40-foot height limit for personal wireless service facilities towers in residential 
zones; and/or 

2. The 15-foot limit for antennas projecting above an existing or replacement utility pole or 
electrical distribution or transmission conductor in residential zones.

2. A 20-foot minimum distance between a ground-mounted personal wireless service 
facility and any property line adjacent to or across the street from a residential use or 
residential zone.

117.40 85 Non-Use/Abandonment

1. Bond - The City may require a bond or other suitable performance security as per
pursuant to Chapter 175 KZC to cover the costs of removal of the antenna or tower. 

2. Annual Report - The provider must confirm in writing to the City on an annual basis that 
the personal wireless service facility is still in use on a form to be provided by the City.

3 2. In the event the use of any tower or antenna PWSF will be discontinued for a period of 
60 consecutive days, the owner or operator shall so notify the City in writing, and the 
tower or antenna PWSF shall thereafter be deemed to be abandoned.  Determination 
of the date of abandonment shall be made by the City which shall have the right to 
request documentation and affidavits from the tower or antenna PWSF owner or 
operator regarding the issue of tower or antenna PWSF usage.  Upon such 
abandonment, the owner or operator of the tower or antenna PWSF or the owner of the 
property upon which such facility is located shall have an additional 60 days within 
which to: 

a. Reactivate the use of the tower or antenna PWSF or transfer the tower or 
antenna PWSF to another owner or operator who makes actual use of the PWSF
tower or antenna; or 

b. Dismantle and remove the tower or antenna PWSF.  If such tower or antenna
PWSF is not removed within said 60 days from the date of abandonment, the 
City may remove such tower or antenna PWSF at the facility owner's and 
property owner's expense.  If there are two or more users of a single tower, then 
this provision shall not become effective until all users cease using the tower. 

 At the earlier of 60 days from the date of abandonment without reactivation or 
upon completion of dismantling and removal, City approval of the tower or 
antenna PWSF shall automatically expire. 

117.90 Removal From City Property - When Required

A PWSF mounted to any City-owned property, utility pole, or other structure shall be removed 
if the City deems removal is necessary for the undergrounding of utilities, the sale, 
development, or redevelopment of City-owned property, or the demolition or alteration of a 
City-owned building or other structure.  The PWSF shall be removed at no expense to the 
City.

117.75 95 Appeals and Judicial Review

Appeals of administrative decisions shall be processed according to the appeal procedures
for Process I; except, that any affected party may appeal and participate in the appeal; the 
time to appeal is taken from the date of administrative decision; and distribution of the appeal 

17

                                                O-4045



hearing notice by the Planning Official shall be to the applicant, appellant, the official 
newspaper of the City, and posted on public notice sign(s).

1. An applicant may appeal a Planning Official decision to the Hearing Examiner.  A written 
notice of appeal shall be filed with the Planning Department within fourteen (14) days of 
the date the Planning Official’s decision was mailed or otherwise delivered to the 
applicant.  The office of the Hearing Examiner shall give notice of the hearing to the 
applicant at least seventeen (17) days prior to the hearing.  The applicant shall have the 
burden of proving that the Planning Official made an incorrect decision.  Based on the 
Hearing Examiner’s findings and conclusions, he or she may affirm, reverse, or modify 
the decision being appealed.

2. Appeals of Process I, IIA, or IIB permits are processed, and judicial review shall occur,
according to the appeal and judicial review procedures and provisions for either Process 
I, IIA, or IIB respectively. 

117.100 Lapse of Approval

The applicant must begin construction or submit to the City a complete building permit 
application for the development activity or other actions approved under this Chapter within 
one year after the final approval of the City of Kirkland on the matter, or the decision 
becomes void; provided, however, that in the event judicial review is initiated per KZC 
117.95, the running of the one year is tolled for any period of time during which a court order 
in said judicial review proceeding prohibits the development activity or other actions.  The 
applicant must substantially complete construction for the development or other actions 
approved under this Chapter and complete the applicable conditions listed on the notice of 
decision within two years after the final approval on the matter, or the decision becomes void.  
For development activity or other actions with phased construction, lapse of approval may be 
extended when approved under this Chapter and made a condition of the notice of decision.

117.105 Complete Compliance Required

1. General – Except as specified in subsection (2) of this section, the applicant must 
comply with all aspects, including conditions and restrictions, of an approval granted 
under this Chapter in order to do everything authorized by that approval.

2. Exception – Subsequent or Minor Modification – The Planning Official may approve a 
modification to the permit approved for the PWSF if:

a. The modification is minor and will not substantially change the proposed facility; 
and

b. The proposed modification will comply with the provisions of this Chapter in effect 
at the time of the modification request; and

c. There will not be any substantial changes in the impacts on the neighborhood or 
the City as a result of the change.

 Any modification, other than as specified in paragraph 2 of this Section, must be 
reviewed and decided upon as a new PWSF approval under this Chapter.

117.110 Time Limit

Any time limit, pursuant to Chapter 36.70B RCW, upon the City’s processing and decision 
upon applications under this Chapter may, except as specifically otherwise stated in this 
Chapter, be modified by a written agreement between the applicant and Planning Director.  In 

18

                                                O-4045



the event a permit constitutes or presents a special circumstance under the provisions of this 
Chapter, the time limits for the City to make a final decision and issue its notice of decision 
under Chapter 36.70B RCW are extended by the number of days that the final decision of the 
City was delayed as a result of that special circumstance.

117.115 Compliance With Other City Codes

Compliance with the provisions of this Chapter does not constitute compliance, or remove 
from the applicant the obligation to comply, with other applicable provisions of this Code, the 
Comprehensive Plan, or any other ordinance or regulation of the City including, but not 
limited to, regulations governing construction or implementing the State Environmental Policy 
Act or the Shoreline Management Act.

117.80 120 Conflict

Notwithstanding the requirements of Section 117.115 above, To to the extent that any 
provision or provisions of this Chapter are inconsistent or in conflict with any other provision 
of the Zoning Code, Comprehensive Plan or any ordinance or regulation of the City, the 
provisions of this Chapter shall be deemed to control.  Personal wireless service facilities
PWSF are permitted in the City pursuant to this Chapter notwithstanding the fact they are not 
mentioned in the use zone charts in Chapters 15 through 65 KZC. 

117.60 125 Violations and City Remedies

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be subject to the 
provisions of Chapter 170 KZC, Code Enforcement.  In addition to fines, the City shall have 
the right to seek damages and injunctive relief for any and all violations of this Chapter and all 
other remedies provided at law or in equity. 

19

                                                O-4045



ORDINANCE 4045
PUBLICATION SUMMARY 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO ZONING, 
PLANNING, AND LAND USE AND AMENDING TITLE 23 (THE 
KIRKLAND ZONING CODE) OF THE KIRKLAND MUNICIPAL CODE; 
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 117 OF THE KIRKLAND 
ZONING CODE REGULATING THE SITING OF PERSONAL WIRELESS 
SERVICE FACILITIES, MODIFYING THE CHAPTER ORGANIZATION, 
CLARIFYING PROVISIONS, ADDING NEW SECTIONS, AND REVISING 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO DEFINITIONS, SCREENING 
REQUIREMENTS, REVIEW PROCEDURES, ALLOWABLE HEIGHT, AND 
OTHER COMPONENTS OF CHAPTER 117 KZC  (FILE NO. IV-03-13). 

Section 1. Identifies the specific amendments to Ordinance 3719, 
as amended, the Kirkland Zoning Code. 

Section 2. Addresses severability. 

Section 3. Establishes that this ordinance will be effective within the 
disapproval jurisdiction of the Houghton Community Council Municipal 
Corporation upon approval by the Houghton Community Council or the failure of 
said Community Council to disapprove this ordinance within 60 days of the date of 
the passage of this ordinance, but no sooner than thirty days after publication as 
provided in Section 4. 

Section 4. Authorizes publication of the ordinance by summary, 
which summary is approved by the City Council pursuant to Section 1.08.017 
Kirkland Municipal Code and establishes the effective date as thirty days after 
publication of said summary. 

Section 5. Directs the City Clerk to certify and forward a complete 
certified copy of this ordinance to the King County Department of Assessments. 

The full text of this ordinance will be mailed without charge to any person 
upon request made to the City Clerk for the City of Kirkland.  The ordinance was 
passed by the Kirkland City Council at its regular meeting on the _____ day of 
____________, 2006. 

 I certify that the foregoing is a summary of Ordinance _____ approved by 
the Kirkland City Council for summary publication. 

Attest:

____________________
City Clerk 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. d. (1).



ORDINANCE 4046

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO FEES AND 
REIMBURSEMENT; AMENDING SECTION 5.74.070 (FEES CHARGED BY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT) OF CHAPTER 5.74 (FEES AS 
REIMBURSEMENT) OF TITLE 5 (REVENUE AND FINANCE) OF THE 
KIRKLAND MUNICIPAL CODE, ESTABLISHING FEES FOR THE 
REVIEW OF PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITIES THROUGH 
PROCESS IIA, AND ESTABLISHING FEES FOR THE REVIEW OF MINOR 
MODIFICATIONS OF PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITIES. 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, on _____________________, 2006 adopted 
Ordinance No. __________ amending Chapter 117 (Personal Wireless Service Facilities) 
of Title 23 (the Kirkland Zoning Code) of the Kirkland Municipal Code; and 

 WHEREAS, said Ordinance resulted in changes to the processes by which 
certain Personal Wireless Service Facilities are reviewed; and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend Section 5.74.070 (Fees charged by 
planning department) of Chapter 5.74 (Fees as Reimbursement) of Title 5 (Revenue and 
Finance) of the Kirkland Municipal Code to be consistent with said Ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the City of Kirkland’s Concurrency Management 
System, KMC Title 25, this action is exempt from the concurrency management process; 
and

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the State Environmental Policy Act, WAC 197-11-
800(20), this action is exempt from the environmental review process;

 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Kirkland do ordain as follows: 

Section 1.  Section 5.74.070 of the Kirkland Municipal Code is hereby 
amended as follows: 

1. Under the Fee Type heading “Planning Official Decisions”, the Fee Type 
“Personal Wireless Service Facility Administrative Decision” shall be amended 
to read “Personal Wireless Service Facility Planning Official Decision”; and 

2. Under the Fee Type heading “Planning Official Decisions”, there shall be added 
a new Fee Type to read “Personal Wireless Service Facility Subsequent or Minor 
Modification”, and a corresponding Fee Amount shall be established in the 
amount of $600.00; and 

3. Under the Fee Type heading “Process IIA Review”, there shall be added a new 
Fee Type to read “Personal Wireless Service Facility Process IIA Review”, and a 
corresponding Fee Amount shall be established in the amount of $14,640.00. 

Section 2. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, part or portion 
of this ordinance, including those parts adopted by reference, is for any reason held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. d. (2).



Section 3.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days from 
and after its passage by the Kirkland City Council and publication, pursuant to Section 
1.08.017 Kirkland Municipal Code, in the summary form attached to the original of this 
ordinance and by this reference approved by the City Council, as required by law. 

Section 4. A complete copy of this ordinance shall be certified by the City Clerk, 
who shall then forward the certified copy to the King County Department of Assessments. 

PASSED by majority vote of the Kirkland City Council in regular, 
open meeting this _____ day of ___________, 2006. 

SIGNED IN AUTHENTICATION thereof this _____ day of 
________________, 2006. 

   ________________________
  Mayor 

Attest:

_________________________
City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

__________________________
City Attorney 

                                                O-4046



ORDINANCE 4046
PUBLICATION SUMMARY 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KIRKLAND RELATING TO FEES AND 
REIMBURSEMENT; AMENDING SECTION 5.74.070 (FEES CHARGED BY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT) OF CHAPTER 5.74 (FEES AS 
REIMBURSEMENT) OF TITLE 5 (REVENUE AND FINANCE) OF THE 
KIRKLAND MUNICIPAL CODE, ESTABLISHING FEES FOR THE 
REVIEW OF PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITIES THROUGH 
PROCESS IIA, AND ESTABLISHING FEES FOR THE REVIEW OF MINOR 
MODIFICATIONS OF PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE FACILITIES. 

Section 1. Identifies the specific amendments to Section 5.74.070 
of Title 5 of the Kirkland Municipal Code. 

Section 2. Addresses severability. 

Section 3. Authorizes publication of the ordinance by summary, 
which summary is approved by the City Council pursuant to Section 1.08.017 
Kirkland Municipal Code and establishes the effective date as thirty days after 
publication of said summary. 

Section 4. Directs the City Clerk to certify and forward a complete 
certified copy of this ordinance to the King County Department of Assessments. 

The full text of this ordinance will be mailed without charge to any person 
upon request made to the City Clerk for the City of Kirkland.  The ordinance was 
passed by the Kirkland City Council at its regular meeting on the _____ day of 
____________, 2006. 

 I certify that the foregoing is a summary of Ordinance _____ approved by 
the Kirkland City Council for summary publication. 

Attest:

______________________________
City Clerk 

Council Meeting:  03/07/2006
Agenda: New Business

Item #:  11. d. (2).


	Agenda030706.pdf
	3a_Study Session.pdf
	5b_SpecialPresentations.pdf
	5c_SpecialPresentations.pdf
	6b1_Reports.pdf
	6b3_Reports.pdf
	8a_ApprovalofMinutes.pdf
	8d_Claims.pdf
	8g1_EstablishLienPeriod.pdf
	8h1_ApprovalofAgreements.pdf
	8h2_ApprovalofAgreements.pdf
	8h3_ApprovalofAgreements.pdf
	8h4_ApprovalofAgreements.pdf
	8i1_OtherBusiness.pdf
	8i2_OtherBusiness.pdf
	8i3_OtherBusiness.pdf
	8i4_OtherBusiness.pdf
	9a_PublicHearings.pdf
	10a_Unfinished Business.pdf
	10b_UnfinishedBusiness.pdf
	10c_UnfinishedBusiness.pdf
	11a_NewBusiness.pdf
	11b_NewBusiness.pdf
	11c_NewBusiness.pdf
	11d_NewBusiness.pdf



